

Notice of Intent to Adopt Rules

Revised October 2014

1. Genera	al Information					
a. Agency/B	oard Name					
b. Agency/Board Address			c. City	c. City d. Zip Code		
e. Name of 0	Contact Person		f. Contact Telephone Num	ber		
g. Contact E	mail Address					
h. Date of P	ublic Notice		i. Comment Period Ends			
j. Program						
2. Rule T	ype and Informatio	n: For each chapter listed, indicate if the rule is N	lew, Amended, or Repealed.			
a. If "New," p	provide the Enrolled Act	numbers and years enacted:				
h Provide th	ne Chapter Number Sho	ort Title, and Rule Type of Each Chapter being	r Created/Amended/Renealed			
		ation form for more than 10 chapters, and attach it				
Chapte	r Number:	Chapter Name:		New	☐ Amended	Repealed
Chapte	r Number:	Chapter Name:		New	Amended	Repealed
Chapte	r Number:	Chapter Name:	Chapter Name:			
Chapte	r Number:	Chapter Name:		☐ New	Amended	Repealed
Chapter	r Number:	Chapter Name:		☐ New	☐ Amended	Repealed
Chapter	r Number:	Chapter Name:		☐ New	Amended	Repealed
Chapter Number:		Chapter Name:			Amended	Repealed
Chapter Number:		Chapter Name:			☐ Amended	Repealed
Chapter Number:		Chapter Name:			☐ Amended	Repealed
Chapter Number:		Chapter Name:		☐ New	Amended	Repealed
		attached to this Notice and, in compliance wit i, includes a brief statement of the substance				nvironmental Quality
·	Complete all that apply					
		ing chapters <u>do not</u> differ from the uniform rul	es identified in the Administrative	e Procedure A	act, W.S. 16-3-103	3(j):
		(Provide ch	napter numbers)			
	☐ These cha	pters differ from the uniform rules identified in	the Administrative Procedure A	ct, W.S. 16-3-	-103(j) (see State	ment of Reasons).
		(Provide ch	napter numbers)			
	☐ N/A These	rules are not impacted by the uniform rules in	dentified in the Administrative Pr	ocedure Act,	W.S. 16-3-103(j).	
d. N/A		h the Attorney General's Office, the Agency's mendments are pervasive (Section 5 of the R		e concurs that	strike and unders	score is not required
e. A copy of	the proposed rules* mag		,			
	At the following URL:	y at the physical and/or email address listed i				
* If Item "d" at	pove is not checked, the pro	oposed rules shall be in strike and underscore form	at.			

3. Public C	Comments and Hearing	g Information				
a. A public hea	aring on the proposed rules has b	een scheduled. 🔲 Ye	es 🗌 No			
If "Yes:"	Date:	Time:	City:	Location:		
b. What is the	manner in which interested perso	ns may present their vie	ws on the rulemaking action?			
-	•	the Agency at the physic	al and/or email address listed in Section 1 ab	ove.		
☐ At	the following URL:			-		
	A public hearing will be held in Requests for a public hearing	. , , ,	ns, a government subdivision, or by an assoc	liation having not less than 25 members.		
		•	il address listed in Section 1 above.			
	At the following L		ii dddiess iisted iii seetion i dbove.			
c. Any person			ne Agency to state its reasons for overruling	the consideration urged against adoption.		
		e prior to, or within thirty	(30) days after adoption, of the rule, address	sed to the Agency and Contact Person listed in		
Section 1 abov						
	<u>l Law Requirements</u>					
a. These rules	are created/amended/repealed to	o comply with federal law	or regulatory requirements.	□No		
If "Yes:"	Applicable Federal Law or Re	egulation Citation:				
	Indicate one (1):					
	☐ The proposed rules meet, but do not exceed, minimum federal requirements.					
	☐ The proposed rules exceed minimum federal requirements. Any person wishing to object to the accuracy of any information provided by the Agency under this item should submit their objections prior to					
		to the accuracy of any ir	formation provided by the Agency under this	item should submit their objections prior to		
	final adoption to:	the physical and/or ema	il address listed in Section 1 above			
	☐ To the Agency at the physical and/or email address listed in Section 1 above. ☐ At the following URL:					
5. State S	tatutory Requirement					
a. Indicate one	• •					
	ne proposed rule change MEETS		· ·			
	☐ The proposed rule change <i>EXCEEDS</i> minimum substantive statutory requirements. Please attach a statement explaining the reason that the rules					
b. Indicate one	ceed the requirements.					
	• •	requirements of W.S. 9-5	-304. A copy of the assessment used to eval	luate the proposed rules may be obtained:		
		•	I address listed in Section 1 above.			
	At the following URL:					
☐ Not Applicable.						
6. Author	<u>ization</u>					
a. I certify that	at the foregoing information is	correct.				
Printed Name	of Authorized Individual					
Title of Author	ized Individual					
Date of Author	rization					

Distribution List:

- Attorney General and LSO: Hard copy of Notice of Intent; Statement of Reasons; clean copy of the rules; and strike-through and underline version of rules (if applicable). Electronic copies (PDFs) of all items noted (in addition to hard copies) may be emailed to LSO at Criss.Carlson@wyoleg.gov.
- Secretary of State: Electronic version of Notice of Intent sent to <u>Rules@wyo.gov</u>.

BEFORE THE DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY COUNCIL STATE OF WYOMING

)	
)	STATEMENT OF
)	PRINCIPAL REASONS
)	FOR ADOPTION
)	
)	
)	
)	
))))))))

INTRODUCTION

The Environmental Quality Council, pursuant to the authority vested in it by Wyoming Statute 35-11-112 (a)(i), has adopted revisions to the following chapters and sections of the Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations: Chapter 2, Permit Regulations for Discharges to Wyoming Surface Waters; and Chapter 6, Salinity Standards, Criteria for the Colorado River Basin. Chapter 2 contains procedures for applying for, drafting, issuing and complying with Wyoming Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (WYPDES) permits. Chapter 6 contains provisions for the control of salinity in permitted point source discharges in the Colorado River System. This proposal constitutes a ministerial revision of Chapter 2 and Chapter 6 by incorporating the relevant contents of Chapter 6 into Chapter 2.

Section 35-11-302 (a) of the Environmental Quality Act (Act) states that the administrator, after receiving public comment and after consultation with the advisory board, shall recommend to the director rules, regulations, standards and permit systems to promote the purposes of the Act. Such rules, regulations, standards and permit systems shall prescribe:

- (ii) Effluent standards and limitations specifying the maximum amounts or concentrations of pollution and wastes which may be discharged into the waters of the state; ...
- (vi) In recommending any standards, rules, regulations, or permits, the administrator and advisory board shall consider all the facts and circumstances bearing upon the reasonableness of the pollution involved including:

- (A) The character and degree of injury to or interference with the health and well being of the people, animals, wildlife, aquatic life and plant life affected:
- (B) The social and economic value of the source of pollution;
- (C) The priority of location in the area involved;
- (D) The technical practicability and economic reasonableness of reducing or eliminating the source of pollution; and
- (E) The effect upon the environment.

Chapter 2 - Discharges, Permit Regulations for Wyoming

The Federal Water Pollution Control Act of 1972, as amended by the Clean Water Act of 1977 and the Water Quality Act of 1987 (collectively, the CWA), gives the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) the authority to regulate the discharge of pollutants to waters of the United States. The CWA establishes the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit Program and grants EPA the authority to define pollution control technologies, establish effluent limitations, obtain information through reporting and compliance inspections, and take enforcement actions when violations occur.

The Code of Federal Regulations, Chapter 40 Part 123, establishes procedures for states to assume responsibility for implementing the NPDES Permit Program and related program authorities. On November 1, 1974, Wyoming Governor Stan Hathaway submitted a request to the EPA seeking authorization for Wyoming to implement a state program. On January 30, 1975, pursuant to Section 402 (c) of the CWA, the EPA approved the Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality (WDEQ) NPDES program (referred to as the WYPDES permit program) and suspended the issuance of NPDES permits by EPA, with a few exceptions. Wyoming's WYPDES program authority was amended on September 24, 1991 to include state authority for the issuance of general permits.

The WYPDES program must be implemented by WDEQ in accordance with Section 402 of the CWA, all guidelines promulgated pursuant to Section 304 (h) (2) of the CWA, and the Memorandum of Agreement between the EPA Regional Administrator and the Director of the WDEQ. The Wyoming discharges/permit regulations are contained in Chapter 2 of the Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations. The existing discharges/permit regulations were originally approved in 1974 and were substantially revised in 2004.

Chapter 6 – Salinity Standards/Criteria for the Colorado River Basin

Wyoming is a member of the Colorado River Basin Salinity Control Forum, an organization composed of water quality and water resource representatives of the states of Arizona, California, Colorado, Nevada, New Mexico, Utah and Wyoming. The Colorado River Basin Salinity Control Forum is responsible for developing salinity standards and criteria for the waters of the Colorado River Basin. Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations Chapter 6 provides the authority to condition permits for point source discharges in the Colorado River Basin in conformance with policies agreed to among the seven member

states for control of salinity through the NPDES permit program. Chapter 6 was originally adopted in 1981 and has never been revised.

Purpose and Intent of this Proposed Revision

The purpose of this rule revision is to move the permitting requirements of Chapter 6 into Chapter 2, which currently contains all of the WYPDES permit program requirements except for those relating to the special conditions for discharges in the Colorado River Basin. The revision consolidates all of the state point source discharge regulations under a single chapter, consistent with the intent of the Governor's rule streamlining initiative.

Proposed Revisions to Chapter 2 of the Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations

To Chapter 2 a new Appendix O is added which incorporates the existing Chapter 6 in its entirety except:

- 1. Definitions for the terms "Total Dissolved Solids" and "Salinity" have been deleted as being unnecessary. Both terms are used elsewhere in the chapter. Defining these terms separately in Appendix O would imply that the terms, as used in Appendix O, have additional or separate meanings other than the commonly understood meanings, which is not the intent; and
- 2. Reference is made to the three specific Salinity Forum policies intended to be implemented rather than the general policy reference in the existing Chapter 6.

Cross-reference and formatting corrections were made to the following section and appendices:

- 1. Section 10(f): Corrected "14" to "15";
- 2. Appendix E
 - (a) Subsection (c)(iii)(C)(II): Corrected Arabic numerals to Roman numerals;
 - (b) Subsection (c)(iii)(D): Corrected Roman numerals to Arabic numerals;
 - (c) Subsection (c)(v)(E)(I) Clarified cross reference.
- 3. Appendix G
 - (a) Subsection (k)(ii): Corrected "(iii)" to "(ii)";
 - (b) Subsection (l)(iii): Corrected "(iv)" to "(ii)";
 - (c) Subsection (m)(ii): Corrected "(iii)" to "(ii)";
- 4. Appendix H, Subsection (c)(iii): Corrected "(b)(i)" and "(b)(ii)" to "(c)(i)" and "(c)(ii)," respectively.

Effect of the Rule Revision

This rule revision is purely an administrative action. It does not create any new or substantive regulatory requirements. This action simply incorporates the substantive provisions of Chapter 6 into Chapter 2 and reserves Chapter 6. It also makes minor typographically corrections to other limited sections of Chapter 2.

The Council finds that these regulations are reasonable and necessary to accomplish the policy and purpose of the Act, as stated in W.S. 35-11-102, and that they have been promulgated in accordance with rulemaking provisions of the Wyoming Administrative Procedure Act.

Dated this day of	, 2014.
Hearing Examiner – <i>Printed Name</i>	Hearing Examiner – Signed Name
Wyoming Environmental Quality Council	Wyoming Environmental Quality Council

CHAPTER 2

PERMIT REGULATIONS FOR DISCHARGES TO WYOMING SURFACE WATERS

Table of Contents

Section 1. General Provisions	1
Section 2. Applicability.	1
Section 3. Definitions.	3
Section 4. General Permits.	15
Section 5. Effluent Permits.	25
Section 6. Storm Water Discharges.	46
Section 7. Isolated Wetlands-Mitigation Requirements.	70
Section 8. Variance Requests.	72
Section 9. Issuance or Denial of Permits or Authorizations.	76
Section 10. Renewal of Permits, and Renewal of Coverage Under Expiring General Permits	77
Section 11. Continuation of Expiring Permits.	78
Section 12. Permit or Authorization Modifications	78
Section 13. Permit and Authorization Terminations.	83
Section 14. Signatory Requirements.	84
Section 15. Public Participation.	85
Section 16. Public Meeting	90
Section 17. Hearing.	91
Section 18. Public Information.	91
Section 19. Transfer of Permits	92
APPENDIX A: Explanation of Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Codes Regulated by the	;
Industrial Storm Water Program A	۱-1

APPENDIX B: Additional Requirements Applicable to Existing Manufacturing, Commercial,
Mining and Silviculture Discharges
APPENDIX C: Additional Requirements Applicable to New Manufacturing, Commercial,
Mining and Silvicultural Discharges
APPENDIX D: Additional Requirements Applicable to Manufacturing, Commercial, Mining and
Silvicultural Facilities Discharging Only Non-process Waste Water
APPENDIX E: Additional Requirements Applicable to New and Existing Publicly owned
Treatment Works (POTWs) E-1
APPENDIX F: Additional Requirements Applicable to New and Existing Aquatic Animal
Production Facilities
APPENDIX G: Criteria for Determining a Concentrated Animal Feeding Operation and
Additional Requirements Applicable to New and Existing Concentrated Animal Feeding
Operations
APPENDIX H: Additional Requirements Applicable to Produced Water Discharges from Oil and
Gas Production Facilities H-1
APPENDIX I: RESERVED
APPENDIX J: Additional Requirements Applicable to Coal Mining Operations
APPENDIX K: RESERVEDK-1
APPENDIX L: Criteria and Standards for Determining Fundamentally Different FactorsL-1
APPENDIX M: Criteria for Determining Alternative Effluent Limitations
APPENDIX N: Toxic Pollutant Effluent Standards and Prohibitions
APPENDIX O: Additional Requirements Applicable to Colorado River Basin Salinity Control
O-1

This page intentionally left blank.

1	CVI A DEFED A
2 3	CHAPTER 2
3 4	PERMIT REGULATIONS
5	FOR DISCHARGES TO WYOMING SURFACE WATERS
6	
7	Section 1. General Provisions.
8	(a) Authority. This regulation is promulgated pursuant to Wyoming Statute 35-11-
9	101 through 35-11-1803, and specifically 35-11-301(a) (i), (ii), and (iv), and 35-11-302 (a) (ii),
10	(iii) and (v) and regulations adopted pursuant to Section 402 (b) of the Federal Water Pollution
11	Control Act (Clean Water Act) and amendments to that Act through July 1, 2004 for the purpose
12	of instituting a permit issuance program in conformity with the requirements of the
13 14	Environmental Quality Act and the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES), for point source discharges into surface waters of the state. Nothing in these regulations is
14 15	intended to expand the scope of the Environmental Quality Act, as limited in W.S. 35-11-1104
16	nor do these regulations supersede or abrogate the authority of the state to appropriate quantities
17	of water for beneficial uses.
18	
19	(b) Incorporation by reference. Throughout these regulations, standards and
20	requirements promulgated by the US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) have been adopted
21	and incorporated by reference. All references are from the Code of Federal Regulations dated
22	July 1, 2004, unless otherwise noted. This incorporation does not include later amendments or
23	editions of the incorporated material.
24	Applicable federal regulations related to the states NDDES rejectors include: 40 CED
25 26	Applicable federal regulations related to the states NPDES primacy include: 40 CFR Parts 122, 123, 124, 125, 129, 133, 136 and Subchapter N (parts 400 through 471). State
27	program authority does not include pretreatment or biosolids requirements. Implementation of
28	and authority over the pretreatment and biosolids requirements remain with the U.S. EPA.
29	
30	(c) Purpose. The purpose of these rules and regulations is to establish a permitting
31	system for the issuance of permits as authorized pursuant to Section 402 (b) of the Clean Water
32	Act (CWA), 33 U.S.C. '1342(b), as amended in 1987. This permitting system provides the
33	mechanism for establishing effluent limitations in WYPDES permits which specify maximum
34	amounts or concentrations of pollution and wastes which may be discharged into surface waters
35	of the state.
36	Section 2. Applicability.
37	(a) Discharges required to be permitted. All discharges into surface waters of the
38	state as defined in (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) below shall be permitted as described in these regulations.
39	
40	(i) All effluent discharges not described in (ii), (iii) and (iv) below;
41	(ii) All stame mater discharges form in Justicial construction. 1
42 43	(ii) All storm water discharges from industrial, construction, and municipal facilities as described in Section 6 of these regulations;
TJ	facilities as described in Section 6 of these regulations,

44 45		(iii)	Point	source discharges of dredged or fill material into isolated wetlands
46	which are:	()		
47				
48			(A)	Not subject to regulation by the Army Corps of Engineers under
49	Section 404 o	f the CW	` '	
50				
51			(B)	Not subject to a permit or authorization from the Wyoming
52	Department of	f Environ	ment Q	Quality, Land Quality Division for mining activities.
53	•			
54		(iv)	Silvio	cultural point sources, as defined in Section 3 (b) (lxxxv), are point
55	sources subject	ct to the a		ble provisions of these regulations.
56				
57	(b)	Exclus	ions. T	The following discharges do not require WYPDES permits:
58				
59		(i)	Disch	narges of dredged or fill material into waters of the United States
60	which are reg	ulated un	der Sec	ction 404 of the CWA.
61				
62		(ii)	The in	ntroduction of sewage, industrial wastes or other pollutants into
63	publicly owne	ed treatme	ent wor	ks by indirect dischargers.
64	-			
65		(iii)	Any o	discharge in compliance with the instructions of an On-Scene
66	Coordinator p	ursuant t	o 40 CF	FR 300 (The National Oil and Hazardous Substances Pollution
67	Contingency	Plan) or 3	3 CFR	153.10 (e) (Pollution by Oil and Hazardous Substances).
68				
69		(iv)	Any i	introduction of pollutants from non-point source agricultural and
70	silvicultural a	ctivities.		
71				
72		(v)	Retur	n flows from irrigated agriculture.
73				
74		(vi)	Disch	narges into privately owned treatment works.
75				
76		(vii)	Disch	narges of dredge or fill material
77				
78			(A)	from normal farming, silviculture, and ranching
79	activities such	as plowi	ng, see	eding, cultivating, minor drainage, harvesting for the production of
80	food, fiber, an	nd forest p	product	s, or upland soil and water conservation practices;
81				
82			(B)	for the purpose of maintenance, including emergency
83	reconstruction	n of recen	tly dan	naged parts, of currently serviceable structures such as dikes, dams,
84	levees, groins	, riprap, l	neadwa	ters, causeways, and bridge abutments or approaches, and
85	transportation	structure	es;	
86				
87			(C)	for the purpose of construction or maintenance of farm or stock
88	ponds or irrig	ation ditc	hes, or	the maintenance of drainage ditches;
89				

90		`	D) for the purposes of construction of temporary sedimentation
91		struction s	ite which does not include placement of fill material into surface waters
92	of the state;		
93			
94		`	E) for the purpose of construction or maintenance of farm roads or
95			roads for moving mining equipment, where such roads are constructed
96			ance with best management practices, to assure that flow and
97	•		hemical and biological characteristics of surface waters of the state are
98	•		face water of the state is not reduced, and that any adverse effect on the
99	aquatic environ	ment Will	be otherwise minimized;
100		(
101	with the meanine	`	F) resulting from any activity with respect to which is in accordance
102	with the require	ments of s	section 208 (b) (4) (B) and (C)of the CWA.
103	(a)	No some	
104	(c)		eyance of property rights or exclusive privilege. The issuance of a
105 106	•	•	ny property rights of any sort, or any exclusive privilege. The issuance
107	-		orize any injury to persons or property or invasion of other private rights ate or local law or regulations. Except for any toxic effluent standards
107	•		under Section 307 of the CWA, compliance with a permit during its
108			ince, for purposes of enforcement, with Sections 301, 302, 306, 307, 318,
110	and 405 (a) of the	•	ice, for purposes of emorcement, with sections 301, 302, 300, 307, 318,
111	and 403 (a) or th	ile C W A.	
111	(d)	Interprete	ation of "waters of the United States" All references to the CWA where
113	` '		hrase "water(s) of the United States" shall be interpreted as "surface
113			rposes of this rule. This interpretation does not expand the CWA
115		•	es of federal agencies.
113	implementation	authornic	s of federal agencies.
116	<u>Section</u>	3. Defini	tions.
117	(a)	Definitio	ns in W.S. 35-11-103 (a) and (c). Definitions in W.S. 35-11-103 (a) and
118	(c) which are ap	plicable t	o these rules are reiterated in this section.
119			
120		(i) "	Department" means the Wyoming Department of Environmental
121	Quality.		
122			
123		(ii) "	Director" means the director of the Department of Environmental
124	Quality.		
125			
126		(iii) "	Discharge" means any addition of any pollution or wastes to any waters
127	of the state.		
128			
129		` '	Ecological function" means the ability of an area to support vegetation
130			ulations, recharge aquifers, stabilize base flows, attenuate flooding, trap
131	sediment and re	move or t	ransform nutrients and other pollutants.
132			
133			Mitigation" means all actions to avoid, minimize, restore and
134	compensate for	ecologica	l functions or wetland values lost.

135	
136	(vi) "Nonpoint source" means any source of pollution other than a point
137	source. For purposes of W.S. 16-1-201 through 16-1-207 only, nonpoint source includes leaking
138	underground storage tanks as defined by W.S. 35-11-1415 (a) (ix) and aboveground storage tanks
139	as defined by W.S. 35-11-1415 (a) (xi).
140	
141	(vii) "Person" means an individual, partnership, firm, association, joint
142	venture, public or private corporation, trust, estate, commission, board, public or private
143	institution, utility, cooperative, municipality or any other political subdivision of the state, or any
144	interstate body or any other legal entity.
145	
146	(viii) "Point source" means any discernible, confined and discrete conveyance
147	including but not limited to any pipe, ditch, channel, tunnel, conduit, well, discrete fissure,
148	container, rolling stock, concentrated animal feeding operation or vessel or other floating craft,
149	from which pollutants are or may be discharged.
150	
151	(ix) "Pollution" means contamination or other alteration of the physical,
152	chemical or biological properties of any waters of the state, including change in temperature,
153	taste, color, turbidity or odor of the waters or any discharge of any acid or toxic material,
154	chemical or chemical compound, whether it be liquid, gaseous, solid, radioactive or other
155	substance, including wastes, into any waters of the state which creates a nuisance or renders any
156	waters harmful, detrimental or injurious to public health, safety or welfare, to domestic,
157	commercial, industrial, agricultural, recreational or other legitimate beneficial uses, or to
158	livestock, wildlife or aquatic life, or which degrades the water for its intended use, or adversely
159	affects the environment. This term does not mean water, gas or other material which is injected
160	into a well to facilitate production of oil, or gas or water, derived in association with oil or gas
161	production and disposed of in a well, if the well used either to facilitate production or for disposal
162	purposes is approved by authority of the state, and if the state determines that such injection or
163	disposal well will not result in the degradation of ground or surface or water resources.
164	
165	(x) "Wastes" means sewage, industrial waste and all other liquid, gaseous,
166	solid, radioactive, or other substances which may pollute any waters of the state.
167	
168	(xi) "Waters of the state" means all surface and groundwater, including
169	waters associated with wetlands, within Wyoming.
170	·
171	(xii) "Wetlands" means those areas in Wyoming having all three (3) essential
172	characteristics:
173	
174	(A) Hydrophytic vegetation;
175	
176	(B) Hydric soils; and
177	
178	(C) Wetland hydrology.
179	

180	(xiii) "Wetland value" means those socially significant attributes of wetlands
181	such as uniqueness, heritage, recreation, aesthetics and a variety of economic values.
182	
183	(b) Supplemental definitions. The following definitions supplement those
184	definitions contained in W.S. 35-11-103.
185	
186	(i) "Administrator of the EPA" means the chief executive officer of the U.S.
187	Environmental Protection Agency.
188	
189	(ii) "Administrator" means the administrator of the Water Quality Division,
190	Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality.
191	Typoning Department of Environmental Quanty.
192	(iii) "Affected land" means the area of land from which overburden is
193	removed, or upon which overburden, development waste rock or refuse is deposited, or both,
194	access roads, haul roads, mineral stockpiles, mill tailings, impoundment basins, and all other
195	lands whose natural state has been or will be disturbed as a result of mining operations.
196	tailed whose natural state has been of will be disturbed as a result of mining operations.
197	(iv) "Animal feeding operation" is defined in Appendix G.
198	(1V) Triminal recaing operation is defined in Typendix G.
199	(v) "Applicable effluent standards and limitations" means all state and
200	federal effluent standards and limitations to which a discharge is subject to under the
201	Environmental Quality Act, or the CWA, including, but not limited to, effluent limitations,
202	standards of performance, toxic effluent standards and prohibitions, and pretreatment standards.
203	standards of performance, toxic efficient standards and promotions, and pretreatment standards.
204	(vi) "Applicable water quality standards" means all water quality standards to
205	which a discharge is subject under Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations, Chapter 1.
206	which a discharge is subject under wyonning water Quarty Rules and Regulations, Chapter 1.
207	(vii) "Applicant" means the person responsible for submitting a completed
208	application form for a WYPDES permit and the person who will have primary responsibility for
209	meeting the requirements of the permit. Applicant is usually the owner of the facility from which
210	discharge is or will be occurring; however, when a facility is operated by someone other than the
211	owner, the operator is the applicant.
212	owner, the operator is the approach.
213	(viii) "Application" means an application form upon which the applicant has
214	provided the requested information in order to obtain a WYPDES permit, modification to a
215	WYPDES permit or renewal of a WYPDES permit.
216	WITDES permit of renewar of a WITDES permit.
217	(ix) "Application form" means the uniform state or national forms, including
218	subsequent revisions or modifications, for application for a new, modified or reissued individual
219	WYPDES permit.
220	W 11 DES permit.
221	(x) "Aquaculture project" means a defined managed water area which uses
222	discharges of pollutants into that designated area for the maintenance or production of harvestable
223	
224	freshwater plants or animals.
<i>LL</i> +	

225 226	(xi) "Authorization" means the written approval granted by the department to a person or facility which states that a discharge from the facility is permitted under a general
227	permit and which is subject to the conditions set forth in the general permit. "Authorization" also
228	means the modifications to a previously issued authorization that are made to accommodate an
229	alteration in the conditions under a previous authorization or an extension of the allowed time for
230	discharge to occur that was established under a previous authorization.
231	
232	(xii) "Best Management Practices (BMPs)" means schedules of activities,
233	prohibitions of practices, maintenance procedures, and/or other management practices to prevent
234	or reduce the pollution of "waters of the state." BMPs also include treatment requirements,
235	operating procedures, and practices to control plant site runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or waste
236	disposal, or drainage from raw material storage.
237	uspecial, or arminge from the function storage.
238	(xiii) "Bypass" means the intentional diversion of waste streams from any
239	portion of a treatment facility.
240	portion of a treatment facility.
240	(xiv) "CFR" means Code of Federal Regulations. All references to the Code
242	refer to the CFR dated July 1, 2004.
243	Telef to the CTR dated July 1, 2004.
244	(xv) "Compliance schedule" means a schedule of remedial measures included
245	in a permit that establishes an enforceable sequence of actions or operations leading to
246	compliance with an effluent limitation, other limitation, prohibition, or standard.
	compliance with an efficient inintation, other inintation, promotion, or standard.
247	(wi) "Concentrated onimal facility arounding" means on onimal facility
248	(xvi) "Concentrated animal feeding operation" means an animal feeding
249	operation (other than an aquatic animal production facility) which meets the criteria in Appendix
250	G of these regulations.
251	
252	(xvii) "Concentrated aquatic animal production facility" means a hatchery, fish
253	farm, or other facility which meets the criteria as defined in Appendix F of these regulations, or
254	an aquatic animal production facility that is designated as concentrated by the department as a
255	result of its significant contribution of pollution to surface waters of the state.
256	
257	(xviii) "Co-permittee" means a permittee to a WYPDES permit that is only
258	responsible for permit conditions relating to the discharge for which it is operator.
259	
260	(xix) "CWA" means the federal Clean Water Act.
261	
262	(xx) "Daily average" means the average concentration determined by the
263	arithmetic mean of all samples collected within a calendar day.
264	
265	(xxi) "Daily maximum" means the highest single reading from any grab or
266	composite sample collected during the reporting period, except in the case of Coal Mining
267	Operations, where the definition means the value determined by an analysis of a properly
268	preserved composite sample composed of a minimum of four grab samples collected at equally
269	spaced two hour intervals and proportioned according to flow at the time of sampling.
270	

271272	(xxii) "Designated project areas" means the portions of surface waters of the state within which the permittee or permit applicant plans to confine the cultivated species, using
273	a method, plan or operation (including, but not limited to, physical confinement) which, on the
274	basis of reliable scientific evidence, is expected to ensure that specific individual organisms
275	comprising an aquaculture crop will experience increased growth attributable to the discharge of
276	pollutants, and be harvested within a defined geographic area.
277	pontitaints, and be har vested within a defined geographic area.
278	(xxiii) "Designated uses" means those uses specified in water quality standards
279	for each water body or segment whether or not they are being attained.
280	for each water body or segment whether or not they are being attained.
	(D-14i1
281	(xxiv) "Duly authorized representative" means an individual or position having
282	responsibility for the overall operation of the regulated facility or activity, or an individual or
283	position having overall responsibility for environmental matters for the regulated facility who has
284	been designated by a person described in Section 14 (a) of these regulations, through the
285	submittal to the administrator of a written notification, as the individual or position authorized to
286	sign reports required by the permits or certify other information requested by the administrator.
287	
288	(xxv) "Effluent" means the pollutant or waste stream from a facility that is
289	being or is proposed to be discharged.
290	
291	(xxvi) "Effluent limitation" means any restriction established by the state or by
292	the Administrator of the EPA on quantities, rates and/or concentrations of chemical, physical,
293	biological, and other constituents which are discharged from point sources into surface waters of
294	the state.
295	
296	(xxvii) "EPA" means the United States Environmental Protection Agency.
297	
298	(xxviii) "Facility" means any WYPDES point source or collection of point
299	sources or any other facility or activity (including land or appurtenances thereto associated with
300	the operation of the facility) that is subject to regulation under the WYPDES program.
301	
302	(xxix) "Fact sheet" means the application materials, a draft copy of the permit, a
303	statement of basis and the public notice.
304	•
305	(xxx) "Federal Act" means the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (Clean
306	Water Act) as amended in 1987, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq. as amended.
307	, I
308	(xxxi) "Fill material" means any material used for the primary purpose of
309	replacing an aquatic area with dry land or of changing the bottom elevation of a waterbody. The
310	term does not include any pollutant discharged into the water primarily to dispose of waste, as
311	that activity is regulated under Section 5 of these regulations.
312	and deliving to regulated dilater sections of those regulations.
313	(xxxii) "Flow monitoring station" means a designated point where stream flow
314	is measured.
315	is incasured.
JIJ	

316	(xxxiii) "Form" means any issued permit and any uniform state or national form							
317	developed for use in the WYPDES system or these regulations.							
318								
319	(xxxiv) "General permit" means a permit to discharge which authorizes a							
320	category of discharges within a specified geographic area.							
321								
322	(xxxv) "Grab sample" means a single "dip and take" sample collected at a							
323	representative point in the discharge stream.							
324								
325	(xxxvi) "Hydric soil" means a soil that formed under conditions of saturation,							
326	flooding or ponding long enough during the growing season to develop anaerobic conditions in							
327	the upper part.							
328								
329	(xxxvii) "Hydrophytic vegetation" means a community of plants where, under							
330	normal circumstances more than 50 percent of the composition of the dominant species from all							
331	strata are obligate wetland (OBL), facultative wetland (FACW), and/or facultative (FAC) species;							
332	or a frequency analysis of all species within the community yields a prevalence index value of							
333	less than 3.0 (where OBL = 1.0, FACW = 2.0, FAC = 3.0, FACU (facultative upland) = 4.0, and							
334	UPL (upland species) = 5.0).							
335								
336	(xxxviii) "Illicit discharge" means any discharge to a municipal separate							
337	storm sewer that is not composed entirely of storm water except discharges pursuant to a							
338	WYPDES permit (other than the WYPDES permit for discharges from the municipal separate							
339	storm sewer) and discharges resulting from fire fighting activities.							
340								
341	(xxxix) "Incorporated place" means a city, town, township or village that							
342	is incorporated under the laws of the State of Wyoming.							
343	The control of the co							
344	(xl) "Individual permit" means a permit to discharge to surface waters of the							
345	state issued to a facility for specific activities in accordance with the regulations contained herein.							
346	,							
347	(xli) "Industrial user" means those industries identified in the Standard							
348	Industrial Classification Manual, Bureau of the Budget, 1967, as amended and supplemented,							
349	under the category 'Division D - Manufacturing' and such other classes of significant waste							
350	producers as, by regulation, the administrator deems appropriate.							
351	F							
352	(xlii) "Instantaneous maximum" means the value determined by an analysis of							
353	a single properly preserved grab sample.							
354	a seedle test test to be at samples.							
355	(xliii) "Irrigation compliance point" means a point downstream of the outfall							
356	but before the first irrigation diversion where, when indicated in the permit, specified effluent							
357	limitations must be met.							
358								
359	(xliv) "Isolated wetlands" means wetlands as defined by the Environmental							
360	Quality Act and Section 3 of these regulations which do not meet the federal definition of waters							
	,							

361	of the United States but meet the state=s definition of waters of the state as defined in the					
362	Environmental Quality Act.					
363						
364		(xlv)	"Major facility" means:			
365			J	•		
366			(A)	For municipal wastewater treatment facilities, 1) those facilities		
367	with design flo	ws great	er than o	one million gallons per day or with an approved industrial		
368	pretreatment pr	rogram a	nd 2) w	hich have been designated by the director and Regional		
369	Administrator of	of the EF	A as a r	major facility.		
370						
371			(B)	For industrial facilities, those facilities that 1) have a potential to		
372	discharge a tota	al volum	e of grea	ater than 50,000 gallons per day and 2) which have been		
373	designated by t	he direct	or and I	Regional Administrator of the EPA as a major facility.		
374						
375		(xlvi)	"Majo	r modification" means any modification that is not defined as a		
376	minor modifica	ation.				
377						
378		(xlvii)	"Main	stem" means the major channel of a river or stream as shown on		
379	the latest and m	nost deta	iled reco	ords of the Wyoming State Engineer.		
380						
381		(xlviii)	"MGD	" means million gallons per day.		
382						
383		(xlix)	"Micro	ograms per liter (µg/l)" means micrograms of solute per liter of		
384	solution equivalent to parts per billion (ppb) in liquids, assuming unit density.					
385						
386		(1)	"Millig	grams per liter (mg/l)" means milligrams of solute per liter of		
387	solution equivalent to parts per million (ppm) in liquids, assuming unit density.					
388						
389		(li)		r facility" means any discharge which is not identified by the		
390	director and the	e Region	al Admi	inistrator of the EPA, as a major facility.		
391						
392		(lii)	"Mino	r modification" means		
393						
394			(A)	correcting typographical errors; or		
395						
396			(B)	increasing the frequency of monitoring or reporting by the		
397	permittee; or					
398			(C)	changing an interim date in a schedule of compliance, provided		
399	the new date of compliance is not more than 120 days after the date specified in the existing					
400	permit and doe	s not inte	erfere w	ith attainment of the final compliance date requirement; or		
401						
402			(D)	allowing for a transfer in ownership or operational control of a		
403	•			rmines that no other change in the permit is necessary, provided		
404		-		ning a specific date for transfer of permit responsibility, coverage		
405	and liability be	tween th	e curren	at and new permittees has been submitted to the department; or		
406						

407	(E) changing the construction schedule for a discharger which is a
408	new source, but no such change shall affect a discharger's obligation to have all pollution control
409	equipment installed and in operation prior to discharge; or
410	
411	(F) deleting a point source outfall when the discharge from that
412	outfall is terminated and does not result in discharge of pollutants from other outfalls except in
413	accordance with permit limits; or
414	
415	(G) adding additional wells to an existing permitted outfall provided
416	that the flow volume specified in the permit is not exceeded, the source or quality of the effluent
417	is similar in nature and consists of similar pollutants and the additional effluent will comply with
418	all of the existing permit conditions.
419	
420	(liii) "Mixing zone" means limited area or volume of a surface water body
421	within which an effluent becomes thoroughly mixed with the water body.
422	
423	(liv) "Modification" means adjustments in permit conditions which result
424	from alterations in the configuration or operation of a facility from what was identified in the
425	application for the permit most recently noticed or authorized.
426	
427	(lv) "MS4" means a municipal separate storm sewer system.
428	
429	(lvi) "Municipal separate storm sewer" means a conveyance or system of
430	conveyances (including roads with drainage systems, municipal streets, catch basins, curbs,
431	gutters, ditches, man-made channels, or storm drains):
432	
433	(A) Owned or operated by the United States, a state, city, town,
434	county, district, association, or other public body (created by or pursuant to state law) having
435	jurisdiction over disposal of sewage, industrial wastes, storm water, or other wastes, including
436	special districts under state law such as a sewer district, flood control district or drainage district,
437	or similar entity, or a designated and approved management agency under section 208 of the
438	CWA that discharges to surface waters of the state;
439	
440	(B) Designed or used for collecting or conveying storm water;
441	
442	(C) Which is not a combined sewer; and
443	
444	(D) Which is not part of a publicly owned treatment works (POTWs)
445	as defined at 40 CFR 403.3.
446	
447	(lvii) "Municipality" means a city, town, county, district, association, or other
448	public body created by or under state law and having jurisdiction over disposal of sewage,
449	industrial wastes, or other wastes, or a designated and approved management agency under
450	section 208 of the CWA (1987).
451	

452	(Iviii) "National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System" means the federal				
453	program for issuing, modifying, revoking and reissuing, terminating, monitoring and enforcing				
454	permits and imposing and enforcing pretreatment requirements, under section 307, 318, 402, and				
455	405 of the CWA.				
456					
457	(lix) "Natural" means that condition which would exist without the				
458	measurable effects or measurable influence of man's activities.				
459					
460	(lx) "Natural water quality" means that quality of water which would exist				
461	without the measurable effects or measurable influence of man's activities.				
462					
463	(lxi) "Net oil and grease" means the results from a 1664-Cu analysis which				
464	represents the oil and grease concentration corrected for elemental sulphur.				
465					
466	(lxii) "New discharger" means any building, structure, facility, or installation:				
467					
468	(A) from which there is or may be a discharge of pollution or waster				
469	()				
470	(B) that did not commence the discharge of pollution or wastes at a				
471	particular "site" prior to August 13, 1979;				
472	random to produce to the product of				
473	(C) which is not a new source; and				
474					
475	(D) which has never received a finally effective NPDES or				
476	WYPDES permit for discharges at that site.				
477					
478	(lxiii) "New facility" means a facility for which a discharge is being proposed				
479	but is not yet occurring, or a facility from which a discharge is occurring, where no permit or				
480	authorization for such discharge has been issued by the department.				
481	, and the second				
482	(lxiv) "New source" means any source, the construction of which is				
483	commenced after publication by the Administrator of the EPA of a proposed standard of				
484	performance, which will be applicable to such source if promulgated.				
485	performance, which will be applicable to such source if promargated.				
486	(lxv) "Non-process wastewater" means any water which, during				
487	manufacturing or processing is not defined as process wastewater.				
488	manufacturing of processing is not defined as process wastewater.				
489	(lxvi) "Notice" means the announcement to the public, in accordance with the				
490	provisions of Section 15 of this regulation, of the intention of the department to issue, reissue,				
491	modify, terminate, deny or revoke a permit, or hold a public hearing.				
492	mounty, terminate, ucity of revoke a permit, of hold a public hearing.				
493	(lxvii) "Notice of intent" means the form which is used to apply for new,				
494	modified, or extended authorization to discharge as sanctioned by a general permit.				
495	mounted, of extended authorization to discharge as salictioned by a general perillit.				
496	(lxviii) "NPDES" means National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System.				
497	(IXVIII) 141 DES Mouns Paulonal Politicale Discharge Eminimation System.				
171					

498	(lxix) "Outfall" means the point at which a discharge exits the final treatment
498	unit, if any, associated with a facility prior to entering surface waters of the state.
500	unit, if any, associated with a facility prior to entering surface waters of the state.
501	(lxx) "Overburden" means any material of any nature, consolidated or
502	unconsolidated, that overlies a mineral deposit, excluding topsoil or similar naturally occurring
503	surface materials that are not disturbed by mining operations.
504	surface materials that are not disturbed by mining operations.
505	(lxxi) "Owner or operator" means the owner or operator of any facility or
506	activity subject to regulation under the WYPDES program. The owner or operator is the person
507	applying for a WYPDES permit or authorization who will be responsible for complying with the
508	requirements of the permit or authorization.
509	requirements of the permit of authorization.
510	(lxxii) "Permit" means any permit issued by the Administrator of the EPA under
511	the NPDES program or by the administrator of the Water Quality Division in accordance with
512	these regulations.
513	these regulations.
514	(lxxiii) "pH" means a term used to express the intensity of acid or alkaline
515	conditions. pH is a measure of the hydrogen ion activity in a water sample. It is mathematically
516	related to hydrogen ion activity according to the expression: $pH = -log 10 (H+)$, where $(H+)$ is the
517	hydrogen ion activity. A pH value of 7 at 25 degrees C is neutral, with pHs of less than seven (7)
518	progressively more acid and pHs of greater than seven (7) progressively more basic (alkaline).
519	fragers and man frame and frame and frame and frame (1) fragers and frame (managed).
520	(lxxiv) "Point of compliance" means a point downstream from the outfall where
521	effluent limitations specified in a permit must be achieved.
522	
523	(lxxv) "Pollutant" means dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator residue, filter
524	backwash, sewage, garbage, sewage sludge, munitions, chemical wastes, biological materials,
525	radioactive materials (except those regulated under the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended
526	[42 U.S.C. 2011 et seq.]), heat, wrecked or discarded equipment, rock, sand, cellar dirt and
527	industrial, municipal, and agricultural waste discharged into water. It does not mean sewage from
528	vessels; or water, gas, or other material which is injected into a well to facilitate production of oil
529	or gas, or water derived in association with oil and gas production and disposed of in a well, if the
530	well used either to facilitate production or for disposal purposes is approved by authority of the
531	state and if the state determines that the injection or disposal will not result in the degradation of
532	ground or surface water resources.
533	
534	(lxxvi) "POTW" means a publicly owned treatment work.
535	
536	(lxxvii) "Pretreatment standards" means standards for that level of treatment
537	required of waste before introduction into a publicly owned treatment works so that it neither
538	interferes with, passes through, or otherwise is incompatible with such works.
539	
540	(lxxviii) "Primary industrial facility" means a facility that falls into one of
541	the defined primary industrial categories listed in 40 CFR Part 122 Appendix A.
542	

543	(lxxix) "Process wastewater" means any water which during
544	manufacturing or processing, comes into direct contact with or results from the production or use
545	of any raw material, intermediate product, finished product, byproduct, or waste product.
546	
547	(lxxx) "Produced water" means underground water which surfaces through oil
548	and/or gas wells.
549	
550	(lxxxi) "Regional Administrator" means the EPA Region VIII Administrator.
551	
552	(lxxxii) "Reporting form" means the uniform state or national forms, including
553	subsequent revision and modification, for reporting data and information pursuant to monitoring
554	and other conditions of WYPDES permits.
555	
556	(lxxxiii) "Severe property damage" means substantial physical damage to
557	property, damage to the treatment facilities which causes them to become inoperable, or
558	substantial and permanent loss of natural resources which can reasonably be expected to occur in
559	the absence of a bypass. Severe property damage does not mean economic loss caused by delays
560	in production.
561	·
562	(lxxxiv) "Significant materials" includes, but is not limited to: raw materials;
563	fuels; materials such as solvents, detergents, and plastic pellets; finished materials such as
564	metallic products; raw materials used in food processing or production; hazardous substances
565	designated under section 101(14) of CERCLA; any chemical the facility is required to report
566	pursuant to Section 313 of title III of SARA; fertilizers; pesticides; and waste products such as
567	ashes, slag and sludge that have the potential to be released with storm water discharges.
568	
569	(lxxxv) "Silvicultural point source" means any discernible, confined and discrete
570	conveyance related to rock crushing and gravel washing as defined in 40 CFR Part 436, subpart B
571	and, log sorting, or log storage facilities as defined in 40 CFR Part 429, subpart I which are
572	operated in connection with silvicultural activities and from which pollutants are discharged into
573	surface waters of the state. The term does not include nonpoint source silvicultural activities such
574	as nursery operations, site preparation, reforestation and subsequent cultural treatment, thinning,
575	prescribed burning, pest and fire control, harvesting operations, surface drainage, or road
576	construction and maintenance from which there is natural runoff. However, some of these
577	activities may involve point source discharges of dredged or fill material which may require a
578	permit under Section 404 of the CWA or Section 7 of these regulations.
579	
580	(lxxxvi) "Site" means the land or water area where any facility or activity
581	is physically located or conducted, including adjacent land used in connection with the facility or
582	activity.
583	·
584	(lxxxvii) "Skim ponds" means earthen ponds usually used in conjunction
585	with heater treaters and/or free water knockout units and/or skim tanks, into which produced
586	water is discharged with the purpose of providing gravity separation of oil and water. Skim
587	ponds are usually designed with a "stand pipe" which discharges relatively oil-free water from

588 589	near the bottom of the pond while the majority of the oil is allowed to float to the top of the pond where it is collected.
590591592593594595	(lxxxviii) "Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Code" means the statistical classification standard for industrial establishments developed by the Office of Management and Budget and published in the Standard Industrial Classification Manual, Executive Office of the President, Office of Management and Budget (1987).
596 597	(lxxix) "Storm water" means storm water runoff, snow melt runoff, and surface runoff and drainage.
598 599 600	(xc) "Storm water discharge associated with industrial activity" is defined in Section 6 (g) of these regulations.
601 602 603 604	(xci) "Surface waters of the state" means surface waters of the state as defined in Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations Chapter 1, Wyoming Surface Water Quality Standards.
605 606 607 608 609	(xcii) "Technology-based effluent limit" means a permit limit for a pollutant that has been adopted pursuant to Section 5 (c) (iii) (A) and (B) of these regulations and 304 (b) of the CWA that is based on the capability of a treatment method(s) to reduce the pollutant to a certain concentration.
610 611 612 613 614 615 616 617	(xciii) "Toxic materials" means those materials, or combination of materials, including disease causing agents, which, after discharge and upon exposure, ingestion, inhalation, or assimilation into any organism, either directly from the environment or indirectly by ingestion through food chains, will, on the basis of information available to the director of the Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality, cause death, disease, behavioral abnormalities, cancer, genetic malfunctions, physiological malfunctions (including malfunctions in reproduction), or physical deformations in such organisms or their offspring.
618 619 620 621 622	(xciv) "Toxicity reduction evaluation" means a site-specific study conducted in a step-wise process designed to identify the causative agent(s) of effluent toxicity, isolate the sources of toxicity, evaluate the effectiveness of toxicity control options, and then confirm the reduction in effluent toxicity.
623 624 625 626 627	(xcv) "Tributary" means those streams or stream segments which flow into or contribute water to another stream, stream segment, downstream reach of the same stream, or other water body.
628 629 630	(xcvi) "Uncontrolled sanitary landfill" means a landfill or open dump, whether in operation or closed, that does not meet the requirements for runon or runoff controls established pursuant to RCRA Subtitle D.
631632633	(xcvii) "Upset" means an exceptional incident in which there is unintentional and temporary noncompliance with technology based permit effluent limitations because of

factors beyond the reasonable control of the permittee. An upset does not include noncompliance to the extent caused by operational error, improperly designed treatment facilities, inadequate treatment facilities, lack of preventive maintenance, or careless or improper operation.

(xcviii) "Variance" means any mechanism or provision under section 301 or 316 of the CWA or under Section 8 of these regulations, or in the applicable effluent guidelines pursuant to Section 5 (c) (iii) of these regulations which allows modification to or waiver of the generally applicable effluent limitation requirements or time deadlines of the CWA. This includes provisions which allow the establishment of alternative limitations based on fundamentally different factors or on Sections 301 (c), 301 (g), 301 (h), 301 (i), or 316 (a) of the CWA.

(xcix) "Water quality based effluent limit" means a permit effluent limit derived by selecting the most stringent of the effluent limits calculated using all applicable water quality criteria as set forth in Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations, Chapter 1 for a specific point source to a specific receiving water for a given pollutant.

(c) "Water quality monitoring station" means a point downstream from the outfall on the tributary just prior to the confluence with the main stem of the drainage and/or on the mainstream above and below the confluence with the tributary where certain water quality monitoring data is to be collected when specified in the permit.

(ci) "Water quality standard" means the regulations as established by Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations, Chapter 1 which describe the designated uses of surface waters of the state, the numeric and narrative criteria that are necessary to protect the uses of surface waters of the state, and an antidegradation provision which protects the natural water quality of surface waters of the state.

(cii) "Wetland hydrology" means the presence of water on or near the land surface at a frequency and duration to cause the formation of hydric soils and support a prevalence of vegetation typically adapted to saturated and/or inundated conditions.

(ciii) "Whole effluent toxicity" means the total toxic effect of an effluent measured directly with a toxicity test.

(civ) "Wyoming Pollution Discharge Elimination System (WYPDES)" means the state program for issuing, modifying and reissuing, terminating, monitoring and enforcing permits for discharging pollutants into surface waters of the state under the provisions of these rules, W.S. 35-11- 101 through 35-11-1803 and the CWA.

Section 4. General Permits.

Provisions for the issuance of general permits are described in this section. Additional requirements specific to effluent permits, storm water permits and isolated wetlands are contained in sections 5, 6 and 7 of these regulations.

679 680	(a) Coverage. The department may issue a general permit to cover a category of discharges, except those covered by individual permits, within a geographic area which shall				
681 682	correspond to existing geographic or political boundaries. The general permit may be written to regulate:				
683					
684	(i) Storm water point sources except;				
685	() L				
686		(A)	Storm water discharges associated with industrial activities (as		
687 688			through (K)) that have a potential to reach surface waters of the ss 1 in Appendix A of Chapter 1, Wyoming Water Quality Rules		
689		_	es must apply for an individual storm water permit in accordance		
690	with the requirements of				
691	with the requirements (of Section	ii 0 (<i>0</i>).		
692		(B)	Storm water discharges from large or small construction activity		
693	as defined in Section 6	` /	ot included in the exception of Section 4 (a) (i) (A).		
694	as defined in Section o	(1) are no	of included in the exception of Section 4 (a) (i) (A).		
695	(ii)	Doint s	ource discharges of dredged or fill material into isolated wetlands;		
696	(11)	1 Offic St	ource discharges of dredged of thi material into isolated wettands,		
697					
698	(iii)	Effluen	at discharges, other than discharges described in (i) and (ii) above,		
699	if the sources all:	Lillacii	it discharges, other than discharges described in (1) and (11) above,		
700	if the sources an.				
701		(A)	Involve the same or substantially similar types of operations;		
702		(11)	involve the same of substantially similar types of operations,		
703		(B)	Discharge the same types of pollution or wastes;		
704		· /	,		
705		(C)	Require the same effluent limitations or operating conditions;		
706		· /	1 2 ,		
707		(D)	Require the same or similar monitoring; and		
708		` '			
709		(E)	In the opinion of the administrator, are more appropriately		
710	controlled under a gene	eral perm	it than under individual permits. In making such a finding, the		
711	administrator shall con	sider: the	e types of discharges; the expected nature of the discharges; the		
712			onal pollutants in the discharges; the expected volumes of the		
713	_		umber of discharges to be covered by the permit. The		
714	•		ne public notice of the general permit the rationale for utilizing a		
715	general permit rather than individual permits for the permitted activity.				
716					
717	(b) Author	rization t	o discharge.		
718	` '				
719	(i)	Except	as otherwise provided in these regulations, any person seeking		
720	coverage under a general permit shall submit to the department a complete notice of intent,				
721			be covered by the general permit. Any person who fails to		
722	submit a notice of intent in accordance with the terms of the general permit is not authorized to				
723	discharge under the terms of the permit unless the general permit, in accordance with Section 4				
724	(b) (v), contains a provision that a notice of intent is not required.				

regulations.

(ii)

(iii)

705	
//٦	
120	

726 727

- 728
- 729 730

731

732 733

734 735 736

737 738

739 740

741 742 743

744 745 746

747 748

749 750 751

752 753 754

755

762 763 764

761

766 767 768

769

770

765

intent and the date(s) when a discharge is authorized under the permit unless otherwise specified in the authorization. In any event, no person shall commence a discharge without (A) having obtained written authorization from the department, and no authorization shall be issued without full compliance by the permittee with all requirements of these regulations. In any event, no person shall change or alter the conditions of an (B) authorized discharge without having obtained an authorization from the department, and no authorization for the modification shall be issued without full compliance by the permittee with all requirements of these regulations.

(C)

expiration date of an authorization without having obtained an extension or renewal of the authorization from the department, and no extension or renewal shall be granted without full compliance by the permittee with all requirements of these regulations.

the general permit and shall require the submission of information necessary for adequate

program implementation. All notices of intent shall be signed as described in Section 14 of these

The minimum requirements of the notice of intent shall be specified in

General permits shall specify the deadlines for submitting notices of

In any event, no person shall continue to discharge beyond the

- (iv) General permits shall specify eligibility requirements for coverage under the permit and procedures for submitting notices of intent and granting authorization.
- (v) Discharges other than discharges from publicly owned treatment works, combined sewer overflows, MS4s, primary industrial facilities, and storm water discharges associated with industrial activity and large construction activities may be authorized to discharge under a general permit without submitting a notice of intent where the administrator finds that a notice of intent requirement would be inappropriate. In making such a finding, the administrator shall consider: the types of discharges, the expected nature of the discharges; the potential for toxic and conventional pollutants in the discharges; the expected volumes of the discharges; and the estimated number of discharges to be covered by the permit. The administrator shall provide in the public notice of the general permit the reasons for not requiring a notice of intent, if so allowed.
- The administrator may notify a discharger that it is subject to the (vi) conditions and requirements of a general permit, even if the discharger has not submitted a notice of intent to be covered.
- Water quality-based limits. Where sources within a specific category or subcategory of dischargers are subject to water quality-based limits imposed pursuant to Section 5 of these regulations, the source in that specific category or subcategory shall be subject to the same water quality-based effluent limitations, when applicable.

812 813

814

815

771							
772	(d) Applicable conditions. The general permit must clearly identify the applicable						
773	conditions for each category or subcategory of dischargers or treatment works treating domestic						
774	sewage covered by the permit.						
775							
776	(e) Exclusions. The general permit may exclude specified sources or areas from						
777	coverage.						
778	č						
779	(f) Processing procedures for notices of intent.						
780	(-)						
781	(i) The administrator shall review each notice of intent and make a						
782	completeness determination within 30 days of receipt of the notice of intent. If the notice of						
783	intent and supplemental information are deemed to be complete, processing of the notice of intent						
784	shall proceed in accordance with Section 4 (f) (ii). If the administrator determines that the notice						
785	of intent is incomplete, a notice shall be provided to the applicant, describing the additional						
786	information needed in order to complete the processing of the notice of intent, within 45 days of						
787	receipt of the notice of intent. The completeness of any notice of intent shall be judged						
788	independently of the status of any other notice of intent for the same facility or activity.						
	independently of the status of any other notice of intent for the same facility of activity.						
789	(") II and the construction of a constant construction of the first constant construction of the constant cons						
790	(ii) Upon determination of completeness or as specified in the general						
791	permit, the administrator, or his authorized representative, shall make a determination on issuance						
792	or denial of the authorization for coverage under the general permit. If the administrator, or his						
793	authorized representative, proposes that the discharge be authorized, the administrator, or his						
794	authorized representative, will also identify any conditions of authorization.						
795							
796	(g) Modification, revocation, renewal, extension, or termination of general permits.						
797	General permits may be issued, modified, revoked, renewed, extended, or terminated in						
798	accordance with provisions of Sections 9, 10, 11, and 12 of these regulations. Termination may						
799	apply to individual owners or operators, to several owners or operators, or to an entire general						
800	permit protection area. In cases where the termination does not affect all owners and operators,						
801	the general permit shall remain in effect with respect to those unaffected owners and operators.						
802							
803	(h) Permit term. General permits may be issued for a term not to exceed five (5)						
804	years, unless extended in accordance with the provisions of Section 11 of these regulations.						
805							
806	(i) Requiring an individual permit.						
807							
808	(i) The administrator, for good cause, may require any person authorized by						
809	a general permit or seeking coverage under a general permit to apply for and obtain an individual						
810	permit. Cases where an individual WYPDES permit may be required include, but are not limited						
811	to, the following:						

2-18

The permittee is not in compliance with the conditions of the

(A)

general WYPDES permit;

816		(B)	A chai	nge has occurred in the availability of demonstrated		
817	technology or practices for the control or abatement of pollutants applicable to the point source;					
818						
819		(C) Effluent limitation guidelines are promulgated for point sources				
820	covered by the	e general WYPD				
821	J	C	1			
822		(D)	A wat	er quality management plan containing requirements		
823	applicable to s	such point source				
824	upproducts to s	pomi source	5 15 4 PP1			
825		(E)	Circur	nstances have changed since the time of the request to be		
826	covered so tha	` ,		ger appropriately controlled under the general permit, or		
827		-		ion or elimination of the authorized discharge is necessary;		
828	criner a tempo	rary or permaner	it reduct	ion of chimmeton of the authorized discharge is necessary,		
829		(F)	The di	scharge(s) is a significant contributor of pollutants. In		
830	making this de	` '		trator may consider the following factors:		
831	making tins de	community, the	adminis	trator may consider the following factors.		
832			(I)	The location of the discharge with respect to surface		
833	waters of the s	stato:	(1)	The location of the discharge with respect to surface		
834	waters of the s	state,				
835			(II)	The size of the discharge;		
			(11)	The size of the discharge,		
836			(III)	The quantity and notions of the mallutants discharged to		
837	C	- C (1 (- ((III)	The quantity and nature of the pollutants discharged to		
838	surface waters	of the state; and				
839				A (1 1 4 C 4		
840			(IV)	Any other relevant factors.		
841						
842	.4			person may petition the administrator to require any		
843	_		permit of	or seeking coverage under a general permit to apply for and		
844	obtain an indi	vidual permit.				
845						
846				operator authorized by a general permit may request to be		
847		•	•	eral permit by applying for an individual permit in		
848	accordance wi	th Section 5 (a) of	of these	regulations.		
849						
850				ridual permit is issued to an owner or operator otherwise		
851		•		bility of the general permit to the individual permittee is		
852	automatically	terminated on the	e effecti	ve date of the individual permit.		
853						
854	(j)	General permi	t covera	ge for discharges already covered by an individual permit.		
855	A discharge ex	xcluded from a g	eneral p	ermit solely because it already has an individual permit		
856	may request th	nat the individual	permit 1	be terminated, and that it be covered by the general permit.		
857			-			
858	(k)	Application fo	r covera	ge. Any owner or operator shall apply for coverage in a		
859	` '			the notice of intent supplied by the administrator.		
860	- 1	_ , ,		••		
861	(1)	Permit condition	ons.			

862			
863	(i)	Gener	al permits will include all conditions determined necessary by the
864	state for protection of	the surfa	ace waters of the state.
865			
866	(ii)	Gener	al permits will require a copy of the authorization letter be posted
867	at the physical locatio	n of the j	permitted site in a prominent and safe place for public viewing.
868	- '		
869	(iii)	Gener	al permits will require the permittee to notify all landowners,
870	on whose property an	outfall a	ssociated with the general permit is located, prior to submitting the
871	Notice of Intent to the	adminis	trator.
872			
873	(m) Appli	cation re	equirements for isolated wetlands. A notice of intent submitted for
874	coverage of mitigation	n for acti	vities that cause the destruction, damage or impairment of naturally
875	occurring isolated wet	lands sh	all contain the information as required in Section 7 (b) of these
876	regulations.		•
877	-		
878	(n) Appli	cation re	equirements for effluent discharges. Application requirements for
879			storm water discharges and isolated wetlands as described in
880	Sections 6 and 7 respe	_	-
881	•	•	· ·
882	(i)	A not	ice of intent submitted for coverage of discharge from a new
883	facility under a genera		shall contain, at a minimum, the following information unless the
884	administrator determin	nes that o	certain items are unnecessary:
885			·
886		(A)	Name of company, entity, or individual seeking authorization;
887			
888		(B)	Identification of the facility name, location, and telephone
889	number if applicable;		
890			
891		(C)	Mailing address and telephone number of company, entity, or
892	individual seeking aut	horizatio	on;
893			
894		(D)	Applicant status as federal, state, private, public, or other entity;
895			
896		(E)	Name and signature of responsible person;
897			
898		(F)	Authorization of a duly authorized representative under the
899	Signatory Requiremen	nts of Sec	ction 14 of these rules, where applicable;
900			
901		(G)	Type and location, expressed in latitude and longitude to the
902	nearest 15 seconds, of	the facil	lity from which discharge will occur;
903			
904		(H)	A description of the activities conducted by the applicant which
905	require it to obtain cov	verage ui	nder a WYPDES permit;
906			

907	(I) Expected quality and quantity of effluent (including maximum			
908	design capacity in million gallons per day) proposed for discharge, flow rate in million gallons			
909	per day or cubic feet per second and whether the proposed discharge will be continuous or			
910	intermittent;			
911				
912	(J) Description of treatment process that will be used to reduce			
913	pollutant concentrations in effluent;			
914	r			
915	(K) Outfall number(s) and latitude and longitude of each outfall			
916	location to the nearest 15 seconds;			
917	,			
918	(L) Outfall number(s) and legal description(s) of each outfall			
919	location to the nearest quarter/quarter of a section;			
920				
921	(M) Names and addresses of landowners where outfall(s) will be			
922	located, if property owner is other than the applicant;			
923	rocated, if property owner is other than the applicant,			
924	(N) Outfall number(s) and names of surface waters of the state that			
925	would or potentially would directly receive any portion of the discharge for each outfall,			
926	including, where applicable, a description of the tributary system from the outfall location to the			
927	main stem;			
928	man stem,			
929	(O) A topographic map extending one mile beyond the property			
930	boundaries of the source, showing the location of the facility, intake structures and associated			
931	outfalls and proposed monitoring and/or compliance points; each of its hazardous waste			
932	treatment, storage, or disposal facilities; each well where fluids from the facility are injected			
933	underground; and those wells, springs, other surface water bodies, and drinking water wells liste			
934	in public records or otherwise known by the applicant in the map area. The map scale must be a			
935	least 1:24,000 unless otherwise approved by the administrator.			
936	reast 1.24,000 unless otherwise approved by the administrator.			
937	(P) Where applicable, additional requirements as			
938	specified in Appendices A through M of these regulations.			
939	specified in Appendices A through W of these regulations.			
940	(Q) Any other information the administrator may request in order to			
941	identify potential impacts to designated uses of surface waters of the state, by the proposed			
942	discharge and to determine whether to issue authorization under a general permit. The additional			
943	information may include additional quantitative data and bioassays to assess the relative toxicity			
944	of discharges to aquatic life and requirements to determine the cause of the toxicity.			
945	of discharges to aquatic fire and requirements to determine the cause of the toxicity.			
946	(ii) Information in addition to that described in Section 4 (n) (i) may be			
947	established based on needs specific to a general permit.			
948	established based on needs specific to a general permit.			
949	(iii) A notice of intent submitted by a permittee for modification or extension			
950	of existing authorization under a general permit shall identify any changes or additions to the			
950 951	information listed in (i) and (ii) above that was provided in the notice of intent submitted for the			
952	authorization most recently granted.			
<i>,5</i> 4	authorization most recently granted.			

953				
954	(iv) A notice of intent and other documents required to accompany said			
955	notice of intent when submitted to the department must be signed and certified in accordance with			
956	the provisions of Section 14 of these regulations.			
957				
958	(o) Application requirements for storm water discharges.			
959				
960	(i) Deadlines to apply.			
961				
962	(A) Facilities proposing a new discharge of storm water associated			
963	with industrial activity or large construction activity shall submit a notice of intent in accordance			
964	with the provisions of Section 4 (o) (ii) of these regulations.			
965				
966	(B) Except as provided in Section 4 (o) (i), for any storm water			
967	discharge associated with large construction activity as described in Section 6 (f) (i) or industrial			
968	activity as identified in Section 6 (g) in place prior to the effective date of this rule, should have			
969	made application to the administrator by October 1, 1992; prior to initiation of the activity; or as			
970	specified in the applicable general permit.			
971				
972	(C) For any storm water discharge associated with industrial activity			
973	from a facility that is owned or operated by a municipality with a population of less than 100,000			
974	that is not authorized by a general or individual permit other than an airport, powerplant, or			
975	uncontrolled sanitary landfill, the permit application must be submitted to the administrator by			
976	March 10, 2003 or as specified in the applicable general permit.			
977				
978	(D) For storm water discharges associated with small construction			
979	activity as described in Section 6 (f) (ii), that are not already authorized by a storm water general			
980	or individual permit, require permit authorization as of March 10, 2003, except;			
981				
982	(I) Storm water discharges subject to Section 4 (b) (v)			
983	which are not required to submit a NOI for coverage in accordance with the provisions of the			
984	applicable general permit, and			
985				
986	(II) Storm water discharges associated with small			
987	construction activity at oil and gas exploration, production, processing, and treatment operations			
988	or transmission facilities subject to the provisions of, Section 4 (o) (i) (E) of these regulations.			
989				
990	(E) For storm water discharges associated with small construction			
991	activity at oil and gas exploration, production, processing, and treatment operations or			
992	transmission facilities, require permit authorization as of March 10, 2005.			
993				
994	(F) A notice of intent shall be submitted to the administrator within			
995	60 days of notice of a storm water discharge which the administrator determines contributes to a			
996	violation of a water quality standard or is a significant contributor of pollutants to surface waters			
997	of the state or where the administrator determines that storm water controls are needed for the			
998	discharge based on wasteload allocations that are part of "total maximum daily loads" (TMDLs)			

999	that address the pollutant(s) of concern; unless permission for a later date is granted by the
1000	administrator.
1001	
1002	(G) For any existing storm water discharge from a regulated small
1003	MS4 for which a storm water permit application was not previously required under federal law or
1004	regulation, the permit application made under Section 4 (o) (iii) must be submitted to the
1005	administrator:
1006	
1007	(I) By March 10, 2003 for any storm water discharge
1008	associated with a regulated small MS4 in an urbanized area as described in Section 6 (h) (i) (A)
1009	and (B) and that is not already authorized by a storm water general or individual permit,
1010	
1011	(II) Within 180 days of notice of designation, unless the
1012	administrator grants a later date, under Section 6 (h) (i) (C) or (D).
1013	
1014	(ii) Application requirements for storm water discharges associated with
1015	industrial activity and large construction activity. Dischargers of storm water associated with
1016	industrial activity and large construction activity are required to apply for an individual permit or
1017	seek coverage under a storm water general permit.
1018	·
1019	A notice of intent requesting coverage under a general permit must be completed in
1020	accordance with the requirements of this section and the applicable general permit. Unless the
1021	administrator determines that certain items are unnecessary, the notice of intent shall contain, at a
1022	minimum:
1023	
1024	(A) General requirements applicable to all notices of intent:
1025	
1026	(I) Name of the company, entity, or individual seeking a
1027	permit;
1028	•
1029	(II) Mailing address and telephone number of company,
1030	entity, or individual seeking a permit;
1031	
1032	(III) The facility name, location, and telephone number if
1033	applicable;
1034	
1035	(IV) Applicant status as federal, state, private, public, or other
1036	entity;
1037	
1038	(V) Name and signature in accordance with the requirements
1039	of Section 14 of these regulations;
1040	
1041	(VI) Authorization of a duly authorized representative under
1042	the Signatory Requirements of Section 14 of these regulations, where applicable;
1043	

1044	(VII) Location, expressed in latitude and longitude to the
1045	nearest 15 seconds, of the facility to be covered under the permit;
1046	
1047	(VIII) Location, expressed as quarter/quarter section, township,
1048	and range in the applicable Public Land Survey (PLS), of the facility to be covered under the
1049	permit;
1050	
1051	(IX) A description of the activities conducted by the applicant
1052	which require it to obtain a WYPDES storm water discharge permit;
1053	
1054	(X) For industrial activities only, up to four SIC codes which
1055	best reflect the principal products or services provided by the facility;
1056	
1057	(B) Applicants shall provide such other information the
1058	administrator may reasonably require to determine whether to issue an authorization. The
1059	additional information may include additional quantitative data and bioassays to assess the
1060	relative toxicity of discharges to aquatic life and requirements to determine the cause of the
1061	toxicity.
1062	·
1063	(iii) Application requirements for regulated small municipal separate storm
1064	sewer discharges.
1065	
1066	(A) The notice of intent for general permit coverage must include the
1067	following information, at a minimum:
1068	
1069	(I) Name of the municipality seeking a permit;
1070	
1071	(II) Mailing address, contact name, and telephone number of
1072	the municipality seeking a permit;
1073	
1074	(III) A general description of the best management practices
1075	(BMPs) that the permittee or another municipality will implement for each of the storm water
1076	minimum control measures required by Section 6 (j) (i);
1077	
1078	(IV) The measurable goals for each of the selected BMPs
1079	including, as appropriate, the months and years in which the permittee will undertake required
1080	actions, including interim milestones and the frequency of the action;
1081	
1082	(V) The person or persons responsible for implementing or
1083	coordinating the permittee=s storm water management program. A position, rather than an
1084	individual, may also be designated;
1085	
1086	(VI) A description of the funding sources expected for
1087	implementation of the permittee=s program; and
1088	

1089	(VII) Other information the administrator may reasonably
1090	require to determine whether to issue an authorization.
1091	
1092	
1093	(B) The permittee may file a separate application for coverage under
1094	a general permit, or may jointly submit an application with other municipalities or governmental
1095	entities. If the permittee wants to share responsibilities for meeting the minimum control
1096	measures with other municipalities or governmental entities, the application (whether separate or
1097	joint) must describe which minimum control measures the permittee will implement and identify
1098	the entities that will implement the other minimum control measures within the area served by the
1099	permittee=s MS4.
1100	
1101	(C) If authorized by the administrator, the permittee may file a
1102	separate application for coverage under an individual permit. The application must include the
1103	information required under Section 4 (o) (iii) and Section 6 (b) (i), an estimate of square mileage
1104	served by the small MS4, and any additional information that the administrator requests. The
1105	administrator=s authorization will be contingent upon the regulated entity providing adequate
1106	justification for the need for an individual permit.
1107	
1108	(D) If authorized by the administrator, two (2) or more regulated
1109	entities may jointly apply under Section 4 (o) (iii) (C) to be co-permittees under an individual
1110	permit. The administrator=s authorization will be contingent upon the regulated entities
1111	providing adequate justification for the need for an individual permit.
1112	Section 5. Effluent Permits.
1113	The following process shall be used in the application for, development of, and issuance
1114	of effluent permits, except for storm water permits which are addressed under Sections 4 and 6 of
1115	these regulations.
1116	these regulations.
1117	(a) Application for individual permits. Completed application forms shall be
1118	submitted to the department for permits for new facilities, modifications to existing permits, and
1119	permit renewals.
1120	Parama sana manan
1121	(i) Permits for new facilities. The owner or operator of any point source
1122	within the State of Wyoming who proposes to discharge pollution or wastes into surface waters of
1123	the state must file with the administrator a complete application form either (1) no less than 180
1124	days in advance of the date on which it is desired to commence the discharge of pollution or
1125	wastes, unless otherwise approved by the administrator, or (2) in sufficient time prior to any
1126	discharge of pollutants to insure compliance with the requirements of Section 306 of the Federal
1127	Act, or with any applicable zoning or siting requirements established pursuant to Section 208 (b)
1128	(2) (c) of the Federal Act, and any other applicable water quality standards and limitations. In
1129	any event, no person shall commence a discharge without having obtained a permit from the
1130	department, and no permit shall be issued without full compliance by the permittee with all
1131	requirements of these regulations.
1132	
1133	(ii) Modification of permits (Refer to Section 12 of these regulations)

1134					
1135	(iii)	Renev	wal of permits. (Refer to Section 10 of these regulations.)		
1136					
1137	(iv)	Appli	cation for individual permits. Application for individual permits		
1138	shall be made using fo	g forms provided or specified by the administrator. Completed application			
1139	forms shall be submitted to the department for permits for new facilities, modifications to existing				
1140	permits, and permit rea	newals.			
1141					
1142	(v)	Gener	ral information requirements. An application form for all new		
1143	individual permits shall	ll contai	n the following information unless the administrator determines		
1144	that specific items are	unneces	sary:		
1145	_				
1146		(A)	Name of company, entity, or individual seeking a permit;		
1147					
1148		(B)	Identification of the facility name, location, and telephone		
1149	number if applicable;				
1150	**				
1151		(C)	Mailing address and telephone number of company, entity, or		
1152	individual seeking a pe	ermit;			
1153					
1154		(D)	Applicant status as federal, state, private, public, or other entity		
1155	and status of applicant	as own			
1156	**		•		
1157		(E)	Name and signature of responsible person as required by Section		
1158	14 of these regulations	•			
1159	· ·				
1160		(F)	Authorization of a duly authorized representative under the		
1161	Signatory Requiremen	ts of Sec	ction 14 of these rules, where applicable;		
1162					
1163		(G)	Names, addresses, and telephone numbers of landowners where		
1164	outfalls will be located	l, if prop	perty owner is other than applicant;		
1165					
1166		(H)	Type and location, expressed in latitude and longitude to the		
1167	nearest 15 seconds, of		lity from which discharge will occur;		
1168			·		
1169		(I)	A description of the activities conducted by the applicant which		
1170	require it to obtain an	WYPDE	ES permit and where the activity includes treatment facilities		
1171	•		a site diagram of the treatment facilities associated with the		
1172	discharge and the outfa	all locat	ions;		
1173					
1174		(J)	Up to four (4) SIC codes which best reflect the principal		
1175	products or services pr	. ,	• • • •		
1176			· · · · · · · ·		
1177		(K)	Expected quality and quantity (including maximum design		
1178	capacity in million gal	lons per	day and, except for POTWs, the average daily flow rate in million		

1179	gallons per day) of effluent proposed for discharge, flow rate in million gallons per day or cubic			
1180	feet per second, and whether the proposed discharge will be continuous or intermittent;			
1181				
1182				
1183	(L) Description of each treatment process that will be used to reduce			
1184	pollutant concentrations in effluent;			
1185	1			
1186	(M) Outfall numbers and latitude and longitude of each outfall			
1187	location to the nearest 15 seconds;			
1188	,			
1189	(N) Outfall numbers, the county where each outfall is located and			
1190	legal description of each outfall location to the nearest quarter/quarter of a section;			
1191				
1192	(O) Distance from shore and depth below water surface;			
1193				
1194	(P) Whether the discharge will be continuous or periodic. If the			
1195	discharge is to be periodic the following information for each outfall shall be provided:			
1196				
1197	(I) Number of times per year the discharge is to occur.			
1198				
1199	(II) Anticipated duration of each discharge.			
1200				
1201	(III) Anticipated flow of each discharge.			
1202				
1203	(IV) Months in which discharge is expected to occur.			
1204				
1205	(Q) Whether any outfall is or will be equipped with a diffuser and the			
1206	type of diffuser used.			
1207				
1208	(R) Outfall number(s) and names of surface waters of the state that			
1209	would or potentially would directly receive any portion of the discharge for each outfall,			
1210	including where applicable, a description of the tributary system from the outfall location to the			
1211	main stem;			
1212				
1213	(S) A topographic map extending one mile beyond the property			
1214	boundaries of the source, showing the location of the facility, intake structures and associated			
1215	outfalls and proposed monitoring and/or compliance points; each of its hazardous waste			
1216	treatment, storage, or disposal facilities; each well where fluids from the facility are injected			
1217	underground; and those wells, springs, other surface water bodies, and drinking water wells listed			
1218	in public records or otherwise known by the applicant in the map area.			
1219				
1220	(T) A listing of all active permits or construction approvals received			
1221	or applied for by the applicant for the site under any of the following programs:			
1222	11 - 7 Tr			
1223	(I) Hazardous Waste Management program under the			
1224	Resource Conservation and Recovery Act.			
	J			

1225				
1226		(II)	Underground Injection Control program under the Safe	
1227	Drinking Water Act.			
1228				
1229		(III)	NPDES program under the CWA.	
1230				
1231		(lV)	WYPDES program under these regulations.	
1232		(T.T.)		
1233	1 (1 4: 4)	(V)	Prevention of Significant Deterioration program under	
1234	the Clean Air Act.			
1235		(3.11)	Non-stainment management longly Class Air Ast	
1236		(Vl)	Non-attainment program under the Clean Air Act.	
1237		(3711)	National Emission Ctandards for Hannadaya Dallutanta	
1238	under the Clean Air Act.	(VII)	National Emission Standards for Hazardous Pollutants	
1239 1240	under the Clean All Act.			
1240		(VIII)	Section 404 of the CWA.	
1241		(VIII)	Section 404 of the CWA.	
1242		(1X)	Impoundments and/or Appropriation of Surface Water	
1244	under the State Engineer=s Off		impoundments and/or Appropriation of Surface water	
1245	under the State Engineer—3 On	icc.		
1246		(X)	Reservoirs under the Oil and Gas Conservation	
1247	Commission.	(21)	reservoirs under the off and our conservation	
1248	Commission.			
1249		(XI)	Other relevant local, state, or federal environmental	
1250	permits.	()		
1251	F			
1252	(U)	Any ac	lditional information required in accordance with	
1253	appendices B through M of thes	-	-	
1254		C		
1255	(V)	Any ot	her information the administrator may request in order to	
1256	assess potential impacts to design	gnated u	ses of surface waters of the state as a result of the	
1257	proposed discharge, to develop	permit o	conditions in compliance with regulations adopted	
1258		•	to determine whether to issue a WYPDES permit. The	
1259	•		itional quantitative data and bioassays to assess the	
1260	•		e life and requirements to determine the cause of the	
1261	toxicity.	o aquatic	one and requirements to determine the eduse of the	
	toxicity.			
1262	(:) g: .			
1263		_	rement. A permit application and other documents	
1264			when submitted to the department must be signed and	
1265	certified in accordance with the	provisio	ons of Section 14 of these regulations.	
1266				
1267			on. Applicants shall keep records of all data used to	
1268	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
1269	period of three (3) years from the	he date t	he application is signed.	
1270				

1271	(b) Processing procedures applicable to all individual permit applications.				
1272					
1273	(i) Permit issuance or denial determination. Within 180 days of the receipt				
1274	of an application and requested supplemental information, the director shall make a tentative				
1275	determination with respect to the issuance or denial of a permit. If the director, with the advice of				
1276	the administrator, determines that the permit should be issued, then tentative determinations will				
1277	also be made with respect to the following:				
1278	and the same of the same same same same same same same sam				
1279	(A) Proposed effluent limitations, which in the absence of federal				
1280	guidelines adopted pursuant to Section 304 of the CWA, will comply with 40 CFR 125.3 (c) (2)				
1281	and (3);				
1282	und (5),				
1283	(B) Proposed effluent limitations that will ensure that water quality				
1284	standards promulgated in Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations, Chapter 1 will not be				
1285	violated as a result of the proposed discharge;				
1286	violated as a result of the proposed discharge,				
1287	(C) A proposed schedule of compliance, where appropriate and				
	(C) A proposed schedule of compliance, where appropriate; and				
1288	(D) Conditions and restrictions in addition to those smallfied in these				
1289	(D) Conditions and restrictions in addition to those specified in these				
1290	regulations that are necessary in order for the requirements of the CWA or the Wyoming				
1291	Environmental Quality Act to be upheld.				
1292					
1293	(ii) Completeness review. The administrator shall provide a notice of				
1294	completeness or deficiency within 45 days of receipt of the application. If a notice of				
1295	completeness or deficiency is not issued to the applicant within 45 days of receipt of the				
1296	application, the administrator shall issue a letter of explanation to the applicant which specifies				
1297	the expected date of the completeness determination.				
1298					
1299	(iii) Completeness determination. The director shall not process or issue a				
1300					
1301					
1302					
1303					
1304	405 through 411, 413 through 433, 436, 437, 439, 440, 442 through, 447, 454, 455, 457 through				
1305	461, 463 through 469, and 471, such that the administrator deems that adequate information has				
1306	been provided to make a determination in accordance with Section 5 (b) (i). The completeness of				
1307	any application for a permit shall be judged independently of the status of any other permit				
1308	application or permit for the same facility or activity.				
1309					
1310	(iv) Permit denial. If the director determines that the permit should be				
1311	denied, he shall give written notice of this action to the applicant and to the Regional				
1312	Administrator of the EPA within 30 days after making the tentative determination.				
1313					
1314					
1315	(v) Draft permits. For each proposed discharge for which an application				
1316	determined to be complete has been received and for which none of the conditions under which				
	•				

1317	permits must be prohibited exist, the administrator shall prepare a draft permit that embodies the				
1318	tentative determinations reached relative to Section 5 (b) (i) above. Draft permits shall be				
1319	available to the public for inspection, copying and public comment.				
1320					
1321	(vi) Public participation and public meetings. The requirements for public				
1322	participation and public meetings contained in these regulations shall be complied with for every				
1323	permit proposed for issuance by the director.				
1324					
1325	(c) Terms and conditions of permits. All issued permits will contain, as a minimum,				
1326	authorization for discharge subject to the conditions of the permit, effluent limitations, standards				
1327	of performance for any new source, standard conditions, special conditions (when applicable),				
1328	monitoring requirements where discharge is allowed, and reporting requirements that comply				
1329	with these regulations.				
1330					
1331	The permittee shall comply with effluent standards or prohibitions established under				
1332	section 307(a) of the CWA for toxic pollutants within the time provided in the regulations that				
1333	establish these standards or prohibitions.				
1334					
1335	(i) Standard conditions. All issued permits shall contain standard conditions				
1336	consisting of, but not limited to, the following:				
1337					
1338	(A) The permittee must comply with all conditions of the permit.				
1339	Any noncompliance is a violation of the CWA and the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act and				
1340	is grounds for enforcement action; for permit termination, revocation and reissuance, or				
1341	modification; or denial of a permit reissuance or extension of authorization.				
1342					
1343	(B) Any planned sewerage system, treatment works, or disposal				
1344	system expansions, production increases, process modifications, or new source additions which				
1345	will result in a new or increased discharge or the inclusion of additional criteria for a new source				
1346	shall be reported by submission of an application or, if such discharge will not violate effluent				
1347	limitations specified in the permit, by submission to the administrator of notification of such new				
1348	or increased discharge.				
1349					
1350	(C) The discharge of pollution and/or wastes into surface waters of				
1351	the state more frequently than, or at a level in excess of, that identified and authorized by a permit				
1352	shall constitute a violation of the conditions of the permit.				
1353					
1354	(D) After notice and opportunity for a hearing, a permit may be				
1355	modified, in whole or in part, revoked and reissued, or terminated during its term. The filing of a				
1356	request by the permittee for a modification, revocation, reissuance, termination, or notification of				
1357	planned changes or anticipated noncompliance does not halt any permit condition. Cause for				
1358	such permit actions, includes, but are not limited to, any of the following:				
1359					
1360	(I) Violation of any conditions of the permit;				
1361					

1362	(II) Obtaining a permit by misrepresentations or failure to
1363	fully disclose all relevant facts;
1364	
1365	(III) A change in any condition that requires either a
1366	temporary or permanent reduction or elimination of the discharge; and
1367	
1368	(IV) A failure or refusal by the permittee to comply with the
1369	monitoring and reporting requirements of a permit and Sections 35-11-109 (a) (iv) and 35-11-110
1370	(a) (vii) Wyoming Statutes.
1371	
1372	(E) A permit may be modified in whole or in part during its term in
1373	order to apply any more stringent toxic effluent standard or prohibition, for a toxic substance
1374	present in the permittee's discharge, that is promulgated by the Administrator of the EPA.
1375	
1376	(F) A requirement that the permittee allow the administrator or his
1377	authorized representative upon presentation of his credentials to:
1378	
1379	(I) Enter the premises where a permittee=s regulated facility
1380	or activity is located or conducted or where records must be kept under the conditions of the
1381	permit;
1382	
1383	(II) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purposes
1384	of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by these rules, the Wyoming
1385	Environmental Quality Act or the CWA, any substances or parameters at any location;
1386	
1387	(III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any
1388	records required by the permit to be kept;
1389	
1390	(IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment
1391	(including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required
1392	under the permit; and
1393	
1394	(V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v),
1395	(vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations.
1396	
1397	(G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the
1398	administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations
1399	associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoirs,
1400	monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of
1401	discharge.
1402	
1403	
1404	(H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an
1405	activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for
1406	and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension is
1407	granted under Section 11 of these regulations.

1408	(7)	T			
1409	· /	(I) It is not a defense for a permittee in an enforcement action that it			
1410	would have been necessary to halt or reduce the permitted activity in order to maintain				
1411	compliance with the conditions	of a per	mit.		
1412	470				
1413	(J)	_	rmittee shall take all reasonable steps to minimize or		
1414			is permit which has a reasonable likelihood of adversely		
1415	affecting human health or the en	nvironm	ent.		
1416					
1417	(K)	The pe	rmit does not convey any property rights of any sort, or		
1418	any exclusive privilege.				
1419					
1420	(L)	A requ	irement that the permittee shall furnish to the		
1421	administrator, within a reasonal	ole time,	, any information which the administrator or his authorized		
1422	representative may request to de	etermine	e whether cause exists for modifying, revoking and		
1423	reissuing, or terminating the per	rmit or t	o determine compliance with the permit.		
1424					
1425	(M)	A requ	irement that the permittee shall furnish to the		
1426	administrator or his authorized	•	ntative, copies of records required to be kept by the permit.		
1427		1			
1428	(N)	The pe	rmittee must properly operate and maintain all equipment		
1429					
1430					
1431	where applicable. Backup systems are required when needed to ensure compliance. However,				
1432	each main line unit treatment pr		<u> </u>		
1433	caen main me ame acameme p		ast se operated as a minimum.		
1434	(0)	To assi	ure compliance with permit limitations, the permittee shall		
1435	monitor:	10 455	are compliance with permit influctions, the permittee shall		
1436	momtor.				
1437		(I)	The mass (or other measurement specified in the permit)		
1437	for each pollutant limited in the		*		
1439	for each pollutant limited in the	permit.			
		(II)	The values of effluent discharged from each outfall		
1440		(II)	The volume of effluent discharged from each outfall.		
1441	(D)	G 1			
1442	(P)	_	es and measurements taken for the purpose of monitoring		
1443			activity. Records must be retained for three (3) years		
1444		ctor. Mo	onitoring records shall include but are not limited to the		
1445	following:				
1446					
1447		(I)	The date, location, and time of the sampling;		
1448					
1449					
1450		(II)	The dates and by whom analyses were performed;		
1451					
1452		(III)	Analytical techniques used;		
1453					

1454	(IV) The results of such analyses;				
1455					
1456	(V) Name of the person collecting the sample(s);				
1457					
1458	(VI) Sampling handling and preservation conducted; and				
1459					
1460	(VII) Detection limits for analyses conducted.				
1461					
1462	Wastewater measurements must be conducted in accordance with methods and				
1463	procedures prescribed in 40 CFR Part 136 or other specified procedures.				
1464					
1465	(Q) Pollutants for which the permittee must report violations of daily				
1466	maximum discharge limitations under Section 5 (c) (i) (W) (24-hour reporting) shall be listed in				
1467	the permit. This list shall include any toxic pollutant or hazardous substance, or any pollutant				
1468	specifically identified as the method to monitor a toxic pollutant or hazardous substance.				
1469					
1470	(R) Applications, reports, or information submitted to the				
1471	administrator must be signed and certified. Knowingly making false statements, representations,				
1472	or certifications is a violation of the permit, Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations				
1473	Chapter 2 and the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act and is subject to enforcement.				
1474					
1475	(S) The permittee shall give advance notification to the administrator				
1476	of any planned changes in the permitted facility or activity which may result in noncompliance				
1477	with permit requirements.				
1478					
1479	(T) The permit is not transferrable except after written notification is				
1480	provided to the administrator and such request is approved by the administrator. The				
1481	administrator may require modification, or revocation and reissuance, as necessary.				
1482	(II) Manitanina nananta must ha submitted an a disabana manitanina				
1483	(U) Monitoring reports must be submitted on a discharge monitoring				
1484					
1485 1486					
1480 1487					
1488	frequency greater than that required by the permit, the results of the additional monitoring must				
1489	be reported. In reporting effluent limits based on average concentrations, the permittee must				
1490	report the results using an arithmetic mean, except for fecal coliform. Average results for fecal coliform monitoring shall be reported as a geometric mean.				
1490	conform monitoring shan be reported as a geometric mean.				
1491	(V) Reporting of compliance or noncompliance with specified dates				
1493	contained in a compliance schedule of the permit shall be submitted to the administrator no later				
1494					
1495	than 14 days following each scheduled date.				
1496	(W) For any noncompliance which may endanger human health or				
1497	the environment, an oral notification must be made by the permittee to the administrator within				
1498	24-hours of the permittee becoming aware of the noncompliance. Within five (5) days, the				
1499					
- 1//	provided a state of state of the noncompliance which describes the				

noncompliance and its cause; the period and duration of noncompliance including exact dates and times; and, if the noncompliance has not been corrected, the anticipated time it is expected to continue and steps planned or taken to reduce, eliminate, and prevent recurrences of the noncompliance. Circumstances that must be reported within 24-hours of becoming aware of the noncompliance include, but are not limited to, any unanticipated bypass or upset which exceeds any effluent limit in the permit; or violation of a daily maximum discharge limitation for any of the pollutants listed by the administrator in the permit to be reported within 24-hours of becoming aware of the noncompliance.

(X) For noncompliance other than as reported in (S),(V), and (W) above, the permittee shall report all instances at the time monitoring reports are submitted. The reports shall contain the information listed in (W) above.

(Y) Where the permittee becomes aware that it failed to submit any relevant facts in a permit application, or submitted incorrect information in a permit application or in any report to the administrator, it shall promptly submit such facts or information.

cause effluent limitations to be exceeded, but only if it is for essential maintenance to assure efficient operation. If the permittee knows in advance of the need for a bypass, it shall submit prior notification, if possible at least ten (10) days before the date of the bypass. If an unanticipated bypass occurs, notice shall be provided in accordance with (W) above. Bypass is prohibited except in instances where it is necessary to prevent loss of life, personal injury or severe property damage; or where there are no feasible alternatives to bypass, such as the use of auxiliary treatment facilities, retention of untreated wastes, or maintenance during normal periods of equipment downtime. The condition of no feasible alternative is not satisfied if adequate back-up equipment should have been installed in the exercise of reasonable engineering judgement to prevent a bypass which occurred during normal periods of equipment downtime or preventive maintenance. The administrator may approve an anticipated bypass, after receiving notification, if the conditions for the allowance of bypass as described in this paragraph have been met.

An upset constitutes an affirmative defense to an action brought

for noncompliance with technology based permit effluent limitations if the permittee can demonstrate that: an upset occurred and that the permittee can identify the cause(s) of the upset; the permitted facility was, at the time of the upset, being properly operated; the permittee submitted notice of the upset as required in (W) above; In any enforcement proceeding, the permittee seeking to establish the occurrence of an upset has the burden of proof.

(AA)

(BB) A reopener clause which states that additional or more stringent permit requirements may be imposed, after following the procedures outlined in this regulation for permit modifications, if any of the following conditions is found to be present:

(I) The water quality standards of the receiving water(s) to which the permittee discharges are modified in such a manner as to require effluent limits different than those contained in the permit;

1546	
1547	(II) A TMDL or watershed management plan is developed
1548	and approved by the department which calls for different effluent limitations than those contained
1549	in the permit;
1550	
1551	(III) A TMDL or watershed management plan is revised and
1552	approved by the department which calls for different effluent limitations than those contained in
1553	the permit;
1554	
1555	(IV) The use(s) of the receiving surface water of the state is
1556	impaired and the permitted facility is contributing to the impairment;
1557	
1558	(V) Water quality standards in the receiving surface waters
1559	of the state are no longer achieved as a result of the discharge and the effluent limitations
1560	established by the permit are being met;
1561	established by the permit are being met,
1562	(VI) The effluent limitations in the permit do not address a
1563	pollutant that has the potential to cause or contribute to a violation of a water quality standard;
1564	ponutant that has the potential to cause of contribute to a violation of a water quanty standard,
	(VII) Appliable technology besed effluent limits are
1565	(VII) Applicable technology based effluent limits are
1566	promulgated which are more stringent than those imposed by the permit; or
1567	
1568	(VIII) An interstate compact or agreement on potential
1569	receiving waters is established.
1570	
1571	(CC) A reopener provision for toxicity limitations which states that
1572	additional or more stringent permit requirements, a new compliance schedule, revisions to
1573	compliance dates set forth in the permit, changes to the whole effluent toxicity protocol, or any
1574	other conditions related to the control of toxicants may be imposed, following the procedures
1575	outlined in this regulation for permit modifications, if one or more of the following events occurs:
1576	
1577	(I) Effluent toxicity was detected late in the life of the
1578	permit near or past the deadline for compliance;
1579	
1580	(II) The results of a toxicity reduction evaluation indicate
1581	that compliance with the toxic limitations contained in the permit will require an implementation
1582	schedule past the date for compliance and the department agrees with the conclusion;
1583	
1584	(III) The results of a toxicity reduction evaluation indicate
1585	that the toxicant(s) represent pollutant(s) that may be controlled with specific numeric effluent
1586	limitations and the department agrees that numeric controls are the most appropriate approach to
1587	controlling toxicity;
1588	tomorning tomorning,
1589	(IV) Following the implementation of numeric controls for a
1590	toxicant, the department agrees that a modified whole effluent toxicity protocol is necessary to
1591	compensate for those toxicants that are controlled numerically;
エンフエ	compensate for mose toxicality that are controlled humerically,

1592	
1593	(V) Other conditions or characteristics are identified through
1594	a toxicity reduction evaluation which justifies the incorporation of special conditions in the
1595	permit to address effluent toxicity.
1596	permit to address critacite toxicity.
1597	(DD) For permits which do not require the submittal of monitoring
1598	result reports at least annually, the permittee shall report all instances of non-compliance not
1599	reported under the Section 5 (c) (i) (B), (P), (U), (V) or (W) at least annually.
1600	
1601	(ii) Special conditions. In addition to conditions required in all permits, the
1602	administrator shall establish conditions, as required on a case-by-case basis, to provide for and
1603	assure compliance with all applicable requirements of the CWA, the Wyoming Environmental
1604	Quality Act, and applicable Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations which have taken
1605	effect prior to final administrative disposition of the permit. Such conditions may include but are
1606	not limited to the following.
1607	
1608	(A) Toxic effluent standards which, as a minimum, comply with
1609	those established under the CWA and may be modified in accordance with Section 5 (c) (i) (E),
1610	(BB) and (CC) and Section 12.
1611	
1612	(B) Additional limitation(s) that may be required in order for the
1613	permittee to meet state water quality and treatment standards, implement TMDL requirements,
1614	achieve compliance with a plan approved pursuant to Section 208 (b) of the CWA, or attain or
1615	maintain a specified water quality through water quality related effluent limits established under
1616	Section 302 of the CWA.
1617	
1618	(C) Any other requirements, including but not limited to monitoring
1619	points of compliance, water quality monitoring stations, flow monitoring stations and irrigation
1620	compliance points, that the administrator determines are necessary to carry out the provisions of
1621	W.S. 35-11-302 et seq. and to insure that water quality standards are met and waste load
1622	allocations prepared when required by the CWA.
1623	
1624	(D) Where a compliance schedule is required in order to achieve any
1625	of the conditions described in Section 5 (c) (ii) (A), (B), or (C) above or to achieve compliance
1626	with an effluent limitation established as set forth in Section 5 (c) (iii), the following specific
1627	requirements will be met.
1628	
1629	(I) Such schedule will, as a minimum, conform to any
1630	legally applicable schedule contained in any applicable effluent standard or water quality standard
1631	promulgated under federal or state authority. In the absence of any such legally applicable
1632	schedule, the administrator and permittee shall comply in the shortest reasonable period of time.
1633	•
1634	(II) In any case where the period of time for compliance
1635	exceeds nine (9) months, the schedule of compliance specified in the permit will set forth interim
1636	requirements and the dates for their achievement. In no event shall more than nine (9) months

1637	elapse between interim dates. To the extent practicable, the interim and final dates shall fall on				
1638	the last day of the months of March, June, September, and December.				
1639					
1640	(III) The permittee will provide the administrator with written				
1641	notice of the permittee's compliance or non-compliance with each interim and final date either				
1642	before, or within 14 days after, such compliance date is reached.				
1643					
1644	(IV) If the permittee fails or refuses to comply with an				
1645	interim or final requirement in a permit, such non-compliance shall constitute a violation of the				
1646	permit, and the administrator may modify, or revoke the permit to take direct enforcement action.				
1647					
1648					
1649	(V) Upon request of the permittee, the administrator may				
1650	revise or modify a schedule of compliance for good and valid cause (such as an act of God, strike,				
1651	flood, material shortage, or other event over which the permittee has little or no control).				
1652					
1653	(VI) On the last day of the month of February, May, August				
1654	and November, the administrator shall transmit to the Regional Administrator of the EPA, a list				
1655	of all instances, as of 30 days prior to the date of such report, of failure or refusal of a permittee to				
1656	comply with an interim or final compliance requirement. Such list shall be available to the public				
1657	for inspection and copying and include:				
1658					
1659	(1.) The name and address of non-complying				
1660	permittee;				
1661					
1662	(2.) A short description of each instance of non-				
1663	compliance;				
1664					
1665	(3.) Short description of any action proposed by the				
1666	permittee or the administrator to achieve compliance; and				
1667					
1668	(4.) Any details that tend to explain or mitigate the				
1669	non-compliance.				
1670					
1671	(E) Alternative schedules of compliance. A WYPDES permit				
1672	applicant or permittee may cease conducting regulated activities (by terminating direct discharge				
1673	for WYPDES sources) rather than continuing to operate and meet permit requirements as follows:				
1674					
1675	(I) If the permittee decides to cease conducting regulated				
1676	activities at a given time within the term of a permit which has already been issued:				
1677					
1678	(1.) The permit may be modified to contain a new or				
1679	additional schedule leading to timely cessation of activities; or				
1680					

1681	(2.) The permittee shall cease conducting permitted				
1682	activities before non-compliance with any interim or final compliance schedule requirement				
1683	already specified in the permit.				
1684					
1685	(II) If the decision to cease conducting regulated activities is				
1686	made before issuance of a permit whose term will include the termination date, the permit shall				
1687	contain a schedule leading to termination which will ensure timely compliance with applicable				
1688	requirements no later than the statutory deadline.				
1689	requirements no rater than the statutory detailmen				
1690	(III) If the permittee is undecided whether to cease				
1691	conducting regulated activities, the director may issue or modify a permit to contain two				
1692	schedules as follows:				
1693	schedules as follows.				
1694	(1) Doth schodules shall contain an identical interim				
	(1.) Both schedules shall contain an identical interim				
1695	deadline requiring a final decision on whether to cease conducting regulated activities no later				
1696	than a date which ensures sufficient time to comply with applicable requirements in a timely				
1697	manner if the decision is to continue conducting regulated activities;				
1698					
1699	(2.) One schedule shall lead to timely compliance				
1700	with applicable requirements, no later than the statutory deadline;				
1701					
1702	(3.) The second schedule shall lead to cessation of				
1703	regulated activities by a date which will ensure timely compliance with applicable requirements				
1704	no later than the statutory deadline.				
1705					
1706	(4.) Each permit containing two schedules shall				
1707	include a requirement that after the permittee has made a final decision under Section 5 (c) (ii)				
1708	(E) (III) the permittee shall follow the schedule leading to compliance if the decision is to				
1709	continue conducting regulated activities, and follow the schedule leading to termination if the				
1710	decision is to cease conducting regulated activities.				
1711					
1712	(F) Best management practices. Best management practices to				
1713	control or abate the discharge of pollutants when:				
1714					
1715	(I) Authorized under Section 304 (e) of the CWA for the				
1716	control of toxic pollutants and hazardous substances from ancillary industrial activities;				
1717					
1718	(II) Numeric effluent limitations are infeasible; or				
1719	(=)				
1720	(III) The practices are reasonably necessary to achieve				
1721	effluent limitations and standards or to carry out the purposes and intent of these regulations.				
1722	critical infinitions and standards of to early out the purposes and intent of these regulations.				
1723	(G) Grants. Any conditions imposed in federal grants to POTWs				
1723	under Sections 201 and 204 of the CWA which are reasonably necessary for the achievement of				
1724	effluent limitations required in accordance with these regulations.				
1725	cirruent inintations required in accordance with these regulations.				
1/20					

1727	(iii) Effluent limitations. Effluent limitations shall be determined for all				
1728	permits based on the following considerations.				
1729	1	Č			
1730	(A)	Techn	ology-b	ased effluent limitations. Technology-based	
1731	effluent limits shall be detern	nined in a	ccordan	ce with 40 CFR 122.44 (a), 40 CFR 122.50, 40	
1732	CFR 125, Subpart A, I and J	and, for c	ategoric	al industries adopted by EPA, 40 CFR Parts 405	
1733			•	440, 442 through, 447, 454, 455, 457 through 461,	
1734	463 through 469, and 471.	,	,		
1735	,				
1736	(B)	In add	lition to	the technology-based effluent limitations described	
1737	in Section 5 (c) (iii) (A), tech			uent limits shall be determined as follows:	
1738					
1739		(I)	For di	ischarges from new and existing POTWs as	
1740	described in Appendix E.	. ,			
1741	H				
1742		(II)	For C	AFO point sources as described in Appendix G.	
1743		()		r	
1744		(III)	For di	ischarges from oil and gas production facilities as	
1745	described in Appendix H.	()		5 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
1746	H				
1747		(IV)	For di	ischarges from coal mines as described in	
1748	Appendix J.	(= .)			
1749	-FF				
1750		(V)	For di	ischarges containing toxic pollutants as described	
1751	in Appendix N.			8 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
1752	FF .				
1753	(C)	Water	· auality	based effluent limitations. For facilities where	
1754				rohibited subject to the provisions of technology	
1755	_		_	tion 5 (c) (iii) (A) and (B), water quality-based	
1756				rements in addition to, or more stringent, than	
1757			•	ssary to ensure that violations of water quality	
1758				ons shall be determined based on standards adopted	
1759				Regulations, Chapter 1 and the applicable	
1760	provisions of Wyoming Water				
1761	provisions or wyoming water	a Quanty	ixuics u	nd Regulations, Chapter 6.	
1762		(I)	Water	quality based effluent limitations shall be	
1763	established for constituents in	. ,		mined to have a reasonable potential of adversely	
1764		_		of causing violations of water quality standards.	
1765				ons, the administrator shall consider the following:	
1766	when making reasonable pot	ciitiai uct	Cililiati	ons, the administrator shall consider the ronowing.	
1767			(1.)	Existing controls on point and non-point sources	
1768	of pollution;		(1.)	Existing controls on point and non-point sources	
1769	or polition,				
1770			(2)	The variability of the pollutant or pollutant	
1770	parameter in the effluent;		(2.)	The variability of the pollutant of pollutant	
1771	parameter in the enfuent,				
1//2					

1773		(3.)	For evaluating whole effluent toxicity, the
1774	sensitivity of the species to toxicity testi-	ng; and	d
1775			
1776		(4.)	Where appropriate, the dilution of the effluent in
1777	the receiving water.		
1778			
1779		(5.)	Applicable designated uses and water quality
1780	standards.		
1781			
1782	(II)	Where	e numeric criteria are promulgated for the receiving
1783	surface waters of the state, the administr	ator wil	ill determine, using the most stringent numeric
1784	standard appropriate to the receiving sur	face wa	raters of the state, water quality based effluent
1785	limitations based on one of the following	g metho	ods:
1786			
1787		(1.)	Effluent limitations described in Section 5 (c)
1788	(iii) (C) (II) (2.) and (3.) shall be established	shed on	nly after having taken into account the following
1789	requirements of Wyoming Water Quality	y Rules	s and Regulations, Chapter 1:
1790			•
1791			a. Mixing zones; and
1792			•
1793			b. Antidegradation
1794			
1795		(2.)	Where loading limitations can be instituted on
1796	the receiving surface waters of the state	through	h the implementation of limitations on effluent
1797		_	he receiving surface waters of the state, effluent
1798	-		balance calculations where dilution by water in the
1799	receiving surface waters of the state is co		•
1800			
1801		(3.)	Where the administrator determines that it is
1802	impractical to establish limitations on ef		volumes for discharges to receiving surface waters
1803	-		ations shall be established. In no case shall a
1804	concentration-based effluent limitation b	e estab	blished which exceeds the most stringent of the
1805			protect the designated uses of the receiving surface
1806	waters of the state.	•	
1807			
1808	(III)	Where	e an evaluation for reasonable potential indicates
1809			indards promulgated under Wyoming Water
1810	-	-	uent limitations addressing the limitations of the
1811	narrative standards will be included in the		
1812		Ι.	
1813	(IV)	Where	e the administrator determines that an effluent
1814	` '		ersely impact a designated use of receiving surface
1815	-		s been promulgated in Wyoming Water Quality
1816			ituent, the administrator may establish a numeric
1817	effluent limitation based on values deriv		
1818			II K

1819	(D) In the case of POTWs, permit effluent limitations, standards, or			
1820	prohibitions shall be calculated based on design flow.			
1821				
1822	(E) Except in the case of POTWs or as provided in Section 5 (c) (i)			
1823	(E), calculation of any permit limitations, standards, or prohibitions which are based on			
1824	production (or other measure of operation) shall be based not upon the designed production			
1825	capacity but rather upon a reasonable measure of actual production of the facility. For new			
1826	sources or new dischargers, actual production shall be estimated using projected production. The			
1827	time period of the measure of production shall correspond to the time period of the calculated			
1828	permit limitations; for example, monthly production shall be used to calculate average monthly			
1829	discharge limitations.			
1830	discharge immations.			
1831				
1832	(F) All permit effluent limitations, standards, or prohibitions for a			
1833	metal shall be expressed in terms of "total recoverable metal" as defined in 40 CFR Part 136			
1834	unless;			
1835	uness,			
1836	(I) The applicable water quality standard described in			
1837	Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations, Chapter 1 is based on the dissolved form;			
1838	Tyoning water Quarty reason and regulations, empter 1 is based on the dissorted form,			
1839	(II) An applicable effluent standard or limitation has been			
1840	promulgated under these regulations and specifies the limitation for the metal in the dissolved or			
1841	valenti or total form;			
1842	valenti of total form,			
1843	(III) In establishing permit limitations on a case-by-case basis			
1844	under Section 5 (c) (iii) of these regulations it is necessary to express the limitation on the metal			
1845	in the dissolved or valenti or total form to carry out the provisions of these regulations; or			
1846	in the discorred of remains of count form to eathly out the provisions of these regulations, or			
1847	(IV) All approved analytical methods for the metal inherently			
1848	measure only its dissolved form (e.g., hexavalent chromium).			
1849	, and a second of the second o			
1850	(G) For continuous discharges (discharges that occur without			
1851	interruption throughout the operating hours of the facility, except for infrequent shutdowns for			
1852	maintenance, process changes, or other similar activities) all permit effluent limitations,			
1853	standards, and prohibitions, including those necessary to achieve water quality standards, shall			
1854	unless impracticable be stated as:			
1855	white and the second of the second se			
1856	(I) Daily maximum and average monthly discharge			
1857	limitations for all dischargers other than POTWs; and			
1858				
1859	(II) Average weekly and average monthly discharge			
1860	limitations for POTWs.			
1861				
1862	(H) Discharges which are not continuous shall be particularly			
1863	described and limited, considering the following factors as appropriate:			
1864				

1865	(I) Frequency (for example, a batch discharge shall not
1866	occur more than once every three (3) weeks);
1867	
1868	(II) Total mass (for example, not to exceed 100 kilograms of
1869	zinc and 200 kilograms of chromium per batch discharge);
1870	
1871	(III) Maximum rate of discharge of pollutants during the
1872	discharge (for example, not to exceed two (2) kilograms of zinc per minute); and
1873	
1874	
1875	(IV) Prohibition or limitation of specified pollutants by mass
1876	concentration or other appropriate measure (for example, shall not contain at any time more than
1877	0.1 mg/l zinc or more than 250 grams (1/4 kilogram) of zinc in any discharge).
1878	
1879	(I) Mass limitations.
1880	
1881	(I) All pollutants limited in permits shall have limitations,
1882	standards or prohibitions expressed in terms of mass except:
1883	
1884	(1.) For pH, temperature, radiation, or other
1885	pollutants which cannot appropriately be expressed by mass;
1886	
1887	(2.) When applicable standards and limitations are
1888	expressed in terms of other units of measurement; or
1889	•
1890	(3.) If an applicable effluent standard or limitation
1891	has been promulgated under these regulations and limitations expressed in terms of mass are
1892	infeasible because the mass of the pollutant discharged cannot be related to a measure of
1893	operation (for example, discharges of total suspended solids [TSS] from certain mining
1894	operations), and permit conditions ensure that dilution will not be used as a substitute for
1895	treatment.
1896	
1897	(II) Pollutants limited in terms of mass additionally may be
1898	limited in terms of other units of measurement, and the permit shall require the permittee to
1899	comply with both limitations.
1900	
1901	(J) Pollutants in intake water.
1902	
1903	(I) Credit shall be granted only if the discharger
1904	demonstrates that the intake water is drawn from the same body of water into which the discharge
1905	is made.
1906	
1907	(II) Upon request of the discharger, technology-based
1908	effluent limitations or standards shall be adjusted to reflect credit for pollutants in the
1909	discharger=s intake water if:
1910	

(1.) The applicable effluent limitations and standards				
contained in Section 5 (c) (iii) of these regulations provide that they shall be applied on a net				
basis; or				
(2.) The discharger demonstrates that the control				
system it proposes or uses to meet applicable technology-based limitations and standards would,				
if properly installed and operated, meet the limitations and standards in the absence of pollutants				
in the intake waters.				
in the intake waters.				
(III) Credit for generic pollutants such as biochemical oxygen				
demand (BOD5) or TSS shall not be granted unless the permittee demonstrates that the				
constituents of the generic measure in the effluent are substantially similar to the constituents of				
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
the generic measure in the intake water or unless appropriate additional limits are placed on				
process wastewater pollutants either at the outfall or elsewhere.				
(IV) Credit shall be granted only to the extent necessary to				
meet the applicable limitation or standard, up to a maximum value equal to the influent value.				
Additional monitoring may be necessary to determine eligibility for credits and compliance with				
permit limits.				
(K) Internal waste streams.				
(I) When permit effluent limitations or standards imposed at				
the point of discharge are impractical or infeasible, effluent limitations or standards for discharges				
or pollutants may be imposed on internal waste streams before mixing with other waste streams				
or cooling water streams. In those instances, the monitoring required by Section 5 (c) or other				
applicable provisions of these regulations shall also be applied to the internal waste streams.				
(II) Limits on internal waste streams will be imposed only				
when the fact sheet sets forth the exceptional circumstances which make such limitations				
necessary, such as when the final discharge point is inaccessible (for example, under ten [10]				
meters of water), the wastes at the point of discharge are so diluted as to make monitoring				
impracticable, or the interferences among pollutants at the point of discharge would make				
detection or analysis impracticable.				
• •				
(L) After making the considerations described in Section 5 (c) (iii)				
(A), (B) and (C), the administrator shall establish in the draft permit the most stringent of the				
effluent limitations of those derived.				
V11.0V10 11.11.0010 01 01.000 0011 00.11				
(M) Effluent limitations cannot be incorporated into modified or				
reissued permits which violate anti-backsliding provisions of Section 402 (o) of the CWA.				
reissued permits which violate anti-backshamig provisions of Section 402 (0) of the C 1111.				
(N) If any applicable toxic effluent standard or prohibition (including				
any schedule of compliance specified in such effluent standard or prohibition) is promulgated				
under W.S.35-11-302 or Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations, Chapters 1 and 2 for a				
toxic pollutant and that standard or prohibition is more stringent than any limitation on the				

1957	pollutant in the permit, the director shall institute proceedings under these regulations to modify				
1958	or revoke and reissue the permit to conform to the toxic effluent standard or prohibition.				
1959					
1960	(O) When the department determines, using the procedures in				
1961	Section 5 (c) (iii) (C) (I) and (II), that a discharge causes, has the reasonable potential to cause, or				
1962	contributes to an in-stream excursion above the numeric standard for whole effluent toxicity, if				
1963	any such criterion has been adopted, the permit must contain effluent limits for whole effluent				
1964	toxicity.				
1965					
1966	(P) Except as provided in this subparagraph, when the department				
1967	determines, using the procedures in Section 5 (c) (iii) (C), toxicity testing data, or other				
1968	information, that a discharge causes, has the reasonable potential to cause, or contributes to an in-				
1969	stream violation of a narrative water quality standard, the permit shall contain limitations, which				
1970	include effluent limits, for whole effluent toxicity. Such limitations are to be derived by the				
1971	department and based upon the department=s determination of what constitutes an acceptable				
1972	level of whole effluent toxicity. Limits on whole effluent toxicity are not necessary where the				
1973	department determines, using the procedures in Section 5 (c) (iii) (C), that chemical-specific				
1974	limits for the effluent are sufficient to attain and maintain applicable numeric and narrative water				
1975	quality standards.				
1976					
1977	(Q) Unless otherwise stated in the permit, effluent limitations shall				
1978	be met at the outfall from the final treatment unit prior to admixture with water in the receiving				
1979	surface waters of the state or with effluent from other outfalls.				
1980					
1981	(iv) Application of standards.				
1982					
1983	(A) In the application of those standards described in Section 5 (c)				
1984	(ii) (B) and (C), and Section 5 (c) (iii), the administrator shall specify:				
1985					
1986	(I) The daily average and maximum quantitative limitations				
1987	for the level of allowable pollution and/or waste in an authorized discharge in terms of weight,				
1988	where applicable;				
1989					
1990	(II) The basis for calculation of effluent limitations;				
1991					
1992	(III) Self-monitoring, reporting, and recording requirements				
1993	for each authorized discharge as promulgated in Section 5 (c) (v).				
1994					
1995	(B) The owner of a publicly owned treatment works shall require any				
1996	industrial user of such works to comply with the following:				
1997					
1998	(I) Any system of user charges instituted by the owner				
1999	(permittee) shall insure that each recipient of waste treatment services will pay its proportionate				
2000	share of the costs of the operation and maintenance of the publicly owned treatment works;				
2001	•				

2002	(II) Any toxic or pretreatment standards established under
2003	Sections 5 (c) (ii) (A) and 5 (c) (iii) (O) and (P) of these regulations and any schedule required to
2004	achieve compliance with those standards; and
2005	
2006	(III) Shall allow the permittee and the administrator or his
2007	designated representative the same rights of entry, inspection, sampling, and copying provided for
2008	in Section 5 (c) (i) (F).
2009	
2010	(v) Monitoring, recording, and reporting.
2011	(')
2012	(A) All permits shall specify required monitoring including type,
2013	intervals, and frequency sufficient to yield data which are representative of the monitored activity
2014	including, when appropriate, continuous monitoring. Monitoring results required by the permit
2015	shall be reported on a discharge monitoring report (DMR) or other forms provided or specified by
2016	the division.
2017	
2018	(B) Any discharge authorized by a permit shall be subject to such
2019	monitoring requirements as may be required by the administrator including the installation, use,
2020	and maintenance of monitoring equipment.
2021	
2022	(C) Any major facility authorized by a permit, or for which
2023	monitoring is requested in writing by the Regional Administrator of the EPA, or which contains
2024	toxic pollutants for which an effluent standard has been promulgated pursuant to these
2025	regulations, shall be monitored at intervals sufficiently frequent to characterize the discharge, for
2026	the following:
2027	
2028	(I) Flow;
2029	
2030	(II) All of the following pollutants:
2031	
2032	(1.) Pollutants which are subject to reduction or
2033	elimination by the terms of the permit;
2034	
2035	(2.) Pollutants which the administrator finds could
2036	have an impact on the surface waters of the state;
2037	
2038	(3.) Pollutants specified by the Administrator of the
2039	EPA as subject to monitoring; and
2040	
2041	(4.) Any pollutants, in addition to those above, that
2042	the Regional Administrator of the EPA requests in writing be monitored.
2043	
2044	(D) The permittee shall maintain records of all information resulting
2045	from monitoring activities required by his permit for a period of three (3) years, or for a longer
2046	period if so requested by the administrator, or Regional Administrator of the EPA. Such records
2047	shall include, but are not limited to, the following:

2048			
2049		(I)	The date, location, and time of the sampling;
2050			
2051		(II)	The dates and by whom analyses were performed;
2052			
2053		(III)	Analytical techniques used;
2054			
2055		(IV)	The results of such analyses;
2056			
2057		(V)	Name of the person collecting the sample(s);
2058			
2059		(VI)	Sampling handling and preservation conducted; and
2060			
2061		(VII)	Detection limits for analyses conducted.
2062			
2063	(E)		otherwise approved by the administrator, the permittee
2064	shall be required to periodically	report,	at a frequency of not less than once per year, to the
2065	administrator, on the proper forms, the results of any monitoring required by the permit. In		
2066	addition, the administrator may require the submission of such additional monitoring information		
2067	he may consider necessary. Where applicable, the procedures specified will be consistent with		
2068	any national program specified by the Administrator of the EPA in regulations promulgated under		
2069	the CWA.		
2070			
2071	(F)	All rep	ports required by permits and other information requested
2072	by the administrator shall be sig	ned and	d certified as described in Section 14 of these regulations.
2073			
2074	(G)	Sample	e collection and analyses shall be conducted in accordance
2075	with 40 CFR 136, unless otherw	vise spec	cified in these regulations.
2076			
2077	(H)	Any pe	erson falsifying, tampering with, or knowingly rendering
2078	inaccurate any monitoring device	ce or me	ethod required to be maintained under this permit is a
2079	violation of the permit, these re	gulation	s and the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act.
2080	Section 6. Storm Water	er Disch	narges.
2081	The following process s	shall be	used in the application for development of and issuance of
2082			dentifying storm water discharges covered by this rule.
2083	storm water discharge permits a	ina tor i	dentifying storm water discharges covered by this rule.
2083	(a) Deadlines to ap	nly	
2085	(a) Deadlines to ap	pry.	
	(i) Evant	oc prov	ided in Section 6 (h) for any storm water discharge
2086	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	•	ided in Section 6 (b), for any storm water discharge
2087	_		ity as described in Section 6 (f) (i) or industrial activity as
2088		_	to the effective date of this rule, should have made
2089	* *	•	ober 1, 1992; prior to initiation of the activity or in
2090	accordance with Section 4 (o) (i	i) (R) of	tnese regulations.
2091			

2092	(ii) For any storm water discharge associated with large or small				
2093	construction activities or industrial activities from a facility that is owned or operated by a				
2094	municipality with a population of less than 100,000 that is not authorized by a general or				
2095	individual permit, other than an airport, power plant, or sanitary landfill, a permit application				
2096	must be submitted to the administrator by March 10, 2003.				
2097	•				
2098	(iii) Storm water discharges associated with small construction activity as				
2099	described in Section 6 (f) (ii), that are not already authorized by a storm water general or				
2100	individual permit, require permit authorization as of March 10, 2003, except;				
2101	The state of the s				
2102	(A) Storm water discharges subject to Section 4 (b) (v) which are not				
2103	required to submit a NOI for coverage in accordance with the provisions of the applicable general				
2104	permit, and				
2105	pormit, and				
2106	(B) Storm water discharges associated with small construction				
2107	activity at oil and gas exploration, production, processing, and treatment operations or				
2107	transmission facilities subject to the provisions of, Section 6 (a) (iv) of these regulations.				
2109	transmission facilities subject to the provisions of, section o (a) (17) of these regulations.				
2110	(iv) Storm water discharges associated with small construction activity at oil				
2111	and gas exploration, production, processing, and treatment operations or transmission facilities,				
2112	require permit authorization as of March 10, 2005.				
2112	require permit audiorization as of water 10, 2003.				
	(v) For any stame water discharge associated with regulated small MC4 as				
2114	(v) For any storm water discharge associated with regulated small MS4 as				
2115	described in Section 6 (h) (i) and that is not authorized by a storm water general or individual				
2116	permit, a permit application made pursuant to Section 6 (b) (iv) must be submitted to the				
2117	administrator by March 10, 2003 or within 180 days of notice, unless the administrator grants a				
2118	later date, if designated under Section 6 (h) (i) (C) or (D).				
2119					
2120	(vi) A permit application shall be submitted to the administrator within 60				
2121	days of notice of a storm water discharge which the administrator determines contributes to a				
2122	violation of a water quality standard or is a significant contributor of pollutants to surface waters				
2123	of the state or where the administrator determines that storm water controls are needed for the				
2124	discharge based on wasteload allocations that are part of TMDLs that address the pollutant(s) of				
2125	concern; unless permission for a later date is granted by the administrator.				
2126					
2127	(b) Individual permit application. A complete application for an individual permit				
2128	must contain, at a minimum, the following information, unless the administrator determines that				
2129	certain items are unnecessary in accordance with Section 6 (c):				
2130					
2131	(i) General requirements of all applications:				
2132					
2133	(A) Name of the company, entity, or individual seeking a permit;				
2134					
2135	(B) Mailing address and telephone number of company, entity, or				
2136	individual seeking permit;				
2137					

2138	(C) The facility name, location, and telephone number if applicable;				
2139					
2140	(D) Applicant status as federal, state, private, public, or other entity;				
2141					
2142	(E) Name and signature in accordance with the requirements of				
2143	Section 14 of this chapter;				
2144					
2145	(F) Authorization of a duly authorized representative under the				
2146	Signatory Requirements of Section 14 of these rules, where applicable;				
2147					
2148	(G) Location, expressed in latitude and longitude to the nearest 15				
2149	seconds, of the facility to be covered under the permit;				
2150					
2151	(H) Location, expressed as quarter/quarter, section, township, and				
2152	range, in the applicable Public Land Survey (PLS), of the facility to be covered under the permit;				
2153					
2154	(I) A description of the activities conducted by the applicant which				
2155	require it to obtain an WYPDES permit;				
2156					
2157	(ii) Individual permit application requirements for industrial activities.				
2158	Individual permit application requirements for industrial activities (not including large or small				
2159	construction activities as described in Section 6 (f). Except as provided in Section 6 (b) (iii) and				
2160	in Section 6 (g) (iv) (M) and (N), the operator of a storm water discharge associated with				
2161	industrial activity subject to this section shall provide, at a minimum:				
2162					
2163	(A) Up to four (4) SIC codes which best reflect the principal				
2164	products or services provided by the facility;				
2165					
2166	(B) A site map showing topography (or indicating the outline of				
2167	drainage areas served by the outfall(s) covered in the application if a topographic map is				
2168	unavailable) of the facility including: each of its drainage and discharge structures; the drainage				
2169	area of each storm water outfall; paved areas and buildings within the drainage area of each storm				
2170 2171	water outfall; each past or present area used for outdoor storage or disposal of significant				
	materials; each existing structural control measure to reduce pollutants in storm water runoff;				
2172 2173	materials loading and access areas; areas where pesticides, herbicides, soil conditioners and				
2173 2174	fertilizers are applied; each of its hazardous waste treatment, storage or disposal facilities				
2174	(including each area not required to have a RCRA permit which is used for accumulating hazardous waste under 40 CFR 262.34); each well where fluids from the facility are injected				
2175 2176	underground; springs, and other surface water bodies which receive storm water discharges from				
2177	the facility;				
2178	the facility,				
2178	(C) An estimate of the area of impervious surfaces (including paved				
2180	areas and building roofs), the total area drained by each outfall and a narrative description of the				
2180	following: significant materials that in the three (3) years prior to the submittal of this application				
2182	have been treated, stored or disposed in a manner to allow exposure to storm water; method of				
2183	treatment, storage or disposal of such materials; materials management practices employed, in the				
_103	indication, storage of disposar of such materials, materials management practices employed, in the				

2184	three (3) years prior to the submittal of this application to minimize contact by these materials			
2185	with storm water runoff; materials loading and access areas; the location, manner and frequency			
2186	in which pesticides, herbicides, soil conditioners and fertilizers are applied; the location and a			
2187	description of existing structural and non-structural control measures to reduce pollutants in storm			
2188	water runoff; and, a description of the treatment the storm water receives, including the ultimate			
2189	disposal of any solid or fluid wastes other than by discharge;			
2190	usposition and some of many some contractions of discourage,			
2191	(D) A certification that all outfalls that should contain storm water			
2192	discharges associated with industrial activity have been tested or evaluated for the presence of			
2193	non storm water discharges which are not covered by a permit. Tests for such non storm water			
2194	discharges may include smoke tests, fluorometric dye tests, analysis of accurate schematics, as			
2195	well as other appropriate tests. The certification shall include a description of the method used,			
2196	the date of any testing, and the on site drainage points that were directly observed during a test;			
2197	the date of any testing, and the on site dramage points that were directly observed during a test,			
2198	(E) Existing information regarding significant leaks or spills of toxic			
2199	or hazardous pollutants at the facility that have taken place within the three (3) years prior to the			
2200	submittal of this application;			
	submittal of this application,			
2201	(E) Overtitative data has ad an assemble collected during storm syents			
2202	(F) Quantitative data based on samples collected during storm events			
2203	and collected in accordance with Section 6 (b) (ii) (G) from all outfalls containing storm water			
2204	discharge associated with industrial activity for the following parameters, except when waived by			
2205	the administrator under the provisions of Section 6 (c) of these regulations.			
2206				
2207	(I) Any pollutant limited in an effluent guideline to which			
2208	the facility is subject;			
2209				
2210	(II) Any pollutant listed in the facility's WYPDES permit for			
2211	its process wastewater (if the facility is operating under an existing WYPDES permit);			
2212	(W) 011 1 W DOD 7 GOD 773 1 1 1 1			
2213	(III) Oil and grease, pH, BOD5, COD, TSS, total phosphorus,			
2214	total Kjeldahl nitrogen, and nitrate plus nitrite nitrogen;			
2215				
2216	(IV) Information on the discharge required under Appendix B			
2217	(a) (vi) of these regulations;			
2218				
2219	(V) Flow measurements or estimates of the flow rate, the			
2220	total amount of discharge for the storm event(s) sampled, and the method of flow measurement or			
2221	estimation; and			
2222				
2223	(VI) The date and duration (in hours) of the storm event(s)			
2224	sampled, rainfall measurements or estimates of the storm event (in inches) which generated the			
2225	sampled runoff and the duration between the storm event sampled and the end of the previous			
2226	measurable (greater than 0.1 inch rainfall) storm event (in hours).			
2227				
2228	(G) Sampling storm water discharges.			
2229				

2230	(I) All samples shall be collected from the discharge				
2231	resulting from a storm event that is greater than 0.1 inch and at least 72 hours from the previously				
2232	measurable (greater than 0.1 inch rainfall) storm event. Where feasible, the variance in the				
2233	duration of the event and the total rainfall of the event should not exceed 50 percent from the				
2234	average or median rainfall event in that area.				
2235					
2236	(II) For all applicants, a flow weighted composite shall be				
2237	taken for either the entire discharge or for the first three hours of the discharge. The flow				
2238	weighted composite sample for a storm water discharge may be taken with a continuous sampler				
2239	or as a combination of a minimum of three sample aliquots taken in each hour of discharge for the				
2240	entire discharge or for the first three (3) hours of the discharge, with each aliquot being separated				
2241	by a minimum period of 15 minutes.				
2242	of winding period of to minutes.				
2243	(III) A minimum of one grab sample may be taken for storm				
2244	water discharges from holding ponds or other impoundments with a retention period greater than				
2245	24-hours.				
2246	Zi nouis.				
2247	(IV) For a flow weighted composite sample, only one				
2248	analysis of the composite of aliquots is required.				
2249	unarysis of the composite of anquots is required.				
2250	(V) For storm water discharge samples taken from				
2251	discharges associated with industrial activities, quantitative data must be reported for the grab				
2252	sample taken during the first thirty minutes (or as soon thereafter as practicable) of the discharge				
2253	for all pollutants specified in Section 6 (b) (ii) (F).				
2254	for an pondants specified in Section 6 (b) (ii) (1).				
2255	(VI) The director may allow or establish appropriate site				
2256	specific sampling procedures or requirements, including sampling locations, the season in which				
2257	the sampling takes place, the minimum duration between the previous measurable storm event				
2258	and the storm event sampled, the minimum or maximum level of precipitation required for an				
2259	appropriate storm event, the form of precipitation sampled (snow melt or rain fall), protocols for				
2260	collecting samples under 40 CFR136 of federal regulations, and additional time for submitting				
2261	data on a case by case basis.				
2262	data on a case by case basis.				
2263	(VII) An applicant is expected to "know or have reason to				
2264	believe" that a pollutant is present in an effluent based on an evaluation of the expected use,				
2265	production, or storage of the pollutant, or on any previous analyses for the pollutant. (For				
2266	example, any pesticide manufactured by a facility may be expected to be present in contaminated				
2267	storm water runoff from the facility.)				
2268	storm water runorr from the racinty.)				
2269	(H) Operators of new sources or new discharges (as defined in				
2209	Section 3) which are composed entirely of storm water must include estimates for the pollutants				
2270					
	or parameters listed in Section 6 (b) (ii) (F) instead of actual sampling data, along with the source				
2272 2273	of each estimate. Operators of new sources or new discharges composed in part or entirely of				
2213 2274	storm water must provide quantitative data for the parameters listed in paragraph Section 6 (b) (ii) (F) of this section within two (2) years after commencement of discharge, unless such data has				

2275	already been reported under the monitoring requirements of the WYPDES permit for the				
2276	discharge.				
2277					
2278	(iii)	Indivi	dual permit application requirements for large and small		
2279	construction activities.	When	required to obtain coverage under an individual WYPDES storm		
2280	water permit, the opera	tor of a	n existing or new storm water discharge that is associated with		
2281			er Section 6 (f) (i) or small construction activity under Section 6 (f)		
2282	(ii) shall, at a minimum, provide a narrative description of:				
2283	, , ,	, I	1		
2284		(A)	The location (including a map) and the nature of the construction		
2285	activity;	()	(
2286	,				
2287		(B)	The total area of the site and the area of the site that is expected		
2288	to undergo excavation	` ′	-		
2289	to undergo executation	during (the fire of the permit,		
2290		(C)	Proposed measures, including best management practices, to		
2291	control pollutants in sta	` /	er discharges during construction, and a brief description of		
2292	_		on and sediment control requirements;		
2293	applicable state and loc	ai ciosi	on and sediment condorrequirements,		
2293 2294		(D)	Proposed measures to control pollutants in storm water		
2294	disaborase that will as	` /	•		
	discharges that will occur after construction operations have been completed, including a brief description of applicable state or local erosion and sediment control requirements;				
2296	description of applicab	ie state	or local erosion and sediment control requirements;		
2297		(E)	The increase in immensions once of on the construction odds and		
2298	: th	(E)	The increase in impervious area after the construction addressed		
2299	in the permit application is completed, the nature of fill material and existing data describing the				
2300	soil or the quality of th	e discha	irge; and		
2301		(E)	The many of the manifold and the		
2302		(F)	The name of the receiving water.		
2303	<i>(</i> ')	T 1	1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		
2304	(iv)	Indivi	dual permit application requirements for regulated small MS4s.		
2305					
2306		(A)	The application requirements of Section 4 (o) (iii); and		
2307					
2308		(B)	The operator of an existing or new storm water discharge from a		
2309	regulated small MS4 u	nder Se	ction 6 (h) shall, at a minimum, provide a narrative description of:		
2310					
2311			(I) A general description of the best management practices		
2312	(BMPs) that the permit	tee or a	nother municipality will implement for each of the storm water		
2313	minimum control meas	sures at	Section 6 (j) (i);		
2314					
2315			(II) The measurable goals for each of the selected BMPs		
2316	including, as appropria	te, the r	nonths and years in which the permittee will undertake required		
2317	actions, including inter	im mile	stones and the frequency of the action;		
2318	•				

2319	(III) The person or persons responsible for implementing or				
2320	coordinating the permittee=s storm water management program. A position, rather than an				
2321	individual, may also be designated; and				
2322					
2323	(IV) A description of the funding sources expected for				
2324	implementation of the permittee=s program.				
2325					
2326	(v) Additional information requirements. Applicants shall provide				
2327	such other information the administrator may reasonably require to determine whether to issue a				
2328	permit and the administrator may require any facility subject to Section 6 (b) (iii) to comply with				
2329	Section 6 (b) (ii). The additional information may include additional quantitative data and				
2330	bioassays to assess the relative toxicity of discharges to aquatic life and requirements to				
2331	determine the cause of the toxicity.				
2332					
2333	(c) Waiver of application requirements. The administrator may waive any part of				
2334	the application requirements contained in Section 6 (b) (ii) (F) and (H) when the applicant makes				
2335	a conclusive demonstration to the administrator that certain parameters listed in Section 6 (b) (ii)				
2336	(F) are not reasonably likely to be present in storm water discharges associated with the industrial				
2337	activity.				
2338	·				
2339	(d) Reporting requirements.				
2340					
2341	(i) Requirements to report monitoring results for storm water discharges				
2342	associated with industrial activity or large or small construction activity which are subject to an				
2343	effluent guideline shall be established on a case-by-case basis with a frequency dependent on the				
2344	nature and effect of the discharge, but in no case less than one (1) a year.				
2345					
2346	(ii) Requirements to report monitoring results for storm water discharges				
2347	associated with industrial activity or large or small construction activity (other than those required				
2348	in Section 6 (d) (i)) shall be established on a case-by-case basis with a frequency dependent on				
2349	the nature and effect of the discharge. At a minimum, a permit for such a discharge must require:				
2350					
2351	(A) The discharger to conduct an annual inspection of the facility site				
2352	to identify areas contributing to a storm water discharge associated with industrial activity or				
2353	large or small construction activity and evaluate whether measures to reduce pollutant loadings				
2354	identified in a storm water pollution prevention plan are adequate and properly implemented in				
2355	accordance with the terms of the permit or whether additional control measures are needed;				
2356					
2357	(B) The discharger to maintain for a period of three years a record				
2358	summarizing the results of the inspection, a certification that the facility is in compliance with the				
2359	plan and the permit, and identification of any incidents of non-compliance;				
2360					
2361	(C) Such report and certification be signed in accordance with				
2362	Section 14; and				
2363					
2364					

least annually.

2365	(D) Permits for storm water discharges associated with industrial
2366	activity from inactive mining operations may, where annual inspections are impracticable, require
2367	certification once every three years, that the facility is in compliance with the permit, or
2368	alternative requirements.
2369	
2370	(iii) Permits which do not require the submittal of monitoring result
2371	reports at least annually shall require that the permittee report all instances of non-compliance
2372	with the terms and conditions of the permit under which the storm water discharges are covered a

(e) General permit application requirements. See Section 4 for general permit application requirements for storm water discharges.

(f) Regulated construction activities. The following discharges, composed entirely of storm water and associated with construction activities, are point sources requiring an WYPDES permit.

(i) Storm water discharge associated with large construction activity means the discharge of storm water from construction activities, including clearing, grading, and excavating, that result in land disturbance of five (5) or more acres of total land area. Large construction activity also includes the disturbance of less than five (5) acres of total land area that is a part of a larger common plan of development or sale if the larger common plan will ultimately disturb five (5) acres or more.

(ii) A storm water discharge associated with small construction activity.

(A) Storm water discharge associated with small construction activity means the discharge of storm water from construction activities, including clearing, grading, and excavating, that result in land disturbance of equal to or greater than one (1) acre and less than five (5) acres. Small construction activity also includes the disturbance of less than one (1) acre of total land area that is part of a larger common plan of development or sale, if the larger common plan will ultimately disturb equal to or greater than one and less than five (5) acres. Small construction activity does not include routine maintenance that is performed to maintain the original line and grade, hydraulic capacity, or original purpose of the facility.

(B) The administrator, at his discretion, may waive the otherwise applicable requirements in a general permit, as described in Section 4, for a storm water discharge from a small construction activity that disturbs less than five (5) acres where the value of the rainfall erosivity factor (>R= in the Revised Universal Soil Loss Equation) is less than five (5) during the period of construction activity. The rainfall erosivity factor must be determined in accordance with Chapter 2 of the *Agriculture Handbook Number 703, Predicting Soil Erosion by Water: A Guide to Conservation Planning With the Revised Universal Soil Loss Equation* (*RUSLE*), pages 21-64, dated January 1997 or a similar state-approved method. The operator or owner must certify to the administrator that the construction activity will only take place during a period when the value of the rainfall erosivity factor is less than five (5). If unforeseeable conditions occur that are outside of the control of the applicant for a waiver, and that will extend

2-53

address the pollutants of concern.

the construction activity beyond the dates initially applied for, the owner or operator must reapply for the waiver or obtain coverage under a general permit for storm water discharges. The waiver re-application or permit application must be submitted within two (2) business days after the unforeseeable condition becomes known. This waiver does not relieve the operator or owner from complying with requirements of local agencies. Any construction activity designated by the administrator, based on the (iii) potential for contribution to a violation of a water quality standard or for significant contribution of pollutants to surface waters of the state or where the administrator determines that storm water

(iv) A storm water discharge associated with small or large construction activities that are owned or operated by a municipality with a population of less than 100,000 (based on the 1990 census).

controls are needed for the discharge based on wasteload allocations that are part of TMDLs that

(v) For storm water discharges associated with large and/or small construction activities from point sources which discharge through a non-municipal or non-publicly owned separate storm sewer system, the director, at his discretion, may issue: a single WYPDES permit, with each discharger a co permittee to a permit issued to the operator of the portion of the system that discharges into surface waters of the state; or, individual permits to each discharger of storm water associated with large and/or small construction activity through the non municipal conveyance system.

(A) Each facility with a storm water discharge to a storm water discharge system that is not an MS4 shall be covered by a WYPDES permit, or a permit issued to the operator of the portion of the system that discharges to surface waters of the state, with each discharger to the non municipal conveyance a co permittee to that permit.

(B) Where there is more than one (1) operator of a single system of such conveyances, all operators of storm water discharges associated with industrial activity must submit applications.

(C) Any permit covering more than one (1) operator shall identify the effluent limitations, or other permit conditions, if any, that apply to each operator.

(g) Regulated industrial activities. Discharges composed entirely of storm water and associated with industrial activities are point sources requiring a WYPDES permit.

(i) "Storm water discharge associated with industrial activity" means the discharge from any conveyance which is used for collecting and conveying storm water and which is directly related to manufacturing, processing, or raw materials storage areas at an industrial plant. The term does not include discharges from facilities or activities excluded from the WYPDES program under these regulations.

(A) For the categories of industries identified in Section 6 (g) (ii) (A)
through (I), the term "storm water discharge associated with industrial activity" includes, but is
not limited to, storm water discharges from industrial plant yards; immediate access roads and rail
lines used or traveled by carriers of raw materials, manufactured products, waste material, or by-
products used or created by the facility; material handling sites; refuse sites; sites used for the
application or disposal of process waste waters; sites used for the storage and maintenance of
material handling equipment; sites used for residual treatment, storage, or disposal; shipping and
receiving areas; manufacturing buildings; storage areas (including tank farms) for raw materials,
and intermediate and final products; and areas where industrial activity has taken place in the past
and significant materials remain and are exposed to storm water. For the purposes of Section 6
(g), material handling activities include the storage, loading and unloading, transportation, or
conveyance of any raw material, intermediate product, final product or waste product.

(B) The term excludes areas located on a plant site separate from the plant=s industrial activities, such as office buildings and accompanying parking lots, as long as the drainage from the excluded areas is not mixed with storm water drained from the industrial areas described above.

(ii) The following categories of facilities are considered to be engaging in "industrial activity" for purposes of these regulations. (See Appendix A of these regulations for a brief description of the SIC codes identified in this section.)

(A) Facilities subject to federal storm water effluent limitations guidelines, new source performance standards, or toxic pollutant effluent standards under 40 CFR Subchapter N (except facilities with toxic pollutant effluent standards which are excluded under the "no exposure" provisions of Section 6 (g) (iii));

(B) Facilities classified as Standard Industrial Classifications (SICs) 20 through 39 and 4221-25;

(C) Facilities classified as Standard Industrial Classifications 10 and 12 through 14 including active or inactive mining operations and oil and gas exploration, production, processing, or treatment operations, or transmission facilities that discharge storm water that has come into contact with any overburden, raw material, intermediate products, finished products, byproducts or waste products located on the site of such operations; (inactive mining operations are mining sites that are not being actively mined, but which have an identifiable owner/operator. Inactive mining sites do not include sites where mining claims are being maintained prior to disturbances associated with the extraction, beneficiation, or processing of mined materials, nor sites where minimal activities are undertaken for the sole purpose of maintaining a mining claim);

Areas of coal mining operations no longer meeting the definition of a reclamation area under 40 CFR 434.11 (1) because the performance bond issued to the facility by the appropriate SMCRA (Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act, 1977) authority has been released, or areas of non-coal mining operations which have been released from applicable state or federal

2502 2503	reclamation requirements after December 17, 1990 are not considered to be engaged in "industrial activity" and do not require coverage under a WYPDES storm water permit;					
2504						
2505	(D) Hazardous waste treatment, storage, or disposal facilities,					
2506	including those that are operating under interim status or a permit under Wyoming Hazardous					
2507	Waste Rules and Regulations;					
2508	The training and regulations,					
2509	(E) Landfills, land application sites, and open dumps that receive or					
2510	have received any industrial wastes (waste that is received from activities associated with large or					
2511	small construction activity as described in Sections 6 (f) (i) and 6 (f) (ii) and industrial activities					
2512	as described in Section 6 (g) (ii)) including those that are subject to regulation under subtitle D of					
2512	RCRA;					
2514	KCKA,					
2515	(F) Facilities involved in the recycling of materials, including metal					
2516						
	scrap yards, battery reclaimers, salvage yards, and automobile junkyards, including but limited to					
2517	those classified as Standard Industrial Classification 5015 and 5093;					
2518						
2519	(G) Steam electric power generating facilities, including coal					
2520	handling sites;					
2521						
2522	(H) Transportation facilities classified as Standard Industrial					
2523	Classifications 40, 41, 42 (except 4221 25), 43, 44, 45, and 5171 which have vehicle maintenance					
2524	shops, equipment cleaning operations, or airport deicing operations. Only those portions of the					
2525	facility that are either involved in vehicle maintenance (including vehicle rehabilitation,					
2526	mechanical repairs, painting, fueling, and lubrication), equipment cleaning operations, airport					
2527	deicing operations, or which are otherwise identified under Section 6 (g) (ii) (A through G or I)					
2528	are associated with industrial activity;					
2529						
2530	(I) Treatment works treating domestic sewage or any other sewage					
2531	sludge or wastewater treatment device or system, used in the storage treatment, recycling, and					
2532	reclamation of municipal or domestic sewage, including land dedicated to the disposal of sewage					
2533	sludge that are located within the confines of the facility, with a design flow of 1.0 mgd or more,					
2534	or required to have an approved pretreatment program under 40 CFR 403. Not included are farm					
2535	lands, domestic gardens or lands used for sludge management where sludge is beneficially reused					
2536	and which are not physically located in the confines of the facility, or areas that are in compliance					
2537	with section 405 of the CWA;					
2538						
2539	(J) A storm water discharge associated with industrial activity from					
2540	a facility that is owned or operated by a municipality with a population of less than 100,000					
2541	(based on the 1990 census);					
2542						
2543	(K) For storm water discharges associated with industrial activity					
2544	from point sources which discharge through a non-municipal or non-publicly owned separate					
2545	storm sewer system, the director, at his discretion, may issue: a single WYPDES permit, with					
2546	each discharger a co permittee to a permit issued to the operator of the portion of the system that					

2547	discharges into surface waters of the state; or, individual permits to each discharger of storm		
2548	water associated with industrial activity through the non-municipal conveyance system.		
2549			
2550	(I) Each facility with a storm water discharge to a storm		
2551	water discharge system that is not an MS4 shall be covered by a WYPDES permit, or a permit		
2552	issued to the operator of the portion of the system that discharges to surface waters of the state,		
2553	with each discharger to the non-municipal conveyance a co permittee to that permit.		
2554			
2555	(II) Where there is more than one (1) operator of a single		
2556	system of such conveyances, all operators of storm water discharges associated with industrial		
2557	activity must submit applications.		
2558	•		
2559	(III) Any permit covering more than one (1) operator shall		
2560	identify the effluent limitations, or other permit conditions, if any, that apply to each operator;		
2561			
2562	(L) A WYPDES permit is not required for discharges of storm water		
2563	runoff from mining operations or oil and gas exploration, production, processing or treatment		
2564	operations or transmission facilities, composed entirely of flows which are from conveyances or		
2565	systems of conveyances (including but not limited to pipes, conduits, ditches, and channels) used		
2566	for collecting and conveying precipitation runoff and which are not contaminated by contact with		
2567	or that has not come into contact with, any overburden, raw material, intermediate products,		
2568	finished product, byproduct or waste products located on the site of such operations. This		
2569	paragraph applies only to the operation of these facilities. Construction of such facilities may		
2570	require a permit to discharge storm water as specified in Sections 6 (f) (i) and (ii);		
2571			
2572	(M) The operator of an existing or new discharge composed entirely		
2573	of storm water from an oil or gas exploration, production, processing, or treatment operation, or		
2574	transmission facility is not required to submit a notice of intent in accordance with Section 4 or a		
2575	permit application in accordance with Section 6 (b), unless the facility:		
2576			
2577	(I) Has had a discharge of storm water resulting in the		
2578	discharge of a reportable quantity for which notification is or was required pursuant to 40 CFR		
2579	117.21 or 40 CFR 302.6 at anytime since November 16, 1987; or		
2580			
2581	(II) Has had a discharge of storm water resulting in the		
2582	discharge of a reportable quantity for which notification is or was required pursuant to 40 CFR		
2583	110.6 at any time since November 16, 1987; or		
2584			
2585	(III) Contributes to a violation of a water quality standard; or		
2586			
2587	(IV) Has been determined by the administrator that storm		
2588	water controls are needed for the discharge based on wasteload allocations that are part of		
2589	TMDLs that address the pollutants of concern.		
2590			
2591	(V) The construction of such facilities may still qualify for		
2592	permit coverage under Section 6 (f).		

2593					
2594	(N) The operator of an existing or new discharge composed entirely				
2595	of storm water from a mining operation is not required to submit a permit application unless the				
2596	discharge has come into contact with any overburden, raw material, intermediate products,				
2597	finished product, byproduct or waste products located on the site of such operations; and				
2598					
2599	(O) Facilities that have been determined, by the administrator, to				
2600	have the potential to contribute to a violation of a water quality standard or contribute pollutants				
2601	to surface waters of the state that are part of a TMDL that address the pollutant(s) of concern.				
2602					
2603	(iii) Discharges composed entirely of storm water are conditionally excluded				
2604	from storm water permitting by way of not meeting the definition of "storm water discharges				
2605	associated with industrial activity" if there is "no exposure" of industrial materials and/or				
2606	activities to precipitation, snowmelt and/or runoff, and the discharger satisfies the conditions in				
2607	Section 6 (g) (iii) (A through D). "No exposure" means that all industrial materials and activities				
2608	are protected by a storm resistant shelter to prevent exposure to precipitation, snowmelt, and/or				
2609	runoff. Industrial materials or activities include, but are not limited to, material handling				
2610	equipment or activities, industrial machinery, raw materials, intermediate products, by-products,				
2611	final products, or waste products. Material handling activities include the storage, loading and				
2612	unloading, transportation, or conveyance of any raw material, intermediate product, final product				
2613	or waste product.				
2614	of waste product.				
2615	(A) To qualify for this avalysion, the approximation must				
	(A) To qualify for this exclusion, the operator must:				
2616	(I) Provide a storm resistant shelten to must stirr dustrial				
2617	(I) Provide a storm resistant shelter to protect industrial				
2618	materials and activities from exposure to precipitation, snow melt, and runoff;				
2619	(II) Complete and single in a condense with Continue 14 of				
2620	(II) Complete and sign, in accordance with Section 14 of				
2621	these regulations, a certification that there are no discharges of storm water contaminated by				
2622	exposure to industrial materials and activities from the entire facility, except as provided in				
2623	Section 6 (g) (iii) (B);				
2624					
2625	(III) Submit the signed, updated certification to the				
2626	administrator once every five (5) years;				
2627					
2628	(IV) Allow the administrator, and/or his authorized				
2629	representative, upon the presentation of credentials, to inspect the facility to determine				
2630	compliance with the "no exposure" conditions;				
2631					
2632	(V) Allow the administrator to make any "no exposure"				
2633	inspection reports available to the public upon request;				
2634					
2635	(VI) For facilities that discharge through an MS4, submit a				
2636	copy of the certification of "no exposure" to the MS4 operator, as well as allow inspection and				
2637	public reporting by the MS4 operator, upon request; and				
2638					

2639	((VII)	Have adequate protections in place to assure that storm
2640	water discharges associated with	industr	ial activity do not occur from secondary containment
2641	facilities.		·
2642			
2643	(B) T	Γο qual	ify for this exclusion, a storm resistant shelter is not
2644	required for:	•	•
2645	1		
2646	((I)	Drums, barrels, tanks, and similar containers intended
2647		` ′	material, that are tightly sealed, provided those containers
2648	——————————————————————————————————————		aled"means banded or otherwise secured and without
2649		-	therwise a source of industrial pollutants;
2650	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		,
2651	((II)	Adequately maintained vehicles used in material
2652	handling, that are not otherwise a	` ′	
2653	2,		1
2654	((III)	Final products, other than products that would be
2655	mobilized in storm water discharge	` ′	
2656	•		,
2657	(C)	The exc	lusion is subject to the following limitations:
2658	()		J
2659	((I)	Storm water discharges from construction activities
2660		` '	f) are not eligible for this conditional exclusion.
2661	č	·	
2662	((II)	This conditional exclusion from the requirement for a
2663	state WYPDES permit is available	le on a f	facility-wide basis only, not for individual outfalls.
2664	-		
2665	((III)	If circumstances change and industrial materials or
2666	activities become exposed to pred		on, snow melt, and/or runoff, the conditions for this
2667	exclusion no longer apply. In suc	h cases	, the discharge becomes subject to enforcement for
2668			y excluded discharger who anticipates such a change in
2669	circumstances must apply for and	l obtain	permit authorization prior to the change of
2670	circumstances.		
2671			
2672	((IV)	Notwithstanding the provisions of this paragraph, the
2673	administrator retains the authority	y to req	uire permit authorization (and deny this exclusion) upon
2674			ge causes, has a reasonable potential to cause, or
2675	contributes to an instream excurs	ion abo	ve an applicable water quality standard, including
2676	designated uses.		
2677	-		
2678	(D)	The "no	exposure" certification requires the submission of the
2679	following information, at a minin	num, to	aid the administrator in determining if the facility
2680	qualifies for the no exposure excl		-
2681	-		
2682	((I)	The legal name, address and phone number of the
2683	discharger;		-
2684			

2685	(II)	The fa	acility name and address, the county name and the
2686	` /		ey system quarter/quarter, section, township, and
2687	range where the facility is located;		
2688	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		
2689	(III)	The ce	ertification must indicate that none of the following
2690	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		seeable future, exposed to precipitation, snow
2691	melt, and/or runoff:		sound and a proof of proof of the same of
2692	111011, 41141 01 14110111		
2693		(1.)	Using, storing or cleaning industrial machinery
2694	or equipment, and areas where residua	` ,	using, storing or cleaning industrial machinery or
2695	equipment remain and are exposed to s		
2696	equipment remain and are exposed to t	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	
2697		(2.)	Materials or residuals on the ground or in storm
2698	water inlets from spills/leaks;	()	Transcribed of residuals on the ground of in scotting
2699	water mets from spiris, realis,		
2700		(3.)	Materials or products from past industrial
2701	activity;	(3.)	materials of products from past maderial
2702	,		
2703		(4.)	Material handling equipment (except adequately
2704	maintained vehicles);	(,	Transfer and the second
2705	,		
2706		(5.)	Materials or products during loading/unloading
2707	or transporting activities;	(0.1)	reactions of products during routing unioning
2708	or trainsporting metricities,		
2709		(6.)	Materials or products stored outdoors (except
2710	final products intended for outside use	` '	w cars, where exposure to storm water does not
2711	result in the discharge of pollutants);	,6.,	···, ···
2712	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,		
2713		(7.)	Materials contained in open, deteriorated or
2714	leaking storage drums, barrels, tanks, a	` ,	1
2715	6		······································
2716		(8.)	Materials or products handled/stored on roads or
2717	railways owned or maintained by the d	` '	<u>-</u>
2718		8	,
2719		(9.)	Waste material (except waste in covered, non-
2720	leaking containers, e.g., dumpsters);	(- ')	······································
2721	6 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		
2722		(10.)	Application or disposal of process wastewater
2723	(unless otherwise permitted); and	(,	
2724	(, ,		
2725		(11.)	Particulate matter or visible deposits of residuals
2726	from roof stacks/vents not otherwise re	` '	i.e., under an air quality control permit, and
2727	evident in the storm water outflow.		The state of the s
2728			

2729 (IV) All "no exposure" certifications must include the 2730 following certification statement, and be signed in accordance with the signatory requirements of 2731 Section 14 of these regulations:

27322733

2734

2735

2736

2737

2738

2739

2740

2741

2742

2743

2744

2745

2746

2747

2748

2749

2750

"I certify under penalty of law that I have read and understand the eligibility requirements for claiming a condition of "no exposure" and obtaining an exclusion from state WYPDES storm water permitting; and that there are no discharges of storm water contaminated by exposure to industrial activities or materials from the industrial facility identified in this document (except as allowed under Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations, Chapter 2 Section 6 (g) (iii) (B)). I understand that I am obligated to submit a no exposure certification form once every five (5) years to the administrator and, if requested, to the operator of the local MS4 into which this facility discharges (where applicable). I understand that I must allow the administrator, or MS4 operator where the discharge is into the local MS4, to perform inspections to confirm the condition of no exposure and to make such inspection reports publicly available upon request. I understand that I must obtain coverage under a state WYPDES permit prior to any point source discharge of storm water from the facility. I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gathered and evaluated the information submitted. Based upon my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or those persons directly involved in gathering the information, the information submitted is to the best of my knowledge and belief true, accurate and complete. I am aware there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations."

275127522753

2754

(h) Regulated small municipal separate storm sewer systems. Discharges composed entirely of storm water from regulated small municipal separate storm sewer systems (MS4s) are point sources requiring a WYPDES permit.

275527562757

(i) Regulated small MS4s include:

27582759

2760

(A) Systems located in an urbanized area as determined by the latest Decennial Census by the Bureau of the Census. (If the small MS4 is not located entirely within an urbanized area, only the portion that is within the urbanized area is regulated);

276127622763

(B) Publicly owned systems similar to MS4s in municipalities, such

276427652766

as:

(I) Systems at military bases, and large education, hospital or prison complexes, if they are designed for a maximum daily user population (residents and individuals who come there to work or use the facilities) of at least 1,000, and are located in an urbanized area.

27692770

27672768

2110

27712772

2773

(II) Separate storm sewer systems associated with highways and thoroughfares within the boundary of an urbanized area.

2-61

2774 2775 2776	(C) Small MS4s designated by the administrator, where the designation is pursuant to the following:			
2777 2778 2779 2780 2781 2782 2783 2784 2785	(I) The administrator shall evaluate, at a minimum, any small MS4 located outside of an urbanized area serving a jurisdiction with a population density of at least 1,000 people per square mile and a population of at least 10,000 (based on the latest Decennial Census by the Bureau of the Census), to determine whether or not storm water discharges from the MS4 result in or have the potential to result in exceedances of water quality standards, including impairment of designated uses, or other significant water quality impacts, including habitat and biological impacts. The evaluation shall use the following elements, at a minimum:			
2786 2787	(1.) Relationship to sensitive waters. For purposes of this section, sensitive waters means any class 1, 2AB, 2A or any impaired or threatened waters			
2788 2789	listed on the most recent 303 (d) list;			
2790	(2.) High growth potential. For purposes of this			
2791	section a growth rate of 10% per decade or more will be considered a high rate of growth, the			
2792	administrator may also consider other factors such as, but not limited to, sustainability of			
2793	population increase, future projected growth, initial population size and population density.			
2794				
2795	(3.) Size of population and population density.			
2796	Whether the MS4 is an MS4 that is not in an urbanized area and has a population of at least			
2797	10,000 and a population density of 1,000 people per square mile;			
2798				
2799	(4.) Contiguity to an urbanized area; and			
2800				
2801	(5.) Significant contribution of pollutants, based on			
2802	credible data, to surface waters of the state.			
2803				
2804	Based on this evaluation, if the administrator determines that storm water discharges			
2805	from the MS4 result in or have the potential to result in exceedances of water quality standards,			
2806	including impairment of designated uses, or other significant water quality impacts, including			
2807	habitat and biological impacts, the administrator shall designate the MS4 as a regulated small			
2808	MS4 to be covered under a state WYPDES storm water discharge permit. However, the MS4			
2809	may provide information to the administrator on its existing storm water quality control			
2810	programs, including any that are analogous to the six (6) minimum control measures under			
2811	Section 6 (j) (i) (B). If the administrator determines that the MS4 has adequate controls for its			
2812	storm water discharges, (i.e., is already implementing the applicable portions of the six (6)			
2813	minimum measures), it will not be designated as a regulated small MS4 at that time.			
2814				
2815	(II) Other MS4s. The administrator may evaluate any other			
2816	small MS4s other than those described in subsections (I) and (III) of this section, in order to			
2817	determine whether or not storm water discharges from a small MS4 result in or have the potential			
2818	to result in exceedances of water quality standards, including impairment of designated uses, or			
2819	other significant water quality impacts, including habitat and biological impacts. The			

2820	administrator will place a high priority on evaluating small MS4s with a combined permanent and			
2821	seasonal population (as determined by the official Census population plus the number of			
2822	commercially advertised bed accommodations that will allow for an overnight stay, as listed			
2823	through the chamber of commerce, or any local resort or property management companies) of			
2824			the administrator may designate the small MS4 as a	
2825	regulated small MS4 to be covered under a state WYPDES storm water discharge permit at any			
2826	time, as appropriate, using the	elements	s shown in Section 6 (h) (i) (C) (I) above.	
2827				
2828		(III)	The administrator shall designate any small MS4 that	
2829	contributes substantially to the	pollutan	at loadings of a physically interconnected municipal	
2830	separate storm sewer that is des	ignated	as a regulated small MS4 to be covered under a state	
2831	WYPDES storm water discharg	ge permi	it.	
2832				
2833		(IV)	Small MS4s may be designated by the administrator	
2834	based upon Section 6 (h) (ii) (C	').		
2835				
2836		(V)	For any small MS4 that has been evaluated as per	
2837	subsections (I) or (II) above, the	e admin	istrator reserves the right to re-evaluate the MS4 if	
2838	circumstances change or new in	nformati	on becomes available.	
2839	•			
2840	(D)	A stor	m water discharge that the administrator determines	
2841	contributes to a violation of a w		ality standard or is a significant contributor of pollutants to	
2842	surface waters of the state. This designation may include a discharge from any conveyance or			
2843	system of conveyances used for collecting and conveying storm water runoff or a system of			
2844	discharges from municipal separate storm sewers, except for those discharges from conveyances			
2845	which do not require a permit under Section 6 (g) (iii) (L) or irrigation return flow which is			
2846	exempted from the definition of		The state of the s	
2847	-	-		
2848	The administrator may	designa	te discharges from a MS4 on a system-wide or	
2849	jurisdiction-wide basis. In mak	ing this	determination the administrator may consider the	
2850	following factors:			
2851	C			
2852		(I)	The location of the discharge with respect to surface	
2853	waters of the state;			
2854				
2855		(II)	The size of the discharge;	
2856			Ç i	
2857		(III)	The quantity and nature of the pollutants discharged to	
2858	surface waters of the state; and	. ,		
2859				
2860		(IV)	Other relevant factors.	
2861				
2862	(E)	The ac	lministrator may designate discharges from municipal	
2863	separate storm sewers where the administrator determines that storm water controls are needed			
2864			llocations that are part of TMDLs that address the	
2865	pollutants of concern.		-	

2866	
2867	(F) The administrator may issue permits for municipal separate
2868	storm sewer systems designated in Section 6 (h) (i) (C) (D) or (E) on a system-wide basis,
2869	jurisdiction-wide basis, watershed basis or other appropriate basis, or may issue permits for
2870	individual discharges.
2871	
2872	(ii) The administrator may waive permit coverage for a small MS4 with a
2873	population under 1,000 within the urbanized area where both of the following criteria have been
2874	met:
2875	
2876	(A) Its discharges are not known to be contributing substantially to
2877	the pollutant loadings of a physically interconnected regulated MS4 (see Section 6 (h) (i) (C)
2878	(III)); and
2879	
2880	(B) The small MS4 does not discharge any pollutant(s) that have
2881	been identified as a cause of impairment of any water body to which it discharges and storm
2882	water controls are not needed based on wasteload allocations that are part of a local watershed
2883	plan or an EPA approved TMDL that addresses the pollutant(s) of concern.
2884	
2885	(C) A small MS4 waived under this section may be designated if
2886	circumstances change or new information becomes available.
2887	
2888	(iii) Whether or not a discharge from a municipal separate storm sewer is
2889	subject to regulation under this Section 6 (h) shall have no bearing on whether the owner or
2890	operator of the discharge is eligible for funding under Title II, Title III or Title VI of the CWA.
2891	
2892	(i) Petitions.
2893	
2894	(i) Any operator of a municipal separate storm sewer system may petition
2895	the director to require a separate WYPDES permit for any discharge into the municipal separate
2896	storm sewer system.
2897	
2898	(ii) Any person may petition the director to require a WYPDES permit,
2899	where one does not already exist, for a discharge which is composed entirely of storm water
2900	which contributes to a violation of a water quality standard or is a significant contributor of
2901	pollutants to surface waters of the state.++
2902	
2903	(iii) Any person may petition the director for the designation of a small MS4
2904	as defined in these regulations.
2905	
2906	(iv) The owner or operator of a municipal separate storm sewer system may
2907	petition the director to reduce the Census estimates of the population served by such separate
2908	system to account for storm water discharged to combined sewers as defined by 40 CFR 35.2005
2909	(b) (11) that is treated in a publicly owned treatment works. In municipalities in which combined
2910	sewers are operated, the Census estimates of population may be reduced proportional to the
2911	fraction, based on estimated lengths, of the length of combined sewers over the sum of the length

2912	of combined sewers and municipal separate storm sewers where an applicant has submitted the				
2913	WYPDES permit number associated with each discharge point and a map indicating areas served				
2914	by combined sewers and the location of any combined sewer overflow discharge point.				
2915					
2916	(v) The director shall make a final determination on any petition received				
2917	under this section within 90 days after receiving the petition with the exception of petitions to				
2918	designate a small MS4, in which case the director shall make a final determination on the petition				
2919	within 180 days after receipt of the petition.				
2920					
2921	(j) Conditions for municipal storm water permits.				
2922					
2923	(i) An individual permit issued under Section 6 or general permit				
2924	authorization issued under Section 4 to a regulated small MS4 shall contain the following				
2925	requirements, at a minimum:				
2926					
2927	(A) The MS4 permit will require that the regulated small MS4				
2928	develop, implement, and enforce a storm water management program designed to reduce the				
2929	discharge of pollutants from the MS4 to the maximum extent practicable, to protect water quality,				
2930	and to satisfy the appropriate water quality requirements of the Wyoming Environmental Quality				
2931	Act (W.S. 35-11-301 to 35-11-311). The storm water management program must include the				
2932	minimum control measures described in Section 6 (j) (i) (B). Implementation of BMPs consistent				
2933	with the provisions of the storm water discharge permit required pursuant to this section				
2934	constitutes compliance with the standard of reducing pollutants to the maximum extent				
2935	practicable.				
2936	Practical Control of the Control of				
2937	The initial permit for the regulated small MS4 will specify a time period of up to five (5)				
2938	years from the date of permit issuance for development and implementation of the program.				
2939	yours from the date of permit issuance for development and imprementation of the programs				
2940	(B) Minimum control measures.				
2941	(2) Immuni control moustace				
2942	(I) Public education and outreach on storm water impacts.				
2943	The permittee must implement a public education program to:				
2944	The permittee mass imprement a passive education program to:				
2945	(1.) Distribute educational materials to the				
2946	community or conduct equivalent outreach activities about the impacts of storm water discharges				
2947	on water bodies and the steps that the public can take to reduce pollutants in storm water runoff;				
2948	and				
2949					
2950	(2.) Inform public employees, businesses and the				
2951	general public of impacts associated with illegal discharges and improper disposal of waste.				
2952	general public of impacts associated with inegal discharges and improper disposar of waste.				
2953	(II) Public involvement/participation. The permittee must, at				
2954	a minimum, comply with any applicable state and local public notice requirements when				
2955	implementing the storm water management programs required under the permit. Notice of all				
2956	public hearings should be published in a community publication or newspaper of general				
<i></i>	paone nearings should be published in a community publication of newspaper of general				

2957 2958 2959	circulation, to provide opportunities for public involvement that reach a majority of citizens through the notification process.
2960 2961 2962	(III) Illicit discharge detection and elimination. The permittee must develop, implement and enforce a program to detect and eliminate illicit discharges (as defined in Section 3) into the permittee=s small MS4.
296329642965	(1.) The permittee must:
2966 2967 2968 2969	a. Develop, if not already completed, a storm sewer system map, showing the location of all municipal storm sewer outfalls and the names and location of all surface waters of the state that receive discharges from those outfalls;
2970 2971 2972 2973	b. To the extent allowable under state or local law, effectively prohibit, through ordinance or other regulatory mechanism, non-storm water discharges into the storm sewer system, and implement appropriate enforcement procedures and actions; and
2974 2975 2976 2977 2978 2979 2980	c. Develop and implement a plan to detect and address non-storm water discharges, including illicit discharges and illegal dumping, to the system. The plan must include the following three components: procedures for locating priority areas likely to have illicit discharges; procedures for tracing the source of an illicit discharge; and procedures for removing the source of the discharge.
2980 2981 2982 2983 2984 2985 2986 2987 2988 2989 2990 2991 2992	(2.) The permittee shall address the following categories of non-storm water discharges or flows (i.e., illicit discharges) only if the permittee identifies them as significant contributors of pollutants to the permittee=s small MS4 discharges: landscape irrigation, lawn watering, diverted stream flows, irrigation return flow, rising groundwaters, groundwater infiltration (as defined at 40 CFR 35.2005(20)), pumped groundwater, springs, flows from riparian habitats and wetlands, water line flushing, discharges from potable water sources, foundation drains, air conditioning condensation, water from crawl space pumps, footing drains, individual residential car washing, dechlorinated swimming pool discharges, and street wash water (discharges or flows from fire fighting activities are excluded from the effective prohibition against non-storm water and need only be addressed where they are identified as significant sources of pollutants to surface waters of the state).
2993	(IV) Construction site storm water runoff control.
2994 2995 2996 2997 2998 2999 3000	(1.) The permittee must develop, implement, and enforce a program to reduce pollutants in any storm water runoff to the MS4 from construction activities that result in a land disturbance of greater than or equal to one acre. Reduction of pollutants in storm water discharges from construction activity disturbing less than one acre must be included in the program if that construction activity is part of a larger common plan of development or sale that would disturb one acre or more. If the administrator waives
3001	requirements for storm water discharges associated with a small construction activity in

3002	accordance with Section 6 (f) (ii) (B), the permittee is not required to develop, implement, and/or
3003	enforce its program to reduce pollutant discharges from such a site.
3004	
3005	(2.) The program must be developed and
3006	implemented to assure adequate design, implementation, and maintenance of BMPs at
3007	construction sites within the MS4 to reduce pollutant discharges and protect water quality. The
3008	program must include the development and implementation of, at a minimum:
3009	
3010	a. An ordinance or other regulatory
3011	mechanism to require erosion and sediment controls, as well as sanctions to ensure compliance, to
3012	the extent allowable under state or local law;
3013	
3014	b. Requirements for construction site
3015	operators to implement appropriate erosion and sediment control BMPs;
3016	
3017	c. Requirements for construction site
3018	operators to control waste such as discarded building materials, concrete truck washout,
3019	chemicals, litter, and sanitary waste at the construction site that may cause adverse impacts to
3020	water quality;
3021	mater quantity,
3022	d. Procedures for site plan review which
3023	incorporate consideration of potential water quality impacts;
3024	moorporate constantation of potential water quality impacts,
3025	e. Procedures for receipt and consideration
3026	of information submitted by the public, and
3027	of mornation submitted by the public, and
3028	f. Procedures for site inspection and
3029	enforcement of control measures.
3030	constraint of control measures.
3031	(V) Post-construction storm water management in new
3032	development and redevelopment.
3032	development and redevelopment.
3034	
3035	(1.) The permittee must develop, implement, and
3036	enforce a program to address storm water runoff from new development and redevelopment
3030	projects that disturb greater than or equal to one acre, including projects less than one acre that
3037	are part of a larger common plan of development or sale, that discharge into the small MS4. The
3039	program must ensure that controls are in place that would prevent or minimize water quality
3040	
3040	impacts.
	(2) The normittee must
3042 3043	(2.) The permittee must:
	Davidae and implement strate in which
3044	a. Develop and implement strategies which
3045	include a combination of structural and/or non-structural BMPs appropriate for the community;
3046	

3047	b. Use an ordinance or other regulatory				
3048	mechanism to address post-construction runoff from new development and redevelopment				
3049	projects to the extent allowable under state or local law; and				
3050					
3051	c. Ensure adequate long-term operation				
3052	and maintenance of BMPs.				
3053					
3054	(VI) Pollution prevention/good housekeeping for municipal				
3055	operations. The permittee must develop and implement an operation and maintenance program				
3056	that includes an employee training component and has the ultimate goal of preventing or reducing				
3057	pollutant runoff from municipal operations. The program must also inform public employees of				
3058	impacts associated with illegal discharges and improper disposal of waste from municipal				
3059	operations. The program must prevent and/or reduce storm water pollution from facilities such as				
3060	streets, roads, highways, municipal parking lots, maintenance and storage yards, fleet or				
3061	maintenance shops with outdoor storage areas, salt/sand storage locations and snow disposal				
3062	areas operated by the permittee, waste transfer stations, and from activities such as park and open				
3063	space maintenance, fleet and building maintenance, street maintenance, new construction of				
3064	municipal facilities, and storm water system maintenance, as applicable.				
3065	mainterpar facilities, and storm water system maintenance, as applicable.				
3066	(C) If an existing qualifying local program requires the permittee to				
3067	implement one or more of the minimum control measures of Section 6 (j) (i) (B), the				
3068	administrator may include conditions in the permit that direct the permittee to follow that				
3069	qualifying program=s requirements rather than the requirements of Section 6 (j) (i) (B). A				
3070	qualifying local program is a local or state municipal storm water management program that				
3071	imposes, at a minimum, the relevant requirements of Section 6 (j) (i) (B). The permit may be				
3072	reopened and modified to include the requirement to implement a minimum control measure if				
3073	the other entity fails to implement it.				
3074	the other entity runs to imprement it.				
3075	(D) The permittee must comply with any more stringent effluent				
3076	limitations in the permit, including permit requirements that modify, or are in addition to, the				
3077	minimum control measures, based on an approved TMDL or equivalent analysis. The				
3078	administrator may include more stringent limitations based on a TMDL or equivalent analysis				
3079	that determines such limitations are needed to protect water quality.				
3080	that determines such inintations are needed to protect water quanty.				
3081	(E) The permittee must comply with other applicable state WYPDES				
3082	permit requirements, standards and conditions established in the individual or general permit,				
3083	developed consistent with the provisions of Section 6 (b) or Section 4, as appropriate.				
3084	developed consistent with the provisions of section o (b) of section 4, as appropriate.				
3085	(F) A permittee may rely on another entity to satisfy its state				
3085	WYPDES permit obligations to implement a minimum control measure, or component thereof if:				
3087	W 11 DES permit obligations to implement a minimum control measure, of component mercol 11.				
3087	(I) The other entity, in fact, implements the control				
3089	•				
3099	measure;				
3090	(II) The particular control measure, or component thereof, is				
3091	at least as stringent as the corresponding WYPDES permit requirement; and				
3094	at reast as surnigent as the corresponding with DES permit requirement, and				

3093	
3094	(III) The other entity agrees to implement the control measure
3095	on behalf of the permittee. The permittee must specify in reports submitted under Section 6 (j) (i)
3096	(G) (iii), that it relies on another entity to satisfy some of its permit obligations. If the permittee
3097	is relying on another entity, subject to these regulations, to meet all of its permit obligations,
3098	including the obligation to file periodic reports, it must note that fact in its NOI. The permittee
3099	remains responsible for compliance with its permit obligations if the other entity fails to
3100	implement the control measure (or component thereof).
3101	
3102	(G) Evaluation and assessment.
3103	
3104	(I) Evaluation. The permittee shall evaluate program
3105	compliance, the appropriateness of its identified BMPs, and progress towards achieving its
3106	identified measurable goals. A summary of this evaluation shall be included in the permittee=s
3107	annual report.
3108	
3109	(II) Record keeping. The permittee must keep records
3110	required by the permit for at least three (3) years. The permittee must submit their records to the
3111	administrator only when specifically asked to do so. The permittee must make the records,
3112	including a description of the permittee=s storm water management program, available to the
3113	public at reasonable times during regular business hours. (The permittee may assess a reasonable
3114	charge for copying. The permittee may require a member of the public to provide advance
3115	notice.)
3116	
3117	(III) Reporting. The permittee shall submit annual reports to
3118	the administrator for the permittee=s first permit term. For subsequent permit terms, reports must
3119	be submitted in years two (2) and four (4) unless the administrator requires more frequent
3120	reporting. The permittee=s report must include:
3121	
3122	(1.) The status of compliance with permit conditions,
3123	an assessment of the appropriateness of the permittee=s identified BMPs and progress towards
3124	achieving the permittee=s identified measurable goals for each of the minimum control measures;
3125	
3126	(2.) Results of information collected and analyzed,
3127	including monitoring data, if any, during the reporting period;
3128	
3129	(3.) A summary of the storm water activities the
3130	permittee plans to undertake during the next reporting cycle;
3131	
3132	(4.) A change in any identified BMPs or measurable
3133	goals for any of the minimum control measures; and
3134	
3135	(5.) Notice that the permittee is relying on another
3136	governmental entity to satisfy some of the permittee=s permit obligations (if applicable).
3137	

3138	(H) Any additional requirements as determined to be necessary by
3139	the administrator.
3140	
3141	(ii) The administrator may determine monitoring requirements for the
3142	permittee in accordance with state monitoring plans appropriate to the permittee=s watershed.
3143	
3144	(k) Qualifying programs. Qualifying state or local programs associated with
3145	municipal storm water permits.
3146	
3147	(i) For storm water discharges associated with small construction activity
3148	identified in Section 6 (f) (ii) (A), the administrator may include permit conditions that
3149	incorporate qualifying state or local erosion and sediment control program requirements by
3150	reference. A qualifying state or local erosion and sediment control program is one that includes:
3151	
3152	(A) Requirements for construction site operators to implement
3153	appropriate erosion and sediment control best management practices;
3154	
3155	(B) Requirements for construction site operators to control waste
3156	such as discarded building materials, concrete truck washout, chemicals, litter, and sanitary waste
3157	at the construction site that may cause adverse impacts to water quality;
3158	
3159	(C) Requirements for construction site operators to develop and
3160	implement a storm water pollution prevention plan. (A storm water pollution prevention plan
3161	includes site descriptions, descriptions of appropriate control measures, copies of approved local
3162	requirements, maintenance procedures, inspection procedures, and identification of non-storm
3163	water discharges); and
3164	
3165	(D) Requirements to submit a site plan for review that incorporates
3166	consideration of potential water quality impacts.
3167	
3168	(ii) For storm water discharges from large construction activity identified in
3169	Section 6 (f) (i), the administrator may include permit conditions that incorporate qualifying state
3170	or local erosion and sediment control program requirements by reference. A qualifying state or
3171	local erosion and sediment control program is one that includes the elements listed in Section 6
3172	(k) (i), and any additional requirements necessary to achieve the applicable technology-based
3173	standards of "best available technology" and "best conventional technology" based on the best
3174	professional judgment of the permit writer.
3175	Section 7 Icalated Wetlands Mitigation Description
3173	Section 7. Isolated Wetlands-Mitigation Requirements.
3176	This section applies to the process for approving mitigation for activities that cause the
3177	destruction, damage, or impairment of naturally occurring isolated wetlands or man-made
3178	isolated wetlands used to mitigate the loss of naturally occurring wetlands.
3179	
3180	(a) Point source discharge activities required to file mitigation plans. Any person
3181	who proposes a point source discharge of dredged or fill material into a naturally occurring
3182	isolated wetland or man-made isolated wetlands used to mitigate the loss of a naturally occurring

3183	wetland in such a manner that causes the loss or destruction of greater than a cumulative one (1)			
3184		acre of wetland habitat for the total project shall file with the administrator a notice of intent for		
3185	•		lated wetlands mitigation general permit and a mitigation plan designed to	
3186			and functions and values. Such notices of intent and mitigation plans must	
3187			by the administrator prior to the commencement of the activity which will	
3188		cause the wetland loss. Those activities which are subject to a permit or authorization from the		
3189	U.S. Army Corps of Engineers pursuant to Section 404 of the CWA or mining activities subject			
3190	to a permit or	to a permit or authorization from the Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality, Land		
3191	Quality Divisi	ion are e	xempt from this requirement.	
3192				
3193	(b)	Mitiga	ation plan contents and area of impact. Mitigation plans submitted to the	
3194	administrator	under th	is section shall contain the following information:	
3195				
3196		(i)	Name and address of the applicant;	
3197				
3198		(ii)	Location and description of the isolated wetland that will be impacted,	
3199	including the	area of in	mpact in acres, type of wetland, probable functional values, and source of	
3200	water;			
3201	,			
3202		(iii)	Delineation of the impacted wetland using the U.S. Army Corps of	
3203	Engineer=s 1987 wetland delineation manual including maps, drawings, data sheets and			
3204	conclusions;		mio delinioni mandani meradang impo, dia mingo, dala sileto and	
3205	Concressions,			
3206		(iv)	Name(s) and address(s) of adjacent property owners who may be	
3207	affected by the			
3208	arrected by th	o dou viej	,	
3209		(v)	Description of the activity causing the wetland impact;	
3210		(*)	Besoription of the activity causing the westand impact,	
3211		(vi)	Description of actions to be taken to fully offset damage to the impacted	
3212	wetland;	(11)	Description of actions to be taken to runy offset damage to the impacted	
3213	wettana,			
3214		(vii)	Where the proposed mitigation involves the construction of replacement	
3215	wetlands or th	` ,	cement of existing wetlands the location and description of the mitigation	
3216			ne and address of the landowner, construction plans, maps, water sources	
3217	and constructi			
3217	and constructi	on time	tables,	
3219		(viii)	Where the proposed mitigation involves the use of wetland credits	
3220	recorded in th	` '	ning Statewide Wetland Mitigation Bank" a written authorization signed by	
3221		-	encing the wetland credit file number and the amount of credit authorized	
3222	for use;	iei ieieie	shering the wetrand credit the number and the amount of credit authorized	
	ioi use,			
3223		(i)	List of related permissions and/or authorizations recognize to	
3224		(ix)	List of related permissions and/or authorizations necessary to	
3225		_	the planned mitigation including but not limited to water rights, easements,	
3226	and associated	ı rederal	, state or local permits.	
3227				

3228	(c)	Access to physical locations associated with the permit. If requested by the		
3229		or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to,		
3230	physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, any waters of the state			
3231	associated with	the permit at the point of discharge.		
3232				
3233	(d)	Criteria for approval of mitigation plans under a general permit.		
3234				
3235		(i) The administrator shall approve all mitigation plans utilizing Wyoming		
3236	Wetland Banke	ed Credits in accordance with the "Wyoming Statewide Wetland Mitigation Bank -		
3237	Guidelines for	Interpretation and Implementation," April 1995;		
3238				
3239		(ii) The administrator shall approve all mitigation plans involving the		
3240	creation of new	replacement wetlands, the restoration of degraded wetlands, or the enhancement		
3241	of existing wet	lands that are not recorded in the Statewide Wetland Mitigation Bank but meet the		
3242	substantial eler	ments of the wetland banking guidelines;		
3243				
3244		(iii) The administrator may approve types of mitigation other than those		
3245	described in the	e April 1995 Wetland Mitigation Bank Guidelines on a case-by-case basis after		
3246		of the ecological function and wetland value of the impacted wetlands and the net		
3247		benefit of the proposed mitigation. Such types of mitigation may include but are		
3248		he acquisition of conservation easements, contributions to specific private or		
3249		mprovement projects, or modifications to the geographic and ecological		
3250	-	ressed in the wetland banking guidelines.		
3251				
3252	(e)	Processing of notices of intent. Processing of notices of intent shall be in		
3253	` '	h the procedures outlined in Section 4 (f) of these regulations.		
3254				
3255	(f)	Permit by rule. Discharges of dredged or fill material into naturally occurring		
3256	` '	ds or man-made isolated wetlands used to mitigate the loss of naturally occurring		
3257		n cause the loss or destruction of one acre or less of wetland habitat for the total		
3258		mitted by rule in accordance with the following requirements:		
3259	project are peri	interest by rate in accordance with the following requirements.		
3260		(i) There shall be no discharge of solid wastes (as defined in Chapter 1,		
3261	Section 1 [f] of	The Department=s Hazardous Waste Management Rules and Regulations),		
3262		tes, hazardous materials, hazardous constituents, radioactive material or any toxic		
3263	substance.	os, nazardous materiais, nazardous constituents, natioactive material of any toxic		
3264	substance.			
3265		(ii) This permit by rule is not applicable to those activities which are subject		
3266	to a permit or a	authorization from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers pursuant to Section 404 of		
3267	_	ining activities subject to a permit or authorization from the Wyoming Department		
3268		tal Quality, Land Quality Division.		
3200	of Environmen	tai Quanty, Land Quanty Division.		
3269	Section	n 8. Variance Requests.		
3270	(a)	Variance requests by non-POTWs.		
3271	(α)			
,_				

3272	(i) A discharger which is not a publicly owned treatment works (POTW)				
3273	may request a variance from otherwise applicable effluent limitations under any of the following				
3274	statutory or regulatory provisions within the times specified in this section:				
3275					
3276	(A) Fundamentally different factors.				
3277					
3278	(I) A request for a variance based on the presence of				
3279	"fundamentally different factors" from those on which the effluent limitations guideline was				
3280	based shall be filed as follows:				
3281					
3282	(1.) For a request from best practicable control				
3283	technology (BPT) currently available, at the time of application.				
3284					
3285	(2.) For a request from best available technology				
3286	(BAT) economically achievable and/or best conventional pollutant control technology (BCT), by				
3287	no later than 180 days after the date on which an effluent limitation guideline is published in the				
3288	federal register for a request based on an effluent limitation guideline promulgated on or after				
3289	February 4, 1987.				
3290					
3291	(II) The request shall explain how the applicable				
3292	requirements of Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations Chapter 1 - Surface Water				
3293	Quality Standards, the Environmental Quality Act and the provisions of these regulations have				
3294	been met.				
3295					
3296	(B) Non-conventional pollutants. Request for a variance from the				
3297	BAT requirements for CWA Section 301 (b) (2) (F) pollutants (commonly called "non-				
3298	conventional" pollutants) pursuant to Section 301 (c) of the CWA because of the economic				
3299	capability of the owner or operator, or pursuant to Section 301 (g) of the CWA provided however				
3300	that a § 301 (g) variance may only be requested for ammonia, chlorine, color, iron, total phenols				
3301	(when determined by the Regional Administrator to be a pollutant covered by Section 301 (b) (2)				
3302	(F) and any other pollutant which the Regional Administrator lists under Section 301 (g) (4) of				
3303	the CWA) and must be made as follows:				
3304					
3305	(I) For those requests for a variance from an effluent				
3306	limitation based upon an effluent limitation guideline by:				
3307					
3308	(1.) Submitting an initial request to the director and				
3309	the Regional Administrator stating the name of the discharger, the permit number, the outfall				
3310	number(s), the applicable effluent guideline, and whether the discharger is requesting a Section				
3311	301 (c) or Section 301 (g) modification or both. This request must have been filed not later than				
3312	270 days after promulgation of an applicable effluent limitation guideline for guidelines				
3313	promulgated after December 27, 1977; and				
3314					
3315	(2.) Submitting a completed request no later than the				
3316	close of the public comment period under Section 15 of these regulations demonstrating that the				
3317	applicable requirements of Section 5 (c) (iii) (A) and (B) and Appendices F, L and M have been				

3318	met. Notwithstand	ing this provision, the complete application for a request under section 301 (g)	
3319	shall be filed 180 d	ays before the director must make a decision (unless the director establishes a	
3320	shorter or longer pe	eriod).	
3321			
3322		(II) For those requests for a variance from effluent	
3323	limitations not base	ed on effluent limitation guidelines, the request need only comply with Section	
3324	8 (a) (i) (B) (I) (b)	and need not be preceded by an initial request under Section 8 (a) (i) (B) (I)	
3325	(a).		
3326			
3327		(C) Water quality related effluent limitations. A modification under	
3328	CWA Section 302	(b) (2) of requirements under CWA Section 302 (a) for achieving water quality	
3329	related effluent lim	itations may be requested no later than the close of the public comment period	
3330		f these regulations on the permit from which the modification is sought.	
3331			
3332		(D) Thermal discharges. A variance under the CWA Section 316 (a)	
3333	for the thermal con	apponent of any discharge must be filed with a timely application for a permit	
3334		except that if thermal effluent limitations are established under the CWA	
3335		or are based on water quality standards the request for a variance may be filed	
3336		public comment period under Section 15 of these regulations. A copy of the	
3337	•	under Appendix M of these regulations, shall be sent simultaneously to the	
3338	director.	and the period of the second s	
3339	director.		
3340	(b) Va	riance requests by POTWs. A discharger which is a publicly owned treatment	
3341		y request a variance from otherwise applicable effluent limitations as follows:	
3342	works (1 0 1 W) Ind	y request a variance from otherwise applicable critical infinitations as follows:	
3343	Water qual	lity based effluent limitation. A modification under CWA Section 302 (b) (2)	
3344	_	s under Section 302 (a) for achieving water quality based effluent limitations	
3345	-	no later than the close of the public comment period under Section 15 of these	
3346	-	permit from which the modification is sought.	
3347	regulations on the	Serial from which the modification is sought.	
3348	(c) Ex	pedited variance procedures and time extensions.	
3349	(c) La	pediced variance procedures and time extensions.	
3350	(i)	Notwithstanding the time requirements in Section 8 (a) and (b), the	
3351		a permit applicant before a draft permit is issued under Section 5 that the draft	
3352	•	ontain limitations which are eligible for variances. In the notice the director	
3353	-	plicant as a condition of consideration of any potential variance request to	
3354		eplaining how the requirements of Section 5 (c) (iii) (A) and (B) and	
3355	-	and M applicable to the variance have been met and may require its submission	
3356			
3357	within a specified reasonable time after receipt of the notice. The notice may be sent before the permit application has been submitted. The draft or final permit may contain the alternative		
3358	minitations which r	nay become effective upon final granting of the variance.	
3359	(1)		
3360	(d) De	ecisions on variances.	
3361	· · ·		
3362	(i)	The director may grant or deny requests for the following variances:	
3363			

3364	(A) Extensions under CWA Section 301 (i) based on delay in
3365	completion of a publicly owned treatment works;
3366	
3367	(B) After consultation with the Regional Administrator, extensions
3368	under CWA Section 301 (k) based on the use of innovative technology; or
3369	under everification sor (ii) bused on the use of himovative technology, or
3370	(C) Variances under CWA Section 316 (a) for thermal pollution.
3371	(c) variances under CWA Section 310 (a) for thermal politation.
3372	(ii) The director may deny or forward to the Regional Administrator with a
3373	written concurrence, or submit to EPA without recommendation a completed request for:
3374	written concurrence, or submit to Er 71 without recommendation a completed request for.
3375	(A) A variance based on the economic capability of the applicant
3376	under CWA Section 301 (c); or
3370	under CWA Section 301 (c), or
3378	(P) A verience based on water quality related afflyant limitations
	(B) A variance based on water quality related effluent limitations
3379	under CWA Section 302 (b) (2).
3380	(iii) EDA
3381	(iii) EPA may approve or deny any variance request. If EPA approves the
3382	variance, the director may prepare a draft permit incorporating the variance.
3383	(') THE 1' () 1 C 1 (1 A 1 ' ') () C(1 EDA /
3384	(iv) The director may deny or forward to the Administrator of the EPA (or
3385	his delegate) with a written concurrence a completed request for:
3386	
3387	(A) A variance based on the presence of "fundamentally different
3388	factors" from those on which an effluent limitation guideline was based and in accordance with
3389	Appendix M of these regulations;
3390	
3391	(B) A variance based upon certain water quality factors under CWA
3392	Section 301 (g).
3393	
3394	(v) The Administrator of the EPA (or his delegate) may grant or deny a
3395	request for a variance listed in Section 8 (e) (iv) of these regulations. If the Administrator of the
3396	EPA (or his delegate) approves the variance, the director may prepare a permit incorporating the
3397	variance.
3398	
3399	(vi) Any public notice of a draft permit for which a variance has been
3400	approved or denied shall identify the applicable procedures for appealing that decision.
3401	
3402	(e) When the director issues a permit on which EPA has made a variance decision,
3403	separate appeals of the permit and of the EPA variance decision are possible.
3404	
3405	(i) Variance decisions made by EPA may be appealed under the provisions
3406	of 40 CFR 124.19.
3407	
3408	(ii) Decisions by the director regarding the issuance or denial of a WYPDES
3409	permit may be appealed in accordance with the provisions of Section 17 of these regulations.

3410	Section 9. Issuance or Denial of Permits or Authorizations.
3411 3412 3413	Once the requirements of Sections 4 (b) and (c), 5 (a) and (b), and 6 (b) or 7 (a) and (b) of these regulations have been met, a final determination regarding issuance or denial of a permit or authorization shall be made.
3414 3415 3416 3417	(a) Denial of permits or authorizations. No permit or authorization shall be issued which would authorize any of the following discharges:
3418 3419 3420	(i) The discharge of any radiological, chemical, or biological warfare agent, or high level radioactive waste into surface waters of the state;
3421 3422 3423	(ii) Any discharge which the Secretary of the Army, acting through the Chief of Engineers, finds would substantially impair anchorage and navigation;
3424 3425 3426	(iii) Any discharge to which the Regional Administrator of the EPA has objected pursuant to the provisions of 40 CFR Part 123.44;
3427 3428	(iv) Any discharge from a point source which is in conflict with a plan or amendment thereto approved pursuant to Section 208 (b) of the Federal Act;
3429 3430 3431 3432	(v) Any discharge that, after imposition of permit conditions, cannot ensure compliance with the applicable water quality requirements of all affected states; and
3433 3434 3435	(vi) No permit may be issued when conditions of the permit do not provide compliance with applicable requirements of W.S. 35-11-302 and of these regulations.
3436 3436 3437 3438 3439 3440 3441 3442	(b) Issuance of permits or authorizations. The permit or authorization shall be issued if all the requirements of appropriate sections of W.S. 35-11-302 and these regulations have been met and the issuance of the permit or authorization is not denied under Section 9 (a). In this regard, the term "reasonableness" as used in W.S. 35-11-302 (a) (vi) shall be considered to mean, as a minimum, compliance with applicable effluent standards and applicable water quality standards.
3443 3444 3445 3446	(c) Incorporation of permit conditions. All permit conditions shall be incorporated either expressly or by reference. If incorporated by reference, a specific citation to the applicable regulations or requirements must be given in the permit.
3447 3448 3449 3450	(d) Term of permits. A permit issued pursuant to these regulations shall have a fixed term not to exceed five (5) years unless extended under Section 11 of these regulations. Reissuance of a permit issued pursuant to these regulations shall be in accordance with the requirements of Sections 5 (a) and (b), and 9.
3451 3452 3453	

<u>Section 10. Renewal of Permits, and Renewal of Coverage Under Expiring General Permits.</u>

- (a) Deadlines for permit renewal application. The owner or operator of any point source within the state who proposes to continue a permitted discharge into surface waters of the state beyond the expiration date of a permit must file with the administrator a complete application form either 1) no less than 180 days in advance of the permit expiration date, unless otherwise approved by the administrator, or 2) in sufficient time to insure compliance with the requirements of Section 306 of the Federal Act, or with any applicable zoning or siting requirements established pursuant to Section 208 (b) (2) (c) of the Federal Act, and any other applicable water quality standards and limitations or in the case of general permits, in accordance with the terms specified in the applicable general permit. Except as authorized under Section 11 of these regulations, no person shall continue to discharge beyond the expiration date of a permit without having obtained a reissued permit from the department.
- (b) Renewal application requirements. An application for renewal of an existing permit shall identify any changes or additions to the information, listed in Section 5 (a) (v), that was provided in the application form or additional requested information for the permit most recently noticed.
- (c) Review of renewal applications. The administrator shall have each request for renewal reviewed in light of the existing permit or authorization, information provided by the permittee with the request for renewal, and all other information available to the administrator bearing on the subject permit or authorization to insure that the following conditions exist:
- (i) That the permittee is in compliance with or has substantially complied with all the terms and conditions of the expiring permit or authorization;
- (ii) That the discharge is consistent with applicable effluent standards and compliance schedules, water quality standards, and other legally applicable requirements imposed under these regulations; and
- (iii) That the administrator has up-to-date information on the permittee's discharge, either pursuant to the submission of new forms or pursuant to monitoring records and reports submitted to the administrator by the permittee.
- (d) Determination of permit or authorization renewal. Following the review of the request for renewal of a permit or renewal authorization and the other considerations described in paragraph (c) above, the administrator shall:
- (i) Make a determination to renew or deny renewal of an authorization for coverage under a general permit; and
- 3496 (ii) For individual permits, the administrator shall make a recommendation 3497 to the director for permit renewal or denial of permit renewal.

3540

3541

3499	(e) Notification of determination not to renew. In the event that the administrator								
3500	determines that a permit shall not be renewed or that an authorization shall not be renewed,								
3501	notification of such determination will be provided to the permittee prior to the expiration of the								
3502	existing permit or authorization or in accordance with Section 11 of these regulations.								
3503									
3504	(f) Processing and public notice procedures for permit renewals. The processing and								
3505	public notice procedures in Sections 5 (b) and 15 shall be followed for every permit that is								
3506	renewed and the processing procedures in Section 4 (f) shall be followed for every authorization								
3507	that is renewed.								
3508									
3509	(g) Commencement of public notice for permit renewals. Public notice for permits								
3510	being proposed for renewal shall commence not later than 30 days prior to the expiration date of								
3511	the permit. In the event that permit renewals are not public noticed within 30 days prior to the								
3512	permit expiration date, the permit may be continued in accordance with the provisions of Section								
3513	11 of these regulations.								
3514									
3515	(h) Renewal of authorizations. Renewal of coverage authorized under an expiring								
3516	general permit shall be conducted in accordance with the provisions established under the general								
3517	permit.								
	·								
3518	Section 11. Continuation of Expiring Permits.								
3519	(a) Conditions. For WYPDES permits issued under the provisions of these rules, the								
3520	conditions of an expired permit shall remain in force until the effective date of a new permit								
3521	provided the following conditions are met:								
3522									
3523	(i) The permittee has submitted a timely and complete application for								
3524	renewal in accordance with the provisions of Section 10 of these regulations; and								
3525									
3526	(ii) The director, through no fault of the permittee, does not issue a renewal								
3527	permit with an effective date on or before the expiration date of the previous permit.								
3528									
3529	(b) Final determination. The administrator will make a final determination on the								
3530	renewal application within 180 days of the permit extension.								
3531									
3532	(c) Effectiveness and enforceability. Permits continued under this section remain								
3533	fully effective and enforceable.								
3534	Section 12. Permit or Authorization Modifications.								
3535	(a) Deadlines for permit or authorization modification application. The owner or								
3536	operator of any point source within the state who proposes a major modification to an existing								
3537	permit or a modification to an authorization must file a complete application form with the								
353 <i>1</i> 3538	administrator either 1) no less than 180 days in advance of the date on which it is desired to								
2220	administrator critici 1/ no iess man 100 days in advance of the date on which it is desired to								

change or alter the discharge unless otherwise approved by the administrator; or 2) in sufficient

306 of the CWA, or with any applicable zoning or siting requirements established pursuant to

time prior to the alteration of the discharge to insure compliance with the requirements of Section

3586

3587

3542	Section 208 (b) (2) (c) of the CWA, and any other applicable water quality standards and						
3543	limitations. In any event, no person shall change or alter the conditions of a permitted discharge						
3544	without having obtained a modification from the department and no modification shall be issued						
3545	without full compliance by the permittee with all requirements of these regulations.						
3546							
3547	(b) Modification application requirements. An application for modification of an						
3548	existing permit or authorization shall identify any changes or additions to the information, listed						
3549	in Section 5 (a) (v) or Section 4 (m), (n) or (o), that was provided in the application form or						
3550	additional requested information for the permit most recently noticed.						
3551							
3552							
3553	(c) Request for modification. Permits or authorizations may be modified, revoked						
3554	and reissued, or terminated either at the request of any interested person or upon the						
3555	administrator=s initiative. However, permits or authorizations may only be modified, revoked						
3556	and reissued, or terminated for the reasons specified in Sections 12 and 13. All requests shall be						
3557	in writing and shall contain facts or reasons supporting the request.						
3558							
3559	(d) Reasons for permit modification. A permit may be modified in whole or in part						
3560	when:						
3561							
3562	(i) There are material and substantial alterations or additions to the						
3563	permitted facility or activity which occurred after permit issuance which justify the application of						
3564	permit conditions that are different or absent in the existing permit.						
3565							
3566	(ii) The administrator has received new information which was not available						
3567	at the time of permit issuance (other than revised regulations, guidance, or test methods) and						
3568	which would have justified different permit conditions at the time of issuance, including						
3569	information derived from effluent testing required under Section 5 (c) (v). This provision allows						
3570	modification of a permit to include conditions that may be less stringent than the existing permit						
3571	to the extent allowed under Section 12 (d) (iii).						
3572	to the chieff and the under section 12 (a) (iii).						
3573	(iii) The standards or regulations on which the permit was based have been						
3574	changed by promulgation of amended standards or regulations or by judicial decision after the						
3575	permit was issued. Permits may be modified during their terms for this cause only as follows:						
3576	permit was issued. Termits may be induffed during their terms for this eduse only as follows.						
3577 3577	(A) The permit condition requested to be modified was based on a						
3578	promulgated effluent limitation guideline, secondary treatment regulations specified in Appendix						
3578 3579	E, or water quality standard; and						
	E, or water quanty standard, and						
3580 3581	(B) EPA or the department has revised, withdrawn, or modified that						
	•						
3582 2592	portion of the federal regulation on which the permit condition was based, or the Environmental						
3583 3584	Quality Council has approved a revised water quality standard or effluent limitation on which the permit condition was based; and						
3 104	DELINI CONOLION WAS DASECTANO						

2-79

regulation, within 90 days after the notice of final action by which the EPA effluent limitation

(C)

The permittee requests modification as required in this

3588 3589	guideline, water upon the admin		standard, or effluent limitation is revised, withdrawn, or modified or
3590	upon the admin	1811 4101-	-s initiative, or
3590 3591			(D) For judicial decisions, a court of competent jurisdiction
3592	has remanded a	nd stave	ed EPA promulgated regulations or effluent limitation guidelines, if the
3592 3593			rn that portion of the regulations or guidelines on which the permit
3593 3594			
3594 3595			d a request is filed by the permittee in accordance with this regulation,
	within 90 days of	or judic	iai iemanu.
3596 3597		(i)	The administrator determines that good cover eviets to modify a namit
		(iv)	The administrator determines that good cause exists to modify a permit
3598 3599			vents over which the permittee has no control and for which there is no
	reasonable avail	lable re	medy.
3600		()	When required to incomparate analizable toxic officer the instation on
3601		(v)	When required to incorporate applicable toxic effluent limitation or
3602	standards adopt	ea purs	uant to Section 307 (a) of the CWA.
3603		(i)	When required by the recovery conditions in the require
3604		(vi)	When required by the reopener conditions in the permit.
3605		<i>(</i>)	XXII 4 1 1 CT 1 C 11 4 4 1 1 1 4 1 1 4 1
3606	. 1	(vii)	When the level of discharge of any pollutant which is not limited in the
3607	•		el which can be achieved by the technology-based treatment requirements
3608	appropriate to the	ne facili	ty.
3609			
3610		(viii)	To establish a pollutant notification level required in Section 5 (c) (i) (B),
3611	(W), (X), (Y) or	Appen	Idix B.
3612		<i>(</i> :)	
3613	•	(ix)	To correct technical mistakes, such as errors in calculation, or mistaken
3614	_	or raw n	nade in determining permit conditions, to the extent allowed in Section 5
3615	(c) (iii) (M).		
3616		()	
3617	. 1'	(x)	Discharge volume will increase above what was described in the most
3618	current applicat	ion or p	ermit.
3619		<i>(</i> •)	0.64 211 11111
3620		(xi)	Outfalls will be added, deleted or moved.
3621		<i>(</i>)	
3622	1 9 11 1	(xii)	The receiving surface waters of the state will change from what was
3623	described in the	most c	urrent application.
3624			
3625		(xiii)	The time of discharge will be changed where seasonal or time-limited
3626	conditions for d	ıscharg	e may be established.
3627			
3628		(xiv)	The administrator determines good cause exists for modification of a
3629	_		uch as an act of God, strike, flood, or materials shortage or other events
3630			ee has little or no control and for which there is no reasonably available
3631			no case may a WYPDES compliance schedule be modified to extend
3632	beyond an appli	cable C	WA statutory deadline.
3633			

3634	(xv) When a discharger is no longer eligible for net limitations, as provided	d in
3635	Section 5 (c) of these regulations.	
3636		
3637	(xvi) To modify a schedule of compliance to reflect the time lost during	
3638	construction of an innovative or alternative facility, in the case of a POTW which has received	l a
3639	grant under Section 202 (a) (3) of the CWA for 100 percent of the costs to modify or replace	
3640	facilities constructed with a grant for innovative and alternative wastewater technology under	
3641	Section 202 (a) (2). In no case shall the compliance schedule be modified to extend beyond an	1
3642	applicable CWA statutory deadline for compliance.	
3643		
3644	(xvii) For a small MS4, to include an effluent limitation requiring	
3645	implementation of a minimum control measure or measures specified in Section 6 of these	
3646	regulations when:	
3647		
3648	(I) The permit does not include such measure(s) based upon the	
3649	determination that another entity was responsible for implementation of the requirements(s); as	nd
3650		
3651	(II) The other entity fails to implement measure(s) that satisfy the	
3652	requirement(s).	
3653	1	
3654	(xviii) Cause exists for termination under Section 13 of these regulations, and	d
3655	the administrator determines that modification or revocation and reissuance is appropriate.	
3656		
3657	(xix) Other changes to information described in Section 5 (c) (i) (B).	
3658	. , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
3659	(xx) When a downstream state was not properly notified	
3660	of a proposed permit.	
3661		
3662	(e) Reasons for authorization modification. An authorization may be modified in	
3663	whole or in part when:	
3664	•	
3665	(i) There are material and substantial alterations or additions to the	
3666	permitted facility or activity which occurred after issuance of an authorization.	
3667		
3668	(ii) The administrator has received new information which was not availa	.ble
3669	at the time of permit issuance.	
3670		
3671	(iii) To correct technical mistakes, such as errors in calculation, or mistake	en
3672	interpretations of law made in determining authorization conditions.	
3673		
3674	(iv) Discharge volume will increase above what was described in the most	t
3675	current application or authorization.	
3676	**	
3677	(v) Conditions described in Section 12 (d) (v) through (vii) and (xiii) exis	t.
3678		

3679	(vi) For a small MS4, to include an effluent limitation requiring
3680	implementation of a minimum control measure or measures specified in Section 6 of these
3681	regulations when:
3682	(A) The authorization does not include such measure(s) based upon
3683	the determination that another entity was responsible for implementation of the requirements(s);
3684	and
3685	
3686	(B) The other entity fails to implement measure(s) that satisfy the
3687	requirement(s).
3688	requirement(b).
3689	(f) Permit revocation and reissuance. When a permit is revoked and reissued under
3690	this section, the entire permit is reopened just as if the permit had expired and was being reissued.
3691	During any revocation and reissuance proceeding, the permittee shall comply with all conditions
3692	of the existing permit until a new final permit is reissued.
3693	of the existing permit than a new final permit is reassued.
3694	(g) Processing procedures for major modifications. Major modifications for permits
3695	and authorizations will be subjected to the processing procedures described in Sections 4, 5 and 6
3696	of these regulations.
3697	of these regulations.
3698	(h) Processing procedures for minor modifications. Minor modifications to permits
3699	and authorizations shall not be subject to the processing procedures of Sections 4, 5 and 6. Minor
3700	modifications to permits and authorizations will be processed according to the following
3701	procedures:
3701	procedures.
3702	(i) Where a modification to an individual permit is initiated by the
3704	permittee, notification that the modification has been incorporated into the permit will be
3704	provided to the permittee within 30 days of the permittee=s submittal of a complete application
3706	for modification to the administrator;
3707	To modification to the administrator,
3707	(ii) Where an application for modification to an authorization is submitted by
3709	the permittee and the administrator determines that the modification can be authorized, a revised
3710	authorization reflecting the modification will be provided to the permittee within 30 days of the
3711	permittee=s submittal of a complete notice of intent for modification to the department, or as
3711	described in the general permit under which coverage is provided;
3712	described in the general permit under which coverage is provided,
3713	(iii) Where an application for modification to an authorization is submitted by
3714	* *
	the permittee and the administrator determines that the modification can not be authorized, a
3716	notification shall be provided to the permittee of such determination within 30 days of the
3717	permittee=s submittal of a complete notice of intent for modification to the department, or as
3718	described in the general permit under which coverage is provided.
3719	(i) Conditions subject to modification When a second is an difficult of
3720	(i) Conditions subject to modification. When a permit is modified, only the
3721	conditions subject to modification are reopened. The term of the modified permit will not be
3722	extended beyond the term of the permit being modified.

3724	(j) No stay of permit conditions. The filing of a request by the permittee for a
3725 3726	permit modification does not stay any permit condition.
3727	(k) Antibacksliding. All effluent permit modifications and reissuances are subject to
3728	the antibacksliding provisions set forth in Section 5 (c) (iii) (M).
3729	
3730	(l) Draft permits and authorization notification. For major modifications to permits,
3731	the administrator will prepare a summary describing the proposed modification(s). Copies of the
3732	modification summary will be provided to permittees for review at the time of public notice. For
3733	modifications to authorizations, copies of the issued authorizations will be provided to permittees
3734	within ten (10) days of issuance.
3735	
3736	(m) Denial of permit or authorization modification requests. Except for denial based
3737	upon incompleteness of an application, if the director proposes to deny issuance of a permit or
3738	authorization modification, the applicant shall be notified by registered or certified mail of the
3739	intent to deny and the reason for denial.
3740	Section 13. Permit and Authorization Terminations.
3741	(a) Reasons for permit or authorization termination. A permit or authorization may
3742	be terminated during its term for reasons determined by the department including, but not limited
3743	to, the following:
3744	
3745	(i) Violation of any terms or conditions of the permit;
3746	
3747	(ii) Obtaining a permit by misrepresentation or failing to disclose any fact
3748	which is material to the granting or denial of a permit or to the establishment of terms or
3749	conditions of the permit;
3750	
3751	(iii) Materially false or inaccurate statements or information in the permit
3752	application or the permit; or
3753	
3754	(iv) A determination that the permitted activity endangers human health or
3755	the classified or existing uses of surface waters of the state and can only be regulated to
3756	acceptable levels by permit modifications or termination.
3757	(h) Dublic notice of namnit terminations on representing. Dublic notice shall be given
3758	(b) Public notice of permit terminations or revocations. Public notice shall be given
3759 3760	of the intent to terminate or revoke a permit in accordance with the provisions of Section 15 of these regulations.
3760 3761	these regulations.
3762	(c) Notification of authorization termination. Notification shall be sent to the
3763	permittee of an authorization that is being terminated stating the reasons for termination and the
3764	effective date of termination.
3765	
3766	
3767	

3768 Section 14. Signatory Requirements. 3769 Signatures for applications and notices of intent (NOI). Applications, NOIs, and 3770 other documents required to accompany said applications or NOI when submitted to the 3771 department must be signed as follows: 3772 3773 In the case of corporations, by a principal executive officer of at least the (i) 3774 level of vice president, or the manager of one or more manufacturing, production, or operating facilities, provided, the manager is authorized to make management decisions which govern the 3775 3776 overall operation of the facility from which the discharge originates as described in the 3777 application, NOI or other required documentation; 3778 3779 (ii) In the case of a partnership, by a general partner; 3780 3781 (iii) In the case of a sole proprietorship, by the proprietor; and 3782 3783 In the case of a municipal, state, federal, or other public facility, by either (iv) 3784 a principal executive officer or ranking elected official. 3785 3786 Signatures for reports and other required information. Except for NOI and (b) 3787 permit applications which must be signed in accordance with paragraph (a) of this section, all 3788 reports required by permits, and other information requested by the administrator must be signed 3789 as described in paragraph (a) of this section or by a duly authorized representative. A person is 3790 only a duly authorized representative if: 3791 3792 The authorization is made in writing by a person described in paragraph (i) 3793 (a) of this Section; and 3794 3795 The authorization specifies either an individual or a position having (ii) 3796 responsibility for the overall operation of the regulated facility or activity. 3797 3798 Certification. Any person signing a document under paragraph (a) or (b) of this 3799 Section shall make the following certification, unless otherwise set forth in these regulations: 3800 3801 "I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared 3802 under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified 3803 personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the 3804 person or persons who manage the system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the 3805 information, the information submitted is to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate 3806 and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, 3807 including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations." 3808 3809 (d) Change in signatory authorization. If an authorization under paragraph (b) of this 3810 section is no longer accurate because a different individual or position has responsibility for the 3811 overall operation of the regulated facility or activity, a new authorization satisfying the

3812 3813 3814	requirements of paragraph (b) of this section must be submitted to the administrator prior to or together with any reports or other information to be signed by the authorized representative.
3815 3816 3817 3818 3819	(e) Violations. Any person who knowingly makes any false statement, representation, or certification in any record or other document submitted or required to be maintained under this permit, including monitoring reports or reports of compliance or noncompliance shall be in violation of the permit, these regulations and the Environmental Quality Act.
3820	Section 15. Public Participation.
3821 3822 3823 3824 3825	Major modifications, issuance, or reissuance of every draft permit; or where the administrator proposes to terminate coverage under an individual permit; or where the administrator proposes to conduct a public meeting in accordance with Section 16 of these regulations, the following procedures shall be used.
3826 3827 3828 3829	(a) Public notice. Public notice of every draft permit, public meeting being held pursuant to Section 16 of the regulations, or granting of an appeal shall be given in the following manner:
3830 3831 3832	(i) In addition to the applicable provisions of Section 15 (a) (ii) through (v), notice shall be circulated by one or more of the following methods:
3833 3834 3835	(A) For individual permits, posting in the post office and other public places of the municipality nearest the location(s) of the proposed discharge(s);
3836 3837 3838	(B) For individual permits, posting near the entrance to the applicant's premises;
3839 3840 3841	(C) For individual permits, publication in newspapers of general circulation in the locations of the proposed discharges;
3842 3843 3844	(D) For individual and general permits, publication in a newspaper with statewide distribution;
3845 3846 3847	(E) For general permits, publication in a newspaper with circulation in the geographic area defined in the general permit.
3848 3849 3850 3851	(ii) For individual permits, where a proposed outfall would occur on property that is not owned by the applicant, a copy of the public notice will be provided to the owner of the property.
3852 3853 3854 3855	(iii) For general permits, in accordance with applicable provisions of the general permit.

	(iv)	For m	ajor peri	nits, publication in a daily or weekly newspaper within the
area affected	by the fa	cility or	activity.	
	·	•	-	
	(v)	In add	lition to	Section 15 (a) (i) through (iv), publication on the
Wyoming De	` '			al Quality Internet Website (http://deq.state.wy.us).
,	· F			
	(vi)	No ni	ıblic noti	ce is required when a request for permit modification,
revocation ar	` '	•		on, or coverage or modification under a general permit is
denied.	ia reissua	nee, or t	Cililiati	on, of coverage of mounteation under a general permit is
deffied.				
	(vii)	Thon	nnlicent	shall be mailed a copy of the fact sheet, which includes the
nublic notice	` '		• •	t, and the statement of basis. The applicant will not be
•			•	**
maned a copy	y or the a	ppncan	on materi	als, which is also part of the fact sheet.
	, ····	NT .:	1 11 1	9.1.
1 11	(viii)			e mailed to any person upon request, and the administrator
•	•		ne of any	person to a list of persons or parties designated to receive
copies of pub	olic notice	es.		
	(ix)			ator shall provide a period of not less than 30 days
•	•	oublic no	otice duri	ng which interested persons may submit their comments
on draft perm	nits.			
	(x)	The c	ontents o	of the public notices for draft permits shall include the
following:				-
C				
		(A)	Name	, address, phone number, and internet address of the Water
Quality Divis	sion:	()		, , r
Quality 2111	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,			
		(B)	For in	dividual permits:
		(D)	I OI III	arviduai permits.
			(I)	Names and addresses of the applicants:
			(I)	Names and addresses of the applicants;
			(TT)	
			(II)	A brief description of each activity or operation resulting
in the dischar	rge descri	bed in e	ach appl	ication;
			(III)	The name of the water course to which such discharge is
made and a g	general de	scription	n of the l	ocation of each outfall;
		-		
			(IV)	A statement of the tentative determination to issue the
permit;			` /	
r,				
		(C)	For ge	eneral permits:
		(0)	I of ge	Alorai porinito.
			(T)	A brief description of the activity on approximation according
t., d 11 1		1.1.1.4	(I)	A brief description of the activity or operation resulting
	-		_	will provide coverage and a description of effluent
limitations ar	nd monito	ring rea	uirement	ts that are being proposed;

3902									
3903				(II)	A description	of the geograp	ohic area co	vered by the	
3904	general permit	•							
3905									
3906			(D)	The e	nd date of the 30	day comment	period; and		
3907			(-)						
3908	1\ 1		(E)		tement that a cop	-			
3909	prepared), and	other in	formatı	on is ava	ailable at the addı	ress specified i	n paragraph	i (A) above.	
3910		<i>(</i> •)	(TDI		C 11: .:		1.11		
3911		(xi)			of a public notice	announcing a	public mee	ting shall be in	n
3912	accordance wit	th Section	on 16 (c) of thes	e regulations.				
3913	(1-)	Minon	£0 0:1:4:	Fam.		:4-, 41-, ,,,,,;,,;			
3914	(b)				every minor facili				:4
3915			•	•	raft permit. The		•	•	nıt
3916	application sna	iii be ava	anabie	or publi	c inspection duri	ng the public c	omment pe	rioa.	
3917 3918	(a)	Maion	faciliti	a Eon e	vyamy majam faaili	ity the edmini	atmatam ahall	mmomomo and	
3918 3919	(c)	-			every major facili	•			
3920					ailable, to any pe the notice. The a				
3920 3921	_				ose parties or per				
3921		_	-		hall consist of, at	_	_		Ci
3923		•			formation when a	•	ne statemen	it of basis and	
3924	application, in	cruding	ine rom	Jwing in	Tormation when a	аррисаотс.			
3924		(i)	Δ cke	etch or de	escription of the o	discharge desc	rihed in the	permit	
3926	application;	(1)	A SKC	ich of u	escription of the C	inscharge dese	iioca iii tiic	permit	
3927	application,								
3928		(ii)	A ans	antitative	e description of th	ne discharge w	hich shall ir	nclude the rate	or
3929	frequency of d	` '	_		mmer and winter	_			<i>,</i> 01
3930		_		_	ograms per day o	-			
3931	discharge in po	ounus pe	a day a	ild, of illi	ograms per day o	if any types of	waste in the	o discharge,	
3932		(iii)	Any t	entative	determinations re	eached by the	administrato	or concerning	the
3933	application;	(111)	1 111 /					or concerning	
3934	appirourion,								
3935		(iv)	A brie	ef citatio	on of any water qu	uality standard	s and efflue	ent standards tl	hat
3936	apply to the pr	` /			, 1				
3937	Tr J	1		5 - 7					
3938		(v)	A cor	nprehen	sive description o	of the procedur	es for form	ulating a final	
3939	decision with r	espect to		_	_	•		C	
3940		•	1	•	<i>U</i> ,				
3941			(A)	The b	eginning and end	ding dates of th	e public co	mment period	
3942	and the address	s where	` '		-	_	-	•	
3943									
3944			(B)	Proce	dures for request	ing a meeting	and the natu	are of that	
3945	meeting; and				-	-			
3946	-								

3947		(C)	Any other procedures by which the public may participate in the
3948	final decision.	· /	
3949			
3950	(vi)) Any c	calculations or other necessary explanation of the derivation of
3951	specific effluent lim	nitations ar	d conditions, including a citation to applicable effluent guidelines
3952	or performance stan	ndards and	reasons why they are applicable or an explanation of how
3953	alternative effluent		
3954			•
3955	(vii	i) For p	ermits to be issued to a treatment works owned by a person other
3956	than a state or muni	cipality, a	n explanation of the administrator=s decision to issue a permit with
3957	no conditions applie	cable to an	y user, to impose conditions on one or more users, to issue separate
3958	applications, and the		
3959			
3960	(vii	ii) Wher	the draft permit contains any of the following conditions, an
3961	explanation of the r		t such conditions are applicable:
3962	•		
3963		(A)	Limitations to control toxic pollutants;
3964			•
3965		(B)	Limitations on internal waste streams;
3966			
3967		(C)	Limitations on indicator pollutants;
3968			•
3969		(D)	Limitations set on a case-by-case basis;
3970			
3971		(E)	Limitations to meet the criteria for permit issuance; or
3972			
3973		(F)	Waivers from monitoring requirements.
3974			
3975	(ix)) Reaso	ons why any requested variances or alternatives to required
3976	standards do or do r	not appear	justified.
3977			
3978	(x)	Justif	ication for waiver for any application requirements where such a
3979	waiver is allowed u	nder the pr	rovisions of these regulations.
3980			
3981	(d) Go	vernmenta	l agency mailing list. The following governmental agencies shall
3982	be included on a ma	ailing list f	or receipt of fact sheets unless such agency requests not to be
3983	included on the mai	iling list, a	nd each will be provided an opportunity to comment upon the draft
3984	permit(s).		
3985			
3986	(i)	Unite	d States Environmental Protection Agency.
3987			
3988	(ii)	Secon	nd Coast Guard District.
3989			
3990	(iii)) Unite	d States Bureau of Reclamation.
3991			
3992	(iv)) Natur	al Resources Conservation Service.

3993			
3994		(v)	United States Forest Service.
3995			
3996		(vi)	United States Bureau of Land Management.
3997			
3998		(vii)	United StatesFish and Wildlife Service.
3999			
4000		(viii)	United States Army Corps of Engineers.
4001			
4002		(ix)	Wyoming Game and Fish Department.
4003			
4004		(x)	Wyoming Oil and Gas Conservation Commission.
4005			
4006		(xi)	Wyoming State Historic Preservation Office.
4007			
4008		(xii)	Wyoming State Engineer.
4009			
4010		(xiii)	Any other state or federal agency requesting to be placed on the mailing
4011	list.		
4012			
4013	(e)		ation to affected states. Any state whose waters may be affected by the
4014	_		all be provided with a copy of the public notice and any other relevant
4015			lested. Each state whose waters may be affected shall be afforded an
4016			t on the draft permit, and the administrator shall take these comments into
4017			e final permit, or the administrator shall provide the affected state, and the
4018	•		of the EPA, a written explanation of his reasons for failing to accept any
4019	of the commer	its.	
4020	4.00		
4021	(f)		n comments request for public meeting. During the public comment
4022	• •	•	graph (a) (v) of this section, any interested person may submit written
4023		•	ermit and may request a public meeting. A request for public meeting shall
4024	be made in wr	iting in a	ccordance with Section 16.
4025			
4026	()	D	
4027	(g)	•	ase to comments. Before a final permit decision is considered, the
4028	administrator s	snan prep	pare a response to comments which is subject to the following conditions:
4029		(')	A
4030		(i)	A response to all comments received within the time frame specified in
4031		(v) or this	s Section shall be prepared and provided to the parties submitting
4032	comments;		
4033		(;;)	The response shall energify which provisions if any of the dustit
4034	hove been al-	(ii)	The response shall specify which provisions, if any, of the draft permit
4035	nave been char	ngea in ti	he final permit decision, and the reasons for the change; and
4036		(iii)	The response shall provide the reasons why any comments did not
4037	magnities a steel	(iii)	The response shall provide the reasons why any comments did not
4038	result in a chai	ige to the	e draft permit; and

4039	
4040	(iv) The response to comments shall be made available to the public; and
4041	
4042	(v) Responses to comments from other governmental agencies shall be
4043 4044	addressed in accordance with 40 CFR 124.59.
4045	(h) Alternative effluent limitations. Public notice for any request made under
4046 4047	Appendix M of these regulations shall include the following:
4048	(i) A statement that the thermal component of the discharge is subject to
4049	effluent limitations under Sections 301 or 306 of the CWA and a brief description, including a
4050	quantitative statement, or the thermal effluent limitations proposed under Sections 301 or 306;
4051	
4052	(ii) A statement that an Appendix M request has been filed and that
4053	alternative less stringent effluent limitations may be imposed on the thermal component of the
4054	discharge under Appendix M and a brief description, including a quantitative statement, of the
4055	alternative effluent limitations, if any, included in the request; and
4056	
4057	(iii) If the applicant has filed an early screening request under Appendix M of
4058	these regulations, a statement that the applicant has submitted such a plan.
4059	Section 16. Public Meeting.
4060	(a) Reason for public meeting.
4061	
4062	(i) Request for public meeting. The administrator shall provide an
4063	opportunity for the applicant or any interested person or state to request a public meeting, with
4064	the administrator, with respect to any draft permit. Any such request shall be filed in writing
4065	during the comment period specified in Section 15 (a) (ix) above, and shall indicate the interest of
4066	the party and the reasons why a meeting is warranted. If the administrator finds that there is a
4067	significant degree of public interest in holding such a meeting, hold such a meeting in the
4068	geographic area where the proposed discharge is located, or other appropriate area. If the
4069	administrator determines that a public meeting is not warranted, he shall provide written
4070	notification of his decision to the party requesting the meeting.
4071	
4072	(ii) Public meetings to provide clarification. The administrator may also
4073	hold a public meeting at his discretion, whenever, for instance, such a meeting might clarify one
4074	or more issues involved in the permit decision.
4075	
4076	(b) Purpose. The purpose of holding public meetings is to seek information and
4077	facilitate clarification in order for the administrator to make a more informed decision.
4078	
4079	(c) Public notice of a public meeting. Public notice of a public meeting held
4080	pursuant to paragraph (a) of this section, will be utilizing all of the methods available for notice of
4081	the permit application set out in paragraph b. given as described in Section 15 (a) (i) of these
4082	regulations, and such notice will be provided no less than 30 days in advance of the meeting. The
4083	contents of the public notice will consist of the following:

4084			
4085		(i)	Name, address, and phone number of the Wyoming Water Quality
4086	Division;		
4087			
4088		(ii)	Name, and address of each applicant whose draft permit will be
4089	considered at	the mee	ting;
4090			
4091		(iii)	Name of waterway to which each discharge is made and a short
4092	description o	f the loca	ation of each discharge on the waterway associated with the draft permit(s);
4093			
4094		(iv)	Brief reference to the public notice issued for each draft permit,
4095	including ide	ntificatio	on number and date of issuance.
4096			
4097		(v)	Information regarding the date, time, and location of the meeting;
4098		<i>(</i> •)	
4099	41 12 1.1	(vi)	A brief description of the nature and purpose of the meeting, including
4100	the applicabl	e ruies ar	nd procedures to be followed;
4101		(****)	A consider statement of the issues raised by the marsons requesting the
4102 4103	meeting;	(vii)	A concise statement of the issues raised by the persons requesting the
4103	meeting,		
4104		(viii)	A statement that a copy of the draft permit, statement of basis, and other
4105	information i	, ,	le at the address specified in paragraph (a) of this section.
4107	imormation	.s avaiiao	ie at the address specified in paragraph (a) of this section.
4108	(d)	Subm	nittal of statements and data. Any person may submit written or oral
4109	` '		oncerning the draft permit. Reasonable limits may be set upon the time
4110			ments, and the submission of written statements may be requested. The
4111			d under Section 15 (a) shall be automatically extended to the close of any
4112	public meetii	_	
4113	1	0	
4114	(e)	Docu	mentation of the public meeting. An audio or video tape recording or
4115	` '		ne public meeting shall be made available to the public.
		-	
4116	Sect	<u>ion 17. H</u>	learing.
4117	In an	v case w	here the director makes a decision to issue, modify, or terminate a permit of
4118		-	nit authorization, or where the director makes a decision to deny issuance or
4119		_	mit or MS4 storm water permit authorization, any interested person may
4120		•	ore the Environmental Quality Council. A request for hearing shall be made
4121	_	-	e applicable Department of Environmental Quality=s Rules of Practice and
4122	Procedure.		
4100	G 4	. 10 D	
4123	Sect	<u>ion 18. P</u>	<u>ublic</u> <u>Information.</u>
4124	(a)	Avail	ability of information. All information required on or attached to permit
4125	application fo		ices of intent, reporting forms, draft or issued permits, authorizations, or
4126			e shall be made available to the public for inspection and copying, subject

4127	to W.S. 35-11-	1101 ar	nd all other applicable state laws. The administrator shall provide facilities	
4128	for inspection	of all no	on-confidential documents.	
4129				
4130	(b)	Appli	cability of trade secrets. The following information may not be considered	
4131	to constitute tra	ade secr	rets and must be made available to the public:	
4132				
4133		(i)	Name and address of any permit applicant or permittee;	
4134				
4135		(ii)	Permit applications, permits and effluent data.	
4136	Section	<u>n 19. T</u>	ransfer of Permits.	
4137				
4138	(a)	Permi	ts may be transferred by a permittee to a new owner or operator if:	
4139				
4140		(i)	Conditional transfers. The permit has been modified or revoked and	
4141	reissued to idea	ntify the	e new permittee and to incorporate such other requirements as may be	
4142	necessary unde	er these	regulations.	
4143				
4144		(ii)	Automatic transfers. A permit may be automatically transferred to a new	
4145	permittee if:			
4146				
4147			(A) The current permittee notifies the director in writing at least 30	
4148	days in advance of the proposed transfer date in paragraph (b) (ii) of this Section;			
4149				
4150			(B) The notice includes a written agreement between the existing	
4151	and new permi	ttees on	a form provided by the administrator. The form shall contain a specific	
4152	date for transfe	er of per	mit responsibility, coverage and liability between the two parties; and	
4153				
4154			(C) The director does not notify the existing permittee and the	
4155	proposed new	permitte	ee of its intent to modify or revoke and reissue the permit.	
4156				

Intentionally left blank

<u>APPENDIX A: Explanation of Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Codes Regulated by</u> <u>the Industrial Storm Water Program</u>

I., J., 4, T	CIC C 1	C (
Industry Type	SIC Code	Comments
Metal mining and milling	10	(a)
Coal mining	12	(a)
Oil and Gas Extraction	13	
Mining and quarrying of nonmetallic minerals except fuels	14	(a)
Food and kindred products	20	
Tobacco products	21	
Textile mill products	22	
Apparel and other finished products made from fabric and similar materials	23	
Lumber and wood products except furniture	24	
Furniture and fixtures	25	
Paper and allied products	26	
Printing, publishing, and allied products	27	
Chemicals and allied products	28	
Petroleum refining and related industries	29	
Rubber and miscellaneous plastics products	30	
Leather and leather products	31	
Stone, clay, glass and concrete products	32	
Primary metal industries	33	
Fabrication of metal products, except machinery and transportation equipment	34	
Industrial and commercial machinery and computer equipment	35	
Electronic and other electrical equipment and components, except compute		
equipment	36	
Transportation equipment	37	
Measuring analyzing, and controlling instruments; Photographic, medical, and		
optical goods; watches and clocks	38	
Miscellaneous manufacturing industries	39	
Railroad transportation	40	(b)
Local and suburban transit and interurban highway passenger transportation	41	(b)
	42	(0)
	(except 4221,	
Motor freight transportation and warehousing	4222, and 4225)	(b)
	.===,,	(-)
Farm product warehousing and storage	4221	
Refrigerated warehousing and storage	4222	
General warehousing and storage	4225	
US Postal facilities	43	(b)
Water transportation	44	(b)
Transportation by air	45	(b)
Motor vehicle parts, used	13	(0)
Trotor remote pures, used	5015	
Scrap and waste materials	5093	
Sorap and waste materials	3073	(b)
Petroleum bulk stations and terminals	5171	(0)
Comments:	51/1	l

Comments:

 (a) For this SIC Code, a storm water permit is required only if runoff contacts overburden, raw material, intermediate products, finished products, byproducts or waste products located on the site of such operations.

(b) In this SIC Code, only facilities with vehicle maintenance (including vehicle rehabilitation, mechanical repairs, painting, fueling, and lubrication), equipment cleaning, or airport deicing need a storm water permit.

This page intentionally left blank

4208 4209

4210

final compliance dates.

4166	APPENDIX B: Additional Requirements Applicable to Existing Manufacturing,
4167	Commercial, Mining and Silviculture Discharges
4168	
4169	(a) Application requirements. Existing manufacturing, commercial, mining, and
4170	silviculture discharges applying for permits, except for those facilities which discharge only non-
4171	process wastewater, shall provide the following information, in addition to that described in
4172	Section 5 (a) (v), to the administrator, using the application forms provided by the administrator.
4173	
4174	(i) A line drawing of the water flow through the facility with a water
4175	balance, showing operations contributing wastewater to the effluent and treatment units. Similar
4176	processes, operations, or production areas may be indicated as a single unit, labeled to correspond
4177	to the more detailed identification required in paragraph (a) (ii) of this appendix. The water
4178	balance must show approximate average flows at intake and discharge points and between units,
4179	including treatment units. If a water balance cannot be determined (for example, for certain
4180	mining activities), the applicant may provide instead a pictorial description of the nature and
4181	amount of any sources of water and any collection and treatment measures.
4182	
4183	(ii) Average flows and treatment. A narrative identification of each type of
4184	process, operation, or production area which contributes wastewater to the effluent for each
4185	outfall, including process wastewater, cooling water, and storm water runoff; the average flow
4186	which each process contributes; and a description of the treatment the wastewater receives,
4187	including the ultimate disposal of any solid or fluid wastes other than by discharge. Processes,
4188	operations, or production areas may be described in general terms (for example, "dye-making
4189	reactor," "distillation tower") For a privately owned treatment works, this information shall
4190	include the identity of each user of the treatment works. The average flow of point sources
4191	composed of storm water may be estimated. The basis for the rainfall event and the method of
4192	estimation must be indicated.
4193	
4194	(iii) Intermittent flows. If any of the discharges described in paragraph (a)
4195	(ii) of this appendix are intermittent or seasonal, a description of the frequency, duration and flow
4196	rate of each discharge occurrence (except for storm water runoff, spillage or leaks).
4197	
4198	(iv) Maximum production. If an effluent guideline listed in Section 5 (c) of
4199	these regulations applies to the applicant and is expressed in terms of production (or other
4200	measure of operation), a reasonable measure of the applicant's actual production reported in the
4201	units used in the applicant effluent limitation. The reported measure must reflect the actual
4202 4203	production of the facility.
4203 4204	(v) Improvements. If the applicant is subject to any present requirements or
4204	(v) Improvements. If the applicant is subject to any present requirements or compliance schedules for construction, upgrading or operation of waste treatment equipment, an
4205 4206	identification of the abatement requirement, a description of the abatement project and projected

(vi) Quantitative data. At a minimum, the applicant shall submit quantitative data for pollutants in the discharge as provided in this paragraph and in paragraph (a) (vi) (G) of

4211	this appendix. For purposes of	this par	agraph, an applicant is expected to know or have reason to
4212	believe that a pollutant is prese	ent in an	effluent based on an evaluation of the expected use,
4213	production, or storage of the po	ollutant,	or on any previous analyses for the pollutant.
4214			
4215	(A)	Every	applicant must report quantitative data for every outfall
4216	for the following pollutants:	•	
4217	21		
4218		(I)	Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD5),
4219			
4220		(II)	Chemical Oxygen Demand,
4221			
4222		(III)	Total Organic Carbon,
4223			· ·
4224		(IV)	Total Suspended Solids,
4225			-
4226		(V)	Ammonia (as N),
4227			
4228		(VI)	Temperature (both winter and summer), and
4229			
4230		(VII)	pH.
4231			
4232	(B)	The ac	lministrator may waive the reporting requirements for
4233	individual point sources or for	a particu	ular industry category for one or more of the pollutants
4234	listed in paragraph (a) (vi) (A)	of this a	ppendix if the applicant has demonstrated that such a
4235	waiver is appropriate because i	nformat	ion adequate to support issuance of a permit can be
4236	obtained with less stringent req	quiremen	ats.
4237			
4238	(C)	Each a	applicant with processes in one or more primary industry
4239	category (see Appendix A to 40	0 CFR P	art 122) contributing to a discharge must report
4240	quantitative data for the follow	ing polli	utants in each outfall containing process wastewater:
4241			
4242		(I)	The organic toxic pollutants in the fractions designated
4243			ix D for the applicant's industrial category or categories.
4244	* *	_	c toxic pollutants in each fraction. The fractions result
4245	1 1 1		y the analytical procedure which uses gas
4246			determination that an applicant falls within a particular
4247			selecting fractions for testing is not conclusive as to the
4248	applicant's inclusion in that cat	egory fo	or any other purposes.
4249			
4250		(II)	The pollutants listed in 40 CFR Part 122, Table III of
4251	Appendix D (the toxic metals,	cyanide,	and total phenols).
4252			
4253	(D)		applicant must indicate whether they know or have reason
4254	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	tants as o	described in (I) or (II) below is discharged from each
4255	outfall.		
4256			

4257	(I) Any of the pollutants in Table IV of Appendix D (certain			
4258	conventional and non-conventional pollutants) of 40 CFR Part 122. If an applicable effluent			
4259	limitations guideline either directly limits the pollutant or, by its express terms, indirectly limits			
4260	the pollutant through limitations on an indicator, the applicant must report quantitative data. For			
4261	every pollutant discharged which is not so limited in an effluent limitations guideline, the			
4262	applicant must either report quantitative data or briefly describe the reasons the pollutant is			
4263	expected to be discharged.			
4264				
4265	(II) Any of the pollutants listed in Table II or Table III of			
4266	Appendix D (the toxic pollutants and total phenols) of 40 CFR Part 122 for which quantitative			
4267	data are not otherwise required under paragraph (a) (vi) (C) of this appendix. For every pollutant			
4268	expected to be discharged in concentrations of 10 ppb or greater the applicant must report			
4269	quantitative data For acrolein, acrylonitrile, 2,4 dinitrophenol, and 2-methyl-4,6 dinitrophenol,			
4270	where any of these four pollutants are expected to be discharged in concentrations of 100 ppb or			
4271	greater, the applicant must report qualitative data. For every pollutant expected to be discharged			
4272	in concentrations less than 10 ppb, or in the case of acrolein, acrylonitrile, 2,4 dinitrophenol, and			
4273	2-methyl-4,6 dinitrophenol, in concentrations less than 100 ppb, the applicant must either submit			
4274	quantitative data or briefly describe the reasons the pollutant is expected to be discharged.			
4275				
4276	(E) Each applicant must indicate whether they know or have reason			
4277	to believe that any of the pollutants in Table V of Appendix D of 40 CFR Part 122 (certain			
4278	hazardous substances and asbestos) are discharged from each outfall. For every pollutant			
4279	expected to be discharged, the applicant must briefly describe the reasons the pollutant is			
4280	expected to be discharged, and report any quantitative data it has for any pollutant.			
4281				
4282	(F) For purposes of paragraphs (C) and (D) above, the applicant			
4283	need not provide quantitative data if the pollutant is present in the discharge solely as a result of			
4284	the presence in intake water. However, the applicant must report such pollutant as present.			
4285				
4286	(G) Each applicant must report qualitative data, generated using a			
4287	screening procedure not calibrated with analytical standards, for 2,3,7,8-tetrachlorodibenzo-p-			
4288	dioxin (TCDD) if they:			
4289				
4290	(I) Use or manufacture 2,4,5-trichlorophenoxy acetic acid			
4291	(2,4,5,-T); 2-(2,4,5-trichlorophenoxy) propanoic acid (Silvex, 2,4,5,-TP); 2-(2,4,5-			
4292	trichlorophenoxy) ethyl, 2,2-dichloropropionate (Erbon); O,O-dimethyl O-(2,4,5-trichlorphenyl)			
4293	phosphorothioate (Ronnel); 2,4,5-trichlorophenol (TCP); or hexachlorophene (HCP); or			
4294				
4295	(II) Know or have reason to believe that TCDD is or may be			
4296	present in an effluent.			
4297				
4298	(vii) When quantitative data for a pollutant are required, the applicant must			
4299	collect a sample of effluent and analyze it for the pollutant in accordance with analytical methods			
4300	approved under 40 CFR Part 136. When no analytical method is approved the applicant may use			
4301	any suitable method but must provide a description of the method.			

4303	(A) When an applicant has two (2) or more outfalls with			
4304	substantially identical effluents, the department may allow the applicant to test only one (1)			
4305	outfall and report that the quantitative data also apply to the substantially identical outfalls.			
4306				
4307	(B) Grab samples must be used for pH, temperature, cyanide, total			
4308	phenols, residual chlorine, oil and grease, fecal coliform and fecal streptococcus.			
4309				
4310	(C) For all other pollutants, 24-hour composite samples must be			
4311	used. However, a minimum of one (1) grab sample may be taken for effluents from holding			
4312	ponds or other impoundments with a retention period greater than 24-hours. In addition, for			
4313	discharges other than storm water discharges, the administrator may waive composite sampling			
4314	for any outfall for which the applicant demonstrates that the use of an automatic sampler is			
4315	infeasible and that the minimum of four (4) grab samples will be a representative sample of the			
4316	effluent being discharged.			
4317				
4318	(viii) Used or manufactured toxins. A listing of any toxic pollutant which the			
4319	applicant currently uses or manufactures as an intermediate or final product or byproduct. The			
4320	administrator may waive or modify this requirement for any applicant who demonstrates that it			
4321	would be unduly burdensome to identify each toxic pollutant if the administrator has adequate			
4322	information to issue the permit.			
4323				
4324	(ix) An identification of any whole effluent toxicity tests which the applicant			
4325	knows or has reason to believe has been made within the last three (3) years on any of the			
4326	applicant's discharges or on a receiving water in relation to a discharge.			
4327	applicants discharges of on a receiving water in relation to a discharge.			
4328	(x) Contract analyses. If a contract laboratory or consulting firm performed			
4329	any of the analyses required in paragraphs (a) (vi) or (a) (vii) of this appendix, the applicant shall			
4330	identify each laboratory or firm and the analyses performed.			
4331	tue in the cruit of the cruit and the ununjous personned.			
4332	(xi) Small business exemption. An applicant which qualifies as a small			
4333	business under one of the following criteria is exempt from the requirements in Appendix B (a)			
4334	(vi) (C) (I) and the Table II quantitative requirement of Appendix B (a) (vi) (D) (II):			
4335	(vi) (c) (i) and the Table II quantitative requirement of Appendix B (a) (vi) (B) (II).			
4336	(A) For coal mines, the probable total annual production is less than			
4337	100,000 tons per year.			
4338	100,000 tons per year.			
4339	(B) For all other applicants, the gross total annual sales average less			
4340	than \$100,000 per year (in second quarter 1980 dollars).			
4341	than \$100,000 per year (in second quarter 1900 donars).			
4342	(b) Notification of routine toxic discharges not limited in the permit. Permits for			
4343 4344	existing manufacturing, commercial, mining and silvicultural discharges shall require that the			
	permittee report to the administrator as soon as the permittee knows or has reason to believe that			
4345	any activity has occurred or will occur which would result in the discharge, on a routine or			
4346	frequent basis, of any toxic pollutant which is not limited in the permit, if that discharge will			
4347	exceed the highest of the following notification levels:			
4348				

4349 4350		(i)	One hundred micrograms per liter (100 µg/l);
4351		(ii)	Two hundred micrograms per liter (200 µg/l) for acrolein and
4352	acrylonitrile: 1	` /	dred micrograms per liter (500 µg/l) for 2,4-dinitrophenol and for 2-methyl-
4353			one milligram per liter (1 mg/l) for antimony;
4354	, 1	,	
4355		(iii)	Five (5) times the maximum concentration value reported for that
4356	pollutant in th	e permit	application; or
4357	1	1	
4358		(iv)	The notification level established by the director in accordance with
4359	Section 5 (c) of	of these i	regulations.
4360			
4361	(c)	Notifi	cation of non-routine toxic discharges not limited in the permit Permits for
4362	existing manu	facturing	g, commercial, mining and silvicultural discharges shall require that the
4363	permittee repo	ort to the	director as soon as the permittee knows or has reason to believe that any
4364	activity has oc	curred o	or will occur which would result in any discharge, on a non-routine or
4365	infrequent bas	is, of an	y toxic pollutant which is not limited in the permit, if that discharge will
4366	exceed the hig	shest of t	the following notification levels:
4367	_		•
4368		(i)	Five hundred micrograms per liter (500 μg/l);
4369			
4370		(ii)	One milligram per liter (1 mg/l) for antimony;
4371			
4372		(iii)	Ten (10) times the maximum concentration value reported for that
4373	pollutant in th	e permit	application; or
4374			
4375		(iv)	The notification level established by the administrator in accordance with
4376	Section 5 (c) of	of these	regulations.

This page intentionally left blank.

4377	APPENDIX C: Additional Requirements Applicable to New Manufacturing, Commercial,						
4378	Mining and Silvicultural Discharges						
4379							
4380	(a) New r	nanufacturing, co	ommercial, mining and silvicultural dischargers applying				
4381		-	of facilities subject to the requirements of Appendix D of				
4382	these regulations), shall provide the following information, in addition to that described in						
4383	_	-	using the application form provided by the administrator.				
4384	(.,, (.,,,	,	r				
4385 4386	(i)	Discharge date	s. The expected date of commencement of discharge.				
4387 4388	(ii)	Flows, sources	of pollution, and treatment technologies.				
4389		(A) Expec	ted treatment of wastewater. Description of the treatment				
4390	that the wastewater wi	_	with all operations contributing wastewater to the effluent,				
4391		_	ation, and the ultimate disposal of any solid or liquid				
4392	wastes not discharges.	ed by eden open	aron, and the diffinate disposar of any solid of inquid				
4393	wastes not disenarges.						
4394		(B) Line d	rawing. A line drawing of the water flow through the				
4395	facility with a water ba		ed in Appendix B (a) (i).				
4396	incling with a water of	and the second					
4397		(C) Interm	ittent flows. If any of the expected discharges will be				
4398	intermittent or seasona		of the frequency, duration and maximum daily flow rate of				
4399		_	storm water runoff, spillage, or leaks).				
4400		(()					
4401	(iii)	Production. If	a new source performance standard promulgated under				
4402	` '		limitation guideline applies to the applicant and is				
4403	expressed in terms of production (or other measure of operation), a reasonable measure of the						
4404	applicant's expected actual production reported in the units used in the applicable effluent						
4405		-	andard for each of the first three (3) years. Alternative				
4406	estimates may also be submitted if production is likely to vary.						
4407							
4408	(iv)	Effluent charac	cteristics.				
4409	()						
4410		(A) Each a	applicant must report estimated daily maximum, daily				
4411	average, and source of	* *	each outfall for the following pollutants or parameters.				
4412							
4413		(I)	Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD5),				
4414		(-)					
4415		(II)	Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD),				
4416		()					
4417		(III)	Total Suspended Solids (TSS),				
4418		()	(/,				
4419		(IV)	Flow,				
4420		(- ·)	- · · · ,				
4421		(V)	Ammonia (as N),				

4422			
4423		(VI)	Temperature (winter and summer),
4424			•
4425		(VII)	pH, and
4426			•
4427		(VIII)	Total Organic Carbon (TOC).
4428		, ,	,
4429	(B)	The ad	ministrator may waive the reporting requirements for any
4430	of the pollutants and parameters	s in Appo	endix C (a) (iv) (A) if the applicant submits a request for
4431	such a waiver before or with the	e applica	ation which demonstrates that information adequate to
4432	support issuance of the permit of	can be ob	otained through less stringent reporting requirements.
4433			
4434	(C)	Each ap	pplicant must report estimated daily maximum, daily
4435	average, and source of informat	tion for e	each outfall for all pollutants in Table IV of Appendix D
4436	40 CFR Part 122 (certain conve	entional a	and non-conventional pollutants) if the applicant knows or
4437	has reason to believe the polluta	ants will	be present or if the pollutants are limited by an effluent
4438	_		ormance standard either directly or indirectly through
4439	limitations on an indicator pollu	ıtant.	•
4440	•		
4441	(D)	Each ap	pplicant must report estimated daily maximum, daily
4442	average and source of informati		ne following pollutants if they know or have reason to
4443	believe that the pollutant will be	e present	t in the discharges from any outfall:
4444	-	-	
4445		(I)	The pollutants listed in Table III of Appendix D (the
4446	toxic metals, in the discharge fr	om any	outfall: Total cyanide, and total phenols) of 40 CFR Part
4447	122;	•	•
4448			
4449		(II)	The organic toxic pollutants in Table II of Appendix D
4450	(except bis (chloromethyl) ether	r, dichlo	rofluoromethane and trichlorofluoromethane) of 40 CFR
4451	Part 122. This requirement is w	vaived fo	or applicants qualifying for the small business exemption
4452	as specified in Appendix B (a)	(xi).	
4453			
4454	(E)	The ap	plicant is required to report that 2,3,7,8
4455	Tetrachlorodibenzo-P-Dioxin (TCDD) 1	may be discharged if he uses or manufactures one of the
4456	following compounds, or if he l	knows or	has reason to believe that TCDD will or may be present
4457	in an effluent:		
4458			
4459		(I)	2,4,5-trichlorophenoxy acetic acid (2,4,5-T) (CAS #93-
4460	76-5);		
4461			
4462		(II)	2-(2,4,5-trichlorophenoxy) propanoic acid (Silvex, 2,4,5-
4463	TP) (CAS #93-72-1);		
4464			
4465		(III)	2-(2,4,5-trichlorophenoxy) ethyl 2,2-dichloropropionate
4466	(Erbon) (CAS #136-25-4);		
4467	**************************************		

4468		(IV)	0,0-dimethyl 0-(2,4,5-trichlorophenyl) phosphorothioate
4469	(Ronnel) (CAS #299-84-3);		
4470			
4471		(V)	2,4,5-trichlorophenol (TCP) (CAS #95-95-4); or
4472			
4473		(VI)	Hexachlorophene (HCP) (CAS #70-30-4).
4474			
4475	(F)	Each a	pplicant must report any pollutants listed in Table V of
4476	Appendix D (certain hazardous s	substan	ces) of 40 CFR Part 122 if they believe the pollutants will
4477	be present in any outfall (no qua	ntitativ	e estimates are required unless they are already available)
4478			
4479	(G)	No late	er than two (2) years after the commencement of the
4480	discharge from a proposed facili	ty, the	applicant must submit analytical results which
4481	characterize the actual effluent d	lischarg	ged. The applicant need not submit this information to the
4482	extent the analytical results are r	eported	l by the applicant under the discharge monitoring
4483	requirements of the applicant's p	ermit.	
4484			
4485		_	port. Each applicant must report the existence of any
4486			licant's wastewater treatment, along with the name and
4487	location of similar plants of which	ch the a	applicant has knowledge.
4488			
4489		ıformat	ion. Any optional information the permittee wishes to
4490	have considered.		
4491			
4492			
4493			
4494			
4495			
4496			
4497		In	tentionally left blank

This page intentionally left blank.

4498	APPENDIX D: Additional Requirements Applicable to Manufacturing, Commercial,					
4499	Mining and Silvicultural Facilities Discharging Only Non-process Waste Water					
4500						
4501	(a) Applicat	ion requiremen	ats. Application requirements for manufacturing,			
4502		_	cilities which discharge only non-process wastewater.			
4503			nanufacturing, commercial, mining, and silvicultural			
4504	-	-	discharge only non-process wastewater not regulated by			
4505		-	source performance standard shall provide the following			
4506	9		d in Section 5 (a) (iv), to the administrator, using			
4507	application forms provide					
4508	Tr	.				
4509	(i) I	Discharge date	(for new dischargers). Date of expected commencement			
4510	of discharge.	C				
4511	C					
4512	(ii)	Γype of waste.	An identification of the general type of waste discharged,			
4513			mencement of operations, including sanitary wastes,			
4514	-		ntact cooling water. An identification of cooling water			
4515			ted to be used upon commencement of operations, along			
4516	with their composition if	_	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
4517	•					
4518	(iii) I	Effluent charac	teristics.			
4519	` ,					
4520	((A) Quanti	tative data for the pollutants or parameters listed below,			
4521	unless testing is waived b	less testing is waived by the administrator.				
4522						
4523		(I)	Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD5),			
4524						
4525		(II)	Total Suspended Solids (TSS),			
4526						
4527		(III)	Fecal Coliform (if believed present or if sanitary waste is			
4528	or will be discharged),					
4529						
4530		(IV)	Total Residual Chlorine (if chlorine is used),			
4531						
4532		(V)	Oil and Grease,			
4533						
4534		(VI)	Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD)(if non-contact			
4535	cooling water is or will b	e discharged),				
4536						
4537		(VII)	Ammonia (as N),			
4538						
4539		(VIII)	Discharge Flow,			
4540						
4541		(IX)	pH,			
4542						

4543	(X)	Temperature (Winter and Summer), and
4544		
4545	(XI)	Total Organic Carbon (TOC).
4546		
4547	(B) The	quantitative data in Appendix D (a) (iii) (A) may be data
4548	collected over the past 365 days, if the	ney remain representative of current operations, and must
4549	include daily maximum value, daily	average value, and number of measurements taken. The
4550	applicant must collect and analyze sa	amples in accordance with 40 CFR Part 136. Grab samples
4551		l and grease, total residual chlorine, and fecal coliform. For
4552	all other pollutants, 24-hour composi	ite samples must be used. New dischargers must include
4553	estimates for the pollutants or param	eters listed below instead of actual sampling data, along with
4554	the source of each estimate. All leve	els must be reported or estimated as concentration and as total
4555	mass, except for flow, pH, and temperature	erature.
4556		
4557	(C) The	administrator may waive the testing and reporting
4558	requirements for any of the pollutant	s or flow listed in paragraph (a) (iii) of this appendix if the
4559	applicant submits a request for such	a waiver before or with the permit application which
4560	demonstrates that information adequ	ate to support issuance of a permit can be obtained through
4561	less stringent requirements.	
4562		
4563	(D) If the	ne applicant is a new discharger, the applicant must provide
4564	quantitative data in accordance with	paragraph (a) (iii) of this appendix no later than two (2) years
4565	after commencement of discharge. I	However, the applicant need not perform tests which they
4566	have already performed and reported	l under the discharge monitoring requirements of the
4567	applicant's permit.	
4568		
4569	(E) The	requirements of paragraph (a) (iii) of this appendix do not
4570	apply for pollutants present in a disc	harge solely as a result of their presence in intake water.
4571	However, an applicant must report so	uch pollutants as present. Net credit may be provided for the
4572	presence of pollutants in intake wate	r if the requirements are met.
4573		
4574	(iv) Flow. A de	scription of the frequency of flow and duration of any
4575	seasonal or intermittent discharge (ex	xcept for storm water runoff, leaks, or spills).
4576		-
4577	(v) Treatment s	ystem. A brief description of any system used or to be used.
4578		
4579	(vi) Optional inf	Formation. Any additional information the applicant wishes
4580	to be considered.	

4581	APPENDIX E: Additional Requirements Applicable to New and Existing Publicly owned						
4582	Treatment Works (POTWs)						
4583							
4584	(a) Application requirements for new and existing POTWs. POTWs shall provide						
4585	the following information, in addition to that described in Section 5 (a) (v), to the administrator,						
4586	using the application form provided by the administrator.						
4587	wang are afficient for the desired of						
4588	(i) Name of State Management/River Basin and 12 digit hydrologic						
4589	cataloging unit code.						
4590							
4591	(ii) Critical flow of the receiving surface waters of the state and total						
4592	hardness of the receiving surface waters of the state at critical low flow.						
4593							
4594	(iii) The following POTWs shall provide to the administrator the results of						
4595	whole effluent toxicity testing conducted in accordance with EPA approved methods:						
4596							
4597	(A) All POTWs with design influent flows equal to or greater than						
4598	one million gallons per day; and						
4599							
4600	(B) All POTWs with approved pretreatment programs or POTWs						
4601	required to develop a pretreatment program.						
4602							
4603	(iv) Effluent monitoring for specific parameters.						
4604							
4605	(A) All applicants must submit to the administrator effluent						
4606	monitoring information for samples taken from each outfall through which effluent is discharged						
4607	to surface waters of the state, except for CSOs. The administrator may allow applicants to submit						
4608	sampling data for only one (1) outfall on a case-by-case basis, where the applicant has two (2) or						
4609	more outfalls with substantially identical effluent. The administrator may also allow applicants to						
4610	composite samples from one or more outfalls that discharge into the same mixing zone.						
4611							
4612	(B) Unless otherwise indicated, all applicants must sample and						
4613	analyze for the pollutants listed in Table E1 of this Appendix.						
4614							
4615	(C) Unless otherwise indicated, all applicants with a design flow						
4616	greater than or equal to 0.1 mgd must sample and analyze for the pollutants listed in Table E2 of						
4617	this Appendix. Facilities are not required to sample and analyze for chlorine if they do not use						
4618	chlorine for disinfection, do not use chlorine elsewhere in the treatment process, and have no						
4619	reasonable potential to discharge chlorine in their effluent.						
4620							
4621							
4622	(D) The following applicants must sample and analyze for the						
4623	pollutants listed in 40 CFR 122 Appendix J Table 2 and for any other pollutants for which state						
4624	surface water quality standards have been established for the receiving waters:						
4625							

4626	(I))	All POTWs with a design flow rate equal to or greater
4627	than one million gallons per day.		
4628			
4629	(II	()	All POTWs with approved pretreatment programs or
4630	POTWs required to develop a pretr	eatm	ent program.
4631	• • •		
4632	(II)	(I)	Any other POTW as required by the administrator.
4633			•
4634	(E) Ur	nless	otherwise indicated, all applicants must provide data
4635	from a minimum of three (3) sampl	les tal	ken within four and one-half (4.5) year prior to the date of
4636	the permit application. Samples mu	ust be	e representative of seasonal variation in the discharge
4637	from each outfall. Existing data ma	ay be	used, if available, in lieu of sampling done solely for the
4638	purpose of this application.		
4639			
4640	(F) Al	l exis	sting data for pollutants specified in this Appendix that is
4641	collected within four and one-half ((4.5)	years of the application must be included in the pollutant
4642	data summary submitted by the app	olican	it. If, however, the applicant samples for a specific
4643	pollutant on a monthly or more free	quent	basis, it is only necessary, for such pollutant, to
4644	summarize all data collected within	one	(1) year of the application.
4645			
4646	(G) Ur	nless	otherwise indicated, all applicants must collect samples
4647	of effluent and analyze such sample	es for	pollutants in accordance with analytical methods
4648	approved und 40 CFR Part 136 unle	ess aı	n alternative is specified in the existing WYPDES permit.
4649	Grab samples must be used for pH,	temp	perature, cyanide, total phenols, residual chlorine, oil and
4650	grease, and fecal coliform. For all	other	pollutants, 24-hour composite samples must be used.
4651	For a composite sample, only one a	analys	sis of the composite of aliquots is required.
4652			
4653	(H) Th	ne eff	luent monitoring data provided must include at least the
4654	following information for each para	amete	er.
4655			
4656	(I)		daily maximum discharge, expressed as concentration or
4657	mass, based upon actual sample val	lues;	
4658			
4659	(II)	/	daily average discharge for all samples, expressed as
4660	concentration or mass, and the num	iber c	of samples used to obtain this value;
4661			
4662	(II	I)	The analytical method used; and
4663			
4664	(IV)	V)	The practical quantitation limit for the analytical method
4665	used.		
4666			
4667			
4668	(I)		Unless otherwise required by the administrator, metals
4669	-		coverable as applicable in accordance with Wyoming
4670	Water Quality Rules and Regulation	ns Cl	napter 1.
4671			

4672	(v) In addition to the POTWs listed in paragraph (a) (i) of this appendix, the						
4673	division may require other POTWs to submit the results of toxicity tests with their permit						
4674	applications, based on consideration of the following factors:						
4675							
4676	(A) The variability of the pollutants or pollutant parameters in the						
4677	POTW effluent (based on chemical-specific information, the type of treatment facility, and types						
4678	of industrial contributors);						
4679	,						
4680	(B) The dilution of the effluent in the receiving water (ratio of						
4681	effluent flow to receiving surface waters of the state flow);						
4682							
4683	(C) Existing controls on point or nonpoint sources, including TMDL						
4684	calculations for the waterbody segment and the relative contribution of the POTW;						
4685							
4686	(D) Receiving water characteristics, including possible or known						
4687	water quality impairment, and whether the POTW discharges to waters designated as Class 1 in						
4688	accordance with Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations Chapter 1; or						
4689	decordance with Wyoming Water Quanty Rules and Regulations Chapter 1, or						
4690	(E) Other considerations (including but not limited to the history of						
4691	toxic impact and compliance problems at the POTW), which the administrator determines could						
4692	cause or contribute to adverse water quality impacts.						
4693	cause of contribute to adverse water quanty impacts.						
	(vi) For DOTWe required and arrangement (a) (i) or (a) (ii) of this arranging to						
4694 4605	(vi) For POTWs required under paragraph (a) (i) or (a) (ii) of this appendix to						
4695 4696	conduct toxicity testing, POTWs shall use methods approved by the administrator.						
4697	(vii) Effluent monitoring for whole effluent toxicity.						
4698	(vii) Efficient monitoring for whole efficient toxicity.						
4699	(A) All applicants must provide an identification of any whole						
4700	effluent toxicity tests conducted during the four and one half (4.5) years prior to the date of the						
4700 4701	application on any of the applicant=s discharges or on any receiving water near the discharge.						
4702	application on any of the applicant—s discharges of on any receiving water hear the discharge.						
4702 4703	(B) Where the POTW has two or more outfalls with substantially						
4703 4704							
	identical effluent discharging to the same receiving water segment, the administrator may allow						
4705	applicants to submit whole effluent toxicity data for only one (1) outfall on a case-by-case basis.						
4706	The administrator may also allow applicants to composite samples from one (1) or more outfalls						
4707	that discharge into the same mixing zone.						
4708							
4709	(C) Each applicant required to perform whole effluent toxicity						
4710	testing pursuant to paragraph (a) (iii) of this Appendix must provide:						
4711							
4712	(I) Results of a minimum of four (4) quarterly tests for a						
4713	year, from the year preceding the permit application; or						
4714							
4715	(II) Results from four tests performed at least annually in the						
4716	four and one half (4.5) year period prior to the application, provided the results show no						
4717	appreciable toxicity using a safety factor determined by the permitting authority.						

4718	
4719	(D) Applicants must conduct tests with multiple species (no less than
4720	two (2) species; e.g., fish invertebrate, plant) and test for acute or chronic toxicity, depending on
4721	the range of receiving water dilution. It is recommended that applicants conduct acute or chronic
4722	testing based on the following dilutions.
4723	
4724	(I) Acute toxicity testing if the dilution of the effluent is
4725	greater than 1,000:1 at the edge of the mixing zone.
4726	
4727	(II) Acute or chronic toxicity testing if the dilution of the
4728	effluent is between 100:1 and 1000:1 at the edge of the mixing zone. Acute testing may be more
4729	appropriate at the higher end and chronic testing may be more appropriate towards the lower end.
4730	
4731	(III) Chronic testing if the dilution of the effluent is less than
4732	100:1 at the edge of the mixing zone.
4733	
4734	(E) Unless otherwise directed by the administrator, each applicant
4735	required to perform whole effluent toxicity testing pursuant to paragraph (a) (i) of this appendix
4736	must provide the number of chronic or acute whole effluent toxicity tests that have been
4737	conducted since the last permit reissuance.
4738	
4739	(F) Applicants must provide the results using a form provided by the
4740	administrator, or test summaries if available and comprehensive, for each whole effluent toxicity
4741	test conducted pursuant to this appendix for which such information has not been reported
4742	previously to the administrator.
4743	
4744	(G) For the purposes of these regulations whole effluent toxicity
4745	testing for must be conducted using methods approved under 40 CFR Part 136.
4746	
4747	(H) For whole effluent toxicity data submitted to the administrator
4748	within four and one half (4.5) years prior to the date of the application applicants must provide
4749	the dates on which the data were submitted and a summary of the results, unless otherwise
4750	directed by the administrator.
4751	
4752	(I) Each POTW required to perform whole effluent toxicity
4753	testing in accordance with these regulations must provide any information on the cause of toxicity
4754	and written details of any toxicity reduction evaluation conducted, if any whole effluent toxicity
4755	test conducted within the past four and one-half years revealed toxicity.
4756	
4757	(viii) POTWs receiving Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA),
4758	Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA), or
4759	RCRA Corrective Action wastes or wastes generated at another type of environmental cleanup or
4760	remediation site must provide the following information.
4761	•

4762		(A)	If the	POTW	receives, or has been notified that it will receive,
4763	by truck, rail, or dedi	cated pipe			t are regulated as RCRA hazardous wastes
4764	•		•		st report the following:
4765	r				g.
4766			(I)	The n	nethod by which the waste is received (i.e., whether
4767	by truck, rail, or dedi	cated nine			(,
4768	by track, rain, or acar	cuteu pip	o), and		
4769			(II)	The h	azardous waste number amount received annually
4770	of each hazardous wa	aste	(11)	1110 11	azardous waste nameer amount receives annuary
4771	or each hazardous we	aste.			
4772		(B)	If the	POTW -	receives, or has been notified that it will receive
4773	wastewaters that orig	` /			ities, including those undertaken pursuant to
4774	-				RCRA, the applicant must report the following:
4775	CLICLIT and section	115 200 1 (u) 01 3000	0(11) 01 1	cert, the applicant must report the following.
4776			(I)	The id	lentity and description of the site(s) or facility(ies)
4777	ot which the western	otar origin	` '	THE	dentity and description of the site(s) of facility(les)
4777 4778	at which the wastewa	iter origin	ates.		
4779			(II)	Their	lentities of the wastewater=s hazardous
4779 4780	constituents as listes	lin Annar	` '		
	constituents, as fisted	ı ili Appei	idix viii	1 01 40 (CFR Part 261, if known.
4781			(III)	The	utant of the atmospheric if any the massives
4782			(III)		xtent of treatment, if any, the wastewater receives
4783	or will receive before	entering	the POI	W.	
4784		(0)	A1:		
4785	of this A	(C)			e exempt from the requirements of paragraph (e)(ii)
4786		-			ifteen kilograms per month of hazardous wastes as
4787	specified in 40 CFR	261.30 (a _.) and 26.	1.33 (e).	
4788	(:)	F1-	1	4341	
4789	(ix)	Each a	appiican	t with co	ombined sewer systems must provide the following
4790	information.				
4791			G 1		
4792		(A)	Comb	ined sev	ver system information:
4793			∞	~	
4794			(I)	Syste	m map. A map indicating the location of the
4795	following:				
4796					
4797				(1.)	All combined sewer overflow (CSO) discharge
4798	points.				
4799					
4800				(2.)	Sensitive use areas potentially affected by CSOs.
4801					
4802				(3.)	Waters supporting threatened or endangered
4803	species potentially at	fected by	CSOs.		
4804					
4805					
4806			(II)	Syste	m diagram. A diagram of the combined sewer
4807	collection system tha	t includes	:		

4808 4809 4810	combined and separate sanitary.		(1.)	The location of major sewer trunk lines, both
4811 4812 4813	sewers feed into the combined s	ewer sy	(2.)	The locations of points where separate sanitary
4814 4815 4816			(3.)	In-line and off-line storage structures.
4817			(4.)	The locations of flow regulating devices.
4818			/ - \	
4819			(5.)	The location of pump stations.
4820 4821	(B)	Inform	ation on	combined sewer outfalls:
4822 4823		(I)	Descri	ption of the outfall, including:
4824		(1)	Descri	phon of the outlan, melading.
4825			(1.)	Outfall number.
4826			, ,	
4827			(2.)	State, county, and city or town in which outfall
4828	is located.			
4829				
4830			(3.)	Latitude and longitude, to the nearest 15
4831	seconds.			
4832			(4.)	Distance from them and doubt below confere
4833 4834			(4.)	Distance from shore and depth below surface.
4835			(5.)	Whether the applicant monitored any of the
4836	following in the past year for the	e CSO:	(3.)	whether the applicant mointered any of the
4837	Total wing in the puse year for the	• 020.		
4838				a. Rainfall.
4839				
4840				b. CSO flow volume.
4841				
4842				c. CSO pollutant concentrations.
4843				
4844				d. Receiving water quality.
4845				CSO for successive
4846 4847				e. CSO frequency.
4848			(6.)	The number of storm events monitored in the
4849	last year.		(0.)	The number of storm events monitored in the
4850	zast j car.			
4851		(II)	CSO e	events. The following information about CSO
4852	overflows from each outfall.			Ç
4853				

4854		(1.)	The number of events in the past year.
4855			
4856 4857		(2.)	The average duration per event, if available.
4858		(3.)	The average volume per CSO event if available
4859 4860		(4.)	The minimum rainfall that caused a CSO event,
4861	if available, in the last year.	` ,	
4862			
4863	(III)	Desci	ription of receiving waters. The following
4864	information about receiving water.		
4865			
4866		(1.)	Name of the receiving water.
4867			
4868		(2.)	Name of watershed/stream system and the State
4869	watershed (12-digit) code (if known).		
4870	-	~~~	
4871	(IV)		operations. A description of any known water
4872	- · ·		by the CSO (e.g., permanent or intermittent beach
4873	<u> </u>		ish advisories, other recreational loss, or
4874	exceedance of any applicable state wat	er quali	ty standard.
4875			
4876			icants must provide the name, mailing address,
4877		of all c	ontractors responsible for any operational or
4878	maintenance aspects of the facility.		
4879			
4880			be considered complete if the administrator has
4881		_	opendix or Section 5 of these regulations and the
4882			roved the waiver. If a waiver request has been
4883	——————————————————————————————————————		EPA more than 210 days prior to permit
4884			not disapproved the waiver application 181 days
4885	prior to permit expiration, the permit ap	pplication	on lacking the information subject to the waiver
4886	request shall be considered complete.		
4887			
4888	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	•	ents. This part provides information
4889	on the level of effluent quality that shall	ll be ob	tained through the application of secondary or
4890	equivalent treatment.		
4891			
4892	(i) Terms used in	this app	pendix are defined as follows:
4893			
4894	(A) 7-day	average	e. The arithmetic mean of pollutant parameter
4895	values for samples collected in a period	d of sev	en (7) consecutive days.
4896			
4897	(B) 30-day	y averag	ge. The arithmetic mean of pollutant parameter
4898	values of samples collected in a period		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
4899	-		

4900	(C) BOD ₅ . The five day measure of the pollutant parameter
4901	biochemical oxygen demand (BOD ₅).
4902	
4903	(D) CBOD ₅ . The five day measure of the pollutant parameter
4904	carbonaceous biochemical oxygen demand (CBOD ₅).
4905	,
4906	(E) Effluent concentrations consistently achievable through proper
4907	operation and maintenance.
4908	1
4909	(I) For a given pollutant parameter, the 95th percentile value for the
4910	30-day average effluent quality achieved by a treatment works in a period of at least two years,
4911	excluding values attributable to upsets, bypasses, operational errors, or other unusual conditions;
4912	and,
4913	
4914	(II) A 7-day average value equal to 1.5 times the value derived under
4915	paragraph (c) (i) (E) (I) of this appendix.
4916	
4917	(F) Facilities eligible for treatment equivalent to secondary
4918	treatment. Treatment works shall be eligible for consideration for effluent limitations described
4919	for treatment equivalent to secondary treatment (133.105) if:
4920	
4921	(I) The BOD5 and TSS effluent concentrations consistently
4922	achievable through proper operation and maintenance of the treatment works exceed the
4923	minimum level of effluent quality set forth in 133.02(a) and (b).
4924	
4925	(II) A trickling filter or waste stabilization pond is used as
4926	the principal process; and,
4927	
4928	(III) The treatment works provide significant biological
4929	treatment of municipal wastewater.
4930	
4931	(G) Percent removal. A percentage expression of the removal
4932	efficiency across a treatment plan for a given pollutant parameter, as determined from the 30-day
4933	average values of the raw wastewater influent pollutant concentrations to the facility and the 30-
4934	day average values of the raw wastewater influent pollutant concentrations to the facility and the
4935	30-day average values of the effluent pollutant concentrations for a given time period.
4936	
4937	
4938	(H) Significant biological treatment. The use of an aerobic or
4939	anaerobic biological treatment process in a treatment works to consistently achieve a 30-day
4940	average of at least 65 percent removal of BOD ₅ .
4941	
4942	(I) TSS. The pollutant parameter total suspended solids.
4943	
4944	(J) Significantly more stringent limitation means BOD ₅ and TSS
4945	limitations necessary to meet the percent removal requirements of at least 5 mg/l more stringent

4946 4947	than the otherwise applicable concentration-based limitations (e.g., less than 25 mg/l in the case of the secondary treatment limits for BOD5 and TSS), or the percent removal limitations in				
4948	paragraphs (c) (ii) and (c) (v) of this appendix, if such limits would, by themselves, force				
4949	significant construc		_	•	•
4950	C		C		
4951	(ii)	Secon	ndary Tre	eatment	The following paragraphs describe the minimum
4952	level of effluent qua	ality attaina	able by so	econdar	y treatment in terms of the parameters BOD5, TSS,
4953	and pH. All require	ements for	each para	ameter	shall be achieved except as provided for in
4954	paragraphs (c) (iii)	and (c) (v)	of this a	ppendix	
4955					
4956		(A)	BOD_5	i .	
4957					
4958			(I)	The 3	0-day average shall not exceed 30 mg/l.
4959					
4960			(II)	The 7	-day average shall not exceed 45 mg/l.
4961			(111)	TDI C	
4962	.1 07		(III)	The 3	0-day average percent removal shall not be less
4963	than 85 percent.				
4964 4965			(IV)	Λ + +b.	e option of the administrator, in lieu of the
4965 4966	parameter POD5	nd the leve	` ,		t quality specified in paragraphs (c) (ii) (A) (I) (II)
4960 4967	•				tituted with the following levels of the CBOD ₅
4968	effluent quality pro		D ₅ . Illay	be subs	tituled with the following levels of the CBOD3
4969	ciriucii quanty pro	viucu.			
4970				(1.)	The 30-day average shall not exceed 25 mg/l.
4971				(1.)	The 50 day average shall not exceed 25 mg/1.
4972				(2.)	The 7-day average shall not exceed 40 mg/l.
4973				(=.)	The young average shall not encode to mg it
4974				(3.)	The 30-day average percent removal shall not be
4975	less than 85 percent	t.		(= 1)	
4976	1				
4977		(B)	TSS.		
4978		. ,			
4979			(I)	The 3	0-day average shall not exceed 30 mg/l.
4980					
4981			(II)	The 7	-day average shall not exceed 45 mg/l
4982					
4983			(III)	The 3	0-day average percent removal shall not be less
4984	than 85 percent.				
4985					
4986		(C)	_		ent values for pH shall be maintained within the
4987		-			reatment works demonstrates that: (1) Inorganic
4988					part of the treatment process; and (2) contributions
4989	from industrial sour	rces do not	cause th	e pH of	the effluent to be less than 6.0 or greater than 9.0.
4990		\ ~ ·			
4991	(iii) Speci	al consid	leration	S.

4992
4993

(A) Combined sewers. Treatment works subject to this part may not be capable of meeting the percentage removal requirements established under 102 (a) (3) and (b) (3) or 105 (a) (3) and (b) (3) during wet weather where the treatment works receive flows from combined sewers (i.e., sewers which are designed to transport both storm water and sanitary sewage). For such treatment works, the decision must be made on a case-by-case basis as to whether any attainable percentage removal level can be defined, and if so, what the level should be.

(B) Industrial waste. For certain industrial categories, the discharge to surface waters of the state of BOD5 and TSS permitted under Sections 301 (b) (1) (A) (i), (b) (2) (E) or 306 of the CWA may be less stringent than the values given in paragraphs (c) (ii) (A) (I) and (IV) (i), (c) (ii) (B) (I), (c) (v) (A) (I), (c) (v) (B) (I) and (c) (v) (E) (I) (i) of this appendix. In cases when wastes would be introduced from such an industrial category into a publicly owned treatment works, the values for BOD5 and TSS in paragraphs (c) (ii) (A) (I) and (IV) (i), (c) (ii) (B) (I), (c) (v) (A) (I), (c) (v) (B) (I) and (c) (v) (E) (I) (i) of this appendix may be adjusted upwards provided that: (1) The permitted discharge of such pollutants attributable to the industrial category, would not be greater that which would be permitted under Sections 301 (b) (1) (A) (i), (b) (2) (E) or 306 of the CWA if such industrial category were to discharge directly into the surface waters of the state, and (2) the flow or loading of such pollutants introduced by the industrial category exceeds 10 percent of the design flow or loading of the publicly owned treatment works. When such an adjustment is made, the values for BOD5 or TSS in paragraphs (c) (ii) (A) (II) and (IV) (ii), (c) (ii) (B) (II), (c) (v) (A) (II), (c) (v) (B) (II) and (c) (v) (E) (I) (ii) of this appendix. should be adjusted proportionately.

(C) Waste stabilization ponds. The administrator, may authorize adjusting the minimum levels of effluent quality set forth in paragraphs (c) (v) (B) (1), (2) and (3) of this appendix for treatment works subject to this part, to conform to the TSS concentrations achievable with waste stabilization ponds, provided that:

(I) Waste stabilization ponds are the principal process used for secondary treatment; and

(II) Operation and maintenance data indicate that the TSS values specified in paragraphs (c) (v) (B) (I), (II) and (III) of this appendix cannot be achieved. The term "TSS concentrations achievable with waste stabilization ponds" means a TSS value, determined by the administrator, which is equal to the effluent concentration achieved 90 percent of the time within a state or appropriate contiguous geographical area by waste stabilization ponds that are achieving the levels of effluent quality for BOD₅ specified in paragraphs (c) (v) (A) (I) of this appendix.

(D) Less concentrated influent wastewater for separate sewers. The administrator may authorize substituting either a lower percent removal requirement or a mass loading limit for the percent removal requirements set forth in paragraphs (c) (ii) (A) (III) and (IV) (3), (c) (ii) (B) (III), (c) (v) (A) (III), (c) (v) (B) (III) and (c) (v) (E) (I) (3) of this appendix provided that the permittee satisfactorily demonstrates that:

E-10

5038				
5039	(I) The treatment works is consistently meeting, or will			
5040	consistently meet, its permit effluent concentration limits but its percent removal requirements			
5041	cannot be met due to less concentrated influent wastewater;			
5042				
5043	(II) To meet the percent removal requirements, the treatment			
5044	works would have to achieve significantly more stringent limitations than would otherwise be			
5045	required by the concentration-based standards; and			
5046				
5047	(III) The less concentrated influent wastewater is not the			
5048	result of excessive I/I. The determination of whether the less concentrated I/I will use the			
5049	definition of excessive I/I in 40 CFR 35.2005 (b) (16) plus the additional criterion that inflow is			
5050	non-excessive if the total flow to the POTW (i.e., wastewater plus inflow plus infiltration) is less			
5051	than 25 gallons per capita per day.			
5052				
5053	(E) Less concentrated influent wastewater for combined sewers			
5054	during dry weather. The administrator may substitute either a lower percent removal requirement			
5055	or a mass loading limit for the percent removal requirements set forth in paragraphs (c) (ii) (A)			
5056	(III) and (IV) (iii), (c) (ii) (B) (III), (c) (v) (A) (III), (c) (v) (B) (III) and (c) (v) (E) (I) (iii) of this			
5057	appendix provided that the permittee satisfactorily demonstrates that:			
5058				
5059	(I) The treatment works is consistently meeting, or will			
5060	consistently meet, its permit effluent concentration limits, but the percent removal requirements			
5061	cannot be met due to less concentrated influent wastewater;			
5062				
5063	(II) To meet the percent removal requirements, the treatment			
5064	works would have to achieve significantly more stringent effluent concentrations than would			
5065	otherwise be required by the concentration-based standards; and			
5066				
5067	(III) The less concentrated influent wastewater does not result			
5068	from either excessive infiltrations or clear water industrial discharges during dry weather periods.			
5069	The determination of whether the less concentrated wastewater results from excessive infiltration			
5070	is discussed in 40 CFR 35 2005 (b) (28), plus the additional criterion that either 40 gallons per			
5071	capita per day or 1500 gallons per inch diameter per mile of sewer may be used as the threshold			
5072	value for that portion of the dry weather base flow attributed to infiltration. If the less			
5073	concentrated influent wastewater is the result of clear water industrial discharges, then the			
5074	treatment works must control such discharges pursuant to 40 CFR Part 403.			
5075				
5076	(iv) Sampling and test procedures.			
5077				
5078	(A) Sampling and test procedures for pollutants listed in this part			
5079	shall be in accordance with guidelines in 40 CFR Part 136.			
5080				
5081	(B) Chemical oxygen demand (COD) or total organic carbon (TOC)			
5082	may be substituted for BOD5 when a long-term BOD ₅ , COD or BOD ₅ TOC correlation has been			
5083	demonstrated.			

5084					
5085 5086	(v) Treatment equivalent to secondary treatment. This section describes the minimum level of effluent quality attainable by facilities eligible for treatment equivalent to				
5087		$h(c)(i)(F)$ of this appendix in terms of the parameters BOD_5 ,			
5088		he specified parameters in paragraphs (c) (v) (A), (B) and (C)			
5089		scept as provided for in paragraph (c) (iii), or paragraphs (c)			
5090	(v) (D), (E) or (F) of this appendix.				
5091		_			
5092	(A) BO	D_5 .			
5093	(7)	TT 00.1			
5094	(I)	The 30-day average shall not exceed 45 mg/l.			
5095	(II)	The 7 decrees the H and are add 65 mg/l			
5096	(II)	The 7-day average shall not exceed 65 mg/l.			
5097	/III	The 20 day eveness measure removal shall not be loss			
5098 5099	than 65 percent. (III	The 30-day average percent removal shall not be less			
5100	than 65 percent.				
5100	(B) TSS	S. Except where TSS values have been adjusted in			
5101	accordance with paragraph (c) (iii) (
5102	accordance with paragraph (c) (iii) (c) of this appendix.			
5103	(I)	The 30-day average shall not exceed 45 mg/l.			
5105		The 30 day average shall not exceed 15 mg/s.			
5106	(II)	The 7-day average shall not exceed 65 mg/l.			
5107	(-/				
5108	(III)	The 30-day average percent removal shall not be less			
5109	than 65 percent.	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,			
5110	•				
5111	(C) pH.	The requirements of paragraph (c) (ii) (C) of this appendix			
5112	shall be met.				
5113					
5114	(D) Alte	ernative requirements. Except as limited by paragraph (c) (v)			
5115	(F) of this appendix, and after public	e notice and opportunity for public comment, the			
5116	administrator may adjust the minimu	um levels of effluent quality set forth in paragraphs (c) (v) (A)			
5117		is appendix for trickling filter facilities and in paragraphs (c)			
5118	(v) (A) (I) and (A) (II) of this section	n for waste stabilization pond facilities, to conform to the			
5119		ons consistently achievable through proper operation and			
5120	•	rcentile) facility in a representative sample of facilities within			
5121		is geographical area that meet the definition of facilities			
5122	eligible for treatment equivalent to s	econdary treatment.			
5123					
5124	(E) CB	OD ₅ limitations.			
5125	_				
5126	(1)	Where data are available to establish CBOD ₅ limitations			
5127	· ·	Section, the administrator may substitute the parameter			
5128	$CBOD_5$ for the parameter BOD_5 . In	paragraph (c) (v) (A) (I)-(III) of this appendix, on a case-by-			

5129	case basis provided that the levels of CBOD ₅ effluent quality are not less stringent than the					
5130	following:					
5131						
5132	(1.) The 30-day average shall not exceed 40 mg/l.					
5133						
5134	(2.) The 7-day average shall not exceed 60 mg/l.					
5135						
5136	(3.) The 30-day average percent removal shall not be					
5137	less than 65 percent.					
5138						
5139	(II) Where data are available, the parameter CBOD5 may be					
5140	used for effluent quality limitations established under paragraph (c) (v) (D) of this appendix.					
5141	Where concurrent BOD ₅ effluent data are available, they must be submitted with the CBOD5 data					
5142	as part of the approval process outlined in paragraph (c) (v) (D) of this appendix.					
5143						
5144	(F) Permit adjustments. Any permit adjustment made pursuant to					
5145	this part may not be any less stringent than the limitations required pursuant to paragraph (c) (v)					
5146	(A) through (E) of this appendix. Furthermore, more stringent limitations shall be required when					
5147	adjusting permits if:					
5148						
5149	(I) For existing facilities, the administrator determines that					
5150	the 30-day average and 7-day average BOD ₅ and TSS effluent values that could be achievable					
5151	through proper operation and maintenance of the treatment works, based on an analyses of the					
5152	past performance of the treatment works to achieve more stringent limitations;, or					
5153						
5154	(II) For new facilities, the administrator determines that the					
5155	30-day average and 7-day average BOD ₅ and TSS effluent values that could be achievable					
5156	through proper operation and maintenance of the treatment works, considering the design					
5157	capability of the treatment process and geographical and climatic conditions, would enable the					
5158	treatment works to achieve more stringent limitations.					
5159						
5160	(d) Permits for publicly owned treatment works will require that the permittee must					
5161	provide adequate notification to the administrator of the following:					
5162						
5163	(i) Any new introduction of pollutants into the publicly owned treatment					
5164	works from an indirect discharger which would be subject to Sections 301 or 306 of the CWA if					
5165	it were directly discharging those pollutants, and					
5166						
5167	(ii) Any substantial change in the volume or character of pollutants being					
5168	introduced into that publicly owned treatment works by a source introducing pollutants into the					
5169	publicly owned treatment works at the time of issuance of the permit.					
5170						
5171	(iii) For the purposes of Appendix E (d) (i) and (ii), adequate notification					
5172	shall include information on the quality and quantity of effluent introduced into the publicly					
5173	owned treatment works; and any anticipated impact of the change on the quantity or quality of					
5174	effluent to be discharged from the publicly owned treatment works.					

51815182

5175 5176 5177 Table E1 Effluent Parameters for All POTWs Biological oxygen demand (BOD₅ or CBOD₅) Fecal Coliform pН Temperature Total Suspended Solids 5178 5179 5180 Table E2 Effluent Parameters for Selected **POTWS** Ammonia (as N) Chlorine (total residual, TRC) Dissolved oxygen Nitrate/Nitrite Kjeldahl nitrogen Oil and grease Phosphorus Total dissolved solids

E-14

5183	APPENDIX	F: Addition	al Requirements Applicable to New and Existing Aquatic Animal
5184			Production Facilities
5185			
5186	(a)	Discharges	s into aquaculture projects, as defined in Section 3 (b) of these
5187	regulations, ar	e subject to the	he WYPDES permit program in accordance with these regulations.
5188	_		
5189	(b)	A hatchery	r, fish farm, or other facility is a concentrated aquatic animal
5190	production fac	ility for purp	oses of these regulations if it contains, grows, or holds aquatic animals
5191	in either of the	following ca	ategories:
5192			
5193		(i) Co	old water fish species or other cold water aquatic animals in ponds,
5194	raceways, or o	ther similar s	structures which discharge at least 30 days per year but does not
5195	include:		
5196			
5197		(A)	,
5198	kilograms (app	proximately 2	20,000 pounds) of aquatic animals per year; and
5199			
5200		(B)	, ,
5201	(approximatel	y 5,000 pound	ds) of food during the calendar month of maximum feeding.
5202		/···\ ** *	
5203		` '	arm water fish species, or other warm water aquatic animals in ponds,
5204	•	otner similar s	structures which discharge at least 30 days per year, but does not
5205	include:		
5206 5207		(A)	Closed nands which discharge only during periods of excess
5207	runoff; or	(A)	Closed ponds which discharge only during periods of excess
5209	runori, or		
5210		(B)) Facilities which produce less than 45,454 harvest weight
5210	kilograms (an	` '	100,000 pounds) of aquatic animals per year.
5212	kirograms (ap)	proximatery r	.oo,ooo pounds) of aquate annians per year.
5213		(iii) "C	old water aquatic animals" include, but are not limited to the
5214	Salmonidae fa		e.g., trout and salmon.
5215		<i>y</i>	- 6 ,
5216		(iv) "W	Varm water aquatic animals" include but are not limited to, the
5217	Ameiuridae, C		and Cyprinidae families of fish; e.g. respectively, catfish, sunfish and
5218	minnows.		
5219			
5220	(c)	Application	n requirements for new and existing aquatic animal production
5221	facilities. Nev	v and existing	g concentrated aquatic animal production facilities shall provide the
5222	following info	rmation, in a	ddition to that described in Section 5 (a) (v), to the administrator,
5223	using the appl	ication form p	provided by the administrator.
5224			
5225	(d)	The maxim	num daily and average monthly flow from each outfall.
5226			
5227	(e)	The numbe	er of ponds, raceways, and similar structures.

5228		
5229	(f)	The name of the receiving water and the source of intake water.
5230		
5231	(g)	For each species of aquatic animals, the total yearly and maximum harvestable
5232	weight.	
5233		
5234	(h)	The calendar month of maximum feeding and the total mass of food fed during
5235	that month.	
5236		
5237		
5238		
5239		
5240		
5241		
5242		
5243		
5244		
5245		
5246		
5247		
5248		
5249		
5250		
5251		Intentionally left blank
5252		

5253			or Determining a Concentrated Animal Feeding Operation and			
5254	Additional Requirements Applicable to New and Existing Concentrated Animal Feeding					
5255			<u>Operations</u>			
5256						
5257		•	and permit requirement for concentrated animal feeding operations			
5258			a W.S. 35-11-103 (a) (xi) and 35-11-302 (a) (v), CAFOs, as defined			
5259			gulations, are point sources that require WYPDES permits for			
5260	discharges or potential discharges. Once an operation is defined as a CAFO, the WYPDES					
5261 5262	requirements for CAFOs apply with respect to all animals in confinement at the operation and all manure, litter and process wastewater generated by those animals or the production of those					
5263	•		e of animal. All CAFOs have a duty to apply to seek coverage			
5264	_		lescribed in these regulations.			
5265	under a W 11 DLS per	iiiit as u	escribed in these regulations.			
5266	(b) Defin	itions at	oplicable to this appendix:			
5267	(b) Berni	rtions u _l	spireusie to this appendix.			
5268	(i)	Analy	ytical methods. The parameters that are regulated or referenced in			
5269	* /	-	approved methods of analysis in Table 1B at 40 CFR 136.3 are			
5270	defined as follows:					
5271						
5272		(A)	"Ammonia (as N)" means ammonia reported as nitrogen.			
5273						
5274		(B)	"BOD ₅ " means 5-day biochemical oxygen demand.			
5275						
5276		(C)	"Nitrate (as N)" means nitrate reported as nitrogen.			
5277		(D)	(CD , 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 C1 1 1 1 1 1			
5278		(D)	"Total dissolved solids" means nonfilterable residue.			
5279	(;;)	Analy	utical mathods. The meanmatons that are recorded an referenced in			
5280 5281	(ii)	-	ytical methods. The parameters that are regulated or referenced in ved methods of analysis in Table 1A at 40 CFR 136.3 are defined as			
5282	follows:	п аррго	ved methods of analysis in Table 1A at 40 CFR 130.3 are defined as			
5283	ionows.					
5284		(A)	"Fecal coliform" means fecal coliform bacteria.			
5285		` /				
5286		(B)	"Total coliform" means all coliform bacteria.			
5287						
5288	(iii)	"Aniı	mal feeding operation" (AFO) means a lot or facility (other than an			
5289	aquatic animal produc	tion fac	ility) where the following conditions are met:			
5290						
5291		(A)	Animals have been, are, or will be stabled or confined and fed or			
5292	maintained for a total	of 45 da	ays or more in any 12-month period; and			
5293		(D)				
5294		(B)	Crops, vegetation forage growth or post harvest residues are not			
5295	sustained in the norma	u growi	ng season over any portion of the lot or facility.			
5296 5207						
5297						

5298	Two (2) or more animal feeding operations under common ownership are considered, for				
5299	purposes of these regulations, to be a single animal feeding operation if they adjoin each other or				
5300	if they use a common area or system for the disposal of wastes.				
5301	•				
5302	(iv)	"Land	application area" means land under the control of an AFO owner		
5303	or operator, whether it		d, rented, or leased, to which manure, litter or process wastewater		
5304	from the production ar		•		
5305	1		2		
5306	(v)	"Large	e concentrated animal feeding operation" (large CAFO). An AFO		
5307	` '	_	t stables or confines as many as or more than the numbers of		
5308	animals specified in ar		•		
5309		-,			
5310		(A)	700 mature dairy cows, whether milked or dry;		
5311		()			
5312		(B)	1,000 veal calves;		
5313		(2)	1,000 1001 001 005,		
5314		(C)	1,500 buffalo (Bison bison);		
5315		(0)	1,500 barraro (Bison bison),		
5316		(D)	1,000 cattle other than mature dairy cows or veal calves. Cattle		
5317	includes but is not limi		eifers, steers, bulls and cow/calf pairs;		
5318	merades out is not inin	rica to m	errors, secons, same and cowream pains,		
5319		(E)	2,500 swine each weighing 55 pounds or more;		
5320		(L)	2,500 swine each weighing 55 pounds of more,		
5321		(F)	10,000 swine each weighing less than 55 pounds;		
5322		(1)	10,000 swine each weighing less than 33 pounds,		
5323		(G)	500 horses;		
5324		(0)	500 Horses,		
5325		(H)	10,000 sheep or lambs;		
5326		(11)	10,000 sheep of famos,		
5327		(I)	55,000 turkeys;		
5328		(1)	55,000 turkeys,		
5329		(J)	30,000 laying hens or broilers, if the AFO uses a liquid manure		
5330	handling system;	(3)	50,000 laying nens of biolicis, if the 111 O uses a fiquid mandre		
5331	nanding system,				
5332		(K)	125,000 chickens (other than laying hens), if the AFO uses other		
5333	than a liquid manure h	` /	• •		
5334	man a nquiu manuic n	anumg	system,		
5335		(L)	82,000 laying hens, (if the AFO uses other than a liquid manure		
5336	handling system);	(L)	62,000 laying nens, (if the APO uses other than a riquid manure		
5337	nanding system),				
5338		(M)	30,000 ducks (if the AFO uses other than a liquid manura		
5339	handling system); or	(1 VI)	30,000 ducks (if the AFO uses other than a liquid manure		
	nanuming system), or				
5340		(NI)	5 000 duake (if the AEO was a liquid manus handling acceptant)		
5341		(N)	5,000 ducks (if the AFO uses a liquid manure handling system).		
5342					

(vi) "Manur	e" is de	fined to include animal excreta or other commonly		
		ncluding but not limited to bedding, compost and raw		
materials or other materials commingled with manure or set aside for disposal.				
		- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
(vii) "Mediu	m conce	entrated animal feeding operation" (medium CAFO)		
		per of animals that fall within any of the ranges listed in		
•		·		
	iicii iias	been defined of designated as a CAT O. All AT O is		
defined as a medium C/H O II.				
(Δ)	The tyr	be and number of animals that it stables or confines falls		
		or and number of animals that it stables of commes rans		
within any of the following rang	cs.			
	(T)	200 to 699 mature dairy cattle, whether milked or dry;		
	(1)	200 to 699 mature daily cattle, whether minked of dry,		
	(II)	200 to 000 year anlying		
	(11)	300 to 999 veal calves;		
	(III)	450 4- 1400 hff-1- (Pi1i)		
	(111)	450 to 1499 buffalo (Bison bison);		
	(TT I)	200 - 000 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1		
	` '	300 to 999 cattle other than mature dairy cows or veal		
calves. Cattle includes but is no	t limited	to heiters, steers, bulls and cow/calf pairs;		
	(T.T.)			
	(V)	750 to 2,499 swine each weighing 55 pounds or more;		
	(VI)	3,000 to 9,999 swine each weighing less than 55 pounds;		
	(VII)	150 to 499 horses;		
	(VIII)	3,000 to 9,999 sheep or lambs;		
	(IX)	16,500 to 54,999 turkeys;		
		9,000 to 29,999 laying hens or broilers, (if the AFO uses		
a liquid manure handling system	ı);			
	` '	37,500 to 124, 999 chickens (other than laying hens), (if		
the AFO uses other than a liquid	l manure	e handling system);		
	(XII)	25,000 to 81,999 laying hens, (if the AFO uses other		
than a liquid manure handling sy	ystem);			
	(XIII)	10,000 to 29,999 ducks (if the AFO uses other than a		
liquid manure handling system);	; or			
	(XIV)	1,500 to 4,999 ducks (if the AFO uses a liquid manure		
handling system); and		-		
	associated wastes of animal hus materials or other materials com (vii) "Medium (vii) (Wedium (vii)	associated wastes of animal husbandry is materials or other materials commingled (vii) "Medium concomeans any AFO with the type and numb Appendix G (b) (vii) (A) and which has defined as a medium CAFO if: (A) The type within any of the following ranges: (I) (II) (III) (IV) calves. Cattle includes but is not limited (V) (VI) (VII) (VIII) (IX) a liquid manure handling system); the AFO uses other than a liquid manure (XII) than a liquid manure handling system); (XIII) liquid manure handling system); (XIII)		

5389	(B) Either one of the following conditions are met:
5390	
5391	(I) Pollutants are discharged into surface waters of the state
5392	through a man-made ditch, flushing system, or other similar man-made device; or
5393	
5394	(II) Pollutants are discharged directly into surface waters of
5395	the state which originate outside of and pass over, across, or through the facility or otherwise
5396	come into direct contact with the animals confined in the operation.
5397	
5398	(viii) "New source" means any building, structure, facility or installation from
5399	which there is or may be the discharge of pollutants, the construction of which is commenced
5400	after the effective date of these regulations.
5401	
5402	(ix) "Overflow" means the discharge of manure or process wastewater
5403	resulting from the filling of wastewater or manure storage structures beyond the point at which no
5404	more manure, process wastewater, or storm water can be contained by the structure.
5405	
5406	(x) "Process wastewater" means water directly or indirectly used in the
5407	operation of the AFO for any or all of the following: spillage or overflow from animal or poultry
5408	watering systems; washing, cleaning, or flushing pens, barns, manure pits, or other AFO
5409	facilities; direct contact swimming, washing, or spray cooling of animals; or dust control.
5410	Process wastewater also includes any water which comes into contact with any raw materials,
5411	products, or byproducts including manure, litter, feed, milk, eggs or bedding.
5412	
5413	(xi) "Production area" means that part of an AFO that includes the animal
5414	confinement area, the manure storage area, the raw materials storage area, and the waste
5415	containment areas. The animal confinement area includes but is not limited to open lots, housed
5416	lots, feedlots, confinement houses, stall barns, free stall barns, milk rooms, milking centers,
5417	cowyards, barnyards, medication pens, walkers, animal walkways, and stables. The manure
5418	storage area includes but is not limited to lagoons, runoff ponds, storage sheds, stock piles, under
5419	house or pit storages, liquid impoundments, static piles, and composting piles. The raw materials
5420	storage area includes but is not limited to feed silos, silage bunkers, and bedding materials. The
5421	waste containment area includes but is not limited to settling basins, and areas within berms and
5422	diversions which separate uncontaminated storm water. Also included in the definition of
5423	production area is any egg washing or egg processing facility, and any area used in the storage,
5424	handling, treatment, or disposal of mortalities.
5425	
5426	(xii) "Twenty-five-year, 24-hour rainfall event" and 100-year, 24-hour rainfall
5427	event mean precipitation events with a probable recurrence interval of once in 25 years, or 100
5428	years, respectively, as defined by the National Weather Service in Technical Paper No. 40,
5429	"Rainfall Frequency Atlas of the United States," May, 1961, or equivalent regional or state
5430	rainfall probability information developed from this source.
5431	ranian producincy information developed from this source.
5432	(c) CAFO designation. The director may designate any AFO as a CAFO upon
5433	determining that it is a significant contributor of pollutants to surface waters of the state. The
5434	director may also designate an AFO as a CAFO at the request of the Regional Administrator, but
シーンサ	ansetor may also designate an mode as a CM of at the request of the regional Administrator, but

5435	only where the Regional Administrator has determined that one or more pollutants in the AFOs			
5436	discharge contributes to an impairment in a downstream or adjacent state water that is impaired			
5437	for that pollutant.			
5438				
5439	(i) In making this designation, the director shall consider the following			
5440	factors:			
5441				
5442	(A) The size of the AFO and the amount of wastes reaching surface			
5443	waters of the state;			
5444				
5445	(B) The location of the AFO relative to surface waters of the state;			
5446				
5447	(C) The means of conveyance of animal wastes and process waste			
5448	waters into surface waters of the state;			
5449	•			
5450	(D) The slope, vegetation, rainfall, and other factors affecting the			
5451	likelihood or frequency of discharge of animal wastes manure and process waste waters into			
5452	surface waters of the state; and			
5453				
5454	(E) Other relevant factors.			
5455				
5456	(ii) No AFO shall be designated under these regulations unless the director			
5457	or the Regional Administrator has conducted an on-site inspection of the operation and			
5458	determined that the operation should and could be regulated under the WYPDES permit program.			
5459	In addition, no AFO with numbers of animals below the minimum numbers established in			
5460	Appendix G (b) (vii) (A) may be designated as a CAFO unless:			
5461				
5462	(A) Pollutants are discharged into surface waters of the state through			
5463	a manmade ditch, flushing system, or other similar manmade device; or			
5464				
5465	(B) Pollutants are discharged directly into surface waters of the state			
5466	which originate outside of the facility and pass over, across, or through the facility or otherwise			
5467	come into direct contact with the animals confined in the operation.			
5468	······································			
5469	(d) Application for permit and exceptions.			
5470	(a)			
5471	(i) All CAFO owners and operators must seek coverage under a WYPDES			
5472	permit, except as provided in Appendix G (d) (ii) of these regulations. If the director has not			
5473	made a general permit available, the CAFO owner or operator must submit an application for an			
5474	individual permit to the director.			
5475				
5476	(ii) Exception. An owner or operator of a large CAFO does not need to seek			
5477	coverage under a WYPDES permit otherwise required by this section once the owner or operator			
5478	has received from the director notification of a determination under Appendix G (f) of these			
5479	regulations that the CAFO has "no potential to discharge" manure, litter or process wastewater.			
5480	r			

5481	(iii) New and existing concentrated animal feeding operations shall provide				
5482	the following information, in addition to that described in Section 5 (a) (v) for individual permits,				
5483	to the administrator, using an application form provided by the administrator.				
5484					
5485	(A) The type and number of animals in open confinement and				
5486	housed under roof;				
5487					
5488	(B) The type of containment and storage (anaerobic lagoon, roofed				
5489	storage shed, storage ponds, underfloor pits, above ground storage tanks, below ground storage				
5490	tanks, concrete pad, impervious soil pad, other) and total capacity for manure, litter, and process				
5491	wastewater storage (tons/gallons);				
5492					
5493	(C) The total number of acres under control of the applicant				
5494	available for land application of manure, litter, or process wastewater;				
5495					
5496	(D) The number of acres used for confinement feeding;				
5497					
5498	(E) Estimated amounts of manure, litter and process wastewater				
5499	generated per year (tons/gallons);				
5500					
5501	(F) Estimated amounts of manure, litter and process wastewater				
5502	transferred to other persons per year (tons/gallons);				
5503					
5504	(G) The design basis for the runoff diversion and controls system, if				
5505	one exists, including the number of acres of contributing drainage, the storage capacity, and the				
5506	design safety factor to ensure no discharge except under conditions of a 25-year 24-hour, or				
5507	greater, storm event; and				
5508					
5509	(H) A nutrient management plan, in accordance with Appendix G (i)				
5510	developed and implemented upon the date of coverage.				
5511					
5512	(e) Land application discharges from a CAFO are subject to WYPDES requirements				
5513	The discharge of manure, litter or process wastewater to surface waters of the state from a CAFO				
5514	as a result of the application of that manure, litter or process wastewater by the CAFO to land				
5515	areas under its control is a discharge from that CAFO subject to WYPDES permit requirements,				
5516	except where it is an agricultural storm water discharge as provided in 33 U.S.C. 1362(14). For				
5517	purposes of Appendix G (e), where the manure, litter or process wastewater has been applied in				
5518	accordance with site specific nutrient management practices that ensure appropriate agricultural				
5519	utilization of the nutrients in the manure, litter or process wastewater, as specified in Appendix G				
5520	(i) (ii) (F) - (H) a precipitation related discharge of manure, litter or process wastewater from land				
5521	areas under the control of a CAFO is an agricultural storm water discharge.				
5522					
5523	(f) "No potential to discharge" determination for large CAFOs.				
5524					
5525					

5526	(i) Determination by the director. The director, upon request, may make a				
5527	case-specific determination that a large CAFO has "no potential to discharge" pollutants to				
5528	surface waters of the state. In making this determination, the director must consider the potential				
5529	for discharges from both the production area and any land application areas. The director must				
5530	also consider any record of prior discharges by the CAFO. In no case may the CAFO be				
5531	determined to have "no potential to discharge" if it has had a discharge within the five (5) years				
5532	prior to the date of the request submitted under Appendix G (f) (ii). For purposes of this section,				
5533	the term "no potential to discharge" means that there is no potential for any CAFO manure, litter				
5534	or process wastewater to be added to surface waters of the state under any circumstances or				
5535	climatic condition. A determination that there is "no potential to discharge" for purposes of this				
5536	section only relates to discharges of manure, litter and process wastewater covered by this				
5537	appendix.				
5538					
5539	(ii) Information to support a "no potential to discharge request". In				
5540	requesting a determination of "no potential to discharge," the CAFO owner or operator must				
5541	submit any information that would support such a determination, within the time frame provided				
5542	by the director and in accordance with Appendix G (g) and (h) of these regulations. Such				
5543	information must include all of the information specified in Appendix G (f) and (i) (i) and Section				

554655475548

5549

5550

the CAFO.

5544 5545

(iii) Process for making a "no potential to discharge" determination. Before making a final decision to grant a "no potential to discharge" determination, the director must issue a notice to the public stating that a "no potential to discharge" request has been received. This notice must be accompanied by a fact sheet which includes, when applicable:

supplement the request, and may also gather additional information through on-site inspection of

5 (a) of these regulations. The director has discretion to require additional information to

555155525553

(A) A brief description of the type of facility or activity which is the subject of the "no potential to discharge" determination;

555455555556

(B) A brief summary of the factual basis, upon which the request is based, for granting the "no potential to discharge" determination; and

555755585559

(C) A description of the procedures for reaching a final decision on the "no potential to discharge" determination.

556055615562

5563

55645565

(iv) The director must base the decision to grant a "no potential to discharge" determination on the administrative record, which includes all information submitted in support of a "no potential to discharge" determination and any other supporting data gathered by the administrator. The director must notify any CAFO seeking a "no potential to discharge" determination of its final determination within 90 days of receiving the request.

556655675568

5569

5570

(v) Deadline for requesting a "no potential to discharge" determination. The owner or operator must request a "no potential to discharge" determination by the applicable permit application date specified in Appendix G (g) of these regulations. If the director=s final

5571 decision is to deny the "no potential to discharge" determination, the owner or operator must seek coverage under a permit within 30 days after the denial. 5572 5573 5574 The "no potential to discharge" determination does not relieve the CAFO 5575 from the consequences of an actual discharge. Any unpermitted CAFO that discharges pollutants 5576 into surface waters of the state is in violation of the CWA, the Environmental Quality Act and 5577 these regulations even if it has received a "no potential to discharge" determination from the 5578 director. Any CAFO that has received a determination of "no potential to discharge," but who 5579 anticipates changes in circumstances that could create the potential for a discharge, should contact 5580 the director, and apply for and obtain permit authorization prior to the change of circumstances. 5581 5582 (vii) The director retains authority to require a permit. Where the director has 5583 issued a determination of "no potential to discharge," the director retains the authority to subsequently require WYPDES permit coverage if circumstances at the facility change, if new 5584 5585 information becomes available, or if there is other reason for the director to determine that the 5586 CAFO has a potential to discharge. 5587 5588 (g) Deadlines to apply. 5589 5590 For operations that are defined as CAFOs under regulations that were in 5591 operation prior to April 14, 2003, the owner or operator must have or sought to obtain coverage 5592 under a WYPDES permit as of April 14, 2003, and comply with all applicable WYPDES 5593 requirements, including the duty to maintain permit coverage in accordance with Appendix G (h) 5594 of these regulations. 5595 5596 Owners or operators of operations defined as CAFOs as of April 14, 5597 2003, who were not defined as CAFOs prior to that date must seek to obtain coverage under a 5598 WYPDES permit by a date specified by the director, but no later than February 13, 2006. 5599 5600 Operations that become defined as CAFOs after April 14, 2003, but (iii) 5601 which are not new sources. For AFOs that make changes to their operations that result in 5602 becoming defined as CAFOs for the first time, after April 14, 2003, but are not new sources, the 5603 owner or operator must seek to obtain coverage under a WYPDES permit, as follows: 5604 5605 Facilities defined as CAFOs resulting from operational changes (A) 5606 (e.g. resulting from an increase in the number of animals), as soon as possible but no later than 90 5607 days after becoming defined as a CAFO; except that 5608 5609 (B)

5610

If an operational change that makes the operation a CAFO would not have made it a CAFO prior to April 14, 2003, the operation has at least until April 13, 2006, or 90 days after becoming defined as a CAFO, whichever is later.

5611 5612 5613

5614

New sources. New sources must seek to obtain coverage under a permit at least 180 days prior to the time that the CAFO commences operation, unless otherwise approved by the administrator.

5615 5616

5617	(v) Operations that are designated as a CAFO in accordance with Appendix				
5618	G (c) of these regulations, the owner or operator must seek to obtain coverage under a permit no				
5619	later than 90 days after receiving notice of the designation.				
5620					
5621	(vi) "No potential to discharge." Notwithstanding any other provision of this				
5622	section, a CAFO that has received a "no potential to discharge" determination in accordance with				
5623	Appendix G (f) of these regulations is not required to seek coverage under a WYPDES permit				
5624	that would otherwise be required by this section. If circumstances materially change at a CAFO				
5625	that has received a "no potential to discharge" determination, such that the CAFO has a potential				
5626	for a discharge, the CAFO shall immediately notify the director, and seek coverage under a				
5627	WYPDES permit within 30 days after the change in circumstances.				
5628					
5629	(h) Duty to maintain permit coverage. Not later than 180 days before the expiration				
5630	of the permit, the permittee must submit an application to renew its permit, in accordance with				
5631	Section 9 of these regulations. However, the permittee need not continue to seek continued				
5632	permit coverage or reapply for a permit if:				
5633					
5634	(i) The facility has ceased operation or is no longer a CAFO; and				
5635					
5636	(ii) The permittee has demonstrated to the satisfaction of the director that				
5637	there is no remaining potential for a discharge of manure, litter or associated process wastewater				
5638	that was generated while the operation was a CAFO, other than agricultural stormwater from land				
5639	application areas; or				
5640					
5641	(i) Permit conditions applicable to all CAFOs. Any permit issued to a CAFO shall				
5642	include:				
5643					
5644	(i) Nutrient management plan development and implementation				
5645	requirements. At a minimum, a nutrient management plan must include best management				
5646	practices and procedures necessary to implement applicable effluent limitations and standards.				
5647					
5648	(A) Permitted CAFOs must have their nutrient management plans				
5649	developed (or updated if a nutrient management plan was required in the existing permit) and				
5650	implemented by December 31, 2006.				
5651					
5652	(B) CAFOs that seek to obtain coverage under a permit after				
5653	December 31, 2006 must have a nutrient management plan developed and implemented upon the				
5654	date of permit coverage.				
5655					
5656	(ii) The nutrient management plan must, to the extent applicable:				
5657					
5658	(A) Ensure adequate storage of manure, litter, and process				
5659	wastewater, including procedures to ensure proper operation and maintenance of the storage				
5660	facilities;				
5661					

5662		(B)	Ensure proper management of mortalities (i.e., dead animals) so		
5663	they are not disposed of in a liquid manure, storm water, or process wastewater storage or				
5664	treatment system that is not specifically designed to treat animal mortalities;				
5665	•	•	·		
5666		(C)	Ensure that stormwater runoff is diverted, as appropriate, from		
5667	the production area;				
5668	1				
5669		(D)	Prevent direct contact of confined animals with surface waters of		
5670	the state;				
5671	·				
5672		(E)	Ensure that chemicals and other contaminants handled on-site,		
5673	are not disposed of in an	iy manu	ire, litter, process wastewater, or storm water storage or treatment		
5674	-	-	ned to treat such chemicals and other contaminants;		
5675		•			
5676		(F)	Identify appropriate site specific conservation practices to be		
5677	implemented, including	as appr	opriate buffers or equivalent practices, to control runoff of		
5678	pollutants to surface wat				
5679	•				
5680		(G)	Identify protocols for appropriate testing of manure, litter,		
5681	process wastewater and				
5682	1	•			
5683		(H)	Establish protocols to land apply manure, litter or process		
5684	wastewater in accordance	` '	site specific nutrient management practices that ensure appropriate		
5685			trients in the manure, litter or process wastewater; and		
5686	C		, ,		
5687		(I)	Identify specific records that will be maintained to document the		
5688	implementation and mar	. ,	nt of the minimum elements described in Appendix G (i) (ii) (A		
5689	through H).	Ü			
5690	ζ ,				
5691	(iii)	Record	keeping requirements.		
5692	()		r & T		
5693		(A)	The permittee must create, maintain for five (5) years, and make		
5694	available to the director.	` /	equest, the following records:		
5695	,	- F	- 1		
5696			(I) All applicable records identified pursuant to Appendix G		
5697	(i) (i) (I) of these regulat	tions.	(2) 1 an approved to the state that the state of the stat		
5698	(-) (-) (-)				
5699			(II) All CAFOs subject to these regulations must comply		
5700	with the record keeping	require	ments of Appendix G (i) (iii) (B) and (C).		
5701		10			
5702		(B)	Record keeping requirements for the production area. Each		
5703	CAFO must maintain or	` ,	r a period of five (5) years from the date they are created a		
5704			on required by Appendix G (d) (iii) and Appendix G (i) (ii) (I) and		
5705	the records specified in Appendix G (i) (iii) (I) through (VI) of these regulations. The CAFO				
5706	must make these records available to the director and or his designee upon request.				
5707	made make those records	. a raiiai	or to the director and or me designee apon request.		
2101					

5708		(I)	Records documenting the inspections required under
5709	Appendix G (m) (ii) (C) (I) of t	. ,	
5710			
5711		(II)	Weekly records of the depth of the manure and process
5712	wastewater in the liquid impou	` '	as indicated by the depth marker under Appendix G (m)
5713	(ii) (C) (II) of these regulations		The second secon
5714	(ii) (b) (ii) of these regulations	•	
5715		(III)	Records documenting any actions taken to correct
5716	deficiencies required under Ap	` /	G (m) (ii) (C) (III) of these regulations. Deficiencies not
5717		-	npanied by an explanation of the factors preventing
5718	immediate correction.		-r
5719	manediate correction.		
5720		(IV)	Records of mortalities management and practices used
5721	by the CAFO to meet the requi	. ,	of Appendix G (m) (ii) (C) (IV) of these regulations.
5722	by the ern o to meet the requi	rements	of Appendix G (iii) (ii) (c) (11) of these regulations.
5723		(V)	Records documenting the current design of any manure
5724	or litter storage structures, inclu	` /	lume for solids accumulation design treatment volume,
5725	<u>-</u>	_	number of days of storage capacity.
5726	total design volume, and appro-	Alliate II	tumber of days of storage capacity.
5727		(VI)	Records of the date, time, and estimated volume of any
5728	overflow.	(11)	records of the date, time, and estimated votame of any
5729	overnow.		
5730	(C)	Record	l keeping requirements of the land application area. Each
5731	` '		its site-specific nutrient management plan. Each CAFO
5732			ve (5) years from the date they created a complete copy of
5733	-		G (j) (ii), Appendix G (i) (i) and (ii), and the records
5734		_	through IX) of these regulations. The CAFO must make
5735			r his designee, for review upon request.
5736			in a see greet, for to the or request.
5737		(I)	The date(s) manure, litter, or process waste water is
5738	applied to each field;	(-)	2110 date(s) 111111101, 121021, 32 process waste water 15
5739	approa to each freta,		
5740		(II)	Weather conditions at time of application and for 24-
5741	hours prior to and following ap		
5742		F	-7
5743		(III)	Test methods used to sample and analyze manure, litter,
5744	process waste water, and soil;	(222)	1 est memous asserts sumpre une unun 120 manere, musi,
5745	process waste water, and son,		
5746		(IV)	Results from manure, litter, process waste water, and
5747	soil sampling;	(2)	The second secon
5748			
5749		(V)	Explanation of the basis for determining manure
5750	application rates;	(·)	r
5751	TT,		
5752		(VI)	Calculations showing the total nitrogen and phosphorus
5753	to be applied to each field, incl	. ,	surces other than manure, litter, or process wastewater;

5754	
5755	
5756	(VII) Total amount of nitrogen and phosphorus actually
5757	applied to each field, including documentation of calculations for the total amount applied;
5758	
5759	(VIII) The method used to apply the manure, litter, or process
5760	wastewater;
5761	
5762	(IX) Date(s) of manure application equipment inspection.
5763	
5764	(D) A copy of the CAFO=s site-specific nutrient management plan
5765	must be maintained on site and made available to the director upon request.
5766	
5767	(iv) Requirements relating to transfer of manure or process wastewater to
5768	other persons. Prior to transferring manure, litter or process wastewater to other persons. Large
5769	CAFOs must provide the recipient of the manure, litter or process wastewater with the most
5770	current nutrient analysis. The analysis provided must be consistent with requirements of this
5771	appendix. Large CAFOs must retain for five (5) years records of the date, recipient name and
5772	address, and approximate amount of manure, litter or process wastewater transferred to another
5773	person.
5774	
5775	(v) Annual reporting requirements for CAFOs. The permittee must submit
5776	an annual report to the administrator. The annual report must include:
5777	The state of the s
5778	(A) The number and type of animals, whether in open confinement
5779	or housed under roof (buffalo, beef cattle, broilers, layers, swine weighing 55 pounds or more,
5780	swine weighing less than 55 pounds, mature dairy cows, dairy heifers, veal calves, sheep and
5781	lambs, horses, ducks, turkeys, other);
5782	
5783	(B) Estimated amount of total manure, litter and process wastewater
5784	generated by the CAFO in the previous 12 months (tons/gallons);
5785	generated by the brill bill the provious 12 months (tons, guilbins),
5786	(C) Estimated amount of total manure, litter and process waste water
5787	transferred to other person(s) by the CAFO in the previous 12 months (ton/gallons);
5788	transferred to other person(s) by the error of mane provious 12 months (ton gamons),
5789	(D) Total number of acres for land application covered by the
5790	nutrient management plan developed in accordance with Appendix G (i) (i) of these regulations;
5791	in and the second secon
5792	(E) Total number of acres under control of the CAFO that were used
5793	for land application of manure, litter, and process wastewater in the previous 12 months;
5794	101 mile application of minimize, never, and provide matter in the provided 12 months,
5795	(F) Summary of all manure, litter and process wastewater discharges
5796	from the production area that have occurred in the previous 12 months, including date, time, and
5797	approximate volume; and
5798	
5799	
シェノノ	

5800	(G) A statement indicating whether the current version of the
5801	CAFO=s nutrient management plan was developed or approved by a certified nutrient
5802	management planner.
5803	
5804	(j) This paragraph applies to manure, litter, and/or process wastewater discharges
5805	resulting from CAFOs.
5806	213331
5807	(i) General pretreatment standards. Any source subject to Appendix G (j)
5808	that introduces process wastewater pollutants into a publicly owned treatment works (POTW)
5809	must comply with the general pretreatment regulations of 40 CFR 403.
5810	
5811	(ii) Best Management Practices (BMPs) for land application of manure,
5812	litter, and process wastewater.
5813	
5814	(A) Appendix G (j) (ii) applies to any CAFO subject to Appendix G
5815	(m) of these regulations (buffalo, dairy and beef cattle other than veal calves) Appendix G (n) of
5816	these regulations (swine, poultry, and veal calves).
5817	
5818	(B) Specialized definitions.
5819	1
5820	(I) "Setback" means a specified distance from surface
5821	waters of the state or potential conduits to surface water where manure, litter, and process
5822	wastewater may not be land applied. Examples of conduits to surface waters of the state include
5823	but are not limited to: open tile line intake structures, sinkholes, and agricultural well heads.
5824	1
5825	(II) "Vegetated buffer" means a narrow, permanent strip of
5826	dense perennial vegetation established parallel to the contours of and perpendicular to the
5827	dominant slope of the field for the purposes of slowing water runoff, enhancing water infiltration
5828	and minimizing the risk of any potential nutrients or pollutants from leaving the field and
5829	reaching surface waters of the state.
5830	
5831	(III) "Multi-year phosphorus application" means phosphorus
5832	applied to a field in excess of the crop needs for that year. In multi-year phosphorus applications
5833	no additional manure, litter, or process wastewater is applied to the same land in subsequent year
5834	until the applied phosphorus has been removed from the field via harvest and crop removal.
5835	
5836	(C) Requirement to develop and implement best management
5837	practices. Each CAFO subject to Appendix G (j) (ii) that land applies manure, litter, or process
5838	wastewater, must do so in accordance with the following practices:
5839	
5840	(I) Nutrient management plan. The CAFO must develop
5841	and implement a nutrient management plan that incorporates the requirements of Appendix G (j)
5842	(ii) (C) (II) through (VI) of these regulations based on field-specific assessment of the potential
5843	for nitrogen and phosphorus transport from the field and that addresses the form, source, amount,
5844	timing, and method of application of nutrients on each field to achieve realistic production goals,
5845	while minimizing nitrogen and phosphorus movement to surface waters of the state.

5846	
5847	(II) Determination of application rates. Application rates for
5848	manure, litter, and other process wastewater applied to land under the ownership or operation
5849	control of the CAFO must minimize phosphorus and nitrogen transport from the field to surface
5850	and groundwaters of the state in compliance with technical standards, established by the director,
5851	for nutrient management. These shall include:
5852	
5853	(1.) A field-specific assessment of the potential for
5854 5855	nitrogen and phosphorus transport from the field to surface waters of the state, and address the form, source, amount, timing, and method of application of nutrients of each field to achieve
5856	realistic production goals, while minimizing nitrogen and phosphorus movement to surface
5857	waters of the state; and
5858	
5859	(2.) Appropriate flexibilities for any CAFO to
5860	implement nutrient management practices to comply with technical standards, including
5861	considerations of multi-year phosphorus application on fields that do not have a high potential for
5862	phosphorus runoff to surface water, phased implementation of phosphorus-based nutrient
5863	management, and other components.
5864	r vg
5865	(C) The director shall establish technical standards for nutrient
5866	management plans by April 12, 2004.
5867	
5868	(III) Manure and soil sampling.
5869	
5870	(1.) Manure must be analyzed for nitrogen and
5871	phosphorus content a minimum of once annually, and
5872	
5873	(2.) The soil profile shall be analyzed a minimum of
5874	once every five (5) years for phosphorus content. The results of these analyses are to be used in
5875	determining application rates for manure, litter, and other process wastewater.
5876	
5877	(IV) Inspect land application equipment for leaks. The
5878	operator must periodically inspect equipment used for land application of manure, litter, or
5879	process wastewater.
5880	
5881	(V) Setback requirements. Unless the CAFO exercises one
5882	of the compliance alternatives provided for in Appendix G (j) (ii) (V) (i) or (j) (ii) (V) (ii) of these
5883	regulations, manure, litter, and process wastewater may not be applied closer than 100 feet to any
5884	down-gradient surface waters of the state, open tile line intake structures, sinkholes, agricultural
5885	well heads, or other conduits to surface waters of the state.
5886	
5887	(1.) Vegetated buffer compliance alternative. As a
5888	compliance alternative, the CAFO may substitute the 100-foot setback with a 35 foot wide
5889	vegetated buffer where applications of manure, litter, or process wastewater are prohibited.
5890	

5891				(2.) As a compliance alternative, the CAFO may
5892	demonstrate th	hat a setl	oack or l	buffer is not necessary because implementation of alternative
5893				-specific conditions will provide pollutant reductions equivalent or
5894				would be achieved by the 100 foot setback.
5895	better than the	reductiv	ms that	would be define ted by the 100 100t setodek.
	(1.)	Ecc		' A 1' 11 . II 101
5896	(k)	Efflue	nt Limi	tations Applicable to Horses and Sheep.
5897				
5898		(i)	This p	paragraph applies to discharges resulting from the production areas
5899	at horse and sl	heep CA	FOs.	
5900				
5901		(ii)	Excep	ot as provided in Section 8 of these regulations and subject to the
5902	provisions of a	Appendi	x G (j) ((ii) (C), any point source subject to this source must have no
5903	_		-	ter pollutants to surface waters of the state.
5904	C I			1
5905		(iii)	Proce	ess waste pollutants in the overflow may be discharged to surface
5906	waters of the s	` '		ainfall events, either chronic or catastrophic, cause an overflow of
5907				cility designed, constructed and operated to contain all process
5908	_			ne runoff from a 25-year, 24-hour rainfall event for the location of
5909	-		s pius ti	ic runori from a 25-year, 24-nour rannan event for the location of
	the point source	ce.		
5910	(1)	Ecc	. 1	2 2 11 4 1 1
5911	(1)	Efflue	nt limita	ations applicable to ducks.
5912				
5913		(i)	_	paragraph applies to discharges resulting from the production areas
5914	at dry lot and	wet lot d	luck CA	FOs.
5915				
5916		(ii)	Speci	al definitions.
5917				
5918			(A)	"Dry lot" means a facility for growing ducks in confinement
5919	with a dry litte	er floor c	over an	d no access to swimming areas.
5920				
5921			(B)	"Wet lot" means a confinement facility for raising ducks which
5922	is open to the	environi	nent, ha	s a small number of sheltered areas, and with open water runs and
5923	swimming are	as to wh	ich ducl	ks have free access.
5924	C			
5925		(iii)	Excer	ot as provided in Section 8 of these regulations and subject to the
5926	provisions of	` /	_	(ii) (C), any point source subject to this source must have no
5927	_		-	ter pollutants to surface waters of the state.
5928	discharge of p	1000b	uste wa	ter portuines to surface waters of the state.
5928 5929		(iv)	Proce	ess waste pollutants in the overflow may be discharged to surface
5930	waters of the	` '		ainfall events, either chronic or catastrophic, cause an overflow of
5931				cility designed, constructed and operated to contain all process
	•			
5932	•		s prus tn	ne runoff from a 25-year, 24-hour rainfall event for the location of
5933	the point source	ce.		
5934 5035	/ \	Tree	11	ediana ann Paul III de la CC de 12 de 12 de 13 d
5935	(m)	Efflue	nt Iimit	ations applicable to buffalo, dairy cows and cattle other than veal
5936	calves.			

5937	
5938	(i) This paragraph applies to discharges resulting from the production areas
5939	at the following types of CAFOs:
5940	
5941	(A) Mature dairy cows (either milking or dry).
5942	
5943	(B) Cattle other than mature dairy cows which includes, but is not
5944	limited to heifers, steers, and bulls.
5945	
5946	(C) Buffalo.
5947	
5948	(ii) Except as provided in Section 8 of these regulations and subject to the
5949	provisions of Appendix G (j) (ii) (C), any point source subject to this source must meet the
5950	following limitations:
5951	
5952	(A) There shall be no discharge of manure, litter, or process
5953	wastewater pollutants into surface waters of the state from the CAFO production area, except
5954	under the following conditions:
5955	
5956	(I) Whenever precipitation causes an overflow of manure,
5957	litter, or process wastewater, pollutants in the overflow may be discharged to surface waters of
5958	the state provided:
5959	
5960	(1.) The production area is designed, constructed,
5961	operated and maintained to contain all manure, litter, and process wastewater including the runoff
5962	and the direct precipitation from a 25-year, 24-hour rainfall event.
5963	
5964	(2.) The production area is operated in accordance
5965	with the additional measures and records required by Appendix G (i) (iii) (B) and Appendix G
5966	(m) (ii) (C) of these regulations.
5967	
5968	(II) Voluntary alternative performance standards. Any
5969	CAFO subject to Appendix G (m) of these regulations may request the administrator to establish
5970	WYPDES permit effluent limitations based upon site-specific alternative technologies that
5971	achieve a quantity of pollutants discharged from the production area equal to or less than the
5972	quantity of pollutants that would be discharged under the baseline performance standards as
5973	provided by Appendix G (m) (ii) (A) of these regulations.
5974	
5975	(1.) Supporting information. In requesting site-
5976	specific effluent limitations to be included in the WYPDES permit, the CAFO owner or operator
5977	must submit a supporting technical analysis and any other relevant information and data that
5978	would support such site-specific effluent limitations within the time frame provided by the
5979	director. The supporting technical analysis must include calculation of the quantity of pollutants
5980	discharged, on a mass basis where appropriate, based on a site specific analysis of a system
5981	designed constructed operated and maintained to contain all manure, litter, and process

5982	wastewater, including the runoff from a 25-year, 24-hour rainfall event. The technical analysi	s of
5983	the discharge of pollutants must include:	
5984		
5985	(a.) All daily inputs to the storage system	1,
5986	including manure, litter, all process waste waters, direct precipitation, and runoff.	
5987		
5988	(b.) All daily outputs from the storage	
5989	system, including losses due to evaporation, sludge removal, and the removal of waste water f	or
5990	use on cropland at the CAFO or transport off site.	
5991	and the first term of the firs	
5992	(c.) A calculation determining the predict	ted
5993	median annual overflow volume based on a 25-year period of actual rainfall data applicable to	
5994	site.	, the
5995	site.	
5996	(d.) Site-specific pollutant data, including	αN
5997	P, BOD5, TSS, for the CAFO from representative sampling and analysis of all sources of inpu	_
5998		ii to
	the storage system, or other appropriate pollutant data.	
5999	(a) Prodicted arrayal arraya at discharge	
6000	(e.) Predicted annual average discharge of)1
6001	pollutants, expressed where appropriate as a mass discharge on a daily basis (lbs/day), and	
6002	calculated considering (A through D above).	
6003		
6004	(2.) The administrator has the discretion to reques	
6005	additional information to supplement the supporting technical analysis, including inspection of	İ
6006	the CAFO.	
6007		_
6008	(III) The CAFO shall attain the limitations and requirements of thi	IS
6009	paragraph as of the date of permit coverage.	
6010		
6011	(B) Discharges from land application areas are subject to	the
6012	following requirements:	
6013		
6014	(I) Develop and implement the best managemen	it
6015	practices specified in Appendix G (j) (ii) of these regulations.	
6016		
6017	(II) Maintain the records specified in Appendix C	3 (i)
6018	(iii) (C) of these regulations.	
6019		
6020	(III) Attain the limitations and requirements for	
6021	discharges form land application areas as of the date of permit coverage.	
6022		
6023	(C) Additional measures. Each CAFO subject Appendix	ι G
6024	(m) of these regulations must implement the following requirements:	
6025	, ,	
-		

6026	(I) Visual Inspections. There must be routine visual
6027	inspections of the CAFO production area. At a minimum, the following must be visually
6028	inspected:
6029	
6030	(1.) Weekly inspections of all storm water
6031	diversion devices, runoff diversion structures, and devices channeling contaminated storm water
6032	to the wastewater and manure storage and containment structure;
6033	
6034	(2.) Daily inspection of water lines,
6035	including drinking water or cooling water lines and documented weekly at a minimum, for the
6036	purpose of identifying leaks, corrosion, mechanical defects or other conditions that may result in
6037	an inadvertent discharge from the facility;
6038	
6039	(3.) Weekly inspections of the manure, litter
6040	and process wastewater impoundments; the inspection will note the level in liquid impoundments
6041	as indicated by the depth marker in paragraph (E) (II) of this appendix; and
6042	
6043	(4.) The visual inspection requirements may
6044	be waived if insurmountable or dangerous weather conditions exist and the weather conditions
6045	justifying the waiver are documented.
6046	
6047	(II) Depth marker. All open surface liquid
6048	impoundments must have a depth marker which clearly indicates the minimum capacity
6049	necessary to contain the runoff and direct precipitation of the 25-year, 24-hour rainfall event.
6050	
6051	(III) Corrective actions. Any deficiencies found as a
6052	result of these inspections must be corrected as soon as possible.
6053	
6054	(IV) Mortality handling. Mortalities must not be
6055	disposed of in any liquid manure or process wastewater system, and must be handled in such a
6056	way as to prevent the discharge of pollutants to surface water, unless alternative technologies
6057	pursuant to Appendix G (m) (ii) (II) and approved by the director are designed to handle
6058	mortalities.
6059	mortunico.
6060	(n) Effluent limitations applicable to swine, poultry, and veal calves.
6061	(ii) Littuent inintations applicable to swine, poundy, and year earves.
6062	(i) This paragraph applies to discharges resulting from the production areas
6063	at the following types of CAFOs:
6064	at the following types of CAI Os.
6065	(A) Swine,
	(A) Swille,
6066 6067	(B) Chickens,
	(B) Chickens,
6068	(C) Turkova and
6069 6070	(C) Turkeys, and
6070	(D) V ₀ -11
6071	(D) Veal calves.

6072	
6073	(ii) Except as provided in Section 8 of these regulations, any point source
6074	subject to this source must meet the following limitations.
6075	
6076	(iii) There shall be no discharge of manure, litter, or process wastewater
6077	pollutants into surface waters of the state from the CAFO production area, except under the
6078	following conditions.
6079	
6080	(A) Waste management and storage facilities are designed,
6081	constructed, operated, and maintained to contain all manure, litter, and process wastewater
6082	including the runoff and the direct precipitation from a 100-year, 24-hour rainfall event and
6083	operated in accordance with the additional measures and records required by Appendix G (i) (iii)
6084	(B) and Appendix G (n) (vi) (A) of these regulations.
6085	
6086	(B) The production area is operated in accordance with additional
6087	measures required by Appendix G (i) (iii) (B) and Appendix G (n) (vi) of these regulations.
6088	ineasures required by Appendix G (1) (111) (b) and Appendix G (1) (vi) of these regulations.
6089	(C) The discharge is an upset/bypass consistent with the provisions
6090	for upset/bypass, as provided in Section 5 (c) (i) (Z) and (AA) of these regulations.
6091	for upset/bypass, as provided in Section 3 (c) (i) (Z) and (AA) or these regulations.
	(iv) Discharges from land application areas are subject to the following
6092	(iv) Discharges from land application areas are subject to the following
6093	requirements.
6094	
6095	(A) Develop and implement the best management practices specified
6096	in Appendix G (j) (ii) of these regulations.
6097	
6098	(B) Maintain the records specified in Appendix G (i) (iii) (C) of
6099	these regulations.
6100	
6101	(C) Attain the limitations and requirements for discharges from land
6102	application areas as of the date of permit coverage.
6103	
6104	(v) Voluntary superior environmental performance standards. Any new
6105	source CAFO subject to Appendix (G) (n) may request the director to establish alternative
6106	WYPDES permit limitations based upon a demonstration that site-specific innovative
6107	technologies will achieve overall environmental performance across all media which is equal to
6108	or superior to the reductions achieved by baseline standards as provided by Appendix G (n) (iii).
6109	The quantity of pollutants discharged from the production area must be accompanied by an
6110	equivalent or greater reduction in the quantity of pollutants released to other media from the
6111	production area (e.g., air emissions from housing and storage) and/or land application areas for all
6112	manure, litter, and process wastewater at on-site and off-site locations. The comparison of
6113	quantity of pollutants must be made on a mass basis where appropriate. The director has the
6114	discretion to request supporting information to supplement such a request.
6115	The state of the s
6116	(vi) Additional measures. Each CAFO subject to Appendix G (n) of these
6117	regulations must implement the following requirements:
	2

6118	
6119	(A) Visual inspections. There must be routine visual inspections of
6120	the CAFO production area. At a minimum, the following must be visually inspected:
6121	
6122	(I) Weekly inspections of all storm water diversion devices,
6123	runoff diversion structures, and devices channeling contaminated storm water to the wastewater
6124	and manure storage and containment structure;
6125	
6126	(II) Daily inspection of water lines, including drinking water
6127	or cooling water lines;
6128	
6129	(III) Weekly inspections of the manure, litter, and process
6130	wastewater impoundments; the inspection will note the level in liquid impoundments as indicated
6131	by the depth marker in paragraph (E) (II) of this appendix.
6132	
6133	(B) Depth marker. All open surface liquid impoundments must have
6134	a depth marker which clearly indicates the minimum capacity necessary to contain the runoff and
6135	direct precipitation of the 100-year, 24-hour rainfall event.
6136	
6137	(C) Corrective actions. Any deficiencies found as a result of these
6138	inspections must be corrected as soon as possible.
6139	
6140	(D) Mortality handling. Mortalities must not be disposed of in any
6141	liquid manure or process wastewater system, and must be handled in such a way as to prevent the
6142	discharge of pollutants to surface water, unless alternative technologies pursuant to Appendix G
6143	(n) (v) and approved by the director are designed to handle mortalities.
6144	
6145	

6146	APPENDIX H: Additional Requirements Applicable to Produced Water Discharges from		
6147			
6148			
6149	(a) Application requirements specific to all produced water discharges from oil and		
6150	gas production facilities must provide the following information in addition to that described in		
6151	Section 5 (a) (v), to the administrator, using the application form provided by the administrator.		
6152			
6153	(i) The produced water discharged into surface waters of the state shall have		
6154	use in agriculture or wildlife propagation. The produced water shall be of good enough quality to		
6155	be used for wildlife or livestock watering or other agricultural uses and actually be put to such use		
6156	during periods of discharge.		
6157			
6158	(b) Permits for all produced water discharges from oil and gas production facilities		
6159	shall include the following conditions and limitations:		
6160			
6161	(i) In no case shall any produced water discharge contain toxic materials in		
6162	concentrations or combinations which are toxic to human, animal or aquatic life.		
6163			
6164	(ii) Diffuse discharges. Water shall not be discharged in a diffuse manner		
6165	such that damage to land and/or vegetation occurs.		
6166			
6167	(iii) Facility identification. All facilities authorized to discharge produced		
6168	water shall be clearly identified with an all-weather sign posted at a visually prominent location.		
6169	The sign shall be securely mounted and maintained to prevent the sign from being knocked down		
6170	by livestock or wind. In the case where multiple outfalls are permitted or authorized, a sign shall		
6171	be posted to identify each outfall. Signs shall, as a minimum, convey the following information:		
6172			
6173	(A) The name of the company, corporation, person or persons who		
6174	hold(s) the discharge permit;		
6175			
6176	(B) The name of the facility (lease, tank battery number, etc.) as		
6177	identified by the discharge permit; and		
6178			
6179	(C) The WYPDES permit number assigned to the facility and outfall		
6180	identification number assigned to each outfall.		
6181			
6182	(iv) Measures must be implemented to minimize erosion of the drainage at		
6183	the point of discharge.		
6184			
6185	(v) Discharges of produced water will not contain substances that will settle		
6186	to form sludge, bank or bottom deposits in quantities sufficient to result in significant aesthetic		
6187	degradation, significant degradation of habitat for aquatic life or adversely affect public water		
6188	supplies, agricultural or industrial water use, plant life or wildlife.		
6189			

6190	(vi) Discharges of produced water may not result in the formation of a visible		
6191	(vi) Discharges of produced water may not result in the formation of a visible hydrocarbon sheen on the receiving water.		
6192	nydrocarbon sheen on the receiving water.		
6193	(vii) The following effluent limitations are protective for stock and wildlife		
6194	consumption. Limitations on additional parameters or limitations more stringent will be imposed		
6195	when such limitations are necessary to assure compliance with Wyoming Water Quality Rules		
6196	and Regulations, Chapter 1.		
6197	and Regulations, Chapter 1.		
6198	(A) Chlorides. The chloride content of any produced water		
6199	discharge shall not exceed 2,000 mg/l in any single properly preserved grab sample except in		
6200	those cases where a modification is granted in accordance with paragraph (c) of this appendix.		
6201	those eases where a mounteation is granted in accordance with paragraph (c) of this appendix.		
6202	(B) Sulfates. The sulfate content of any produced water discharge		
6203	shall not exceed 3,000 mg/l in any single properly preserved grab sample except in those cases		
6204	where a modification is granted in accordance with paragraph (c) of this appendix.		
6205	where a modification is granted in accordance with paragraph (e) of this appendix.		
6206	(C) Total dissolved solids and specific conductance. The total		
6207	dissolved solids content of any produced water discharge shall not exceed 5,000 mg/l for total		
6208	dissolved solids or 7500 µmhos/cm for specific conductance in any single properly preserved		
6209	grab sample except in those cases where a modification has been granted in accordance with		
6210	paragraph (c) of this appendix.		
6211			
6212	(D) pH. In no case shall the pH of any produced water discharge be		
6213	less than 6.5 or greater than 9.0 standard units as measured by a single grab sample.		
6214			
6215	(viii) Samples collected to demonstrate compliance with effluent limitations		
6216	specified in this appendix shall be collected as grab samples and reported as an instantaneous		
6217	maximum, unless otherwise specified.		
6218			
6219	(Ix) There shall be no discharge of waste pollutants into surface waters of the		
6220	state from any source (other than produced water) associated with production, field exploration,		
6221	drilling, well completion, or well treatment (i.e., drilling muds, drill cuttings, and produced		
6222	sands). These materials shall be managed in accordance with applicable state and federal		
6223	regulations.		
6224			
6225	(x) All water quality samples collected by the Department and discharge		
6226	permit holders subject to this Appendix shall be taken from the free fall of water from the last		
6227	treatment unit which is located out of the natural drainage. The sample must not be mixed with		
6228	waters of any other surface water or with water from another discharge point.		
6229			
6230	(c) Additional Permit Conditions and Limitations Specific to Oil and Natural Gas		
6231	(other than coal bed natural gas) Production Facilities.		
6232			
6233	(i) For existing permits where the original permit application was submitted		
6234	prior to September 5, 1978, modification of the effluent limits described in paragraphs (b) (vii) of		
6235	this appendix may be granted on a case-by-case basis if a signed "letter of beneficial use" from		

the land owner was provided specifically requesting that the discharge in question be allowed to continue; or a signed statement by the Wyoming Game and Fish Department was provided in which it was stated that the discharge in question is of value to fish or wildlife; or documentation was provided by the owner or operator of the discharging facility that, because of extenuating circumstances (volume of discharge, individual chemical constituents, nature of the area in which the discharge occurs, etc.), an exemption should be considered. The user must have indicated the exact beneficial use of the water (stock watering, irrigation, etc.) and the history of such use. No action taken by the department under this paragraph or any other paragraph of these regulations shall be interpreted as the granting of a water right or any other water use authority.

(ii) For discharge permit applications filed after the date of adoption of these regulations, modification of effluent limits described in paragraph (b) (vii) of this appendix may be granted on a case-by-case basis. The Water Quality Administrator shall review all requests for modification of effluent limits submitted under this section and make a determination based upon the technical merits of a Use Attainability Analysis. Such requests shall also provide a signed "letter of agricultural or wildlife use" by the land owner specifically requesting that the discharge will serve a specific agricultural or wildlife use.

(iii) In no case will a modification as described in paragraph (c) (i) or (c) (ii) of this appendix be permitted which would result in a violation of Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations, Chapter 1.

(iv) Location of skim ponds and disposal pits. Location of skim ponds and disposal pits shall be managed in accordance with applicable state (e.g. Oil and Gas Conservation Commission) and federal (e.g. Bureau of Land Management) regulations.

(v) An effluent limitation of 10 mg/l for oil and grease as measured by EPA method 1664 or 10 mg/l for net oil and grease as measured by alternate test procedure method 1664-Cu.

(d) Additional Permit Conditions and Limitations Specific to Coal Bed Natural Gas Production Facilities.

 (i) Where discharge water is accessible to livestock and/or wildlife; meets the effluent limitations as specified in this appendix; and meets the criteria for the protection of livestock and wildlife as specified in Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations Chapter 1, Wyoming Surface Water Quality Standards, the discharge will be considered in compliance with the requirements of Appendix H (a) (i) of these regulations.

(ii) For discharge permit applications filed after the date of adoption of these regulations, modification of effluent limits described in paragraph (b) (vii) of this appendix may be granted on a case by case basis. The Water Quality Administrator shall review all requests for modification of effluent limits submitted under this section and make a determination based upon the technical merits of a Use Attainability Analysis. Such requests shall also provide a signed "letter of agricultural or wildlife use" by the land owner specifically requesting that the discharge

H-3

5281	will serve a specific agricultural or wildlife use or a demonstration that the conditions of
5282	Appendix (H) (d) (i) have been met.
5283	
5284	(iii) Location of disposal pits. Location of disposal pits shall be managed in
5285	accordance with applicable state (e.g. Oil and Gas Conservation Commission) and federal (e.g.
5286	Bureau of Land Management) regulations.
5287	
5288	(iv) The permittee shall take all reasonable measures to prevent downstream
5289	erosion that would be attributable to the discharge of produced water.
5290	
5291	
5292	
5293	
5294	
5295	
5296	
5297	
5298	
5299	
5300	
5301	
5302	
5303	
5304	
5305	
5306	
5307	
5308	
5309	
5310	
5311	
5312	
5313	
5314	
5315	
5316	
5317	
5318	
5319	
5320	
5321	
5322	
5323 5324	
5324 5325	
5325 5326	Intentionally left blank
1.14(1	HICHGOIGHV ICH DIAIR

6327 <u>APPENDIX I: RESERVED</u>

6328

This page intentionally left blank.

6329	APPENDIX J: Additional Requirements Applicable to Coal Mining Operations
6330	
6331	(a) General definitions applicable to Appendix J.
6332	
6333	(i) "Abandoned mine" means a mine where mining operations have
6334	occurred in the past and:
6335	1
6336	(A) The applicable reclamation bond or financial assurance has been
6337	released or forfeited; or
6338	
6339	(B) If no reclamation bond or other financial assurance has been
6340	posted, no mining operations have occurred for five years or more.
6341	
6342	(ii) "Acid or ferruginous mine drainage" means mine drainage which, before
6343	any treatment, either has a pH of less than 6.0 or a total iron concentration equal to or greater than
6344	10 mg/l.
6345	
6346	(iii) "Active mining area" means the area, on and beneath land, used or
6347	disturbed in activity related to the extraction, removal, or recovery of coal from its natural
6348	deposits. This term excludes coal preparation plants, coal preparation plant associated areas and
6349	post-mining areas.
6350	
6351	(iv) "Alkaline, mine drainage" means mine drainage which, before any
6352	treatment, either has a pH of greater than 6.0 or a total iron concentration less than 10 mg/l.
6353	
6354	(v) "Bond release" means the time at which the appropriate regulatory
6355	authority returns a reclamation or performance bond based upon its determination that
6356	reclamation work (including, in the case of underground mines, mine sealing, and abandonment
6357	procedures) has been satisfactorily completed.
6358	
6359	(vi) "Coal preparation plant" means a facility where coal is subjected to
6360	cleaning, concentrating, or other processing or preparation in order to separate coal from its
6361	impurities and then is loaded for transit to a consuming facility.
6362	
6363	(vii) "Coal preparation plant associated areas" means the coal preparation
6364	plant yards, immediate access roads, coal refuse piles, and coal storage piles and facilities.
6365	
6366	(viii) "Coal preparation plant water circuit" means all pipes, channels, basins,
6367	tanks, and all other structures and equipment that convey, contain, treat, or process any water that
6368	is used in coal preparation processes within a coal preparation plant.
6369	
6370	(iv) "Cool refere dismosal rile?
6371	(ix) "Coal refuse disposal pile" means any coal refuse deposited on the earth
6372	and intended as permanent disposal or long-term storage (greater than 180 days) of such material,

6373			_	ted within the active mining area or coal refuse never		
6374	removed from the acti	ve minin	g area.			
6375						
6376	(x)	"Controlled surface mine drainage" means any surface mine drainage				
6377	that is pumped or siph	mped or siphoned from the active mining area.				
6378						
6379	(xi)	"Mine	drainag	e" means any drainage, and any water pumped or		
6380	siphoned, from any ac					
6381						
6382 6383	(xii)	"ml/l"	means i	milliliters per liter.		
6384	(xiii)	"Now	"New source coal mine" means a coal mine (excluding coal preparation			
6385	, ,					
		ation pia	iii associ	ated areas) including an abandoned mine which is being		
6386 6387	reminded:					
6388		(A)	The	protruction of which is commoned often May 4, 1094; or		
6389		(A)	The CC	onstruction of which is commenced after May 4, 1984; or		
6390		(B)	Which	is determined by the administrator to constitute a "major		
6391	alteration " In malsing	` /		is determined by the administrator to constitute a "major		
	-			on, the administrator shall take into account whether one		
6392		-		ng in a new, altered or increased discharge of pollutants		
6393		y 4, 1984	in conn	ection with the mine for which the WYPDES permit is		
6394	being considered:					
6395			(T)			
6396			(I)	Extraction of a coal seam not previously extracted at the		
6397	mine;					
6398 6399			(II)	Discharge into a drainage area not proviously affected by		
6400	wastewater discharge	from the	` '	Discharge into a drainage area not previously affected by		
6401	wastewater discharge	mom me	mme,			
6402			(III)	Extensive new surface disruption at the mining		
6403	operation;		(111)	Extensive new surface disruption at the mining		
6404	operation,					
6405			(IV)	A construction of a new shaft, lope, or drift; and		
6406			` /			
6407			(V)	Such other factors as the administrator deems relevant.		
6408			` /			
6409	(xiv)	"One	year, 2-y	rear, and 10-year, 24-hour precipitation events" means the		
6410	maximum 24-hour pre			with a probable recurrence interval of once in one (1), two		
6411	(2), and ten (10) years	respecti	vely as c	lefined by the National Weather Service Technical Paper		
6412	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	"Rainfall Frequency Atlas of the U.S." May 1961, or equivalent regional or rainfall				
6413	probability informatio	n develo	ped ther	efrom.		
6414	-	•	-			
6415	(xv)	"Post-	mining a	area" means:		
6416	. ,					
6417		(A)	A recl	amation area; or		
6418		-				

6419 6420 6421 6422	(B) The underground workings of an underground coal mine after the extraction, removal, or recovery of coal from its natural deposit has ceased and prior to bond release.				
6423 6424 6425 6426	(xvi) "Reclamation area" means the surface area of a coal mine which has been returned to required contour and on which revegetation (specifically, seeding, or planting) work has commenced.				
6427	(xvii) "Settleable solids" is that matter measured by the volumetric method				
6428	specified in Appendix J (f).				
6429					
6430	(xvii) "Treatment facility" and "treatment system" mean all structures which				
6431	contain, convey, and as necessary, chemically or physically treat coal fine drainage, coal				
6432	preparation plant process wastewater, or drainage from coal preparation plant associated areas,				
6433	which remove pollutants regulated by this part from such waters. This includes all pipes,				
6434	channels, ponds, basins, tanks, and all other equipment serving such structures.				
6435					
6436	(b) Application requirements specific to discharges from coal mines must provide				
6437	the following information, in addition to that described in Section 5 (a) (v), and where applicable				
6438	the information described in Appendix B, Appendix C, and/or Appendix D, to the administrator,				
6439	using an application form provided by the administrator.				
6440					
6441	(i) Construction application requirements. A permit application, which may				
6442	include an approved sedimentation structure control plan, in accordance with the provisions				
6443 6444	outlined in Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations, Chapter 3, is required for the construction of any sedimentation ponds or runoff control facilities associated with surface coal				
6445	mining operations. By agreement between the Land Quality Division and the Water Quality				
6446	Division, this may take the form of one consolidated application for surface coal mining				
6447	operations.				
6448	·				
6449	(ii) Minimum design standards for sedimentation control facilities. The				
6450	minimum design standards for runoff control facilities of surface coal mining operations are set				
6451	forth in this subparagraph. The department reserves the right to impose more stringent design				
6452	requirements to ensure compliance with the effluent limitations contained in Section 5 (c) (iii) of				
6453	these regulations.				
6454					
6455	(A) Scope. These standards pertain only to permits for surface coal				
6456	mining sedimentation control facilities required pursuant to Wyoming Water Quality Rules and				
6457	Regulations, Chapter 3.				
6458					
6459	(B) Sedimentation ponds and sedimentation control structures.				
6460					
6461	(I) Design.				
6462					

6463	(1.) Inlet ditches or structures shall be designed to				
6464	minimize erosion, disturbance of the pond bottom, and resuspension of silts or colloidal soil				
6465	particles.				
6466	•				
6467	(2.) Outlet structures, if used, shall have an overflow				
6468	device, minimize short-circuiting, minimize floating solids from discharging and shall not erode				
6469	or disturb the dike. All pipe protruding through a dike shall have adequate seepage control. The				
6470	point of discharge into a channel shall be protected against erosion and erosion control devices				
6471	shall be designed based on flow velocities.				
6472	č				
6473	(3.) The design, construction and maintenance of a				
6474	sedimentation pond or other sediment control measures shall not relieve the person from				
6475	compliance with applicable effluent limitations.				
6476					
6477	(4.) Computations showing the facility volume to				
6478	include runoff from a 10-year 24-hour precipitation event shall be provided. The pond treatment				
6479	or containment volume shall be in addition to sediment storage required by Land Quality Division				
6480	regulations. A lesser design event may be approved by the administrator based on terrain,				
6481	climate, other site-specific conditions and on a demonstration by the applicant that the effluent				
6482	limitations of Section 5 (c) (iii) will be met. The design for the runoff control facilities shall				
6483	contain all supportive documentation, calculations and drawings necessary to determine				
6484	compliance with the effluent limitations of Section 5 (c) (iii) of these regulations.				
6485	compliance with the critical minitations of Section 3 (c) (iii) of these regulations.				
6486	(5.) Each person who conducts surface mining				
6487	activities shall design, construct and maintain sedimentation ponds to minimize short-circuiting				
6488	where the facility is not designed to contain the 10-year 24-hour precipitation runoff.				
6489	where the facility is not designed to contain the 10-year 24-hour precipitation runoir.				
6490	(II) Construction. This paragraph pertains only to				
6491	impoundments not defined as major impoundments by the State Engineer's regulations. Below				
6492	grade sedimentation ponds may be exempted provided site specific contours indicate a slope that				
6493	will provide wall structure stability and minimize seepage.				
6494	war provide war streeting and manning scopage.				
6495	(1.) Where pond bottoms and sidewalls are made of				
6496	fill material, the soils used shall be relatively incompressible, have a low permeability, and be				
6497	free from organic material and trash. The soil shall be compacted at a water content that will				
6498	ensure structural stability, minimize hydraulic seepage, and minimize settling.				
6499	γ				
6500	Fill material containing rocks larger than six (6) inches in the longest dimension shall not				
6501	be placed within five (5) feet of the interior slope surface of any pond embankment. Material				
6502	containing by volume less than 25 percent of rock larger than six (6) inches and less than 12 inch				
6503	in the longest dimension may be placed in the remainder of the embankment.				
6504	in the foligest difficultion may be placed in the femaliate of the embalikment.				
6505	(2.) Outer dike slopes shall not be steeper than one				
6506	vertical to two (2) horizontal. Flatter slopes may be required to maintain slope stability. Inner				
6507	dike slopes shall be sloped one vertical to three horizontal or flatter.				
6508	and stopes shall be stoped one vertical to three notizontal of flatter.				

6509	(3.) The minimum top dike width shall be sufficient					
6510	to provide structural stability.					
6511						
6512	(4.) The application shall contain an evaluation of					
6513	the need for riprap. This evaluation shall address site specific conditions such as surrounding					
6514	topography, predominant wind directions, highest predicted peak wind velocity, calculation of					
6515	predicted wave heights, data on windy months versus potential of water and water depths in the					
6516	impoundment, impoundment life or any other relevant parameters. If necessary, riprap or other					
6517	acceptable erosion control shall be installed on the inner dike slopes at all anticipated levels of					
6518	water. Sedimentation control structures shall be exempted from requirements of this appendix.					
6519						
6520	(III) Dewatering. The storage resulting from inflow shall be					
6521	removed by a nonclogging dewatering device or a spillway as soon as possible but not prior to the					
6522	time that the discharge will comply with the effluent standards of these regulations. The					
6523	application shall contain documentation that equipment or outlet structures are available for					
6524	draining the pond.					
6525						
6526	(C) Discharge structures. Outfall structures and related equipment					
6527	which is sufficient to meet the self-monitoring requirements of the WYPDES permit shall be					
6528	properly installed, maintained, operated, and shall be removed when no longer required.					
6529						
6530	(c) Permit condition. Identification of outfalls. Point source discharges which					
6531	consist of process wastewater or a combination of process wastewater and water from affected					
6532	lands shall be identified as specific points of discharge in the discharge permit for each mine.					
6533	Point source discharges which consist of water discharged from affected lands only may not be					
6534	required to be identified as specific points of discharge in the discharge permit for each mine.					
6535	Even if a discharge is not designated as a specific point of discharge, such discharges shall be					
6536	required to meet the applicable self-monitoring and effluent requirements of the permit.					
6537						
6538	(d) Effluent limitations.					
6539						
6540	(i) The following types of mine discharges are subject to the effluent					
6541	limitations of Appendix J (d) (ii):					
6542						
6543	(A) Coal preparation plants and coal preparation plant associated					
6544	areas, as indicated, including discharges which are pumped, siphoned, or drained from the coal					
6545	preparation plant water circuit and coal storage, refuse storage, and ancillary areas related to the					
6546	cleaning or beneficiation of coal of any rank including, but not limited to, bituminous, lignite, and					
6547	anthracite.					
6548						
6549	(B) Acid or ferruginous mine drainage from an active mining area					
6550	resulting from the mining of coal of any rank including, but not limited to, bituminous, lignite,					
6551	and anthracite.					
6552						

(C)	Alkaline mine drainage from an active mining area resulting
from the mining of coal of any	rank including, but not limited to, bituminous, lignite, and
anthracite.	

(D) Post-mining underground mine drainage from the underground workings of underground mines until Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act (SMCRA) bond release.

 (ii) All point source mine discharges, as described in Appendix J (d) (i), which enter or will directly affect surface waters of the state shall meet the following effluent limitations except during a precipitation event of any duration within any 24-hour period which results in a rainfall depth greater than the 10-year, 24-hour precipitation amount (or snowmelt of equivalent volume). During such precipitation events only the limitation on pH shall apply:

Effluent Characteristic	30 Day Average	Daily Maximum	Instantaneous Maximum
Total Suspended Solids (mg/l)	35	70	90
Total Iron (mg/l)	3.0	6.0	9.0
Total Manganese* (mg/l)	2.0	4.0	6.0
pH (standard units)	N/A	N/A	6.0 to 9.0

 *Applicable only when pH of the discharge, prior to any treatment, is less than 6.0 standard units.

(iii) Post-Mining Areas. The provisions of this paragraph are applicable to discharges from post mining areas, except as provided in Appendix J (h).

(A) Reclamation Areas. The following limitations apply to discharges from reclamation areas until the performance bond issued to the facility by the appropriate SMCRA authority has been released. The following limitations establish the concentration or quality of pollutants which may be discharged.

Pollutant or Pollutant Property	Limitations
Settleable Solids	0.5 ml/l maximum not to be exceeded
pH	Within the range of 6.0 and 9.0 at all times

(iv) Co-mingling of waste streams. Where waste streams from any facility covered by this appendix are combined for treatment or discharge with waste streams from another facility covered by this part, the concentration of each pollutant in the combined discharge may not exceed the most stringent limitations for that pollutant applicable to any component waste stream of the discharge.

 (v) Alternate effluent limitation for pH. Where the application of neutralization and sedimentation treatment technology results in inability to comply with the otherwise applicable manganese limitations, the permit issuer may allow the pH level in the final effluent to exceed 9.0 to a small extent in order that the manganese limitations can be achieved,

6588	provided that the pH of the receiving surface water of the state does not exceed water quality				
6589	standards of Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations Chapter 1, Wyoming Surface Water				
6590	Quality Standa	ards.			
6591		TO COL		.•	
6592	(e)	Efflue	nt limitations for precipita	tion events.	
6593					
6594		(i)	The alternate limitations	specified in Appendix J (e) (ii) apply with	
6595	respect to:				
6596					
6597				f alkaline mine drainage except discharges from	
6598	•	•	•	at are not commingled with other discharges	
6599	eligible for the	ese altern	ate limitations;		
6600					
6601				rom steep slope areas, (as defined in Section 515	
6602	(d) (4) of the SMCRA of 1977, as amended), and form mountaintop removal operations				
6603	(conducted pu	rsuant to	Section 515 (c) of SMCR	A);	
6604					
6605				n coal preparation plants and preparation plant	
6606	associated are	as (exclu	ding acid or ferruginous n	nine drainage from coal refuse disposal piles).	
6607					
6608		(ii)	Any discharge or increase	se in the volume of a discharge caused by	
6609	precipitation v	vithin an	y 24-hour period less than	or equal to the 10-year, 24-hour precipitation	
6610	event (or snov	vmelt of	equivalent volume) may c	omply with the following limitations instead of	
6611	the otherwise	applicab	le limitations:		
6612					
6613					
6614					
	Pollutant or l	Pollutant	Property	Limitations	
	Settleable So	lids		0.5 ml/l maximum not to be exceeded	
	pН			Within the range 6.0 to 9.0 at all times	

 iii) The following alternate limitations apply with respect to acid or ferruginous drainage from coal refuse disposal piles: Any discharge or increase in the volume of a discharge caused by precipitation within any 24-hour period greater than the 1-year, 24-hour precipitation event, but less than or equal to the 10-year, 24-hour precipitation event (or snowmelt of equivalent volume) may comply with the following limitations instead of the otherwise applicable limitations:

Pollutant or Pollutant Property	Limitations	
Settleable Solids	0.5 ml/l maximum not to be exceeded	
pH	Within the range 6.0 to 9.0 at all times	

(iv) The following alternate limitations apply with respect to acid or ferruginous mine drainage, except for discharges addressed in: Appendix J (e) (i) (B) (mountaintop removal and steep slope areas) and Appendix J (e) (vii) (discharges from underground workings of underground mines):

Pollutant or Pollutant Property

6628

6629

6630 6631 6632

6633

Total Iron Settleable Solids ηH

6634 6635

6640

6641

6642 6643

6644 6645

6646 6647 6648

6649 6650 6651

6653 6654 6655

6652

6657 6658 6659

6656

6664

6665

6666

(A) Any discharge or increase in the volume of a discharge caused by precipitations within any 24-hour period or less or equal to the 2-year, 24-hour precipitation event (or snowmelt of equivalent volume) may comply with the following limitations instead of the otherwise applicable limitations:

Limitations

7.0 mg/l maximum for any one day

0.5 ml/l maximum not to exceed Within the range 6.0 to 9.0 at all times

(B) Any discharge or increase in the volume of a discharge caused		
by precipitation within any 24-hour period greater than the 2-year, 24-hour precipitation event,		
but less than or equal to the 10-year, 24-hour precipitations event (or snowmelt of equivalent		
volume) may comply with the following limitations instead of the otherwise applicable		
limitations:		

Pollutant or Pollutant Property	Limitations	
Settleable Solids	0.5 ml/l maximum not to be exceeded	
pH	Within the range 6.0 to 9.0 at all times	

- Any discharge which occurs during a precipitation event of any duration (v) within any 24-hour period which results in a rainfall depth greater than the 10-year, 24-hour precipitation amount (or snowmelt of equivalent volume) shall be required to meet an instantaneous maximum pH limitation of 6.0 - 9.0 only.
- (vi) The operator shall have the burden of proof that the discharge or increase in discharge was caused by the applicable precipitation event described Appendix J (e) (ii), (iii), (iv) and (v).
- Discharges of mine drainage from underground workings or underground (vii) mines which are not commingled with discharges eligible for alternate limitations set forth in Appendix J (e) shall in no event be eligible for the alternate limitations set forth in Appendix J (e).
- If effluent limitations more stringent than those given in paragraph (c) (i) or (ii) (f) of this appendix are necessary to assure compliance with Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations, Chapter 1, such limitations shall be established in accordance with Section 5 (c) (iii) (C).
- Procedure and method detection limit for measurement of settleable solids. For (g) the purposes of this appendix, the following procedure shall be used to determine settleable solids: Fill an Imhoff cone to the one-liter mark with a thoroughly mixed sample. Allow to settle undisturbed for 45 minutes. Gently stir along the inside surface of the cone with a stirring rod. Allow to settle undisturbed for 15 minutes longer. Record the volume of settled material in the cone as milliliters per liter. Where a separation of settleable and floating materials occurs, do not

	_		n the reading. Notwithstanding any provision of 40 CFR Part 136, measuring settleable solids under this part shall be 0.4 ml/l.
(h)	West	ern alkal	ine coal mining.
		s, brush	cable to alkaline mine drainage at western coal mining operations ing and grubbing areas, topsoil stockpiling areas, and regraded
areas where t	he discha	arge, bei	Fore any treatment, meets all of the following requirements:
		(A)	pH is equal to or greater than 6.0,
		(B)	Dissolved iron concentration is less than 10 mg/l, and
		(C)	Net alkalinity is greater than zero.
	(ii)	Speci	al definitions.
		(A)	"Brushing and grubbing" area means the area where woody plan
materials that	would i	` /	with soil salvage operations have been removed or incorporated
into the soil the			
	1000	ing surve	,500.
		(B)	"Regraded area" means the surface area of a coal mine that has
been returned	l to reaui	` '	_
	1		
		(C)	"Sediment" means undissolved organic and inorganic material
transported or	r deposit	` /	
		J	
		(D)	"Sediment yield" means the sum of the soil losses from a surface
minus deposi	tion in m	` '	pographic depressions, at the toe of the hillslope, along field
•		•	channels sculpted into the hillslope.
,			1
		(E)	"Topsoil stockpiling area" means the area outside the mined-out
area where to	psoil is t	` ′	rily stored for use in reclamation, including containment berms.
	1	•	
		(F)	"Western coal mining operation" means a surface or
underground	coal min		ration located in the interior western United States, west of the
-			e, in an arid or semiarid environment with an average annual
precipitation		_	
FF			
	(iii)	The e	ffluent limitations of Appendix J (h) (iv) apply until the appropriate
SMCRA auth	` '		zed bond release.
	. 5		
	(iv)	Efflue	ent limitations.
	\ ' <i>/</i>		
		(A)	The operator must submit a site specific sediment control plan to
the permitting	g authori	` '	s designed to prevent an increase in the average annual sediment
		•	

6756

6757

abandoned mine.

e sediment
ibe design
pection, as well
•
nstrate that
t yields that
ditions. The
he SMCRA
in BMPs in the
ated within or
on.
peration at a
bandoned or
permit area that
The pollution
y the remining
g discharges and
, 8
ulting from
application.
mplementation
•
or such lesser
nd other
n operator is
untered and
y flat area.

6758	(ii) A pre-existing discharge that is intercepted by active mining or that is					
6759	commingled with waste streams from active mining areas for treatment is subject to the					
6760	provisions of Appendix J (d) (iv) of these regulations only during the time when the pre-existing					
6761	discharge is intercepted by active mining or is commingled with active mine wastewater for					
6762	treatment or discharge. After commingling has ceased, the pre-existing discharge is subject to the	•				
6763	provisions of Appendix J (i) of these regulations.					
6764						
6765	(iii) In situations where coal remining operations seek reissuance of an					
6766	existing remining permit with BPJ limitations and the administrator determines that it is not					
6767	feasible for a remining operator to re-establish baseline pollutant levels in accordance with the					
6768	statistical procedures contained in 40 CFR Part 434 Appendix B pre-existing discharge					
6769	limitations at existing remining operations shall remain subject to baseline pollutant levels					
6770	established during the original permit application.					
6771						
6772	(iv) The effluent limitations of Appendix J (i) apply to pre-existing					
6773	discharges until the appropriate SMCRA authority has authorized bond release.					
6774						
6775	(v) Effluent limitations applicable to coal remining.					
6776						
6777	(A) The operator must submit a site-specific pollution abatement					
6778	plan to the administrator for the pollution abatement area. The plan must be approved by the					
6779	administrator and incorporated into the permit as an effluent limitation. The Pollution Abatement	t				
6780	Plan must identify characteristics of the pollution abatement area and the pre-existing discharges.					
6781	The Pollution Abatement Plan must be designed to reduce pollution load from pre-existing					
6782	discharges and must identify the selected BMPs to be used. The plan must describe the design					
6783	specifications, construction specifications, maintenance schedules, criteria for monitoring and					
6784	inspection, and expected performance of the BMPs. The BMPs must be implemented as					
6785	specified in the plan.					
6786						
6787	(B) Except as provided in Appendix J (h) (v) (C) of these					
6788	regulations, the following effluent limits shall apply to pre-existing discharges:					
6789						
6790	(I) Total iron may not exceed baseline loadings (as defined					
6791	40 CFR Part 434 Appendix B).					
6792						
6793	(II) Total manganese may not exceed baseline loadings (as					
6794	defined 40 CFR Part 434 Appendix B).					
6795						
6796	(III) Net acidity may not exceed baseline loadings (as defined	l				
6797	40 CFR Part 434 Appendix B).					
6798						
6799	(IV) TSS, during remining and reclamation, may not exceed					
6800	baseline loadings (as defined 40 CFR Part 434 Appendix B).					
6801						
6802	(V) Prior to bond release, the pre-existing discharge must					
6803	meet the applicable standards for TSS or SS contained in Appendix I (d) (iii)					

6804					
6805	(VI) A pre-existing discharge is exempt from meeting				
6806	standards in Subpart E for TSS and SS when the administrator determines that Subpart E				
6807	standards are infeasible or impractical based on the site-specific conditions of soil, climate,				
6808	topography, steep slopes, or other baseline conditions provided that the operator demonstrates				
6809	that significant reductions of TSS and SS will be achieved through the incorporation of sediment				
6810	control BMPs into the Pollution Abatement Plan as required by Appendix J (i) (v) of these				
6811	regulations.				
6812					
6813	(C) If the administrator determines that it is infeasible to collect				
6814	samples for establishing the baseline pollutant levels pursuant to Appendix J (i) (v) (B) of these				
6815	regulations and that remining will result in significant improvement that would not otherwise				
6816	occur, the numeric effluent limitations in Appendix J (i) (v) (B) of these regulations do not apply.				
6817					
6818	(D) Pre-existing discharges for which it is infeasible to collect				
6819	samples for determination of baseline pollutant levels include, but are not limited to:				
6820					
6821	(I) Discharges that exist as a diffuse groundwater flow that				
6822	cannot be assessed via sample collection;				
6823	•				
6824	(II) A base flow to a receiving surface water of the state that				
6825	can not be monitored separate from the receiving surface waters of the state;				
6826	•				
6827	(III) A discharge on a steep or hazardous slope that is				
6828	inaccessible for sample collection; or				
6829					
6830	(IV) A number of pre-existing discharges so extensive that				
6831	monitoring of individual discharges is infeasible.				
6832					
6833					
6834					
6835					
6836					
6837					
6838					
6839					
6840					
6841					
6842					
6843					
6844					
6845					
6846					
6847					
6848					
6849	Intentionally left blank				

6850	
6851	APPENDIX K: RESERVED
6852	
6853	
6854	

This page intentionally left blank.

6893 6894

6895

6896 6897

6855	APPENDIX L: Criteria and Standards for Determining Fundamentally Different Factors				
6856					
6857	(a) Purpose and scope.				
6858					
6859	(i) This appendix establishes the criteria and standards to be used in				
6860	determining whether effluent limitations alternative to those required by promulgated EPA				
6861	effluent limitations guidelines under sections 301 and 304 of the CWA (hereinafter referred to as				
6862	"national limits") should be imposed on a discharger because factors relating to the discharger=s				
6863	facilities, equipment, processes or other factors related to the discharger are fundamentally				
6864	different from the factors considered by EPA in development of the national limits. This subpart				
6865	applies to all national limitations promulgated under sections 301 and 304 of the CWA, except for				
6866	the BPT limits contained in 40 CFR 423.12 (steam electric generating point source category).				
6867					
6868	(ii) In establishing national limits, EPA takes into account all the information				
6869	it can collect, develop and solicit regarding the factors listed in section 304 (b) of the CWA. In				
6870	some cases, however, data which could affect these national limits as they apply to a particular				
6871	discharge may not be available or may not be considered during their development. As a result, it				
6872	may be necessary on a case-by-case basis to adjust the national limits, and make them either more				
6873	or less stringent as they apply to certain dischargers within an industrial category or subcategory.				
6874	This will only be done if data specific to that discharger indicates it presents factors				
6875	fundamentally different from those considered by EPA in developing the limit at issue. Any				
6876	interested person believing that factors relating to a discharger=s facilities, equipment, processes				
6877	or other facilities related to the discharger are fundamentally different from the factors considered				
6878	during development of the national limits may request a fundamentally different factors variance				
6879	under Section 8 of these regulations. In addition, such a variance may be proposed by the				
6880	director in the draft permit.				
6881					
6882	(b) Criteria.				
6883					
6884	(i) A request for the establishment of effluent limitations under this				
6885	appendix shall be forwarded to the Administrator of the EPA (or his delegate) with a written				
6886	concurrence only if:				
6887					
6888	(A) There is an applicable national limit which is applied in the				
6889	permit and specifically controls the pollutant for which alternative effluent limitations or				
6890	standards have been requested; and				
6891					
6892	(B) Factors relating to the discharge controlled by the permit are				
6893	fundamentally different from those considered by EPA in establishing the national limits; and				

L-1

The request for alternative effluent limitations or standards is

(C)

made in accordance with the requirements of Section 8 of these regulations.

6898	(ii) A request for the establishment of effluent limitations less stringent th	an		
6899	those required by national limits guidelines shall be forwarded to the Administrator of the EPA			
6900	(or his delegate) with a written concurrence only if:			
6901				
6902	(A) The alternative effluent limitation or standard requested is no			
6903	less stringent than justified by the fundamental difference; and			
6904				
6905	(B) The alternative effluent limitation or standard will ensure			
6906	compliance with Sections 208 (e) and 301 (b) (1) (C) of the CWA; and			
6907				
6908	(C) Compliance with the national limits (either by using the			
6909	technologies upon which the national limits are based or by other control alternatives) would			
6910	result in:			
6911	200 1 20 220			
6912	(I) A removal cost wholly out of proportion to the remov	ล1		
6913	cost considered during development of the national limits; or			
6914	cost considered during development of the national limits, of			
6915	(II) A non-water quality environmental impact (including			
6916	energy requirements) fundamentally more adverse than the impact considered during			
6917	development of the national limits.			
6918	development of the national inints.			
6919	(iii) Factors which may be considered fundamentally different are:			
6920	(iii) I actors which may be considered fundamentary different are.			
6921	(A) The nature of quality of pollutants contained in the raw waste			
6922	load of the applicant=s process wastewater;			
6923	load of the applicant—s process wastewater,			
6924	(B) The volume of the discharger=s process wastewater and efflue	ant		
6925	discharged;	711t		
6926	discharged,			
6927	(C) Non-water quality environmental impact of control and			
6928	treatment of the discharger=s raw waste load;			
6929	treatment of the discharger—s raw waste load,			
	(D) Enougy requirements of the application of control and treatment	m+		
6930 6931	(D) Energy requirements of the application of control and treatme	IIΙ		
	technology;			
6932	(E) Ago size land availability and configuration of the value of			
6933 6934	(E) Age, size, land availability, and configuration as they relate to			
	the discharger=s equipment or facilities, processes employed, process changes, and engineering	3		
6935	aspects of the application of control technology;			
6936	(E) Cost of compliance with a series 1 control to 1 and			
6937	(F) Cost of compliance with required control technology.			
6938	(in) A region of many of the fourth and the state of the	1		
6939	(iv) A variance request or portion of such a request under this section shall			
6940	not be forwarded to the Administrator of the EPA (or his delegate) with a written concurrence	on		
6941	any of the following grounds:			
6942				

		(A)	The infeasibility of installing the required waste treatment
equipment w	ithin the tir	me the	CWA allows.
		(B)	The assertion that the national limits cannot be achieved with
		nent fac	cilities installed, if such assertion is not based on factor(s) listed in
Appendix L ((1V);		
		(C)	The discharger's ability to pay for the required waste treatment;
or		(C)	The discharger's ability to pay for the required waste treatment,
OI .			
		(D)	The impact of a discharge on local receiving water quality.
		` /	
	(v)	Nothii	ng in this appendix shall be construed to impair the right of any
locality under	r Section 5	10 of tl	he CWA to impose more stringent limitations than those required
by federal lav	W.		
(c)	Method	l of app	olication.
	(*)		
4i1: 4 4 41	(i)		tten request for a variance under this appendix shall be submitted in
implicate to the	ne director	m acco	ordance with Section 8 of these regulations.
	(ii)	The h	urden is on the person requesting the variance to explain that:
	(11)	THE D	arden is on the person requesting the variance to explain that.
		(A)	Factor(s) listed in Appendix L (b) (ii) of these regulations
regarding the	discharge	. ,	lity are fundamentally different from the factors EPA considered in
	_		. The requester should refer to all relevant material and
information,	such as the	publis	hed guideline regulations development document, all associated
technical and	economic	data co	ollected for use in developing each national limit, all records of
legal proceed	lings, and a	ıll writt	en and printed documentation including records of
communicati	on, etc., re	levant t	to the regulations which are kept on public file by the EPA;
. 1	1:00	(B)	The alternative limitations requested are justified by the
tundamental	difference	alleged	l in Appendix L (c) (ii) (A) of these regulations; and
		(C)	The second of Association of Association (1) of the second of Asso
ma avilation a h	ovo boon n	(C)	The appropriate requirements of Appendix L (b) of these
regulations h	ave been n	iet.	
			Intentionally left blank

This page intentionally left blank.

APPENDIX M: Criteria for Determining Alternative Effluent Limitations

(a) With respect to any point source otherwise subject to the provisions of Section 301 or Section 306 of the CWA, whenever the owner or operator of any such source, after opportunity for public hearing can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the administrator that any effluent limitation proposed for the control of the thermal component of any discharge from such source will require effluent limitations more stringent than necessary to assure the protection and propagation of shellfish, fish and wildlife in and on the body of water into which the discharge is to be made, the administrator may impose an effluent limitation on such plant, with respect to the thermal component of such discharge (taking into account the interaction of such thermal component with other pollutants), that will assure the protection and propagation of a balanced indigenous population of shellfish, fish and wildlife in and on that body of water. This appendix describes the factors, criteria and standards for the establishment of alternative thermal effluent limitations.

(b) Definitions.

(i) "Alternative effluent limitations" means all effluent limitations or standards of performance for the control of the thermal component of any discharge which are established under this appendix.

(ii) "Representative important species" means species which are representative, in terms of their biological needs, of a balanced, indigenous community of shellfish, fish and wildlife in the body of water into which a discharge of heat is made.

(iii) The term "balanced, indigenous community" is synonymous with the term "balanced, indigenous population" in the CWA and means a biotic community typically characterized by diversity, the capacity to sustain itself through cyclic seasonal changes, presence of necessary food chain species and by a lack of domination by pollution tolerant species. Such a community may include historically non-native species introduced in connection with a program of wildlife management and species whose presence or abundance results from substantial, irreversible environmental modifications. Normally, however, such a community will not include species whose presence or abundance is attributable to the introduction of pollutants that will be eliminated by compliance by all sources with section 301 (b) (2) of the CWA; and may not include species whose presence or abundance is attributable to alternative effluent limitations imposed pursuant to this appendix.

(c) Early screening of applications.

(i) Any initial application for an alternative effluent limitation under this appendix shall include the following early screening information:

(A) A description of the alternative effluent limitation requested;

7075 7076 7077

7078 7079 (d)

7034	(B) A general description of the method by which the applicant
7035	proposes to demonstrate that the otherwise applicable thermal discharge effluent limitations are
7036	more stringent than necessary;
7037	
7038	(C) A general description of the type of data, studies, experiments
7039	and other information which the applicant intends to submit for the demonstration; and
7040	**
7041	(D) Such data and information as may be available to assist the
7042	administrator in selecting the appropriate representative important species.
7043	
7044	(ii) After submitting the early screening information under Appendix M (c),
7045	the applicant shall consult with the administrator at the earliest practicable time (but not later than
7046	30 days after the application is filed) to discuss the applicant=s early screening information.
7047	Within 60 days after the application is filed, the applicant shall submit for the administrator=s
7048	approval a detailed plan of study which the applicant will undertake to support its demonstration
7049	under this appendix. The applicant shall specify the nature and extent of the following type of
7050	information to be included in the plan of study: biological, hydrographical and meteorological
7051	data; physical monitoring data; engineering or diffusion models; laboratory studies; representative
7052	important species; and other relevant information. In selecting representative important species,
7053	special consideration shall be given to species mentioned in applicable water quality standards.
7054	After the applicant submits its detailed plan of study, the administrator shall either approve the
7055	plan or specify any necessary revisions to the plan. The applicant shall provide any additional
7056	information or studies which the administrator subsequently determines necessary to support the
7057	demonstration, including such studies or inspections as may be necessary to select representative
7058	important species. The applicant may provide any additional information or studies which the
7059	applicant feels are appropriate to support the demonstration.
7060	
7061	(iii) Any application for the renewal of an alternative effluent limitation
7062	under this appendix shall include only such information described in Appendix M (c) (i) and (ii)
7063	as the administrator requests within 60 days after receipt of the permit application.
7064	
7065	(iv) The administrator shall promptly notify the Regional Administrator of
7066	the EPA and any affected state of the filing of the request and shall consider any timely
7067	recommendations they submit.
7068	
7069	(v) In making the demonstration, the applicant shall consider any
7070	information or guidance published by EPA to assist in making such demonstrations.
7071	
7072	(vi) If an applicant desires a ruling on an application under this appendix,
7073	before the ruling on any other necessary permit terms and conditions, the applicant shall so
7074	request upon filing its application under Appendix M (c) (i). This request shall be granted or
7075	denied at the discretion of the administrator.

under this appendix.

Criteria and standards for the determination of alternative effluent limitations

7080	(i) Thermal discharge effluent limitations or standards established in permits
7081	may be less stringent than those required by applicable standards and limitations if the applicant
7082	demonstrates to the satisfaction of the administrator that such effluent limitations are more
7083	stringent than necessary to assure the protection and propagation of a balanced, indigenous
7084	community of shellfish, fish and wildlife in and on the body of water into which the discharge is
7085	made. This demonstration must show that the alternative effluent limitation desired by the
7086	applicant, considering the cumulative impact of its thermal discharge together with all other
7087	significant impacts on the species affected, will assure the protection and propagation of a
7088	balanced indigenous community of shellfish, fish and wildlife in and on the body of water into
7089	which the discharge is to be made.
7090	
7091	(ii) In determining whether or not the protection and propagation of the
7092	affected species will be assured, the administrator may consider any information contained or
7093	referenced in any applicable thermal water quality criteria and thermal water quality information
7094	published by the Administrator of the EPA under Section 304 (a) of the CWA, or any other
7095	information the administrator deems relevant.
7096	
7097	(iii) Demonstration upon the absence of prior appreciable harm.
7098	
7099	(A) Existing permittees may base their demonstration upon the
7100	absence of prior appreciable harm in lieu of predictive studies. Any such demonstrations shall
7101	show:
7102	
7103	(I) That no appreciable harm has resulted from the normal
7104	component of the discharge, taking into account the interaction of such thermal component with
7105	other pollutants and the additive effect of other thermal sources to a balanced, indigenous
7106	community of shellfish, fish and wildlife in and on the body of water into which the discharge has
7107	been made; or
7108	
7109	(II) That despite the occurrence of such previous harm, the
7110	desired alternative effluent limitations (or appropriate modifications thereof) will nevertheless
7111	assure the protection and propagation of a balanced, indigenous community of shellfish, fish and
7112	wildlife in and on the body of water into which the discharge is made.
7113	
7114	(iv) In determining whether or not prior appreciable harm has occurred, the
7115	administrator shall consider the length of time in which the applicant has been discharging and
7116	the nature of the discharge.
7117	
7118	
7119	
7120	
7121	
7122	
7123	
7124	
7125	This page intentionally left blank.

7169

7126	
7127	APPENDIX N: Toxic Pollutant Effluent Standards and Prohibitions
7128	
7129	(a) Scope and purpose.
7130	
7131	(i) The provisions of this appendix apply to owners or operators of specified
7132	facilities discharging into surface waters of the state.
7133	
7134	(ii) The effluent standards or prohibitions for toxic pollutants established in
7135	this appendix shall be applicable to the sources and pollutants hereinafter set forth, and may be
7136 7137	incorporated in any WYPDES permit, modification or renewal thereof, in accordance with the
7137	provisions of this appendix.
7136	(iii) The provisions of these regulations shall apply to any WYPDES permit
7140	proceedings for any point source discharge containing any toxic pollutant for which a standard or
7140	prohibition is established under this appendix.
7142	promotion is established under this appendix.
7143	(b) Definitions. All terms not defined herein shall have the meaning given them in
7144	the CWA or in Section 3 of these regulations. As used in this appendix, the term:
7145	the C WIT of in Section 5 of these regulations. Its used in this appendix, the term.
7146	(i) "Effluent standard" means any restriction established by the
7147	administrator on quantities, rates, and concentrations of chemical, physical, biological, and other
7148	concentrations of chemical, physical, biological, and other constituents which are discharged
7149	from point sources into surface waters of the state but does not include a schedule of compliance.
7150	
7151	(ii) "Prohibited" means that the constituent shall be absent in any discharge
7152	subject to these standards, as determined by any analytical method.
7153	
7154	(iii) "Working day" means the hours during a calendar day in which a facility
7155	discharges effluents subject to this part.
7156	
7157	(iv) "Ambient water criterion" means that concentration of a toxic pollutant
7158	in a surface water of the state that, based upon available data, will not result in adverse impact on
7159	important aquatic life, or on consumers of such aquatic life, after exposure of that aquatic life for
7160	periods of time exceeding 96 hours and continuing at least through one reproductive cycle; and
7161	will not result in a significant risk of adverse health effects in a large human population based on
7162	available information such as mammalian laboratory toxicity data, epidemiological studies of
7163	human occupational exposures, or human exposure data, or any other relevant data.
7164	
7165	(v) "New source" means any source discharging a toxic pollutant, the
7166	construction of which is commenced after proposal of an effluent standard or prohibition
7167	applicable to such source if such effluent standard or prohibition is thereafter promulgated in
7168	accordance with Section 307 of the CWA.

7170 7171	(vi) in Appendix N (b) (v).	"Existing source" means any source which is not a new source as defined
7172	m rippelium r (e) (v).	
7173	(vii)	"Source" means any building, structure, facility, or installation from
7174	* /	be the discharge of toxic pollutants designated as such by the administrator.
7175	which there is of may t	e the discharge of toxic pondiants designated as such by the administrator.
7176	(viii)	"Owner or operator" means any person who owns, leases, operates,
7177	* *	a source as defined in Appendix N (b) (vii).
7178	controls, or supervises	a source as defined in Appendix IV (b) (vii).
7179	(ix)	"Construction" means any placement, assembly, or installation of
7180	` '	(including contractual obligations to purchase such facilities or equipment)
7180	2 2	uch equipment will be used, including preparation work at such premises.
7182	at the premises where s	uch equipment will be used, including preparation work at such premises.
	()	"Manufactures" manufactures and in the machanical or
7183	(X)	"Manufacturer" means any establishment engaged in the mechanical or
7184		n of materials or substances into new products, including but not limited
7185	to, the blending of mate	erials such as pesticidal products, resins, or liquors.
7186		
7187	(xi)	"Process wastes" means any designated toxic pollutant, whether in
7188		e present, which is inherent to or unavoidably resulting from any
7189	~ ~	including that which comes into direct contact with or results from the
7190	•	y raw material, intermediate product, finished product, by product or
7191	waste product and is di	scharged into surface waters of the state.
7192		
7193	(xii)	"Air emissions" means the release or discharge of a toxic pollutant by an
7194	owner or operator into	the ambient air either 1) by means of a stack or 2) as a fugitive dust, mist
7195	or vapor as a result inhe	erent to the manufacturing or formulating process.
7196		
7197	(xiii)	"Fugitive dust, mist or vapor" means dust, mist or vapor containing a
7198	toxic pollutant regulate	d under this part which is emitted from any source other than through a
7199	stack.	
7200		
7201	(xiv)	"Stack" means any chimney, flue, conduit, or duct arranged to conduct
7202	emissions to the ambier	nt air.
7203		
7204	(xv)	"Ten year 24-hour rainfall event" means the maximum precipitation
7205	` '	ecurrence interval of once in ten (10) years as defined by the National
7206	_	hnical Paper No. 40, Rainfall Frequency Atlas of the United States, May
7207		mendments or equivalent regional or state rainfall probability information
7208	developed therefrom.	The state of the s
7209	Transfer and the same of the s	
7210	(c) Abbrev	viations. The abbreviations used in this part represent the following terms:
7211	(0)	
7211	(i)	lb=pound (or pounds)
7212	(1)	io-poulid (or poulids)
7213	(ii)	g=gram
7214	(11)	6–81mii
1413		

7261

7216	(iii)	ug/l=micrograms per liter (1 one millionth gram/liter)
7217		
7218	(iv)	kg=kilogram(s) kkg=1000 kilogram(s)
7219		
7220		c pollutants. The following are the pollutants subject to regulation under the
7221	provisions of this app	pendix:
7222		
7223	(i)	Aldrin/Dieldrin - Aldrin means the compound aldrin as identified by the
7224		3,4,10,10 hexachloro -1,4,4a,5,8,8a hexahydro -1,4 -endo 5,8 -exo-
7225	dimethanonaphthaler	ne; "Dieldrin" means the compound the dieldrin as identified by the chemical
7226	name 1,2,3,4,10,10 –	hexachloro-6,7 - epoxy -1,4,4a,5,6,7,8,8a octahydro-1,4 -endo 5,8 -exo-
7227	dimethanonaphthaler	ne.
7228		
7229	(ii)	DDT - DDT means the compounds DDT, DDD, and DDE as identified
7230	by the chemical name	es:(DDT)-1,1,1 -trichloro -2,2 - bis(p- chlorophenyl) ethane and someo,p'
7231	isomers; (DDD) or (7	ΓDE) -1,1 -dichloro -2,2- bis(p-chlorophenyl) ethane and some o,p'-
7232	isomers; (DDE) -1,1-	-dichloro -2,2-bis(p-chlorophenyl) ethylene.
7233		
7234	(iii)	Endrin - Endrin means the compound endrin as identified by the
7235	chemical name 1,2,3	4,10,10-hexachloro-6,7 epoxy - 1,4,4a,5,6,7,8,8a -octahydro -1,4-endo 5,8-
7236	endodimethanonapht	halene.
7237		
7238	(iv)	Toxaphene - Toxaphene means a material consisting of technical grade
7239	chlorinated camphen	e having the approximate formula of $C_{10}H_{10}Cl_8$ and normally containing 67-
7240	69 percent chlorine b	y weight.
7241		
7242	(v)	Benzidine - Benzidine means the compound benzidine and its salts as
7243	identified by the cher	mical name 4,4'-diaminobiphenyl.
7244		
7245	(vi)	Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs) - Polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs)
7246	means a mixture of c	ompounds composed of the biphenyl molecule which has been chlorinated to
7247	varying degrees. [42	FR 2613, Jan. 12, 1977, as amended at 42 FR 2620, Jan. 12, 1977; 42 FR
7248	6555, Feb. 2, 1977]	
7249		
7250	(e) Com	pliance.
7251		•
7252	(i)	Within 60 days from the date of promulgation of any toxic pollutant
7253	effluent standard or p	prohibition each owner or operator with a discharge subject to that standard
7254	or prohibition must n	otify the director of such discharge. Such notification shall include such
7255	information and follo	ow such procedures as the director may require.
7256		-
7257	(ii)	Any owner or operator who does not have a discharge subject to any
7258	` '	nt standard at the time of such promulgation but who thereafter commences
7259	_	nce any activity which would result in such a discharge shall first notify the
7260		er herein provided at least 60 days prior to any such discharge.

7	2	6	2
,	_	v	4

7263 7264

- 7265 7266
- 7267 7268

7269

7270 7271

7272 7273

7274 7275 7276

7277 7278

7279 7280 7281

7282 7283

7284

7294 7295 7296

7297

7298 7299 7300

7301 7302 7303

7304 7305

7307

7306

- (iii) Upon receipt of any application for issuance or reissuance of a permit or for a modification of an existing permit for a discharge subject to a toxic pollutant effluent standard or prohibition the permitting authority shall proceed thereon in accordance with these regulations.
- (iv) Every permit which contains limitations based upon a toxic pollutant effluent standard or prohibition under this appendix is subject to revision following the completion of any proceeding revising such toxic pollutant effluent standard or prohibition regardless of the duration specified on the permit.
- For purposes of this section, all toxic pollutants for which standards are set under this appendix are deemed to be injurious to human health within the meaning of Section 402 (k) of the CWA unless otherwise specified in the standard established for any particular pollutant.
- (vi) Upon the compliance date for any toxic pollutant effluent standard or prohibition, under Section 307 (a) of the CWA, each owner or operator of a discharge subject to such standard or prohibition shall comply with such monitoring, sampling, recording, and reporting conditions as the director may require for that discharge. Notice of such conditions shall be provided in writing to the owner or operator.
- (vii) In addition to any conditions required pursuant to Appendix N (e) (vi) and to the extent not required in conditions contained in WYPDES permits, within 60 days following the close of each calendar year each owner or operator of a discharge subject to any toxic standard or prohibition shall report to the director concerning the compliance of such discharges. Such report shall include, as a minimum, information concerning 1) relevant identification of the discharger such as name, location of facility, discharge points, receiving waters, and the industrial process or operation emitting the toxic pollutant; 2) relevant conditions (pursuant to Appendix N (e) (vi) or to an WYPDES permit) as to flow, toxic pollutant concentrations under Section 307 (a) of the CWA, and toxic pollutant mass emission rate under Section 307 (a) of the CWA; and 3) compliance by the discharger with such conditions.
- When samples collected for analysis are composited, such samples shall be composited in proportion to the flow at time of collection and preserved in compliance with requirements of the director, but shall include at least five (5) samples, collected at approximately equal intervals throughout the working day.
- Nothing in these regulations shall preclude the director from requiring in (ix) any permit a more stringent effluent limitation or standard pursuant to Section 301 (b) (1) (C) of the CWA and implemented pursuant to the provisions of these regulations.
- Any owner or operator of a facility which discharges a toxic pollutant to surface waters of the state and to a publicly owned treatment system shall limit the summation of the mass emissions from both discharges to the less restrictive standard, either the direct discharge standard or the pretreatment standard; but in no case will this paragraph allow a

7308 discharge to surface waters of the state greater than the toxic pollutant effluent standard 7309 established for a direct discharge to the surface waters of the state. 7310 7311 In any permit hearing or other administrative proceeding relating to the 7312 implementation or enforcement of these standards, the parties thereto may not contest the validity 7313 of any national standards established in this appendix, or the ambient water criterion established 7314 herein for any toxic pollutant. 7315 7316 (f) Adjustment of effluent standard for presence of toxic pollutant in the intake 7317 water. 7318 7319 (i) Upon the request of the owner or operator of a facility discharging a 7320 pollutant subject to a toxic pollutant effluent standard or prohibition, the director shall give credit, 7321 and shall adjust the effluent standard(s) in such permit to reflect credit for the toxic pollutant(s) in 7322 the owner's or operator's water supply if 1) the source of the owner's or operator's water supply is 7323 the same body of water into which the discharge is made, and if 2) it is demonstrated to the 7324 director that the toxic pollutant(s) present in the owner's or operator's intake water will not be 7325 removed by any wastewater treatment systems whose design capacity and operation were such as 7326 to reduce toxic pollutants to the levels required by the applicable toxic pollutant effluent 7327 standards in the absence of the toxic pollutant in the intake water. 7328 7329 (ii) Effluent limitations established pursuant to this section shall be 7330 calculated on the basis of the amount of the toxic pollutant(s) under Section 307(a) of the CWA 7331 present in the water after any water supply treatment steps have been performed by or for the 7332 owner or operator. 7333 7334 Any permit which includes toxic pollutant effluent limitations (iii) 7335 established pursuant to this appendix shall also contain conditions requiring the permittee to 7336 conduct additional monitoring in the manner and locations determined by the director for those 7337 toxic pollutants for which the toxic pollutant effluent standards have been adjusted. 7338 7339 Requirement and procedure for establishing a more stringent effluent limitation. (g) 7340 7341 (i) In exceptional cases: 7342 7343 (A) Where the director determines that the ambient water criterion 7344

7345 7346 established in these regulations is not being met or will not be met in the receiving water as a result of one or more discharges at levels allowed by these regulations, and

7347 7348 7349

7350

7351

7352

7353

(B) Where the director further determines that this is resulting in or may cause or contribute to significant adverse effects on aquatic or other organisms usually or potentially present, or on human health, the director may issue to an owner or operator a permit or a permit modification containing a toxic pollutant effluent limitation at a more stringent level than that required by these regulations. In any proceeding in connection with such action the burden of proof and burden of going forward with evidence with regard to such more stringent effluent limitation shall be upon the director as the proponent of such more stringent effluent limitation.

7354					
7355		(C)	Evidence i	in su	ch proceeding shall include at a minimum: An
7356	analysis using data an	d other in	formation to	o der	monstrate receiving water concentrations of the
7357	specified toxic polluta	nt, projec	ctions of the	anti	cipated effects of the proposed modification on
7358	such receiving water of	oncentra	tions, and th	e hy	drologic and hydrographic characteristics of the
7359	receiving waters inclu	ding the	occurrence o	of dis	spersion of the effluent.
7360	•				
7361	(ii)	Any et	fluent limita	ation	in a WYPDES permit proposed to be issued
7362	which is more stringer	nt than th	e toxic pollu	ıtant	effluent standards promulgated by the director is
7363	subject to review by the	ne Admir	istrator of th	he El	PA under Section 402 (d) of the CWA. The
7364	Administrator of the E	PA may	approve or o	disap	pprove such limitation(s) or specify another
7365	limitation(s) upon revi	ew of an	y record of a	any p	proceedings held in connection with the permit
7366	issuance or modificati	on and a	ny other avai	ilabl	e evidence. If the Administrator of the EPA takes
7367	no action within 90 da	ys of rec	eipt of the n	otific	cation of the action of the director and any record
7368	thereof, the action of t	he direct	or shall be d	leem	ed to be approved.
7369					
7370	(h) Aldrii	n/Dieldri	n.		
7371					
7372	(i)	Specia	lized definit	tions	
7373					
7374		(A)	"Aldrin/Di	ieldr	in manufacturer" means a manufacturer,
7375	excluding any source	which is	exclusively a	an al	drin/dieldrin formulator, who produces, prepares
7376	or processes technical	aldrin or	dieldrin or	who	uses aldrin or dieldrin as a material in the
7377	production, preparatio	n or proc	essing of an	othe	r synthetic organic substance.
7378					
7379		(B)	"Aldrin/D	ieldr	in formulator" means a person who produces,
7380	prepares or processes	a formula	ated product	com	prising a mixture of either aldrin or dieldrin and
7381	inert materials or othe	r diluents	s, into a prod	luct i	intended for application in any use registered
7382	under the Federal Inse	cticide, I	Fungicide an	d Ro	odenticide Act, as amended (7 U.S.C. 135, et seq.).
7383					
7384		(C)	The ambie	ent w	rater criterion for aldrin/dieldrin in surface waters
7385	of the state is 0.003 ug	g/1 .			
7386					
7387	(ii)	Aldrin	/Dieldrin ma	anufa	acturer.
7388					
7389		(A)	Applicabil	lity.	
7390					
7391			(I) Th	hese	standards or prohibitions apply to:
7392					
7393			(1	.)	All discharges of process wastes; and
7394					
7395			(2	2.)	All discharges from the manufacturing areas,
7396	loading and unloading	areas, st	orage areas	and o	other areas which are subject to direct
7397	contamination by aldr	in/dieldri	n as a result	of th	ne manufacturing process, including but not
7398	limited to:				-
7399					

				a.	Storm water and other runoff except as
ŀ	nereinafter provided in Appe	ndix N (h) (ii) (A)	(II); and	1
	•				
				b.	Water used for routine cleanup or
(cleanup of spills.				•
	1 1				
			(II)	These	standards do not apply to storm water
1	unoff or other discharges fro	m areas s	` '		ination solely by fallout from air
	_		-		at exceeds that from the 10-year 24 hour
	rainfall event.	01 to 5t011	ii water i	diioii di	at eneceds that from the 10 year 21 hour
•					
	(B)	Anals	rtical me	thod acc	eptable. EPA method specified in 40 CFF
1	` '	•			increase the analytical sensitivity.
	art 130, except that a 1 liter	sample si	ize is req	uncu to	mercase the analytical sensitivity.
	(C)	Efflu	ent stand	ord	
	(C)	Lilluc	ziit staiiu	aru.	
		(I)	Eviati	na coura	os. Aldrin or dialdrin is prohibited in any
	dianhanan fuana anarah didiri (di	(I)		_	es. Aldrin or dieldrin is prohibited in any
(discharge from any aldrin/die	ziurin mai	iuracture	71.	
		(II)	NI (7	Additional districts and third discussion
		(II)			Aldrin or dieldrin is prohibited in any
(discharge from any aldrin/die	eldrin mai	nufacture	er.	
		/*** \		/D: 11:	6 1 .
		(iii)	Aldrır	1/Dieldri	n formulator.
	(4)		4 .44.		
	(A)	Applı	cability.		
		(T)	(TD)	. 1	1955
		(I)	These	standard	ls or prohibitions apply to:
			(4.5	A 11 11	
			(1.)	All dis	scharges of process wastes; and
			(2.)		scharges from the formulating areas,
		•			eas which are subject to direct
(contamination by aldrin/dielo	drin as a r	esult of t	he formu	llating process, including but not limited
t	to:				
				a.	Storm water and other runoff except as
ł	nereinafter provided in Appe	ndix N (h) (iii) (A) (II); an	d
				b.	Water used for routine cleanup or
(cleanup of spills.				
		(II)	These	standard	ls do not apply to storm water runoff or
(other discharges from areas s	subject to	contamii	nation so	lely by fallout from air emissions of
8	aldrin/dieldrin; or to storm w	ater runof	ff that ex	ceeds the	at from the 10-year 24 hour rainfall event.

7446		(B)	Analytical n	method acceptable. EPA method specified in 40 CFR
	Part 136, except th	at a 1 liter s	ample size is r	required to increase the analytical sensitivity.
7447	•		•	
7448		(C)	Effluent star	ındard.
7449		. ,		
7450			(I) Exis	isting sources. Aldrin or dieldrin is prohibited in any
7451	discharge from any	aldrin/dielo		•
7452	,			
7453			(II) Nev	w sources. Aldrin or dieldrin is prohibited in any
7454	discharge from any	aldrin/dielo		•
7455	,			
7456	(i) DI	DT, DDD, a	nd DDE.	
7457	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	, ,		
7458	(i)	Specia	alized definition	ons.
7459	()			
7460		(A)	"DDT manu	ufacturer" means a manufacturer, excluding any
7461	source which is exc	` /		for, who produces, prepares or processes technical
7462		•		production, preparation or processing of another
7463	synthetic organic s			
7464	,			
7465		(B)	"DDT form	nulator" means a person who produces, prepares or
7466	processes a formul	, ,		a mixture of DDT and inert materials or other diluents
7467	_	_		y use registered under the Federal Insecticide,
7468	•		•	(7 U.S.C. 135, et seq.). The ambient water criterion
7469	for DDT in surface			- 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1
7470				č
	(ii)) DDT 1	manufacturer.	
7471	(ii)) DDT	manufacturer.	
7471 7472	(ii)			
7471 7472 7473	(ii)	DDT i	manufacturer. Applicabilit	
7471 7472 7473 7474	(ii)		Applicabilit	ty.
7471 7472 7473	(ii)		Applicabilit	
7471 7472 7473 7474 7475 7476	(ii)		Applicabilit	ty. ese standards or prohibitions apply to:
7471 7472 7473 7474 7475 7476 7477	(ii)		Applicabilit	ty. ese standards or prohibitions apply to:
7471 7472 7473 7474 7475 7476 7477 7478	(ii)		Applicabilit (I) The (1.)	ese standards or prohibitions apply to: All discharges of process wastes; and
7471 7472 7473 7474 7475 7476 7477 7478 7479		(A)	Applicabilit (I) The (1.) (2.)	ese standards or prohibitions apply to: All discharges of process wastes; and All discharges from the manufacturing areas,
7471 7472 7473 7474 7475 7476 7477 7478 7479 7480	loading and unload	(A)	Applicabilit (I) The (1.) (2.) torage areas ar	ese standards or prohibitions apply to: All discharges of process wastes; and All discharges from the manufacturing areas, and other areas which are subject to direct
7471 7472 7473 7474 7475 7476 7477 7478 7479 7480 7481	loading and unload	(A)	Applicabilit (I) The (1.) (2.) torage areas ar	ese standards or prohibitions apply to: All discharges of process wastes; and All discharges from the manufacturing areas,
7471 7472 7473 7474 7475 7476 7477 7478 7479 7480	loading and unload	(A)	Applicabilit (I) The (1.) (2.) torage areas ar	ese standards or prohibitions apply to: All discharges of process wastes; and All discharges from the manufacturing areas, and other areas which are subject to direct nufacturing process, including but not limited to:
7471 7472 7473 7474 7475 7476 7477 7478 7479 7480 7481 7482	loading and unload contamination by I	(A) ling areas, so	Applicabilit (I) The (1.) (2.) torage areas a	ese standards or prohibitions apply to: All discharges of process wastes; and All discharges from the manufacturing areas, and other areas which are subject to direct nufacturing process, including but not limited to: a. Storm water and other runoff except as
7471 7472 7473 7474 7475 7476 7477 7478 7479 7480 7481 7482 7483	loading and unload	(A) ling areas, so	Applicabilit (I) The (1.) (2.) torage areas a	ese standards or prohibitions apply to: All discharges of process wastes; and All discharges from the manufacturing areas, and other areas which are subject to direct nufacturing process, including but not limited to: a. Storm water and other runoff except as
7471 7472 7473 7474 7475 7476 7477 7478 7479 7480 7481 7482 7483 7484	loading and unload contamination by I	(A) ling areas, so	Applicabilit (I) The (1.) (2.) torage areas a	ese standards or prohibitions apply to: All discharges of process wastes; and All discharges from the manufacturing areas, and other areas which are subject to direct nufacturing process, including but not limited to: a. Storm water and other runoff except as A) (II); and
7471 7472 7473 7474 7475 7476 7477 7478 7479 7480 7481 7482 7483 7484 7485	loading and unload contamination by I	(A) ling areas, so	Applicabilit (I) The (1.) (2.) torage areas a	ese standards or prohibitions apply to: All discharges of process wastes; and All discharges from the manufacturing areas, and other areas which are subject to direct nufacturing process, including but not limited to: a. Storm water and other runoff except as A) (II); and
7471 7472 7473 7474 7475 7476 7477 7478 7479 7480 7481 7482 7483 7484 7485 7486	loading and unload contamination by I hereinafter provide	(A) ling areas, so	Applicabilit (I) The (1.) (2.) torage areas a	ese standards or prohibitions apply to: All discharges of process wastes; and All discharges from the manufacturing areas, and other areas which are subject to direct nufacturing process, including but not limited to: a. Storm water and other runoff except as A) (II); and

7490				(II)	These	standar	ds do not apply to storm water runoff or
7491	other discharges f	from a	reas sub	ject to c	ontamir	nation so	olely by fallout from air emissions of DDT;
7492	or to storm water	runof	f that ex	ceeds th	at from	the 10-	year 24 hour rainfall event.
7493							
7494			(B)	Analyt	ical met	hod acc	eptable. EPA method specified in 40 CFR
7495	Part 136, except t	hat a	l liter sa	imple siz	ze is req	uired to	increase the analytical sensitivity.
7496				•			
7497			(C)	Effluer	nt standa	ard.	
7498							
7499				(I)	Existin	ng sourc	es. DDT is prohibited in any discharge
7500	from any DDT m	anufa	cturer.				
7501	·						
7502				(II)	New s	ources.	DDT is prohibited in any discharge from
7503	any DDT manufa	cturer		, ,			, ,
7504	•						
7505	(:	iii)	DDT f	ormulate	or.		
7506	`	,					
7507			(A)	Applic	ability.		
7508			, ,	11	•		
7509				(I)	These	standar	ds or prohibitions apply to:
7510							
7511					(1.)	All di	scharges of process wastes; and
7512							
7513					(2.)	All di	scharges from the formulating areas,
7514	loading and unloa	ding a	areas, st	orage ar	eas and		eas which are subject to direct
7515	contamination by	DDT	as a res	ult of the	e formul	lating p	rocess, including but not limited to:
7516	·						
7517						a.	Storm water and other runoff except as
7518	hereinafter provid	led in	Append	lix N (i)	(iii) (A)	(II); an	-
7519	•		• •				
7520						b.	Water used for routine cleanup or
7521	cleanup of spills.						•
7522	• •						
7523				(II)	These	standar	ds do not apply to storm water runoff or
7524	other discharges f	rom a	reas sub	. ,			olely by fallout from air emissions of DDT
7525	_			-			year 24 hour rainfall event.
7526	or to storm water	Tunoi	i tilat CA	icceds til	at mom	the ro .	year 24 noar rannan event.
7527			(B)	Analyt	ical met	hod acc	ceptable. EPA method specified in 40 CFR
7528	Part 136 except t	hat a	. ,	•			increase the analytical sensitivity.
7529	Tart 150, except t	iiai a	i iitoi st	impic siz	ze is req	uned to	increase the analytical sensitivity.
7530			(C)	Effluer	nt standa	ard	
7530 7531			(C)	Lilluci	n stand	ıı U.	
7532				(I)	Evicti	10 0011*	ees. DDT is prohibited in any discharge
7532 7533	from any DDT fo	rmula	tor	(1)	LAISHI	ig sould	cs. DD1 is promoted in any discharge
7534		1111U1A					
, , , , , , , ,							

			(II)	New 3	Sources.	DDT is	s prohibited in any d	lischarge from
any DDT form	mulator.		, ,					
(j)	Endri	1.						
	(*)	α.	1. 1.1	c				
	(i)	Speci	alized de	emition	S.			
		(A)	"Endr	in manu	ıfacturer	" means	a manufacturer, exc	cluding any
source which	is exclus						es, prepares or proce	•
							paration or processing	
synthetic orga	anic subst	tance.						
	_	(B)				_	person who produce	
_		_	_	-			and inert materials	
	_			•	-	_	stered under the Fed	eral
insecticide, F	ungiciae	and Ro	denticide	e Act, as	amende	ea (7 U.S	S.C. 135 et seq.).	
		(C)	The a	mhient v	vater cri	terion fo	or endrin in surface v	vaters of the
state is 0.004	ug/1.	(0)	The u	inoient v	vater err	terron re	or charm in surface	waters of the
2000 10 0.00 .	<i>B</i> / -1							
	(ii)	Endri	n manuf	acturer.				
	. ,							
		(A)	Appli	cability.				
			(I)	These	standar	ds or pro	ohibitions apply to:	
				(1)	. 11 11		C.	
				(1.)	All dı	scharges	s of process wastes;	and
				(2)	A 11 .4:	a a b a mara a	from the manufact	in a anaaa
loading and u	ınloadina	areas s	torage a	(2.)		_	s from the manufact ch are subject to dire	•
•	•		•				ss, including but not	
Comunimiano	ii oy ciidi	iii us u i	CBuit of	ine man	aractarii	ig proce	os, merading out not	i illinica to.
					a.	Storm	n water and other rui	noff except as
hereinafter pr	rovided in	Appen	dix N (j)	(ii) (A)	(II); and			•
					b.	Water	r used for routine cle	eanup or
cleanup of sp	ills.							
			(TT)	771				
-41	C		(II)				ot apply to storm war	
	-		-				fallout from air emi	
enurin or to s	torm wate	er runoi	i mat ex	ceeus in	at ITOIII I	ше 10-у	ear 24 hour rainfall	event.
		(B)	Analy	rtical me	thod acc	centable	EPA method speci	fied in 40 CFR
Part 136.		(3)	. mary	Jiour IIIC		spacio.	period speed	
		(C)	Efflue	ent stand	lard.			

7581	
7582	
7583	(I) Existing sources. Discharges from an endrin
7584	manufacturer shall not contain endrin concentrations exceeding an average per working day of
7585	1.5 ug/l calculated over any calendar month; and shall not exceed a monthly average daily
7586	loading of 0.0006 kg/kkg of endrin produced; and shall not exceed 7.5 ug/l in a sample(s)
7587	representing any working day.
7588	
7589	(II) New sources. Discharges from an endrin manufacturer
7590	shall not contain endrin concentrations exceeding an average per working day of 0.1 ug/l
7591	calculated over any calendar month; and shall not exceed a monthly average daily loading of
7592	0.00004 kg/kkg of endrin produced; and shall not exceed 0.5 ug/l in a sample(s) representing any
7593	working day.
7594	
7595	(III) Mass emission standard during shutdown of production.
7596	In computing the allowable monthly average daily loading figure required under the preceding
7597	Appendix N (j) (ii) (C) (I) and (II), for any calendar month for which there is no endrin being
7598	manufactured at any plant or facility which normally contributes to the discharge which is subject
7599	to these standards, the applicable production value shall be deemed to be the average monthly
7600	production level for the most recent preceding 360 days of actual operation of the plant or
7601	facility.
7602	
7603	(iii) Endrin formulator.
7604	
7605	(A) Applicability.
7606	
7607	(I) These standards or prohibitions apply to:
7608	(1) A11 11 1 6
7609	(1.) All discharges of process wastes; and
7610	
7611	(2.) All discharges from the formulating areas,
7612	loading and unloading areas, storage areas and other areas which are subject to direct
7613 7614	contamination by endrin as a result of the formulating process, including but not limited to:
7614 7615	Ctomp viotan and other min off avaant as
7616	a. Storm water and other runoff except as
7617	hereinafter provided in Appendix N (j) (iii) (A) (II); and
7618	b. water used for routine cleanup or
7619	cleanup of spills.
7620	cicanup of spins.
7620 7621	(II) These standards do not apply to storm water runoff or
7622	other discharges from areas subject to contamination solely by fallout from air emissions of
7623	endrin, or to storm water runoff that exceeds that from the 10-year 24 hour rainfall event.
7624	onarm, or to storm water remore that exceeds that from the 10-year 27 flour rainfail event.
7625	(B) Analytical method acceptable. EPA method specified in 40 CFR
7626	Part 136, except that a 1 liter sample size is required to increase the analytical sensitivity.
. 525	

7627					
7628			(C)	Efflue	ent standard.
7629					
7630				(I)	Existing sources. Endrin is prohibited in any discharge
7631	from any endi	in formu	lator.		
7632					
7633				(II)	New sources. Endrin is prohibited in any discharge from
7634	any endrin for	mulator.			
7635					
7636		(iv)	The sta	andards	s set forth in this section shall apply to the total combined
7637	weight or con-	centratio	n of endi	rin, excl	cluding any associated element or compound.
7638					
7639	(k)	Toxap	hene.		
7640					
7641		(i)	Specia	lized de	efinitions.
7642					
7643			(A)	"Toxa	aphene manufacturer" means a manufacturer, excluding any
7644	source which	is exclusi	ively a to	oxaphen	ne formulator, who produces, prepares or processes
7645	toxaphene or	who uses	toxaphe	ene as a	a material in the production, preparation or processing of
7646	another synthe	etic organ	nic subst	ance.	
7647					
7648			(B)	"Toxa	aphene formulator" means a person who produces, prepares
7649	•		•		nprising a mixture of toxaphene and inert materials or other
7650	diluents into a	product	intended	l for app	oplication in any use registered under the Federal
7651	Insecticide, Fu	ungicide	and Rod	enticide	e Act, as amended (7 U.S.C. 135, et seq.).
7652					
7653			(C)	The ar	ambient water criterion for toxaphene in surface waters of
7654	the state is 0.0	005 ug/l.			
7655					
7656		(ii)	Toxap	hene ma	nanufacturer.
7657					
7658			(A)	Applie	icability.
7659				-	
7660				(I)	These standards or prohibitions apply to:
7661					
7662					(1.) All discharges of process wastes; and
7663					
7664	1 1' 1	1 1'			(2.) All discharges from the manufacturing areas,
7665	_	_		_	areas and other areas which are subject to direct
7666	contamination	i by toxaj	onene as	a result	It of the manufacturing process, including but not limited to:
7667					
7668	1	. 1 1 .	A 1	P NT (1)	a. Storm water and other runoff except as
7669 7670	nereinaiter pro	ovided in	Append	nx IN (K	x) (ii) (A) (II); and
7670 7671					h Water used for routing alconum an
7671	alaamus af su:	11.0			b. Water used for routine cleanup or
7672	cleanup of spi	IIS.			

7673		
7674	(II) T	hese standards do not apply to storm water runoff or
7675	* *	amination solely by fallout from air emissions of
7676	e g	ceeds that from the 10-year 24 hour rainfall event.
7677	•	
7678		l method acceptable. EPA method specified in 40 CFR
7679	Part 136.	
7680		
7681	(C) Effluent s	tandard.
7682		
7683	(I) E	xisting sources. Discharges from a toxaphene
7684		concentrations exceeding an average per working day
7685		onth; and shall not exceed a monthly average daily
7686	•	oduced, and shall not exceed 7.5 ug/l in a sample(s)
7687		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
7688		
7689		ew sources. Discharges from a toxaphene
7690		concentrations exceeding an average per working day
7691	*	onth; and shall not exceed a monthly average daily
7692	•	produced, and shall not exceed 0.5 ug/l in a sample(s)
7693	representing any working day.	
7694		
7695		lass emission during shutdown of production. In
7696	` '	daily loading figure required under the preceding
7697		v calendar month for which there is no toxaphene being
7698		n normally contributes to the discharge which is subject
7699	, i	on value shall be deemed to be the average monthly
7700		ling 360 days of actual operation of the plant or
7701	facility.	
7702	•	
7703		lator.
7704	. ,	
7705	(A) Applicab	lity.
7706	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	
7707		hese standards or prohibitions apply to:
7708		r i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i
7709		.) All discharges of process wastes; and
7710		, and a great r
7711		2.) All discharges from the formulating areas,
7712	•	and other areas which are subject to direct
7713		the formulating process, including but not limited to:
7714	• •	F F
7715		a. Storm water and other runoff except as
7716		-
7717	*	

					b.	Water used	l for routine cle	anup or
cleanup of spill	s.							•
other discharge toxaphene, or to			-	contamii	nation s	olely by fallo		ssions o
Part 136, excep	t that a	(B) 1 liter sa	•			•	A method specifianalytical sensi	
		(C)	Efflue	ent stand	ards.			
discharge from	any tox	aphene	(I) formula		ng sour	ces. Toxaphe	ne is prohibited	l in any
from any toyan	hana fa	rmulata	(II)	New s	sources.	Toxaphene i	s prohibited in	any dis
from any toxap	(iv)	The st	andards				apply to the tota	
weight of collect	Jiii atio	ii oi toxe	трпспс,	CACIUGIII	ig ally a	ssociated elen	nent of compou	iid.
(1)	Benzio	dine.						
	(i)	Specia	alized de	efinitions	S.			
benzidine or wl	-		nzidine a	as an inte	ermedia		manufacturer v he manufacture	•
who uses benzi	dine ba	(B) sed dyes			-	* *	neans an owner aper.	or ope
the state is 0.1	ug/l.	(C)	The a	mbient v	vater cri	iterion for ben	zidine in surfac	ce wate
	(ii)	Benzio	dine ma	nufactur	er.			
		(A)	Appli	cability.				
			(I)	These	standar	rds apply to:		
state of process	wastes	, and		(1.)	All di	ischarges into	the surface was	ters of
-			• 1•	(2.)			the surface was	

containing product as a i		ubject to			-				
containing product as a i	i Court o	or the ma	maracta	ring proce	C55, 111C1	daing ou	t Hot III	inted to.	
				a.	Storm	water an	d other 1	runoff exce	ept as
hereinafter provided in A	Append	dix N (1)	(ii) (A)	(II), and					•
				b.	Water	used for	routine	cleanup or	
cleanup of spills.									
		(II)						water runof	
other discharges from ar									
penzidine or to storm wa	ater run	noff that	exceeds	that fron	n the 10	-year 24	hour rai	infall even	t.
	(D)	A 1	1	41		EDA	41	- : C: - 1 : - A	o CER
	(B)	Anaiyt	icai me	mod acce	piable.	EPA me	uiou spe	ecified in 4	UCFR
Part 136.									
	(C)	Ffflua	nt stand	arde					
	()	Littuel	iii stanu	urus.					
		(I)	Existin	ng source	s Discl	narges fr	om a he	enzidine	
manufacturer shall not c	ontain	` '		-		_			day of
10 ug/l calculated over a						_		_	-
of 0.130 kg/kkg of benzi	-						-		_
any working day.	1	,				O	•	· / 1	υ
		(II)	New s	sources. I	Discharg	ges from	a benzio	dine	
manufacturer shall not c	ontain	` ,			_				day o
manufacturer shall not c 10 ug/l calculated over a	ny cal	benzidin endar mo	ne conce onth, and	entrations d shall no	exceedi t exceed	ng an av l a montl	erage pe	er working age daily l	oading
10 ug/l calculated over a of 0.130 kg/kkg of benzi	ny cal	benzidin endar mo	ne conce onth, and	entrations d shall no	exceedi t exceed	ng an av l a montl	erage pe	er working age daily l	oading
10 ug/l calculated over a of 0.130 kg/kkg of benzi	ny cal	benzidin endar mo	ne conce onth, and	entrations d shall no	exceedi t exceed	ng an av l a montl	erage pe	er working age daily l	oading
0 ug/l calculated over a of 0.130 kg/kkg of benzing working day.	nny cale idine p	benzidin endar mo roduced,	ne conce onth, and , and sha	entrations d shall no all not exc	exceedi et exceed ceed 50	ng an av l a montl ug/l in a	erage pe aly aver sample(er working age daily l (s) represe	oading nting
0 ug/l calculated over a of 0.130 kg/kkg of benzing working day.	any calo	benzidin endar mo roduced, The sta	ne conce onth, and and sha	entrations d shall no all not exc set forth	exceedi t exceed ceed 50	ng an av l a montl ug/l in a ndix N (erage penly average sample(er working age daily l (s) represe	oading nting
10 ug/l calculated over a of 0.130 kg/kkg of benziony working day. Otal combined weight o	any calo	benzidin endar mo roduced, The sta	ne conce onth, and and sha	entrations d shall no all not exc set forth	exceedi t exceed ceed 50	ng an av l a montl ug/l in a ndix N (erage penly average sample(er working age daily l (s) represe	oading nting
10 ug/l calculated over a of 0.130 kg/kkg of benzions working day.	any calo	benzidin endar mo roduced, The sta	ne conce onth, and and sha	entrations d shall no all not exc set forth	exceedi t exceed ceed 50	ng an av l a montl ug/l in a ndix N (erage penly average sample(er working age daily l (s) represe	oading nting
10 ug/l calculated over a of 0.130 kg/kkg of benziony working day. otal combined weight ocompound.	nny cale idine pr (D) or conce	benziding endar mored, roduced, The statement and the statement of the sta	ne conce onth, and and sha andards of benz	entrations d shall no all not exc set forth	exceedi ot exceed ceed 50 in Appe cluding	ng an av l a montl ug/l in a ndix N (erage penly average sample(er working age daily l (s) represe	oading nting
10 ug/l calculated over a of 0.130 kg/kkg of benziony working day. Total combined weight ocompound.	nny cale idine pr (D) or conce	benziding endar mored, roduced, The statement and the statement of the sta	ne conce onth, and and sha andards of benz	entrations d shall no all not exc set forth	exceedi ot exceed ceed 50 in Appe cluding	ng an av l a montl ug/l in a ndix N (erage penly average sample(er working age daily l (s) represe	oading nting
10 ug/l calculated over a of 0.130 kg/kkg of benzions working day. total combined weight of compound.	nny calo	benziding endar more roduced, The state entration dine base	and sha andards of benz	entrations d shall no all not exc set forth	exceedi ot exceed ceed 50 in Appe cluding	ng an av l a montl ug/l in a ndix N (erage penly average sample(er working age daily l (s) represe	oading nting
10 ug/l calculated over a of 0.130 kg/kkg of benzions working day. Total combined weight occompound.	nny cale idine pr (D) or conce	benziding endar more roduced, The state entration dine base	ne conce onth, and and sha andards of benz	entrations d shall no all not exc set forth	exceedi ot exceed ceed 50 in Appe cluding	ng an av l a montl ug/l in a ndix N (erage penly average sample(er working age daily l (s) represe	oading nting
10 ug/l calculated over a of 0.130 kg/kkg of benzions working day. total combined weight of compound.	nny calo	benziding endar moduced, The state entration dine base Applic	and sha andards of benz ed dye a	entrations d shall no all not exc set forth cidine, exc pplicators	exceedi of exceed ceed 50 in Appe cluding	ng an av l a montl ug/l in a ndix N (a any asso	erage penly average sample(er working age daily l (s) represe	oading nting
10 ug/l calculated over a of 0.130 kg/kkg of benzions working day. total combined weight of compound.	nny calo	benziding endar more roduced, The state entration dine base	and sha andards of benz ed dye a	entrations d shall no all not exc set forth	exceedi of exceed ceed 50 in Appe cluding	ng an av l a montl ug/l in a ndix N (a any asso	erage penly average sample(er working age daily l (s) represe	oading nting
10 ug/l calculated over a of 0.130 kg/kkg of benzions working day. total combined weight of compound.	nny calo	benziding endar moduced, The state entration dine base Applic	and sha andards of benz ed dye a ability.	entrations d shall no all not exc set forth cidine, exc pplicators	exceediate exceed 50 in Appe cluding	ng an av l a montl ug/l in a ndix N (i any asso	erage pe nly aver sample(l) (ii) sh ciated el	er working rage daily l (s) represent all apply to lement or	oading nting
10 ug/l calculated over a of 0.130 kg/kkg of benzi any working day. total combined weight ocompound. (iii)	(D) r conce Benzio	benziding endar moduced, The state entration dine base Applic	and sha andards of benz ed dye a	entrations d shall no all not exc set forth cidine, exc pplicators	exceediate exceed 50 in Appe cluding	ng an av l a montl ug/l in a ndix N (i any asso	erage pe nly aver sample(l) (ii) sh ciated el	er working age daily l (s) represe	oading nting
10 ug/l calculated over a of 0.130 kg/kkg of benzions any working day. total combined weight occompound.	(D) r conce Benzio	benziding endar moduced, The state entration dine base Applic	and sha andards of benz ed dye a ability.	entrations d shall no all not exc set forth cidine, exc pplicators	exceediate exceed 50 in Appe cluding	ng an av l a montl ug/l in a ndix N (i any asso	erage pe nly aver sample(l) (ii) sh ciated el	er working rage daily l (s) represent all apply to lement or	oading nting
10 ug/l calculated over a of 0.130 kg/kkg of benziany working day. total combined weight ocompound. (iii)	(D) r conce Benzio	benziding endar moduced, The state entration dine base Applic	and sha andards of benz ed dye a ability.	entrations d shall no all not exc set forth cidine, exc pplicators standards All disc	exceediate exceed 50 in Appe cluding s.	ng an av I a montl ug/I in a ndix N (i any asso o:	erage pendy aversample(er working rage daily l (s) represent all apply to lement or	oading nting the oather the oathe

7809	storage areas, and other areas subject to direct contamination by benzidine or benzidine
7810	containing product as a result of the manufacturing process, including but not limited to:
7811	
7812	a. Storm water and other runoff except as
7813	hereinafter provided in Appendix N (l) (iii) (A) (II), and
7814	
7815	b. Water used for routine cleanup or
7816	cleanup of spills.
7817	
7818	(II) These standards do not apply to storm water runoff or
7819	other discharges from areas subject to contamination solely by fallout from air emissions of
7820	benzidine or to storm water that exceeds that from the 10-year 24 hour rainfall event.
7821	ř
7822	(B) Analytical method acceptable.
7823	(2) Limity trous moving a move principle.
7824	(I) EPA method specified in 40 CFR Part 136; or
7825	(1) Elitimento specifica in 10 elitimo 120, or
7826	(II) Mass balance monitoring approach which requires the
7827	calculation of the benzidine concentration by dividing the total benzidine contained in dyes used
7828	during a working day (as certified in writing by the manufacturer) by the total quantity of water
7829	discharged during the working day.
7830	discharged during the working day.
7831	(C) Effluent standards.
7832	(C) Efficient standards.
7833	(I) Existing sources. Discharges from benzidine based dye
7834	applicators shall not contain benzidine concentrations exceeding an average per working day of
7835	10 ug/l calculated over any calendar month; and shall not exceed 25 ug/l in a sample(s) or
7836	
	calculation(s) representing any working day.
7837	
7838	(II) New sources. Discharges from benzidine based dye
7839	applicators shall not contain benzidine concentrations exceeding an average per working day of
7840	10 ug/l calculated over any calendar month; and shall not exceed 25 ug/l in a sample(s) or
7841	calculation(s) representing any working day.
7842	
7843	(D) The standards set forth in Appendix N (l) (iii) shall apply to the
7844	total combined concentrations of benzidine, excluding any associated element or compound [42
7845	FR 2620, Jan. 12, 1977].
7846	
7847	(m) Polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs).
7848	
7849	(i) Specialized definitions.
7850	
7851	(A) "PCB manufacturer" means a manufacturer who produces
7852	polychlorinated biphenyls.
7853	

		(B)	"Electr	rical cap	oacitor r	manufacturer" means a manufacturer who
produces or asse	embles e	electrica	l capaci	tors in v	which P	CB or PCB containing compounds are part
of the dielectric			-			
		(C)	"Electr	rical tra	nsforme	er manufacturer" means a manufacturer
who produces o	r asseml	` ′				which PCB or PCB containing compounds
are part of the d						
P						
		(D)	The an	nbient v	vater cri	terion for PCBs in surface waters of the
state is 0.001 ug	σ/1.	(- /				
2000 13 0.001 0.5	5,					
	(ii)	PCB m	nanufacti	ırer		
	(11)	T CD III	iairaract			
		(A)	Applic	ahility		
		(11)	пррпс	aomity.		
			(I)	These	ctandar	rds or prohibitions apply to:
			(1)	THESE	Standar	us of promotions apply to.
				(1.)	A 11 -d3	ischarges of process wastes;
				(1.)	All u	ischarges of process wastes,
				(2)	A 11 - d	is charges from the manufacturing or
::	مائم مائم			(2.)		ischarges from the manufacturing or
		•	_		•	areas, and other areas which are subject to
	ation by	PCBS	is a resul	it of the	manura	acturing process, including but not limited
to:						
						66
1					a.	Storm water and other runoff except as
hereinafter prov	ided in	Append	1x N (m)) (11) (A) (II); a	nd
						XX
					b.	Water used for routine cleanup or
cleanup of spills	S.					
			(II)			ds do not apply to storm water runoff or
~			-			olely by fallout from air emissions of
PCBs, or to stor	m water	r runoff	that exc	eeds tha	at from	the 10 year 24 hour rainfall event.
		(B)	Analyt	ical Me	thod A	ecceptable. EPA method specified in 40
CFR Part 136 ex	xcept th	at a 1 lit	-			red to increase analytical sensitivity.
	•		•		•	•
		(C)	Effluer	nt stand	ards.	
		\ = <i>J</i>				
			(I)	Existi	ng sour	ces. PCBs are prohibited in any discharge
from any PCB n	nanufac	turer.	(-)		₅ 50 ar	200 are promotion in any discharge
ITOIII airy I CD I	nanurac	turer,				
			(II)	Now	Ources	DCRs are prohibited in any discharge
from any DCD -	manufaa	turor	(11)	THEW S	ources.	PCBs are prohibited in any discharge
from any PCB n	nanurac	turer.				
	(iii)	T1 .	cal capa	٠,		

7900			
7901	(A)	Applic	cability.
7902		• •	•
7903		(I)	These standards or prohibitions apply to:
7904			• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
7905			(1.) All discharges of process wastes; and
7906			
7907			(2.) All discharges from the manufacturing or
7908	incineration areas, loading and	unloadir	ing areas, storage areas and other areas which are subject to
7909	direct contamination by PCBs	as a resul	ult of the manufacturing process, including but not limited
7910	to:		
7911			
7912			a. Storm water and other runoff except as
7913	hereinafter provided in Append	dix N (m)	n) (iii) (A) (II); and
7914			
7915			b. Water used for routine cleanup or
7916	cleanup of spills.		•
7917			
7918		(II)	These standards do not apply to storm water runoff or
7919	other discharges from areas sub	oject to c	contamination solely by fallout from air emissions of PCBs
7920	_	-	hat from the 10 year 24 hour rainfall event.
7921			•
7922	(B)	Analyt	rtical method acceptable. EPA method specified in 40 CFR
7923	Part 136, except that a 1 liter sa	-	ize is required to increase analytical sensitivity.
7924	•	•	
7925	(C)	Efflue	ent standards.
7926	· /		
7927		(I)	Existing sources. PCBs are prohibited in any discharge
7928	from any electrical capacitor m	` '	, ,
7929	,		~ · · ·
7930		(II)	New sources. PCBs are prohibited in any discharge
7931	from any electrical capacitor m	` '	
7932	The state of the s		
7933	(iv) Electri	ical trans	nsformer manufacturer.
7934	(,		
7935	(A)	Applic	cability.
7936	(/	P P	
7937		(I)	These standards or prohibitions apply to:
7938		(-)	Those summands of promotions upply to
7939			(1.) All discharges of process wastes; and
7940			(1.) The discharges of process wastes, and
7941			(2.) All discharges from the manufacturing or
7942	incineration areas loading and	unloadir	ing areas, storage areas, and other areas which are subject
7943			result of the manufacturing process, including but not
7944	limited to:	<i>55 a5 a</i> 10	court of the manufacturing process, including out not
7945	milita to.		
ィフサン			

7946	a. Storm water and other runoff except as
7947	hereinafter provided in Appendix N (m) (iv) (A) (II); and
7948	
7949	b. Water used for routine cleanup or
7950	cleanup of spills.
7951	
7952	(II) These standards do not apply to storm water runoff or
7953	other discharges from areas subject to contamination solely by fallout from air emissions of PCBs
7954	or to storm water runoff that exceeds that from the 10 year 24 hour rainfall event.
7955	
7956	(B) Analytical method acceptable. EPA method specified in 40 CFR
7957	Part 136, except that a 1 liter sample size is required to increase analytical sensitivity.
7958	
7959	(C) Effluent standards.
7960	
7961	(I) Existing sources. PCBs are prohibited in any discharge
7962	from any electrical transformer manufacturer;
7963	
7964	(II) New sources. PCBs are prohibited in any discharge
7965	from any electrical transformer manufacturer.
7966	
7967	(v) Adjustment of effluent standard for presence of PCBs in intake water.
7968	Whenever a facility which is subject to these standards has PCBs in its effluent which result from
7969	the presence of PCBs in its intake waters, the owner may apply to the director, for a credit
7970	pursuant to Appendix N (f), where the source of the water supply is the same body of water into
7971	which the discharge is made. The requirement of Appendix N (f) (i), relating to the source of the
7972	water supply, shall be waived, and such facility shall be eligible to apply for a credit under
7973	Appendix N (f), upon a showing by the owner or operator of such facility to the director that the
7974	concentration of PCBs in the intake water supply of such facility does not exceed the
7975	concentration of PCBs in the receiving water body to which the plant discharges its effluent. [42]
7976	FR 6555, Feb. 2, 1977]
7977	
7978	

N-19

8015 8016

8017

8018

8019

7979 APPENDIX O: Additional Requirements Applicable to Colorado River Basin Salinity 7980 Control 7981 7982 (a) Definitions. The following definitions supplement those definitions contained in 7983 Section 35-11-103 of the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act. 7984 7985 (i) Colorado River Basin Salinity Control Forum - The organization 7986 composed of water quality and water resource representatives of the states of Arizona, California, 7987 Colorado, Nevada, New Mexico, Utah and Wyoming, with the responsibility for developing 7988 salinity standards and criteria for the waters of the Colorado River Basin. 7989 7990 (b) Salinity Standards/Criteria. The State of Wyoming shall cooperate with the other 7991 states of the Colorado River Basin and the government of the United States to maintain salinity 7992 levels in the main stem of the Colorado River at or below the following: 7993 Location Salinity in mg/L of total dissolved solids Below Hoover Dam 723 747 Below Parker Dam Imperial Dam 879 7994 7995 The above are flow-weighted average annual values and temporary increases above these 7996 values are allowed provided that with completion of salinity control projects, salinity 7997 concentrations would return to or below criteria level. These increases above the numeric criteria 7998 are provided for in order to allow development projects to be completed before control measures 7999 are brought on line, and to allow for unfavorable reservoir conditions or periods of below normal 8000 annual river flows. 8001 8002 Point Source Discharges to Surface Waters. Point source discharges to the (c) 8003 surface waters in the Colorado River Basin of Wyoming shall be controlled as described in the 8004 following policies adopted by the Colorado River Basin Salinity Control Forum: 8005 8006 "Policy for Implementation of the Colorado River Basin Salinity (i) 8007 Standards through the NPDES Permit Program", October 30, 2002; 8008 8009 "Policy for Implementation of the Colorado River Basin Salinity 8010 Standards through the NPDES Permit Program for Intercepted Groundwater, October 20, 1980"; 8011 and 8012 8013 (iii) "Policy for Implementation of the Colorado River Basin Salinity 8014 Standards through the NPDES Permit Program for Fish Hatcheries, October 28, 1988"

(d) Interstate Compacts, Court Decrees and Water Rights. It is the policy of the Department that the adoption and enforcement of these regulations is not intended to prevent the utilization of water apportioned to the State of Wyoming through any interstate compact or court decree or to prevent the diversion of water under future or existing water rights.

CHAPTER 2

PERMIT REGULATIONS FOR DISCHARGES TO WYOMING SURFACE WATERS

Table of Contents

Section 1. General Provisions.	1
Section 2. Applicability.	1
Section 3. Definitions.	3
Section 4. General Permits.	15
Section 5. Effluent Permits.	25
Section 6. Storm Water Discharges.	46
Section 7. Isolated Wetlands-Mitigation Requirements.	70
Section 8. Variance Requests.	72
Section 9. Issuance or Denial of Permits or Authorizations.	76
Section 10. Renewal of Permits, and Renewal of Coverage Under Expiring General	Permits 77
Section 11. Continuation of Expiring Permits.	78
Section 12. Permit or Authorization Modifications	78
Section 13. Permit and Authorization Terminations.	83
Section 14. Signatory Requirements.	84
Section 15. Public Participation.	85
Section 16. Public Meeting.	90
Section 17. Hearing.	91
Section 18. Public Information.	91
Section 19. Transfer of Permits.	92
APPENDIX A: Explanation of Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Codes Regul	lated by the
Industrial Storm Water Program	A-1

APPENDIX B: Additional Requirements Applicable to Existing Manufacturing, Commercial,
Mining and Silviculture Discharges
APPENDIX C: Additional Requirements Applicable to New Manufacturing, Commercial,
Mining and Silvicultural Discharges
APPENDIX D: Additional Requirements Applicable to Manufacturing, Commercial, Mining and
Silvicultural Facilities Discharging Only Non-process Waste Water
APPENDIX E: Additional Requirements Applicable to New and Existing Publicly owned
Treatment Works (POTWs) E-1
APPENDIX F: Additional Requirements Applicable to New and Existing Aquatic Animal
Production Facilities
APPENDIX G: Criteria for Determining a Concentrated Animal Feeding Operation and
Additional Requirements Applicable to New and Existing Concentrated Animal Feeding
OperationsG-1
APPENDIX H: Additional Requirements Applicable to Produced Water Discharges from Oil and
Gas Production Facilities H-1
APPENDIX I: RESERVED
APPENDIX J: Additional Requirements Applicable to Coal Mining Operations
APPENDIX K: RESERVEDK-1
APPENDIX L: Criteria and Standards for Determining Fundamentally Different FactorsL-1
APPENDIX M: Criteria for Determining Alternative Effluent Limitations
APPENDIX N: Toxic Pollutant Effluent Standards and Prohibitions
APPENDIX O: Additional Requirements Applicable to Colorado River Basin Salinity Control
O-1

This page intentionally left blank.

1 2 3	CHAPTER 2
4 5	PERMIT REGULATIONS FOR DISCHARGES TO WYOMING SURFACE WATERS
6 7	Section 1. General Provisions.
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	(a) Authority. This regulation is promulgated pursuant to Wyoming Statute 35-11-101 through 35-11-1803, and specifically 35-11-301(a) (i), (ii), and (iv), and 35-11-302 (a) (ii), (iii) and (v) and regulations adopted pursuant to Section 402 (b) of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (Clean Water Act) and amendments to that Act through July 1, 2004 for the purpose of instituting a permit issuance program in conformity with the requirements of the Environmental Quality Act and the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES), for point source discharges into surface waters of the state. Nothing in these regulations is intended to expand the scope of the Environmental Quality Act, as limited in W.S. 35-11-1104 nor do these regulations supersede or abrogate the authority of the state to appropriate quantities of water for beneficial uses.
18 19 20 21 22 23	(b) Incorporation by reference. Throughout these regulations, standards and requirements promulgated by the US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) have been adopted and incorporated by reference. All references are from the Code of Federal Regulations dated July 1, 2004, unless otherwise noted. This incorporation does not include later amendments or editions of the incorporated material.
24 25 26 27 28	Applicable federal regulations related to the states NPDES primacy include: 40 CFR Parts 122, 123, 124, 125, 129, 133, 136 and Subchapter N (parts 400 through 471). State program authority does not include pretreatment or biosolids requirements. Implementation of and authority over the pretreatment and biosolids requirements remain with the U.S. EPA.
30 31 32 33 34 35	(c) Purpose. The purpose of these rules and regulations is to establish a permitting system for the issuance of permits as authorized pursuant to Section 402 (b) of the Clean Water Act (CWA), 33 U.S.C. '1342(b), as amended in 1987. This permitting system provides the mechanism for establishing effluent limitations in WYPDES permits which specify maximum amounts or concentrations of pollution and wastes which may be discharged into surface waters of the state.
36	Section 2. Applicability.
37 38 39	(a) Discharges required to be permitted. All discharges into surface waters of the state as defined in (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) below shall be permitted as described in these regulations.
40 41	(i) All effluent discharges not described in (ii), (iii) and (iv) below;
12 13	(ii) All storm water discharges from industrial, construction, and municipal facilities as described in Section 6 of these regulations;

44				
45		(iii)	Point	source discharges of dredged or fill material into isolated wetlands
46	which are:			
47				
48			(A)	Not subject to regulation by the Army Corps of Engineers under
49	Section 404 o	f the CW	A; or,	
50				
51			(B)	Not subject to a permit or authorization from the Wyoming
52	Department of	f Enviror	` '	Quality, Land Quality Division for mining activities.
53	1			
54		(iv)	Silvio	cultural point sources, as defined in Section 3 (b) (lxxxv), are point
55	sources subject	` /		ble provisions of these regulations.
56	sources subject	or to the t	ършч	ste provisions of these regulations.
57	(b)	Exclus	sions T	The following discharges do not require WYPDES permits:
58	(0)	Diera	310113. 1	ne following discharges do not require 11 11 225 permits.
59		(i)	Disch	narges of dredged or fill material into waters of the United States
60	which are rec	` '		ction 404 of the CWA.
61	winen are reg	urated un	idei bee	Mon 404 of the CWA.
62		(ii)	The i	ntroduction of sewage, industrial wastes or other pollutants into
63	publicly owne	` /		ks by indirect dischargers.
64	publicly Owlice	d ireaiii	chi woi	ks by indirect dischargers.
65		(iii)	Anz	discharge in compliance with the instructions of an On-Scene
	Coordinator	` '	•	FR 300 (The National Oil and Hazardous Substances Pollution
66 67				•
67 69	Contingency	Pian) or 3	ээ СГК	153.10 (e) (Pollution by Oil and Hazardous Substances).
68		(:)	A	interesting of mallytants from mon maint according toward and
69 70	a:1: a14a1 a	(iv)	Any	introduction of pollutants from non-point source agricultural and
70	silvicultural a	cuvines.		
71		()	D .	
72		(v)	Retur	rn flows from irrigated agriculture.
73		. •	D: 1	
74		(vi)	Disch	narges into privately owned treatment works.
75				
76		(vii)	Disch	narges of dredge or fill material
77				
78			(A)	from normal farming, silviculture, and ranching
79		•	_	eding, cultivating, minor drainage, harvesting for the production of
80	food, fiber, an	nd forest	product	ts, or upland soil and water conservation practices;
81				
82			(B)	for the purpose of maintenance, including emergency
83			•	naged parts, of currently serviceable structures such as dikes, dams,
84				ters, causeways, and bridge abutments or approaches, and
85	transportation	structure	es;	
86				
87			(C)	for the purpose of construction or maintenance of farm or stock
88	ponds or irrig	ation ditc	ches, or	the maintenance of drainage ditches;
99				

90		(D) for the purposes of construction of temporary sedimentation
91	basins on a construc	tion site which does not include placement of fill material into surface waters
92	of the state;	•
93		
94		(E) for the purpose of construction or maintenance of farm roads or
95	forest roads, or temp	porary roads for moving mining equipment, where such roads are constructed
96	_	ccordance with best management practices, to assure that flow and
97		and chemical and biological characteristics of surface waters of the state are
98	-	e surface water of the state is not reduced, and that any adverse effect on the
99	•	will be otherwise minimized;
100	1	·
101		(F) resulting from any activity with respect to which is in accordance
102	with the requiremen	ts of section 208 (b) (4) (B) and (C)of the CWA.
103	1	
104	(c) No	conveyance of property rights or exclusive privilege. The issuance of a
105	· ·	vey any property rights of any sort, or any exclusive privilege. The issuance
106	-	authorize any injury to persons or property or invasion of other private rights
107	_	of state or local law or regulations. Except for any toxic effluent standards
108	•	posed under Section 307 of the CWA, compliance with a permit during its
109	•	apliance, for purposes of enforcement, with Sections 301, 302, 306, 307, 318,
110	and 405 (a) of the C	
111	unu :00 (u) 01 unu 0	
112	(d) Inte	rpretation of "waters of the United States" All references to the CWA where
113	· ·	the phrase "water(s) of the United States" shall be interpreted as "surface
114		for purposes of this rule. This interpretation does not expand the CWA
115		norities of federal agencies.
	•	
116	Section 3. I	<u>Definitions.</u>
117	(a) Def	initions in W.S. 35-11-103 (a) and (c). Definitions in W.S. 35-11-103 (a) and
118	• •	able to these rules are reiterated in this section.
119	()	
120	(i)	"Department" means the Wyoming Department of Environmental
121	Quality.	
122		
123	(ii)	"Director" means the director of the Department of Environmental
124	Quality.	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
125		
126	(iii)	"Discharge" means any addition of any pollution or wastes to any waters
127	of the state.	
128		
129	(iv)	"Ecological function" means the ability of an area to support vegetation
130	` '	e populations, recharge aquifers, stabilize base flows, attenuate flooding, trap
131		e or transform nutrients and other pollutants.
132		r
133	(v)	"Mitigation" means all actions to avoid, minimize, restore and
134	` '	ogical functions or wetland values lost.

135	
136	(vi) "Nonpoint source" means any source of pollution other than a point
137	source. For purposes of W.S. 16-1-201 through 16-1-207 only, nonpoint source includes leaking
138	underground storage tanks as defined by W.S. 35-11-1415 (a) (ix) and aboveground storage tanks
139	as defined by W.S. 35-11-1415 (a) (xi).
140	
141	(vii) "Person" means an individual, partnership, firm, association, joint
142	venture, public or private corporation, trust, estate, commission, board, public or private
143	institution, utility, cooperative, municipality or any other political subdivision of the state, or any
144	interstate body or any other legal entity.
145	
146	(viii) "Point source" means any discernible, confined and discrete conveyance
147	including but not limited to any pipe, ditch, channel, tunnel, conduit, well, discrete fissure,
148	container, rolling stock, concentrated animal feeding operation or vessel or other floating craft,
149	from which pollutants are or may be discharged.
150	
151	(ix) "Pollution" means contamination or other alteration of the physical,
152	chemical or biological properties of any waters of the state, including change in temperature,
153	taste, color, turbidity or odor of the waters or any discharge of any acid or toxic material,
154	chemical or chemical compound, whether it be liquid, gaseous, solid, radioactive or other
155	substance, including wastes, into any waters of the state which creates a nuisance or renders any
156	waters harmful, detrimental or injurious to public health, safety or welfare, to domestic,
157	commercial, industrial, agricultural, recreational or other legitimate beneficial uses, or to
158	livestock, wildlife or aquatic life, or which degrades the water for its intended use, or adversely
159	affects the environment. This term does not mean water, gas or other material which is injected
160	into a well to facilitate production of oil, or gas or water, derived in association with oil or gas
161	production and disposed of in a well, if the well used either to facilitate production or for disposal
162	purposes is approved by authority of the state, and if the state determines that such injection or
163	disposal well will not result in the degradation of ground or surface or water resources.
164	
165	(x) "Wastes" means sewage, industrial waste and all other liquid, gaseous,
166	solid, radioactive, or other substances which may pollute any waters of the state.
167	
168	(xi) "Waters of the state" means all surface and groundwater, including
169	waters associated with wetlands, within Wyoming.
170	
171	(xii) "Wetlands" means those areas in Wyoming having all three (3) essential
172	characteristics:
173	
174	(A) Hydrophytic vegetation;
175	
176	(B) Hydric soils; and
177	
178	(C) Wetland hydrology.
179	

180	(xiii)	"Wetland value" means those socially significant attributes of wetlands
181	such as uniqueness, he	ritage, recreation, aesthetics and a variety of economic values.
182		
183	(b) Supple	emental definitions. The following definitions supplement those
184	definitions contained in	n W.S. 35-11-103.
185		
186	(i)	"Administrator of the EPA" means the chief executive officer of the U.S.
187	Environmental Protect	ion Agency.
188		
189	(ii)	"Administrator" means the administrator of the Water Quality Division,
190	Wyoming Department	of Environmental Quality.
191		
192	(iii)	"Affected land" means the area of land from which overburden is
193	removed, or upon which	ch overburden, development waste rock or refuse is deposited, or both,
194	access roads, haul road	ds, mineral stockpiles, mill tailings, impoundment basins, and all other
195	lands whose natural sta	ate has been or will be disturbed as a result of mining operations.
196		
197	(iv)	"Animal feeding operation" is defined in Appendix G.
198		
199	(v)	"Applicable effluent standards and limitations" means all state and
200	federal effluent standar	rds and limitations to which a discharge is subject to under the
201	Environmental Quality	Act, or the CWA, including, but not limited to, effluent limitations,
202	standards of performar	nce, toxic effluent standards and prohibitions, and pretreatment standards.
203		
204	(vi)	"Applicable water quality standards" means all water quality standards to
205	which a discharge is su	ubject under Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations, Chapter 1.
206		
207	(vii)	"Applicant" means the person responsible for submitting a completed
208	* *	WYPDES permit and the person who will have primary responsibility for
209		nts of the permit. Applicant is usually the owner of the facility from which
210		occurring; however, when a facility is operated by someone other than the
211	owner, the operator is	the applicant.
212		
213	(viii)	"Application" means an application form upon which the applicant has
214	•	information in order to obtain a WYPDES permit, modification to a
215	WYPDES permit or re	newal of a WYPDES permit.
216		
217	(ix)	"Application form" means the uniform state or national forms, including
218	_	r modifications, for application for a new, modified or reissued individual
219	WYPDES permit.	
220		
221	(x)	"Aquaculture project" means a defined managed water area which uses
222		s into that designated area for the maintenance or production of harvestable
223	freshwater plants or an	imais.
224		

225	(xi) "Authorization" means the written approval granted by the department to
226	a person or facility which states that a discharge from the facility is permitted under a general
227	permit and which is subject to the conditions set forth in the general permit. "Authorization" also
228	means the modifications to a previously issued authorization that are made to accommodate an
229	alteration in the conditions under a previous authorization or an extension of the allowed time for
230	discharge to occur that was established under a previous authorization.
231	
232	(xii) "Best Management Practices (BMPs)" means schedules of activities,
233	prohibitions of practices, maintenance procedures, and/or other management practices to prevent
234	or reduce the pollution of "waters of the state." BMPs also include treatment requirements,
235	operating procedures, and practices to control plant site runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or waste
236	disposal, or drainage from raw material storage.
237	
238	(xiii) "Bypass" means the intentional diversion of waste streams from any
239	portion of a treatment facility.
240	
241	(xiv) "CFR" means Code of Federal Regulations. All references to the Code
242	refer to the CFR dated July 1, 2004.
243	• *
244	(xv) "Compliance schedule" means a schedule of remedial measures included
245	in a permit that establishes an enforceable sequence of actions or operations leading to
246	compliance with an effluent limitation, other limitation, prohibition, or standard.
247	
248	(xvi) "Concentrated animal feeding operation" means an animal feeding
249	operation (other than an aquatic animal production facility) which meets the criteria in Appendix
250	G of these regulations.
251	
252	(xvii) "Concentrated aquatic animal production facility" means a hatchery, fish
253	farm, or other facility which meets the criteria as defined in Appendix F of these regulations, or
254	an aquatic animal production facility that is designated as concentrated by the department as a
255	result of its significant contribution of pollution to surface waters of the state.
256	· ·
257	(xviii) "Co-permittee" means a permittee to a WYPDES permit that is only
258	responsible for permit conditions relating to the discharge for which it is operator.
259	
260	(xix) "CWA" means the federal Clean Water Act.
261	
262	(xx) "Daily average" means the average concentration determined by the
263	arithmetic mean of all samples collected within a calendar day.
264	
265	(xxi) "Daily maximum" means the highest single reading from any grab or
266	composite sample collected during the reporting period, except in the case of Coal Mining
267	Operations, where the definition means the value determined by an analysis of a properly
268	preserved composite sample composed of a minimum of four grab samples collected at equally
269	spaced two hour intervals and proportioned according to flow at the time of sampling.
270	

271	(xxii) "Designated project areas" means the portions of surface waters of the
272	state within which the permittee or permit applicant plans to confine the cultivated species, using
273	a method, plan or operation (including, but not limited to, physical confinement) which, on the
274	basis of reliable scientific evidence, is expected to ensure that specific individual organisms
275	comprising an aquaculture crop will experience increased growth attributable to the discharge of
276	pollutants, and be harvested within a defined geographic area.
277	
278	(xxiii) "Designated uses" means those uses specified in water quality standards
279	for each water body or segment whether or not they are being attained.
280	, ,
281	(xxiv) "Duly authorized representative" means an individual or position having
282	responsibility for the overall operation of the regulated facility or activity, or an individual or
283	position having overall responsibility for environmental matters for the regulated facility who has
284	been designated by a person described in Section 14 (a) of these regulations, through the
285	submittal to the administrator of a written notification, as the individual or position authorized to
286	sign reports required by the permits or certify other information requested by the administrator.
287	
288	(xxv) "Effluent" means the pollutant or waste stream from a facility that is
289	being or is proposed to be discharged.
290	
291	(xxvi) "Effluent limitation" means any restriction established by the state or by
292	the Administrator of the EPA on quantities, rates and/or concentrations of chemical, physical,
293	biological, and other constituents which are discharged from point sources into surface waters of
294	the state.
295	
296	(xxvii) "EPA" means the United States Environmental Protection Agency.
297	
298	(xxviii) "Facility" means any WYPDES point source or collection of point
299	sources or any other facility or activity (including land or appurtenances thereto associated with
300	the operation of the facility) that is subject to regulation under the WYPDES program.
301	
302	(xxix) "Fact sheet" means the application materials, a draft copy of the permit, a
303	statement of basis and the public notice.
304	
305	(xxx) "Federal Act" means the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (Clean
306	Water Act) as amended in 1987, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq. as amended.
307	
308	(xxxi) "Fill material" means any material used for the primary purpose of
309	replacing an aquatic area with dry land or of changing the bottom elevation of a waterbody. The
310	term does not include any pollutant discharged into the water primarily to dispose of waste, as
311	that activity is regulated under Section 5 of these regulations.
312	
313	(xxxii) "Flow monitoring station" means a designated point where stream flow
314	is measured.
315	

316 317	(xxxiii) "Form" means any issued permit and any uniform state or national form developed for use in the WYPDES system or these regulations.					
318						
319	(xxxiv) "General permit" means a permit to discharge which authorizes a					
320 321	category of discharges within a specified geographic area.					
322	(xxxv) "Grab sample" means a single "dip and take" sample collected at a					
323	representative point in the discharge stream.					
324						
325	(xxxvi) "Hydric soil" means a soil that formed under conditions of saturation,					
326	flooding or ponding long enough during the growing season to develop anaerobic conditions in					
327	the upper part.					
328						
329	(xxxvii) "Hydrophytic vegetation" means a community of plants where, under					
330	normal circumstances more than 50 percent of the composition of the dominant species from all					
331	strata are obligate wetland (OBL), facultative wetland (FACW), and/or facultative (FAC) species;					
332	or a frequency analysis of all species within the community yields a prevalence index value of					
333	less than 3.0 (where $OBL = 1.0$, $FACW = 2.0$, $FAC = 3.0$, $FACU$ (facultative upland) = 4.0, and					
334	UPL (upland species) $= 5.0$).					
335						
336	(xxxviii) "Illicit discharge" means any discharge to a municipal separate					
337	storm sewer that is not composed entirely of storm water except discharges pursuant to a					
338	WYPDES permit (other than the WYPDES permit for discharges from the municipal separate					
339	storm sewer) and discharges resulting from fire fighting activities.					
340						
341	(xxxix) "Incorporated place" means a city, town, township or village that					
342	is incorporated under the laws of the State of Wyoming.					
343						
344	(xl) "Individual permit" means a permit to discharge to surface waters of the					
345	state issued to a facility for specific activities in accordance with the regulations contained herein.					
346						
347	(xli) "Industrial user" means those industries identified in the Standard					
348	Industrial Classification Manual, Bureau of the Budget, 1967, as amended and supplemented,					
349 350	under the category 'Division D - Manufacturing' and such other classes of significant waste					
351	producers as, by regulation, the administrator deems appropriate.					
352	(xlii) "Instantaneous maximum" means the value determined by an analysis of					
352 353	a single properly preserved grab sample.					
354	a snight property preserved grab sample.					
355	(xliii) "Irrigation compliance point" means a point downstream of the outfall					
356	but before the first irrigation diversion where, when indicated in the permit, specified effluent					
357	limitations must be met.					
358	minutions must be met.					
359	(xliv) "Isolated wetlands" means wetlands as defined by the Environmental					
360	Quality Act and Section 3 of these regulations which do not meet the federal definition of waters					

361	of the United State	es but	meet th	e state=s definition of waters of the state as defined in the
362	Environmental Qu	ality	Act.	
363				
364	(x	lv)	"Major	facility" means:
365				
366			(A)	For municipal wastewater treatment facilities, 1) those facilities
367	with design flows	greate	er than c	one million gallons per day or with an approved industrial
368	pretreatment progr	am aı	nd 2) wl	nich have been designated by the director and Regional
369	Administrator of t	he EP	A as a r	najor facility.
370				
371			(B)	For industrial facilities, those facilities that 1) have a potential to
372	discharge a total v	olume	e of grea	ater than 50,000 gallons per day and 2) which have been
373	designated by the	direct	or and I	Regional Administrator of the EPA as a major facility.
374				
375	(x	lvi)	"Major	modification" means any modification that is not defined as a
376	minor modification	n.		
377				
378	(x	lvii)	"Main	stem" means the major channel of a river or stream as shown on
379	the latest and most	t detai	led reco	ords of the Wyoming State Engineer.
380				
381	(x	lviii)	"MGD	" means million gallons per day.
382				
383	(x	lix)	"Micro	grams per liter (µg/l)" means micrograms of solute per liter of
384	solution equivalen	t to pa	arts per	billion (ppb) in liquids, assuming unit density.
385				
386	(1))	"Millig	grams per liter (mg/l)" means milligrams of solute per liter of
387	solution equivalen	t to pa	arts per	million (ppm) in liquids, assuming unit density.
388				
389	(li	i)	"Minor	facility" means any discharge which is not identified by the
390	director and the Re	egiona	al Admi	nistrator of the EPA, as a major facility.
391				
392	(li	i)	"Mino	modification" means
393				
394			(A)	correcting typographical errors; or
395				
396			(B)	increasing the frequency of monitoring or reporting by the
397	permittee; or			
398			(C)	changing an interim date in a schedule of compliance, provided
399	the new date of co	mplia	nce is n	ot more than 120 days after the date specified in the existing
400	permit and does no	ot inte	rfere w	ith attainment of the final compliance date requirement; or
401				
402			(D)	allowing for a transfer in ownership or operational control of a
403	•			rmines that no other change in the permit is necessary, provided
404				ning a specific date for transfer of permit responsibility, coverage
405	and liability between	en the	e curren	t and new permittees has been submitted to the department; or
406				

407 408		(E) change	changing the construction schedule for a discharger which is a shall affect a discharger's obligation to have all pollution control
409	equipment installed and	in opera	ation prior to discharge; or
410			
411 412		(F) does no	deleting a point source outfall when the discharge from that of result in discharge of pollutants from other outfalls except in
413	accordance with permit l	limits; o	r
414			
415		(G)	adding additional wells to an existing permitted outfall provided
416	that the flow volume spe	ecified i	n the permit is not exceeded, the source or quality of the effluent
417	is similar in nature and c	onsists	of similar pollutants and the additional effluent will comply with
418	all of the existing permit	conditi	ons.
419			
420	(liii)	"Mixing	g zone" means limited area or volume of a surface water body
421	within which an effluent	become	es thoroughly mixed with the water body.
422			
423	(liv)	"Modifi	ication" means adjustments in permit conditions which result
424			tion or operation of a facility from what was identified in the
425		_	recently noticed or authorized.
426			·
427	(lv)	"MS4"	means a municipal separate storm sewer system.
428	, ,		
429	(lvi)	"Munic	ipal separate storm sewer" means a conveyance or system of
430	conveyances (including	roads w	ith drainage systems, municipal streets, catch basins, curbs,
431	gutters, ditches, man-ma	de chan	nels, or storm drains):
432			
433		(A)	Owned or operated by the United States, a state, city, town,
434	county, district, associati	ion, or o	other public body (created by or pursuant to state law) having
435	· ·		rage, industrial wastes, storm water, or other wastes, including
436	special districts under sta	ate law	such as a sewer district, flood control district or drainage district,
437	-		and approved management agency under section 208 of the
438	CWA that discharges to	-	
439			
440		(B)	Designed or used for collecting or conveying storm water;
441		. ,	
442		(C)	Which is not a combined sewer; and
443		. ,	
444		(D)	Which is not part of a publicly owned treatment works (POTWs)
445	as defined at 40 CFR 403	3.3.	
446			
447	(lvii)	"Munic	ipality" means a city, town, county, district, association, or other
448			state law and having jurisdiction over disposal of sewage,
449	-		s, or a designated and approved management agency under
450	section 208 of the CWA		
451			

452 453 454 455 456	program for issuing, i	nodifying	onal Pollutant Discharge Elimination System" means the federal g, revoking and reissuing, terminating, monitoring and enforcing reing pretreatment requirements, under section 307, 318, 402, and
457 458 459	(lix) measurable effects or		ral" means that condition which would exist without the ble influence of man's activities.
460 461 462	(lx) without the measurab		ral water quality" means that quality of water which would exist or measurable influence of man's activities.
463 464 465	(lxi) represents the oil and		oil and grease" means the results from a 1664-Cu analysis which oncentration corrected for elemental sulphur.
466 467	(lxii)	"New	discharger" means any building, structure, facility, or installation:
468 469		(A)	from which there is or may be a discharge of pollution or wastes;
470 471 472	particular "site" prior	(B) to Augus	that did not commence the discharge of pollution or wastes at a t 13, 1979;
473 474		(C)	which is not a new source; and
475 476 477	WYPDES permit for	(D) discharge	which has never received a finally effective NPDES or as at that site.
478 479 480 481	but is not yet occurring	ng, or a fa	facility" means a facility for which a discharge is being proposed cility from which a discharge is occurring, where no permit or e has been issued by the department.
482 483 484 485	commenced after pub	lication b	source" means any source, the construction of which is y the Administrator of the EPA of a proposed standard of plicable to such source if promulgated.
486 487 488	(lxv) manufacturing or production		process wastewater" means any water which, during not defined as process wastewater.
489 490 491 492	provisions of Section	15 of this	re" means the announcement to the public, in accordance with the sargulation, of the intention of the department to issue, reissue, toke a permit, or hold a public hearing.
493 494 495			te of intent" means the form which is used to apply for new, ation to discharge as sanctioned by a general permit.
496 497	(lxvii	ii) "NPD	ES" means National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System.

498	(lxix) "Outfall" means the point at which a discharge exits the final treatment
499 500	unit, if any, associated with a facility prior to entering surface waters of the state.
500 501	(lvv) "Overhyrden" means any meterial of any nature consolidated or
501 502	(lxx) "Overburden" means any material of any nature, consolidated or
	unconsolidated, that overlies a mineral deposit, excluding topsoil or similar naturally occurring
503 504	surface materials that are not disturbed by mining operations.
504 505	(lxxi) "Owner or operator" means the owner or operator of any facility or
505 506	activity subject to regulation under the WYPDES program. The owner or operator is the person
507	applying for a WYPDES permit or authorization who will be responsible for complying with the
507 508	requirements of the permit or authorization.
508 509	requirements of the permit of authorization.
510	(lxxii) "Permit" means any permit issued by the Administrator of the EPA under
511	the NPDES program or by the administrator of the Water Quality Division in accordance with
512	these regulations.
513	these regulations.
514	(lxxiii) "pH" means a term used to express the intensity of acid or alkaline
515	conditions. pH is a measure of the hydrogen ion activity in a water sample. It is mathematically
516	related to hydrogen ion activity according to the expression: $pH = -log 10 (H+)$, where $(H+)$ is the
517	hydrogen ion activity. A pH value of 7 at 25 degrees C is neutral, with pHs of less than seven (7)
518	progressively more acid and pHs of greater than seven (7) progressively more basic (alkaline).
519	progressively more deta and pris of greater than seven (7) progressively more basic (arkanne).
520	(lxxiv) "Point of compliance" means a point downstream from the outfall where
521	effluent limitations specified in a permit must be achieved.
522	The second second and a positive of a second real
523	(lxxv) "Pollutant" means dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator residue, filter
524	backwash, sewage, garbage, sewage sludge, munitions, chemical wastes, biological materials,
525	radioactive materials (except those regulated under the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended
526	[42 U.S.C. 2011 et seq.]), heat, wrecked or discarded equipment, rock, sand, cellar dirt and
527	industrial, municipal, and agricultural waste discharged into water. It does not mean sewage from
528	vessels; or water, gas, or other material which is injected into a well to facilitate production of oil
529	or gas, or water derived in association with oil and gas production and disposed of in a well, if the
530	well used either to facilitate production or for disposal purposes is approved by authority of the
531	state and if the state determines that the injection or disposal will not result in the degradation of
532	ground or surface water resources.
533	
534	(lxxvi) "POTW" means a publicly owned treatment work.
535	
536	(lxxvii) "Pretreatment standards" means standards for that level of treatment
537	required of waste before introduction into a publicly owned treatment works so that it neither
538	interferes with, passes through, or otherwise is incompatible with such works.
539	
540	(lxxviii) "Primary industrial facility" means a facility that falls into one of
541	the defined primary industrial categories listed in 40 CFR Part 122 Appendix A.
542	

543 544	(lxxix) "Process wastewater" means any water which during manufacturing or processing, comes into direct contact with or results from the production or use
545	of any raw material, intermediate product, finished product, byproduct, or waste product.
546 547	(lxxx) "Produced water" means underground water which surfaces through oil
548	and/or gas wells.
549	
550	(lxxxi) "Regional Administrator" means the EPA Region VIII Administrator.
551	
552	(lxxxii) "Reporting form" means the uniform state or national forms, including
553	subsequent revision and modification, for reporting data and information pursuant to monitoring
554	and other conditions of WYPDES permits.
555	
556	(lxxxiii) "Severe property damage" means substantial physical damage to
557	property, damage to the treatment facilities which causes them to become inoperable, or
558	substantial and permanent loss of natural resources which can reasonably be expected to occur in
559	the absence of a bypass. Severe property damage does not mean economic loss caused by delays
560	in production.
561	
562	(lxxxiv) "Significant materials" includes, but is not limited to: raw materials;
563	fuels; materials such as solvents, detergents, and plastic pellets; finished materials such as
564	metallic products; raw materials used in food processing or production; hazardous substances
565	designated under section 101(14) of CERCLA; any chemical the facility is required to report
566	pursuant to Section 313 of title III of SARA; fertilizers; pesticides; and waste products such as
567	ashes, slag and sludge that have the potential to be released with storm water discharges.
568	
569	(lxxxv) "Silvicultural point source" means any discernible, confined and discrete
570	conveyance related to rock crushing and gravel washing as defined in 40 CFR Part 436, subpart B
571	and, log sorting, or log storage facilities as defined in 40 CFR Part 429, subpart I which are
572	operated in connection with silvicultural activities and from which pollutants are discharged into
573	surface waters of the state. The term does not include nonpoint source silvicultural activities such
574	as nursery operations, site preparation, reforestation and subsequent cultural treatment, thinning,
575	prescribed burning, pest and fire control, harvesting operations, surface drainage, or road
576	construction and maintenance from which there is natural runoff. However, some of these
577	activities may involve point source discharges of dredged or fill material which may require a
578	permit under Section 404 of the CWA or Section 7 of these regulations.
579	
580	(lxxxvi) "Site" means the land or water area where any facility or activity
581	is physically located or conducted, including adjacent land used in connection with the facility or
582	activity.
583	
584	(lxxxvii) "Skim ponds" means earthen ponds usually used in conjunction
585	with heater treaters and/or free water knockout units and/or skim tanks, into which produced
586	water is discharged with the purpose of providing gravity separation of oil and water. Skim
587	ponds are usually designed with a "stand pipe" which discharges relatively oil-free water from

588 589	near the bottom of the pond while the majority of the oil is allowed to float to the top of the pond where it is collected.
590	
591	(lxxxviii) "Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Code" means the statistical
592	classification standard for industrial establishments developed by the Office of Management and
593	Budget and published in the Standard Industrial Classification Manual, Executive Office of the
594	President, Office of Management and Budget (1987).
595	
596	(lxxxix) "Storm water" means storm water runoff, snow melt runoff, and surface
597	runoff and drainage.
598	
599	(xc) "Storm water discharge associated with industrial activity" is defined in
600	Section 6 (g) of these regulations.
601	
602	(xci) "Surface waters of the state" means surface waters of the state as defined
603	in Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations Chapter 1, Wyoming Surface Water Quality
604	Standards.
605	
606	(xcii) "Technology-based effluent limit" means a permit limit for a pollutant
607	that has been adopted pursuant to Section 5 (c) (iii) (A) and (B) of these regulations and 304 (b)
608	of the CWA that is based on the capability of a treatment method(s) to reduce the pollutant to a
609	certain concentration.
610	
611	(xciii) "Toxic materials" means those materials, or combination of materials,
612	including disease causing agents, which, after discharge and upon exposure, ingestion, inhalation,
613	or assimilation into any organism, either directly from the environment or indirectly by ingestion
614	through food chains, will, on the basis of information available to the director of the Wyoming
615	Department of Environmental Quality, cause death, disease, behavioral abnormalities, cancer,
616	genetic malfunctions, physiological malfunctions (including malfunctions in reproduction), or
617	physical deformations in such organisms or their offspring.
618	
619	(xciv) "Toxicity reduction evaluation" means a site-specific study conducted in
620	a step-wise process designed to identify the causative agent(s) of effluent toxicity, isolate the
621	sources of toxicity, evaluate the effectiveness of toxicity control options, and then confirm the
622	reduction in effluent toxicity.
623	(var) "Tributary" many those atmosphere an atmosphere which flow into an
624	(xcv) "Tributary" means those streams or stream segments which flow into or
625	contribute water to another stream, stream segment, downstream reach of the same stream, or
626	other water body.
627	(vavi) "I magniful agnitory landfill" magne a landfill or anon dymn, whather
628 629	(xcvi) "Uncontrolled sanitary landfill" means a landfill or open dump, whether in operation or closed, that does not meet the requirements for runon or runoff controls
630	
631	established pursuant to RCRA Subtitle D.
632	(xcvii) "Upset" means an exceptional incident in which there is unintentional
633	and temporary noncompliance with technology based permit effluent limitations because of
333	and temporary noncompliance with technology based permit efficient initiations because of

factors beyond the reasonable control of the permittee. An upset does not include noncompliance to the extent caused by operational error, improperly designed treatment facilities, inadequate treatment facilities, lack of preventive maintenance, or careless or improper operation.

(xcviii) "Variance" means any mechanism or provision under section 301 or 316 of the CWA or under Section 8 of these regulations, or in the applicable effluent guidelines pursuant to Section 5 (c) (iii) of these regulations which allows modification to or waiver of the generally applicable effluent limitation requirements or time deadlines of the CWA. This includes provisions which allow the establishment of alternative limitations based on fundamentally different factors or on Sections 301 (c), 301 (g), 301 (h), 301 (i), or 316 (a) of the CWA.

(xcix) "Water quality based effluent limit" means a permit effluent limit derived by selecting the most stringent of the effluent limits calculated using all applicable water quality criteria as set forth in Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations, Chapter 1 for a specific point source to a specific receiving water for a given pollutant.

(c) "Water quality monitoring station" means a point downstream from the outfall on the tributary just prior to the confluence with the main stem of the drainage and/or on the mainstream above and below the confluence with the tributary where certain water quality monitoring data is to be collected when specified in the permit.

(ci) "Water quality standard" means the regulations as established by Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations, Chapter 1 which describe the designated uses of surface waters of the state, the numeric and narrative criteria that are necessary to protect the uses of surface waters of the state, and an antidegradation provision which protects the natural water quality of surface waters of the state.

(cii) "Wetland hydrology" means the presence of water on or near the land surface at a frequency and duration to cause the formation of hydric soils and support a prevalence of vegetation typically adapted to saturated and/or inundated conditions.

(ciii) "Whole effluent toxicity" means the total toxic effect of an effluent measured directly with a toxicity test.

(civ) "Wyoming Pollution Discharge Elimination System (WYPDES)" means the state program for issuing, modifying and reissuing, terminating, monitoring and enforcing permits for discharging pollutants into surface waters of the state under the provisions of these rules, W.S. 35-11- 101 through 35-11-1803 and the CWA.

Section 4. General Permits.

Provisions for the issuance of general permits are described in this section. Additional requirements specific to effluent permits, storm water permits and isolated wetlands are contained in sections 5, 6 and 7 of these regulations.

679	(a)	Covera	age. Th	e department may issue a general permit to cover a category of
680	discharges, exc	ept thos	e cover	ed by individual permits, within a geographic area which shall
681	correspond to e	xisting	geograp	hic or political boundaries. The general permit may be written to
682	regulate:			
683				
684		(i)	Storm	water point sources except;
685		. ,		
686			(A)	Storm water discharges associated with industrial activities (as
687	defined in Sect	ion 6 (g	` ') through (K)) that have a potential to reach surface waters of the
688		٠.		ass 1 in Appendix A of Chapter 1, Wyoming Water Quality Rules
689			_	ies must apply for an individual storm water permit in accordance
690	with the require			
691	1			
692			(B)	Storm water discharges from large or small construction activity
693	as defined in So	ection 6	` '	not included in the exception of Section 4 (a) (i) (A).
694			· /	1 (7(7)
695		(ii)	Point	source discharges of dredged or fill material into isolated wetlands;
696		` '		
697				
698		(iii)	Efflue	nt discharges, other than discharges described in (i) and (ii) above,
699	if the sources a			
700				
701			(A)	Involve the same or substantially similar types of operations;
702			()	,
703			(B)	Discharge the same types of pollution or wastes;
704			. ,	
705			(C)	Require the same effluent limitations or operating conditions;
706			. ,	
707			(D)	Require the same or similar monitoring; and
708			. ,	•
709			(E)	In the opinion of the administrator, are more appropriately
710	controlled unde	er a gene	eral perr	mit than under individual permits. In making such a finding, the
711		_	•	ne types of discharges; the expected nature of the discharges; the
712				ional pollutants in the discharges; the expected volumes of the
713	_			number of discharges to be covered by the permit. The
714				he public notice of the general permit the rationale for utilizing a
715		_		vidual permits for the permitted activity.
716				
717	(b)	Author	rization	to discharge.
718	ζ-/			
719		(i)	Excep	t as otherwise provided in these regulations, any person seeking
720	coverage under		_	it shall submit to the department a complete notice of intent,
721		-	_	to be covered by the general permit. Any person who fails to
722	* *			ordance with the terms of the general permit is not authorized to
723				the permit unless the general permit, in accordance with Section 4
724	-			at a notice of intent is not required.

 (ii) The minimum requirements of the notice of intent shall be specified in the general permit and shall require the submission of information necessary for adequate program implementation. All notices of intent shall be signed as described in Section 14 of these regulations.

(iii) General permits shall specify the deadlines for submitting notices of intent and the date(s) when a discharge is authorized under the permit unless otherwise specified in the authorization.

(A) In any event, no person shall commence a discharge without having obtained written authorization from the department, and no authorization shall be issued without full compliance by the permittee with all requirements of these regulations.

(B) In any event, no person shall change or alter the conditions of an authorized discharge without having obtained an authorization from the department, and no authorization for the modification shall be issued without full compliance by the permittee with all requirements of these regulations.

(C) In any event, no person shall continue to discharge beyond the expiration date of an authorization without having obtained an extension or renewal of the authorization from the department, and no extension or renewal shall be granted without full compliance by the permittee with all requirements of these regulations.

(iv) General permits shall specify eligibility requirements for coverage under the permit and procedures for submitting notices of intent and granting authorization.

(v) Discharges other than discharges from publicly owned treatment works, combined sewer overflows, MS4s, primary industrial facilities, and storm water discharges associated with industrial activity and large construction activities may be authorized to discharge under a general permit without submitting a notice of intent where the administrator finds that a notice of intent requirement would be inappropriate. In making such a finding, the administrator shall consider: the types of discharges, the expected nature of the discharges; the potential for toxic and conventional pollutants in the discharges; the expected volumes of the discharges; and the estimated number of discharges to be covered by the permit. The administrator shall provide in the public notice of the general permit the reasons for not requiring a notice of intent, if so allowed.

(vi) The administrator may notify a discharger that it is subject to the conditions and requirements of a general permit, even if the discharger has not submitted a notice of intent to be covered.

(c) Water quality-based limits. Where sources within a specific category or subcategory of dischargers are subject to water quality-based limits imposed pursuant to Section 5 of these regulations, the source in that specific category or subcategory shall be subject to the same water quality-based effluent limitations, when applicable.

771	
772	(d) Applicable conditions. The general permit must clearly identify the applicable
773	conditions for each category or subcategory of dischargers or treatment works treating domestic
774	sewage covered by the permit.
775	
776	(e) Exclusions. The general permit may exclude specified sources or areas from
777	coverage.
778	
779	(f) Processing procedures for notices of intent.
780	
781	(i) The administrator shall review each notice of intent and make a
782	completeness determination within 30 days of receipt of the notice of intent. If the notice of
783	intent and supplemental information are deemed to be complete, processing of the notice of intent
784	shall proceed in accordance with Section 4 (f) (ii). If the administrator determines that the notice
785	of intent is incomplete, a notice shall be provided to the applicant, describing the additional
786	information needed in order to complete the processing of the notice of intent, within 45 days of
787	receipt of the notice of intent. The completeness of any notice of intent shall be judged
788	independently of the status of any other notice of intent for the same facility or activity.
789	independently of the status of the state of intent for the state facility of activity.
790	(ii) Upon determination of completeness or as specified in the general
791	permit, the administrator, or his authorized representative, shall make a determination on issuance
792	or denial of the authorization for coverage under the general permit. If the administrator, or his
793	authorized representative, proposes that the discharge be authorized, the administrator, or his
794	authorized representative, proposes that the discharge of authorized, the administrator, of his authorized representative, will also identify any conditions of authorization.
795	audiorized representative, will also identify any conditions of audiorization.
796	(g) Modification, revocation, renewal, extension, or termination of general permits.
797	General permits may be issued, modified, revoked, renewed, extended, or terminated in
798	accordance with provisions of Sections 9, 10, 11, and 12 of these regulations. Termination may
799	apply to individual owners or operators, to several owners or operators, or to an entire general
800	permit protection area. In cases where the termination does not affect all owners and operators,
801	the general permit shall remain in effect with respect to those unaffected owners and operators.
802	the general permit shall remain in effect with respect to those unaffected owners and operators.
803	(h) Permit term. General permits may be issued for a term not to exceed five (5)
804	years, unless extended in accordance with the provisions of Section 11 of these regulations.
805	years, unless extended in accordance with the provisions of Section 11 of these regulations.
806	(i) Requiring an individual permit.
807	(1) Requiring an individual permit.
808	(i) The administrator, for good cause, may require any person authorized by
809	a general permit or seeking coverage under a general permit to apply for and obtain an individual
810	permit. Cases where an individual WYPDES permit may be required include, but are not limited
811	to, the following:
812	to, the following.
012	

The permittee is not in compliance with the conditions of the

(A)

general WYPDES permit;

813

814

815

816 817	technology or m	(B)		nge has occurred in the availability of demonstrated or abatement of pollutants applicable to the point source;
818	teemiology of pr	detices for the	20111101	or action of pondums approach to the point source,
819		(C)		nt limitation guidelines are promulgated for point sources
820	covered by the g	general w YPDE	25 perm	111;
821		(D)	A	
822 823	ampliachle to av	(D)		er quality management plan containing requirements
824	applicable to such	in point sources	is appi	loved,
824 825		(E)	Cirour	nstances have changed since the time of the request to be
825 826	accorded to that	(E)		ger appropriately controlled under the general permit, or
820 827		_		ion or elimination of the authorized discharge is necessary;
82 <i>1</i> 828	enner a tempora	ry or permanen	i reduci	non of eminiation of the authorized discharge is necessary,
829		(F)	The di	scharge(s) is a significant contributor of pollutants. In
830	making this deta	` '		strator may consider the following factors:
831	making tills dett	illination, the	adminis	strator may consider the following factors.
832			(I)	The location of the discharge with respect to surface
833	waters of the sta	te.	(1)	The location of the discharge with respect to surface
834	waters of the ste	ж,		
835			(II)	The size of the discharge;
836			(11)	The size of the discharge,
837			(III)	The quantity and nature of the pollutants discharged to
838	surface waters of	f the state: and	(111)	The quality and nature of the pollutants discharged to
839		i die state, and		
840			(IV)	Any other relevant factors.
841			` /	•
842		(ii) Any in	terested	person may petition the administrator to require any
843	person authorize			or seeking coverage under a general permit to apply for and
844	obtain an indivi			
845		•		
846		(iii) Any ov	vner or	operator authorized by a general permit may request to be
847	excluded from t	he coverage of	he gene	eral permit by applying for an individual permit in
848	accordance with	Section 5 (a) o	f these	regulations.
849				
850		(iv) When a	an indiv	ridual permit is issued to an owner or operator otherwise
851	subject to a gene	eral permit, the	applical	bility of the general permit to the individual permittee is
852	automatically te	rminated on the	effecti	ve date of the individual permit.
853				
854	(j)	General permit	covera	ge for discharges already covered by an individual permit.
855	A discharge exc	luded from a ge	neral p	ermit solely because it already has an individual permit
856	may request that	the individual	permit	be terminated, and that it be covered by the general permit.
857				
858				ge. Any owner or operator shall apply for coverage in a
859	general permit c	ategory by com	pleting	the notice of intent supplied by the administrator.
860				
861	(1)	Permit condition	ns.	

862			
863	(i)	Gene	ral permits will include all conditions determined necessary by the
864	state for protection of	he surf	ace waters of the state.
865			
866	(ii)		ral permits will require a copy of the authorization letter be posted
867	at the physical location	of the	permitted site in a prominent and safe place for public viewing.
868			
869	(iii)		ral permits will require the permittee to notify all landowners,
870	1 1		associated with the general permit is located, prior to submitting the
871	Notice of Intent to the	adminis	strator.
872	() A 1:	. •	
873			equirements for isolated wetlands. A notice of intent submitted for
874	_		ivities that cause the destruction, damage or impairment of naturally
875	_	ands sh	all contain the information as required in Section 7 (b) of these
876	regulations.		
877	() A 1'		
878			equirements for effluent discharges. Application requirements for
879	•	-	storm water discharges and isolated wetlands as described in
880	Sections 6 and 7 respec	ctively	of these regulations.
881 882	(i)	A not	ice of intent submitted for accurage of discharge from a new
883	(i)		ice of intent submitted for coverage of discharge from a new shall contain, at a minimum, the following information unless the
884		_	certain items are unnecessary:
885	administrator determin	es mai	certain items are unnecessary.
886		(A)	Name of company, entity, or individual seeking authorization;
887		(11)	rume of company, energy, of mervicual seeking authorization,
888		(B)	Identification of the facility name, location, and telephone
889	number if applicable;		radiation of the facility name, focusion, and terephone
890	nume of it approved,		
891		(C)	Mailing address and telephone number of company, entity, or
892	individual seeking autl		
893	<i>B</i>		•
894		(D)	Applicant status as federal, state, private, public, or other entity;
895		` '	
896		(E)	Name and signature of responsible person;
897		. ,	
898		(F)	Authorization of a duly authorized representative under the
899	Signatory Requiremen	ts of Se	ction 14 of these rules, where applicable;
900			
901		(G)	Type and location, expressed in latitude and longitude to the
902	nearest 15 seconds, of	the faci	lity from which discharge will occur;
903			
904		(H)	A description of the activities conducted by the applicant which
905	require it to obtain cov	erage u	nder a WYPDES permit;
906			

907	(I) Expected quality and quantity of effluent (including maximum				
908	design capacity in million gallons per day) proposed for discharge, flow rate in million gallons				
909	per day or cubic feet per second and whether the proposed discharge will be continuous or				
910	intermittent;				
911					
912	(J) Description of treatment process that will be used to reduce				
913	pollutant concentrations in effluent;				
914					
915	(K) Outfall number(s) and latitude and longitude of each outfall				
916	location to the nearest 15 seconds;				
917					
918	(L) Outfall number(s) and legal description(s) of each outfall				
919	location to the nearest quarter/quarter of a section;				
920	,				
921	(M) Names and addresses of landowners where outfall(s) will be				
922	located, if property owner is other than the applicant;				
923	isomon, in property of their is outer than the approxim,				
924	(N) Outfall number(s) and names of surface waters of the state that				
925	would or potentially would directly receive any portion of the discharge for each outfall,				
926	including, where applicable, a description of the tributary system from the outfall location to the				
927	main stem;				
928					
929	(O) A topographic map extending one mile beyond the property				
930	boundaries of the source, showing the location of the facility, intake structures and associated				
931	outfalls and proposed monitoring and/or compliance points; each of its hazardous waste				
932	treatment, storage, or disposal facilities; each well where fluids from the facility are injected				
933	underground; and those wells, springs, other surface water bodies, and drinking water wells listed				
934	in public records or otherwise known by the applicant in the map area. The map scale must be at				
935	least 1:24,000 unless otherwise approved by the administrator.				
936	1.2 1,000 dilless outer with approved by the definitional district.				
937	(P) Where applicable, additional requirements as				
938	specified in Appendices A through M of these regulations.				
939	specified in rappendices in anough in an energy regularions.				
940	(Q) Any other information the administrator may request in order to				
941	identify potential impacts to designated uses of surface waters of the state, by the proposed				
942	discharge and to determine whether to issue authorization under a general permit. The additional				
943	information may include additional quantitative data and bioassays to assess the relative toxicity				
944	of discharges to aquatic life and requirements to determine the cause of the toxicity.				
945	of disentages to aquate me and requirements to determine the educe of the tometry.				
946	(ii) Information in addition to that described in Section 4 (n) (i) may be				
947	established based on needs specific to a general permit.				
948	established based on needs specific to a general permit.				
949	(iii) A notice of intent submitted by a permittee for modification or extension				
950	of existing authorization under a general permit shall identify any changes or additions to the				
951	information listed in (i) and (ii) above that was provided in the notice of intent submitted for the				
952	authorization most recently granted.				
	and the second of the second o				

953		(i)	A	bio of intent and other decreases as an incident and other has been decreased.	
954		(iv)		ice of intent and other documents required to accompany said	
955				d to the department must be signed and certified in accordance with	
956	the provisions	of Section	on 14 of	these regulations.	
957					
958	(0)	Applic	cation re	quirements for storm water discharges.	
959			~ 11		
960		(i)	Deadl	ines to apply.	
961					
962			(A)	Facilities proposing a new discharge of storm water associated	
963		-	_	e construction activity shall submit a notice of intent in accordance	
964	with the provis	sions of	Section -	4 (o) (ii) of these regulations.	
965					
966			(B)	Except as provided in Section 4 (o) (i), for any storm water	
967	discharge asso	ciated w	ith large	e construction activity as described in Section 6 (f) (i) or industrial	
968	activity as ider	ntified in	Section	6 (g) in place prior to the effective date of this rule, should have	
969	made applicati	on to the	e admini	istrator by October 1, 1992; prior to initiation of the activity; or as	
970	specified in the	e applica	ble gen	eral permit.	
971	-				
972			(C)	For any storm water discharge associated with industrial activity	
973	from a facility	that is o	wned or	operated by a municipality with a population of less than 100,000	
974	-			eral or individual permit other than an airport, powerplant, or	
975	uncontrolled sanitary landfill, the permit application must be submitted to the administrator by				
976		•		I in the applicable general permit.	
977			r		
978			(D)	For storm water discharges associated with small construction	
979	activity as desc	cribed in	` '	n 6 (f) (ii), that are not already authorized by a storm water general	
980	•			ermit authorization as of March 10, 2003, except;	
981	or mary radar p	,	quite p	2000, 2000p.,	
982				(I) Storm water discharges subject to Section 4 (b) (v)	
983	which are not	required	to subm	nit a NOI for coverage in accordance with the provisions of the	
984	applicable gen	_		in a 1701 for coverage in accordance with the provisions of the	
985	upplicuote gen	crai peri	int, and		
986				(II) Storm water discharges associated with small	
987	construction a	etivity of	oil and	gas exploration, production, processing, and treatment operations	
988		•		ct to the provisions of, Section 4 (o) (i) (E) of these regulations.	
989	of transmission	1 Taciliti	es subje	et to the provisions of, section 4 (0) (1) (E) of these regulations.	
990			(E)	For storm water discharges associated with small construction	
	antivity at ail a	d	(E)	For storm water discharges associated with small construction	
991		-	_	ion, production, processing, and treatment operations or	
992	u ansimssion 18	acmues,	require	permit authorization as of March 10, 2005.	
993			(E)	A making of intent shall be authorited to the administrate (10.1)	
994	60 1 C 3		(F)	A notice of intent shall be submitted to the administrator within	
995				vater discharge which the administrator determines contributes to a	
996		_	-	ndard or is a significant contributor of pollutants to surface waters	
997				histrator determines that storm water controls are needed for the	
998	discharge base	d on wa	steload a	allocations that are part of "total maximum daily loads" (TMDLs)	

999	that address the pollutant(s) of concern; unless permission for a later date is granted by the
1000	administrator.
1001	
1002	(G) For any existing storm water discharge from a regulated small
1003	MS4 for which a storm water permit application was not previously required under federal law or
1004	regulation, the permit application made under Section 4 (o) (iii) must be submitted to the
1005	administrator:
1006	
1007	(I) By March 10, 2003 for any storm water discharge
1008	associated with a regulated small MS4 in an urbanized area as described in Section 6 (h) (i) (A)
1009	and (B) and that is not already authorized by a storm water general or individual permit,
1010	
1011	(II) Within 180 days of notice of designation, unless the
1012	administrator grants a later date, under Section 6 (h) (i) (C) or (D).
1013	
1014	(ii) Application requirements for storm water discharges associated with
1015	industrial activity and large construction activity. Dischargers of storm water associated with
1016	industrial activity and large construction activity are required to apply for an individual permit or
1017	seek coverage under a storm water general permit.
1018	seek eo verage ander a storm water general permit.
1019	A notice of intent requesting coverage under a general permit must be completed in
1020	accordance with the requirements of this section and the applicable general permit. Unless the
1021	administrator determines that certain items are unnecessary, the notice of intent shall contain, at a
1021	minimum:
1023	
1023	(A) General requirements applicable to all notices of intent:
1025	(A) General requirements applicable to all hotices of intent.
1025	(I) Name of the company, entity, or individual seeking a
1027	permit;
1027	permit,
1028	(II) Mailing address and telephone number of company,
1029	
	entity, or individual seeking a permit;
1031	(III) The facility name leastion and talanhars number if
1032	(III) The facility name, location, and telephone number if
1033	applicable;
1034	
1035	(IV) Applicant status as federal, state, private, public, or other
1036	entity;
1037	
1038	(V) Name and signature in accordance with the requirements
1039	of Section 14 of these regulations;
1040	
1041	(VI) Authorization of a duly authorized representative under
1042	the Signatory Requirements of Section 14 of these regulations, where applicable;
1043	

1044 1045	(VII) Location, expressed in latitude and longitude to the nearest 15 seconds, of the facility to be covered under the permit;
1045	hearest 13 seconds, of the facility to be covered under the permit,
1040	(VIII) Location, expressed as quarter/quarter section, township,
1048	and range in the applicable Public Land Survey (PLS), of the facility to be covered under the
1049	permit;
1050	
1051	(IX) A description of the activities conducted by the applicant
1052	which require it to obtain a WYPDES storm water discharge permit;
1053	
1054	(X) For industrial activities only, up to four SIC codes which
1055 1056	best reflect the principal products or services provided by the facility;
1050	(B) Applicants shall provide such other information the
1058	administrator may reasonably require to determine whether to issue an authorization. The
1059	additional information may include additional quantitative data and bioassays to assess the
1060	relative toxicity of discharges to aquatic life and requirements to determine the cause of the
1061	toxicity.
1062	toxicity.
1063	(iii) Application requirements for regulated small municipal separate storm
1064	sewer discharges.
1065	se wer discharges.
1066	(A) The notice of intent for general permit coverage must include the
1067	following information, at a minimum:
1068	
1069	(I) Name of the municipality seeking a permit;
1070	
1071	(II) Mailing address, contact name, and telephone number of
1072	the municipality seeking a permit;
1073	
1074	(III) A general description of the best management practices
1075	(BMPs) that the permittee or another municipality will implement for each of the storm water
1076	minimum control measures required by Section 6 (j) (i);
1077	
1078	(IV) The measurable goals for each of the selected BMPs
1079	including, as appropriate, the months and years in which the permittee will undertake required
1080	actions, including interim milestones and the frequency of the action;
1081	
1082	(V) The person or persons responsible for implementing or
1083	coordinating the permittee=s storm water management program. A position, rather than an
1084	individual, may also be designated;
1085	
1086	(VI) A description of the funding sources expected for
1087	implementation of the permittee=s program; and
1088	

1089 (VII) Other information the administrator may reasonably 1090 require to determine whether to issue an authorization. 1091 1092 1093 The permittee may file a separate application for coverage under (B) 1094 a general permit, or may jointly submit an application with other municipalities or governmental 1095 entities. If the permittee wants to share responsibilities for meeting the minimum control 1096 measures with other municipalities or governmental entities, the application (whether separate or 1097 joint) must describe which minimum control measures the permittee will implement and identify 1098 the entities that will implement the other minimum control measures within the area served by the 1099 permittee=s MS4. 1100 1101 (C) If authorized by the administrator, the permittee may file a 1102 separate application for coverage under an individual permit. The application must include the 1103 information required under Section 4 (o) (iii) and Section 6 (b) (i), an estimate of square mileage 1104 served by the small MS4, and any additional information that the administrator requests. The 1105 administrator=s authorization will be contingent upon the regulated entity providing adequate 1106 justification for the need for an individual permit. 1107 1108 (D) If authorized by the administrator, two (2) or more regulated 1109 entities may jointly apply under Section 4 (o) (iii) (C) to be co-permittees under an individual 1110 permit. The administrator=s authorization will be contingent upon the regulated entities 1111 providing adequate justification for the need for an individual permit. 1112 **Section 5. Effluent Permits.** 1113 The following process shall be used in the application for, development of, and issuance 1114 of effluent permits, except for storm water permits which are addressed under Sections 4 and 6 of 1115 these regulations. 1116 1117 Application for individual permits. Completed application forms shall be (a) 1118 submitted to the department for permits for new facilities, modifications to existing permits, and 1119 permit renewals. 1120 1121 Permits for new facilities. The owner or operator of any point source (i) 1122 within the State of Wyoming who proposes to discharge pollution or wastes into surface waters of 1123 the state must file with the administrator a complete application form either (1) no less than 180 days in advance of the date on which it is desired to commence the discharge of pollution or 1124 1125 wastes, unless otherwise approved by the administrator, or (2) in sufficient time prior to any 1126 discharge of pollutants to insure compliance with the requirements of Section 306 of the Federal 1127 Act, or with any applicable zoning or siting requirements established pursuant to Section 208 (b) 1128 (2) (c) of the Federal Act, and any other applicable water quality standards and limitations. In 1129 any event, no person shall commence a discharge without having obtained a permit from the 1130 department, and no permit shall be issued without full compliance by the permittee with all 1131 requirements of these regulations. 1132

Modification of permits. (Refer to Section 12 of these regulations.)

1133

(ii)

1134			
1135	(iii)	Renew	val of permits. (Refer to Section 10 of these regulations.)
1136			
1137	(iv)		eation for individual permits. Application for individual permits
1138	•	•	rided or specified by the administrator. Completed application
1139			department for permits for new facilities, modifications to existing
1140	permits, and permit ren	ewals.	
1141			
1142	(v)		al information requirements. An application form for all new
1143	•		the following information unless the administrator determines
1144	that specific items are u	innecess	sary:
1145			
1146		(A)	Name of company, entity, or individual seeking a permit;
1147		(D)	
1148	1 '0 1' 11	(B)	Identification of the facility name, location, and telephone
1149	number if applicable;		
1150		(0)	MC11 11 14 1 1 C
1151	individual analsina a na	(C)	Mailing address and telephone number of company, entity, or
1152	individual seeking a pe	riiit;	
1153		(D)	Applicant status as fodoval state private public on other entity
1154 1155	and status of applicant	(D)	Applicant status as federal, state, private, public, or other entity
1156	and status of applicant	as owne	r, operator or both,
1157		(E)	Name and signature of responsible person as required by Section
1157	14 of these regulations	` '	Traine and signature of responsible person as required by Section
1159	14 of these regulations.	,	
1160		(F)	Authorization of a duly authorized representative under the
1161	Signatory Requirement	` ,	tion 14 of these rules, where applicable;
1162	Signatory resignation.	.5 01 200	and the states, where approved,
1163		(G)	Names, addresses, and telephone numbers of landowners where
1164	outfalls will be located	` '	erty owner is other than applicant;
1165		, , ,	
1166		(H)	Type and location, expressed in latitude and longitude to the
1167	nearest 15 seconds, of		ity from which discharge will occur;
1168			
1169		(I)	A description of the activities conducted by the applicant which
1170	require it to obtain an V	WYPDE	S permit and where the activity includes treatment facilities
1171	associated with the disc	charge, a	a site diagram of the treatment facilities associated with the
1172	discharge and the outfa	ll location	ons;
1173			
1174		(J)	Up to four (4) SIC codes which best reflect the principal
1175	products or services pro	ovided b	y the facility;
1176			
1177		(K)	Expected quality and quantity (including maximum design
1178	capacity in million gall	ons per	day and, except for POTWs, the average daily flow rate in million

1181 1182	
1183 (L) Description of each treatment process that will be used to	reduce
pollutant concentrations in effluent;	
1185	
1186 (M) Outfall numbers and latitude and longitude of each outfall	l
1187 location to the nearest 15 seconds;	
1188	1
1189 (N) Outfall numbers, the county where each outfall is located	and
legal description of each outfall location to the nearest quarter/quarter of a section;	
1192 (O) Distance from shore and depth below water surface;	
1193 (O) Distance from shore and depth below water surface,	
1194 (P) Whether the discharge will be continuous or periodic. If	the
discharge is to be periodic the following information for each outfall shall be provided:	ilic
1196	
1197 (I) Number of times per year the discharge is to occur	ır.
1198	
1199 (II) Anticipated duration of each discharge.	
1200	
1201 (III) Anticipated flow of each discharge.	
1202	
1203 (IV) Months in which discharge is expected to occur.	
1204	
1205 (Q) Whether any outfall is or will be equipped with a diffuser	and the
type of diffuser used.	
1207	
1208 (R) Outfall number(s) and names of surface waters of the state	e that
would or potentially would directly receive any portion of the discharge for each outfall,	
including where applicable, a description of the tributary system from the outfall location to	to the
1211 main stem;	
1212	
1213 (S) A topographic map extending one mile beyond the proper	•
boundaries of the source, showing the location of the facility, intake structures and associa	tea
outfalls and proposed monitoring and/or compliance points; each of its hazardous waste	1
treatment, storage, or disposal facilities; each well where fluids from the facility are injected underground; and those wells, springs, other surface water bodies, and drinking water well	
in public records or otherwise known by the applicant in the map area.	is fisted
1219 In public records of otherwise known by the applicant in the map area.	
1220 (T) A listing of all active permits or construction approvals re	ceived
1221 or applied for by the applicant for the site under any of the following programs:	, , ,
1222 of applied for by the applicant for the site under any of the following programs.	
1223 (I) Hazardous Waste Management program under the	e
1224 Resource Conservation and Recovery Act.	

1225			
1226		(II)	Underground Injection Control program under the Safe
1227	Drinking Water Act.		
1228	C		
1229		(III)	NPDES program under the CWA.
1230		(11.7)	WWDDEC
1231 1232		(lV)	WYPDES program under these regulations.
		(\mathbf{M})	Draviantian of Significant Datamanation program under
1233 1234	the Clean Air Act.	(V)	Prevention of Significant Deterioration program under
1234	the Clean All Act.		
1235		(Vl)	Non-attainment program under the Clean Air Act.
1237		. ,	1 0
1238		(VII)	National Emission Standards for Hazardous Pollutants
1239	under the Clean Air Act.		
1240			
1241		(VIII)	Section 404 of the CWA.
1242			
1243		(lX)	Impoundments and/or Appropriation of Surface Water
1244	under the State Engineer=s Off		
1245	Ç		
1246		(X)	Reservoirs under the Oil and Gas Conservation
1247	Commission.	, ,	
1248			
1249		(XI)	Other relevant local, state, or federal environmental
1250	permits.	()	
1251	Pormus.		
1252	(U)	Anv ad	lditional information required in accordance with
1253	appendices B through M of thes	-	
1254	appendices B through W or the	se reguie	actions.
1255	(V)	Any of	her information the administrator may request in order to
1256	* *	•	ses of surface waters of the state as a result of the
1257		_	conditions in compliance with regulations adopted
1257		_	to determine whether to issue a WYPDES permit. The
	•		•
1259	•		itional quantitative data and bioassays to assess the
1260		o aquatic	e life and requirements to determine the cause of the
1261	toxicity.		
1262			
1263		_	rement. A permit application and other documents
1264	required to accompany said app	olication	when submitted to the department must be signed and
1265	certified in accordance with the	provisio	ons of Section 14 of these regulations.
1266			
1267	(vii) Record	ls retenti	on. Applicants shall keep records of all data used to
1268	complete permit applications ar	nd any su	applemental information submitted under this section for a
1269	period of three (3) years from the	he date t	he application is signed.
1270	•		

1271 1272	(b) Processing procedures applicable to all individual permit applications.				
	(i) Demaid in the fact of the Wisting 100 days of the married				
1273	(i) Permit issuance or denial determination. Within 180 days of the receipt				
1274	of an application and requested supplemental information, the director shall make a tentative				
1275	determination with respect to the issuance or denial of a permit. If the director, with the advice of				
1276	the administrator, determines that the permit should be issued, then tentative determinations will				
1277	also be made with respect to the following:				
1278					
1279	(A) Proposed effluent limitations, which in the absence of federal				
1280	guidelines adopted pursuant to Section 304 of the CWA, will comply with 40 CFR 125.3 (c) (2)				
1281	and (3);				
1282					
1283	(B) Proposed effluent limitations that will ensure that water quality				
1284	standards promulgated in Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations, Chapter 1 will not be				
1285	violated as a result of the proposed discharge;				
1286					
1287	(C) A proposed schedule of compliance, where appropriate; and				
1288					
1289	(D) Conditions and restrictions in addition to those specified in these				
1290	regulations that are necessary in order for the requirements of the CWA or the Wyoming				
1291	Environmental Quality Act to be upheld.				
1292					
1293	(ii) Completeness review. The administrator shall provide a notice of				
1294	completeness or deficiency within 45 days of receipt of the application. If a notice of				
1295	completeness or deficiency is not issued to the applicant within 45 days of receipt of the				
1296	application, the administrator shall issue a letter of explanation to the applicant which specifies				
1297	the expected date of the completeness determination.				
1298					
1299	(iii) Completeness determination. The director shall not process or issue a				
1300	permit before receiving a complete application for a permit and all requirements of this section				
1301	have been met. An application for a permit is complete when it has been submitted to the				
1302	department, and includes all of the information required in Section 5 (a) (v) and Appendices A				
1303	through M of these regulations and any applicable federal effluent guidelines of 40 CFR Parts				
1304	405 through 411, 413 through 433, 436, 437, 439, 440, 442 through, 447, 454, 455, 457 through				
1305	461, 463 through 469, and 471, such that the administrator deems that adequate information has				
1305	been provided to make a determination in accordance with Section 5 (b) (i). The completeness of				
1307	any application for a permit shall be judged independently of the status of any other permit				
1308	application or permit for the same facility or activity.				
1308	application of permit for the same facility of activity.				
	(iv) Domnit daniel If the director determines that the normit should be				
1310	(iv) Permit denial. If the director determines that the permit should be				
1311	denied, he shall give written notice of this action to the applicant and to the Regional				
1312	Administrator of the EPA within 30 days after making the tentative determination.				
1313					
1314					
1315	(v) Draft permits. For each proposed discharge for which an application				
1316	determined to be complete has been received and for which none of the conditions under which				

1317	permits must be prohibited exist, the administrator shall prepare a draft permit that embodies the
1318	tentative determinations reached relative to Section 5 (b) (i) above. Draft permits shall be
1319	available to the public for inspection, copying and public comment.
1320	
1321	(vi) Public participation and public meetings. The requirements for public
1322	participation and public meetings contained in these regulations shall be complied with for every
1323	permit proposed for issuance by the director.
1324	
1325	(c) Terms and conditions of permits. All issued permits will contain, as a minimum,
1326	authorization for discharge subject to the conditions of the permit, effluent limitations, standards
1327	of performance for any new source, standard conditions, special conditions (when applicable),
1328	monitoring requirements where discharge is allowed, and reporting requirements that comply
1329	with these regulations.
1330	
1331	The permittee shall comply with effluent standards or prohibitions established under
1332	section 307(a) of the CWA for toxic pollutants within the time provided in the regulations that
1333	establish these standards or prohibitions.
1334	establish these standards of promotions.
1335	(i) Standard conditions. All issued permits shall contain standard conditions
1336	consisting of, but not limited to, the following:
1337	consisting of, but not infinited to, the following.
1338	(A) The permittee must comply with all conditions of the permit.
1339	Any noncompliance is a violation of the CWA and the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act and
1340	is grounds for enforcement action; for permit termination, revocation and reissuance, or
1341	modification; or denial of a permit reissuance or extension of authorization.
1342	modification, of definal of a permit reissuance of extension of authorization.
1342	(B) Any planned sewerage system, treatment works, or disposal
1344	system expansions, production increases, process modifications, or new source additions which
1345	will result in a new or increased discharge or the inclusion of additional criteria for a new source
1345	shall be reported by submission of an application or, if such discharge will not violate effluent
1347	limitations specified in the permit, by submission to the administrator of notification of such new
1347	or increased discharge.
	of ficteased discharge.
1349	(C) The discharge of pollution and/on westers into source of
1350	(C) The discharge of pollution and/or wastes into surface waters of
1351	the state more frequently than, or at a level in excess of, that identified and authorized by a permit
1352	shall constitute a violation of the conditions of the permit.
1353	
1354	(D) After notice and opportunity for a hearing, a permit may be
1355	modified, in whole or in part, revoked and reissued, or terminated during its term. The filing of a
1356	request by the permittee for a modification, revocation, reissuance, termination, or notification of
1357	planned changes or anticipated noncompliance does not halt any permit condition. Cause for
1358	such permit actions, includes, but are not limited to, any of the following:
1359	
1360	(I) Violation of any conditions of the permit;
1361	

monitoring and reporting requirements of a permit and Sections 35-11-109 (a) (iv) and 35-11-(a) (vii) Wyoming Statutes. (E) A permit may be modified in whole or in part during its term order to apply any more stringent toxic effluent standard or prohibition, for a toxic substance present in the permittee's discharge, that is promulgated by the Administrator of the EPA. (F) A requirement that the permittee allow the administrator or hi authorized representative upon presentation of his credentials to: (I) Enter the premises where a permittee=s regulated factor activity is located or conducted or where records must be kept under the conditions of the permit; (II) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purpose of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by these rules, the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act or the CWA, any substances or parameters at any location; (III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v.) and (v.) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoid monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extensic	1362	(II) Obtaining a permit by misrepresentations or failure to						
temporary or permanent reduction or elimination of the discharge; and temporary or permanent reduction or elimination of the discharge; and temporary or permanent reduction or elimination of the discharge; and temporary or permanent reduction or elimination of the discharge; and temporary or permanent reduction or elimination of the discharge; and temporary or permanent reduction or elimination of the discharge; and temporary or permanent reduction or elimination of the discharge; and temporary or permanent reduction or elimination of the discharge; and temporary or permanent reduction or elimination of the discharge; and temporary or permanent reduction of the discharge; and temporary or permittee to comply with the monitoring interporation of a permit mode of a permit temporary or permittee=s regulated factory or activity is located or conducted or where records must be kept under the conditions of the permit; (II) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purpor of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by these rules, the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act or the CWA, any substances or parameters at any location; (III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other a	1363	fully disclose all relevant facts;						
temporary or permanent reduction or elimination of the discharge; and (IV) A failure or refusal by the permittee to comply with t monitoring and reporting requirements of a permit and Sections 35-11-109 (a) (iv) and 35-11- (a) (vii) Wyoming Statutes. (E) A permit may be modified in whole or in part during its term order to apply any more stringent toxic effluent standard or prohibition, for a toxic substance present in the permittee's discharge, that is promulgated by the Administrator of the EPA. (F) A requirement that the permittee allow the administrator or hi authorized representative upon presentation of his credentials to: (I) Enter the premises where a permittee=s regulated fac or activity is located or conducted or where records must be kept under the conditions of the permit; (II) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purpor of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by these rules, the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act or the CWA, any substances or parameters at any location; (III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v (vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoi monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply fo and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extensic	1364							
(IV) A failure or refusal by the permittee to comply with t monitoring and reporting requirements of a permit and Sections 35-11-109 (a) (iv) and 35-11-(a) (vii) Wyoming Statutes. (E) A permit may be modified in whole or in part during its term order to apply any more stringent toxic effluent standard or prohibition, for a toxic substance present in the permittee's discharge, that is promulgated by the Administrator of the EPA. (F) A requirement that the permittee allow the administrator or hi authorized representative upon presentation of his credentials to: (I) Enter the premises where a permittee=s regulated fac or activity is located or conducted or where records must be kept under the conditions of the permit; (II) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purpor of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by these rules, the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act or the CWA, any substances or parameters at any location; (III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v. (vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoi monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply fo and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extensic	1365	(III) A change in any condition that requires either a						
(IV) A failure or refusal by the permittee to comply with t monitoring and reporting requirements of a permit and Sections 35-11-109 (a) (iv) and 35-11-(a) (vii) Wyoming Statutes. (E) A permit may be modified in whole or in part during its term order to apply any more stringent toxic effluent standard or prohibition, for a toxic substance present in the permittee's discharge, that is promulgated by the Administrator of the EPA. (F) A requirement that the permittee allow the administrator or hi authorized representative upon presentation of his credentials to: (F) A requirement that the permittee allow the administrator or hi authorized representative upon presentation of his credentials to: (I) Enter the premises where a permittee=s regulated fac or activity is located or conducted or where records must be kept under the conditions of the permit; (II) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purpor of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by these rules, the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act or the CWA, any substances or parameters at any location; (III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v., and (v.	1366	temporary or permanent reduction or elimination of the discharge; and						
monitoring and reporting requirements of a permit and Sections 35-11-109 (a) (iv) and 35-11-(a) (vii) Wyoming Statutes. (E) A permit may be modified in whole or in part during its term order to apply any more stringent toxic effluent standard or prohibition, for a toxic substance present in the permittee's discharge, that is promulgated by the Administrator of the EPA. (F) A requirement that the permittee allow the administrator or hi authorized representative upon presentation of his credentials to: (I) Enter the premises where a permittee=s regulated factor activity is located or conducted or where records must be kept under the conditions of the permit; (II) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purpos of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by these rules, the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act or the CWA, any substances or parameters at any location; (III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v.) and (v.) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator—s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoid monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extensic	1367							
monitoring and reporting requirements of a permit and Sections 35-11-109 (a) (iv) and 35-11-(a) (vii) Wyoming Statutes. (E) A permit may be modified in whole or in part during its term order to apply any more stringent toxic effluent standard or prohibition, for a toxic substance present in the permittee's discharge, that is promulgated by the Administrator of the EPA. (F) A requirement that the permittee allow the administrator or hi authorized representative upon presentation of his credentials to: (I) Enter the premises where a permittee=s regulated factor activity is located or conducted or where records must be kept under the conditions of the permit; (II) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purpos of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by these rules, the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act or the CWA, any substances or parameters at any location; (III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v.) and (v.) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator—s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoid monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extensic	1368	(IV) A failure or refusal by the permittee to comply with the						
(a) (vii) Wyoming Statutes. (E) A permit may be modified in whole or in part during its term order to apply any more stringent toxic effluent standard or prohibition, for a toxic substance present in the permittee's discharge, that is promulgated by the Administrator of the EPA. (F) A requirement that the permittee allow the administrator or hi authorized representative upon presentation of his credentials to: (I) Enter the premises where a permittee=s regulated fac or activity is located or conducted or where records must be kept under the conditions of the permit; (II) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purpose of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by these rules, the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act or the CWA, any substances or parameters at any location; (III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v.) and (v.) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoid monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extensic	1369							
(E) A permit may be modified in whole or in part during its term order to apply any more stringent toxic effluent standard or prohibition, for a toxic substance present in the permittee's discharge, that is promulgated by the Administrator of the EPA. (F) A requirement that the permittee allow the administrator or his authorized representative upon presentation of his credentials to: (I) Enter the premises where a permittee=s regulated factor activity is located or conducted or where records must be kept under the conditions of the permit; (II) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purpose of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by these rules, the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act or the CWA, any substances or parameters at any location; (III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v (vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoi monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply fo and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extensic	1370							
(E) A permit may be modified in whole or in part during its term order to apply any more stringent toxic effluent standard or prohibition, for a toxic substance present in the permittee's discharge, that is promulgated by the Administrator of the EPA. (F) A requirement that the permittee allow the administrator or his authorized representative upon presentation of his credentials to: (I) Enter the premises where a permittee=s regulated factor activity is located or conducted or where records must be kept under the conditions of the permit; (II) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purpose of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by these rules, the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act or the CWA, any substances or parameters at any location; (III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v (vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoi monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply fo and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extensic								
order to apply any more stringent toxic effluent standard or prohibition, for a toxic substance present in the permittee's discharge, that is promulgated by the Administrator of the EPA. (F) A requirement that the permittee allow the administrator or his authorized representative upon presentation of his credentials to: (I) Enter the premises where a permittee=s regulated factor activity is located or conducted or where records must be kept under the conditions of the permit; (II) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purpose of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by these rules, the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act or the CWA, any substances or parameters at any location; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v) (vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoir monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extensic		(E) A permit may be modified in whole or in part during its term in						
present in the permittee's discharge, that is promulgated by the Administrator of the EPA. (F) A requirement that the permittee allow the administrator or his authorized representative upon presentation of his credentials to: (I) Enter the premises where a permittee=s regulated factor activity is located or conducted or where records must be kept under the conditions of the permit; (II) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purpose of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by these rules, the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act or the CWA, any substances or parameters at any location; (III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v (vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoi monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply fo and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extensic								
(F) A requirement that the permittee allow the administrator or hi authorized representative upon presentation of his credentials to: (I) Enter the premises where a permittee=s regulated fac or activity is located or conducted or where records must be kept under the conditions of the permit; (II) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purpor of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by these rules, the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act or the CWA, any substances or parameters at any location; (III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v (vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoir monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extensic								
authorized representative upon presentation of his credentials to: (I) Enter the premises where a permittee=s regulated factor activity is located or conducted or where records must be kept under the conditions of the permit; (II) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purpose of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by these rules, the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act or the CWA, any substances or parameters at any location; (III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v (vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoir monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension								
authorized representative upon presentation of his credentials to: (I) Enter the premises where a permittee=s regulated factor activity is located or conducted or where records must be kept under the conditions of the permit; (II) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purpose of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by these rules, the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act or the CWA, any substances or parameters at any location; (III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v (vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoir monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension		(F) A requirement that the permittee allow the administrator or his						
(I) Enter the premises where a permittee=s regulated factor activity is located or conducted or where records must be kept under the conditions of the permit; (II) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purpor of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by these rules, the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act or the CWA, any substances or parameters at any location; (III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v (vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoi monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension		1						
(I) Enter the premises where a permittee=s regulated factor activity is located or conducted or where records must be kept under the conditions of the permit; (II) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purpor of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by these rules, the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act or the CWA, any substances or parameters at any location; (III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v (vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoi monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension								
or activity is located or conducted or where records must be kept under the conditions of the permit; (II) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purpose of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by these rules, the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act or the CWA, any substances or parameters at any location; (III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v (vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoi monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension		(I) Enter the premises where a permittee=s regulated facility						
permit; (II) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purpose of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by these rules, the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act or the CWA, any substances or parameters at any location; (III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v (vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoi monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension	1380							
(II) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purpose of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by these rules, the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act or the CWA, any substances or parameters at any location; (III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v (vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoi monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension								
of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by these rules, the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act or the CWA, any substances or parameters at any location; (III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v (vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoir monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension								
of assuring permit compliance or as otherwise authorized by these rules, the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act or the CWA, any substances or parameters at any location; (III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v (vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoi monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension		(II) Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purposes						
Environmental Quality Act or the CWA, any substances or parameters at any location; (III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v (vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoi monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension	1384							
(III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v (vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoi monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension	1385	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •						
records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoi monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension	1386							
records required by the permit to be kept; (IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoi monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension	1387	(III) Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any						
(IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (volume) (vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator—s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoi monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension	1388	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •						
(including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (volume in the permit in the permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoin monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension	1389							
(including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required under the permit; and (V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (volume 1395 (vi)) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoi monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension	1390	(IV) Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment						
(V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoi monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension	1391	(including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated or required						
(V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoi monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension	1392	under the permit; and						
(vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations. (G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoi monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension	1393							
(G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoi monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension	1394	(V) Take any other action authorized by 35-11-109 (a) (v),						
(G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoint monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension	1395	(vi) and (vii) Wyoming Statutes, or these regulations.						
administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoin monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension	1396							
associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoing monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension	1397	(G) A requirement that, if requested by the administrator or the						
monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of discharge. (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension	1398	administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to physical locations						
discharge. 1402 1403 1404 (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension	1399	associated with this permit including, but not limited to, well heads, discharge points, reservoirs,						
1402 1403 1404 (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an 1405 activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for 1406 and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension	1400	monitoring locations, and any waters of the state associated with the permit at the point of						
1403 1404 (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an 1405 activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for 1406 and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension	1401	discharge.						
1404 (H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply fo and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension	1402							
activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension	1403							
activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension	1404	(H) A requirement that, if the permittee wishes to continue an						
and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension	1405	activity regulated by a permit after the expiration date of the perit, the permittee must apply for						
	1406	and obtain a new permit in accordance with Section 10 of these regulations, unless an extension is						
6	1407	granted under Section 11 of these regulations.						

1408						
1409	(I)	It is no	ot a defense for a permittee in an enforcement action that it			
1410	would have been necessary to	halt or re	educe the permitted activity in order to maintain			
1411	compliance with the conditions		- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
1412	•	•				
1413	(J)	The p	ermittee shall take all reasonable steps to minimize or			
1414	prevent any discharge in violat	_	nis permit which has a reasonable likelihood of adversely			
1415	affecting human health or the		- ·			
1416	<u> </u>					
1417	(K)	The p	ermit does not convey any property rights of any sort, or			
1418	any exclusive privilege.	•				
1419	, ,					
1420	(L)	A requ	uirement that the permittee shall furnish to the			
1421	administrator, within a reasona	_	e, any information which the administrator or his authorized			
1422			e whether cause exists for modifying, revoking and			
1423			to determine compliance with the permit.			
1424						
1425	(M)	A requ	uirement that the permittee shall furnish to the			
1426	administrator or his authorized	_	ntative, copies of records required to be kept by the permit.			
1427		1				
1428	(N)	The p	ermittee must properly operate and maintain all equipment			
1429		_	mittee to achieve compliance with the terms of the permit.			
1430	•	_	e laboratory controls and quality assurance procedures,			
1431	where applicable. Backup systems are required when needed to ensure compliance. However,					
1432			must be operated as a minimum.			
1433	1		1			
1434	(O)	To ass	sure compliance with permit limitations, the permittee shall			
1435	monitor:		1 1			
1436						
1437		(I)	The mass (or other measurement specified in the permit)			
1438	for each pollutant limited in the	` '				
1439	r					
1440		(II)	The volume of effluent discharged from each outfall.			
1441		()	e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e			
1442	(P)	Samp	les and measurements taken for the purpose of monitoring			
1443		•	d activity. Records must be retained for three (3) years			
1444						
1445	following:					
1446						
1447		(I)	The date, location, and time of the sampling;			
1448		(-)				
1449						
1450		(II)	The dates and by whom analyses were performed;			
1451		()	and of mon analyses were performed;			
1452		(III)	Analytical techniques used;			
1453		()	🗸			

1454	(IV) The results of such analyses;					
1455						
1456	(V) Name of the person collecting the sample(s);					
1457						
1458	(VI) Sampling handling and preservation conducted; and					
1459						
1460	(VII) Detection limits for analyses conducted.					
1461						
1462	Wastewater measurements must be conducted in accordance with methods and					
1463	procedures prescribed in 40 CFR Part 136 or other specified procedures.					
1464						
1465	(Q) Pollutants for which the permittee must report violations of daily					
1466	maximum discharge limitations under Section 5 (c) (i) (W) (24-hour reporting) shall be listed in					
1467	the permit. This list shall include any toxic pollutant or hazardous substance, or any pollutant					
1468	specifically identified as the method to monitor a toxic pollutant or hazardous substance.					
1469						
1470	(R) Applications, reports, or information submitted to the					
1471	administrator must be signed and certified. Knowingly making false statements, representations,					
1472	or certifications is a violation of the permit, Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations					
1473	Chapter 2 and the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act and is subject to enforcement.					
1474						
1475	(S) The permittee shall give advance notification to the administrator					
1476	of any planned changes in the permitted facility or activity which may result in noncompliance					
1477	with permit requirements.					
1478						
1479	(T) The permit is not transferrable except after written notification is					
1480	provided to the administrator and such request is approved by the administrator. The					
1481	administrator may require modification, or revocation and reissuance, as necessary.					
1482						
1483	(U) Monitoring reports must be submitted on a discharge monitoring					
1484	report form provided by the department or on a form with an identical format as the form					
1485	provided by the department, with prior approval by the administrator. Monitoring results shall be					
1486	reported to the department at the intervals specified in the permit. If monitoring is conducted at a					
1487	frequency greater than that required by the permit, the results of the additional monitoring must					
1488	be reported. In reporting effluent limits based on average concentrations, the permittee must					
1489	report the results using an arithmetic mean, except for fecal coliform. Average results for fecal					
1490	coliform monitoring shall be reported as a geometric mean.					
1491	(V) Deporting of compliance or noncompliance with an eiffed dates					
1492	(V) Reporting of compliance or noncompliance with specified dates					
1493	contained in a compliance schedule of the permit shall be submitted to the administrator no later					
1494	than 14 days following each scheduled date.					
1495 1406	(W) For any noncompliance which may and organ human health an					
1496 1497	(W) For any noncompliance which may endanger human health or the environment, an oral notification must be made by the permittee to the administrator within					
1497 1498	24-hours of the permittee becoming aware of the noncompliance. Within five (5) days, the					
1498 1499	permittee must provide a written notification of the noncompliance which describes the					
1 サフブ	permittee must provide a written nourieation of the noncompliance which describes the					

noncompliance and its cause; the period and duration of noncompliance including exact dates and times; and, if the noncompliance has not been corrected, the anticipated time it is expected to continue and steps planned or taken to reduce, eliminate, and prevent recurrences of the noncompliance. Circumstances that must be reported within 24-hours of becoming aware of the noncompliance include, but are not limited to, any unanticipated bypass or upset which exceeds any effluent limit in the permit; or violation of a daily maximum discharge limitation for any of the pollutants listed by the administrator in the permit to be reported within 24-hours of becoming aware of the noncompliance.

(X) For noncompliance other than as reported in (S),(V), and (W) above, the permittee shall report all instances at the time monitoring reports are submitted. The reports shall contain the information listed in (W) above.

(Y) Where the permittee becomes aware that it failed to submit any relevant facts in a permit application, or submitted incorrect information in a permit application or in any report to the administrator, it shall promptly submit such facts or information.

cause effluent limitations to be exceeded, but only if it is for essential maintenance to assure efficient operation. If the permittee knows in advance of the need for a bypass, it shall submit prior notification, if possible at least ten (10) days before the date of the bypass. If an unanticipated bypass occurs, notice shall be provided in accordance with (W) above. Bypass is prohibited except in instances where it is necessary to prevent loss of life, personal injury or severe property damage; or where there are no feasible alternatives to bypass, such as the use of auxiliary treatment facilities, retention of untreated wastes, or maintenance during normal periods of equipment downtime. The condition of no feasible alternative is not satisfied if adequate back-up equipment should have been installed in the exercise of reasonable engineering judgement to prevent a bypass which occurred during normal periods of equipment downtime or preventive maintenance. The administrator may approve an anticipated bypass, after receiving notification, if the conditions for the allowance of bypass as described in this paragraph have been met.

(AA) An upset constitutes an affirmative defense to an action brought for noncompliance with technology based permit effluent limitations if the permittee can demonstrate that: an upset occurred and that the permittee can identify the cause(s) of the upset; the permitted facility was, at the time of the upset, being properly operated; the permittee submitted notice of the upset as required in (W) above; In any enforcement proceeding, the permittee seeking to establish the occurrence of an upset has the burden of proof.

(BB) A reopener clause which states that additional or more stringent permit requirements may be imposed, after following the procedures outlined in this regulation for permit modifications, if any of the following conditions is found to be present:

(I) The water quality standards of the receiving water(s) to which the permittee discharges are modified in such a manner as to require effluent limits different than those contained in the permit;

1546	
1547	(II) A TMDL or watershed management plan is developed
1548	and approved by the department which calls for different effluent limitations than those contained
1549	in the permit;
1550	
1551	(III) A TMDL or watershed management plan is revised and
1552	approved by the department which calls for different effluent limitations than those contained in
1553	the permit;
1554	
1555	(IV) The use(s) of the receiving surface water of the state is
1556	impaired and the permitted facility is contributing to the impairment;
1557	
1558	(V) Water quality standards in the receiving surface waters
1559	of the state are no longer achieved as a result of the discharge and the effluent limitations
1560	established by the permit are being met;
1561	
1562	(VI) The effluent limitations in the permit do not address a
1563	pollutant that has the potential to cause or contribute to a violation of a water quality standard;
1564	
1565	(VII) Applicable technology based effluent limits are
1566	promulgated which are more stringent than those imposed by the permit; or
1567	
1568	(VIII) An interstate compact or agreement on potential
1569	receiving waters is established.
1570	
1571	(CC) A reopener provision for toxicity limitations which states that
1572	additional or more stringent permit requirements, a new compliance schedule, revisions to
1573	compliance dates set forth in the permit, changes to the whole effluent toxicity protocol, or any
1574	other conditions related to the control of toxicants may be imposed, following the procedures
1575	outlined in this regulation for permit modifications, if one or more of the following events occurs:
1576	
1577	(I) Effluent toxicity was detected late in the life of the
1578	permit near or past the deadline for compliance;
1579	
1580	(II) The results of a toxicity reduction evaluation indicate
1581	that compliance with the toxic limitations contained in the permit will require an implementation
1582	schedule past the date for compliance and the department agrees with the conclusion;
1583	
1584	(III) The results of a toxicity reduction evaluation indicate
1585	that the toxicant(s) represent pollutant(s) that may be controlled with specific numeric effluent
1586	limitations and the department agrees that numeric controls are the most appropriate approach to
1587	controlling toxicity;
1588	
1589	(IV) Following the implementation of numeric controls for a
1590	toxicant, the department agrees that a modified whole effluent toxicity protocol is necessary to
1591	compensate for those toxicants that are controlled numerically;
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

1592	
1593	(V) Other conditions or characteristics are identified through
1594	a toxicity reduction evaluation which justifies the incorporation of special conditions in the
1595	permit to address effluent toxicity.
1596	
1597	(DD) For permits which do not require the submittal of monitoring
1598	result reports at least annually, the permittee shall report all instances of non-compliance not
1599	reported under the Section 5 (c) (i) (B), (P), (U), (V) or (W) at least annually.
1600	
1601	(ii) Special conditions. In addition to conditions required in all permits, the
1602	administrator shall establish conditions, as required on a case-by-case basis, to provide for and
1603	assure compliance with all applicable requirements of the CWA, the Wyoming Environmental
1604	Quality Act, and applicable Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations which have taken
1605	effect prior to final administrative disposition of the permit. Such conditions may include but are
1606	not limited to the following.
1607	
1608	(A) Toxic effluent standards which, as a minimum, comply with
1609	those established under the CWA and may be modified in accordance with Section 5 (c) (i) (E),
1610	(BB) and (CC) and Section 12.
1611	
1612	(B) Additional limitation(s) that may be required in order for the
1613	permittee to meet state water quality and treatment standards, implement TMDL requirements,
1614	achieve compliance with a plan approved pursuant to Section 208 (b) of the CWA, or attain or
1615	maintain a specified water quality through water quality related effluent limits established under
1616	Section 302 of the CWA.
1617	
1618	(C) Any other requirements, including but not limited to monitoring
1619	points of compliance, water quality monitoring stations, flow monitoring stations and irrigation
1620	compliance points, that the administrator determines are necessary to carry out the provisions of
1621	W.S. 35-11-302 et seq. and to insure that water quality standards are met and waste load
1622	allocations prepared when required by the CWA.
1623	
1624	(D) Where a compliance schedule is required in order to achieve any
1625	of the conditions described in Section 5 (c) (ii) (A), (B), or (C) above or to achieve compliance
1626	with an effluent limitation established as set forth in Section 5 (c) (iii), the following specific
1627	requirements will be met.
1628	
1629	(I) Such schedule will, as a minimum, conform to any
1630	legally applicable schedule contained in any applicable effluent standard or water quality standard
1631	promulgated under federal or state authority. In the absence of any such legally applicable
1632	schedule, the administrator and permittee shall comply in the shortest reasonable period of time.
1633	
1634	(II) In any case where the period of time for compliance
1635	exceeds nine (9) months, the schedule of compliance specified in the permit will set forth interim
1636	requirements and the dates for their achievement. In no event shall more than nine (9) months

1637 1638	elapse between interim dates. To the extent practicable, the interim and final dates shall fall on the last day of the months of March, June, September, and December.
1639	
1640	(III) The permittee will provide the administrator with written
1641	notice of the permittee's compliance or non-compliance with each interim and final date either
1642	before, or within 14 days after, such compliance date is reached.
1643	
1644	(IV) If the permittee fails or refuses to comply with an
1645	interim or final requirement in a permit, such non-compliance shall constitute a violation of the
1646	permit, and the administrator may modify, or revoke the permit to take direct enforcement action.
1647	
1648	
1649	(V) Upon request of the permittee, the administrator may
1650	revise or modify a schedule of compliance for good and valid cause (such as an act of God, strike,
1651	flood, material shortage, or other event over which the permittee has little or no control).
1652	
1653	(VI) On the last day of the month of February, May, August
1654	and November, the administrator shall transmit to the Regional Administrator of the EPA, a list
1655	of all instances, as of 30 days prior to the date of such report, of failure or refusal of a permittee to
1656	comply with an interim or final compliance requirement. Such list shall be available to the public
1657	for inspection and copying and include:
1658	(1) The name and address of non-complaint
1659	(1.) The name and address of non-complying
1660 1661	permittee;
1662	(2.) A short description of each instance of non-
1663	(2.) A short description of each instance of non-compliance;
1664	compnance,
1665	(3.) Short description of any action proposed by the
1666	permittee or the administrator to achieve compliance; and
1667	permittee of the administrator to achieve comphance, and
1668	(4.) Any details that tend to explain or mitigate the
1669	non-compliance.
1670	non-compitance.
1671	(E) Alternative schedules of compliance. A WYPDES permit
1672	applicant or permittee may cease conducting regulated activities (by terminating direct discharge
1673	for WYPDES sources) rather than continuing to operate and meet permit requirements as follows:
1674	101 W 11 DES sources, runter than continuing to operate and meet permit requirements as ronows.
1675	(I) If the permittee decides to cease conducting regulated
1676	activities at a given time within the term of a permit which has already been issued:
1677	aca races at a given time within the term of a permit which has already been issued.
1678	(1.) The permit may be modified to contain a new or
1679	additional schedule leading to timely cessation of activities; or
1680	additional sense reading to unless session of doublides, of
1000	

1681 1682 1683	(2.) The permittee shall cease conducting permitted activities before non-compliance with any interim or final compliance schedule requirement already specified in the permit.
1684	
1685 1686 1687 1688	(II) If the decision to cease conducting regulated activities is made before issuance of a permit whose term will include the termination date, the permit shall contain a schedule leading to termination which will ensure timely compliance with applicable requirements no later than the statutory deadline.
1689	
1690	(III) If the permittee is undecided whether to cease
1691	conducting regulated activities, the director may issue or modify a permit to contain two
1692	schedules as follows:
1693	
1694	(1.) Both schedules shall contain an identical interim
1695	deadline requiring a final decision on whether to cease conducting regulated activities no later
1696	than a date which ensures sufficient time to comply with applicable requirements in a timely
1697	manner if the decision is to continue conducting regulated activities;
1698	
1699	(2.) One schedule shall lead to timely compliance
1700	with applicable requirements, no later than the statutory deadline;
1701	
1702	(3.) The second schedule shall lead to cessation of
1703	regulated activities by a date which will ensure timely compliance with applicable requirements
1704	no later than the statutory deadline.
1705	
1706	(4.) Each permit containing two schedules shall
1707	include a requirement that after the permittee has made a final decision under Section 5 (c) (ii)
1708	(E) (III) the permittee shall follow the schedule leading to compliance if the decision is to
1709	continue conducting regulated activities, and follow the schedule leading to termination if the
1710	decision is to cease conducting regulated activities.
1711	
1712	(F) Best management practices. Best management practices to
1713	control or abate the discharge of pollutants when:
1714	
1715	(I) Authorized under Section 304 (e) of the CWA for the
1716	control of toxic pollutants and hazardous substances from ancillary industrial activities;
1717	
1718	(II) Numeric effluent limitations are infeasible; or
1719	
1720	(III) The practices are reasonably necessary to achieve
1721	effluent limitations and standards or to carry out the purposes and intent of these regulations.
1722	
1723	(G) Grants. Any conditions imposed in federal grants to POTWs
1724	under Sections 201 and 204 of the CWA which are reasonably necessary for the achievement of
1725	effluent limitations required in accordance with these regulations.
1726	

1727	(iii) Effluent	limita	tions. E	Effluent limitations shall be determined for all
1728	permits based on the following c	onside	rations.	
1729				
1730	(A)	Techn	ology-ba	ased effluent limitations. Technology-based
1731	effluent limits shall be determine	ed in ac	ccordanc	ce with 40 CFR 122.44 (a), 40 CFR 122.50, 40
1732	CFR 125, Subpart A, I and J and	, for ca	ategorica	al industries adopted by EPA, 40 CFR Parts 405
1733	through 411, 413 through 433, 43	36, 43	7, 439, 4	440, 442 through, 447, 454, 455, 457 through 461,
1734	463 through 469, and 471.			
1735				
1736	(B)	In add	ition to t	the technology-based effluent limitations described
1737	in Section 5 (c) (iii) (A), technological	ogy-ba	sed efflu	uent limits shall be determined as follows:
1738				
1739		(I)	For dis	scharges from new and existing POTWs as
1740	described in Appendix E.			
1741				
1742		(II)	For C	AFO point sources as described in Appendix G.
1743				
1744		(III)	For dis	scharges from oil and gas production facilities as
1745	described in Appendix H.			
1746				
1747		(IV)	For dis	scharges from coal mines as described in
1748	Appendix J.			
1749				
1750		(V)	For dis	scharges containing toxic pollutants as described
1751	in Appendix N.			
1752				
1753	(C)	Water	quality	based effluent limitations. For facilities where
1754	discharge to surface waters of the	e state	is not pr	rohibited subject to the provisions of technology
1755	based effluent limitations as dete	rmine	d in Sect	tion 5 (c) (iii) (A) and (B), water quality-based
1756	effluent limits shall be determine	ed whe	n require	ements in addition to, or more stringent, than
1757	technology based effluent limitat	tions a	re neces	sary to ensure that violations of water quality
1758	standards do not occur. Such eff	luent l	imitatio	ns shall be determined based on standards adopted
1759	pursuant to Wyoming Water Qua	ality R	ules and	Regulations, Chapter 1 and the applicable
1760	provisions of Wyoming Water Q			
1761				
1762		(I)	Water	quality based effluent limitations shall be
1763	established for constituents in dis	scharge		mined to have a reasonable potential of adversely
1764		_		of causing violations of water quality standards.
1765				ons, the administrator shall consider the following:
1766				,
1767			(1.)	Existing controls on point and non-point sources
1768	of pollution;		` /	
1769	*			
1770			(2.)	The variability of the pollutant or pollutant
1771	parameter in the effluent;		` /	
1772	•			

1773	3 (3.)	For evaluating whole effluent toxicity, the
1774	sensitivity of the species to toxicity testing; and	-
1775	5	
1776	(4.)	Where appropriate, the dilution of the effluent in
1777	the receiving water.	
1778	3	
1779	(5.)	Applicable designated uses and water quality
1780		
1781	[
1782	2 (II) Where i	numeric criteria are promulgated for the receiving
1783		
1784	standard appropriate to the receiving surface wat	ters of the state, water quality based effluent
1785		- · ·
1786	Ó	
1787	(1.)	Effluent limitations described in Section 5 (c)
1788	3 (iii) (C) (II) (2.) and (3.) shall be established only	y after having taken into account the following
1789	•	•
1790		
1791		a. Mixing zones; and
1792	2	
1793	3	b. Antidegradation
1794	1	·
1795	5 (2.)	Where loading limitations can be instituted on
1796	the receiving surface waters of the state through	——————————————————————————————————————
1797	volumes and concentrations for discharges to the	e receiving surface waters of the state, effluent
1798	limitations shall be determined based on mass ba	alance calculations where dilution by water in the
1799	receiving surface waters of the state is considere	d.
1800)	
1801	(3.)	Where the administrator determines that it is
1802	2 impractical to establish limitations on effluent vo	olumes for discharges to receiving surface waters
1803	of the state, concentration-based effluent limitati	ons shall be established. In no case shall a
1804	concentration-based effluent limitation be establ	ished which exceeds the most stringent of the
1805	numeric water quality standards established to pr	rotect the designated uses of the receiving surface
1806	waters of the state.	
1807	7	
1808	3 (III) Where a	an evaluation for reasonable potential indicates
1809	limitations based on narrative water quality stand	dards promulgated under Wyoming Water
1810	Quality Rules and Regulations, Chapter 1, efflue	ent limitations addressing the limitations of the
1811		
1812	2	
1813	(IV) Where	the administrator determines that an effluent
1814	constituent has the reasonable potential to advers	sely impact a designated use of receiving surface
1815		
1816		
1817		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
1818		

1819	(D) In the case of POTWs, permit effluent limitations, standards, or						
1820	prohibitions shall be calculated based on design flow.						
1821							
1822	(E) Except in the case of POTWs or as provided in Section 5 (c) (i)						
1823	(E), calculation of any permit limitations, standards, or prohibitions which are based on						
1824	production (or other measure of operation) shall be based not upon the designed production						
1825	capacity but rather upon a reasonable measure of actual production of the facility. For new						
1826	sources or new dischargers, actual production shall be estimated using projected production. The						
1827	time period of the measure of production shall correspond to the time period of the calculated						
1828	permit limitations; for example, monthly production shall be used to calculate average monthly						
1829	discharge limitations.						
1830							
1831							
1832	(F) All permit effluent limitations, standards, or prohibitions for a						
1833	metal shall be expressed in terms of "total recoverable metal" as defined in 40 CFR Part 136						
1834	unless;						
1835							
1836	(I) The applicable water quality standard described in						
1837	Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations, Chapter 1 is based on the dissolved form;						
1838							
1839	(II) An applicable effluent standard or limitation has been						
1840	promulgated under these regulations and specifies the limitation for the metal in the dissolved or						
1841	valenti or total form;						
1842							
1843	(III) In establishing permit limitations on a case-by-case basis						
1844	under Section 5 (c) (iii) of these regulations it is necessary to express the limitation on the metal						
1845	in the dissolved or valenti or total form to carry out the provisions of these regulations; or						
1846							
1847	(IV) All approved analytical methods for the metal inherently						
1848	measure only its dissolved form (e.g., hexavalent chromium).						
1849							
1850	(G) For continuous discharges (discharges that occur without						
1851	interruption throughout the operating hours of the facility, except for infrequent shutdowns for						
1852	maintenance, process changes, or other similar activities) all permit effluent limitations,						
1853	standards, and prohibitions, including those necessary to achieve water quality standards, shall						
1854	unless impracticable be stated as:						
1855	•						
1856	(I) Daily maximum and average monthly discharge						
1857	limitations for all dischargers other than POTWs; and						
1858							
1859	(II) Average weekly and average monthly discharge						
1860	limitations for POTWs.						
1861							
1862	(H) Discharges which are not continuous shall be particularly						
1863	described and limited, considering the following factors as appropriate:						
1864							

1865	(I) Frequency (for example, a batch discharge shall not
1866	occur more than once every three (3) weeks);
1867	
1868	(II) Total mass (for example, not to exceed 100 kilograms of
1869	zinc and 200 kilograms of chromium per batch discharge);
1870	
1871	(III) Maximum rate of discharge of pollutants during the
1872	discharge (for example, not to exceed two (2) kilograms of zinc per minute); and
1873	
1874	
1875	(IV) Prohibition or limitation of specified pollutants by mass,
1876	concentration or other appropriate measure (for example, shall not contain at any time more than
1877	0.1 mg/l zinc or more than 250 grams (1/4 kilogram) of zinc in any discharge).
1878	
1879	(I) Mass limitations.
1880	
1881	(I) All pollutants limited in permits shall have limitations,
1882	standards or prohibitions expressed in terms of mass except:
1883	
1884	(1.) For pH, temperature, radiation, or other
1885	pollutants which cannot appropriately be expressed by mass;
1886	
1887	(2.) When applicable standards and limitations are
1888	expressed in terms of other units of measurement; or
1889	
1890	(3.) If an applicable effluent standard or limitation
1891	has been promulgated under these regulations and limitations expressed in terms of mass are
1892	infeasible because the mass of the pollutant discharged cannot be related to a measure of
1893	operation (for example, discharges of total suspended solids [TSS] from certain mining
1894	operations), and permit conditions ensure that dilution will not be used as a substitute for
1895	treatment.
1896	
1897	(II) Pollutants limited in terms of mass additionally may be
1898	limited in terms of other units of measurement, and the permit shall require the permittee to
1899	comply with both limitations.
1900	
1901	(J) Pollutants in intake water.
1902	
1903	(I) Credit shall be granted only if the discharger
1904	demonstrates that the intake water is drawn from the same body of water into which the discharge
1905	is made.
1906	
1907	(II) Upon request of the discharger, technology-based
1908	effluent limitations or standards shall be adjusted to reflect credit for pollutants in the
1909	discharger=s intake water if:
1910	

1911 1912	(1.) The applicable effluent limitations and standards contained in Section 5 (c) (iii) of these regulations provide that they shall be applied on a net
1913	basis; or
1914	
1915 1916	(2.) The discharger demonstrates that the control system it proposes or uses to meet applicable technology-based limitations and standards would,
1917 1918	if properly installed and operated, meet the limitations and standards in the absence of pollutants in the intake waters.
1919	
1920	(III) Credit for generic pollutants such as biochemical oxygen
1921	demand (BOD5) or TSS shall not be granted unless the permittee demonstrates that the
1922	constituents of the generic measure in the effluent are substantially similar to the constituents of
1923	the generic measure in the intake water or unless appropriate additional limits are placed on
1924	process wastewater pollutants either at the outfall or elsewhere.
1925	
1926	(IV) Credit shall be granted only to the extent necessary to
1927	meet the applicable limitation or standard, up to a maximum value equal to the influent value.
1928	Additional monitoring may be necessary to determine eligibility for credits and compliance with
1929	permit limits.
1930	
1931	(K) Internal waste streams.
1932	
1933	(I) When permit effluent limitations or standards imposed at
1934	the point of discharge are impractical or infeasible, effluent limitations or standards for discharges
1935	or pollutants may be imposed on internal waste streams before mixing with other waste streams
1936	or cooling water streams. In those instances, the monitoring required by Section 5 (c) or other
1937	applicable provisions of these regulations shall also be applied to the internal waste streams.
1938	
1939	(II) Limits on internal waste streams will be imposed only
1940	when the fact sheet sets forth the exceptional circumstances which make such limitations
1941	necessary, such as when the final discharge point is inaccessible (for example, under ten [10]
1942	meters of water), the wastes at the point of discharge are so diluted as to make monitoring
1943	impracticable, or the interferences among pollutants at the point of discharge would make
1944	detection or analysis impracticable.
1945	
1946	(L) After making the considerations described in Section 5 (c) (iii)
1947	(A), (B) and (C), the administrator shall establish in the draft permit the most stringent of the
1948	effluent limitations of those derived.
1949	
1950	(M) Effluent limitations cannot be incorporated into modified or
1951	reissued permits which violate anti-backsliding provisions of Section 402 (o) of the CWA.
1952	
1953	(N) If any applicable toxic effluent standard or prohibition (including
1954	any schedule of compliance specified in such effluent standard or prohibition) is promulgated
1955 1956	under W.S.35-11-302 or Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations, Chapters 1 and 2 for a toxic pollutant and that standard or prohibition is more stringent than any limitation on the
	- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

1957	pollutant in the permit, the director shall institute proceedings under these regulations to modify			
1958	or revoke and reissue the permit to conform to the toxic effluent standard or prohibition.			
1959				
1960	(O) When the department determines, using the procedures in			
1961	Section 5 (c) (iii) (C) (I) and (II), that a discharge causes, has the reasonable potential to cause, or			
1962	contributes to an in-stream excursion above the numeric standard for whole effluent toxicity, if			
1963	any such criterion has been adopted, the permit must contain effluent limits for whole effluent			
1964	toxicity.			
1965				
1966	(P) Except as provided in this subparagraph, when the department			
1967	determines, using the procedures in Section 5 (c) (iii) (C), toxicity testing data, or other			
1968	information, that a discharge causes, has the reasonable potential to cause, or contributes to an in-			
1969	stream violation of a narrative water quality standard, the permit shall contain limitations, which			
1970	include effluent limits, for whole effluent toxicity. Such limitations are to be derived by the			
1971	department and based upon the department=s determination of what constitutes an acceptable			
1972	level of whole effluent toxicity. Limits on whole effluent toxicity are not necessary where the			
1973	department determines, using the procedures in Section 5 (c) (iii) (C), that chemical-specific			
1974	limits for the effluent are sufficient to attain and maintain applicable numeric and narrative water			
1975	quality standards.			
1976				
1977	(Q) Unless otherwise stated in the permit, effluent limitations shall			
1978	be met at the outfall from the final treatment unit prior to admixture with water in the receiving			
1979	surface waters of the state or with effluent from other outfalls.			
1980				
1981	(iv) Application of standards.			
1982				
1983	(A) In the application of those standards described in Section 5 (c)			
1984	(ii) (B) and (C), and Section 5 (c) (iii), the administrator shall specify:			
1985				
1986	(I) The daily average and maximum quantitative limitations			
1987	for the level of allowable pollution and/or waste in an authorized discharge in terms of weight,			
1988	where applicable;			
1989				
1990	(II) The basis for calculation of effluent limitations;			
1991				
1992	(III) Self-monitoring, reporting, and recording requirements			
1993	for each authorized discharge as promulgated in Section 5 (c) (v).			
1994				
1995	(B) The owner of a publicly owned treatment works shall require any			
1996	industrial user of such works to comply with the following:			
1997				
1998	(I) Any system of user charges instituted by the owner			
1999	(permittee) shall insure that each recipient of waste treatment services will pay its proportionate			
2000	share of the costs of the operation and maintenance of the publicly owned treatment works;			
2001				

2002	(II)	Any t	toxic or pretreatment standards established under
2003	Sections 5 (c) (ii) (A) and 5 (c) (iii)	(O) and (P) of these regulations and any schedule required to
2004	achieve compliance with those stand	dards; and	
2005			
2006	III)) Shall	allow the permittee and the administrator or his
2007	designated representative the same r	rights of er	ntry, inspection, sampling, and copying provided for
2008	in Section 5 (c) (i) (F).		
2009			
2010	(v) Monitoring	, recording	g, and reporting.
2011			
2012	(A) All	permits sl	nall specify required monitoring including type,
2013		_	a which are representative of the monitored activity
2014	- ·	-	toring. Monitoring results required by the permit
2015			port (DMR) or other forms provided or specified by
2016	the division.		
2017			
2018	(B) An	v discharg	e authorized by a permit shall be subject to such
2019			y the administrator including the installation, use,
2020	and maintenance of monitoring equi	•	,,,,,,,,,,,
2021	8.1	r	
2022	(C) An	v maior fa	cility authorized by a permit, or for which
2023	` ′	• 3	onal Administrator of the EPA, or which contains
2024			has been promulgated pursuant to these
2025	-		ficiently frequent to characterize the discharge, for
2026	the following:		in the question of the contract of the contrac
2027	une rome wing.		
2028	(I)	Flow	•
2029	(-)	110	,
2030	(II)	A11 o	f the following pollutants:
2031	(11)	1 111 0	t the 10110 ii mg pontumus.
2032		(1.)	Pollutants which are subject to reduction or
2033	elimination by the terms of the perm		1 officiality which are subject to reduction of
2034	on the period	,	
2035		(2.)	Pollutants which the administrator finds could
2036	have an impact on the surface water		
2037	nave an impact on the surface water	or the ste	,
2038		(3.)	Pollutants specified by the Administrator of the
2039	EPA as subject to monitoring; and	(3.)	Torraction of the Transmistrator of the
2040	Diff as subject to monitoring, and		
2041		(4.)	Any pollutants, in addition to those above, that
2042	the Regional Administrator of the E		• •
2042	the Regional Panninguator of the L	171 reques	ts in writing be monitored.
2043	(D) The	e nermittee	e shall maintain records of all information resulting
2044		_	nit for a period of three (3) years, or for a longer
2045	· ·	-	Regional Administrator of the EPA. Such records
2040	shall include, but are not limited to,		_
2UT/	man merade, but are not minicu to,	THE TOTTOW	····6·

2048			
2049	(I))	The date, location, and time of the sampling;
2050			
2051	(II	I)	The dates and by whom analyses were performed;
2052			
2053	(I	Π)	Analytical techniques used;
2054			
2055	$(\Gamma$	V)	The results of such analyses;
2056			
2057	(V	<i>I</i>)	Name of the person collecting the sample(s);
2058			
2059	(V	/I)	Sampling handling and preservation conducted; and
2060			
2061	(V	/II)	Detection limits for analyses conducted.
2062			
2063			otherwise approved by the administrator, the permittee
2064		-	t a frequency of not less than once per year, to the
2065	administrator, on the proper forms,	, the re	esults of any monitoring required by the permit. In
2066		_	he submission of such additional monitoring information
2067	he may consider necessary. Where	e appli	icable, the procedures specified will be consistent with
2068	any national program specified by	the A	dministrator of the EPA in regulations promulgated under
2069	the CWA.		
2070			
2071	(F) Al	ll repo	orts required by permits and other information requested
2072	by the administrator shall be signed	d and	certified as described in Section 14 of these regulations.
2073			
2074	(G) Sa	ample	collection and analyses shall be conducted in accordance
2075	with 40 CFR 136, unless otherwise	e speci	fied in these regulations.
2076			
2077	(H) Aı	ny per	rson falsifying, tampering with, or knowingly rendering
2078	inaccurate any monitoring device of	or met	hod required to be maintained under this permit is a
2079	violation of the permit, these regula	ations	and the Wyoming Environmental Quality Act.
2080	Section 6. Storm Water I) Discha	arges.
2001			
2081			sed in the application for development of and issuance of
2082	storm water discharge permits and	for 1d	entifying storm water discharges covered by this rule.
2083	()		
2084	(a) Deadlines to apply	7.	
2085	a> ==		
2086	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	•	ded in Section 6 (b), for any storm water discharge
2087	•		by as described in Section 6 (f) (i) or industrial activity as
2088		_	to the effective date of this rule, should have made
2089			per 1, 1992; prior to initiation of the activity or in
2090	accordance with Section 4 (o) (i) (I	B) of t	these regulations.
2091			

2092	(ii) For any storm water discharge associated with large or small			
2093	construction activities or industrial activities from a facility that is owned or operated by a			
2094	municipality with a population of less than 100,000 that is not authorized by a general or			
2095	individual permit, other than an airport, power plant, or sanitary landfill, a permit application			
2096	must be submitted to the administrator by March 10, 2003.			
2097	,			
2098	(iii) Storm water discharges associated with small construction activity as			
2099	described in Section 6 (f) (ii), that are not already authorized by a storm water general or			
2100	individual permit, require permit authorization as of March 10, 2003, except;			
2101	marvidual permit, require permit audiorization as of March 10, 2003, except,			
2102	(A) Storm water discharges subject to Section 4 (b) (v) which are not			
2103	required to submit a NOI for coverage in accordance with the provisions of the applicable general			
2104	permit, and			
2105	permit, and			
2106	(B) Storm water discharges associated with small construction			
2107				
	activity at oil and gas exploration, production, processing, and treatment operations or			
2108	transmission facilities subject to the provisions of, Section 6 (a) (iv) of these regulations.			
2109				
2110	(iv) Storm water discharges associated with small construction activity at oil			
2111	and gas exploration, production, processing, and treatment operations or transmission facilities,			
2112	require permit authorization as of March 10, 2005.			
2113				
2114	(v) For any storm water discharge associated with regulated small MS4 as			
2115	described in Section 6 (h) (i) and that is not authorized by a storm water general or individual			
2116	permit, a permit application made pursuant to Section 6 (b) (iv) must be submitted to the			
2117	administrator by March 10, 2003 or within 180 days of notice, unless the administrator grants a			
2118	later date, if designated under Section 6 (h) (i) (C) or (D).			
2119				
2120	(vi) A permit application shall be submitted to the administrator within 60			
2121	days of notice of a storm water discharge which the administrator determines contributes to a			
2122	violation of a water quality standard or is a significant contributor of pollutants to surface waters			
2123	of the state or where the administrator determines that storm water controls are needed for the			
2124	discharge based on wasteload allocations that are part of TMDLs that address the pollutant(s) of			
2125	concern; unless permission for a later date is granted by the administrator.			
2126				
2127	(b) Individual permit application. A complete application for an individual permit			
2128	must contain, at a minimum, the following information, unless the administrator determines that			
2129	certain items are unnecessary in accordance with Section 6 (c):			
2130				
2131	(i) General requirements of all applications:			
2132	in a second of the second of t			
2133	(A) Name of the company, entity, or individual seeking a permit;			
2134	(12) Timbe of the Company, entry, or marriagan seeming a permit,			
2135	(B) Mailing address and telephone number of company, entity, or			
2136	individual seeking permit;			
2137	mar. 1981 Sterming porming			

2138	(C) The facility name, location, and telephone number if applicable;
2139	
2140	(D) Applicant status as federal, state, private, public, or other entity;
2141	
2142	(E) Name and signature in accordance with the requirements of
2143	Section 14 of this chapter;
2144	
2145	(F) Authorization of a duly authorized representative under the
2146	Signatory Requirements of Section 14 of these rules, where applicable;
2147	
2148	(G) Location, expressed in latitude and longitude to the nearest 15
2149	seconds, of the facility to be covered under the permit;
2150	
2151	(H) Location, expressed as quarter/quarter, section, township, and
2152	range, in the applicable Public Land Survey (PLS), of the facility to be covered under the permit;
2153	
2154	(I) A description of the activities conducted by the applicant which
2155	require it to obtain an WYPDES permit;
2156	
2157	(ii) Individual permit application requirements for industrial activities.
2158	Individual permit application requirements for industrial activities (not including large or small
2159	construction activities as described in Section 6 (f). Except as provided in Section 6 (b) (iii) and
2160	in Section 6 (g) (iv) (M) and (N), the operator of a storm water discharge associated with
2161	industrial activity subject to this section shall provide, at a minimum:
2162	
2163	(A) Up to four (4) SIC codes which best reflect the principal
2164	products or services provided by the facility;
2165	
2166	(B) A site map showing topography (or indicating the outline of
2167	drainage areas served by the outfall(s) covered in the application if a topographic map is
2168	unavailable) of the facility including: each of its drainage and discharge structures; the drainage
2169	area of each storm water outfall; paved areas and buildings within the drainage area of each storm
2170	water outfall; each past or present area used for outdoor storage or disposal of significant
2171	materials; each existing structural control measure to reduce pollutants in storm water runoff;
2172	materials loading and access areas; areas where pesticides, herbicides, soil conditioners and
2173	fertilizers are applied; each of its hazardous waste treatment, storage or disposal facilities
2174	(including each area not required to have a RCRA permit which is used for accumulating
2175	hazardous waste under 40 CFR 262.34); each well where fluids from the facility are injected
2176	underground; springs, and other surface water bodies which receive storm water discharges from
2177	the facility;
2178	
2179	(C) An estimate of the area of impervious surfaces (including paved
2180	areas and building roofs), the total area drained by each outfall and a narrative description of the
2181	following: significant materials that in the three (3) years prior to the submittal of this application
2182	have been treated, stored or disposed in a manner to allow exposure to storm water; method of
2183	treatment, storage or disposal of such materials; materials management practices employed, in the

2184	three (3) years prior to the submittal of this application to minimize contact by these materials		
2185	with storm water runoff; materials loading and access areas; the location, manner and frequency		
2186	in which pesticides, herbicides, soil conditioners and fertilizers are applied; the location and a		
2187	description of existing structural and non-structural control measures to reduce pollutants in stor		
2188	water runoff; and, a description of the treatment the storm water receives, including the ultimate		
2189	disposal of any solid or fluid wastes other than by discharge;		
2190			
2191	(D) A certification that all outfalls that should contain storm water		
2192	discharges associated with industrial activity have been tested or evaluated for the presence of		
2193	non storm water discharges which are not covered by a permit. Tests for such non storm water		
2194	discharges may include smoke tests, fluorometric dye tests, analysis of accurate schematics, as		
2195	well as other appropriate tests. The certification shall include a description of the method used,		
2196	the date of any testing, and the on site drainage points that were directly observed during a test;		
2197			
2198	(E) Existing information regarding significant leaks or spills of toxi		
2199	or hazardous pollutants at the facility that have taken place within the three (3) years prior to the		
2200	submittal of this application;		
2201			
2202	(F) Quantitative data based on samples collected during storm even		
2203	and collected in accordance with Section 6 (b) (ii) (G) from all outfalls containing storm water		
2204	discharge associated with industrial activity for the following parameters, except when waived b		
2205	the administrator under the provisions of Section 6 (c) of these regulations.		
2206	the administrator under the provisions of Section 6 (e) of these regulations.		
2207	(I) Any pollutant limited in an effluent guideline to which		
2207	the facility is subject;		
2208	the facility is subject,		
2210	(II) Any pollutant listed in the facility's WYPDES permit for		
2210	* * *		
	its process wastewater (if the facility is operating under an existing WYPDES permit);		
2212	(III) Oil and groose all DODE COD TSS total absorbors		
2213	(III) Oil and grease, pH, BOD5, COD, TSS, total phosphoru		
2214	total Kjeldahl nitrogen, and nitrate plus nitrite nitrogen;		
2215			
2216	(IV) Information on the discharge required under Appendix		
2217	(a) (vi) of these regulations;		
2218			
2219	(V) Flow measurements or estimates of the flow rate, the		
2220	total amount of discharge for the storm event(s) sampled, and the method of flow measurement of		
2221	estimation; and		
2222			
2223	(VI) The date and duration (in hours) of the storm event(s)		
2224	sampled, rainfall measurements or estimates of the storm event (in inches) which generated the		
2225	sampled runoff and the duration between the storm event sampled and the end of the previous		
2226	measurable (greater than 0.1 inch rainfall) storm event (in hours).		
2227			
2228	(G) Sampling storm water discharges.		
2229			

2230	(I) All samples shall be collected from the discharge
2231	resulting from a storm event that is greater than 0.1 inch and at least 72 hours from the previously
2232	measurable (greater than 0.1 inch rainfall) storm event. Where feasible, the variance in the
2233	duration of the event and the total rainfall of the event should not exceed 50 percent from the
2234	average or median rainfall event in that area.
2235	
2236	(II) For all applicants, a flow weighted composite shall be
2237	taken for either the entire discharge or for the first three hours of the discharge. The flow
2238	weighted composite sample for a storm water discharge may be taken with a continuous sampler
2239	or as a combination of a minimum of three sample aliquots taken in each hour of discharge for the
2240	entire discharge or for the first three (3) hours of the discharge, with each aliquot being separated
2241	by a minimum period of 15 minutes.
2242	·
2243	(III) A minimum of one grab sample may be taken for storm
2244	water discharges from holding ponds or other impoundments with a retention period greater than
2245	24-hours.
2246	
2247	(IV) For a flow weighted composite sample, only one
2248	analysis of the composite of aliquots is required.
2249	
2250	(V) For storm water discharge samples taken from
2251	discharges associated with industrial activities, quantitative data must be reported for the grab
2252	sample taken during the first thirty minutes (or as soon thereafter as practicable) of the discharge
2253	for all pollutants specified in Section 6 (b) (ii) (F).
2254	
2255	(VI) The director may allow or establish appropriate site
2256	specific sampling procedures or requirements, including sampling locations, the season in which
2257	the sampling takes place, the minimum duration between the previous measurable storm event
2258	and the storm event sampled, the minimum or maximum level of precipitation required for an
2259	appropriate storm event, the form of precipitation sampled (snow melt or rain fall), protocols for
2260	collecting samples under 40 CFR136 of federal regulations, and additional time for submitting
2261	data on a case by case basis.
2262	
2263	(VII) An applicant is expected to "know or have reason to
2264	believe" that a pollutant is present in an effluent based on an evaluation of the expected use,
2265	production, or storage of the pollutant, or on any previous analyses for the pollutant. (For
2266	example, any pesticide manufactured by a facility may be expected to be present in contaminated
2267	storm water runoff from the facility.)
2268	
2269	(H) Operators of new sources or new discharges (as defined in
2270	Section 3) which are composed entirely of storm water must include estimates for the pollutants
2271	or parameters listed in Section 6 (b) (ii) (F) instead of actual sampling data, along with the source
2272	of each estimate. Operators of new sources or new discharges composed in part or entirely of
2273	storm water must provide quantitative data for the parameters listed in paragraph Section 6 (b) (ii)
2274	(F) of this section within two (2) years after commencement of discharge, unless such data has

2275	-	ne monitoring requirements of the WYPDES permit for the
2276	discharge.	
2277	<i>,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,</i>	
2278		idual permit application requirements for large and small
2279		required to obtain coverage under an individual WYPDES storm
2280		an existing or new storm water discharge that is associated with
2281	-	ler Section 6 (f) (i) or small construction activity under Section 6 (f)
2282	(ii) shall, at a minimum, provi	de a narrative description of:
2283		
2284	(A)	The location (including a map) and the nature of the construction
2285	activity;	
2286		
2287	(B)	The total area of the site and the area of the site that is expected
2288	to undergo excavation during	the life of the permit;
2289		
2290	(C)	Proposed measures, including best management practices, to
2291	control pollutants in storm wa	ter discharges during construction, and a brief description of
2292	applicable state and local eros	ion and sediment control requirements;
2293		
2294	(D)	Proposed measures to control pollutants in storm water
2295	discharges that will occur afte	r construction operations have been completed, including a brief
2296	description of applicable state	or local erosion and sediment control requirements;
2297		
2298	(E)	The increase in impervious area after the construction addressed
2299	in the permit application is co	mpleted, the nature of fill material and existing data describing the
2300	soil or the quality of the disch	arge; and
2301		
2302	(F)	The name of the receiving water.
2303		•
2304	(iv) Indiv	idual permit application requirements for regulated small MS4s.
2305		
2306	(A)	The application requirements of Section 4 (o) (iii); and
2307	, ,	**
2308	(B)	The operator of an existing or new storm water discharge from a
2309	regulated small MS4 under Se	ection 6 (h) shall, at a minimum, provide a narrative description of:
2310		
2311		(I) A general description of the best management practices
2312	(BMPs) that the permittee or a	another municipality will implement for each of the storm water
2313	minimum control measures at	
2314		200000 0 (j) (c/)
2315		(II) The measurable goals for each of the selected BMPs
2316	including, as appropriate, the	months and years in which the permittee will undertake required
2317		estones and the frequency of the action;
2318	, 6	1 2

2319	(III) The person or persons responsible for implementing or
2320	coordinating the permittee=s storm water management program. A position, rather than an
2321	individual, may also be designated; and
2322	
2323	(IV) A description of the funding sources expected for
2324	implementation of the permittee=s program.
2325	
2326	(v) Additional information requirements. Applicants shall provide
2327	such other information the administrator may reasonably require to determine whether to issue a
2328	permit and the administrator may require any facility subject to Section 6 (b) (iii) to comply with
2329	Section 6 (b) (ii). The additional information may include additional quantitative data and
2330	bioassays to assess the relative toxicity of discharges to aquatic life and requirements to
2331	determine the cause of the toxicity.
2332	
2333	(c) Waiver of application requirements. The administrator may waive any part of
2334	the application requirements contained in Section 6 (b) (ii) (F) and (H) when the applicant makes
2335	a conclusive demonstration to the administrator that certain parameters listed in Section 6 (b) (ii)
2336	(F) are not reasonably likely to be present in storm water discharges associated with the industrial
2337	activity.
2338	·
2339	(d) Reporting requirements.
2340	
2341	(i) Requirements to report monitoring results for storm water discharges
2342	associated with industrial activity or large or small construction activity which are subject to an
2343	effluent guideline shall be established on a case-by-case basis with a frequency dependent on the
2344	nature and effect of the discharge, but in no case less than one (1) a year.
2345	
2346	(ii) Requirements to report monitoring results for storm water discharges
2347	associated with industrial activity or large or small construction activity (other than those required
2348	in Section 6 (d) (i)) shall be established on a case-by-case basis with a frequency dependent on
2349	the nature and effect of the discharge. At a minimum, a permit for such a discharge must require:
2350	
2351	(A) The discharger to conduct an annual inspection of the facility site
2352	to identify areas contributing to a storm water discharge associated with industrial activity or
2353	large or small construction activity and evaluate whether measures to reduce pollutant loadings
2354	identified in a storm water pollution prevention plan are adequate and properly implemented in
2355	accordance with the terms of the permit or whether additional control measures are needed;
2356	
2357	(B) The discharger to maintain for a period of three years a record
2358	summarizing the results of the inspection, a certification that the facility is in compliance with the
2359	plan and the permit, and identification of any incidents of non-compliance;
2360	•
2361	(C) Such report and certification be signed in accordance with
2362	Section 14; and
2363	
2364	

(D) Permits for storm water discharges associated with industrial activity from inactive mining operations may, where annual inspections are impracticable, require certification once every three years, that the facility is in compliance with the permit, or alternative requirements.

(iii) Permits which do not require the submittal of monitoring result reports at least annually shall require that the permittee report all instances of non- compliance with the terms and conditions of the permit under which the storm water discharges are covered at least annually.

(e) General permit application requirements. See Section 4 for general permit application requirements for storm water discharges.

(f) Regulated construction activities. The following discharges, composed entirely of storm water and associated with construction activities, are point sources requiring an WYPDES permit.

(i) Storm water discharge associated with large construction activity means the discharge of storm water from construction activities, including clearing, grading, and excavating, that result in land disturbance of five (5) or more acres of total land area. Large construction activity also includes the disturbance of less than five (5) acres of total land area that is a part of a larger common plan of development or sale if the larger common plan will ultimately disturb five (5) acres or more.

(ii) A storm water discharge associated with small construction activity.

(A) Storm water discharge associated with small construction activity means the discharge of storm water from construction activities, including clearing, grading, and excavating, that result in land disturbance of equal to or greater than one (1) acre and less than five (5) acres. Small construction activity also includes the disturbance of less than one (1) acre of total land area that is part of a larger common plan of development or sale, if the larger common plan will ultimately disturb equal to or greater than one and less than five (5) acres. Small construction activity does not include routine maintenance that is performed to maintain the original line and grade, hydraulic capacity, or original purpose of the facility.

(B) The administrator, at his discretion, may waive the otherwise applicable requirements in a general permit, as described in Section 4, for a storm water discharge from a small construction activity that disturbs less than five (5) acres where the value of the rainfall erosivity factor (>R= in the Revised Universal Soil Loss Equation) is less than five (5) during the period of construction activity. The rainfall erosivity factor must be determined in accordance with Chapter 2 of the *Agriculture Handbook Number 703, Predicting Soil Erosion by Water: A Guide to Conservation Planning With the Revised Universal Soil Loss Equation* (RUSLE), pages 21-64, dated January 1997 or a similar state-approved method. The operator or owner must certify to the administrator that the construction activity will only take place during a period when the value of the rainfall erosivity factor is less than five (5). If unforeseeable conditions occur that are outside of the control of the applicant for a waiver, and that will extend

2-53

the construction activity beyond the dates initially applied for, the owner or operator must reapply for the waiver or obtain coverage under a general permit for storm water discharges. The waiver re-application or permit application must be submitted within two (2) business days after the unforeseeable condition becomes known. This waiver does not relieve the operator or owner from complying with requirements of local agencies.

(iii) Any construction activity designated by the administrator, based on the potential for contribution to a violation of a water quality standard or for significant contribution of pollutants to surface waters of the state or where the administrator determines that storm water controls are needed for the discharge based on wasteload allocations that are part of TMDLs that address the pollutants of concern.

(iv) A storm water discharge associated with small or large construction activities that are owned or operated by a municipality with a population of less than 100,000 (based on the 1990 census).

(v) For storm water discharges associated with large and/or small construction activities from point sources which discharge through a non-municipal or non-publicly owned separate storm sewer system, the director, at his discretion, may issue: a single WYPDES permit, with each discharger a co permittee to a permit issued to the operator of the portion of the system that discharges into surface waters of the state; or, individual permits to each discharger of storm water associated with large and/or small construction activity through the non municipal conveyance system.

(A) Each facility with a storm water discharge to a storm water discharge system that is not an MS4 shall be covered by a WYPDES permit, or a permit issued to the operator of the portion of the system that discharges to surface waters of the state, with each discharger to the non municipal conveyance a co permittee to that permit.

(B) Where there is more than one (1) operator of a single system of such conveyances, all operators of storm water discharges associated with industrial activity must submit applications.

(C) Any permit covering more than one (1) operator shall identify the effluent limitations, or other permit conditions, if any, that apply to each operator.

(g) Regulated industrial activities. Discharges composed entirely of storm water and associated with industrial activities are point sources requiring a WYPDES permit.

(i) "Storm water discharge associated with industrial activity" means the discharge from any conveyance which is used for collecting and conveying storm water and which is directly related to manufacturing, processing, or raw materials storage areas at an industrial plant. The term does not include discharges from facilities or activities excluded from the WYPDES program under these regulations.

(A) For the categories of industries identified in Section 6 (g) (ii) (A) through (I), the term "storm water discharge associated with industrial activity" includes, but is not limited to, storm water discharges from industrial plant yards; immediate access roads and rail lines used or traveled by carriers of raw materials, manufactured products, waste material, or byproducts used or created by the facility; material handling sites; refuse sites; sites used for the application or disposal of process waste waters; sites used for the storage and maintenance of material handling equipment; sites used for residual treatment, storage, or disposal; shipping and receiving areas; manufacturing buildings; storage areas (including tank farms) for raw materials, and intermediate and final products; and areas where industrial activity has taken place in the past and significant materials remain and are exposed to storm water. For the purposes of Section 6 (g), material handling activities include the storage, loading and unloading, transportation, or conveyance of any raw material, intermediate product, final product or waste product.

- (B) The term excludes areas located on a plant site separate from the plant=s industrial activities, such as office buildings and accompanying parking lots, as long as the drainage from the excluded areas is not mixed with storm water drained from the industrial areas described above.
- (ii) The following categories of facilities are considered to be engaging in "industrial activity" for purposes of these regulations. (See Appendix A of these regulations for a brief description of the SIC codes identified in this section.)
- (A) Facilities subject to federal storm water effluent limitations guidelines, new source performance standards, or toxic pollutant effluent standards under 40 CFR Subchapter N (except facilities with toxic pollutant effluent standards which are excluded under the "no exposure" provisions of Section 6 (g) (iii));
- (B) Facilities classified as Standard Industrial Classifications (SICs) 20 through 39 and 4221-25;
- (C) Facilities classified as Standard Industrial Classifications 10 and 12 through 14 including active or inactive mining operations and oil and gas exploration, production, processing, or treatment operations, or transmission facilities that discharge storm water that has come into contact with any overburden, raw material, intermediate products, finished products, byproducts or waste products located on the site of such operations; (inactive mining operations are mining sites that are not being actively mined, but which have an identifiable owner/operator. Inactive mining sites do not include sites where mining claims are being maintained prior to disturbances associated with the extraction, beneficiation, or processing of mined materials, nor sites where minimal activities are undertaken for the sole purpose of maintaining a mining claim);

Areas of coal mining operations no longer meeting the definition of a reclamation area under 40 CFR 434.11 (1) because the performance bond issued to the facility by the appropriate SMCRA (Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act, 1977) authority has been released, or areas of non-coal mining operations which have been released from applicable state or federal

2502 2503	reclamation requirements after December 17, 1990 are not considered to be engaged in "industrial activity" and do not require coverage under a WYPDES storm water permit;
2504	
2505	(D) Hazardous waste treatment, storage, or disposal facilities,
2506	including those that are operating under interim status or a permit under Wyoming Hazardous
2507	Waste Rules and Regulations;
2508	waste Rules and Regulations,
2509	(E) Landfills, land application sites, and open dumps that receive or
2510	have received any industrial wastes (waste that is received from activities associated with large or
2511	small construction activity as described in Sections 6 (f) (i) and 6 (f) (ii) and industrial activities
2512	as described in Section 6 (g) (ii) including those that are subject to regulation under subtitle D of
2512	RCRA;
2513 2514	KCKA,
2515	(F) Facilities involved in the recycling of materials, including metal
2516	scrap yards, battery reclaimers, salvage yards, and automobile junkyards, including but limited to
2517	those classified as Standard Industrial Classification 5015 and 5093;
2517 2518	those classified as Standard industrial Classification 5015 and 5095,
	(G) Steam electric power generating facilities, including coal
2519	
2520	handling sites;
2521	(II) Transportation facilities alongified as Ctandard Industrial
2522	(H) Transportation facilities classified as Standard Industrial
2523	Classifications 40, 41, 42 (except 4221 25), 43, 44, 45, and 5171 which have vehicle maintenance
2524	shops, equipment cleaning operations, or airport deicing operations. Only those portions of the
2525	facility that are either involved in vehicle maintenance (including vehicle rehabilitation,
2526	mechanical repairs, painting, fueling, and lubrication), equipment cleaning operations, airport
2527	deicing operations, or which are otherwise identified under Section 6 (g) (ii) (A through G or I)
2528	are associated with industrial activity;
2529	
2530	(I) Treatment works treating domestic sewage or any other sewage
2531	sludge or wastewater treatment device or system, used in the storage treatment, recycling, and
2532	reclamation of municipal or domestic sewage, including land dedicated to the disposal of sewage
2533	sludge that are located within the confines of the facility, with a design flow of 1.0 mgd or more,
2534	or required to have an approved pretreatment program under 40 CFR 403. Not included are farm
2535	lands, domestic gardens or lands used for sludge management where sludge is beneficially reused
2536	and which are not physically located in the confines of the facility, or areas that are in compliance
2537	with section 405 of the CWA;
2538	
2539	(J) A storm water discharge associated with industrial activity from
2540	a facility that is owned or operated by a municipality with a population of less than 100,000
2541	(based on the 1990 census);
2542	
2543	(K) For storm water discharges associated with industrial activity
2544	from point sources which discharge through a non-municipal or non-publicly owned separate
2545	storm sewer system, the director, at his discretion, may issue: a single WYPDES permit, with
2546	each discharger a co permittee to a permit issued to the operator of the portion of the system that

2547 2548 2549	discharges into surface waters of the state; or, individual permits to each discharger of storm water associated with industrial activity through the non-municipal conveyance system.
2550 2551 2552 2553 2554	(I) Each facility with a storm water discharge to a storm water discharge system that is not an MS4 shall be covered by a WYPDES permit, or a permit issued to the operator of the portion of the system that discharges to surface waters of the state, with each discharger to the non-municipal conveyance a co permittee to that permit.
2555 2556 2557 2558	(II) Where there is more than one (1) operator of a single system of such conveyances, all operators of storm water discharges associated with industrial activity must submit applications.
2559 2560 2561	(III) Any permit covering more than one (1) operator shall identify the effluent limitations, or other permit conditions, if any, that apply to each operator;
2562 2563 2564 2565	(L) A WYPDES permit is not required for discharges of storm water runoff from mining operations or oil and gas exploration, production, processing or treatment operations or transmission facilities, composed entirely of flows which are from conveyances or systems of conveyances (including but not limited to pipes, conduits, ditches, and channels) used
2566 2567 2568	for collecting and conveying precipitation runoff and which are not contaminated by contact with or that has not come into contact with, any overburden, raw material, intermediate products, finished product, byproduct or waste products located on the site of such operations. This
2569 2570 2571	paragraph applies only to the operation of these facilities. Construction of such facilities may require a permit to discharge storm water as specified in Sections 6 (f) (i) and (ii);
2572 2573 2574 2575 2576	(M) The operator of an existing or new discharge composed entirely of storm water from an oil or gas exploration, production, processing, or treatment operation, or transmission facility is not required to submit a notice of intent in accordance with Section 4 or a permit application in accordance with Section 6 (b), unless the facility:
2577 2578 2579 2580	(I) Has had a discharge of storm water resulting in the discharge of a reportable quantity for which notification is or was required pursuant to 40 CFR 117.21 or 40 CFR 302.6 at anytime since November 16, 1987; or
2581 2582 2583	(II) Has had a discharge of storm water resulting in the discharge of a reportable quantity for which notification is or was required pursuant to 40 CFR 110.6 at any time since November 16, 1987; or
258425852586	(III) Contributes to a violation of a water quality standard; or
2587 2588 2589	(IV) Has been determined by the administrator that storm water controls are needed for the discharge based on wasteload allocations that are part of TMDLs that address the pollutants of concern.
259025912592	(V) The construction of such facilities may still qualify for permit coverage under Section 6 (f).

2593						
2594	(N) The operator of an existing or new discharge composed entirely					
2595	of storm water from a mining operation is not required to submit a permit application unless the					
2596	discharge has come into contact with any overburden, raw material, intermediate products,					
2597	finished product, byproduct or waste products located on the site of such operations; and					
2598						
2599	(O) Facilities that have been determined, by the administrator, to					
2600	have the potential to contribute to a violation of a water quality standard or contribute pollutants					
2601	to surface waters of the state that are part of a TMDL that address the pollutant(s) of concern.					
2602						
2603	(iii) Discharges composed entirely of storm water are conditionally excluded					
2604	from storm water permitting by way of not meeting the definition of "storm water discharges					
2605	associated with industrial activity" if there is "no exposure" of industrial materials and/or					
2606	activities to precipitation, snowmelt and/or runoff, and the discharger satisfies the conditions in					
2607	Section 6 (g) (iii) (A through D). "No exposure" means that all industrial materials and activities					
2608	are protected by a storm resistant shelter to prevent exposure to precipitation, snowmelt, and/ or					
2609	runoff. Industrial materials or activities include, but are not limited to, material handling					
2610	equipment or activities, industrial machinery, raw materials, intermediate products, by-products,					
2611	final products, or waste products. Material handling activities include the storage, loading and					
2612	unloading, transportation, or conveyance of any raw material, intermediate product, final product					
2613	or waste product.					
2614						
2615	(A) To qualify for this exclusion, the operator must:					
2616						
2617	(I) Provide a storm resistant shelter to protect industrial					
2618	materials and activities from exposure to precipitation, snow melt, and runoff;					
2619						
2620	(II) Complete and sign, in accordance with Section 14 of					
2621	these regulations, a certification that there are no discharges of storm water contaminated by					
2622	exposure to industrial materials and activities from the entire facility, except as provided in					
2623	Section 6 (g) (iii) (B);					
2624						
2625	(III) Submit the signed, updated certification to the					
2626	administrator once every five (5) years;					
2627						
2628	(IV) Allow the administrator, and/or his authorized					
2629	representative, upon the presentation of credentials, to inspect the facility to determine					
2630	compliance with the "no exposure" conditions;					
2631						
2632	(V) Allow the administrator to make any "no exposure"					
2633	inspection reports available to the public upon request;					
2634						
2635	(VI) For facilities that discharge through an MS4, submit a					
2636	copy of the certification of "no exposure" to the MS4 operator, as well as allow inspection and					
2637	public reporting by the MS4 operator, upon request; and					
2638						

2639		(VII)	Have adequate protections in place to assure that storm
2640	water discharges associated with		ial activity do not occur from secondary containment
2641	facilities.		·
2642			
2643	(B)	To qual	ify for this exclusion, a storm resistant shelter is not
2644	required for:	•	•
2645	1		
2646		(I)	Drums, barrels, tanks, and similar containers intended
2647	for the outdoor storage of the co	` '	material, that are tightly sealed, provided those containers
2648	9		aled"means banded or otherwise secured and without
2649		•	otherwise a source of industrial pollutants;
2650	operational taps of varves), and	are not c	miorwise a source of mansural pollutants,
2651		(II)	Adequately maintained vehicles used in material
2652	handling, that are not otherwise	` '	- ·
2653	mananing, that are not other wise	a source	of madstrar portations, and
2654		(III)	Final products, other than products that would be
2655	mobilized in storm water discha	` /	•
2656	moonized in storm water disena	ige (e.g.	, fock suit).
2657	(C)	The evo	clusion is subject to the following limitations:
2658	(C)	THE CAC	dusion is subject to the following inilitations.
2659		(I)	Storm water discharges from construction activities
2660	identified as small or large in Se	. ,	(f) are not eligible for this conditional exclusion.
2661	identified as small of large in Se	ction o	1) are not engine for this conditional exclusion.
		(II)	This conditional avaluation from the requirement for a
2662	state WVDDEC manualt is assisted	(II)	This conditional exclusion from the requirement for a
2663	state w YPDES permit is availab	one on a	facility-wide basis only, not for individual outfalls.
2664		(III)	TC '
2665	2.02	(III)	If circumstances change and industrial materials or
2666		_	on, snow melt, and/or runoff, the conditions for this
2667	0 11 5		, the discharge becomes subject to enforcement for
2668	-		y excluded discharger who anticipates such a change in
2669	11 0	d obtain	permit authorization prior to the change of
2670	circumstances.		
2671			
2672		(IV)	Notwithstanding the provisions of this paragraph, the
2673			uire permit authorization (and deny this exclusion) upon
2674	C		ge causes, has a reasonable potential to cause, or
2675		sion abo	we an applicable water quality standard, including
2676	designated uses.		
2677			
2678	(D)		exposure" certification requires the submission of the
2679	_		aid the administrator in determining if the facility
2680	qualifies for the no exposure exc	clusion:	
2681			
2682		(I)	The legal name, address and phone number of the
2683	discharger;		
2684			

2685 2686	(II)		cility name and address, the county name and the y system quarter/quarter, section, township, and
2687 2688	range where the facility is located;	na sai vey	system quarter/quarter, section, township, and
2689	(III)	The cer	rtification must indicate that none of the following
2690	* *		eeable future, exposed to precipitation, snow
2691	melt, and/or runoff:		
2692	•		
2693		(1.)	Using, storing or cleaning industrial machinery
2694	or equipment, and areas where residual	s from us	sing, storing or cleaning industrial machinery or
2695	equipment remain and are exposed to si		
2696	•		
2697		(2.)	Materials or residuals on the ground or in storm
2698	water inlets from spills/leaks;		-
2699			
2700		(3.)	Materials or products from past industrial
2701	activity;		
2702			
2703		(4.)	Material handling equipment (except adequately
2704	maintained vehicles);		
2705			
2706		(5.)	Materials or products during loading/unloading
2707	or transporting activities;		
2708			
2709		(6.)	Materials or products stored outdoors (except
2710	final products intended for outside use,	e.g., new	cars, where exposure to storm water does not
2711	result in the discharge of pollutants);		
2712			
2713		(7.)	Materials contained in open, deteriorated or
2714	leaking storage drums, barrels, tanks, a	nd simila	er containers;
2715			
2716		(8.)	Materials or products handled/stored on roads or
2717	railways owned or maintained by the di	ischarger	•
2718			
2719		(9.)	Waste material (except waste in covered, non-
2720	leaking containers, e.g., dumpsters);		
2721			
2722		(10.)	Application or disposal of process wastewater
2723	(unless otherwise permitted); and		
2724		24.4	
2725		(11.)	Particulate matter or visible deposits of residuals
2726		gulated, i	i.e., under an air quality control permit, and
2727	evident in the storm water outflow.		
2728			

(IV) All "no exposure" certifications must include the following certification statement, and be signed in accordance with the signatory requirements of Section 14 of these regulations:

273127322733

2734

2735

2736

2737

2738

2739

2740

2741

2742

2743

2744

2745

2746

2747

2748

2749

2750

2729

2730

"I certify under penalty of law that I have read and understand the eligibility requirements for claiming a condition of "no exposure" and obtaining an exclusion from state WYPDES storm water permitting; and that there are no discharges of storm water contaminated by exposure to industrial activities or materials from the industrial facility identified in this document (except as allowed under Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations, Chapter 2 Section 6 (g) (iii) (B)). I understand that I am obligated to submit a no exposure certification form once every five (5) years to the administrator and, if requested, to the operator of the local MS4 into which this facility discharges (where applicable). I understand that I must allow the administrator, or MS4 operator where the discharge is into the local MS4, to perform inspections to confirm the condition of no exposure and to make such inspection reports publicly available upon request. I understand that I must obtain coverage under a state WYPDES permit prior to any point source discharge of storm water from the facility. I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gathered and evaluated the information submitted. Based upon my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or those persons directly involved in gathering the information, the information submitted is to the best of my knowledge and belief true, accurate and complete. I am aware there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations."

275127522753

2754

(h) Regulated small municipal separate storm sewer systems. Discharges composed entirely of storm water from regulated small municipal separate storm sewer systems (MS4s) are point sources requiring a WYPDES permit.

275527562757

(i) Regulated small MS4s include:

27582759

2760

(A) Systems located in an urbanized area as determined by the latest Decennial Census by the Bureau of the Census. (If the small MS4 is not located entirely within an urbanized area, only the portion that is within the urbanized area is regulated);

276127622763

(B) Publicly owned systems similar to MS4s in municipalities, such

27642765

as:

2766 (I) Systems at military bases, and large education, hospital 2767 or prison complexes, if they are designed for a maximum daily user population (residents and 2768 individuals who come there to work or use the facilities) of at least 1,000, and are located in an 2769 urbanized area.

27702771

(II) Separate storm sewer systems associated with highways and thoroughfares within the boundary of an urbanized area.

2774	(C) Small MS4s designated by the administrator, where the
2775	designation is pursuant to the following:
2776	
2777	(I) The administrator shall evaluate, at a minimum, any
2778	small MS4 located outside of an urbanized area serving a jurisdiction with a population density of
2779	at least 1,000 people per square mile and a population of at least 10,000 (based on the latest
2780	Decennial Census by the Bureau of the Census), to determine whether or not storm water
2781	discharges from the MS4 result in or have the potential to result in exceedances of water quality
2782	standards, including impairment of designated uses, or other significant water quality impacts,
2783	including habitat and biological impacts. The evaluation shall use the following elements, at a
2784	minimum:
2785	
2786	(1.) Relationship to sensitive waters. For purposes
2787	of this section, sensitive waters means any class 1, 2AB, 2A or any impaired or threatened waters
2788	listed on the most recent 303 (d) list;
2789	
2790	(2.) High growth potential. For purposes of this
2791	section a growth rate of 10% per decade or more will be considered a high rate of growth, the
2792	administrator may also consider other factors such as, but not limited to, sustainability of
2793	population increase, future projected growth, initial population size and population density.
2794	population mercuse, runnic projecticu gro wiii, minim population size una population aemstej.
2795	(3.) Size of population and population density.
2796	Whether the MS4 is an MS4 that is not in an urbanized area and has a population of at least
2797	10,000 and a population density of 1,000 people per square mile;
2798	10,000 and a population density of 1,000 people per square mits,
2799	(4.) Contiguity to an urbanized area; and
2800	(11) Continguity to an around arou, and
2801	(5.) Significant contribution of pollutants, based on
2802	credible data, to surface waters of the state.
2803	
2804	Based on this evaluation, if the administrator determines that storm water discharges
2805	from the MS4 result in or have the potential to result in exceedances of water quality standards,
2806	including impairment of designated uses, or other significant water quality impacts, including
2807	habitat and biological impacts, the administrator shall designate the MS4 as a regulated small
2808	MS4 to be covered under a state WYPDES storm water discharge permit. However, the MS4
2809	may provide information to the administrator on its existing storm water quality control
2810	programs, including any that are analogous to the six (6) minimum control measures under
2811	Section 6 (j) (i) (B). If the administrator determines that the MS4 has adequate controls for its
2812	storm water discharges, (i.e., is already implementing the applicable portions of the six (6)
2813	minimum measures), it will not be designated as a regulated small MS4 at that time.
2814	and the same state of the same
2815	(II) Other MS4s. The administrator may evaluate any other
2816	small MS4s other than those described in subsections (I) and (III) of this section, in order to
2817	determine whether or not storm water discharges from a small MS4 result in or have the potential
2818	to result in exceedances of water quality standards, including impairment of designated uses, or

other significant water quality impacts, including habitat and biological impacts. The

2820	1 0 1		on evaluating small MS4s with a combined permanent and		
2821	seasonal population (as determined by the official Census population plus the number of				
2822	•		dations that will allow for an overnight stay, as listed		
2823			ny local resort or property management companies) of		
2824			the administrator may designate the small MS4 as a		
2825	regulated small MS4 to be cove	red und	er a state WYPDES storm water discharge permit at any		
2826	time, as appropriate, using the e	lements	shown in Section 6 (h) (i) (C) (I) above.		
2827					
2828		(III)	The administrator shall designate any small MS4 that		
2829	contributes substantially to the p	pollutan	t loadings of a physically interconnected municipal		
2830	separate storm sewer that is desi	ignated	as a regulated small MS4 to be covered under a state		
2831	WYPDES storm water discharg	ge permi	t.		
2832					
2833		(IV)	Small MS4s may be designated by the administrator		
2834	based upon Section 6 (h) (ii) (C).			
2835	. , , , ,	,			
2836		(V)	For any small MS4 that has been evaluated as per		
2837	subsections (I) or (II) above, the	` '	strator reserves the right to re-evaluate the MS4 if		
2838	circumstances change or new in		•		
2839					
2840	(D)	A storr	m water discharge that the administrator determines		
2841	` '		lity standard or is a significant contributor of pollutants to		
2842		_	ation may include a discharge from any conveyance or		
2843		_	ng and conveying storm water runoff or a system of		
2844	· · ·		m sewers, except for those discharges from conveyances		
2845			ction 6 (g) (iii) (L) or irrigation return flow which is		
2846	exempted from the definition of		The state of the s		
2847	enempted from the definition of	Pomes	outee in this regulation.		
2848	The administrator may	desionat	te discharges from a MS4 on a system-wide or		
2849	•	_	determination the administrator may consider the		
2850	following factors:	ing tins	determination the administrator may consider the		
2851	following factors.				
2852		(I)	The location of the discharge with respect to surface		
2853	waters of the state;	(1)	The foculton of the disentage with respect to surface		
2854	waters of the state,				
2855		(II)	The size of the discharge;		
2856		(11)	The size of the discharge,		
2857		(III)	The quantity and nature of the pollutants discharged to		
2858	surface waters of the state; and	(111)	The qualitity and nature of the pointains discharged to		
2859	surface waters of the state, and				
2860		(IV)	Other relevant factors.		
2861		(11)	Other relevant factors.		
2862	(E)	Thood	ministrator may decignate discharges from municipal		
2863	(E)		ministrator may designate discharges from municipal istrator determines that storm water controls are needed		
2864	-		locations that are part of TMDLs that address the		
2865	pollutants of concern.	cioau al	rocations that are part of TMDLs that address the		
~(DLL.)	TAMBULANIS OF CONCELL.				

2866	
2867	(F) The administrator may issue permits for municipal separate
2868	storm sewer systems designated in Section 6 (h) (i) (C) (D) or (E) on a system-wide basis,
2869	jurisdiction-wide basis, watershed basis or other appropriate basis, or may issue permits for
2870	individual discharges.
2871	
2872	(ii) The administrator may waive permit coverage for a small MS4 with a
2873	population under 1,000 within the urbanized area where both of the following criteria have been
2874	met:
2875	
2876	(A) Its discharges are not known to be contributing substantially to
2877	the pollutant loadings of a physically interconnected regulated MS4 (see Section 6 (h) (i) (C)
2878	(III)); and
2879	
2880	(B) The small MS4 does not discharge any pollutant(s) that have
2881	been identified as a cause of impairment of any water body to which it discharges and storm
2882	water controls are not needed based on wasteload allocations that are part of a local watershed
2883	plan or an EPA approved TMDL that addresses the pollutant(s) of concern.
2884	r-market mar configuration = = = = market
2885	(C) A small MS4 waived under this section may be designated if
2886	circumstances change or new information becomes available.
2887	
2888	(iii) Whether or not a discharge from a municipal separate storm sewer is
2889	subject to regulation under this Section 6 (h) shall have no bearing on whether the owner or
2890	operator of the discharge is eligible for funding under Title II, Title III or Title VI of the CWA.
2891	r and a second of the grant of
2892	(i) Petitions.
2893	
2894	(i) Any operator of a municipal separate storm sewer system may petition
2895	the director to require a separate WYPDES permit for any discharge into the municipal separate
2896	storm sewer system.
2897	
2898	(ii) Any person may petition the director to require a WYPDES permit,
2899	where one does not already exist, for a discharge which is composed entirely of storm water
2900	which contributes to a violation of a water quality standard or is a significant contributor of
2901	pollutants to surface waters of the state.++
2902	
2903	(iii) Any person may petition the director for the designation of a small MS4
2904	as defined in these regulations.
2905	
2906	(iv) The owner or operator of a municipal separate storm sewer system may
2907	petition the director to reduce the Census estimates of the population served by such separate
2908	system to account for storm water discharged to combined sewers as defined by 40 CFR 35.2005
2909	(b) (11) that is treated in a publicly owned treatment works. In municipalities in which combined
2910	sewers are operated, the Census estimates of population may be reduced proportional to the
2911	fraction, based on estimated lengths, of the length of combined sewers over the sum of the length
	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,

2912	of combined sewers and municipal separate storm sewers where an applicant has submitted the
2913	WYPDES permit number associated with each discharge point and a map indicating areas served
2914	by combined sewers and the location of any combined sewer overflow discharge point.
2915	
2916	(v) The director shall make a final determination on any petition received
2917	under this section within 90 days after receiving the petition with the exception of petitions to
2918	designate a small MS4, in which case the director shall make a final determination on the petition
2919	within 180 days after receipt of the petition.
2920	
2921	(j) Conditions for municipal storm water permits.
2922	
2923	(i) An individual permit issued under Section 6 or general permit
2924	authorization issued under Section 4 to a regulated small MS4 shall contain the following
2925	requirements, at a minimum:
2926	1 , u
2927	(A) The MS4 permit will require that the regulated small MS4
2928	develop, implement, and enforce a storm water management program designed to reduce the
2929	discharge of pollutants from the MS4 to the maximum extent practicable, to protect water quality,
2930	and to satisfy the appropriate water quality requirements of the Wyoming Environmental Quality
2931	Act (W.S. 35-11-301 to 35-11-311). The storm water management program must include the
2932	minimum control measures described in Section 6 (j) (i) (B). Implementation of BMPs consistent
2933	with the provisions of the storm water discharge permit required pursuant to this section
2934	constitutes compliance with the standard of reducing pollutants to the maximum extent
2935	practicable.
2936	praeticalities.
2937	The initial permit for the regulated small MS4 will specify a time period of up to five (5)
2938	years from the date of permit issuance for development and implementation of the program.
2939	years from the date of permit issuance for development and implementation of the program.
2940	(B) Minimum control measures.
2941	(B) Minimum control measures.
2942	(I) Public education and outreach on storm water impacts.
2943	The permittee must implement a public education program to:
2944	The permittee must imprement a paone education program to.
2945	(1.) Distribute educational materials to the
2946	community or conduct equivalent outreach activities about the impacts of storm water discharges
2947	on water bodies and the steps that the public can take to reduce pollutants in storm water runoff;
2948	and
2949	
2950	(2.) Inform public employees, businesses and the
2951	general public of impacts associated with illegal discharges and improper disposal of waste.
2952	general public of impacts associated with integal discharges and improper disposar of waste.
2953	(II) Public involvement/participation. The permittee must, at
2953 2954	a minimum, comply with any applicable state and local public notice requirements when
2955 2955	implementing the storm water management programs required under the permit. Notice of all
2956	public hearings should be published in a community publication or newspaper of general
2/30	paone hearings should be published in a community publication of newspaper of general

2957	circulation, to provide opportunities for public involvement that reach a majority of citizens
2958	through the notification process.
2959	
2960	(III) Illicit discharge detection and elimination. The
2961	permittee must develop, implement and enforce a program to detect and eliminate illicit
2962	discharges (as defined in Section 3) into the permittee=s small MS4.
2963	
2964	(1.) The permittee must:
2965	
2966	a. Develop, if not already completed, a
2967	storm sewer system map, showing the location of all municipal storm sewer outfalls and the
2968	names and location of all surface waters of the state that receive discharges from those outfalls;
2969	
2970	b. To the extent allowable under state or
2971	local law, effectively prohibit, through ordinance or other regulatory mechanism, non-storm water
2972	discharges into the storm sewer system, and implement appropriate enforcement procedures and
2973	actions; and
2974	
2975	c. Develop and implement a plan to detect
2976	and address non-storm water discharges, including illicit discharges and illegal dumping, to the
2977	system. The plan must include the following three components: procedures for locating priority
2978	areas likely to have illicit discharges; procedures for tracing the source of an illicit discharge; and
2979	procedures for removing the source of the discharge.
2980	procedures for rome and source of the discount ger
2981	(2.) The permittee shall address the following
2982	categories of non-storm water discharges or flows (i.e., illicit discharges) only if the permittee
2983	identifies them as significant contributors of pollutants to the permittee=s small MS4 discharges:
2984	landscape irrigation, lawn watering, diverted stream flows, irrigation return flow, rising
2985	groundwaters, groundwater infiltration (as defined at 40 CFR 35.2005(20)), pumped
2986	groundwater, springs, flows from riparian habitats and wetlands, water line flushing, discharges
2987	from potable water sources, foundation drains, air conditioning condensation, water from crawl
2988	space pumps, footing drains, individual residential car washing, dechlorinated swimming pool
2989	discharges, and street wash water (discharges or flows from fire fighting activities are excluded
2990	from the effective prohibition against non-storm water and need only be addressed where they are
2991	identified as significant sources of pollutants to surface waters of the state).
2992	identified as significant sources of pollutants to surface waters of the state).
2993	(IV) Construction site storm water runoff control.
2994	(1) Construction site storm water runoit control.
2995	(1.) The permittee must develop, implement, and
2993 2996	(1.) The permittee must develop, implement, and enforce a program to reduce pollutants in any storm water runoff to the MS4 from construction
2997	activities that result in a land disturbance of greater than or equal to one acre. Reduction of
2998	pollutants in storm water discharges from construction activity disturbing less than one acre must
2999	be included in the program if that construction activity is part of a larger common plan of
3000	development or sale that would disturb one acre or more. If the administrator waives
3001	requirements for storm water discharges associated with a small construction activity in

3002	accordance with Section 6 (f) (ii) (B), the permittee is not required to develop, implement, and/or
3003	enforce its program to reduce pollutant discharges from such a site.
3004	
3005	(2.) The program must be developed and
3006	implemented to assure adequate design, implementation, and maintenance of BMPs at
3007	construction sites within the MS4 to reduce pollutant discharges and protect water quality. The
3008	program must include the development and implementation of, at a minimum:
3008	program must include the development and implementation of, at a minimum.
3010	An ordinance or other regulatory
3010	a. An ordinance or other regulatory mechanism to require erosion and sediment controls, as well as sanctions to ensure compliance, to
3011	the extent allowable under state or local law;
3012	the extent anomable under state of local law,
3013	b. Requirements for construction site
3014	1
	operators to implement appropriate erosion and sediment control BMPs;
3016	Description and for construction site
3017	c. Requirements for construction site
3018	operators to control waste such as discarded building materials, concrete truck washout,
3019	chemicals, litter, and sanitary waste at the construction site that may cause adverse impacts to
3020	water quality;
3021	
3022	d. Procedures for site plan review which
3023	incorporate consideration of potential water quality impacts;
3024	
3025	e. Procedures for receipt and consideration
3026	of information submitted by the public, and
3027	
3028	f. Procedures for site inspection and
3029	enforcement of control measures.
3030	
3031	(V) Post-construction storm water management in new
3032	development and redevelopment.
3033	
3034	
3035	(1.) The permittee must develop, implement, and
3036	enforce a program to address storm water runoff from new development and redevelopment
3037	projects that disturb greater than or equal to one acre, including projects less than one acre that
3038	are part of a larger common plan of development or sale, that discharge into the small MS4. The
3039	program must ensure that controls are in place that would prevent or minimize water quality
3040	impacts.
3041	
3042	(2.) The permittee must:
3043	
3044	a. Develop and implement strategies which
3045	include a combination of structural and/or non-structural BMPs appropriate for the community;
3046	

3047	b. Use an ordinance or other regulatory
3048	mechanism to address post-construction runoff from new development and redevelopment
3049	projects to the extent allowable under state or local law; and
3050	
3051	c. Ensure adequate long-term operation
3052	and maintenance of BMPs.
3053	
3054	(VI) Pollution prevention/good housekeeping for municipal
3055	operations. The permittee must develop and implement an operation and maintenance program
3056	that includes an employee training component and has the ultimate goal of preventing or reducing
3057	pollutant runoff from municipal operations. The program must also inform public employees of
3058	impacts associated with illegal discharges and improper disposal of waste from municipal
3059	operations. The program must prevent and/or reduce storm water pollution from facilities such as
3060	streets, roads, highways, municipal parking lots, maintenance and storage yards, fleet or
3061	maintenance shops with outdoor storage areas, salt/sand storage locations and snow disposal
3062	areas operated by the permittee, waste transfer stations, and from activities such as park and open
3063	space maintenance, fleet and building maintenance, street maintenance, new construction of
3064	municipal facilities, and storm water system maintenance, as applicable.
3065	manusipur ruemuss, una storm music specem municomuses, us approvation
3066	(C) If an existing qualifying local program requires the permittee to
3067	implement one or more of the minimum control measures of Section 6 (j) (i) (B), the
3068	administrator may include conditions in the permit that direct the permittee to follow that
3069	qualifying program=s requirements rather than the requirements of Section 6 (j) (i) (B). A
3070	qualifying local program is a local or state municipal storm water management program that
3071	imposes, at a minimum, the relevant requirements of Section 6 (j) (i) (B). The permit may be
3072	reopened and modified to include the requirement to implement a minimum control measure if
3073	the other entity fails to implement it.
3074	the oner entry runs to impressed in
3075	(D) The permittee must comply with any more stringent effluent
3076	limitations in the permit, including permit requirements that modify, or are in addition to, the
3077	minimum control measures, based on an approved TMDL or equivalent analysis. The
3078	administrator may include more stringent limitations based on a TMDL or equivalent analysis
3079	that determines such limitations are needed to protect water quality.
3080	that determines such immediates are needed to protect water quanty.
3081	(E) The permittee must comply with other applicable state WYPDES
3082	permit requirements, standards and conditions established in the individual or general permit,
3083	developed consistent with the provisions of Section 6 (b) or Section 4, as appropriate.
3084	developed consistent with the provisions of Section 5 (b) of Section 1, as appropriate.
3085	(F) A permittee may rely on another entity to satisfy its state
3086	WYPDES permit obligations to implement a minimum control measure, or component thereof if:
3087	11 225 permit confactions to improment a minimum control measure, or component thereof it.
3088	(I) The other entity, in fact, implements the control
3089	measure;
3090	incubato,
3091	(II) The particular control measure, or component thereof, is
3092	at least as stringent as the corresponding WYPDES permit requirement; and
3074	at roust as stringont as the corresponding with DES permit requirement, and

3093	
3094	(III) The other entity agrees to implement the control measure
3095	on behalf of the permittee. The permittee must specify in reports submitted under Section 6 (j) (i)
3096	(G) (iii), that it relies on another entity to satisfy some of its permit obligations. If the permittee
3097	is relying on another entity, subject to these regulations, to meet all of its permit obligations,
3098	including the obligation to file periodic reports, it must note that fact in its NOI. The permittee
3099	remains responsible for compliance with its permit obligations if the other entity fails to
3100	implement the control measure (or component thereof).
3101	
3102	(G) Evaluation and assessment.
3103	
3104	(I) Evaluation. The permittee shall evaluate program
3105	compliance, the appropriateness of its identified BMPs, and progress towards achieving its
3106	identified measurable goals. A summary of this evaluation shall be included in the permittee=s
3107	annual report.
3108	
3109	(II) Record keeping. The permittee must keep records
3110	required by the permit for at least three (3) years. The permittee must submit their records to the
3111	administrator only when specifically asked to do so. The permittee must make the records,
3112	including a description of the permittee=s storm water management program, available to the
3113	public at reasonable times during regular business hours. (The permittee may assess a reasonable
3114	charge for copying. The permittee may require a member of the public to provide advance
3115	notice.)
3116	
3117	(III) Reporting. The permittee shall submit annual reports to
3118	the administrator for the permittee=s first permit term. For subsequent permit terms, reports must
3119	be submitted in years two (2) and four (4) unless the administrator requires more frequent
3120	reporting. The permittee=s report must include:
3121	
3122	(1.) The status of compliance with permit conditions,
3123	an assessment of the appropriateness of the permittee=s identified BMPs and progress towards
3124	achieving the permittee=s identified measurable goals for each of the minimum control measures;
3125	
3126	(2.) Results of information collected and analyzed,
3127	including monitoring data, if any, during the reporting period;
3128	
3129	(3.) A summary of the storm water activities the
3130	permittee plans to undertake during the next reporting cycle;
3131	
3132	(4.) A change in any identified BMPs or measurable
3133	goals for any of the minimum control measures; and
3134	
3135	(5.) Notice that the permittee is relying on another
3136	governmental entity to satisfy some of the permittee=s permit obligations (if applicable).
3137	

3138	(H) Any additional requirements as determined to be necessary by
3139	the administrator.
3140	
3141	(ii) The administrator may determine monitoring requirements for the
3142	permittee in accordance with state monitoring plans appropriate to the permittee=s watershed.
3143	
3144	(k) Qualifying programs. Qualifying state or local programs associated with
3145	municipal storm water permits.
3146	
3147	(i) For storm water discharges associated with small construction activity
3148	identified in Section 6 (f) (ii) (A), the administrator may include permit conditions that
3149	incorporate qualifying state or local erosion and sediment control program requirements by
3150	reference. A qualifying state or local erosion and sediment control program is one that includes:
3151	
3152	(A) Requirements for construction site operators to implement
3153	appropriate erosion and sediment control best management practices;
3154	
3155	(B) Requirements for construction site operators to control waste
3156	such as discarded building materials, concrete truck washout, chemicals, litter, and sanitary waste
3157	at the construction site that may cause adverse impacts to water quality;
3158	
3159	(C) Requirements for construction site operators to develop and
3160	implement a storm water pollution prevention plan. (A storm water pollution prevention plan
3161	includes site descriptions, descriptions of appropriate control measures, copies of approved local
3162	requirements, maintenance procedures, inspection procedures, and identification of non-storm
3163	water discharges); and
3164	
3165	(D) Requirements to submit a site plan for review that incorporates
3166	consideration of potential water quality impacts.
3167	
3168	(ii) For storm water discharges from large construction activity identified in
3169	Section 6 (f) (i), the administrator may include permit conditions that incorporate qualifying state
3170	or local erosion and sediment control program requirements by reference. A qualifying state or
3171	local erosion and sediment control program is one that includes the elements listed in Section 6
3172	(k) (i), and any additional requirements necessary to achieve the applicable technology-based
3173	standards of "best available technology" and "best conventional technology" based on the best
3174	professional judgment of the permit writer.
3175	Section 7. Isolated Wetlands-Mitigation Requirements.
3176	This section applies to the process for approving mitigation for activities that cause the
3170	destruction, damage, or impairment of naturally occurring isolated wetlands or man-made
3178	isolated wetlands used to mitigate the loss of naturally occurring wetlands.
3178	isorated wettailes used to intrigate the 1055 of naturally occurring wettailes.
3180	(a) Point source discharge activities required to file mitigation plans. Any person
3181	who proposes a point source discharge of dredged or fill material into a naturally occurring
3182	isolated wetland or man-made isolated wetlands used to mitigate the loss of a naturally occurring
1104	isolated wettand of man-made isolated wettands used to midgate the loss of a naturally occurring

3183	wetland in suc	ch a man	ner that causes the loss or destruction of greater than a cumulative one (1)
3184	acre of wetland habitat for the total project shall file with the administrator a notice of intent for		
3185	coverage unde	er an isol	ated wetlands mitigation general permit and a mitigation plan designed to
3186	offset the loss	of wetla	and functions and values. Such notices of intent and mitigation plans must
3187	be filed and a	pproved	by the administrator prior to the commencement of the activity which will
3188	cause the wet	land loss	. Those activities which are subject to a permit or authorization from the
3189	U.S. Army Co	orps of E	ngineers pursuant to Section 404 of the CWA or mining activities subject
3190	-	_	ation from the Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality, Land
3191	-		xempt from this requirement.
3192			
3193	(b)	Mitiga	ation plan contents and area of impact. Mitigation plans submitted to the
3194	` '	_	is section shall contain the following information:
3195			g a mark
3196		(i)	Name and address of the applicant;
3197		(-)	Thin and address of the approxim,
3198		(ii)	Location and description of the isolated wetland that will be impacted,
3199	including the	` '	mpact in acres, type of wetland, probable functional values, and source of
3200	water;	area or n	impact in acros, type of wettaile, producte functional values, and source of
3201	water,		
3202		(iii)	Delineation of the impacted wetland using the U.S. Army Corps of
3203	Engineer-c 10		and delineation manual including maps, drawings, data sheets and
3204	conclusions;	707 WCII	and defineation manual merdding maps, drawings, data sneets and
3204	conclusions,		
3206		(iv)	Name(s) and address(s) of adjacent property owners who may be
3207	affected by th	(iv)	
3207	affected by th	e activity	y ,
3208		(27)	Description of the estivity cousing the watland impact
3210		(v)	Description of the activity causing the wetland impact;
		(i)	Description of actions to be talves to fully offert demons to the immedial
3211	41 a.a.d.	(vi)	Description of actions to be taken to fully offset damage to the impacted
3212	wetland;		
3213		(::)	When the grant and midication involves the construction of male comment
3214	.1 1 .1	(vii)	Where the proposed mitigation involves the construction of replacement
3215			cement of existing wetlands the location and description of the mitigation
3216			ne and address of the landowner, construction plans, maps, water sources
3217	and constructi	ion time	tables;
3218			
3219		(viii)	Where the proposed mitigation involves the use of wetland credits
3220		-	ning Statewide Wetland Mitigation Bank" a written authorization signed by
3221		ier refere	encing the wetland credit file number and the amount of credit authorized
3222	for use;		
3223			
3224		(ix)	List of related permissions and/or authorizations necessary to
3225	•	_	the planned mitigation including but not limited to water rights, easements,
3226	and associated	d federal	, state or local permits.

3228	(c) Access to physical locations associated with the permit. If requested by the
3229	administrator or the administrator=s authorized agent, the permittee shall provide access to,
3230	physical locations associated with this permit including, but not limited to, any waters of the state
3231	associated with the permit at the point of discharge.
3232	·
3233	(d) Criteria for approval of mitigation plans under a general permit.
3234	
3235	(i) The administrator shall approve all mitigation plans utilizing Wyoming
3236	Wetland Banked Credits in accordance with the "Wyoming Statewide Wetland Mitigation Bank -
3237	Guidelines for Interpretation and Implementation," April 1995;
3238	
3239	(ii) The administrator shall approve all mitigation plans involving the
3240	creation of new replacement wetlands, the restoration of degraded wetlands, or the enhancement
3241	of existing wetlands that are not recorded in the Statewide Wetland Mitigation Bank but meet the
3242	substantial elements of the wetland banking guidelines;
3243	substantial elements of the westand banking gardenness,
3244	(iii) The administrator may approve types of mitigation other than those
3245	described in the April 1995 Wetland Mitigation Bank Guidelines on a case-by-case basis after
3246	consideration of the ecological function and wetland value of the impacted wetlands and the net
3247	environmental benefit of the proposed mitigation. Such types of mitigation may include but are
3248	not limited to the acquisition of conservation easements, contributions to specific private or
3249	public habitat improvement projects, or modifications to the geographic and ecological
3250	limitations expressed in the wetland banking guidelines.
3251	militations expressed in the wettand banking guidennes.
3252	(e) Processing of notices of intent. Processing of notices of intent shall be in
3253	accordance with the procedures outlined in Section 4 (f) of these regulations.
3254	accordance with the procedures outlined in Section 4 (1) of these regulations.
3255	(f) Permit by rule. Discharges of dredged or fill material into naturally occurring
3256	isolated wetlands or man-made isolated wetlands used to mitigate the loss of naturally occurring
3257	wetlands which cause the loss or destruction of one acre or less of wetland habitat for the total
3258	project are permitted by rule in accordance with the following requirements:
3259	project are permitted by fulle in accordance with the following requirements.
3260	(i) There shall be no discharge of solid wester (as defined in Chapter 1
	(i) There shall be no discharge of solid wastes (as defined in Chapter 1,
3261	Section 1 [f] of the Department=s Hazardous Waste Management Rules and Regulations),
3262	hazardous wastes, hazardous materials, hazardous constituents, radioactive material or any toxic
3263	substance.
3264	
3265	(ii) This permit by rule is not applicable to those activities which are subject
3266	to a permit or authorization from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers pursuant to Section 404 of
3267	the CWA or mining activities subject to a permit or authorization from the Wyoming Department
3268	of Environmental Quality, Land Quality Division.
3269	Section 8. Variance Requests.
3270	(a) Variance requests by non-POTWs.
3271	i v v s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s

3272 3273	(i) A discharger which is not a publicly owned treatment works (POTW) may request a variance from otherwise applicable effluent limitations under any of the following
3274	statutory or regulatory provisions within the times specified in this section:
3275 3276	(A) Fundamentally different factors.
3277	
3278 3279	(I) A request for a variance based on the presence of "fundamentally different factors" from those on which the effluent limitations guideline was
3280	based shall be filed as follows:
3281	
3282	(1.) For a request from best practicable control
3283	technology (BPT) currently available, at the time of application.
3284	teenhology (B1 1) cultering available, at the time of application.
3285	(2.) For a request from best available technology
3286	(BAT) economically achievable and/or best conventional pollutant control technology (BCT), by
3287	no later than 180 days after the date on which an effluent limitation guideline is published in the
3288	federal register for a request based on an effluent limitation guideline promulgated on or after
3289	
	February 4, 1987.
3290	(II) The request shall explain here the applicable
3291	(II) The request shall explain how the applicable
3292	requirements of Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations Chapter 1 - Surface Water
3293	Quality Standards, the Environmental Quality Act and the provisions of these regulations have
3294	been met.
3295	
3296	(B) Non-conventional pollutants. Request for a variance from the
3297	BAT requirements for CWA Section 301 (b) (2) (F) pollutants (commonly called "non-
3298	conventional" pollutants) pursuant to Section 301 (c) of the CWA because of the economic
3299	capability of the owner or operator, or pursuant to Section 301 (g) of the CWA provided however
3300	that a § 301 (g) variance may only be requested for ammonia, chlorine, color, iron, total phenols
3301	(when determined by the Regional Administrator to be a pollutant covered by Section 301 (b) (2)
3302	(F) and any other pollutant which the Regional Administrator lists under Section 301 (g) (4) of
3303	the CWA) and must be made as follows:
3304	
3305	(I) For those requests for a variance from an effluent
3306	limitation based upon an effluent limitation guideline by:
3307	
3308	(1.) Submitting an initial request to the director and
3309	the Regional Administrator stating the name of the discharger, the permit number, the outfall
3310	number(s), the applicable effluent guideline, and whether the discharger is requesting a Section
3311	301 (c) or Section 301 (g) modification or both. This request must have been filed not later than
3312	270 days after promulgation of an applicable effluent limitation guideline for guidelines
3313	promulgated after December 27, 1977; and
3314	
3315	(2.) Submitting a completed request no later than the
3316	close of the public comment period under Section 15 of these regulations demonstrating that the
3317	applicable requirements of Section 5 (c) (iii) (A) and (B) and Appendices F, L and M have been

3318 3319	met. Notwithstanding this provision, the complete application for a request under section 301 (g) shall be filed 180 days before the director must make a decision (unless the director establishes a
3320	shorter or longer period).
3321	
3322	(II) For those requests for a variance from effluent
3323	limitations not based on effluent limitation guidelines, the request need only comply with Section
3324	8 (a) (i) (B) (I) (b) and need not be preceded by an initial request under Section 8 (a) (i) (B) (I)
3325	(a).
3326	
3327	(C) Water quality related effluent limitations. A modification under
3328	CWA Section 302 (b) (2) of requirements under CWA Section 302 (a) for achieving water quality
3329	related effluent limitations may be requested no later than the close of the public comment period
3330	under Section 15 of these regulations on the permit from which the modification is sought.
3331	
3332	(D) Thermal discharges. A variance under the CWA Section 316 (a)
3333	for the thermal component of any discharge must be filed with a timely application for a permit
3334	under this section, except that if thermal effluent limitations are established under the CWA
3335	Section 402 (a) (1) or are based on water quality standards the request for a variance may be filed
3336	by the close of the public comment period under Section 15 of these regulations. A copy of the
3337	request as required under Appendix M of these regulations, shall be sent simultaneously to the
3338	director.
3339	
3340	(b) Variance requests by POTWs. A discharger which is a publicly owned treatment
3341	works (POTW) may request a variance from otherwise applicable effluent limitations as follows:
3342	
3343	Water quality based effluent limitation. A modification under CWA Section 302 (b) (2)
3344	of the requirements under Section 302 (a) for achieving water quality based effluent limitations
3345	shall be requested no later than the close of the public comment period under Section 15 of these
3346	regulations on the permit from which the modification is sought.
3347	
3348	(c) Expedited variance procedures and time extensions.
3349	
3350	(i) Notwithstanding the time requirements in Section 8 (a) and (b), the
3351	director may notify a permit applicant before a draft permit is issued under Section 5 that the draft
3352	permit will likely contain limitations which are eligible for variances. In the notice the director
3353	may require the applicant as a condition of consideration of any potential variance request to
3354	submit a request explaining how the requirements of Section 5 (c) (iii) (A) and (B) and
3355	Appendices F, L and M applicable to the variance have been met and may require its submission
3356	within a specified reasonable time after receipt of the notice. The notice may be sent before the
3357	permit application has been submitted. The draft or final permit may contain the alternative
3358	limitations which may become effective upon final granting of the variance.
3359	
3360	(d) Decisions on variances.
3361	
3362	(i) The director may grant or deny requests for the following variances:
3363	

3364	(A) Extensions under CWA Section 301 (1) based on delay in
3365	completion of a publicly owned treatment works;
3366	
3367	(B) After consultation with the Regional Administrator, extensions
3368	under CWA Section 301 (k) based on the use of innovative technology; or
3369	under every section 301 (k) bused on the use of innovative technology, of
3370	(C) Variances under CWA Section 316 (a) for thermal pollution.
3370	(c) Variances under CWA Section 310 (a) for thermal pollution.
3372	(ii) The director may deny or forward to the Regional Administrator with a
	(ii) The director may deny or forward to the Regional Administrator with a
3373	written concurrence, or submit to EPA without recommendation a completed request for:
3374	(A) A ' 1 1 (1 ' 1'') C(1 1'')
3375	(A) A variance based on the economic capability of the applicant
3376	under CWA Section 301 (c); or
3377	
3378	(B) A variance based on water quality related effluent limitations
3379	under CWA Section 302 (b) (2).
3380	
3381	(iii) EPA may approve or deny any variance request. If EPA approves the
3382	variance, the director may prepare a draft permit incorporating the variance.
3383	
3384	(iv) The director may deny or forward to the Administrator of the EPA (or
3385	his delegate) with a written concurrence a completed request for:
3386	
3387	(A) A variance based on the presence of "fundamentally different
3388	factors" from those on which an effluent limitation guideline was based and in accordance with
3389	Appendix M of these regulations;
3390	
3391	(B) A variance based upon certain water quality factors under CWA
3392	Section 301 (g).
3393	Section 501 (g).
3394	(v) The Administrator of the EPA (or his delegate) may grant or deny a
3395	request for a variance listed in Section 8 (e) (iv) of these regulations. If the Administrator of the
3396	EPA (or his delegate) approves the variance, the director may prepare a permit incorporating the
3397	variance.
3398	
3399	(vi) Any public notice of a draft permit for which a variance has been
3400	approved or denied shall identify the applicable procedures for appealing that decision.
3401	
3402	(e) When the director issues a permit on which EPA has made a variance decision,
3403	separate appeals of the permit and of the EPA variance decision are possible.
3404	
3405	(i) Variance decisions made by EPA may be appealed under the provisions
3406	of 40 CFR 124.19.
3407	
3408	(ii) Decisions by the director regarding the issuance or denial of a WYPDES
3409	permit may be appealed in accordance with the provisions of Section 17 of these regulations.
	1

3411	Once the requirements of Sections 4 (b) and (c), 5 (a) and (b), and 6 (b) or 7 (a) and (b) of
3412	these regulations have been met, a final determination regarding issuance or denial of a permit or
3413	authorization shall be made.
3414	
3415	(a) Denial of permits or authorizations. No permit or authorization shall be issued
3416	which would authorize any of the following discharges:
3417	
3418	(i) The discharge of any radiological, chemical, or biological warfare agent,
3419	or high level radioactive waste into surface waters of the state;
3420	
3421	(ii) Any discharge which the Secretary of the Army, acting through the Chief
3422	of Engineers, finds would substantially impair anchorage and navigation;
3423	
3424	(iii) Any discharge to which the Regional Administrator of the EPA has
3425	objected pursuant to the provisions of 40 CFR Part 123.44;
3426	
3427	(iv) Any discharge from a point source which is in conflict with a plan or
3428	amendment thereto approved pursuant to Section 208 (b) of the Federal Act;
3429	
3430	(v) Any discharge that, after imposition of permit conditions, cannot ensure
3431	compliance with the applicable water quality requirements of all affected states; and
3432	
3433	(vi) No permit may be issued when conditions of the permit do not provide
3434	compliance with applicable requirements of W.S. 35-11-302 and of these regulations.
3435	
3436	(b) Issuance of permits or authorizations. The permit or authorization shall be issued
3437	if all the requirements of appropriate sections of W.S. 35-11-302 and these regulations have been
3438	met and the issuance of the permit or authorization is not denied under Section 9 (a). In this
3439	regard, the term "reasonableness" as used in W.S. 35-11-302 (a) (vi) shall be considered to mean,
3440	as a minimum, compliance with applicable effluent standards and applicable water quality
3441	standards.
3442	
3443	(c) Incorporation of permit conditions. All permit conditions shall be incorporated
3444	either expressly or by reference. If incorporated by reference, a specific citation to the applicable
3445	regulations or requirements must be given in the permit.
3446	
3447	(d) Term of permits. A permit issued pursuant to these regulations shall have a fixed
3448	term not to exceed five (5) years unless extended under Section 11 of these regulations.
3449	Reissuance of a permit issued pursuant to these regulations shall be in accordance with the
3450	requirements of Sections 5 (a) and (b), and 9.
3451	
3452	
3453	

Section 9. Issuance or Denial of Permits or Authorizations.

<u>Section 10. Renewal of Permits, and Renewal of Coverage Under Expiring General Permits.</u>

- (a) Deadlines for permit renewal application. The owner or operator of any point source within the state who proposes to continue a permitted discharge into surface waters of the state beyond the expiration date of a permit must file with the administrator a complete application form either 1) no less than 180 days in advance of the permit expiration date, unless otherwise approved by the administrator, or 2) in sufficient time to insure compliance with the requirements of Section 306 of the Federal Act, or with any applicable zoning or siting requirements established pursuant to Section 208 (b) (2) (c) of the Federal Act, and any other applicable water quality standards and limitations or in the case of general permits, in accordance with the terms specified in the applicable general permit. Except as authorized under Section 11 of these regulations, no person shall continue to discharge beyond the expiration date of a permit without having obtained a reissued permit from the department.
- (b) Renewal application requirements. An application for renewal of an existing permit shall identify any changes or additions to the information, listed in Section 5 (a) (v), that was provided in the application form or additional requested information for the permit most recently noticed.
- (c) Review of renewal applications. The administrator shall have each request for renewal reviewed in light of the existing permit or authorization, information provided by the permittee with the request for renewal, and all other information available to the administrator bearing on the subject permit or authorization to insure that the following conditions exist:
- (i) That the permittee is in compliance with or has substantially complied with all the terms and conditions of the expiring permit or authorization;
- (ii) That the discharge is consistent with applicable effluent standards and compliance schedules, water quality standards, and other legally applicable requirements imposed under these regulations; and
- (iii) That the administrator has up-to-date information on the permittee's discharge, either pursuant to the submission of new forms or pursuant to monitoring records and reports submitted to the administrator by the permittee.
- (d) Determination of permit or authorization renewal. Following the review of the request for renewal of a permit or renewal authorization and the other considerations described in paragraph (c) above, the administrator shall:
- (i) Make a determination to renew or deny renewal of an authorization for coverage under a general permit; and
- 3496 (ii) For individual permits, the administrator shall make a recommendation to the director for permit renewal or denial of permit renewal.

 3498

3499	(e) Notification of determination not to renew. In the event that the administrator
3500	determines that a permit shall not be renewed or that an authorization shall not be renewed,
3501	notification of such determination will be provided to the permittee prior to the expiration of the
3502	existing permit or authorization or in accordance with Section 11 of these regulations.
3503	
3504	(f) Processing and public notice procedures for permit renewals. The processing and
3505	public notice procedures in Sections 5 (b) and $\frac{14}{15}$ shall be followed for every permit that is
3506	renewed and the processing procedures in Section 4 (f) shall be followed for every authorization
3507	that is renewed.
3508	
3509	(g) Commencement of public notice for permit renewals. Public notice for permits
3510	being proposed for renewal shall commence not later than 30 days prior to the expiration date of
3511	the permit. In the event that permit renewals are not public noticed within 30 days prior to the
3512	permit expiration date, the permit may be continued in accordance with the provisions of Section
3513	11 of these regulations.
3514	
3515	(h) Renewal of authorizations. Renewal of coverage authorized under an expiring
3516	general permit shall be conducted in accordance with the provisions established under the general
3517	permit.
3518	Section 11. Continuation of Expiring Permits.
3519	(a) Conditions. For WYPDES permits issued under the provisions of these rules, the
3520	conditions of an expired permit shall remain in force until the effective date of a new permit
3521	provided the following conditions are met:
3522	
3523	(i) The permittee has submitted a timely and complete application for
3524	renewal in accordance with the provisions of Section 10 of these regulations; and
3525	•
3526	(ii) The director, through no fault of the permittee, does not issue a renewal
3527	permit with an effective date on or before the expiration date of the previous permit.
3528	
3529	(b) Final determination. The administrator will make a final determination on the
3530	renewal application within 180 days of the permit extension.
3531	• • •
3532	(c) Effectiveness and enforceability. Permits continued under this section remain
3533	fully effective and enforceable.
3534	Section 12. Permit or Authorization Modifications.
3535	(a) Deadlines for permit or authorization modification application. The owner or
3536	operator of any point source within the state who proposes a major modification to an existing
3537	permit or a modification to an authorization must file a complete application form with the
3538	administrator either 1) no less than 180 days in advance of the date on which it is desired to
	, , ,

change or alter the discharge unless otherwise approved by the administrator; or 2) in sufficient time prior to the alteration of the discharge to insure compliance with the requirements of Section

306 of the CWA, or with any applicable zoning or siting requirements established pursuant to

3538 3539

3540

3542	Section 208 (b) (2) (c) of the CWA, and any other applicable water quality standards and
3543	limitations. In any event, no person shall change or alter the conditions of a permitted discharge
3544	without having obtained a modification from the department and no modification shall be issued
3545	without full compliance by the permittee with all requirements of these regulations.
3546	
3547	(b) Modification application requirements. An application for modification of an
3548	existing permit or authorization shall identify any changes or additions to the information, listed
3549	in Section 5 (a) (v) or Section 4 (m), (n) or (o), that was provided in the application form or
3550	additional requested information for the permit most recently noticed.
3551	
3552	
3553	(c) Request for modification. Permits or authorizations may be modified, revoked
3554	and reissued, or terminated either at the request of any interested person or upon the
3555	administrator=s initiative. However, permits or authorizations may only be modified, revoked
3556	and reissued, or terminated for the reasons specified in Sections 12 and 13. All requests shall be
3557	in writing and shall contain facts or reasons supporting the request.
3558	m wrong and sham commit ratio of reasons supporting the required
3559	(d) Reasons for permit modification. A permit may be modified in whole or in part
3560	when:
3561	
3562	(i) There are material and substantial alterations or additions to the
3563	permitted facility or activity which occurred after permit issuance which justify the application of
3564	permit conditions that are different or absent in the existing permit.
3565	
3566	(ii) The administrator has received new information which was not available
3567	at the time of permit issuance (other than revised regulations, guidance, or test methods) and
3568	which would have justified different permit conditions at the time of issuance, including
3569	information derived from effluent testing required under Section 5 (c) (v). This provision allows
3570	modification of a permit to include conditions that may be less stringent than the existing permit
3571	to the extent allowed under Section 12 (d) (iii).
3572	(*, (*, *, *, *, *, *, *, *, *, *, *, *, *, *
3573	(iii) The standards or regulations on which the permit was based have been
3574	changed by promulgation of amended standards or regulations or by judicial decision after the
3575	permit was issued. Permits may be modified during their terms for this cause only as follows:
3576	F,,
3577	(A) The permit condition requested to be modified was based on a
3578	promulgated effluent limitation guideline, secondary treatment regulations specified in Appendix
3579	E, or water quality standard; and
3580	
3581	(B) EPA or the department has revised, withdrawn, or modified that
3582	portion of the federal regulation on which the permit condition was based, or the Environmental
3583	Quality Council has approved a revised water quality standard or effluent limitation on which the
3584	nermit condition was based; and

regulation, within 90 days after the notice of final action by which the EPA effluent limitation

(C)

The permittee requests modification as required in this

3585

3586

3588 3589	guideline, water quality standard, or effluent limitation is revised, withdrawn, or modified or upon the administrator=s initiative; or								
3590	upon the admi	msuator	-s illitative, or						
3591			(D) For judicial decisions a court of competent jurisdiction						
3592 3593 3594 3595	(D) For judicial decisions, a court of competent jurisdiction has remanded and stayed EPA promulgated regulations or effluent limitation guidelines, if the remand and stay concern that portion of the regulations or guidelines on which the permit condition was based and a request is filed by the permittee in accordance with this regulation, within 90 days of judicial remand.								
3596									
3597 3598 3599 3600	condition becareasonable ava		The administrator determines that good cause exists to modify a permit vents over which the permittee has no control and for which there is no medy.						
3601 3602	standards adop	(v) pted purs	When required to incorporate applicable toxic effluent limitation or uant to Section 307 (a) of the CWA.						
3603 3604 3605		(vi)	When required by the reopener conditions in the permit.						
3606		(vii)	When the level of discharge of any pollutant which is not limited in the						
3607	nermit exceed	` ,	el which can be achieved by the technology-based treatment requirements						
3608	appropriate to								
3609	appropriate to	the facil							
3610		(viii)	To establish a pollutant notification level required in Section 5 (c) (i) (B),						
3611	(W), (X), (Y)	` ,	*						
3612	(11), (21), (1)	or ripper	MIA D.						
3613		(ix)	To correct technical mistakes, such as errors in calculation, or mistaken						
3614	interpretations	. ,	nade in determining permit conditions, to the extent allowed in Section 5						
3615 3616	(c) (iii) (M).	01 100 11							
3617		(x)	Discharge volume will increase above what was described in the most						
3618	current applica	` '							
3619	current applies	ation of p	Mint.						
3620 3621		(xi)	Outfalls will be added, deleted or moved.						
3622		(xii)	The receiving surface waters of the state will change from what was						
3623	described in th	` '	current application.						
3624	described in ti	ic most c	urrent apprection.						
3625		(xiii)	The time of discharge will be changed where seasonal or time-limited						
3626	conditions for	` '	e may be established.						
3627	conditions for	discharg	e may be established.						
3628		(xiv)	The administrator determines good cause exists for modification of a						
3629	compliance schedule, such as an act of God, strike, flood, or materials shortage or other events								
3630	over which the permittee has little or no control and for which there is no reasonably available								
3631	remedy. However, in no case may a WYPDES compliance schedule be modified to extend								
3632	beyond an applicable CWA statutory deadline.								
3633	ocyona an app		on it is successful to the second of the sec						
2022									

3634	(xv) When a discharger is no longer eligible for net limitations, as provided in								
3635	Section 5 (c) of these regulations.								
3636									
3637	(xvi) To modify a schedule of compliance to reflect the time lost during								
3638	construction of an innovative or alternative facility, in the case of a POTW which has received a								
3639	grant under Section 202 (a) (3) of the CWA for 100 percent of the costs to modify or replace								
3640	facilities constructed with a grant for innovative and alternative wastewater technology under								
3641	Section 202 (a) (2). In no case shall the compliance schedule be modified to extend beyond an								
3642	applicable CWA statutory deadline for compliance.								
3643									
3644	(xvii) For a small MS4, to include an effluent limitation requiring								
3645	implementation of a minimum control measure or measures specified in Section 6 of these								
3646	regulations when:								
3647									
3648	(I) The permit does not include such measure(s) based upon the								
3649	determination that another entity was responsible for implementation of the requirements(s); and								
3650									
3651	(II) The other entity fails to implement measure(s) that satisfy the								
3652	requirement(s).								
3653									
3654	(xviii) Cause exists for termination under Section 13 of these regulations, and								
3655	the administrator determines that modification or revocation and reissuance is appropriate.								
3656									
3657	(xix) Other changes to information described in Section 5 (c) (i) (B).								
3658									
3659	(xx) When a downstream state was not properly notified								
3660	of a proposed permit.								
3661									
3662	(e) Reasons for authorization modification. An authorization may be modified in								
3663	whole or in part when:								
3664									
3665	(i) There are material and substantial alterations or additions to the								
3666	permitted facility or activity which occurred after issuance of an authorization.								
3667									
3668	(ii) The administrator has received new information which was not available								
3669	at the time of permit issuance.								
3670									
3671	(iii) To correct technical mistakes, such as errors in calculation, or mistaken								
3672	interpretations of law made in determining authorization conditions.								
3673									
3674	(iv) Discharge volume will increase above what was described in the most								
3675	current application or authorization.								
3676									
3677	(v) Conditions described in Section 12 (d) (v) through (vii) and (xiii) exist.								
3678									

3679	(vi) For a small MS4, to include an effluent limitation requiring								
3680	implementation of a minimum control measure or measures specified in Section 6 of these								
3681	regulations when:								
3682	(A) The authorization does not include such measure(s) based upon								
3683	the determination that another entity was responsible for implementation of the requirements(s);								
3684	and								
3685									
3686	(B) The other entity fails to implement measure(s) that satisfy the								
3687	requirement(s).								
3688									
3689	(f) Permit revocation and reissuance. When a permit is revoked and reissued under								
3690	this section, the entire permit is reopened just as if the permit had expired and was being reissued								
3691	During any revocation and reissuance proceeding, the permittee shall comply with all conditions								
3692	of the existing permit until a new final permit is reissued.								
3693	of the existing permit that a new that permit is reissued.								
3694	(g) Processing procedures for major modifications. Major modifications for permits								
3695	and authorizations will be subjected to the processing procedures described in Sections 4, 5 and 6								
3696	and authorizations will be subjected to the processing procedures described in Sections 4, 5 and 6 of these regulations.								
3697	of these regulations.								
3698	(h) Processing procedures for minor modifications. Minor modifications to permits								
3699	•								
3700	and authorizations shall not be subject to the processing procedures of Sections 4, 5 and 6. Minor								
	modifications to permits and authorizations will be processed according to the following								
3701	procedures:								
3702	(i) Where a modification to an individual mannel is initiated by the								
3703	(i) Where a modification to an individual permit is initiated by the								
3704	permittee, notification that the modification has been incorporated into the permit will be								
3705	provided to the permittee within 30 days of the permittee=s submittal of a complete application								
3706	for modification to the administrator;								
3707									
3708	(ii) Where an application for modification to an authorization is submitted by								
3709	the permittee and the administrator determines that the modification can be authorized, a revised								
3710	authorization reflecting the modification will be provided to the permittee within 30 days of the								
3711	permittee=s submittal of a complete notice of intent for modification to the department, or as								
3712	described in the general permit under which coverage is provided;								
3713									
3714	(iii) Where an application for modification to an authorization is submitted by								
3715	the permittee and the administrator determines that the modification can not be authorized, a								
3716	notification shall be provided to the permittee of such determination within 30 days of the								
3717	permittee=s submittal of a complete notice of intent for modification to the department, or as								
3718	described in the general permit under which coverage is provided.								
3719									
3720	(i) Conditions subject to modification. When a permit is modified, only the								
3721	conditions subject to modification are reopened. The term of the modified permit will not be								
3722	extended beyond the term of the permit being modified.								

3724	(j) No stay of permit conditions. The filing of a request by the permittee for a								
3725	permit modification does not stay any permit condition.								
3726									
3727	(k) Antibacksliding. All effluent permit modifications and reissuances are subject to								
3728	the antibacksliding provisions set forth in Section 5 (c) (iii) (M).								
3729									
3730	(l) Draft permits and authorization notification. For major modifications to permits,								
3731	the administrator will prepare a summary describing the proposed modification(s). Copies of the								
3732	modification summary will be provided to permittees for review at the time of public notice. For								
3733	modifications to authorizations, copies of the issued authorizations will be provided to permittees								
3734	within ten (10) days of issuance.								
3735	within ten (10) days or issuance.								
3736	(m) Denial of permit or authorization modification requests. Except for denial based								
3730	upon incompleteness of an application, if the director proposes to deny issuance of a permit or								
3737 3738	authorization modification, the applicant shall be notified by registered or certified mail of the								
3738 3739	**								
3139	intent to deny and the reason for denial.								
3740	Section 13. Permit and Authorization Terminations.								
3741	(a) Reasons for permit or authorization termination. A permit or authorization may								
3742	be terminated during its term for reasons determined by the department including, but not limited								
3743	to, the following:								
3744	,								
3745	(i) Violation of any terms or conditions of the permit;								
3746	(e)								
3747	(ii) Obtaining a permit by misrepresentation or failing to disclose any fact								
3748	which is material to the granting or denial of a permit or to the establishment of terms or								
3749	conditions of the permit;								
3750	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·								
3751	(iii) Materially false or inaccurate statements or information in the permit								
3752	application or the permit; or								
3753	approximon or the permit, or								
3754	(iv) A determination that the permitted activity endangers human health or								
3755	the classified or existing uses of surface waters of the state and can only be regulated to								
3756	acceptable levels by permit modifications or termination.								
3757	deceptable levels by permit inodifications of termination.								
3758	(b) Public notice of permit terminations or revocations. Public notice shall be given								
3759	of the intent to terminate or revoke a permit in accordance with the provisions of Section 15 of								
3760	these regulations.								
3761	these regulations.								
3762	(c) Notification of authorization termination. Notification shall be sent to the								
3762 3763	permittee of an authorization that is being terminated stating the reasons for termination and the								
3763 3764	effective date of termination.								
) / U 1	checuve date of termination.								
3765									
3766									
3767									

Section 14. Signatory Requirements. Signatures for applications and notices of intent (NOI). Applications, NOIs, and other documents required to accompany said applications or NOI when submitted to the department must be signed as follows: In the case of corporations, by a principal executive officer of at least the (i) level of vice president, or the manager of one or more manufacturing, production, or operating facilities, provided, the manager is authorized to make management decisions which govern the overall operation of the facility from which the discharge originates as described in the application, NOI or other required documentation;

(ii) In the case of a partnership, by a general partner;

- (iii) In the case of a sole proprietorship, by the proprietor; and
- (iv) In the case of a municipal, state, federal, or other public facility, by either a principal executive officer or ranking elected official.
- (b) Signatures for reports and other required information. Except for NOI and permit applications which must be signed in accordance with paragraph (a) of this section, all reports required by permits, and other information requested by the administrator must be signed as described in paragraph (a) of this section or by a duly authorized representative. A person is only a duly authorized representative if:
- (i) The authorization is made in writing by a person described in paragraph (a) of this Section; and
- (ii) The authorization specifies either an individual or a position having responsibility for the overall operation of the regulated facility or activity.
- (c) Certification. Any person signing a document under paragraph (a) or (b) of this Section shall make the following certification, unless otherwise set forth in these regulations:

"I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations."

(d) Change in signatory authorization. If an authorization under paragraph (b) of this section is no longer accurate because a different individual or position has responsibility for the overall operation of the regulated facility or activity, a new authorization satisfying the

3812 requirements of paragraph (b) of this section must be submitted to the administrator prior to or 3813 together with any reports or other information to be signed by the authorized representative. 3814 3815 (e) Violations. Any person who knowingly makes any false statement, 3816 representation, or certification in any record or other document submitted or required to be 3817 maintained under this permit, including monitoring reports or reports of compliance or 3818 noncompliance shall be in violation of the permit, these regulations and the Environmental 3819 Quality Act. 3820 **Section 15. Public Participation.** 3821 Major modifications, issuance, or reissuance of every draft permit; or where the 3822 administrator proposes to terminate coverage under an individual permit; or where the 3823 administrator proposes to conduct a public meeting in accordance with Section 16 of these 3824 regulations, the following procedures shall be used. 3825 3826 (a) Public notice. Public notice of every draft permit, public meeting being held 3827 pursuant to Section 16 of the regulations, or granting of an appeal shall be given in the following 3828 manner: 3829 3830 (i) In addition to the applicable provisions of Section 15 (a) (ii) through (v), 3831 notice shall be circulated by one or more of the following methods: 3832 (A) 3833 For individual permits, posting in the post office and other public 3834 places of the municipality nearest the location(s) of the proposed discharge(s); 3835 3836 (B) For individual permits, posting near the entrance to the 3837 applicant's premises; 3838 3839 (C) For individual permits, publication in newspapers of general 3840 circulation in the locations of the proposed discharges; 3841 3842 (D) For individual and general permits, publication in a newspaper 3843 with statewide distribution; 3844 3845 For general permits, publication in a newspaper with circulation (E) 3846 in the geographic area defined in the general permit. 3847 3848 For individual permits, where a proposed outfall would occur on 3849 property that is not owned by the applicant, a copy of the public notice will be provided to the 3850 owner of the property. 3851 3852 3853 (iii) For general permits, in accordance with applicable provisions of the 3854 general permit. 3855

356		(iv)	For m	ajor per	mits, publication in a daily or weekly newspaper within the					
357	area affected	by the fa	cility or activity.							
358										
359		(v)	In addition to Section 15 (a) (i) through (iv), publication on the							
360	Wyoming Department of Environmental Quality Internet Website (http://deq.state.wy.us).									
361										
362		(vi)	No pu	blic not	ice is required when a request for permit modification,					
363	revocation an	d reissua	nce, or t	erminat	ion, or coverage or modification under a general permit is					
364	denied.									
365										
366		(vii)	The ap	pplicant	shall be mailed a copy of the fact sheet, which includes the					
367	public notice,	a draft c	opy of the	ppy of the permit, and the statement of basis. The applicant will not be						
368	mailed a copy	of the a	pplicatio	n mater	rials, which is also part of the fact sheet.					
369										
370		(viii)	Notice	e shall b	e mailed to any person upon request, and the administrator					
71	shall upon red	quest add	the nam	ne of any	y person to a list of persons or parties designated to receive					
72	copies of pub	lic notice	es.							
73										
74		(ix)	The ac	dministr	rator shall provide a period of not less than 30 days					
75	following the	date of p	oublic no	tice dur	ing which interested persons may submit their comments					
6	on draft perm	its.								
7	_									
8		(x)	The co	ontents	of the public notices for draft permits shall include the					
9	following:				-					
0										
1			(A)	Name	e, address, phone number, and internet address of the Water					
2	Quality Divis	ion;	-		-					
;	-									
			(B)	For in	ndividual permits:					
			•		-					
				(I)	Names and addresses of the applicants;					
				• /						
				(II)	A brief description of each activity or operation resulting					
	in the dischar	ge descri	bed in ea							
		_		11	•					
				(III)	The name of the water course to which such discharge is					
	made and a go	eneral de	scription	` /	location of each outfall;					
2	8		1 31		,					
1				(IV)	A statement of the tentative determination to issue the					
	permit;			(- •)	3 de la companya de l					
	r,									
			(C)	For o	eneral permits:					
3			(0)	1018						
				(I)	A brief description of the activity or operation resulting					
	in the dischar	ges for w	hich the	. ,	will provide coverage and a description of effluent					
		_		_	ats that are being proposed;					
)1	mmations all	o momit	ning icq	uncinci	no mai are being proposed,					

3902							
3903				(II)	A description of the geograph	nic area covered by the	e
3904	general permit	•					
3905							
3906			(D)	The er	d date of the 30 day comment p	period; and	
3907							
3908			(E)	A state	ment that a copy of the draft pe	ermit, fact sheet (if	
3909	prepared), and	other in	formati	on is ava	able at the address specified in	ı paragraph (A) above.	
3910							
3911		(xi)	The c	ontents o	a public notice announcing a p	public meeting shall be	e in
3912	accordance wit	th Sectio	n 16 (c)) of these	regulations.		
3913							
3914	(b)	Minor	facilitie	es. For e	ery minor facility, the adminis	trator shall prepare a	
3915	statement of ba	asis to ac	compa	ny the dra	ft permit. The statement of bas	sis, draft permit and ρε	ermit
3916	application sha	ıll be ava	ilable f	for public	inspection during the public co	omment period.	
3917							
3918	(c)	Major	facilitie	es. For e	ery major facility, the administ	rator shall prepare and	1,
3919	following publ	ic notice	, shall ı	make ava	lable, to any person so requesti	ing, a fact sheet with	
3920	respect to the a	application	on descr	ribed in t	e notice. The administrator sh	all also add the name	of
3921	any person so	requestir	ng to a l	ist of tho	e parties or persons designated	l to be given notice of	fact
3922	sheets publishe	ed, and s	uch fac	t sheet sh	all consist of, at a minimum, th	e statement of basis ar	nd
3923	application, inc	cluding t	he follo	owing inf	ormation when applicable:		
3924							
3925		(i)	A ske	tch or de	cription of the discharge descri	ibed in the permit	
3926	application;						
3927							
3928		(ii)	A qua	ıntitative	description of the discharge wh	ich shall include the ra	ate or
3929	frequency of d	ischarge	, the av	erage sur	mer and winter temperatures,	and the average daily	
3930	discharge in po	ounds pe	r day ar	nd/or kilo	grams per day of any types of v	waste in the discharge;	
3931							
3932		(iii)	Any to	entative o	eterminations reached by the a	dministrator concernin	ng the
3933	application;						
3934							
3935		(iv)	A brie	ef citation	of any water quality standards	and effluent standards	s that
3936	apply to the pr	oposed d	lischarg	ge;			
3937							
3938		(v)	A con	nprehens	ve description of the procedure	s for formulating a fin	ıal
3939	decision with n	espect to	the ap	plication	ncluding;		
3940							
3941			(A)	The be	ginning and ending dates of the	public comment perio	od
3942	and the addres	s where	comme	nts will b	e received;		
3943							
3944			(B)	Proced	ares for requesting a meeting a	nd the nature of that	
3945	meeting; and				-		
3946	-						

3947		(C)	Any other procedures by which the public may participate in the
3948	final decision.			
3949				
3950	(vi) A	ny cal	culations or other necessary explanation of the derivation of
3951	specific effluent l	imitatio	ns and	conditions, including a citation to applicable effluent guidelines
3952	or performance st	tandards	and re	asons why they are applicable or an explanation of how
3953	alternative effluer			
3954				
3955	(vii) F	or peri	mits to be issued to a treatment works owned by a person other
3956	than a state or mu		_	explanation of the administrator=s decision to issue a permit with
3957		_	-	user, to impose conditions on one or more users, to issue separate
3958	applications, and		-	
3959	11			
3960	(viii) V	Vhen tl	he draft permit contains any of the following conditions, an
3961	,			uch conditions are applicable:
3962	•			
3963		(.	A)	Limitations to control toxic pollutants;
3964		`	,	1
3965		(.	B)	Limitations on internal waste streams;
3966		`	,	,
3967		(C)	Limitations on indicator pollutants;
3968		`	- /	I
3969		(D)	Limitations set on a case-by-case basis;
3970			- /	,
3971		(E)	Limitations to meet the criteria for permit issuance; or
3972			_,	F, v-
3973		(F)	Waivers from monitoring requirements.
3974			- /	8 - 1
3975	(-	ix) F	Reasons	s why any requested variances or alternatives to required
3976	standards do or de			
3977	Stationing Go of G	o 1100 u pj	year jes	
3978	(x) J	ustifica	ation for waiver for any application requirements where such a
3979	,			visions of these regulations.
3980	warver is allowed	under ti	ne prov	visions of these regulations.
3981	(d) (Tovernm	ental a	gency mailing list. The following governmental agencies shall
3982				receipt of fact sheets unless such agency requests not to be
3983		_		each will be provided an opportunity to comment upon the draft
3984	permit(s).	idining ii	ot, and	each will be provided an opportunity to comment upon the draft
3985	permit(s).			
3986	(-	i) U	Initad	States Environmental Protection Agency.
3987	(-	1) (inteu ,	States Environmental Protection Agency.
3988	(-	;;) 6	acond	Coast Guard District
3989	(.	ii) S	econd	Coast Guard District.
	1.	;;;) т	Initad	States Rurany of Parlametion
3990 3001		iii) U	intea	States Bureau of Reclamation.
3991	,	:	Ta4	Description Commission Commiss
3992	(1	iv) N	vatural	Resources Conservation Service.

3993			
3994		(v)	United States Forest Service.
3995			
3996		(vi)	United States Bureau of Land Management.
3997			
3998		(vii)	United StatesFish and Wildlife Service.
3999			
4000		(viii)	United States Army Corps of Engineers.
4001			
4002		(ix)	Wyoming Game and Fish Department.
4003			
4004		(x)	Wyoming Oil and Gas Conservation Commission.
4005			
4006		(xi)	Wyoming State Historic Preservation Office.
4007			
4008		(xii)	Wyoming State Engineer.
4009		· · · · ·	
4010	11.	(xiii)	Any other state or federal agency requesting to be placed on the mailing
4011	list.		
4012	(-)	NI - 4 : C: -	ation to effect all states. A new state only a constant was the effect all both a
4013	(e)		eation to affected states. Any state whose waters may be affected by the
4014 4015	•		all be provided with a copy of the public notice and any other relevant
4015 4016		_	uested. Each state whose waters may be affected shall be afforded an it on the draft permit, and the administrator shall take these comments into
4017			e final permit, or the administrator shall provide the affected state, and the
4018			of the EPA, a written explanation of his reasons for failing to accept any
4019	of the commen		of the Livi, a written explanation of his reasons for failing to accept any
4020	of the commen		
4021	(f)	Writter	n comments request for public meeting. During the public comment
4022	` '		graph (a) (v) of this section, any interested person may submit written
4023		_	ermit and may request a public meeting. A request for public meeting shall
4024		_	ccordance with Section 16.
4025		8	
4026			
4027	(g)	Respor	nse to comments. Before a final permit decision is considered, the
4028	_	_	pare a response to comments which is subject to the following conditions:
4029			
4030		(i)	A response to all comments received within the time frame specified in
4031	paragraph (b) ((v) of thi	s Section shall be prepared and provided to the parties submitting
4032	comments;		
4033			
4034		(ii)	The response shall specify which provisions, if any, of the draft permit
4035	have been char	nged in tl	he final permit decision, and the reasons for the change; and
4036			
4037		(iii)	The response shall provide the reasons why any comments did not
4038	result in a char	nge to the	e draft permit; and

4039		
4040	(iv)	The response to comments shall be made available to the public; and
4041		
4042	(v)	Responses to comments from other governmental agencies shall be
4043	addressed in accordance	ee with 40 CFR 124.59.
4044		
4045	(h) Altern	ative effluent limitations. Public notice for any request made under
4046	Appendix M of these r	egulations shall include the following:
4047		
4048	(i)	A statement that the thermal component of the discharge is subject to
4049	effluent limitations und	der Sections 301 or 306 of the CWA and a brief description, including a
4050	quantitative statement,	or the thermal effluent limitations proposed under Sections 301 or 306;
4051		
4052	(ii)	A statement that an Appendix M request has been filed and that
4053	_	nt effluent limitations may be imposed on the thermal component of the
4054	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	ndix M and a brief description, including a quantitative statement, of the
4055	alternative effluent lim	itations, if any, included in the request; and
4056		
4057	(iii)	If the applicant has filed an early screening request under Appendix M of
4058	these regulations, a sta	tement that the applicant has submitted such a plan.
4059	Section 16. Pu	ıblic Meeting.
4060	(a) Reason	n for public meeting.
4061	(.,)	I was a second
4062	(i)	Request for public meeting. The administrator shall provide an
4063	` '	plicant or any interested person or state to request a public meeting, with
4064		respect to any draft permit. Any such request shall be filed in writing
4065		eriod specified in Section 15 (a) (ix) above, and shall indicate the interest of
4066	_	ns why a meeting is warranted. If the administrator finds that there is a
4067		ublic interest in holding such a meeting, hold such a meeting in the
4068	geographic area where	the proposed discharge is located, or other appropriate area. If the
4069		es that a public meeting is not warranted, he shall provide written
4070	notification of his decis	sion to the party requesting the meeting.
4071		
4072	(ii)	Public meetings to provide clarification. The administrator may also
4073	hold a public meeting a	at his discretion, whenever, for instance, such a meeting might clarify one
4074	_	d in the permit decision.
4075		•
4076	(b) Purpos	se. The purpose of holding public meetings is to seek information and
4077	_	n order for the administrator to make a more informed decision.
4078		
4079	(c) Public	notice of a public meeting. Public notice of a public meeting held
4080		(a) of this section, will be utilizing all of the methods available for notice of
4081		set out in paragraph b. given as described in Section 15 (a) (i) of these
4082		notice will be provided no less than 30 days in advance of the meeting. The
4083		notice will consist of the following:

4084	<i>(</i> 1)	
4085	(i)	Name, address, and phone number of the Wyoming Water Quality
4086	Division;	
4087 4088	(ii)	Name, and address of each applicant whose draft permit will be
4089	* *	
4099	considered at the mee	mig,
4090	(iii)	Name of waterway to which each discharge is made and a short
4092	` '	ation of each discharge on the waterway associated with the draft permit(s);
4093	description of the foci	ation of each discharge on the waterway associated with the draft permit(s),
4094	(iv)	Brief reference to the public notice issued for each draft permit,
4095	* *	on number and date of issuance.
4096	merading raeminication	in number and date of issuance.
4097	(v)	Information regarding the date, time, and location of the meeting;
4098	(1)	information regulating the date, time, and rocation of the meeting,
4099	(vi)	A brief description of the nature and purpose of the meeting, including
4100	` '	nd procedures to be followed;
4101	11	
4102	(vii)	A concise statement of the issues raised by the persons requesting the
4103	meeting;	
4104	O *	
4105	(viii)	A statement that a copy of the draft permit, statement of basis, and other
4106	information is availab	le at the address specified in paragraph (a) of this section.
4107		
4108	(d) Subm	nittal of statements and data. Any person may submit written or oral
4109	statements and data co	oncerning the draft permit. Reasonable limits may be set upon the time
4110	allowed for oral stater	ments, and the submission of written statements may be requested. The
4111	public comment perio	d under Section 15 (a) shall be automatically extended to the close of any
4112	public meeting under	this section.
4113		
4114		mentation of the public meeting. An audio or video tape recording or
4115	written transcript of th	ne public meeting shall be made available to the public.
4116	Section 17. H	<u>learing.</u>
4117	In any case w	here the director makes a decision to issue, modify, or terminate a permit or
4118	•	nit authorization, or where the director makes a decision to deny issuance or
4119	_	mit or MS4 storm water permit authorization, any interested person may
4120	_	ore the Environmental Quality Council. A request for hearing shall be made
4121	_	e applicable Department of Environmental Quality=s Rules of Practice and
4122	Procedure.	(
4123	<u>Section</u> <u>18. P</u>	<u>tublic Information.</u>
4124		ability of information. All information required on or attached to permit
4125	* *	tices of intent, reporting forms, draft or issued permits, authorizations, or
4126	related correspondence	e shall be made available to the public for inspection and copying, subject

4127	to W.S. 35-11	-1101 aı	nd all otl	her applicable state laws. The administrator shall provide facilities				
4128	for inspection of all non-confidential documents.							
4129								
4130	(b)	Applicability of trade secrets. The following information may not be considered						
4131	to constitute t	rade seci	rets and	must be made available to the public:				
4132								
4133		(i)	Name	e and address of any permit applicant or permittee;				
4134								
4135		(ii)	Permi	it applications, permits and effluent data.				
4136	Section	on <u>19. T</u>	<u>ransfer</u>	of Permits.				
4137								
4138	(a)	Permi	ts may b	be transferred by a permittee to a new owner or operator if:				
4139								
4140		(i)	Cond	itional transfers. The permit has been modified or revoked and				
4141	reissued to ide	entify the	e new pe	ermittee and to incorporate such other requirements as may be				
4142	necessary und	ler these	regulati	ons.				
4143								
4144		(ii)	Autor	matic transfers. A permit may be automatically transferred to a new				
4145	permittee if:							
4146								
4147			(A)	The current permittee notifies the director in writing at least 30				
4148	days in advan	ce of the	propose	ed transfer date in paragraph (b) (ii) of this Section;				
4149								
4150			(B)	The notice includes a written agreement between the existing				
4151	and new perm	ittees or	a form	provided by the administrator. The form shall contain a specific				
4152	date for transf	er of per	mit resp	consibility, coverage and liability between the two parties; and				
4153								
4154			(C)	The director does not notify the existing permittee and the				
4155	proposed new	permitte	ee of its	intent to modify or revoke and reissue the permit.				
4156								

Intentionally left blank

APPENDIX A: Explanation of Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) Codes Regulated by the Industrial Storm Water Program

4158

4156

4157

Industry Type	SIC Code	Comments
Metal mining and milling	10	(a)
Coal mining	12	(a)
Oil and Gas Extraction	13	
Mining and quarrying of nonmetallic minerals except fuels	14	(a)
Food and kindred products	20	
Tobacco products	21	
Textile mill products	22	
Apparel and other finished products made from fabric and similar materials	23	
Lumber and wood products except furniture	24	
Furniture and fixtures	25	
Paper and allied products	26	
Printing, publishing, and allied products	27	
Chemicals and allied products	28	
Petroleum refining and related industries	29	
Rubber and miscellaneous plastics products	30	
Leather and leather products	31	
Stone, clay, glass and concrete products	32	
Primary metal industries	33	
Fabrication of metal products, except machinery and transportation equipment	34	
Industrial and commercial machinery and computer equipment	35	
Electronic and other electrical equipment and components, except compute		
equipment	36	
Transportation equipment	37	
Measuring analyzing, and controlling instruments; Photographic, medical, and		
optical goods; watches and clocks	38	
Miscellaneous manufacturing industries	39	
Railroad transportation	40	(b)
Local and suburban transit and interurban highway passenger transportation	41	(b)
2004 and success and metaleum ingility passenger analyperation	42	(6)
	(except 4221,	
Motor freight transportation and warehousing	4222, and 4225)	(b)
	,,	(4)
Farm product warehousing and storage	4221	
Refrigerated warehousing and storage	4222	
General warehousing and storage	4225	
US Postal facilities	43	(b)
Water transportation	44	(b)
Transportation by air	45	(b)
Motor vehicle parts, used		\~/
Transit Fallo, dood	5015	
Scrap and waste materials	5093	
Serap and masterinate	2373	(b)
Petroleum bulk stations and terminals	5171	(0)
Comments:	51/1	<u> </u>

4159

4160 4161 4162

For this SIC Code, a storm water permit is required only if runoff contacts overburden, raw material, intermediate products, finished products, byproducts or waste products located on the site of such operations.

4163 4164

4165

In this SIC Code, only facilities with vehicle maintenance (including vehicle rehabilitation, mechanical repairs, painting, fueling, and lubrication), equipment cleaning, or airport deicing need a storm water permit.

This page intentionally left blank

APPENDIX B: Additional Requirements Applicable to Existing Manufacturing, Commercial, Mining and Silviculture Discharges

(a) Application requirements. Existing manufacturing, commercial, mining, and silviculture discharges applying for permits, except for those facilities which discharge only non-process wastewater, shall provide the following information, in addition to that described in Section 5 (a) (v), to the administrator, using the application forms provided by the administrator.

(i) A line drawing of the water flow through the facility with a water balance, showing operations contributing wastewater to the effluent and treatment units. Similar processes, operations, or production areas may be indicated as a single unit, labeled to correspond to the more detailed identification required in paragraph (a) (ii) of this appendix. The water balance must show approximate average flows at intake and discharge points and between units, including treatment units. If a water balance cannot be determined (for example, for certain mining activities), the applicant may provide instead a pictorial description of the nature and amount of any sources of water and any collection and treatment measures.

(ii) Average flows and treatment. A narrative identification of each type of process, operation, or production area which contributes wastewater to the effluent for each outfall, including process wastewater, cooling water, and storm water runoff; the average flow which each process contributes; and a description of the treatment the wastewater receives, including the ultimate disposal of any solid or fluid wastes other than by discharge. Processes, operations, or production areas may be described in general terms (for example, "dye-making reactor," "distillation tower") For a privately owned treatment works, this information shall include the identity of each user of the treatment works. The average flow of point sources composed of storm water may be estimated. The basis for the rainfall event and the method of estimation must be indicated.

(iii) Intermittent flows. If any of the discharges described in paragraph (a) (ii) of this appendix are intermittent or seasonal, a description of the frequency, duration and flow rate of each discharge occurrence (except for storm water runoff, spillage or leaks).

(iv) Maximum production. If an effluent guideline listed in Section 5 (c) of these regulations applies to the applicant and is expressed in terms of production (or other measure of operation), a reasonable measure of the applicant's actual production reported in the units used in the applicant effluent limitation. The reported measure must reflect the actual production of the facility.

(v) Improvements. If the applicant is subject to any present requirements or compliance schedules for construction, upgrading or operation of waste treatment equipment, an identification of the abatement requirement, a description of the abatement project and projected final compliance dates.

(vi) Quantitative data. At a minimum, the applicant shall submit quantitative data for pollutants in the discharge as provided in this paragraph and in paragraph (a) (vi) (G) of

4211 4212 4213	believe that a pollutant is prese	nt in an	agraph, an applicant is expected to know or have reason to effluent based on an evaluation of the expected use, or on any previous analyses for the pollutant.			
4214		ŕ				
4215	(A)	Every	applicant must report quantitative data for every outfall			
4216	for the following pollutants:	·				
4217						
4218		(I)	Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD5),			
4219						
4220		(II)	Chemical Oxygen Demand,			
4221						
4222		(III)	Total Organic Carbon,			
4223						
4224		(IV)	Total Suspended Solids,			
4225						
4226		(V)	Ammonia (as N),			
4227						
4228		(VI)	Temperature (both winter and summer), and			
4229 4230		(VII)	pH.			
4231		(VII)	p11.			
4232	(B)	The ad	Iministrator may waive the reporting requirements for			
4233	* *		ilar industry category for one or more of the pollutants			
4234	listed in paragraph (a) (vi) (A) of this appendix if the applicant has demonstrated that such a					
4235	waiver is appropriate because information adequate to support issuance of a permit can be					
4236	obtained with less stringent req					
4237		•				
4238	(C)	Each a	pplicant with processes in one or more primary industry			
4239	category (see Appendix A to 40	0 CFR P	art 122) contributing to a discharge must report			
4240	quantitative data for the follow	ing pollu	ntants in each outfall containing process wastewater:			
4241						
4242		(I)	The organic toxic pollutants in the fractions designated			
4243			ix D for the applicant's industrial category or categories.			
4244		•	c toxic pollutants in each fraction. The fractions result			
4245		_	y the analytical procedure which uses gas			
4246 4247		•	determination that an applicant falls within a particular			
4247 4248			selecting fractions for testing is not conclusive as to the			
+248 4249	applicant's inclusion in that cat	egory 10	any other purposes.			
4250		(II)	The pollutants listed in 40 CFR Part 122, Table III of			
4251	Appendix D (the toxic metals,	` '	-			
4252	rippendix B (the toxic metals,	cyumae,	and total phonois).			
4253	(D)	Each a	pplicant must indicate whether they know or have reason			
4254	` /		described in (I) or (II) below is discharged from each			
4255	outfall.		., .,			
4256						

4257	(I) Any of the pollutants in Table IV of Appendix D (certain						
4258	conventional and non-conventional pollutants) of 40 CFR Part 122. If an applicable effluent						
4259	limitations guideline either directly limits the pollutant or, by its express terms, indirectly limits						
4260	the pollutant through limitations on an indicator, the applicant must report quantitative data. For						
4261	every pollutant discharged which is not so limited in an effluent limitations guideline, the						
4262	applicant must either report quantitative data or briefly describe the reasons the pollutant is						
4263	expected to be discharged.						
4264							
4265	(II) Any of the pollutants listed in Table II or Table III of						
4266	Appendix D (the toxic pollutants and total phenols) of 40 CFR Part 122 for which quantitative						
4267	data are not otherwise required under paragraph (a) (vi) (C) of this appendix. For every pollutant						
4268	expected to be discharged in concentrations of 10 ppb or greater the applicant must report						
4269	quantitative data For acrolein, acrylonitrile, 2,4 dinitrophenol, and 2-methyl-4,6 dinitrophenol,						
4270	where any of these four pollutants are expected to be discharged in concentrations of 100 ppb or						
4271	greater, the applicant must report qualitative data. For every pollutant expected to be discharged						
4272	in concentrations less than 10 ppb, or in the case of acrolein, acrylonitrile, 2,4 dinitrophenol, and						
4273	2-methyl-4,6 dinitrophenol, in concentrations less than 100 ppb, the applicant must either submit						
4274	quantitative data or briefly describe the reasons the pollutant is expected to be discharged.						
4275	qualitative data of effective the reasons the pollutant is expected to be discharged.						
4276	(E) Each applicant must indicate whether they know or have reason						
4277	to believe that any of the pollutants in Table V of Appendix D of 40 CFR Part 122 (certain						
4278	hazardous substances and asbestos) are discharged from each outfall. For every pollutant						
4279	expected to be discharged, the applicant must briefly describe the reasons the pollutant is						
4280	expected to be discharged, and report any quantitative data it has for any pollutant.						
4281	emperiod to be discharged, and report any quantitative data to has for any positional.						
4282	(F) For purposes of paragraphs (C) and (D) above, the applicant						
4283	need not provide quantitative data if the pollutant is present in the discharge solely as a result of						
4284	the presence in intake water. However, the applicant must report such pollutant as present.						
4285	the presence in make water. However, the apprecian mast report such ponduals as present.						
4286	(G) Each applicant must report qualitative data, generated using a						
4287	screening procedure not calibrated with analytical standards, for 2,3,7,8-tetrachlorodibenzo-p-						
4288	dioxin (TCDD) if they:						
4289							
4290	(I) Use or manufacture 2,4,5-trichlorophenoxy acetic acid						
4291	(2,4,5,-T); 2-(2,4,5-trichlorophenoxy) propanoic acid (Silvex, 2,4,5,-TP); 2-(2,4,5-						
4292	trichlorophenoxy) ethyl, 2,2-dichloropropionate (Erbon); O,O-dimethyl O-(2,4,5-trichlorphenyl)						
4293	phosphorothioate (Ronnel); 2,4,5-trichlorophenol (TCP); or hexachlorophene (HCP); or						
4294	phosphorounoute (Rolliner), 2, 1,3 themorophoro (Ter), or nextensorophoro (Ter), or						
4295	(II) Know or have reason to believe that TCDD is or may be						
4296	present in an effluent.						
4297	proposit in an officialit.						
4298	(vii) When quantitative data for a pollutant are required, the applicant must						
4299	collect a sample of effluent and analyze it for the pollutant in accordance with analytical methods						
4300	approved under 40 CFR Part 136. When no analytical method is approved the applicant may use						
4300	any suitable method but must provide a description of the method.						
4201	any surracte memod our must provide a description of the memod.						

4303	(A) When an applicant has two (2) or more outfalls with							
4304	substantially identical effluents, the department may allow the applicant to test only one (1)							
4305	outfall and report that the quantitative data also apply to the substantially identical outfalls.							
4306								
4307	(B) Grab samples must be used for pH, temperature, cyanide, total							
4308	phenols, residual chlorine, oil and grease, fecal coliform and fecal streptococcus.							
4309								
4310	(C) For all other pollutants, 24-hour composite samples must be							
4311	used. However, a minimum of one (1) grab sample may be taken for effluents from holding							
4312	ponds or other impoundments with a retention period greater than 24-hours. In addition, for							
4313	discharges other than storm water discharges, the administrator may waive composite sampling							
4314	for any outfall for which the applicant demonstrates that the use of an automatic sampler is							
4315	infeasible and that the minimum of four (4) grab samples will be a representative sample of the							
4316	effluent being discharged.							
4317								
4318	(viii) Used or manufactured toxins. A listing of any toxic pollutant which the							
4319	applicant currently uses or manufactures as an intermediate or final product or byproduct. The							
4320	administrator may waive or modify this requirement for any applicant who demonstrates that it							
4321	would be unduly burdensome to identify each toxic pollutant if the administrator has adequate							
4322	information to issue the permit.							
4323	1							
4324	(ix) An identification of any whole effluent toxicity tests which the applicant							
4325	knows or has reason to believe has been made within the last three (3) years on any of the							
4326	applicant's discharges or on a receiving water in relation to a discharge.							
4327								
4328	(x) Contract analyses. If a contract laboratory or consulting firm performed							
4329	any of the analyses required in paragraphs (a) (vi) or (a) (vii) of this appendix, the applicant shall							
4330	identify each laboratory or firm and the analyses performed.							
4331								
4332	(xi) Small business exemption. An applicant which qualifies as a small							
4333	business under one of the following criteria is exempt from the requirements in Appendix B (a)							
4334	(vi) (C) (I) and the Table II quantitative requirement of Appendix B (a) (vi) (D) (II):							
4335								
4336	(A) For coal mines, the probable total annual production is less than							
4337	100,000 tons per year.							
4338								
4339	(B) For all other applicants, the gross total annual sales average less							
4340	than \$100,000 per year (in second quarter 1980 dollars).							
4341								
4342	(b) Notification of routine toxic discharges not limited in the permit. Permits for							
4343	existing manufacturing, commercial, mining and silvicultural discharges shall require that the							
4344	permittee report to the administrator as soon as the permittee knows or has reason to believe that							
4345	any activity has occurred or will occur which would result in the discharge, on a routine or							
4346	frequent basis, of any toxic pollutant which is not limited in the permit, if that discharge will							
4347	exceed the highest of the following notification levels:							

4349		(i)	One hundred micrograms per liter (100 µg/l);
4350			
4351		(ii)	Two hundred micrograms per liter (200 µg/l) for acrolein and
4352			dred micrograms per liter (500 µg/l) for 2,4-dinitrophenol and for 2-methyl-
4353	4,6-dinitrophe	nol; and	one milligram per liter (1 mg/l) for antimony;
4354			
4355		(iii)	Five (5) times the maximum concentration value reported for that
4356	pollutant in th	e permit	application; or
4357			
4358		(iv)	The notification level established by the director in accordance with
4359	Section 5 (c) of	of these	regulations.
4360			
4361	(c)	Notifi	cation of non-routine toxic discharges not limited in the permit Permits for
4362	existing manu	facturing	g, commercial, mining and silvicultural discharges shall require that the
4363	permittee repo	ort to the	director as soon as the permittee knows or has reason to believe that any
4364	activity has oc	curred o	or will occur which would result in any discharge, on a non-routine or
4365	infrequent bas	is, of an	y toxic pollutant which is not limited in the permit, if that discharge will
4366	exceed the hig	shest of	the following notification levels:
4367			
4368		(i)	Five hundred micrograms per liter (500 μg/l);
4369			
4370		(ii)	One milligram per liter (1 mg/l) for antimony;
4371			
4372		(iii)	Ten (10) times the maximum concentration value reported for that
4373	pollutant in th	e permit	application; or
4374			
4375		(iv)	The notification level established by the administrator in accordance with
4376	Section 5 (c) of	of these	regulations.

This page intentionally left blank.

377 378	<u>APPENDIX</u> C:	Addi			nents <u>Applicable to New Manufacturing, Commercial,</u> nd <u>Silvicultural Discharges</u>
379					
380				_	ommercial, mining and silvicultural dischargers applying
381	•	•		_	of facilities subject to the requirements of Appendix D of
382	-		_		owing information, in addition to that described in
383 384	Section 5 (a) (iv)	, to the	aumm	strator, t	using the application form provided by the administrator.
385 386	((i)	Discha	rge date	s. The expected date of commencement of discharge.
387 388	((ii)	Flows,	sources	of pollution, and treatment technologies.
389			(A)	Expect	ed treatment of wastewater. Description of the treatment
890	that the wastewar	ter will	` '	_	with all operations contributing wastewater to the effluent,
91				_	tion, and the ultimate disposal of any solid or liquid
92	wastes not discha			F	,
93		6			
94			(B)	Line di	rawing. A line drawing of the water flow through the
95	facility with a wa	ater bal			ed in Appendix B (a) (i).
6	•				
97			(C)	Interm	ittent flows. If any of the expected discharges will be
8	intermittent or se	asonal	, a descr		f the frequency, duration and maximum daily flow rate of
9				_	torm water runoff, spillage, or leaks).
00	C		`	•	
)1	((iii)	Produc	tion. If	a new source performance standard promulgated under
2	Section 306 of th	e CW	A or an e	effluent	limitation guideline applies to the applicant and is
3	expressed in tern	ns of p	roductio	n (or oth	ner measure of operation), a reasonable measure of the
1	applicant's expec	ted act	ual prod	luction r	eported in the units used in the applicable effluent
5	guideline or new	source	perform	nance st	andard for each of the first three (3) years. Alternative
6	estimates may als	so be s	ubmitte	d if prod	uction is likely to vary.
7					
8	((iv)	Effluer	nt charac	eteristics.
9					
0			(A)	Each a	pplicant must report estimated daily maximum, daily
l	average, and sour	rce of i	nformat	tion for e	each outfall for the following pollutants or parameters.
2					
3				(I)	Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD5),
1					
5				(II)	Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD),
)					
7				(III)	Total Suspended Solids (TSS),
3					_
				(IV)	Flow,
				.=	
1				(V)	Ammonia (as N),

4422						
4423		(VI)	Temperature (winter and summer),			
4424						
4425		(VII)	pH, and			
4426						
4427		(VIII)	Total Organic Carbon (TOC).			
4428						
4429	(B)	The ad	ministrator may waive the reporting requirements for any			
4430	of the pollutants and parameter	s in App	endix C (a) (iv) (A) if the applicant submits a request for			
4431	such a waiver before or with th	e applica	ation which demonstrates that information adequate to			
4432	support issuance of the permit of	can be ol	otained through less stringent reporting requirements.			
4433						
4434	(C)	Each a	pplicant must report estimated daily maximum, daily			
4435	average, and source of informa-	tion for e	each outfall for all pollutants in Table IV of Appendix D			
4436	40 CFR Part 122 (certain conve	entional a	and non-conventional pollutants) if the applicant knows or			
4437	has reason to believe the pollut	ants will	be present or if the pollutants are limited by an effluent			
4438	limitation guideline or new sou	rce perfo	ormance standard either directly or indirectly through			
4439	limitations on an indicator poll	utant.				
4440						
4441	(D)	Each a	pplicant must report estimated daily maximum, daily			
4442	average and source of informat	ion for tl	he following pollutants if they know or have reason to			
4443	believe that the pollutant will b	e presen	t in the discharges from any outfall:			
4444						
4445		(I)	The pollutants listed in Table III of Appendix D (the			
4446	toxic metals, in the discharge from any outfall: Total cyanide, and total phenols) of 40 CFR Part					
4447	122;					
4448						
4449		(II)	The organic toxic pollutants in Table II of Appendix D			
4450	(except bis (chloromethyl) ethe	r, dichlo	rofluoromethane and trichlorofluoromethane) of 40 CFR			
4451	Part 122. This requirement is v	vaived fo	or applicants qualifying for the small business exemption			
4452	as specified in Appendix B (a)	(xi).				
4453						
4454	(E)	The ap	plicant is required to report that 2,3,7,8			
4455			may be discharged if he uses or manufactures one of the			
4456	following compounds, or if he	knows o	r has reason to believe that TCDD will or may be present			
4457	in an effluent:					
4458						
4459		(I)	2,4,5-trichlorophenoxy acetic acid (2,4,5-T) (CAS #93-			
4460	76-5);					
4461						
4462		(II)	2-(2,4,5-trichlorophenoxy) propanoic acid (Silvex, 2,4,5-			
4463	TP) (CAS #93-72-1);					
4464						
4465		(III)	2-(2,4,5-trichlorophenoxy) ethyl 2,2-dichloropropionate			
4466	(Erbon) (CAS #136-25-4);					
4467						

4468		(IV)	0,0-dimethyl 0-(2,4,5-trichlorophenyl) phosphorothioate			
4469	(Ronnel) (CAS #299-84-3);					
4470						
4471		(V)	2,4,5-trichlorophenol (TCP) (CAS #95-95-4); or			
4472						
4473		(VI)	Hexachlorophene (HCP) (CAS #70-30-4).			
4474			-			
4475	(F)	Each app	plicant must report any pollutants listed in Table V of			
4476	Appendix D (certain hazardous s	substance	es) of 40 CFR Part 122 if they believe the pollutants will			
4477	be present in any outfall (no qua	ntitative	estimates are required unless they are already available).			
4478						
4479	(G)	No later	than two (2) years after the commencement of the			
4480	discharge from a proposed facili	ty, the ap	oplicant must submit analytical results which			
4481	characterize the actual effluent d	ischarge	d. The applicant need not submit this information to the			
4482	extent the analytical results are reported by the applicant under the discharge monitoring					
4483	requirements of the applicant's p	ermit.				
4484						
4485	(v) Enginee	ering repo	ort. Each applicant must report the existence of any			
4486	technical evaluation concerning	the appli	cant's wastewater treatment, along with the name and			
4487	location of similar plants of which the applicant has knowledge.					
4488						
4489	(vi) Other in	formatio	on. Any optional information the permittee wishes to			
4490	have considered.					
4491						
4492						
4493						
4494						
4495						
4496						
4497		Inte	entionally left blank			

This page intentionally left blank.

4498 4499			rements Applicable to Manufacturing, Commercial, ities Discharging Only Non-process Waste Water				
4500	ming and phytes	<u> </u>	Discharging Only Non process Waste Water				
4501	(a) Application	on requiremen	nts. Application requirements for manufacturing,				
4502		-	cilities which discharge only non-process wastewater.				
4503			• • •				
4504	Except for storm water discharges, all manufacturing, commercial, mining, and silvicultural dischargers applying for permits which discharge only non-process wastewater not regulated by						
4505			source performance standard shall provide the following				
4506	information, in addition to that described in Section 5 (a) (iv), to the administrator, using						
4507	application forms provided by the administrator.						
4508	appround forms provide	a of the dulin					
4509	(i) D	ischarge date	(for new dischargers). Date of expected commencement				
4510	of discharge.	8-	(
4511							
4512	(ii) T	vpe of waste.	An identification of the general type of waste discharged,				
4513			mencement of operations, including sanitary wastes,				
4514	-	_	ntact cooling water. An identification of cooling water				
4515			ted to be used upon commencement of operations, along				
4516	with their composition if e	•					
4517	•						
4518	(iii) E	ffluent charac	eteristics.				
4519							
4520	(/	A) Quanti	tative data for the pollutants or parameters listed below,				
4521	unless testing is waived by	by the administrator.					
4522							
4523		(I)	Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BOD5),				
4524							
4525		(II)	Total Suspended Solids (TSS),				
4526							
4527		(III)	Fecal Coliform (if believed present or if sanitary waste is				
4528	or will be discharged),						
4529							
4530		(IV)	Total Residual Chlorine (if chlorine is used),				
4531							
4532		(V)	Oil and Grease,				
4533							
4534	11	(VI)	Chemical Oxygen Demand (COD)(if non-contact				
4535	cooling water is or will be	discharged),					
4536		(XIII)	A				
4537		(VII)	Ammonia (as N),				
4538 4530		(A)III)	Disaharga Flow				
4539 4540		(VIII)	Discharge Flow,				
4540 4541		(IX)	ηΉ				
4341 4542		$(\mathbf{I}\Lambda)$	pH,				

4543	(X) Temperature (Winter and Summer), and
4544	
4545	(XI) Total Organic Carbon (TOC).
4546	
4547	(B) The quantitative data in Appendix D (a) (iii) (A) may be data
4548	collected over the past 365 days, if they remain representative of current operations, and must
4549	include daily maximum value, daily average value, and number of measurements taken. The
4550	applicant must collect and analyze samples in accordance with 40 CFR Part 136. Grab samples
4551	must be used for pH, temperature, oil and grease, total residual chlorine, and fecal coliform. For
4552	all other pollutants, 24-hour composite samples must be used. New dischargers must include
4553	estimates for the pollutants or parameters listed below instead of actual sampling data, along with
4554	the source of each estimate. All levels must be reported or estimated as concentration and as total
4555	mass, except for flow, pH, and temperature.
4556	
4557	(C) The administrator may waive the testing and reporting
4558	requirements for any of the pollutants or flow listed in paragraph (a) (iii) of this appendix if the
4559	applicant submits a request for such a waiver before or with the permit application which
4560	demonstrates that information adequate to support issuance of a permit can be obtained through
4561	less stringent requirements.
4562	•
4563	(D) If the applicant is a new discharger, the applicant must provide
4564	quantitative data in accordance with paragraph (a) (iii) of this appendix no later than two (2) year
4565	after commencement of discharge. However, the applicant need not perform tests which they
4566	have already performed and reported under the discharge monitoring requirements of the
4567	applicant's permit.
4568	
4569	(E) The requirements of paragraph (a) (iii) of this appendix do not
4570	apply for pollutants present in a discharge solely as a result of their presence in intake water.
4571	However, an applicant must report such pollutants as present. Net credit may be provided for the
4572	presence of pollutants in intake water if the requirements are met.
4573	
4574	(iv) Flow. A description of the frequency of flow and duration of any
4575	seasonal or intermittent discharge (except for storm water runoff, leaks, or spills).
4576	
4577	(v) Treatment system. A brief description of any system used or to be used.
4578	, and the second
4579	(vi) Optional information. Any additional information the applicant wishes
4580	to be considered.

4581 4582	APPENDIX E: Additional Requirements Applicable to New and Existing Publicly owned Treatment Works (POTWs)						
4583							
4584	(a) Application requirements for new and existing POTWs. POTWs shall provide						
4585	the following information, in addition to that described in Section 5 (a) (v), to the administrator,						
4586	using the application form provided by the administrator.						
4587	S I						
4588	(i) Name of State Management/River Basin and 12 digit hydrologic						
4589	cataloging unit code.						
4590							
4591	(ii) Critical flow of the receiving surface waters of the state and total						
4592	hardness of the receiving surface waters of the state at critical low flow.						
4593							
4594	(iii) The following POTWs shall provide to the administrator the results of						
4595	whole effluent toxicity testing conducted in accordance with EPA approved methods:						
4596							
4597	(A) All POTWs with design influent flows equal to or greater than						
4598	one million gallons per day; and						
4599							
4600	(B) All POTWs with approved pretreatment programs or POTWs						
4601	required to develop a pretreatment program.						
4602							
4603	(iv) Effluent monitoring for specific parameters.						
4604							
4605	(A) All applicants must submit to the administrator effluent						
4606	monitoring information for samples taken from each outfall through which effluent is discharged						
4607	to surface waters of the state, except for CSOs. The administrator may allow applicants to submit						
4608	sampling data for only one (1) outfall on a case-by-case basis, where the applicant has two (2) or						
4609	more outfalls with substantially identical effluent. The administrator may also allow applicants to						
4610	composite samples from one or more outfalls that discharge into the same mixing zone.						
4611							
4612	(B) Unless otherwise indicated, all applicants must sample and						
4613	analyze for the pollutants listed in Table E1 of this Appendix.						
4614							
4615	(C) Unless otherwise indicated, all applicants with a design flow						
4616	greater than or equal to 0.1 mgd must sample and analyze for the pollutants listed in Table E2 of						
4617	this Appendix. Facilities are not required to sample and analyze for chlorine if they do not use						
4618	chlorine for disinfection, do not use chlorine elsewhere in the treatment process, and have no						
4619 4620	reasonable potential to discharge chlorine in their effluent.						
4621							
4621	(D) The following applicants must comple and englying for the						
4623	(D) The following applicants must sample and analyze for the pollutants listed in 40 CFR 122 Appendix J Table 2 and for any other pollutants for which state						
4624	surface water quality standards have been established for the receiving waters:						
4625	surface water quanty standards have been established for the receiving waters.						
1023							

4626	(I) All POTWs with a design flow rate equal to or greater						
4627	than one million gallons per day.						
4628							
4629	(II) All POTWs with approved pretreatment programs or						
4630	POTWs required to develop a pretreatment program.						
4631							
4632	(III) Any other POTW as required by the administrator.						
4633							
4634	(E) Unless otherwise indicated, all applicants must provide data						
4635	from a minimum of three (3) samples taken within four and one-half (4.5) year prior to the date of						
4636	the permit application. Samples must be representative of seasonal variation in the discharge						
4637	from each outfall. Existing data may be used, if available, in lieu of sampling done solely for the						
4638	purpose of this application.						
4639							
4640	(F) All existing data for pollutants specified in this Appendix that is						
4641	collected within four and one-half (4.5) years of the application must be included in the pollutant						
4642	data summary submitted by the applicant. If, however, the applicant samples for a specific						
4643	pollutant on a monthly or more frequent basis, it is only necessary, for such pollutant, to						
4644	summarize all data collected within one (1) year of the application.						
4645							
4646	(G) Unless otherwise indicated, all applicants must collect samples						
4647	of effluent and analyze such samples for pollutants in accordance with analytical methods						
4648	approved und 40 CFR Part 136 unless an alternative is specified in the existing WYPDES permit.						
4649	Grab samples must be used for pH, temperature, cyanide, total phenols, residual chlorine, oil and						
4650	grease, and fecal coliform. For all other pollutants, 24-hour composite samples must be used.						
4651	For a composite sample, only one analysis of the composite of aliquots is required.						
4652							
4653	(H) The effluent monitoring data provided must include at least the						
4654	following information for each parameter.						
4655							
4656	(I) daily maximum discharge, expressed as concentration or						
4657	mass, based upon actual sample values;						
4658							
4659	(II) daily average discharge for all samples, expressed as						
4660	concentration or mass, and the number of samples used to obtain this value;						
4661							
4662	(III) The analytical method used; and						
4663							
4664	(IV) The practical quantitation limit for the analytical method						
4665	used.						
4666							
4667							
4668	(I) Unless otherwise required by the administrator, metals						
4669	must be reported as dissolved or total recoverable as applicable in accordance with Wyoming						
4670	Water Quality Rules and Regulations Chapter 1.						
4671							

4672	(v) In addition to the POTWs listed in paragraph (a) (1) of this appendix, the
4673	division may require other POTWs to submit the results of toxicity tests with their permit
4674	applications, based on consideration of the following factors:
4675	
4676	(A) The variability of the pollutants or pollutant parameters in the
4677	POTW effluent (based on chemical-specific information, the type of treatment facility, and types
4678	of industrial contributors);
4679	or mountain volume worth,
4680	(B) The dilution of the effluent in the receiving water (ratio of
4681	effluent flow to receiving surface waters of the state flow);
4682	errident from to receiving surface waters of the state from),
4683	(C) Existing controls on point or nonpoint sources, including TMDL
4684	calculations for the waterbody segment and the relative contribution of the POTW;
4685	calculations for the waterbody segment and the relative contribution of the FOTW,
4686	(D) Receiving water characteristics, including possible or known
4687	water quality impairment, and whether the POTW discharges to waters designated as Class 1 in
4688	accordance with Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations Chapter 1; or
4689	
4690	(E) Other considerations (including but not limited to the history of
4691	toxic impact and compliance problems at the POTW), which the administrator determines could
4692	cause or contribute to adverse water quality impacts.
4693	
4694	(vi) For POTWs required under paragraph (a) (i) or (a) (ii) of this appendix to
4695	conduct toxicity testing, POTWs shall use methods approved by the administrator.
4696	(II) T300
4697	(vii) Effluent monitoring for whole effluent toxicity.
4698	
4699	(A) All applicants must provide an identification of any whole
4700	effluent toxicity tests conducted during the four and one half (4.5) years prior to the date of the
4701	application on any of the applicant=s discharges or on any receiving water near the discharge.
4702	
4703	(B) Where the POTW has two or more outfalls with substantially
4704	identical effluent discharging to the same receiving water segment, the administrator may allow
4705	applicants to submit whole effluent toxicity data for only one (1) outfall on a case-by-case basis.
4706	The administrator may also allow applicants to composite samples from one (1) or more outfalls
4707	that discharge into the same mixing zone.
4708	
4709	(C) Each applicant required to perform whole effluent toxicity
4710	testing pursuant to paragraph (a) (iii) of this Appendix must provide:
4711	
4712	(I) Results of a minimum of four (4) quarterly tests for a
4713	year, from the year preceding the permit application; or
4714	
4715	(II) Results from four tests performed at least annually in the
4716	four and one half (4.5) year period prior to the application, provided the results show no
4717	appreciable toxicity using a safety factor determined by the permitting authority.

4718						
4719	(D) Applicants must conduct tests with multiple species (no less than					
4720	two (2) species; e.g., fish invertebrate, plant) and test for acute or chronic toxicity, depending on					
4721	the range of receiving water dilution. It is recommended that applicants conduct acute or chronic					
4722	testing based on the following dilutions.					
4723						
4724	(I) Acute toxicity testing if the dilution of the effluent is					
4725	greater than 1,000:1 at the edge of the mixing zone.					
4726						
4727	(II) Acute or chronic toxicity testing if the dilution of the					
4728	effluent is between 100:1 and 1000:1 at the edge of the mixing zone. Acute testing may be more					
4729	appropriate at the higher end and chronic testing may be more appropriate towards the lower end.					
4730						
4731	(III) Chronic testing if the dilution of the effluent is less than					
4732	100:1 at the edge of the mixing zone.					
4733						
4734	(E) Unless otherwise directed by the administrator, each applicant					
4735	required to perform whole effluent toxicity testing pursuant to paragraph (a) (i) of this appendix					
4736	must provide the number of chronic or acute whole effluent toxicity tests that have been					
4737	conducted since the last permit reissuance.					
4738						
4739	(F) Applicants must provide the results using a form provided by the					
4740	administrator, or test summaries if available and comprehensive, for each whole effluent toxicity					
4741	test conducted pursuant to this appendix for which such information has not been reported					
4742	previously to the administrator.					
4743						
4744	(G) For the purposes of these regulations whole effluent toxicity					
4745	testing for must be conducted using methods approved under 40 CFR Part 136.					
4746						
4747	(H) For whole effluent toxicity data submitted to the administrator					
4748	within four and one half (4.5) years prior to the date of the application applicants must provide					
4749	the dates on which the data were submitted and a summary of the results, unless otherwise					
4750	directed by the administrator.					
4751						
4752	(I) Each POTW required to perform whole effluent toxicity					
4753	testing in accordance with these regulations must provide any information on the cause of toxicity					
4754	and written details of any toxicity reduction evaluation conducted, if any whole effluent toxicity					
4755	test conducted within the past four and one-half years revealed toxicity.					
4756						
4757	(viii) POTWs receiving Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA),					
4758	Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA), or					
4759	RCRA Corrective Action wastes or wastes generated at another type of environmental cleanup or					
4760	remediation site must provide the following information.					
4761						

4762 4763 4764	(A) If the POTW receives, or has been notified that it will receive, by truck, rail, or dedicated pipe any wastes that are regulated as RCRA hazardous wastes pursuant to 40 CFR Part 261, the applicant must report the following:					
4765 4766		(I)	The n	nethod by which the waste is received (i.e., whether		
4767	by truck, rail, or dedicat	ed pipe); and				
4768 4769		(II)	The h	azardous waste number amount received annually		
4770	of each hazardous waste	.				
4771						
4772				receives, or has been notified that it will receive		
4773	•			ities, including those undertaken pursuant to		
4774	CERCLA and sections 3	3004(u) or 3008	8(h) of I	RCRA, the applicant must report the following:		
4775						
4776		(I)	The id	lentity and description of the site(s) or facility(ies)		
4777	at which the wastewater	originates.				
4778						
4779		(II)		lentities of the wastewater=s hazardous		
4780	constituents, as listed in	Appendix VIII	of 40 C	CFR Part 261, if known.		
4781						
4782		(III)	The e	xtent of treatment, if any, the wastewater receives		
4783	or will receive before en	itering the POT	W.			
4784						
4785		(C) Applic	cants are	e exempt from the requirements of paragraph (e)(ii)		
4786	of this Appendix if they	receive no mor	re than f	ifteen kilograms per month of hazardous wastes as		
4787	specified in 40 CFR 261	.30 (d) and 261	1.33 (e).			
4788						
4789	(ix)	Each applicant	t with co	ombined sewer systems must provide the following		
4790	information.					
4791						
4792		(A) Comb	ined sev	ver system information:		
4793				·		
4794		(I)	Syste	m map. A map indicating the location of the		
4795	following:		•			
4796	C					
4797			(1.)	All combined sewer overflow (CSO) discharge		
4798	points.		` /	` ,		
4799	•					
4800			(2.)	Sensitive use areas potentially affected by CSOs.		
4801			` /	1 3		
4802			(3.)	Waters supporting threatened or endangered		
4803	species potentially affect	ted by CSOs.	(-•)	Tariff and the same of the sam		
4804	Tribunda area					
4805						
4806		(II)	System	m diagram. A diagram of the combined sewer		
4807	collection system that in					
.007	- 51100011 by booth that II.					

4808 4809 4810	combined and separate sanitary	<i>I</i>	(1.)	The location of major sewer trunk lines, both
4811	comemon and separate summer	•		
4812			(2.)	The locations of points where separate sanitary
4813	sewers feed into the combined	sewer sy	ystem.	
4814 4815			(2)	In line and off line storage structures
4816			(3.)	In-line and off-line storage structures.
4817			(4.)	The locations of flow regulating devices.
4818			()	
4819			(5.)	The location of pump stations.
4820				
4821	(B)	Inform	nation or	n combined sewer outfalls:
4822		~		
4823		(I)	Descri	iption of the outfall, including:
4824 4825			(1)	Outfall number.
4826			(1.)	Outrait humber.
4827			(2.)	State, county, and city or town in which outfall
4828	is located.		(2.)	state, county, and city of town in which outlan
4829				
4830			(3.)	Latitude and longitude, to the nearest 15
4831	seconds.			
4832				
4833			(4.)	Distance from shore and depth below surface.
4834			(5.)	WI d d 1' / ' 1 Cd
4835 4836	following in the past year for th	o CSO:	(5.)	Whether the applicant monitored any of the
4837	following in the past year for the	ie CSO:		
4838				a. Rainfall.
4839				
4840				b. CSO flow volume.
4841				
4842				c. CSO pollutant concentrations.
4843				
4844				d. Receiving water quality.
4845				000 (
4846 4847				e. CSO frequency.
4848			(6.)	The number of storm events monitored in the
4849	last year.		(0.)	The number of storm events monitored in the
4850	j -			
4851		(II)	CSO e	events. The following information about CSO
4852	overflows from each outfall.			-
4853				

4854			(1.)	The number of events in the past year.
4855				
4856			(2.)	The average duration per event, if available.
4857				
4858			(3.)	The average volume per CSO event if available.
4859				
4860			(4.)	The minimum rainfall that caused a CSO event,
4861	if available, in the last	year.		
4862				
4863		(III)	Desci	ription of receiving waters. The following
4864	information about recei	ving water.		
4865				
4866			(1.)	Name of the receiving water.
4867				
4868			(2.)	Name of watershed/stream system and the State
4869	watershed (12-digit) co	de (if known).		
4870				
4871		(IV)	CSO	operations. A description of any known water
4872	quality impacts on the	eceiving wate		by the CSO (e.g., permanent or intermittent beach
4873		-		ish advisories, other recreational loss, or
4874	exceedance of any appl			
4875	J 111		1	3
4876	(x)	Contractors.	All appl	icants must provide the name, mailing address,
4877	` '			ontractors responsible for any operational or
4878	maintenance aspects of	_	or arr c	ontractors responsible for any operational of
4879	mamerance aspects of	the facility.		
4880	(b) A pern	nit application	shall not	be considered complete if the administrator has
4881	•	• •		opendix or Section 5 of these regulations and the
4882			_	roved the waiver. If a waiver request has been
4883	_			EPA more than 210 days prior to permit
4884	_			not disapproved the waiver application 181 days
4885				**
		-		on lacking the information subject to the waiver
4886	request shall be consider	erea compiete.		
4887	() G			
4888		-	_	ents. This part provides information
4889		quality that sh	all be ob	tained through the application of secondary or
4890	equivalent treatment.			
4891				
4892	(i)	Terms used i	n this app	pendix are defined as follows:
4893				
4894				e. The arithmetic mean of pollutant parameter
4895	values for samples coll-	ected in a perio	od of sev	en (7) consecutive days.
4896				
4897				ge. The arithmetic mean of pollutant parameter
4898	values of samples colle	cted in a perio	d of 30 c	onsecutive days.
4899				

4900	(C) BOD ₅ . The five day measure of the pollutant parameter
4901	biochemical oxygen demand (BOD ₅).
4902	
4903	(D) CBOD ₅ . The five day measure of the pollutant parameter
4904	carbonaceous biochemical oxygen demand (CBOD ₅).
4905	
4906	(E) Effluent concentrations consistently achievable through proper
4907	operation and maintenance.
4908	·F········
4909	(I) For a given pollutant parameter, the 95th percentile value for the
4910	30-day average effluent quality achieved by a treatment works in a period of at least two years,
4911	excluding values attributable to upsets, bypasses, operational errors, or other unusual conditions;
4912	and,
4913	
4914	(II) A 7-day average value equal to 1.5 times the value derived under
4915	paragraph (c) (i) (E) (I) of this appendix.
4916	paragraph (c) (1) (1) of this appendix.
4917	(F) Facilities eligible for treatment equivalent to secondary
4918	treatment. Treatment works shall be eligible for consideration for effluent limitations described
4919	for treatment equivalent to secondary treatment (133.105) if:
4920	Tor trouble equivalent to secondary troublent (123:102) III
4921	(I) The BOD5 and TSS effluent concentrations consistently
4922	achievable through proper operation and maintenance of the treatment works exceed the
4923	minimum level of effluent quality set forth in 133.02(a) and (b).
4924	minimum rever of efficient quanty set forth in 133.02(a) and (b).
4925	(II) A trickling filter or waste stabilization pond is used as
4926	the principal process; and,
4927	the principal process, and,
4928	(III) The treatment works provide significant biological
4929	treatment of municipal wastewater.
4930	deather of mainerpar wastewater.
4931	(G) Percent removal. A percentage expression of the removal
4932	efficiency across a treatment plan for a given pollutant parameter, as determined from the 30-day
4933	average values of the raw wastewater influent pollutant concentrations to the facility and the 30-
4934	day average values of the raw wastewater influent pollutant concentrations to the facility and the
4935	30-day average values of the effluent pollutant concentrations for a given time period.
4936	30-day average values of the efficient pollutant concentrations for a given time period.
4937 4938	(H) Significant biological treatment. The use of an aerobic or
+936 4939	() [
	anaerobic biological treatment process in a treatment works to consistently achieve a 30-day
4940 4041	average of at least 65 percent removal of BOD ₅ .
4941	(I) TSC. The multiple of management and all ide
4942 4043	(I) TSS. The pollutant parameter total suspended solids.
4943 4044	(I) Significantly more stringent limitation many DOD and TSS
4944 4045	(J) Significantly more stringent limitation means BOD ₅ and TSS
4945	limitations necessary to meet the percent removal requirements of at least 5 mg/l more stringent

4946	than the otherwise applicable concentration-based limitations (e.g., less than 25 mg/l in the case				
4947	of the secondary treatment limits for BOD5 and TSS), or the percent removal limitations in				
4948	paragraphs (c) (ii) and (c) (v) of this appendix, if such limits would, by themselves, force				
4949	significant construct	tion or oth	er signifi	icant ca	pital expenditure.
4950 4951	(ii)	Sacar	dory Tro	notmont	The following paragraphs describe the minimum
4951	` '		•		y treatment in terms of the parameters BOD5, TSS,
4953					shall be achieved except as provided for in
4954	paragraphs (c) (iii) a		•		
4955	paragraphs (c) (m) t	ina (c) (v)	or uns a	ррспагл	•
4956		(A)	BOD ₅	:	
4957		(11)	BOD	,•	
4958			(I)	The 3	0-day average shall not exceed 30 mg/l.
4959			(-)		,g
4960			(II)	The 7	-day average shall not exceed 45 mg/l.
4961			()		
4962			(III)	The 3	0-day average percent removal shall not be less
4963	than 85 percent.		()		and the second s
4964	.				
4965			(IV)	At the	e option of the administrator, in lieu of the
4966	parameter BOD5. ar	nd the leve	. ,		t quality specified in paragraphs (c) (ii) (A) (I) (II)
4967	•				tituted with the following levels of the CBOD ₅
4968	effluent quality prov		,		Ç
4969	1 1				
4970				(1.)	The 30-day average shall not exceed 25 mg/l.
4971					
4972				(2.)	The 7-day average shall not exceed 40 mg/l.
4973					
4974				(3.)	The 30-day average percent removal shall not be
4975	less than 85 percent	•			
4976					
4977		(B)	TSS.		
4978					
4979			(I)	The 3	0-day average shall not exceed 30 mg/l.
4980					
4981			(II)	The 7	-day average shall not exceed 45 mg/l
4982					
4983			(III)	The 3	0-day average percent removal shall not be less
4984	than 85 percent.				
4985					
4986		(C)	•		ent values for pH shall be maintained within the
4987	limits of 6.0 to 9.0 unless the publicly owned treatment works demonstrates that: (1) Inorganic				
4988					part of the treatment process; and (2) contributions
4989	trom industrial sour	ces do not	cause th	e pH of	the effluent to be less than 6.0 or greater than 9.0.
4990		٠ .			
4991	(iii)	Speci	al consid	terations	S.

5000 5001

4998

4999

5016 5017 5018

5015

5020 5021

5019

5022 5023 5024

5025 5026 5027

5028

5029

5030 5031 5032

5033

5034 5035 5036

5037

(A) Combined sewers. Treatment works subject to this part may not be capable of meeting the percentage removal requirements established under 102 (a) (3) and (b) (3) or 105 (a) (3) and (b) (3) during wet weather where the treatment works receive flows from combined sewers (i.e., sewers which are designed to transport both storm water and sanitary sewage). For such treatment works, the decision must be made on a case-by-case basis as to whether any attainable percentage removal level can be defined, and if so, what the level should be.

- (B) Industrial waste. For certain industrial categories, the discharge to surface waters of the state of BOD5 and TSS permitted under Sections 301 (b) (1) (A) (i), (b) (2) (E) or 306 of the CWA may be less stringent than the values given in paragraphs (c) (ii) (A) (I) and (IV) (i), (c) (ii) (B) (I), (c) (v) (A) (I), (c) (v) (B) (I) and (c) (v) (E) (I) (i) of this appendix. In cases when wastes would be introduced from such an industrial category into a publicly owned treatment works, the values for BOD5 and TSS in paragraphs (c) (ii) (A) (I) and (IV) (i), (c) (ii) (B) (I), (c) (v) (A) (I), (c) (v) (B) (I) and (c) (v) (E) (I) (i) of this appendix may be adjusted upwards provided that: (1) The permitted discharge of such pollutants attributable to the industrial category, would not be greater that which would be permitted under Sections 301 (b) (1) (A) (i), (b) (2) (E) or 306 of the CWA if such industrial category were to discharge directly into the surface waters of the state, and (2) the flow or loading of such pollutants introduced by the industrial category exceeds 10 percent of the design flow or loading of the publicly owned treatment works. When such an adjustment is made, the values for BOD5 or TSS in paragraphs (c) (ii) (A) (II) and (IV) (ii), (c) (ii) (B) (II), (c) (v) (A) (II), (c) (v) (B) (II) and (c) (v) (E) (I) (ii) of this appendix. should be adjusted proportionately.
- Waste stabilization ponds. The administrator, may authorize adjusting the minimum levels of effluent quality set forth in paragraphs (c) (v) (B) (1), (2) and (3) of this appendix for treatment works subject to this part, to conform to the TSS concentrations achievable with waste stabilization ponds, provided that:
- (I) Waste stabilization ponds are the principal process used for secondary treatment; and
- (II)Operation and maintenance data indicate that the TSS values specified in paragraphs (c) (v) (B) (4I), (2II) and (3III) of this appendix cannot be achieved. The term "TSS concentrations achievable with waste stabilization ponds" means a TSS value, determined by the administrator, which is equal to the effluent concentration achieved 90 percent of the time within a state or appropriate contiguous geographical area by waste stabilization ponds that are achieving the levels of effluent quality for BOD₅ specified in paragraphs (c) (v) (A) $(\frac{1}{4})$ of this appendix.
- (D) Less concentrated influent wastewater for separate sewers. The administrator may authorize substituting either a lower percent removal requirement or a mass loading limit for the percent removal requirements set forth in paragraphs (c) (ii) (A) (III) and (IV) (iii), (c) (ii) (B) (III), (c) (v) (A) (III), (c) (v) (B) (III) and (c) (v) (E) (I) (iii)(3.) of this appendix provided that the permittee satisfactorily demonstrates that:

5038						
5039	(I) The treatment works is consistently meeting, or will					
5040	consistently meet, its permit effluent concentration limits but its percent removal requirements					
5041	cannot be met due to less concentrated influent wastewater;					
5042						
5043	(II) To meet the percent removal requirements, the treatment					
5044	works would have to achieve significantly more stringent limitations than would otherwise be					
5045	required by the concentration-based standards; and					
5046						
5047	(III) The less concentrated influent wastewater is not the					
5048	result of excessive I/I. The determination of whether the less concentrated I/I will use the					
5049	definition of excessive I/I in 40 CFR 35.2005 (b) (16) plus the additional criterion that inflow is					
5050	non-excessive if the total flow to the POTW (i.e., wastewater plus inflow plus infiltration) is less					
5051	than 25 gallons per capita per day.					
5052						
5053	(E) Less concentrated influent wastewater for combined sewers					
5054	during dry weather. The administrator may substitute either a lower percent removal requirement					
5055	or a mass loading limit for the percent removal requirements set forth in paragraphs (c) (ii) (A)					
5056	(III) and (IV) (iii), (c) (ii) (B) (III), (c) (v) (A) (III), (c) (v) (B) (III) and (c) (v) (E) (I) (iii) of this					
5057	appendix provided that the permittee satisfactorily demonstrates that:					
5058						
5059	(I) The treatment works is consistently meeting, or will					
5060	consistently meet, its permit effluent concentration limits, but the percent removal requirements					
5061	cannot be met due to less concentrated influent wastewater;					
5062						
5063	(II) To meet the percent removal requirements, the treatment					
5064	works would have to achieve significantly more stringent effluent concentrations than would					
5065	otherwise be required by the concentration-based standards; and					
5066						
5067	(III) The less concentrated influent wastewater does not result					
5068	from either excessive infiltrations or clear water industrial discharges during dry weather periods.					
5069	The determination of whether the less concentrated wastewater results from excessive infiltration					
5070	is discussed in 40 CFR 35 2005 (b) (28), plus the additional criterion that either 40 gallons per					
5071	capita per day or 1500 gallons per inch diameter per mile of sewer may be used as the threshold					
5072	value for that portion of the dry weather base flow attributed to infiltration. If the less					
5073	concentrated influent wastewater is the result of clear water industrial discharges, then the					
5074	treatment works must control such discharges pursuant to 40 CFR Part 403.					
5075	• •					
5076	(iv) Sampling and test procedures.					
5077						
5078	(A) Sampling and test procedures for pollutants listed in this part					
5079	shall be in accordance with guidelines in 40 CFR Part 136.					
5080						
5081	(B) Chemical oxygen demand (COD) or total organic carbon (TOC)					
5082	may be substituted for BOD5 when a long-term BOD5, COD or BOD5 TOC correlation has been					
5083	demonstrated.					

0084					
5085		•	nivalent to secondary treatment. This section describes the		
5086	minimum level of effluent quality attainable by facilities eligible for treatment equivalent to				
5087	secondary treatment under par	agraph (c) (i) (F) of this appendix in terms of the parameters BOD ₅ ,		
5088	TSS and pH. All requirement	s for the	specified parameters in paragraphs (c) (v) (A), (B) and (C)		
5089	of this appendix shall be achie	ved exce	ept as provided for in paragraph (c) (iii), or paragraphs (c)		
5090	(v) (D), (E) or (F) of this appe	ndix.			
5091					
5092	(A)	BOD	; .		
5093					
5094		(I)	The 30-day average shall not exceed 45 mg/l.		
5095					
5096		(II)	The 7-day average shall not exceed 65 mg/l.		
5097					
5098		(III)	The 30-day average percent removal shall not be less		
5099	than 65 percent.				
5100	(7)				
5101	(B)		Except where TSS values have been adjusted in		
5102	accordance with paragraph (c)	(111) (C)	of this appendix:		
5103		(T)	The 20 decrees the 11 and a second 45 and 1		
5104		(I)	The 30-day average shall not exceed 45 mg/l.		
5105 5106		(II)	The 7 day average shall not average 65 mg/l		
5100		(11)	The 7-day average shall not exceed 65 mg/l.		
5107		(III)	The 30-day average percent removal shall not be less		
5109	than 65 percent.	(111)	The 30-day average percent removal shall not be less		
5110	than 65 percent.				
5111	(C)	pH. П	The requirements of paragraph (c) (ii) (C) of this appendix		
5112	shall be met.	PII	and requirements or paragraph (e) (ii) (e) or this appendix		
5113	321421 00 111011				
5114	(D)	Alteri	native requirements. Except as limited by paragraph (c) (v)		
5115			otice and opportunity for public comment, the		
5116		_	a levels of effluent quality set forth in paragraphs (c) (v) (A)		
5117			appendix for trickling filter facilities and in paragraphs (c)		
5118			or waste stabilization pond facilities, to conform to the		
5119	BOD5 and TSS effluent conce	entration	s consistently achievable through proper operation and		
5120	maintenance by the median (5	0th perc	entile) facility in a representative sample of facilities within		
5121	the state or an appropriate con	tiguous	geographical area that meet the definition of facilities		
5122	eligible for treatment equivale	nt to sec	ondary treatment.		
5123					
5124	(E)	CBOI	O_5 limitations.		
5125					
5126		(I)	Where data are available to establish CBOD ₅ limitations		
5127			ection, the administrator may substitute the parameter		
5128	CBOD ₅ for the parameter BOD ₅ . In paragraph (c) (v) (A) $\frac{\text{(I)}}{\text{(II)}}\frac{\text{(II)}}{\text{(III)}}\frac{\text{(I)}}{\text{(III)}}$ of this appendix,				

5129	1	s of CBOD ₅ effluent quality are not less stringent			
5130	than the following:				
5131					
5132	(1.)	The 30-day average shall not exceed 40 mg/l.			
5133					
5134	(2.)	The 7-day average shall not exceed 60 mg/l.			
5135					
5136	(3.)	The 30-day average percent removal shall not be			
5137	less than 65 percent.				
5138	-				
5139	(II) When	e data are available, the parameter CBOD5 may be			
5140	used for effluent quality limitations established	l under paragraph (c) (v) (D) of this appendix.			
5141	Where concurrent BOD ₅ effluent data are avail	lable, they must be submitted with the CBOD5 data			
5142	as part of the approval process outlined in para	•			
5143					
5144	(F) Permit adjustr	ments. Any permit adjustment made pursuant to			
5145	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	limitations required pursuant to paragraph (c) (v)			
5146	- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	, more stringent limitations shall be required when			
5147					
5148	0 0 1				
5149		xisting facilities, the administrator determines that			
5150	• •	nd TSS effluent values that could be achievable			
5151		he treatment works, based on an analyses of the			
5152	past performance of the treatment works to ach	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
5153		<i>8</i>			
5154		ew facilities, the administrator determines that the			
5155	* *				
5156					
5157	capability of the treatment process and geographical and climatic conditions, would enable the				
5158		treatment works to achieve more stringent limitations.			
5159	2				
5160		eatment works will require that the permittee must			
5161	provide adequate notification to the administra				
5162	r				
5163	(i) Any new introduction	of pollutants into the publicly owned treatment			
5164	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	d be subject to Sections 301 or 306 of the CWA if			
5165					
5166					
5167		e in the volume or character of pollutants being			
5168	•	works by a source introducing pollutants into the			
5169					
5170	<u>.</u>	issuance of the permit.			
		nnandiy F (d) (i) and (ii) adaquata notification			
5171 5172		ppendix E (d) (i) and (ii), adequate notification			
5172	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
5173	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	npact of the change on the quantity or quality of			
5174	effluent to be discharged from the publicly ow	nea treatment works.			

Table E1
Effluent Parameters for All POTWs
Biological oxygen demand (BOD ₅ or CBOD ₅)
Fecal Coliform
pН
Temperature
Total Suspended Solids

Table E2 Effluent Parameters for Selected
POTWS
Ammonia (as N)
Chlorine (total residual, TRC)
Dissolved oxygen
Nitrate/Nitrite
Kjeldahl nitrogen
Oil and grease
Phosphorus
Total dissolved solids

5183	APPENDIX F: Additional Requirements Applicable to New and Existing Aquatic Animal
5184	<u>Production</u> <u>Facilities</u>
5185	
5186	(a) Discharges into aquaculture projects, as defined in Section 3 (b) of these
5187	regulations, are subject to the WYPDES permit program in accordance with these regulations.
5188	
5189	(b) A hatchery, fish farm, or other facility is a concentrated aquatic animal
5190	production facility for purposes of these regulations if it contains, grows, or holds aquatic animal
5191	in either of the following categories:
5192	
5193	(i) Cold water fish species or other cold water aquatic animals in ponds,
5194	raceways, or other similar structures which discharge at least 30 days per year but does not
5195 5196	include:
5190	(A) Facilities which produce less than 9,090 harvest weight
5198	kilograms (approximately 20,000 pounds) of aquatic animals per year; and
5199	knograms (approximately 20,000 pounds) of aquatic animals per year, and
5200	(B) Facilities which produce less than 2,272 kilograms
5201	(approximately 5,000 pounds) of food during the calendar month of maximum feeding.
5202	(, Fr
5203	(ii) Warm water fish species, or other warm water aquatic animals in ponds,
5204	raceways, or other similar structures which discharge at least 30 days per year, but does not
5205	include:
5206	
5207	(A) Closed ponds which discharge only during periods of excess
5208	runoff; or
5209	
5210	(B) Facilities which produce less than 45,454 harvest weight
5211	kilograms (approximately 100,000 pounds) of aquatic animals per year.
5212	("')
5213	(iii) "Cold water aquatic animals" include, but are not limited to the
5214 5215	Salmonidae family of fish: e.g., trout and salmon.
5215	(iv) "Warm water aquatic animals" include but are not limited to, the
5217	Ameiuridae, Centrarchidae and Cyprinidae families of fish; e.g. respectively, catfish, sunfish and
5218	minnows.
5219	
5220	(c) Application requirements for new and existing aquatic animal production
5221	facilities. New and existing concentrated aquatic animal production facilities shall provide the
5222	following information, in addition to that described in Section 5 (a) (v), to the administrator,
5223	using the application form provided by the administrator.
5224	
5225	(d) The maximum daily and average monthly flow from each outfall.
5226	
5227	(e) The number of ponds, raceways, and similar structures.

5228		
5229	(f)	The name of the receiving water and the source of intake water.
5230		
5231	(g)	For each species of aquatic animals, the total yearly and maximum harvestable
5232	weight.	
5233		
5234	(h)	The calendar month of maximum feeding and the total mass of food fed during
5235	that month.	
5236		
5237		
5238		
5239		
5240		
5241		
5242		
5243		
5244		
5245		
5246		
5247		
5248		
5249		
5250		
5251		Intentionally left blank
5252		

5253 5254				r Determining a Concentrated Animal Feeding Operation and	
5255					
5256					
5257	(a)	Applica	ability	and permit requirement for concentrated animal feeding operations	
5258	(CAFOs). In			W.S. 35-11-103 (a) (xi) and 35-11-302 (a) (v), CAFOs, as defined	
5259				gulations, are point sources that require WYPDES permits for	
5260			_	ges. Once an operation is defined as a CAFO, the WYPDES	
5261	•	•		y with respect to all animals in confinement at the operation and all	
5262	manure, litter	and proce	ss was	tewater generated by those animals or the production of those	
5263	animals, rega	rdless of th	ne type	of animal. All CAFOs have a duty to apply to seek coverage	
5264	under a WYF	DES perm	it as d	escribed in these regulations.	
5265					
5266	(b)	Definit	ions ap	plicable to this appendix:	
5267					
5268		(i)	-	rtical methods. The parameters that are regulated or referenced in	
5269	* *		with a	pproved methods of analysis in Table 1B at 40 CFR 136.3 are	
5270	defined as fol	llows:			
5271					
5272			(A)	"Ammonia (as N)" means ammonia reported as nitrogen.	
5273			(D)		
5274			(B)	"BOD ₅ " means 5-day biochemical oxygen demand.	
5275			(C)	(OLIANA) (- NI)?	
5276 5277			(C)	"Nitrate (as N)"means nitrate reported as nitrogen.	
5278			(D)	"Total dissolved solids" means nonfilterable residue.	
5279			(D)	Total dissolved solids - means nonlinerable residue.	
5280		(ii)	Analy	rtical methods. The parameters that are regulated or referenced in	
5281	this part and	` '	•	wed methods of analysis in Table 1A at 40 CFR 136.3 are defined as	
5282	follows:	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	шррго		
5283					
5284			(A)	"Fecal coliform" means fecal coliform bacteria.	
5285			, ,		
5286			(B)	"Total coliform" means all coliform bacteria.	
5287					
5288		(iii)	"Anir	nal feeding operation" (AFO) means a lot or facility (other than an	
5289	aquatic anima	al producti	on faci	lity) where the following conditions are met:	
5290					
5291			(A)	Animals have been, are, or will be stabled or confined and fed or	
5292	maintained fo	or a total of	f 45 da	ys or more in any 12-month period; and	
5293					
5294	,	1 1	(B) .	Crops, vegetation forage growth or post harvest residues are not	
5295	sustained in t	ne normal	grown	ng season over any portion of the lot or facility.	
5296					
5297					

5298	1 wo (2) or mo	ore anim	al feeding operations under common ownership are considered, for	
5299	purposes of these regulations, to be a single animal feeding operation if they adjoin each other or			
5300	if they use a common	area or s	ystem for the disposal of wastes.	
5301				
5302	(iv)	"Land	application area" means land under the control of an AFO owner	
5303	or operator, whether it		d, rented, or leased, to which manure, litter or process wastewater	
5304	from the production ar	ea is or	may be applied.	
5305	•		• • •	
5306	(v)	"Larg	e concentrated animal feeding operation" (large CAFO). An AFO	
5307	is defined as a large C	AFO if i	t stables or confines as many as or more than the numbers of	
5308	animals specified in ar	ny of the	following categories.	
5309	•			
5310		(A)	700 mature dairy cows, whether milked or dry;	
5311				
5312		(B)	1,000 veal calves;	
5313				
5314		(C)	1,500 buffalo (Bison bison);	
5315		. ,		
5316		(D)	1,000 cattle other than mature dairy cows or veal calves. Cattle	
5317	includes but is not lim	ited to h	eifers, steers, bulls and cow/calf pairs;	
5318			•	
5319		(E)	2,500 swine each weighing 55 pounds or more;	
5320		. ,		
5321		(F)	10,000 swine each weighing less than 55 pounds;	
5322				
5323		(G)	500 horses;	
5324				
5325		(H)	10,000 sheep or lambs;	
5326			•	
5327		(I)	55,000 turkeys;	
5328				
5329		(J)	30,000 laying hens or broilers, if the AFO uses a liquid manure	
5330	handling system;		•	
5331				
5332		(K)	125,000 chickens (other than laying hens), if the AFO uses other	
5333	than a liquid manure h	andling		
5334	•			
5335		(L)	82,000 laying hens, (if the AFO uses other than a liquid manure	
5336	handling system);			
5337	<u>-</u> - · · ·			
5338		(M)	30,000 ducks (if the AFO uses other than a liquid manure	
5339	handling system); or		•	
5340	- ·			
5341		(N)	5,000 ducks (if the AFO uses a liquid manure handling system).	
5342				

5343	(v1) "Manu	re'' is de	fined to include animal excreta or other commonly	
5344	associated wastes of animal husbandry including but not limited to bedding, compost and raw			
5345	materials or other materials commingled with manure or set aside for disposal.			
5346				
5347	(vii) "Mediu	ım conc	entrated animal feeding operation" (medium CAFO)	
5348	means any AFO with the type a	nd numl	per of animals that fall within any of the ranges listed in	
5349	Appendix G (b) (vii) (A) and w	hich has	been defined or designated as a CAFO. An AFO is	
5350	defined as a medium CAFO if:		•	
5351				
5352	(A)	The typ	be and number of animals that it stables or confines falls	
5353	within any of the following range			
5354	·			
5355		(I)	200 to 699 mature dairy cattle, whether milked or dry;	
5356		. ,		
5357		(II)	300 to 999 veal calves;	
5358		` /	,	
5359		(III)	450 to 1499 buffalo (Bison bison);	
5360		` /	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
5361		(IV)	300 to 999 cattle other than mature dairy cows or veal	
5362	calves. Cattle includes but is no	` '	d to heifers, steers, bulls and cow/calf pairs;	
5363			r ,	
5364		(V)	750 to 2,499 swine each weighing 55 pounds or more;	
5365		(')	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
5366		(VI)	3,000 to 9,999 swine each weighing less than 55 pounds	
5367		(' -)		
5368		(VII)	150 to 499 horses;	
5369		(,)	100 00 199 1101000,	
5370		(VIII)	3,000 to 9,999 sheep or lambs;	
5371		(,)	2,000 to 2,222 sheep of tallies,	
5372		(IX)	16,500 to 54,999 turkeys;	
5373		(111)	10,000 00 0 1,777 002100 13,	
5374		(X)	9,000 to 29,999 laying hens or broilers, (if the AFO uses	
5375	a liquid manure handling system	` '	5,000 to 25,555 laying nems of ofoners, (if the fit o uses	
5376	a riquid manare nandring system	,,		
5377		(XI)	37,500 to 124, 999 chickens (other than laying hens), (if	
5378	the AFO uses other than a liquid	` '	•	
5379	the 711 O uses other than a riquiv	a manar	e handing system,	
5380		(XII)	25,000 to 81,999 laying hens, (if the AFO uses other	
5381	than a liquid manure handling s	` '	25,000 to 61,777 taying nens, (if the Ar O uses other	
5382	man a riquid manure nanding s	ysiciii),		
5383		(XIII)	10,000 to 29,999 ducks (if the AFO uses other than a	
5384	liquid manura handling system)	` ,	10,000 to 27,777 ducks (if the ATO uses other than a	
	liquid manure handling system)	, OI		
5385		(VIII)	1 500 to 4 000 duals (if the AEO years a liquid	
5386	handling quators); and	(XIV)	1,500 to 4,999 ducks (if the AFO uses a liquid manure	
5387	handling system); and			
5388				

5389	(B) Either one of the following conditions are met:
5390	
5391	(I) Pollutants are discharged into surface waters of the state
5392	through a man-made ditch, flushing system, or other similar man-made device; or
5393	
5394	(II) Pollutants are discharged directly into surface waters of
5395	the state which originate outside of and pass over, across, or through the facility or otherwise
5396	come into direct contact with the animals confined in the operation.
5397	
5398	(viii) "New source" means any building, structure, facility or installation from
5399	which there is or may be the discharge of pollutants, the construction of which is commenced
5400	after the effective date of these regulations.
5401	
5402	(ix) "Overflow" means the discharge of manure or process wastewater
5403	resulting from the filling of wastewater or manure storage structures beyond the point at which no
5404	more manure, process wastewater, or storm water can be contained by the structure.
5405	
5406	(x) "Process wastewater" means water directly or indirectly used in the
5407	operation of the AFO for any or all of the following: spillage or overflow from animal or poultry
5408	watering systems; washing, cleaning, or flushing pens, barns, manure pits, or other AFO
5409	facilities; direct contact swimming, washing, or spray cooling of animals; or dust control.
5410	Process wastewater also includes any water which comes into contact with any raw materials,
5411	products, or byproducts including manure, litter, feed, milk, eggs or bedding.
5412	(-i) "Durderd'en ana" many dat met ef en AEO dat include de animal
5413	(xi) "Production area" means that part of an AFO that includes the animal
5414	confinement area, the manure storage area, the raw materials storage area, and the waste
5415 5416	containment areas. The animal confinement area includes but is not limited to open lots, housed
5417	lots, feedlots, confinement houses, stall barns, free stall barns, milk rooms, milking centers, cowyards, barnyards, medication pens, walkers, animal walkways, and stables. The manure
5417	storage area includes but is not limited to lagoons, runoff ponds, storage sheds, stock piles, under
5419	house or pit storages, liquid impoundments, static piles, and composting piles. The raw materials
5420	storage area includes but is not limited to feed silos, silage bunkers, and bedding materials. The
5421	waste containment area includes but is not limited to settling basins, and areas within berms and
5422	diversions which separate uncontaminated storm water. Also included in the definition of
5423	production area is any egg washing or egg processing facility, and any area used in the storage,
5424	handling, treatment, or disposal of mortalities.
5425	handing, treatment, or disposar of mortanties.
5426	(xii) "Twenty-five-year, 24-hour rainfall event" and 100-year, 24-hour rainfall
5427	event mean precipitation events with a probable recurrence interval of once in 25 years, or 100
5428	years, respectively, as defined by the National Weather Service in Technical Paper No. 40,
5429	"Rainfall Frequency Atlas of the United States," May, 1961, or equivalent regional or state
5430	rainfall probability information developed from this source.
5431	T Total Tota
5432	(c) CAFO designation. The director may designate any AFO as a CAFO upon
5433	determining that it is a significant contributor of pollutants to surface waters of the state. The
5434	director may also designate an AFO as a CAFO at the request of the Regional Administrator, but
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

5	only where the Regional Administrator has determined that one or discharge contributes to an impairment in a downstream or adjacen	•
	for that pollutant.	
	(i) In making this designation, the director sha	all consider the following
	40 factors:	an consider the following
	1	
	2 (A) The size of the AFO and the amou	ant of wastes reaching surface
	* /	
	nations of the state,	
	(B) The location of the AFO relative to	o surface waters of the state;
	· ,	,
	(C) The means of conveyance of anim	al wastes and process waste
	waters into surface waters of the state;	•
	(D) The slope, vegetation, rainfall, and	d other factors affecting the
	likelihood or frequency of discharge of animal wastes manure and	_
	surface waters of the state; and	
	(E) Other relevant factors.	
	(ii) No AFO shall be designated under these re	egulations unless the director
	or the Regional Administrator has conducted an on-site inspection	of the operation and
	determined that the operation should and could be regulated under	the WYPDES permit program
	In addition, no AFO with numbers of animals below the minimum	numbers established in
	Appendix G (b) (vii) (A) may be designated as a CAFO unless:	
	(A) Pollutants are discharged into surf	ace waters of the state through
	a manmade ditch, flushing system, or other similar manmade devic	e; or
	(B) Pollutants are discharged directly	into surface waters of the state
	which originate outside of the facility and pass over, across, or thro	ough the facility or otherwise
	come into direct contact with the animals confined in the operation	
	(d) Application for permit and exceptions.	
	(i) All CAFO owners and operators must seek	coverage under a WYPDES
	permit, except as provided in Appendix G (d) (ii) of these regulation	ons. If the director has not
	made a general permit available, the CAFO owner or operator must	t submit an application for an
	individual permit to the director.	
	(ii) Exception. An owner or operator of a large	e CAFO does not need to seek
	coverage under a WYPDES permit otherwise required by this secti	_
	has received from the director notification of a determination under	
	regulations that the CAFO has "no potential to discharge" manure,	litter or process wastewater.

5481 5482 5483 5484	(iii) New and existing concentrated animal feeding operations shall provide the following information, in addition to that described in Section 5 (a) (v) for individual permits, to the administrator, using an application form provided by the administrator.
5485 5486 5487	(A) The type and number of animals in open confinement and housed under roof;
5488	(B) The type of containment and storage (anaerobic lagoon, roofed
5489	storage shed, storage ponds, underfloor pits, above ground storage tanks, below ground storage
5490	tanks, concrete pad, impervious soil pad, other) and total capacity for manure, litter, and process
5491	wastewater storage (tons/gallons);
5492	maste mater storage (tons garrons),
5493	(C) The total number of acres under control of the applicant
5494	available for land application of manure, litter, or process wastewater;
5495	
5496	(D) The number of acres used for confinement feeding;
5497	,
5498	(E) Estimated amounts of manure, litter and process wastewater
5499	generated per year (tons/gallons);
5500	
5501	(F) Estimated amounts of manure, litter and process wastewater
5502	transferred to other persons per year (tons/gallons);
5503	
5504	(G) The design basis for the runoff diversion and controls system, if
5505	one exists, including the number of acres of contributing drainage, the storage capacity, and the
5506	design safety factor to ensure no discharge except under conditions of a 25-year 24-hour, or
5507	greater, storm event; and
5508	
5509	(H) A nutrient management plan, in accordance with Appendix G (i)
5510	developed and implemented upon the date of coverage.
5511	
5512	(e) Land application discharges from a CAFO are subject to WYPDES requirements.
5513	The discharge of manure, litter or process wastewater to surface waters of the state from a CAFO
5514	as a result of the application of that manure, litter or process wastewater by the CAFO to land
5515	areas under its control is a discharge from that CAFO subject to WYPDES permit requirements,
5516	except where it is an agricultural storm water discharge as provided in 33 U.S.C. 1362(14). For
5517	purposes of Appendix G (e), where the manure, litter or process wastewater has been applied in
5518	accordance with site specific nutrient management practices that ensure appropriate agricultural
5519	utilization of the nutrients in the manure, litter or process wastewater, as specified in Appendix G
5520	(i) (ii) (F) - (H) a precipitation related discharge of manure, litter or process wastewater from land
5521	areas under the control of a CAFO is an agricultural storm water discharge.
5522	
5523	(f) "No potential to discharge" determination for large CAFOs.
5524	
5525	

(i) Determination by the director. The director, upon request, may make a case-specific determination that a large CAFO has "no potential to discharge" pollutants to surface waters of the state. In making this determination, the director must consider the potential for discharges from both the production area and any land application areas. The director must also consider any record of prior discharges by the CAFO. In no case may the CAFO be determined to have "no potential to discharge" if it has had a discharge within the five (5) years prior to the date of the request submitted under Appendix G (f) (ii). For purposes of this section, the term "no potential to discharge" means that there is no potential for any CAFO manure, litter or process wastewater to be added to surface waters of the state under any circumstances or climatic condition. A determination that there is "no potential to discharge" for purposes of this section only relates to discharges of manure, litter and process wastewater covered by this appendix.

(ii) Information to support a "no potential to discharge request". In requesting a determination of "no potential to discharge," the CAFO owner or operator must submit any information that would support such a determination, within the time frame provided by the director and in accordance with Appendix G (g) and (h) of these regulations. Such information must include all of the information specified in Appendix G (f) and (i) (i) and Section 5 (a) of these regulations. The director has discretion to require additional information to supplement the request, and may also gather additional information through on-site inspection of the CAFO.

(iii) Process for making a "no potential to discharge" determination. Before making a final decision to grant a "no potential to discharge" determination, the director must issue a notice to the public stating that a "no potential to discharge" request has been received. This notice must be accompanied by a fact sheet which includes, when applicable:

(A) A brief description of the type of facility or activity which is the subject of the "no potential to discharge" determination;

(B) A brief summary of the factual basis, upon which the request is based, for granting the "no potential to discharge" determination; and

(C) A description of the procedures for reaching a final decision on the "no potential to discharge" determination.

(iv) The director must base the decision to grant a "no potential to discharge" determination on the administrative record, which includes all information submitted in support of a "no potential to discharge" determination and any other supporting data gathered by the administrator. The director must notify any CAFO seeking a "no potential to discharge" determination of its final determination within 90 days of receiving the request.

5568 (v) Deadline for requesting a "no potential to discharge" determination. The 5569 owner or operator must request a "no potential to discharge" determination by the applicable 5570 permit application date specified in Appendix G (g) of these regulations. If the director=s final decision is to deny the "no potential to discharge" determination, the owner or operator must seek coverage under a permit within 30 days after the denial. The "no potential to discharge" determination does not relieve the CAFO

5576 5577 5578

5571

5572

5573 5574

5575

5580 5581

5579

5587 5588

5589 5590

5591 5592 5593

5594 5595 5596

5597

5598 5599

5600 5601 5602

5604 5605

5606

5603

5607 5608 5609

5611 5612

5610

5613 5614

5615 5616

- from the consequences of an actual discharge. Any unpermitted CAFO that discharges pollutants into surface waters of the state is in violation of the CWA, the Environmental Quality Act and these regulations even if it has received a "no potential to discharge" determination from the director. Any CAFO that has received a determination of "no potential to discharge," but who anticipates changes in circumstances that could create the potential for a discharge, should contact the director, and apply for and obtain permit authorization prior to the change of circumstances.
- (vii) The director retains authority to require a permit. Where the director has issued a determination of "no potential to discharge," the director retains the authority to subsequently require WYPDES permit coverage if circumstances at the facility change, if new information becomes available, or if there is other reason for the director to determine that the CAFO has a potential to discharge.
 - (g) Deadlines to apply.
- For operations that are defined as CAFOs under regulations that were in operation prior to April 14, 2003, the owner or operator must have or sought to obtain coverage under a WYPDES permit as of April 14, 2003, and comply with all applicable WYPDES requirements, including the duty to maintain permit coverage in accordance with Appendix G (h) of these regulations.
- Owners or operators of operations defined as CAFOs as of April 14, 2003, who were not defined as CAFOs prior to that date must seek to obtain coverage under a WYPDES permit by a date specified by the director, but no later than February 13, 2006.
- (iii) Operations that become defined as CAFOs after April 14, 2003, but which are not new sources. For AFOs that make changes to their operations that result in becoming defined as CAFOs for the first time, after April 14, 2003, but are not new sources, the owner or operator must seek to obtain coverage under a WYPDES permit, as follows:
- Facilities defined as CAFOs resulting from operational changes (A) (e.g. resulting from an increase in the number of animals), as soon as possible but no later than 90 days after becoming defined as a CAFO; except that
- If an operational change that makes the operation a CAFO would (B) not have made it a CAFO prior to April 14, 2003, the operation has at least until April 13, 2006, or 90 days after becoming defined as a CAFO, whichever is later.
- New sources. New sources must seek to obtain coverage under a permit at least 180 days prior to the time that the CAFO commences operation, unless otherwise approved by the administrator.

001/	(v) Operations that are designated as a CAFO in accordance with Appendix
618	G (c) of these regulations, the owner or operator must seek to obtain coverage under a permit no
619	later than 90 days after receiving notice of the designation.
620	
621	(vi) "No potential to discharge." Notwithstanding any other provision of this
622	section, a CAFO that has received a "no potential to discharge" determination in accordance with
623	Appendix G (f) of these regulations is not required to seek coverage under a WYPDES permit
624	that would otherwise be required by this section. If circumstances materially change at a CAFO
625	that has received a "no potential to discharge" determination, such that the CAFO has a potential
626	for a discharge, the CAFO shall immediately notify the director, and seek coverage under a
627	WYPDES permit within 30 days after the change in circumstances.
628	
629	(h) Duty to maintain permit coverage. Not later than 180 days before the expiration
630	of the permit, the permittee must submit an application to renew its permit, in accordance with
631	Section 9 of these regulations. However, the permittee need not continue to seek continued
632	permit coverage or reapply for a permit if:
633	
634	(i) The facility has ceased operation or is no longer a CAFO; and
635	
636	(ii) The permittee has demonstrated to the satisfaction of the director that
637	there is no remaining potential for a discharge of manure, litter or associated process wastewater
638	that was generated while the operation was a CAFO, other than agricultural stormwater from land
639	application areas; or
640	
641	(i) Permit conditions applicable to all CAFOs. Any permit issued to a CAFO shall
642	include:
643	
644	(i) Nutrient management plan development and implementation
645	requirements. At a minimum, a nutrient management plan must include best management
646	practices and procedures necessary to implement applicable effluent limitations and standards.
647	
648	(A) Permitted CAFOs must have their nutrient management plans
649	developed (or updated if a nutrient management plan was required in the existing permit) and
650	implemented by December 31, 2006.
651	
652	(B) CAFOs that seek to obtain coverage under a permit after
653	December 31, 2006 must have a nutrient management plan developed and implemented upon the
654	date of permit coverage.
655	
656	(ii) The nutrient management plan must, to the extent applicable:
657	
658	(A) Ensure adequate storage of manure, litter, and process
659	wastewater, including procedures to ensure proper operation and maintenance of the storage
660	facilities;
6661	

5662	(B) Ensure proper management of mortalities (i.e., dead animals) so				
5663	they are not disposed of in a liquid manure, storm water, or process wastewater storage or				
5664	treatment system that is not specifically designed to treat animal mortalities;				
5665					
5666	(C) Ensure that stormwater runoff is diverted, as appropriate, from				
5667	the production area;				
5668	•				
5669	(D) Prevent direct contact of confined animals with surface waters of				
5670	the state;				
5671					
5672	(E) Ensure that chemicals and other contaminants handled on-site,				
5673	are not disposed of in any manure, litter, process wastewater, or storm water storage or treatment				
5674	system unless specifically designed to treat such chemicals and other contaminants;				
5675					
5676	(F) Identify appropriate site specific conservation practices to be				
5677	implemented, including as appropriate buffers or equivalent practices, to control runoff of				
5678	pollutants to surface waters of the state;				
5679	porturnity to surrive or the state,				
5680	(G) Identify protocols for appropriate testing of manure, litter,				
5681	process wastewater and soil;				
5682	process waste water and som,				
5683	(H) Establish protocols to land apply manure, litter or process				
5684	wastewater in accordance with site specific nutrient management practices that ensure appropriate				
5685	agricultural utilization of the nutrients in the manure, litter or process wastewater; and				
5686	agricultural atmization of the national in the manare, inter of process waste water, and				
5687	(I) Identify specific records that will be maintained to document the				
5688	implementation and management of the minimum elements described in Appendix G (i) (ii) (A				
5689	through H).				
5690	unough 11).				
5691	(iii) Record keeping requirements.				
5692	(m) Record Recping requirements.				
5693	(A) The permittee must create, maintain for five (5) years, and make				
5694	available to the director, upon request, the following records:				
5695	available to the director, upon request, the following records.				
5696	(I) All applicable records identified pursuant to Appendix G				
5697	(i) (i) (I) of these regulations.				
5698	(1) (1) (1) of these regulations.				
5699	(II) All CAEOs subject to these regulations must comply				
5700	(II) All CAFOs subject to these regulations must comply with the record learning requirements of Appendix G (i) (iii) (P) and (C)				
5700	with the record keeping requirements of Appendix G (i) (iii) (B) and (C).				
	(D) December of a substitution of the substitu				
5702	(B) Record keeping requirements for the production area. Each				
5703	CAFO must maintain on-site for a period of five (5) years from the date they are created a				
5704	complete copy of the information required by Appendix G (d) (iii) and Appendix G (i) (ii) (I) and				
5705	the records specified in Appendix G (i) (iii) (I) through (VI) of these regulations. The CAFO				
5706	must make these records available to the director and or his designee upon request.				
5707					

5708		(1)	Records documenting the inspections required under
5709	Appendix G (m) (ii) (C) (I) of t	these reg	gulations.
5710			
5711		(II)	Weekly records of the depth of the manure and process
5712	wastewater in the liquid impou	ndment	as indicated by the depth marker under Appendix G (m)
5713	(ii) (C) (II) of these regulations		
5714			
5715		(III)	Records documenting any actions taken to correct
5716	deficiencies required under Ap	pendix (G (m) (ii) (C) (III) of these regulations. Deficiencies not
5717	-	•	npanied by an explanation of the factors preventing
5718	immediate correction.		
5719			
5720		(IV)	Records of mortalities management and practices used
5721	by the CAFO to meet the requi	. ,	of Appendix G (m) (ii) (C) (IV) of these regulations.
5722	1		
5723		(V)	Records documenting the current design of any manure
5724	or litter storage structures, inclu	` '	blume for solids accumulation design treatment volume,
5725	•	•	number of days of storage capacity.
5726	True acception to the approximation approximation and approximation approximation and approximation		
5727		(VI)	Records of the date, time, and estimated volume of any
5728	overflow.		,
5729			
5730	(C)	Record	d keeping requirements of the land application area. Each
5731	* *		its site-specific nutrient management plan. Each CAFO
5732			ve (5) years from the date they created a complete copy of
5733	-		G (j) (ii), Appendix G (i) (i) and (ii), and the records
5734	1 1	•	through IX) of these regulations. The CAFO must make
5735			r his designee, for review upon request.
5736	these records a variable to the di	1100101 0	i mo designee, for review apon request.
5737		(I)	The date(s) manure, litter, or process waste water is
5738	applied to each field;	(1)	The date(s) manare, fitter, or process waste water is
5739	applied to each field,		
5740		(II)	Weather conditions at time of application and for 24-
5741	hours prior to and following ap		
5742	nours prior to and ronowing up	pireation	·,
5743		(III)	Test methods used to sample and analyze manure, litter,
5744	process waste water, and soil;	(111)	rest methods used to sample and analyze manure, fitter,
5745	process waste water, and son,		
5745 5746		(IV)	Results from manure, litter, process waste water, and
5747	soil sampling;	(1)	Results from manure, fitter, process waste water, and
	son sampling,		
5748 5749		(V)	Explanation of the basis for determining manure
	application rates	(v)	Explanation of the basis for determining manufe
5750 5751	application rates;		
5751 5752		(\mathbf{M})	Calculations showing the total nitrogen and phosphorus
5752 5753	to be applied to each field in the	(VI)	ources other than manure, litter, or process wastewater;
J 1 J J	to be applied to each field, files	սաուբ ՏՕ	onces other than manure, inter, or process wastewater,

5754	
5755	
5756	(VII) Total amount of nitrogen and phosphorus actually
5757	applied to each field, including documentation of calculations for the total amount applied;
5758	
5759	(VIII) The method used to apply the manure, litter, or process
5760	wastewater;
5761	,
5762	(IX) Date(s) of manure application equipment inspection.
5763	(112) 2 motor approximation of an processing
5764	(D) A copy of the CAFO=s site-specific nutrient management plan
5765	must be maintained on site and made available to the director upon request.
5766	must be maintained on site and made available to the director apon request.
5767	(iv) Requirements relating to transfer of manure or process wastewater to
5768	other persons. Prior to transferring manure, litter or process wastewater to other persons. Large
5769	CAFOs must provide the recipient of the manure, litter or process wastewater with the most
5770	current nutrient analysis. The analysis provided must be consistent with requirements of this
5771	appendix. Large CAFOs must retain for five (5) years records of the date, recipient name and
5772	address, and approximate amount of manure, litter or process wastewater transferred to another
5773	person.
5774	person.
5775	(v) Annual reporting requirements for CAFOs. The permittee must submit
5776	an annual report to the administrator. The annual report must include:
5777	an annual report to the administrator. The annual report must metude.
5778	(A) The number and type of animals, whether in open confinement
5779	or housed under roof (buffalo, beef cattle, broilers, layers, swine weighing 55 pounds or more,
5780	swine weighing less than 55 pounds, mature dairy cows, dairy heifers, veal calves, sheep and
5781	lambs, horses, ducks, turkeys, other);
5782	idinos, noises, dueks, turkeys, odier),
5783	(B) Estimated amount of total manure, litter and process wastewater
5784	generated by the CAFO in the previous 12 months (tons/gallons);
5785	generated by the CATO in the previous 12 months (tons/ganons),
5786	(C) Estimated amount of total manure, litter and process waste water
5787	transferred to other person(s) by the CAFO in the previous 12 months (ton/gallons);
5788	transferred to other person(s) by the CM o in the previous 12 months (toll gamons),
5789	(D) Total number of acres for land application covered by the
5790	nutrient management plan developed in accordance with Appendix G (i) (i) of these regulations;
5791	numeric management plan developed in decordance with Appendix G (1) (1) of these regulations,
5792	(E) Total number of acres under control of the CAFO that were used
5793	for land application of manure, litter, and process wastewater in the previous 12 months;
5794	101 rand application of manufe, fixer, and process wastewater in the previous 12 months,
5795	(F) Summary of all manure, litter and process wastewater discharges
5796	from the production area that have occurred in the previous 12 months, including date, time, and
5797	
	approximate volume; and
5798 5700	
5799	

800	(G) A statement indicating whether the current version of the				
5801	CAFO=s nutrient management plan was developed or approved by a certified nutrient				
5802	management planner.				
5803					
5804	(j) This paragraph applies to manure, litter, and/or process wastewater discharges				
5805	resulting from CAFOs.				
5806					
5807	(i) General pretreatment standards. Any source subject to Appendix G (j)				
5808	that introduces process wastewater pollutants into a publicly owned treatment works (POTW)				
5809	must comply with the general pretreatment regulations of 40 CFR 403.				
5810					
5811	(ii) Best Management Practices (BMPs) for land application of manure,				
5812	litter, and process wastewater.				
5813					
5814	(A) Appendix G (j) (ii) applies to any CAFO subject to Appendix G				
5815	(m) of these regulations (buffalo, dairy and beef cattle other than veal calves) Appendix G (n) of				
5816	these regulations (swine, poultry, and veal calves).				
5817					
5818	(B) Specialized definitions.				
5819					
5820	(I) "Setback" means a specified distance from surface				
5821	waters of the state or potential conduits to surface water where manure, litter, and process				
5822	wastewater may not be land applied. Examples of conduits to surface waters of the state include				
5823	but are not limited to: open tile line intake structures, sinkholes, and agricultural well heads.				
5824					
5825	(II) "Vegetated buffer" means a narrow, permanent strip of				
5826	dense perennial vegetation established parallel to the contours of and perpendicular to the				
5827	dominant slope of the field for the purposes of slowing water runoff, enhancing water infiltration,				
5828	and minimizing the risk of any potential nutrients or pollutants from leaving the field and				
5829	reaching surface waters of the state.				
5830					
5831	(III) "Multi-year phosphorus application" means phosphorus				
5832	applied to a field in excess of the crop needs for that year. In multi-year phosphorus applications				
5833	no additional manure, litter, or process wastewater is applied to the same land in subsequent years				
5834	until the applied phosphorus has been removed from the field via harvest and crop removal.				
5835					
5836	(C) Requirement to develop and implement best management				
5837	practices. Each CAFO subject to Appendix G (j) (ii) that land applies manure, litter, or process				
5838	wastewater, must do so in accordance with the following practices:				
5839					
5840	(I) Nutrient management plan. The CAFO must develop				
5841	and implement a nutrient management plan that incorporates the requirements of Appendix G (j)				
5842	(ii) (C) (II) through (VI) of these regulations based on field-specific assessment of the potential				
5843	for nitrogen and phosphorus transport from the field and that addresses the form, source, amount,				
5844	timing, and method of application of nutrients on each field to achieve realistic production goals,				
5845	while minimizing nitrogen and phosphorus movement to surface waters of the state.				

5846	
5847	(II) Determination of application rates. Application rates for
5848	manure, litter, and other process wastewater applied to land under the ownership or operation
5849	control of the CAFO must minimize phosphorus and nitrogen transport from the field to surface
5850	and groundwaters of the state in compliance with technical standards, established by the director,
5851	for nutrient management. These shall include:
5852	
5853	(1.) A field-specific assessment of the potential for
5854	nitrogen and phosphorus transport from the field to surface waters of the state, and address the
5855	form, source, amount, timing, and method of application of nutrients of each field to achieve
5856	realistic production goals, while minimizing nitrogen and phosphorus movement to surface
5857	waters of the state; and
5858	
5859	(2.) Appropriate flexibilities for any CAFO to
5860	implement nutrient management practices to comply with technical standards, including
5861	considerations of multi-year phosphorus application on fields that do not have a high potential for
5862	phosphorus runoff to surface water, phased implementation of phosphorus-based nutrient
5863	management, and other components.
5864	
5865	(C) The director shall establish technical standards for nutrient
5866	management plans by April 12, 2004.
5867	
5868	(III) Manure and soil sampling.
5869	
5870	(1.) Manure must be analyzed for nitrogen and
5871	phosphorus content a minimum of once annually, and
5872	
5873	(2.) The soil profile shall be analyzed a minimum of
5874	once every five (5) years for phosphorus content. The results of these analyses are to be used in
5875	determining application rates for manure, litter, and other process wastewater.
5876	
5877	(IV) Inspect land application equipment for leaks. The
5878	operator must periodically inspect equipment used for land application of manure, litter, or
5879	process wastewater.
5880	
5881	(V) Setback requirements. Unless the CAFO exercises one
5882	of the compliance alternatives provided for in Appendix G (j) (ii) (V) (i) or (j) (ii) (V) (ii) of these
5883	regulations, manure, litter, and process wastewater may not be applied closer than 100 feet to any
5884	down-gradient surface waters of the state, open tile line intake structures, sinkholes, agricultural
5885	well heads, or other conduits to surface waters of the state.
5886	
5887	(1.) Vegetated buffer compliance alternative. As a
5888	compliance alternative, the CAFO may substitute the 100-foot setback with a 35 foot wide
5889	vegetated buffer where applications of manure, litter, or process wastewater are prohibited.
5890	

5891 5892 5893 5894 5895	(2.) As a compliance alternative, the CAFO may demonstrate that a setback or buffer is not necessary because implementation of alternative conservation practices or field-specific conditions will provide pollutant reductions equivalent or better than the reductions that would be achieved by the 100 foot setback.							
5896 5897	(k)	Effluer	nt Limita	ations Applicable to Horses and Sheep.				
5898 5899 5900	(i) This paragraph applies to discharges resulting from the production areas at horse and sheep CAFOs.							
5901 5902 5903 5904	(ii) Except as provided in Section 8 of these regulations and subject to the provisions of Appendix G (j) (iii-ii) (C), any point source subject to this source must have no discharge of process waste water pollutants to surface waters of the state.							
5905 5906 5907 5908 5909 5910	process waste	water fro e waters	never rai om a faci	s waste pollutants in the overflow may be discharged to surface infall events, either chronic or catastrophic, cause an overflow of lity designed, constructed and operated to contain all process a runoff from a 25-year, 24-hour rainfall event for the location of				
5911	(1)	Effluer	nt limitat	tions applicable to ducks.				
5912		(*)	mi :					
5913	. 1 1 . 1	(i)	_	aragraph applies to discharges resulting from the production areas				
5914	at dry lot and w	vet lot di	ick CAF	'Us.				
5915		···	~ .					
5916		(ii)	Specia	l definitions.				
5917								
5918		~	(A)	"Dry lot" means a facility for growing ducks in confinement				
5919	with a dry litter	r floor co	over and	no access to swimming areas.				
5920								
5921			(B)	"Wet lot" means a confinement facility for raising ducks which				
5922	-			a small number of sheltered areas, and with open water runs and				
5923	swimming area	is to whi	ch ducks	s have free access.				
5924								
5925		(iii)		as provided in Section 8 of these regulations and subject to the				
5926	_		-	<u>∗ii</u>) (C), any point source subject to this source must have no				
5927	discharge of pr	ocess wa	aste wate	er pollutants to surface waters of the state.				
5928								
5929		(iv)		s waste pollutants in the overflow may be discharged to surface				
5930				infall events, either chronic or catastrophic, cause an overflow of				
5931	•			lity designed, constructed and operated to contain all process				
5932	-		plus the	runoff from a 25-year, 24-hour rainfall event for the location of				
5933	the point sourc	e.						
5934								
5935	(m)	Effluer	nt limitat	tions applicable to buffalo, dairy cows and cattle other than veal				
5936	calves.							

5937						
5938	(i) This paragraph applies to discharges resulting from the production areas					
5939	at the following types of CAFOs:					
5940						
5941	(A) Mature dairy cows (either milking or dry).					
5942						
5943	(B) Cattle other than mature dairy cows which includes, but is not					
5944	limited to heifers, steers, and bulls.					
5945						
5946	(C) Buffalo.					
5947						
5948	(ii) Except as provided in Section 8 of these regulations and subject to the					
5949	provisions of Appendix G (j) (iii-ii) (C), any point source subject to this source must meet the					
5950	following limitations:					
5951						
5952	(A) There shall be no discharge of manure, litter, or process					
5953	wastewater pollutants into surface waters of the state from the CAFO production area, except					
5954	under the following conditions:					
5955						
5956	(I) Whenever precipitation causes an overflow of manure,					
5957	litter, or process wastewater, pollutants in the overflow may be discharged to surface waters of					
5958	the state provided:					
5959	·					
5960	(1.) The production area is designed, constructed,					
5961	operated and maintained to contain all manure, litter, and process wastewater including the runoff					
5962	and the direct precipitation from a 25-year, 24-hour rainfall event.					
5963						
5964	(2.) The production area is operated in accordance					
5965	with the additional measures and records required by Appendix G (i) (iii) (B) and Appendix G					
5966	(m) (ii) (C) of these regulations.					
5967						
5968	(II) Voluntary alternative performance standards. Any					
5969	CAFO subject to Appendix G (m) of these regulations may request the administrator to establish					
5970	WYPDES permit effluent limitations based upon site-specific alternative technologies that					
5971	achieve a quantity of pollutants discharged from the production area equal to or less than the					
5972	quantity of pollutants that would be discharged under the baseline performance standards as					
5973	provided by Appendix G (m) (ii) (A) of these regulations.					
5974						
5975	(1.) Supporting information. In requesting site-					
5976	specific effluent limitations to be included in the WYPDES permit, the CAFO owner or operator					
5977	must submit a supporting technical analysis and any other relevant information and data that					
5978	would support such site-specific effluent limitations within the time frame provided by the					
5979	director. The supporting technical analysis must include calculation of the quantity of pollutants					
5980	discharged, on a mass basis where appropriate, based on a site specific analysis of a system					
5981	designed, constructed, operated, and maintained to contain all manure, litter, and process					

5982	wastewater, including the runof	f from a	25-year	; 24-hou	r rainfall event. The technical analysis of
5983	the discharge of pollutants must	t include	:		
5984					
5985				(a.)	All daily inputs to the storage system,
5986	including manure, litter, all pro-	cess was	te water	s, direct	
5987					
5988				(b.)	All daily outputs from the storage
5989	system, including losses due to	evaporat	tion, slu		oval, and the removal of waste water for
5990	use on cropland at the CAFO or	_		_	,
5991	r				
5992				(c.)	A calculation determining the predicted
5993	median annual overflow volume	e based o	on a 25-	` /	iod of actual rainfall data applicable to the
5994	site.		, a =e	Jour Por	or weeken running and approved to the
5995	Site.				
5996				(d.)	Site-specific pollutant data, including N,
5997	P ROD5 TSS for the CAFO f	rom renr	esentati	` ,	ling and analysis of all sources of input to
5998	the storage system, or other app	•		-	mig and analysis of an sources of input to
5999	the storage system, or other app	портнис	ponutai	n data.	
6000				(e.)	Predicted annual average discharge of
6001	nollytants avaraged where any	ropriete	00 0 120		arge on a daily basis (lbs/day), and
6002		_		iss discii	arge on a dairy basis (los/day), and
	calculated considering (A throu	gn D abo	ove).		
6003			(2.)	The od	ministrator has the dispostion to request
6004	additional information to suppl	41.	(2.)		ministrator has the discretion to request
6005		ement tn	e suppoi	rung tec	hnical analysis, including inspection of
6006	the CAFO.				
6007		TTI CL	VEO 1	11	4 1 4 4 4 4 6 4 6 4 6 4 6 4 6 4 6 4 6 4
6008				iii attain	the limitations and requirements of this
6009	paragraph as of the date of perm	nit cover	age.		
6010		(D)	D: 1	C	
6011	6.11	(B)	Discha	rges fro	m land application areas are subject to the
6012	following requirements:				
6013			-		
6014		~	(I)		op and implement the best management
6015	practices specified in Appendix	G (j) (ii) of thes	se regula	tions.
6016					
6017			(II)	Mainta	in the records specified in Appendix G (i)
6018	(iii) (C) of these regulations.				
6018 6019	(iii) (C) of these regulations.				
6018 6019 6020	•		(III)		the limitations and requirements for
6018 6019 6020 6021	(iii) (C) of these regulations. discharges form land applicatio	n areas a	` '		
6018 6019 6020 6021 6022	•	n areas a	` '		
6018 6019 6020 6021 6022 6023	discharges form land applicatio	(C)	Additi	date of	permit coverage. asures. Each CAFO subject Appendix G
6018 6019 6020 6021 6022	•	(C)	Additi	date of	permit coverage. asures. Each CAFO subject Appendix G

6026 6027	(I) Visual Inspections. There must be routine visual inspections of the CAFO production area. At a minimum, the following must be visually							
6028	inspected:							
6029								
6030 6031	(1.) Weekly inspections of all storm water diversion devices, runoff diversion structures, and devices channeling contaminated storm water							
6032	to the wastewater and manure storage and containment structure;							
6033	to the wastewater and manure storage and contamment structure,							
6034	(2.) Daily inspection of water lines,							
6035	including drinking water or cooling water lines and documented weekly at a minimum, for the							
6036	purpose of identifying leaks, corrosion, mechanical defects or other conditions that may result in							
6037	an inadvertent discharge from the facility;							
6038								
6039	(3.) Weekly inspections of the manure, litter,							
6040	and process wastewater impoundments; the inspection will note the level in liquid impoundments							
6041	as indicated by the depth marker in paragraph (E) (II) of this appendix; and							
6042								
6043	(4.) The visual inspection requirements may							
6044	be waived if insurmountable or dangerous weather conditions exist and the weather conditions							
6045	justifying the waiver are documented.							
6046								
6047	(II) Depth marker. All open surface liquid							
6048	impoundments must have a depth marker which clearly indicates the minimum capacity							
6049	necessary to contain the runoff and direct precipitation of the 25-year, 24-hour rainfall event.							
6050								
6051	(III) Corrective actions. Any deficiencies found as a							
6052	result of these inspections must be corrected as soon as possible.							
6053								
6054	(IV) Mortality handling. Mortalities must not be							
6055	disposed of in any liquid manure or process wastewater system, and must be handled in such a							
6056	way as to prevent the discharge of pollutants to surface water, unless alternative technologies							
6057	pursuant to Appendix G (m) (ii) (II) and approved by the director are designed to handle							
6058	mortalities.							
6059								
6060	(n) Effluent limitations applicable to swine, poultry, and veal calves.							
6061								
6062	(i) This paragraph applies to discharges resulting from the production areas							
6063	at the following types of CAFOs:							
6064								
6065	(A) Swine,							
6066								
6067	(B) Chickens,							
6068								
6069	(C) Turkeys, and							
6070								
6071	(D) Veal calves.							

6072						
6073	(ii) Except as provided in Section 8 of these regulations, any point source					
6074	subject to this source must meet the following limitations.					
6075						
6076	(iii) There shall be no discharge of manure, litter, or process wastewater					
6077	pollutants into surface waters of the state from the CAFO production area, except under the					
6078	following conditions.					
6079						
6080	(A) Waste management and storage facilities are designed,					
6081	constructed, operated, and maintained to contain all manure, litter, and process wastewater					
6082	including the runoff and the direct precipitation from a 100-year, 24-hour rainfall event and					
6083	operated in accordance with the additional measures and records required by Appendix G (i) (iii)					
6084	(B) and Appendix G (n) (vi) (A) of these regulations.					
6085						
6086	(B) The production area is operated in accordance with additional					
6087	measures required by Appendix G (i) (iii) (B) and Appendix G (n) (vi) of these regulations.					
6088						
6089	(C) The discharge is an upset/bypass consistent with the provisions					
6090	for upset/bypass, as provided in Section 5 (c) (i) (Z) and (AA) of these regulations.					
6091						
6092	(iv) Discharges from land application areas are subject to the following					
6093	requirements.					
6094	•					
6095	(A) Develop and implement the best management practices specified					
6096	in Appendix G (j) (ii) of these regulations.					
6097						
6098	(B) Maintain the records specified in Appendix G (i) (iii) (C) of					
6099	these regulations.					
6100						
6101	(C) Attain the limitations and requirements for discharges from land					
6102	application areas as of the date of permit coverage.					
6103						
6104	(v) Voluntary superior environmental performance standards. Any new					
6105	source CAFO subject to Appendix (G) (n) may request the director to establish alternative					
6106	WYPDES permit limitations based upon a demonstration that site-specific innovative					
6107	technologies will achieve overall environmental performance across all media which is equal to					
6108	or superior to the reductions achieved by baseline standards as provided by Appendix G (n) (iii).					
6109	The quantity of pollutants discharged from the production area must be accompanied by an					
6110	equivalent or greater reduction in the quantity of pollutants released to other media from the					
6111	production area (e.g., air emissions from housing and storage) and/or land application areas for all					
6112	manure, litter, and process wastewater at on-site and off-site locations. The comparison of					
6113	quantity of pollutants must be made on a mass basis where appropriate. The director has the					
6114	discretion to request supporting information to supplement such a request.					
6115	and the state of t					
6116	(vi) Additional measures. Each CAFO subject to Appendix G (n) of these					
6117	regulations must implement the following requirements:					
	υ το του συναστού συ					

6118	
6119	(A) Visual inspections. There must be routine visual inspections of
6120	the CAFO production area. At a minimum, the following must be visually inspected:
6121	
6122	(I) Weekly inspections of all storm water diversion devices.
6123	runoff diversion structures, and devices channeling contaminated storm water to the wastewater
6124	and manure storage and containment structure;
6125	
6126	(II) Daily inspection of water lines, including drinking water
6127	or cooling water lines;
6128	
6129	(III) Weekly inspections of the manure, litter, and process
6130	wastewater impoundments; the inspection will note the level in liquid impoundments as indicated
6131	by the depth marker in paragraph (E) (II) of this appendix.
6132	
6133	(B) Depth marker. All open surface liquid impoundments must have
6134	a depth marker which clearly indicates the minimum capacity necessary to contain the runoff and
6135	direct precipitation of the 100-year, 24-hour rainfall event.
6136	
6137	(C) Corrective actions. Any deficiencies found as a result of these
6138	inspections must be corrected as soon as possible.
6139	
6140	(D) Mortality handling. Mortalities must not be disposed of in any
6141	liquid manure or process wastewater system, and must be handled in such a way as to prevent the
6142	discharge of pollutants to surface water, unless alternative technologies pursuant to Appendix G
6143	(n) (v) and approved by the director are designed to handle mortalities.
6144	
6145	

6146 6147	<u>APPENDIX H: Additional Requirements Applicable to Produced Water Discharges from Oil and Gas Production Facilities</u>
6148	
6149	(a) Application requirements specific to all produced water discharges from oil and
6150	gas production facilities must provide the following information in addition to that described in
6151	Section 5 (a) (v), to the administrator, using the application form provided by the administrator.
6152	
6153	(i) The produced water discharged into surface waters of the state shall have
6154	use in agriculture or wildlife propagation. The produced water shall be of good enough quality to
6155	be used for wildlife or livestock watering or other agricultural uses and actually be put to such use
6156	during periods of discharge.
6157	
6158	(b) Permits for all produced water discharges from oil and gas production facilities
6159	shall include the following conditions and limitations:
6160	
6161	(i) In no case shall any produced water discharge contain toxic materials in
6162	concentrations or combinations which are toxic to human, animal or aquatic life.
6163	, 1
6164	(ii) Diffuse discharges. Water shall not be discharged in a diffuse manner
6165	such that damage to land and/or vegetation occurs.
6166	
6167	(iii) Facility identification. All facilities authorized to discharge produced
6168	water shall be clearly identified with an all-weather sign posted at a visually prominent location.
6169	The sign shall be securely mounted and maintained to prevent the sign from being knocked down
6170	by livestock or wind. In the case where multiple outfalls are permitted or authorized, a sign shall
6171	be posted to identify each outfall. Signs shall, as a minimum, convey the following information:
6172	
6173	(A) The name of the company, corporation, person or persons who
6174	hold(s) the discharge permit;
6175	
6176	(B) The name of the facility (lease, tank battery number, etc.) as
6177	identified by the discharge permit; and
6178	8. I
6179	(C) The WYPDES permit number assigned to the facility and outfall
6180	identification number assigned to each outfall.
6181	
6182	(iv) Measures must be implemented to minimize erosion of the drainage at
6183	the point of discharge.
6184	
6185	(v) Discharges of produced water will not contain substances that will settle
6186	to form sludge, bank or bottom deposits in quantities sufficient to result in significant aesthetic
6187	degradation, significant degradation of habitat for aquatic life or adversely affect public water
6188	supplies, agricultural or industrial water use, plant life or wildlife.
6189	

6190	(vi) Discharges of produced water may not result in the formation of a visible						
6191	hydrocarbon sheen on the receiving water.						
6192							
6193	(vii) The following effluent limitations are protective for stock and wildlife						
6194	consumption. Limitations on additional parameters or limitations more stringent will be imposed						
6195	when such limitations are necessary to assure compliance with Wyoming Water Quality Rules						
6196	and Regulations, Chapter 1.						
6197							
6198	(A) Chlorides. The chloride content of any produced water						
6199	discharge shall not exceed 2,000 mg/l in any single properly preserved grab sample except in						
6200	those cases where a modification is granted in accordance with paragraph (c) of this appendix.						
6201							
6202	(B) Sulfates. The sulfate content of any produced water discharge						
6203	shall not exceed 3,000 mg/l in any single properly preserved grab sample except in those cases						
6204	where a modification is granted in accordance with paragraph (c) of this appendix.						
6205							
6206	(C) Total dissolved solids and specific conductance. The total						
6207	dissolved solids content of any produced water discharge shall not exceed 5,000 mg/l for total						
6208	dissolved solids or 7500 μmhos/cm for specific conductance in any single properly preserved						
6209	grab sample except in those cases where a modification has been granted in accordance with						
6210	paragraph (c) of this appendix.						
6211							
6212	(D) pH. In no case shall the pH of any produced water discharge be						
6213	less than 6.5 or greater than 9.0 standard units as measured by a single grab sample.						
6214							
6215	(viii) Samples collected to demonstrate compliance with effluent limitations						
6216	specified in this appendix shall be collected as grab samples and reported as an instantaneous						
6217	maximum, unless otherwise specified.						
6218	(Ix) There shall be no discharge of waste pollutants into surface waters of the						
6219 6220	(Ix) There shall be no discharge of waste pollutants into surface waters of the state from any source (other than produced water) associated with production, field exploration,						
6221	drilling, well completion, or well treatment (i.e., drilling muds, drill cuttings, and produced						
6222							
6223	sands). These materials shall be managed in accordance with applicable state and federal regulations.						
6224	regulations.						
6225	(x) All water quality samples collected by the Department and discharge						
6226	permit holders subject to this Appendix shall be taken from the free fall of water from the last						
6227	treatment unit which is located out of the natural drainage. The sample must not be mixed with						
6228	waters of any other surface water or with water from another discharge point.						
6229	naters of any other surface water of with water from another discharge point.						
6230	(c) Additional Permit Conditions and Limitations Specific to Oil and Natural Gas						
6231	(other than coal bed natural gas) Production Facilities.						
6232	(one) with tour ood interne gas) I round on I defined.						
6233	(i) For existing permits where the original permit application was submitted						
6234	prior to September 5, 1978, modification of the effluent limits described in paragraphs (b) (vii) of						
6235	this appendix may be granted on a case-by-case basis if a signed "letter of beneficial use" from						

the land owner was provided specifically requesting that the discharge in question be allowed to continue; or a signed statement by the Wyoming Game and Fish Department was provided in which it was stated that the discharge in question is of value to fish or wildlife; or documentation was provided by the owner or operator of the discharging facility that, because of extenuating circumstances (volume of discharge, individual chemical constituents, nature of the area in which the discharge occurs, etc.), an exemption should be considered. The user must have indicated the exact beneficial use of the water (stock watering, irrigation, etc.) and the history of such use. No action taken by the department under this paragraph or any other paragraph of these regulations shall be interpreted as the granting of a water right or any other water use authority.

(ii) For discharge permit applications filed after the date of adoption of these regulations, modification of effluent limits described in paragraph (b) (vii) of this appendix may be granted on a case-by-case basis. The Water Quality Administrator shall review all requests for modification of effluent limits submitted under this section and make a determination based upon the technical merits of a Use Attainability Analysis. Such requests shall also provide a signed "letter of agricultural or wildlife use" by the land owner specifically requesting that the discharge will serve a specific agricultural or wildlife use.

(iii) In no case will a modification as described in paragraph (b-c) (i) or (b-c) (ii) of this appendix be permitted which would result in a violation of Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations, Chapter 1.

(iv) Location of skim ponds and disposal pits. Location of skim ponds and disposal pits shall be managed in accordance with applicable state (e.g. Oil and Gas Conservation Commission) and federal (e.g. Bureau of Land Management) regulations.

(v) An effluent limitation of 10 mg/l for oil and grease as measured by EPA method 1664 or 10 mg/l for net oil and grease as measured by alternate test procedure method 1664-Cu.

(d) Additional Permit Conditions and Limitations Specific to Coal Bed Natural Gas Production Facilities.

(i) Where discharge water is accessible to livestock and/or wildlife; meets the effluent limitations as specified in this appendix; and meets the criteria for the protection of livestock and wildlife as specified in Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations Chapter 1, Wyoming Surface Water Quality Standards, the discharge will be considered in compliance with the requirements of Appendix H (a) (i) of these regulations.

(ii) For discharge permit applications filed after the date of adoption of these regulations, modification of effluent limits described in paragraph (b) (vii) of this appendix may be granted on a case by case basis. The Water Quality Administrator shall review all requests for modification of effluent limits submitted under this section and make a determination based upon the technical merits of a Use Attainability Analysis. Such requests shall also provide a signed "letter of agricultural or wildlife use" by the land owner specifically requesting that the discharge

5281 5282	Appendix (H) (d) (i) have been met.
5283	Appendix (n) (d) (i) have been met.
5284	(iii) Location of disposal pits. Location of disposal pits shall be managed in
5285	accordance with applicable state (e.g. Oil and Gas Conservation Commission) and federal (e.g.
5286	Bureau of Land Management) regulations.
5287	
5288	(iv) The permittee shall take all reasonable measures to prevent downstream
5289	erosion that would be attributable to the discharge of produced water.
5290	· ·
5291	
5292	
5293	
5294	
5295	
5296	
5297	
5298	
5299	
5300	
5301	
5302	
5303	
5304	
5305	
5306	
5307	
5308	
5309 5310	
5310	
5312	
5312	
5314	
5315	
5316	
5317	
5318	
5319	
5320	
5321	
5322	
5323	
5324	
5325	
5326	Intentionally left blank

<u>APPENDIX I: RESERVED</u>

6328

6327

This page intentionally left blank.

5329	APPENDIX J: Additional Requirements Applicable to Coal Mining Operations
5330	
5331	(a) General definitions applicable to Appendix J.
5332	
5333	(i) "Abandoned mine" means a mine where mining operations have
5334	occurred in the past and:
5335	
5336	(A) The applicable reclamation bond or financial assurance has been
5337	released or forfeited; or
5338 5339	(B) If no reclamation bond or other financial assurance has been
5340	(B) If no reclamation bond or other financial assurance has been posted, no mining operations have occurred for five years or more.
5341	posted, no mining operations have occurred for five years of more.
5342	(ii) "Acid or ferruginous mine drainage" means mine drainage which, before
5343	any treatment, either has a pH of less than 6.0 or a total iron concentration equal to or greater than
5344	10 mg/l.
5345	
5346	(iii) "Active mining area" means the area, on and beneath land, used or
5347	disturbed in activity related to the extraction, removal, or recovery of coal from its natural
5348	deposits. This term excludes coal preparation plants, coal preparation plant associated areas and
5349	post-mining areas.
5350	
5351	(iv) "Alkaline, mine drainage" means mine drainage which, before any
5352	treatment, either has a pH of greater than 6.0 or a total iron concentration less than 10 mg/l.
5353	(1) "D and not cope" means the time of which the annuariate negations
5354 5355	(v) "Bond release" means the time at which the appropriate regulatory authority returns a reclamation or performance bond based upon its determination that
5356	reclamation work (including, in the case of underground mines, mine sealing, and abandonment
5357	procedures) has been satisfactorily completed.
5358	procedures) has been satisfactoring completed.
5359	(vi) "Coal preparation plant" means a facility where coal is subjected to
5360	cleaning, concentrating, or other processing or preparation in order to separate coal from its
5361	impurities and then is loaded for transit to a consuming facility.
5362	
5363	(vii) "Coal preparation plant associated areas" means the coal preparation
5364	plant yards, immediate access roads, coal refuse piles, and coal storage piles and facilities.
5365	
5366	(viii) "Coal preparation plant water circuit" means all pipes, channels, basins,
5367	tanks, and all other structures and equipment that convey, contain, treat, or process any water that
6368	is used in coal preparation processes within a coal preparation plant.
6369	
5370 5371	(ix) "Coal refuse disposal pile" means any coal refuse deposited on the earth
5372	and intended as permanent disposal or long-term storage (greater than 180 days) of such material
214	and intended as permanent disposar or rong term storage (greater than 100 days) of such material

5373	but does not include of	oal refus	e deposi	ted within the active mining area or coal refuse never			
5374	removed from the act	ive minir	ng area.				
5375							
5376	(x)	"Cont	rolled su	urface mine drainage" means any surface mine drainage			
5377	that is pumped or siphoned from the active mining area.						
5378							
5379	(xi)	"Mine	e drainag	ge" means any drainage, and any water pumped or			
5380	siphoned, from any ac	ctive min	ing area	or a post mining area.			
5381	/ ···	66 1/12	,	9191.			
5382	(xii)	'ml/l'	means	milliliters per liter.			
5383	/ ····	(CN T		1 ' 2 1 ' / 1 1' 1			
5384	(xiii)			coal mine" means a coal mine (excluding coal preparation			
5385		ration pla	int assoc	iated areas) including an abandoned mine which is being			
5386	reminded:						
5387		(4)	TD1				
5388		(A)	The co	onstruction of which is commenced after May 4, 1984; or			
5389		(D)	3371. : .1				
5390	altanation ?? In malein	(B)		n is determined by the administrator to constitute a "major			
5391		-		on, the administrator shall take into account whether one			
5392		_		ng in a new, altered or increased discharge of pollutants			
5393		ıy 4, 198 ²	4 in coni	nection with the mine for which the WYPDES permit is			
5394	being considered:						
5395			(T)	Enteretion of a seal array and apprically setting to 1 of the			
5396			(I)	Extraction of a coal seam not previously extracted at the			
5397	mine;						
5398			(II)	Distance into the desired and an include of the first the			
5399	wastawatan disahansa	fuom the	(II)	Discharge into a drainage area not previously affected by			
5400	wastewater discharge	mom the	mine;				
5401 5402			(III)	Tytansiya navy symfo as dismyntion at the mining			
5403	operation		(111)	Extensive new surface disruption at the mining			
5404	operation;						
5405			(IV)	A construction of a new shaft, lope, or drift; and			
5406			(1 V)	A construction of a new shart, tope, of drift, and			
5407			(V)	Such other factors as the administrator deems relevant.			
5408			(*)	Such other factors as the administrator deems relevant.			
5409	(xiv)	"One	vear 2-v	year, and 10-year, 24-hour precipitation events" means the			
5410	` /			with a probable recurrence interval of once in one (1), two			
5411	•	•		defined by the National Weather Service Technical Paper			
5412		_	-	he U.S." May 1961, or equivalent regional or rainfall			
5413	probability information						
5414	procuerny miorimum	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	pod mor				
5415	(xv)	"Post-	-mining	area" means:			
5416	(.11)	1 000					
5417		(A)	A recl	amation area; or			
5418		\ -/		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			

6419	(B) The underground workings of an underground coal mine after
6420	the extraction, removal, or recovery of coal from its natural deposit has ceased and prior to bond
6421	release.
6422	
6423	(xvi) "Reclamation area" means the surface area of a coal mine which has
6424	been returned to required contour and on which revegetation (specifically, seeding, or planting)
6425	work has commenced.
6426	
6427	(xvii) "Settleable solids" is that matter measured by the volumetric method
6428	specified in Appendix J (f).
6429	
6430	(xvii) "Treatment facility" and "treatment system" mean all structures which
6431	contain, convey, and as necessary, chemically or physically treat coal fine drainage, coal
6432	preparation plant process wastewater, or drainage from coal preparation plant associated areas,
6433	which remove pollutants regulated by this part from such waters. This includes all pipes,
6434	channels, ponds, basins, tanks, and all other equipment serving such structures.
6435	
6436	(b) Application requirements specific to discharges from coal mines must provide
6437	the following information, in addition to that described in Section 5 (a) (v), and where applicable
6438	the information described in Appendix B, Appendix C, and/or Appendix D, to the administrator,
6439	using an application form provided by the administrator.
6440	
6441	(i) Construction application requirements. A permit application, which may
6442	include an approved sedimentation structure control plan, in accordance with the provisions
6443	outlined in Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations, Chapter 3, is required for the
6444	construction of any sedimentation ponds or runoff control facilities associated with surface coal
6445	mining operations. By agreement between the Land Quality Division and the Water Quality
6446	Division, this may take the form of one consolidated application for surface coal mining
6447	operations.
6448	
6449	(ii) Minimum design standards for sedimentation control facilities. The
6450	minimum design standards for runoff control facilities of surface coal mining operations are set
6451	forth in this subparagraph. The department reserves the right to impose more stringent design
6452	requirements to ensure compliance with the effluent limitations contained in Section 5 (c) (iii) of
6453	these regulations.
6454	these regulations.
6455	(A) Scope. These standards pertain only to permits for surface coal
6456	mining sedimentation control facilities required pursuant to Wyoming Water Quality Rules and
6457	Regulations, Chapter 3.
6458	regulations, chapter 3.
6459	(B) Sedimentation ponds and sedimentation control structures.
6460	(D) Seamentation points and seamentation control structures.
6461	(I) Design.
6462	(i) Design.

6463	(1.) Inlet ditches or structures shall be designed to
6464	minimize erosion, disturbance of the pond bottom, and resuspension of silts or colloidal soil
6465	particles.
6466	
6467	(2.) Outlet structures, if used, shall have an overflow
6468	device, minimize short-circuiting, minimize floating solids from discharging and shall not erode
6469	or disturb the dike. All pipe protruding through a dike shall have adequate seepage control. The
6470	point of discharge into a channel shall be protected against erosion and erosion control devices
6471	shall be designed based on flow velocities.
6472	
6473	(3.) The design, construction and maintenance of a
6474	sedimentation pond or other sediment control measures shall not relieve the person from
6475	compliance with applicable effluent limitations.
6476	
6477	(4.) Computations showing the facility volume to
6478	include runoff from a 10-year 24-hour precipitation event shall be provided. The pond treatment
6479	or containment volume shall be in addition to sediment storage required by Land Quality Division
6480	regulations. A lesser design event may be approved by the administrator based on terrain,
6481	climate, other site-specific conditions and on a demonstration by the applicant that the effluent
6482	limitations of Section 5 (c) (iii) will be met. The design for the runoff control facilities shall
6483	contain all supportive documentation, calculations and drawings necessary to determine
6484	compliance with the effluent limitations of Section 5 (c) (iii) of these regulations.
6485	
6486	(5.) Each person who conducts surface mining
6487	activities shall design, construct and maintain sedimentation ponds to minimize short-circuiting
6488	where the facility is not designed to contain the 10-year 24-hour precipitation runoff.
6489	
6490	(II) Construction. This paragraph pertains only to
6491	impoundments not defined as major impoundments by the State Engineer's regulations. Below
6492	grade sedimentation ponds may be exempted provided site specific contours indicate a slope that
6493	will provide wall structure stability and minimize seepage.
6494	
6495	(1.) Where pond bottoms and sidewalls are made of
6496	fill material, the soils used shall be relatively incompressible, have a low permeability, and be
6497	free from organic material and trash. The soil shall be compacted at a water content that will
6498	ensure structural stability, minimize hydraulic seepage, and minimize settling.
6499	
6500	Fill material containing rocks larger than six (6) inches in the longest dimension shall not
6501	be placed within five (5) feet of the interior slope surface of any pond embankment. Material
6502	containing by volume less than 25 percent of rock larger than six (6) inches and less than 12 inch
6503	in the longest dimension may be placed in the remainder of the embankment.
6504	
6505	(2.) Outer dike slopes shall not be steeper than one
6506	vertical to two (2) horizontal. Flatter slopes may be required to maintain slope stability. Inner
6507	dike slopes shall be sloped one vertical to three horizontal or flatter.
6508	

6509	(3.) The minimum top dike width shall be suffici	ent
6510	to provide structural stability.	
6511		
6512 6513	(4.) The application shall contain an evaluation of	
	the need for riprap. This evaluation shall address site specific conditions such as surrounding	
6514	topography, predominant wind directions, highest predicted peak wind velocity, calculation o	
6515	predicted wave heights, data on windy months versus potential of water and water depths in the	
6516	impoundment, impoundment life or any other relevant parameters. If necessary, riprap or oth	
6517	acceptable erosion control shall be installed on the inner dike slopes at all anticipated levels o	
6518	water. Sedimentation control structures shall be exempted from requirements of this appendix	х.
6519	(III) Devictories The stages a resulting from inflam shall	1
6520	(III) Dewatering. The storage resulting from inflow shall	
6521	removed by a nonclogging dewatering device or a spillway as soon as possible but not prior to	5 the
6522	time that the discharge will comply with the effluent standards of these regulations. The	
6523	application shall contain documentation that equipment or outlet structures are available for	
6524 6525	draining the pond.	
	(C) Dischause etweetunes Outfall structures and related equipme	t
6526 6527	(C) Discharge structures. Outfall structures and related equipment which is sufficient to meet the self-monitoring requirements of the WYPDES permit shall be	Πι
6528	properly installed, maintained, operated, and shall be removed when no longer required.	
6529	property instance, maintained, operated, and snan be removed when no longer required.	
6530	(c) Permit condition. Identification of outfalls. Point source discharges which	
6531	consist of process wastewater or a combination of process wastewater and water from affected	d
6532	lands shall be identified as specific points of discharge in the discharge permit for each mine.	J
6533	Point source discharges which consist of water discharged from affected lands only may not be	ne.
6534	required to be identified as specific points of discharge in the discharge permit for each mine.	
6535	Even if a discharge is not designated as a specific point of discharge, such discharges shall be	
6536	required to meet the applicable self-monitoring and effluent requirements of the permit.	
6537	required to meet the apprecion sent monitoring and entition requirements of the permit	
6538	(d) Effluent limitations.	
6539	(b) Zillioni illininisisi	
6540	(i) The following types of mine discharges are subject to the effluent	
6541	limitations of Appendix J (d) (ii):	
6542		
6543	(A) Coal preparation plants and coal preparation plant associated	Ĺ
6544	areas, as indicated, including discharges which are pumped, siphoned, or drained from the coa	
6545	preparation plant water circuit and coal storage, refuse storage, and ancillary areas related to t	
6546	cleaning or beneficiation of coal of any rank including, but not limited to, bituminous, lignite,	
6547	anthracite.	
6548		
6549	(B) Acid or ferruginous mine drainage from an active mining are	ea
6550	resulting from the mining of coal of any rank including, but not limited to, bituminous, lignite	
6551	and anthracite.	
6552		

(C) Alkaline mine drainage from an active mining area resulting from the mining of coal of any rank including, but not limited to, bituminous, lignite, and anthracite.

- (D) Post-mining underground mine drainage from the underground workings of underground mines until Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act (SMCRA) bond release.
- (ii) All point source mine discharges, as described in Appendix J (d) (i), which enter or will directly affect surface waters of the state shall meet the following effluent limitations except during a precipitation event of any duration within any 24-hour period which results in a rainfall depth greater than the 10-year, 24-hour precipitation amount (or snowmelt of equivalent volume). During such precipitation events only the limitation on pH shall apply:

Effluent Characteristic	30 Day Average	Daily Maximum	Instantaneous Maximum
Total Suspended Solids (mg/l)	35	70	90
Total Iron (mg/l)	3.0	6.0	9.0
Total Manganese* (mg/l)	2.0	4.0	6.0
pH (standard units) N/A		N/A	6.0 to 9.0

*Applicable only when pH of the discharge, prior to any treatment, is less than 6.0 standard units.

- (iii) Post-Mining Areas. The provisions of this paragraph are applicable to discharges from post mining areas, except as provided in Appendix J (h).
- (A) Reclamation Areas. The following limitations apply to discharges from reclamation areas until the performance bond issued to the facility by the appropriate SMCRA authority has been released. The following limitations establish the concentration or quality of pollutants which may be discharged.

Pollutant or Pollutant Property	Limitations	
Settleable Solids	0.5 ml/l maximum not to be exceeded	
pH	Within the range of 6.0 and 9.0 at all times	

- (iv) Co-mingling of waste streams. Where waste streams from any facility covered by this appendix are combined for treatment or discharge with waste streams from another facility covered by this part, the concentration of each pollutant in the combined discharge may not exceed the most stringent limitations for that pollutant applicable to any component waste stream of the discharge.
- (v) Alternate effluent limitation for pH. Where the application of neutralization and sedimentation treatment technology results in inability to comply with the otherwise applicable manganese limitations, the permit issuer may allow the pH level in the final effluent to exceed 9.0 to a small extent in order that the manganese limitations can be achieved,

6588	provided that the pH of the receiving surface water of the state does not exceed water quality				
6589	standards of Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations Chapter 1, Wyoming Surface Water				
6590	Quality Standards.				
6591					
6592	(e)	Effluent	limitations for	precipitat	ion events.
6593					
6594		(i) T	Γhe alternate li	mitations	specified in Appendix J (e) (ii) apply with
6595	respect to:				
6596	_				
6597		(A) All disc	charges of	f alkaline mine drainage except discharges from
6598	underground v	workings of	underground	mines tha	t are not commingled with other discharges
6599	eligible for the	ese alternate	e limitations;		
6600	-				
6601		(B) All disc	charges fr	om steep slope areas, (as defined in Section 515
6602	(d) (4) of the S	SMCRA of	1977, as amen	ded), and	form mountaintop removal operations
6603	(conducted pursuant to Section 515 (c) of SMCRA);				
6604	•				
6605		(C) Discha	rges from	coal preparation plants and preparation plant
6606	associated are	as (excludi		_	ine drainage from coal refuse disposal piles).
6607		•			
6608		(ii)	Any discharge	or increas	e in the volume of a discharge caused by
6609	precipitation v		•		or equal to the 10-year, 24-hour precipitation
6610					
6611	the otherwise	_		•	
6612					
6613					
6614					
	Pollutant or	Pollutant Pi	operty		Limitations
	Settleable So	olids			0.5 ml/l maximum not to be exceeded
	pН				Within the range 6.0 to 9.0 at all times
6615					

iii) The following alternate limitations apply with respect to acid or ferruginous drainage from coal refuse disposal piles: Any discharge or increase in the volume of a discharge caused by precipitation within any 24-hour period greater than the 1-year, 24-hour precipitation event, but less than or equal to the 10-year, 24-hour precipitation event (or snowmelt of equivalent volume) may comply with the following limitations instead of the otherwise applicable limitations:

Pollutant or Pollutant Property	Limitations	
Settleable Solids	0.5 ml/l maximum not to be exceeded	
pH	Within the range 6.0 to 9.0 at all times	

(iv) The following alternate limitations apply with respect to acid or ferruginous mine drainage, except for discharges addressed in: Appendix J (e) (i) (B) (mountaintop removal and steep slope areas) and Appendix J (e) (vii) (discharges from underground workings of underground mines):

6628

6629

6630 6631

6632

6633

Pollutant or Pollutant Property
Total Iron
Settleable Solids
nН

6634 6635

6640

661	1	

6641 6642

6643 6644 6645

6646

6647 6648

6649 6650 6651

6653 6654 6655

6652

6656 6657

6658

6659 6660 6661

6662 6663

6664

6665

6666

(A) Any discharge or increase in the volume of a discharge caused by precipitations within any 24-hour period or less or equal to the 2-year, 24-hour precipitation event (or snowmelt of equivalent volume) may comply with the following limitations instead of the otherwise applicable limitations:

Limitations

7.0 mg/l maximum for any one day 0.5 ml/l maximum not to exceed

Within the range 6.0 to 9.0 at all times

(B)	Any discharge or increase in the volume of a discharge caused
by precipitation within any 24-	hour period greater than the 2-year, 24-hour precipitation event,
but less than or equal to the 10	-year, 24-hour precipitations event (or snowmelt of equivalent
volume) may comply with the	following limitations instead of the otherwise applicable
limitations:	

Pollutant or Pollutant Property	Limitations	
Settleable Solids	0.5 ml/l maximum not to be exceeded	
рН	Within the range 6.0 to 9.0 at all times	

- Any discharge which occurs during a precipitation event of any duration (v) within any 24-hour period which results in a rainfall depth greater than the 10-year, 24-hour precipitation amount (or snowmelt of equivalent volume) shall be required to meet an instantaneous maximum pH limitation of 6.0 - 9.0 only.
- (vi) The operator shall have the burden of proof that the discharge or increase in discharge was caused by the applicable precipitation event described Appendix J (e) (ii), (iii), (iv) and (v).
- (vii) Discharges of mine drainage from underground workings or underground mines which are not commingled with discharges eligible for alternate limitations set forth in Appendix J (e) shall in no event be eligible for the alternate limitations set forth in Appendix J (e).
- If effluent limitations more stringent than those given in paragraph (c) (i) or (ii) (f) of this appendix are necessary to assure compliance with Wyoming Water Quality Rules and Regulations, Chapter 1, such limitations shall be established in accordance with Section 5 (c) (iii) (C).
- Procedure and method detection limit for measurement of settleable solids. For (g) the purposes of this appendix, the following procedure shall be used to determine settleable solids: Fill an Imhoff cone to the one-liter mark with a thoroughly mixed sample. Allow to settle undisturbed for 45 minutes. Gently stir along the inside surface of the cone with a stirring rod. Allow to settle undisturbed for 15 minutes longer. Record the volume of settled material in the cone as milliliters per liter. Where a separation of settleable and floating materials occurs, do not

	_		measuring settleable solids under this part shall be 0.4 ml/l.
(h)	Weste	rn alkal	ine coal mining.
from reclama	(i) tion area		icable to alkaline mine drainage at western coal mining operations ing and grubbing areas, topsoil stockpiling areas, and regraded
areas where the	he discha	rge, bef	Fore any treatment, meets all of the following requirements:
		(A)	pH is equal to or greater than 6.0,
		(B)	Dissolved iron concentration is less than 10 mg/l, and
		(C)	Net alkalinity is greater than zero.
	(ii)		
	(ii)	Speci	al definitions.
		(A)	"Brushing and grubbing" area means the area where woody plant
materials that into the soil tl			with soil salvage operations have been removed or incorporated aged.
		(B)	"Regraded area" means the surface area of a coal mine that has
been returned	to requi	rea cont	our.
	1	(C)	"Sediment" means undissolved organic and inorganic material
transported or	r deposite	ea by wa	ater.
		(D)	"Sediment yield" means the sum of the soil losses from a surface
•		•	pographic depressions, at the toe of the hillslope, along field channels sculpted into the hillslope.
		(E)	"Topsoil stockpiling area" means the area outside the mined-out
area where to	psoil is to	` ′	rily stored for use in reclamation, including containment berms.
		(F)	"Western coal mining operation" means a surface or
•			ration located in the interior western United States, west of the
100th meridia precipitation		_	e, in an arid or semiarid environment with an average annual ess.
SMCRA auth	(iii) ority has		Iffluent limitations of Appendix J (h) (iv) apply until the appropriate zed bond release.
	(iv)	Efflue	ent limitations.
		(A)	The operator must submit a site specific sediment control plan to
the permitting	g authorit	y that is	s designed to prevent an increase in the average annual sediment

6713	yield from pre-mined, undisturbed conditions. The sediment control plan must be approved by
6714	the administrator and be incorporated into the permit as an effluent limitation. The sediment
6715	control plan must identify best management practices (BMPs) and also must describe design
6716	specifications, construction specifications, maintenance schedules, criteria for inspection, as well
6717	as expected performance and longevity of the best management practices.
6718	
6719	(B) Using watershed models, the operator must demonstrate that
6720	implementation of the sediment control plan will result in average annual sediment yields that
6721	will not be greater than the sediment yield levels from pre-mined, undisturbed conditions. The
6722	operator must use the same watershed model that was, or will be, used to acquire the SMCRA
6723	permit.
6724	•
6725	(C) The operator must design, implement, and maintain BMPs in the
6726	manner specified in the sediment control plan.
6727	
6728	(l) Coal remining. Applicable to pre-existing discharges that are located within or
6729	are hydrologically connected to pollution abatement areas of a coal mining operation.
6730	
6731	(i) Specialized definitions.
6732	•
6733	(A) "Coal remining operation" means a coal mining operation at a
6734	site on which coal mining was previously conducted and where the site has been abandoned or
6735	the performance bond has been forfeited.
6736	•
6737	(B) "Pollution abatement area" means the part of the permit area that
6738	is causing or contributing to the baseline pollution load of pre-existing discharges. The pollution
6739	abatement area must include, to the extent practicable, areas adjacent to and nearby the remining
6740	operation that also must be affected to reduce the pollution load of the pre-existing discharges and
6741	may include the immediate location of the pre-existing discharges.
6742	
6743	(C) "Pre-existing discharge" means any discharge resulting from
6744	mining activities that have been abandoned prior tot the time of a remining permit application.
6745	The term shall include a pre-existing discharge that is relocated as a result of the implementation
6746	of BMPs contained in the Pollution Abatement Plan.
6747	
6748	(D) "Steep slope" means any slope above 20 degrees or such lesser
6749	slope as may be defined by the administrator after consideration of soil, climate, and other
6750	characteristics of the State. The term does not apply to those situations in which an operator is
6751	mining on flat or gently rolling terrain, on which an occasional steep slope is encountered and
6752	through which the mining operation is to proceed, leaving a plain or predominantly flat area.
6753	
6754	(E) "New source remining operation" means a remining operation at
6755	a coal mine where mining first commences after February 22, 2002 and subsequently becomes an

abandoned mine.

6758	(ii) A pre-ext	isting c	lischarge that is intercepted by active mining or that is
6759	commingled with waste streams f	rom ac	tive mining areas for treatment is subject to the
6760	provisions of Appendix J (d) (iv)	of thes	e regulations only during the time when the pre-existing
6761	discharge is intercepted by active	mining	g or is commingled with active mine wastewater for
6762		-	ing has ceased, the pre-existing discharge is subject to the
6763	provisions of Appendix J (i) of the	_	
6764		C	
6765	(iii) In situati	ons wh	ere coal remining operations seek reissuance of an
6766			ations and the administrator determines that it is not
6767			ablish baseline pollutant levels in accordance with the
6768			FR Part 434 Appendix B pre-existing discharge
6769	•		ns shall remain subject to baseline pollutant levels
6770	established during the original per	-	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
6771		1	1
6772	(iv) The efflu	ent lin	nitations of Appendix J (i) apply to pre-existing
6773			authority has authorized bond release.
6774			
6775	(v) Effluent	limitati	ions applicable to coal remining.
6776			8
6777	(A) T	The ope	erator must submit a site-specific pollution abatement
6778		_	n abatement area. The plan must be approved by the
6779	-		permit as an effluent limitation. The Pollution Abatement
6780	-	_	pollution abatement area and the pre-existing discharges.
6781	<u> </u>		lesigned to reduce pollution load from pre-existing
6782			d BMPs to be used. The plan must describe the design
6783	•		ns, maintenance schedules, criteria for monitoring and
6784	-		the BMPs. The BMPs must be implemented as
6785	specified in the plan.		•
6786			
6787	(B) I	Except	as provided in Appendix J (h) (v) (C) of these
6788		_	shall apply to pre-existing discharges:
6789			
6790	((I)	Total iron may not exceed baseline loadings (as defined
6791	40 CFR Part 434 Appendix B).		·
6792			
6793	(II)	Total manganese may not exceed baseline loadings (as
6794	defined 40 CFR Part 434 Append	ix B).	
6795	**		
6796	(III)	Net acidity may not exceed baseline loadings (as defined
6797	40 CFR Part 434 Appendix B).		
6798			
6799	(IV)	TSS, during remining and reclamation, may not exceed
6800	baseline loadings (as defined 40 C	CFR Pa	
6801	- '		-
6802	((V)	Prior to bond release, the pre-existing discharge must
6803	meet the applicable standards for	TSS or	SS contained in Appendix J (d) (iii).

6804	
6805	(VI) A pre-existing discharge is exempt from meeting
6806	standards in Subpart E for TSS and SS when the administrator determines that Subpart E
6807	standards are infeasible or impractical based on the site-specific conditions of soil, climate,
6808	topography, steep slopes, or other baseline conditions provided that the operator demonstrates
6809	that significant reductions of TSS and SS will be achieved through the incorporation of sediment
6810	control BMPs into the Pollution Abatement Plan as required by Appendix J (i) (v) of these
6811	regulations.
6812	
6813	(C) If the administrator determines that it is infeasible to collect
6814	samples for establishing the baseline pollutant levels pursuant to Appendix J (i) (v) (B) of these
6815	regulations and that remining will result in significant improvement that would not otherwise
6816	occur, the numeric effluent limitations in Appendix J (i) (v) (B) of these regulations do not apply.
6817	occur, the numeric critical infinitations in representative (i) (v) (b) of these regulations do not apply.
6818	(D) Pre-existing discharges for which it is infeasible to collect
6819	samples for determination of baseline pollutant levels include, but are not limited to:
6820	samples for determination of outsettile postulate tevels include, out are not immed to
6821	(I) Discharges that exist as a diffuse groundwater flow that
6822	cannot be assessed via sample collection;
6823	tumior of uspessed the sumpre concession,
6824	(II) A base flow to a receiving surface water of the state that
6825	can not be monitored separate from the receiving surface waters of the state;
6826	
6827	(III) A discharge on a steep or hazardous slope that is
6828	inaccessible for sample collection; or
6829	
6830	(IV) A number of pre-existing discharges so extensive that
6831	monitoring of individual discharges is infeasible.
6832	
6833	
6834	
6835	
6836	
6837	
6838	
6839	
6840	
6841	
6842	
6843	
6844	
6845	
6846	
6847	
6848	
6849	Intentionally left blank

6850	
6851	APPENDIX K: RESERVED
6852	
6853	
6854	

This page intentionally left blank.

APPENDIX L: Criteria and Standards for Determining Fundamentally Different Factors

(a) Purpose and scope.

(i) This appendix establishes the criteria and standards to be used in determining whether effluent limitations alternative to those required by promulgated EPA effluent limitations guidelines under sections 301 and 304 of the CWA (hereinafter referred to as "national limits") should be imposed on a discharger because factors relating to the discharger=s facilities, equipment, processes or other factors related to the discharger are fundamentally different from the factors considered by EPA in development of the national limits. This subpart applies to all national limitations promulgated under sections 301 and 304 of the CWA, except for the BPT limits contained in 40 CFR 423.12 (steam electric generating point source category).

(ii) In establishing national limits, EPA takes into account all the information it can collect, develop and solicit regarding the factors listed in section 304 (b) of the CWA. In some cases, however, data which could affect these national limits as they apply to a particular discharge may not be available or may not be considered during their development. As a result, it may be necessary on a case-by-case basis to adjust the national limits, and make them either more or less stringent as they apply to certain dischargers within an industrial category or subcategory. This will only be done if data specific to that discharger indicates it presents factors fundamentally different from those considered by EPA in developing the limit at issue. Any interested person believing that factors relating to a discharger=s facilities, equipment, processes or other facilities related to the discharger are fundamentally different from the factors considered during development of the national limits may request a fundamentally different factors variance under Section 8 of these regulations. In addition, such a variance may be proposed by the director in the draft permit.

(b) Criteria.

(i) A request for the establishment of effluent limitations under this appendix shall be forwarded to the Administrator of the EPA (or his delegate) with a written concurrence only if:

(A) There is an applicable national limit which is applied in the permit and specifically controls the pollutant for which alternative effluent limitations or standards have been requested; and

(B) Factors relating to the discharge controlled by the permit are fundamentally different from those considered by EPA in establishing the national limits; and

(C) The request for alternative effluent limitations or standards is made in accordance with the requirements of Section 8 of these regulations.

3		•	est for the establishment of effluent limitations less stringent than			
those required	those required by national limits guidelines shall be forwarded to the Administrator of the EPA					
or his delegate	te) with a w	vritten c	concurrence only if:			
2	((A)	The alternative effluent limitation or standard requested is no			
less stringent	than justific	ed by th	ne fundamental difference; and			
1						
5	((B)	The alternative effluent limitation or standard will ensure			
compliance w	ith Section	s 208 (e	e) and 301 (b) (1) (C) of the CWA; and			
7						
3	((C)	Compliance with the national limits (either by using the			
technologies u	upon which	the nat	tional limits are based or by other control alternatives) would			
result in:	-					
result in:						
			(I) A removal cost wholly out of proportion to the removal			
cost considere	ed during de	evelopn	ment of the national limits; or			
	6	- 1	•			
			(II) A non-water quality environmental impact (including			
energy require	ements) fun	ndament	tally more adverse than the impact considered during			
development			•			
az i dispinoni						
	(iii)	Factors	which may be considered fundamentally different are:			
	(111)	i actors	which may be considered randamentary different are.			
		(A)	The nature of quality of pollutants contained in the raw waste			
load of the ap						
road of the ap	pricant—s p	rocess v	wastewater,			
		(B)	The volume of the discharger=s process wastewater and effluent			
discharged;	,	(D)	The volume of the discharger—s process wastewater and efficient			
dischargeu,						
		(C)	Non-woter quality environmental impact of central and			
traatmant of 1		` '	Non-water quality environmental impact of control and			
treatment of the	ne discharg	er=s rav	w waste road;			
		(D)	Programme of the state of the s			
. 1 1	((D)	Energy requirements of the application of control and treatment			
technology;						
		(E)	Age, size, land availability, and configuration as they relate to			
_			acilities, processes employed, process changes, and engineering			
aspects of the	application	of con	trol technology;			
	((F)	Cost of compliance with required control technology.			
	(iv)	A varia	nce request or portion of such a request under this section shall			
not be forward	ded to the A	Adminis	strator of the EPA (or his delegate) with a written concurrence on			
any of the foll	lowing grou	ınds:				
-						

	(1	A)	The infeasibility of installing the required waste treatment
equipment wi	ithin the time	the C	CWA allows.
	/1	2.	
onnronrioto II	*	3) nt faci	The assertion that the national limits cannot be achieved with
Appendix L (iii raci	ilities installed, if such assertion is not based on factor(s) listed in
Appendix L (11,		
	((C)	The discharger's ability to pay for the required waste treatment;
or	`	,	
	(I))	The impact of a discharge on local receiving water quality.
	())	.1.	
124		-	g in this appendix shall be construed to impair the right of any
by federal lav		or the	e CWA to impose more stringent limitations than those required
by federal fav	٧.		
(c)	Method o	f appl	ication.
(-)	1,1001100	- upp	
	(i) A	writte	en request for a variance under this appendix shall be submitted in
triplicate to th	ne director in	accor	dance with Section 8 of these regulations.
	(ii) T	he bui	rden is on the person requesting the variance to explain that:
		4 \	
	•	A)	Factor(s) listed in Appendix L (b) (ii) of these regulations
	-		ty are fundamentally different from the factors EPA considered in
_			The requester should refer to all relevant material and ed guideline regulations development document, all associated
	_		lected for use in developing each national limit, all records of
			en and printed documentation including records of
	-		the regulations which are kept on public file by the EPA;
	, ,		5
	(I	3)	The alternative limitations requested are justified by the
fundamental	difference all	eged i	in Appendix L (c) (ii) (A) of these regulations; and
	((C)	The appropriate requirements of Appendix L (b) of these
regulations ha	ave been met		
			Intentionally left blank
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

This page intentionally left blank.

APPENDIX M: Criteria for Determining Alternative Effluent Limitations

(a) With respect to any point source otherwise subject to the provisions of Section 301 or Section 306 of the CWA, whenever the owner or operator of any such source, after opportunity for public hearing can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the administrator that any effluent limitation proposed for the control of the thermal component of any discharge from such source will require effluent limitations more stringent than necessary to assure the protection and propagation of shellfish, fish and wildlife in and on the body of water into which the discharge is to be made, the administrator may impose an effluent limitation on such plant, with respect to the thermal component of such discharge (taking into account the interaction of such thermal component with other pollutants), that will assure the protection and propagation of a balanced indigenous population of shellfish, fish and wildlife in and on that body of water. This appendix describes the factors, criteria and standards for the establishment of alternative thermal effluent limitations.

(b) Definitions.

(i) "Alternative effluent limitations" means all effluent limitations or standards of performance for the control of the thermal component of any discharge which are established under this appendix.

(ii) "Representative important species" means species which are representative, in terms of their biological needs, of a balanced, indigenous community of shellfish, fish and wildlife in the body of water into which a discharge of heat is made.

(iii) The term "balanced, indigenous community" is synonymous with the term "balanced, indigenous population" in the CWA and means a biotic community typically characterized by diversity, the capacity to sustain itself through cyclic seasonal changes, presence of necessary food chain species and by a lack of domination by pollution tolerant species. Such a community may include historically non-native species introduced in connection with a program of wildlife management and species whose presence or abundance results from substantial, irreversible environmental modifications. Normally, however, such a community will not include species whose presence or abundance is attributable to the introduction of pollutants that will be eliminated by compliance by all sources with section 301 (b) (2) of the CWA; and may not include species whose presence or abundance is attributable to alternative effluent limitations imposed pursuant to this appendix.

(c) Early screening of applications.

(i) Any initial application for an alternative effluent limitation under this appendix shall include the following early screening information:

(A) A description of the alternative effluent limitation requested;

(B) A general description of the method by which the applicant proposes to demonstrate that the otherwise applicable thermal discharge effluent limitations are more stringent than necessary;

- (C) A general description of the type of data, studies, experiments and other information which the applicant intends to submit for the demonstration; and
- (D) Such data and information as may be available to assist the administrator in selecting the appropriate representative important species.
- After submitting the early screening information under Appendix M (c), (ii) the applicant shall consult with the administrator at the earliest practicable time (but not later than 30 days after the application is filed) to discuss the applicant=s early screening information. Within 60 days after the application is filed, the applicant shall submit for the administrator=s approval a detailed plan of study which the applicant will undertake to support its demonstration under this appendix. The applicant shall specify the nature and extent of the following type of information to be included in the plan of study: biological, hydrographical and meteorological data; physical monitoring data; engineering or diffusion models; laboratory studies; representative important species; and other relevant information. In selecting representative important species, special consideration shall be given to species mentioned in applicable water quality standards. After the applicant submits its detailed plan of study, the administrator shall either approve the plan or specify any necessary revisions to the plan. The applicant shall provide any additional information or studies which the administrator subsequently determines necessary to support the demonstration, including such studies or inspections as may be necessary to select representative important species. The applicant may provide any additional information or studies which the applicant feels are appropriate to support the demonstration.
- (iii) Any application for the renewal of an alternative effluent limitation under this appendix shall include only such information described in Appendix M (c) (i) and (ii) as the administrator requests within 60 days after receipt of the permit application.
- (iv) The administrator shall promptly notify the Regional Administrator of the EPA and any affected state of the filing of the request and shall consider any timely recommendations they submit.
- (v) In making the demonstration, the applicant shall consider any information or guidance published by EPA to assist in making such demonstrations.
- (vi) If an applicant desires a ruling on an application under this appendix, before the ruling on any other necessary permit terms and conditions, the applicant shall so request upon filing its application under Appendix M (c) (i). This request shall be granted or denied at the discretion of the administrator.
- (d) Criteria and standards for the determination of alternative effluent limitations under this appendix.

7080 7081	(i) Thermal discharge effluent limitations or standards established in permits may be less stringent than those required by applicable standards and limitations if the applicant
7082	demonstrates to the satisfaction of the administrator that such effluent limitations are more
7083	stringent than necessary to assure the protection and propagation of a balanced, indigenous
7084	community of shellfish, fish and wildlife in and on the body of water into which the discharge is
7085	made. This demonstration must show that the alternative effluent limitation desired by the
7086	applicant, considering the cumulative impact of its thermal discharge together with all other
7087	significant impacts on the species affected, will assure the protection and propagation of a
7088	balanced indigenous community of shellfish, fish and wildlife in and on the body of water into
7089	which the discharge is to be made.
7090	
7091	(ii) In determining whether or not the protection and propagation of the
7092	affected species will be assured, the administrator may consider any information contained or
7093	referenced in any applicable thermal water quality criteria and thermal water quality information
7094	published by the Administrator of the EPA under Section 304 (a) of the CWA, or any other
7095	information the administrator deems relevant.
7096	
7097	(iii) Demonstration upon the absence of prior appreciable harm.
7098	
7099	(A) Existing permittees may base their demonstration upon the
7100	absence of prior appreciable harm in lieu of predictive studies. Any such demonstrations shall
7101	show:
7102	
7103	(I) That no appreciable harm has resulted from the normal
7104	component of the discharge, taking into account the interaction of such thermal component with
7105	other pollutants and the additive effect of other thermal sources to a balanced, indigenous
7106	community of shellfish, fish and wildlife in and on the body of water into which the discharge has
7107	been made; or
7108	
7109	(II) That despite the occurrence of such previous harm, the
7110	desired alternative effluent limitations (or appropriate modifications thereof) will nevertheless
7111	assure the protection and propagation of a balanced, indigenous community of shellfish, fish and
7112	wildlife in and on the body of water into which the discharge is made.
7113	
7114	(iv) In determining whether or not prior appreciable harm has occurred, the
7115	administrator shall consider the length of time in which the applicant has been discharging and
7116	the nature of the discharge.
7117	
7118	
7119	
7120	
7121	
7122	
7123	
7124	
7125	This page intentionally left blank.

7126	
7127	APPENDIX N: Toxic Pollutant Effluent Standards and Prohibitions
7128	
7129	(a) Scope and purpose.
7130	
7131	(i) The provisions of this appendix apply to owners or operators of specified
7132	facilities discharging into surface waters of the state.
7133	
7134	(ii) The effluent standards or prohibitions for toxic pollutants established in
7135	this appendix shall be applicable to the sources and pollutants hereinafter set forth, and may be
7136	incorporated in any WYPDES permit, modification or renewal thereof, in accordance with the
7137	provisions of this appendix.
7138	
7139	(iii) The provisions of these regulations shall apply to any WYPDES permit
7140	proceedings for any point source discharge containing any toxic pollutant for which a standard or
7141	prohibition is established under this appendix.
7142	
7143	(b) Definitions. All terms not defined herein shall have the meaning given them in
7144	the CWA or in Section 3 of these regulations. As used in this appendix, the term:
7145	
7146	(i) "Effluent standard" means any restriction established by the
7147	administrator on quantities, rates, and concentrations of chemical, physical, biological, and other
7148	concentrations of chemical, physical, biological, and other constituents which are discharged
7149	from point sources into surface waters of the state but does not include a schedule of compliance.
7150	
7151	(ii) "Prohibited" means that the constituent shall be absent in any discharge
7152	subject to these standards, as determined by any analytical method.
7153	
7154	(iii) "Working day" means the hours during a calendar day in which a facility
7155	discharges effluents subject to this part.
7156	
7157	(iv) "Ambient water criterion" means that concentration of a toxic pollutant
7158	in a surface water of the state that, based upon available data, will not result in adverse impact on
7159	important aquatic life, or on consumers of such aquatic life, after exposure of that aquatic life for
7160	periods of time exceeding 96 hours and continuing at least through one reproductive cycle; and
7161	will not result in a significant risk of adverse health effects in a large human population based on
7162	available information such as mammalian laboratory toxicity data, epidemiological studies of
7163	human occupational exposures, or human exposure data, or any other relevant data.
7164	
7165	(v) "New source" means any source discharging a toxic pollutant, the
7166	construction of which is commenced after proposal of an effluent standard or prohibition
7167	applicable to such source if such effluent standard or prohibition is thereafter promulgated in
7168	accordance with Section 307 of the CWA.

7170	(vi)	"Existing source" means any source which is not a new source as defined
7171	in Appendix N (b) (v).	·
7172	••		
7173	(vii)	"Source" means any building, structure, facility, or installation from
7174	which there is or	may b	e the discharge of toxic pollutants designated as such by the administrator.
7175		•	
7176	(viii)	"Owner or operator" means any person who owns, leases, operates,
7177	controls, or super	-	a source as defined in Appendix N (b) (vii).
7178			
7179	(1	ix)	"Construction" means any placement, assembly, or installation of
7180	facilities or equip	ment (including contractual obligations to purchase such facilities or equipment)
7181			uch equipment will be used, including preparation work at such premises.
7182	1		
7183	(:	x)	"Manufacturer" means any establishment engaged in the mechanical or
7184	,		of materials or substances into new products, including but not limited
7185			rials such as pesticidal products, resins, or liquors.
7186	,		
7187	(xi)	"Process wastes" means any designated toxic pollutant, whether in
7188	,	,	e present, which is inherent to or unavoidably resulting from any
7189			including that which comes into direct contact with or results from the
7190			y raw material, intermediate product, finished product, by product or
7191	_	-	scharged into surface waters of the state.
7192	waste product and	4 15 4 15	centraged into surface waters of the state.
7193	(xii)	"Air emissions" means the release or discharge of a toxic pollutant by an
7194	,	,	he ambient air either 1) by means of a stack or 2) as a fugitive dust, mist
7195	_		erent to the manufacturing or formulating process.
7196	or vapor as a resu	iit iiiiic	Tent to the manufacturing of formulating process.
7197	(xiii)	"Fugitive dust, mist or vapor" means dust, mist or vapor containing a
7198	,		d under this part which is emitted from any source other than through a
7199	stack.	guraice	a under this part which is contice from any source other than through a
7200	stack.		
7200 7201	(-	xiv)	"Stack" means any chimney, flue, conduit, or duct arranged to conduct
7201	emissions to the a		
7202	emissions to the a	imoten	it dif.
7203 7204	(-)	"Tan year 24 hour rainfall event" many the maximum presimitation
7204 7205	`	xv)	"Ten year 24-hour rainfall event" means the maximum precipitation ecurrence interval of once in ten (10) years as defined by the National
	•		· · · · ·
7206			hnical Paper No. 40, Rainfall Frequency Atlas of the United States, May
7207	-		mendments or equivalent regional or state rainfall probability information
7208	developed therefr	om.	
7209	()	.11	
7210	(c) A	Abbrev	iations. The abbreviations used in this part represent the following terms:
7211	,	• \	
7212	(:	i)	lb=pound (or pounds)
7213		···	
7214	((ii)	g=gram
7215			

7216	(iii)	ug/l=micrograms per liter (1 one millionth gram/liter)
7217		
7218	(iv)	kg=kilogram(s) kkg=1000 kilogram(s)
7219		
7220	* /	pollutants. The following are the pollutants subject to regulation under the
7221	provisions of this appe	endix:
7222		
7223	(i)	Aldrin/Dieldrin - Aldrin means the compound aldrin as identified by the
7224		4,10,10 hexachloro -1,4,4a,5,8,8a hexahydro -1,4 -endo 5,8 -exo-
7225	-	e; "Dieldrin" means the compound the dieldrin as identified by the chemical
7226		exachloro-6,7 - epoxy -1,4,4a,5,6,7,8,8a octahydro-1,4 -endo 5,8 -exo-
7227	dimethanonaphthalene	2.
7228		
7229	(ii)	DDT - DDT means the compounds DDT, DDD, and DDE as identified
7230	by the chemical names	s:(DDT)-1,1,1 -trichloro -2,2 - bis(p- chlorophenyl) ethane and someo,p'
7231	isomers; (DDD) or (T	DE) -1,1 -dichloro -2,2- bis(p-chlorophenyl) ethane and some o,p'-
7232	isomers; (DDE) -1,1-c	lichloro -2,2-bis(p-chlorophenyl) ethylene.
7233		
7234	(iii)	Endrin - Endrin means the compound endrin as identified by the
7235	chemical name 1,2,3,4	4,10,10-hexachloro-6,7 epoxy - 1,4,4a,5,6,7,8,8a -octahydro -1,4-endo 5,8-
7236	endodimethanonaphth	alene.
7237		
7238	(iv)	Toxaphene - Toxaphene means a material consisting of technical grade
7239	chlorinated camphene	having the approximate formula of C ₁₀ H ₁₀ Cl ₈ and normally containing 67-
7240	69 percent chlorine by	weight.
7241		
7242	(v)	Benzidine - Benzidine means the compound benzidine and its salts as
7243	identified by the chem	ical name 4,4'-diaminobiphenyl.
7244		
7245	(vi)	Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs) - Polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs)
7246	means a mixture of co	mpounds composed of the biphenyl molecule which has been chlorinated to
7247	varying degrees. [42]	FR 2613, Jan. 12, 1977, as amended at 42 FR 2620, Jan. 12, 1977; 42 FR
7248	6555, Feb. 2, 1977]	
7249		
7250	(e) Comp	liance.
7251	•	
7252	(i)	Within 60 days from the date of promulgation of any toxic pollutant
7253	effluent standard or pr	ohibition each owner or operator with a discharge subject to that standard
7254	or prohibition must no	tify the director of such discharge. Such notification shall include such
7255	information and follow	v such procedures as the director may require.
7256		· · ·
7257	(ii)	Any owner or operator who does not have a discharge subject to any
7258	toxic pollutant effluen	t standard at the time of such promulgation but who thereafter commences
7259	-	ce any activity which would result in such a discharge shall first notify the
7260	director in the manner	herein provided at least 60 days prior to any such discharge.

(iii) Upon receipt of any application for issuance or reissuance of a permit or for a modification of an existing permit for a discharge subject to a toxic pollutant effluent standard or prohibition the permitting authority shall proceed thereon in accordance with these regulations.

- (iv) Every permit which contains limitations based upon a toxic pollutant effluent standard or prohibition under this appendix is subject to revision following the completion of any proceeding revising such toxic pollutant effluent standard or prohibition regardless of the duration specified on the permit.
- (v) For purposes of this section, all toxic pollutants for which standards are set under this appendix are deemed to be injurious to human health within the meaning of Section 402 (k) of the CWA unless otherwise specified in the standard established for any particular pollutant.
- (vi) Upon the compliance date for any toxic pollutant effluent standard or prohibition, under Section 307 (a) of the CWA, each owner or operator of a discharge subject to such standard or prohibition shall comply with such monitoring, sampling, recording, and reporting conditions as the director may require for that discharge. Notice of such conditions shall be provided in writing to the owner or operator.
- (vii) In addition to any conditions required pursuant to Appendix N (e) (vi) and to the extent not required in conditions contained in WYPDES permits, within 60 days following the close of each calendar year each owner or operator of a discharge subject to any toxic standard or prohibition shall report to the director concerning the compliance of such discharges. Such report shall include, as a minimum, information concerning 1) relevant identification of the discharger such as name, location of facility, discharge points, receiving waters, and the industrial process or operation emitting the toxic pollutant; 2) relevant conditions (pursuant to Appendix N (e) (vi) or to an WYPDES permit) as to flow, toxic pollutant concentrations under Section 307 (a) of the CWA, and toxic pollutant mass emission rate under Section 307 (a) of the CWA; and 3) compliance by the discharger with such conditions.
- (viii) When samples collected for analysis are composited, such samples shall be composited in proportion to the flow at time of collection and preserved in compliance with requirements of the director, but shall include at least five (5) samples, collected at approximately equal intervals throughout the working day.
- (ix) Nothing in these regulations shall preclude the director from requiring in any permit a more stringent effluent limitation or standard pursuant to Section 301 (b) (1) (C) of the CWA and implemented pursuant to the provisions of these regulations.
- (x) Any owner or operator of a facility which discharges a toxic pollutant to surface waters of the state and to a publicly owned treatment system shall limit the summation of the mass emissions from both discharges to the less restrictive standard, either the direct discharge standard or the pretreatment standard; but in no case will this paragraph allow a

discharge to surface waters of the state greater than the toxic pollutant effluent standard established for a direct discharge to the surface waters of the state.

(xi) In any permit hearing or other administrative proceeding relating to the implementation or enforcement of these standards, the parties thereto may not contest the validity of any national standards established in this appendix, or the ambient water criterion established herein for any toxic pollutant.

(f) Adjustment of effluent standard for presence of toxic pollutant in the intake water.

(i) Upon the request of the owner or operator of a facility discharging a pollutant subject to a toxic pollutant effluent standard or prohibition, the director shall give credit, and shall adjust the effluent standard(s) in such permit to reflect credit for the toxic pollutant(s) in the owner's or operator's water supply if 1) the source of the owner's or operator's water supply is the same body of water into which the discharge is made, and if 2) it is demonstrated to the director that the toxic pollutant(s) present in the owner's or operator's intake water will not be removed by any wastewater treatment systems whose design capacity and operation were such as to reduce toxic pollutants to the levels required by the applicable toxic pollutant effluent standards in the absence of the toxic pollutant in the intake water.

(ii) Effluent limitations established pursuant to this section shall be calculated on the basis of the amount of the toxic pollutant(s) under Section 307(a) of the CWA present in the water after any water supply treatment steps have been performed by or for the owner or operator.

(iii) Any permit which includes toxic pollutant effluent limitations established pursuant to this appendix shall also contain conditions requiring the permittee to conduct additional monitoring in the manner and locations determined by the director for those toxic pollutants for which the toxic pollutant effluent standards have been adjusted.

(g) Requirement and procedure for establishing a more stringent effluent limitation.

(i) In exceptional cases:

(A) Where the director determines that the ambient water criterion established in these regulations is not being met or will not be met in the receiving water as a result of one or more discharges at levels allowed by these regulations, and

(B) Where the director further determines that this is resulting in or may cause or contribute to significant adverse effects on aquatic or other organisms usually or potentially present, or on human health, the director may issue to an owner or operator a permit or a permit modification containing a toxic pollutant effluent limitation at a more stringent level than that required by these regulations. In any proceeding in connection with such action the burden of proof and burden of going forward with evidence with regard to such more stringent effluent limitation shall be upon the director as the proponent of such more stringent effluent limitation.

N-5

7354					
7355		(C)	Evidence in	such proceeding shall include at a minimum: An	
7356	analysis using data	and other in	nformation to d	demonstrate receiving water concentrations of the	
7357	specified toxic pol	lutant, proje	ctions of the ar	nticipated effects of the proposed modification on	
7358	such receiving wat	er concentra	ations, and the l	hydrologic and hydrographic characteristics of the	;
7359	receiving waters in	cluding the	occurrence of	dispersion of the effluent.	
7360	-	-		-	
7361	(ii) Any e	ffluent limitation	on in a WYPDES permit proposed to be issued	
7362	which is more strii	ngent than th	ne toxic polluta	ant effluent standards promulgated by the director i	S
7363	subject to review b	y the Admi	nistrator of the	EPA under Section 402 (d) of the CWA. The	
7364	Administrator of tl	ne EPA may	approve or dis	sapprove such limitation(s) or specify another	
7365	limitation(s) upon	review of ar	ny record of any	y proceedings held in connection with the permit	
7366	issuance or modifi	cation and a	ny other availa	able evidence. If the Administrator of the EPA tak	es
7367	no action within 90	days of rec	ceipt of the noti	ification of the action of the director and any recor	d
7368	thereof, the action	of the direct	tor shall be dee	emed to be approved.	
7369					
7370	(h) A	ldrin/Dieldri	n.		
7371					
7372	(i)	Specia	alized definition	ons.	
7373					
7374		(A)	"Aldrin/Diel	ldrin manufacturer" means a manufacturer,	
7375	excluding any sour	rce which is	exclusively an	aldrin/dieldrin formulator, who produces, prepare	S
7376	or processes techn	ical aldrin o	r dieldrin or wh	ho uses aldrin or dieldrin as a material in the	
7377	production, prepar	ation or pro	cessing of anoth	her synthetic organic substance.	
7378					
7379		(B)	"Aldrin/Diel	ldrin formulator" means a person who produces,	
7380	prepares or proces	ses a formul	ated product co	omprising a mixture of either aldrin or dieldrin and	1
7381	inert materials or o	ther diluent	s, into a produc	ct intended for application in any use registered	
7382	under the Federal	Insecticide,	Fungicide and l	Rodenticide Act, as amended (7 U.S.C. 135, et sec	լ.)
7383					
7384		(C)	The ambient	t water criterion for aldrin/dieldrin in surface water	S
7385	of the state is 0.00	3 ug/1.			
7386					
7387	(ii) Aldrir	n/Dieldrin manı	ufacturer.	
7388					
7389		(A)	Applicability	y.	
7390					
7391			(I) Thes	se standards or prohibitions apply to:	
7392					
7393			(1.)	All discharges of process wastes; and	
7394					
7395			(2.)		
7396	loading and unload	ling areas, s	torage areas an	nd other areas which are subject to direct	
7397	contamination by	aldrin/dieldr	in as a result of	f the manufacturing process, including but not	
7398	limited to:				
7399					

7400	a. Storm water and other runoff except as
7401	hereinafter provided in Appendix N (h) (ii) (A) (II); and
7402	
7403	b. Water used for routine cleanup or
7404	cleanup of spills.
7405	
7406	(II) These standards do not apply to storm water
7407	runoff or other discharges from areas subject to contamination solely by fallout from air
7408	emissions of aldrin/dieldrin; or to storm water runoff that exceeds that from the 10-year 24 hour
7409	rainfall event.
7410	
7411	(B) Analytical method acceptable. EPA method specified in 40 CFR
7412	Part 136, except that a 1 liter sample size is required to increase the analytical sensitivity.
7413	2 ms 10 o, one-opt time to 1 more sumpre size is required to mercure the mining vieta sensitivity.
7414	(C) Effluent standard.
7415	(c) Emach standard.
7416	(I) Existing sources. Aldrin or dieldrin is prohibited in any
7417	discharge from any aldrin/dieldrin manufacturer.
7418	discharge from any atterny dicitarin manufacturer.
7419	(II) New Sources. Aldrin or dieldrin is prohibited in any
7420	discharge from any aldrin/dieldrin manufacturer.
7421	discharge from any aidrin/dicidim mandracturer.
7422	(iii) Aldrin/Dieldrin formulator.
7423	(III) Aldrill Dicidini formulator.
7424	(A) Applicability.
7425	(11) Applicability.
7426	(I) These standards or prohibitions apply to:
7427	(1) These standards of promotions apply to.
7428	(1.) All discharges of process wastes; and
7429	(1.) All discharges of process wastes, and
7430	(2.) All discharges from the formulating areas,
7430 7431	loading and unloading areas, storage areas and other areas which are subject to direct
7432	contamination by aldrin/dieldrin as a result of the formulating process, including but not limited
7433	
7433 7434	to:
7434 7435	a. Storm water and other runoff except as
7435 7436	•
	hereinafter provided in Appendix N (h) (iii) (A) (II); and
7437	h Water weed for routing alconum or
7438 7430	b. Water used for routine cleanup or
7439	cleanup of spills.
7440 7441	(II) These standards do not apply to storm water must off an
7441 7442	(II) These standards do not apply to storm water runoff or
	other discharges from areas subject to contamination solely by fallout from air emissions of
7443 7444	aldrin/dieldrin; or to storm water runoff that exceeds that from the 10-year 24 hour rainfall event.
1444	

7445			(B)	Anal	vtical me	thod acc	ceptable. EPA method specified in 40 CFR
7446	Part 136, exce	ept that a	` '	-			increase the analytical sensitivity.
7447	,	1		•			, , ,
7448			(C)	Efflu	ent stand	ard.	
7449			· /				
7450				(I)	Existi	ng sour	ces. Aldrin or dieldrin is prohibited in any
7451	discharge from	n anv alo	drin/diel			8	J. C.
7452		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,					
7453				(II)	New s	ources.	Aldrin or dieldrin is prohibited in any
7454	discharge from	n anv alo	drin/dielo	` ′			
7455		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,					
7456	(i)	DDT.	DDD, a	nd DDF	Ξ.		
7457	(-)	221,	222,				
7458		(i)	Specia	alized d	efinitions	:	
7459		(1)	Бреск	anzea a	CITITUTOTIC	,.	
7460			(A)	"DD	Γ manufa	cturer"	means a manufacturer, excluding any
7461	source which	is exclus	` /				oduces, prepares or processes technical
7462			-			_	n, preparation or processing of another
7463	synthetic orga			iateriar	in the pro	duction	i, preparation of processing of another
7464	symmetre orga	inic saos	turice.				
7465			(B)	"DD	Γ formula	ator" me	eans a person who produces, prepares or
7466	processes a fo	rmulated	` '				of DDT and inert materials or other diluents
7467	_		_	_	-		stered under the Federal Insecticide,
7468	•				•	_	135, et seq.). The ambient water criterion
7469	for DDT in su						The section of the se
7470				~			
7471		(ii)	DDT	manufa	cturer.		
7472		()					
7473			(A)	Appli	cability.		
7474			()	FF			
7475				(I)	These	standar	rds or prohibitions apply to:
7476				()			r i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i
7477					(1.)	All di	ischarges of process wastes; and
7478							
7479					(2.)	All di	ischarges from the manufacturing areas,
7480	loading and u	nloading	areas, s	torage a			reas which are subject to direct
7481	•	_		_			g process, including but not limited to:
7482		•				·	
7483						a.	Storm water and other runoff except as
7484	hereinafter pr	ovided ir	Append	dix N (i) (ii) (A)	(II); and	-
7485	•		11			. , ,	
7486						b.	Water used for routine cleanup or
7487	cleanup of spi	ills.					•
7488							
7489							

7490		(II)	These standards do not apply to storm water runoff or
7491	other discharges from areas sul	bject to	contamination solely by fallout from air emissions of DDT
7492		-	hat from the 10-year 24 hour rainfall event.
7493			
7494	(B)	Analy	rtical method acceptable. EPA method specified in 40 CFR
7495	` '	-	ze is required to increase the analytical sensitivity.
7496	(6)	- aa	
7497	(C)	Efflue	ent standard.
7498		(T)	55
7499		(I)	Existing sources. DDT is prohibited in any discharge
7500	from any DDT manufacturer.		
7501			
7502		(II)	New sources. DDT is prohibited in any discharge from
7503	any DDT manufacturer.		
7504			
7505	(iii) DDT i	formula	tor.
7506			
7507	(A)	Appli	cability.
7508			
7509		(I)	These standards or prohibitions apply to:
7510			
7511			(1.) All discharges of process wastes; and
7512			
7513			(2.) All discharges from the formulating areas,
7514	loading and unloading areas, st	torage a	reas and other areas which are subject to direct
7515	contamination by DDT as a res	sult of th	ne formulating process, including but not limited to:
7516			
7517			a. Storm water and other runoff except as
7518	hereinafter provided in Append	dix N (i)	(iii) (A) (II); and
7519			
7520			b. Water used for routine cleanup or
7521	cleanup of spills.		
7522			
7523		(II)	These standards do not apply to storm water runoff or
7524	other discharges from areas su	bject to	contamination solely by fallout from air emissions of DDT
7525	or to storm water runoff that ex	ceeds t	hat from the 10-year 24 hour rainfall event.
7526			
7527	(B)	Analy	rtical method acceptable. EPA method specified in 40 CFF
7528	Part 136, except that a 1 liter sa	ample si	ze is required to increase the analytical sensitivity.
7529			
7530	(C)	Efflue	ent standard.
7531			
7532		(I)	Existing sources. DDT is prohibited in any discharge
7533	from any DDT formulator.		
7534			

/535				(II)	New	Sources.	. DDT is prohibited in any discharge fr	om
7536	any DDT for	mulator.						
7537								
7538	(j)	Endrin						
7539								
7540		(i)	Speci	alized de	efinition	s.		
7541			•					
7542			(A)	"Endr	in manu	ıfacturer	" means a manufacturer, excluding any	
7543	source which	is exclusi	vely ar	n endrin f	formulat	tor, who	produces, prepares or processes techni-	cal
7544	endrin, or wh	o uses end	lrin as	a materia	al in the	product	ion, preparation or processing of another	er
7545	synthetic orga	anic substa	ance.			-		
7546	,							
7547			(B)	"Endr	in form	ulator m	eans" a person who produces, prepares	or
7548	processes a fo	ormulated	produc				of endrin and inert materials or other	
7549	diluents into	a product i	intende	ed for app	plication	in any	use registered under the Federal	
7550	Insecticide, F	ungicide a	and Ro	denticide	Act, as	amende	ed (7 U.S.C. 135 et seq.).	
7551								
7552			(C)	The a	mbient v	water cri	terion for endrin in surface waters of th	e
7553	state is 0.004	ug/l.						
7554								
7555		(ii)	Endri	n manufa	acturer.			
7556								
7557			(A)	Appli	cability.			
7558								
7559				(I)	These	e standar	ds or prohibitions apply to:	
7560								
7561					(1.)	All di	ischarges of process wastes; and	
7562								
7563					(2.)	All di	ischarges from the manufacturing areas	,
7564	loading and u	nloading	areas, s	storage a	reas and	other a	reas which are subject to direct	
7565	contamination	n by endri	n as a 1	result of	the man	ufacturii	ng process, including but not limited to	:
7566								
7567						a.	Storm water and other runoff except	as
7568	hereinafter pr	ovided in	Appen	dix N (j)	(ii) (A)	(II); and	d	
7569								
7570						b.	Water used for routine cleanup or	
7571	cleanup of sp	ills.						
7572								
7573				(II)			ds do not apply to storm water runoff of	r
7574		-		-			olely by fallout from air emissions of	
7575	endrin or to s	torm wate	r runof	f that exe	ceeds th	at from	the 10-year 24 hour rainfall event.	
7576								
7577			(B)	Analy	tical me	ethod acc	ceptable. EPA method specified in 40 (CFF
7578	Part 136.							
7579								
7580			(C)	Efflue	ent stand	lard.		

7581							
7582							
7583	(I) Existing sources. Discharges from an endrin						
7584	manufacturer shall not contain endrin concentrations exceeding an average per working day of						
7585	1.5 ug/l calculated over any calendar month; and shall not exceed a monthly average daily						
7586	loading of 0.0006 kg/kkg of endrin produced; and shall not exceed 7.5 ug/l in a sample(s)						
7587	representing any working day.						
7588	topiconium g unit in oriming unit.						
7589	(II) New sources. Discharges from an endrin manufacturer						
7590	shall not contain endrin concentrations exceeding an average per working day of 0.1 ug/l						
7591	calculated over any calendar month; and shall not exceed a monthly average daily loading of						
7592	0.00004 kg/kkg of endrin produced; and shall not exceed 0.5 ug/l in a sample(s) representing any						
7593	working day.						
7594	working day.						
7595	(III) Mass emission standard during shutdown of production.						
7596	In computing the allowable monthly average daily loading figure required under the preceding						
7590 7597	Appendix N (j) (ii) (C) (I) and (II), for any calendar month for which there is no endrin being						
7598	manufactured at any plant or facility which normally contributes to the discharge which is subjec						
7598 7599							
	to these standards, the applicable production value shall be deemed to be the average monthly						
7600 7601	production level for the most recent preceding 360 days of actual operation of the plant or						
7601	facility.						
7602	(''') For their formulation						
7603	(iii) Endrin formulator.						
7604	(A) A multipolities						
7605	(A) Applicability.						
7606	(I) These standards on muchibitions apply to						
7607 7608	(I) These standards or prohibitions apply to:						
	(1) All discharges of masses mostless and						
7609	(1.) All discharges of process wastes; and						
7610							
7611	(2.) All discharges from the formulating areas,						
7612	loading and unloading areas, storage areas and other areas which are subject to direct						
7613	contamination by endrin as a result of the formulating process, including but not limited to:						
7614							
7615	a. Storm water and other runoff except as						
7616	hereinafter provided in Appendix N (j) (iii) (A) (II); and						
7617							
7618	b. water used for routine cleanup or						
7619	cleanup of spills.						
7620							
7621	(II) These standards do not apply to storm water runoff or						
7622	other discharges from areas subject to contamination solely by fallout from air emissions of						
7623	endrin, or to storm water runoff that exceeds that from the 10-year 24 hour rainfall event.						
7624							
7625	(B) Analytical method acceptable. EPA method specified in 40 CFF						
7626	Part 136, except that a 1 liter sample size is required to increase the analytical sensitivity.						

7627							
7628			(C)	Efflu	ent standard.	•	
7629							
7630				(I)	Existing s	source	s. Endrin is prohibited in any discharge
7631	from any endi	rin formu	lator.				
7632							
7633				(II)	New sour	ces. I	Endrin is prohibited in any discharge fron
7634	any endrin for	mulator.					
7635							
7636		(iv)					ection shall apply to the total combined
7637	weight or con	centratio	n of end	lrin, exc	luding any a	ıssocia	ated element or compound.
7638							
7639	(k)	Toxap	hene.				
7640							
7641		(i)	Speci	alized d	efinitions.		
7642							
7643		_	(A)		•		rer" means a manufacturer, excluding any
7644			•	•			o produces, prepares or processes
7645	•		•		material in t	the pro	oduction, preparation or processing of
7646	another synthe	etic orga	nic subs	tance.			
7647			(D)	(/55	1 0		
7648			(B)		-		" means a person who produces, prepares
7649	•		•				of toxaphene and inert materials or other
7650		•		•	•	•	se registered under the Federal
7651	Insecticide, Fi	ungiciae	and Ro	aenticia	e Act, as ame	enaea	(7 U.S.C. 135, et seq.).
7652			(C)	T1	1. :		
7653	414-4- :- 0 (005~/1	(C)	The a	mbient wate	er crite	erion for toxaphene in surface waters of
7654	the state is 0.0	005 ug/1.					
7655 7656		(;;)	Towar	shana m	anufactumen		
7657		(ii)	ТОХА	onene m	anufacturer.		
7658			(A)	A nnli	icability.		
7659			(A)	Аррп	Cability.		
7660				(I)	These star	ndard	s or prohibitions apply to:
7661				(1)	These stai	nuaru	s of promotions apply to.
7662					(1.) A	All die	charges of process wastes; and
7663					(1.) A	iii uist	enarges or process wastes, and
7664					(2.) A	All disc	charges from the manufacturing areas,
7665	loading and u	nloading	areas s	torage a	` '		as which are subject to direct
7666	-	_		_			uring process, including but not limited to
7667	Comminution	. Of WA	priorio a	. a resur	t of the man	aructu	and process, including out not inflict to
7668					a.		Storm water and other runoff except as
7669	hereinafter pr	ovided ir	Appen	dix N (k			-
7670	in the property of	- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	PPCII		-, (, (, (,	,, and	
7671					b.	١.	Water used for routine cleanup or
7672	cleanup of spi	ills.			0.		
	1 - P						

7673		
7674	(II) These standards do not apply to storm water runoff or	•
7675	other discharges from areas subject to contamination solely by fallout from air emissions of	
7676	toxaphene or to storm water runoff that exceeds that from the 10-year 24 hour rainfall event.	
7677	·	
7678	(B) Analytical method acceptable. EPA method specified in 40 C	'FR
7679	Part 136.	
7680		
7681	(C) Effluent standard.	
7682		
7683	(I) Existing sources. Discharges from a toxaphene	
7684	manufacturer shall not contain toxaphene concentrations exceeding an average per working da	v
7685	of 1.5 ug/l calculated over any calendar month; and shall not exceed a monthly average daily	J
7686	loading of 0.00003 kg/kkg of toxaphene produced, and shall not exceed 7.5 ug/l in a sample(s)	1
7687	representing any working day.	
7688	representing any working any.	
7689	(II) New sources. Discharges from a toxaphene	
7690	manufacturer shall not contain toxaphene concentrations exceeding an average per working da	v
7691	of 0.1 ug/l calculated over any calendar month; and shall not exceed a monthly average daily	y
7692	loading of 0.000002 kg/kkg of toxaphene produced, and shall not exceed 0.5 ug/l in a sample(s	(2
7693	representing any working day.	"
7694	representing any working day.	
7695	(III) Mass emission during shutdown of production. In	
7696	computing the allowable monthly average daily loading figure required under the preceding	
7697	Appendix N (k) (ii) (C) (I) and (II), for any calendar month for which there is no toxaphene be	ino
7698	manufactured at any plant or facility which normally contributes to the discharge which is sub	
7699	to these standards, the applicable production value shall be deemed to be the average monthly	jeet
7700	production level for the most recent preceding 360 days of actual operation of the plant or	
7701	facility.	
7701	racinty.	
7703	(iii) Toxaphene formulator.	
7704	(III) Toxaphene formulator.	
7705	(A) Applicability.	
7706	(A) Applicability.	
7707	(I) These standards or prohibitions apply to:	
7708	(1) These standards of promotitions apply to.	
7708	(1.) All discharges of process wastes; and	
7710	(1.) All discharges of process wastes, and	
7711	(2.) All discharges from the formulating areas,	
7712	(2.) All discharges from the formulating areas, loading and unloading areas, storage areas and other areas which are subject to direct	
7712		
7714	contamination by toxaphene as a result of the formulating process, including but not limited to	•
7714	a Starm water and other man off areast	0.0
	a. Storm water and other runoff except	as
7716	hereinafter provided in Appendix N (k) (iii) (A) (II); and	
7717		

7718						b.	Water used for routine cleanup or	
7719	cleanup of spi	lls.					•	
7720								
7721				(II)	These	standar	ds do not apply to storm water runoff	or
7722	other discharg	es from	areas su	` /			olely by fallout from air emissions of	
7723	-			-			om the 10-year 24 hour rainfall event	t
7724	to aprione, or	to storm	water r	unon un	и слесс	as that if	on the 10 year 21 noar rannan even	*•
7725			(B)	Δnals	vtical me	thod acc	ceptable. EPA method specified in 40	CFR
7726	Part 136 avea	nt that a	` '	-			increase the analytical sensitivity.	CIK
7727	1 art 130, exce	рі шаі а	. I IIICI S	ampie si	ize is rec	quired to	increase the analytical sensitivity.	
7728			(C)	Effly	ent stand	lorde		
7729			(C)	Elliuc	ziii staiiu	iaius.		
				(T)	Erricti		Towarhana is machibited in any	
7730	1 1		1	(I)		ng sourc	ees. Toxaphene is prohibited in any	
7731	discharge from	n any to	xapnene	formula	itor.			
7732				(TT)				
7733	6			(II)	New s	sources.	Toxaphene is prohibited in any disch	ıarge
7734	from any toxa	phene fo	ormulato	r.				
7735								
7736		(iv)					section shall apply to the total combin	ned
7737	weight or cond	centratio	n of tox	aphene,	excludir	ng any as	ssociated element or compound.	
7738								
7739	(1)	Benzi	dine.					
7740								
7741		(i)	Speci	alized de	efinitions	S.		
7742								
7743			(A)	"Benz	zidine m	anufactu	rer" means a manufacturer who produ	uces
7744	benzidine or v	vho prod	luces bei	nzidine a	as an inte	ermediat	e product in the manufacture of dyes	
7745	commonly use	ed for te	xtile, lea	ther and	l paper d	yeing.		
7746								
7747			(B)	"Benz	zidine ba	sed dye	applicator" means an owner or opera	tor
7748	who uses benz	zidine ba	sed dye	s in the o	dyeing o	f textiles	s, leather or paper.	
7749								
7750			(C)	The a	mbient v	vater cri	terion for benzidine in surface waters	of
7751	the state is 0.1	ug/l.						
7752		C						
7753		(ii)	Benzi	dine ma	nufactur	er.		
7754		. ,						
7755			(A)	Appli	icability.			
7756			` '	11	3			
7757				(I)	These	standar	ds apply to:	
7758				\ /			II 2	
7759					(1.)	All di	scharges into the surface waters of the	e
7760	state of proces	s wastes	and		(2.)	01	22	-
7761	state of proces	, waster	, unu					
7762					(2.)	A11 di	scharges into the surface waters of the	e.
7763	state of wastes	Contair	ing hen	zidine fr	` '		turing areas, loading and unloading ar	
1105	state of wastes	, coman	0011		om me i		arring areas, reading and annoading ar	ouo,

comaining product as a	result o	of the manufacturing process, including but not limited to:
		a. Storm water and other runoff except as
hereinafter provided in	Append	dix N (l) (ii) (A) (II), and
provided in	pp •	
		b. Water used for routine cleanup or
cleanup of spills.		1
• •		
		(II) These standards do not apply to storm water runoff or
other discharges from a	reas sul	bject to contamination solely by fallout from air emissions of
benzidine or to storm w	ater rui	noff that exceeds that from the 10-year 24 hour rainfall event.
	(B)	Analytical method acceptable. EPA method specified in 40 CFR
Part 136.		
	(C)	Effluent standards.
0		(I) Existing sources. Discharges from a benzidine
		benzidine concentrations exceeding an average per working day of
•	•	lendar month, and shall not exceed a monthly average daily loading
	zidine p	produced, and shall not exceed 50 ug/l in a sample(s) representing
any working day.		
		(II) Namasanas Disabanas from a hamidina
manufaatuman ahall nat	aantain	(II) New sources. Discharges from a benzidine
		benzidine concentrations exceeding an average per working day of
•	-	lendar month, and shall not exceed a monthly average daily loading broduced, and shall not exceed 50 ug/l in a sample(s) representing
any working day.	zidille p	oroduced, and snan not exceed 50 ug/1 in a sample(s) representing
any working day.		
	(D)	The standards set forth in Annandix N (1) (ii) shall annly to the
otal combined weight	(D)	The standards set forth in Appendix N (l) (ii) shall apply to the
_	` '	The standards set forth in Appendix N (1) (ii) shall apply to the entration of benzidine, excluding any associated element or
_	` '	
compound.	or conce	entration of benzidine, excluding any associated element or
_	or conce	
compound.	or conce Benzie	entration of benzidine, excluding any associated element or dine based dye applicators.
compound.	or conce	entration of benzidine, excluding any associated element or
compound.	or conce Benzie	entration of benzidine, excluding any associated element or dine based dye applicators. Applicability.
compound.	or conce Benzie	entration of benzidine, excluding any associated element or dine based dye applicators.
compound.	or conce	entration of benzidine, excluding any associated element or dine based dye applicators. Applicability. (I) These standards apply to:
compound. (iii)	Benzio	entration of benzidine, excluding any associated element or dine based dye applicators. Applicability.
compound.	Benzio	entration of benzidine, excluding any associated element or dine based dye applicators. Applicability. (I) These standards apply to:
compound. (iii)	Benzio	entration of benzidine, excluding any associated element or dine based dye applicators. Applicability. (I) These standards apply to:

7809		v		nation by benzidine or benzidine
7810	containing product as a result	of the ma	anufacturing pro	ocess, including but not limited to:
7811				
7812			a.	Storm water and other runoff except as
7813	hereinafter provided in Appen	dix N (1)	(iii) (A) (II), an	nd .
7814				
7815			b.	Water used for routine cleanup or
7816	cleanup of spills.			
7817				
7818		(II)	These standar	ds do not apply to storm water runoff or
7819	other discharges from areas su	bject to	contamination s	olely by fallout from air emissions of
7820	benzidine or to storm water the	at exceed	ds that from the	10-year 24 hour rainfall event.
7821				
7822	(B)	Analy	tical method acc	ceptable.
7823				
7824		(I)	EPA method	specified in 40 CFR Part 136; or
7825				
7826		(II)	Mass balance	monitoring approach which requires the
7827	calculation of the benzidine co	oncentrat	tion by dividing	the total benzidine contained in dyes used
7828	during a working day (as certi-	fied in w	riting by the ma	inufacturer) by the total quantity of water
7829	discharged during the working	g day.		
7830		•		
7831	(C)	Efflue	ent standards.	
7832	` '			
7833		(I)	Existing source	ces. Discharges from benzidine based dye
7834	applicators shall not contain be	enzidine	•	exceeding an average per working day of
7835	* *			not exceed 25 ug/l in a sample(s) or
7836	calculation(s) representing any			2 1 ()
7837	\			
7838		(II)	New sources.	Discharges from benzidine based dye
7839	applicators shall not contain be			exceeding an average per working day of
7840				not exceed 25 ug/l in a sample(s) or
7841	calculation(s) representing any			2 1 ()
7842	(r) of the contract (s)	,	8	
7843	(D)	The st	tandards set fort	h in Appendix N (l) (iii) shall apply to the
7844				any associated element or compound [42
7845	FR 2620, Jan. 12, 1977].		, <i>g</i>	
7846	11(2020,000012,15,7,1			
7847	(m) Polychlorinate	ed binhe	nvls (PCBs)	
7848	101,01101111111		, (,,,,,,	
7849	(i) Speci	alized de	efinitions.	
7850	(i) Speci	Lou de		
7851	(A)	"PCR	manufacturer"	means a manufacturer who produces
7852	polychlorinated biphenyls.	100	ilialialacial of	means a manaracturer who produces
7853	porjeniormated orphenyis.			

/854		(B)	"Electr	ıcal caj	pacıtor r	nanufacturer" means a manufacturer who
7855	produces or assembles el	lectrical	l capacit	ors in	which P	CB or PCB containing compounds are part
856	of the dielectric.		•			
7857						
7858		(C)	"Flectr	ical tra	neforme	er manufacturer" means a manufacturer
7859		` '				
	-		uricai ura	anstorn	ners in v	which PCB or PCB containing compounds
7860	are part of the dielectric.					
7861					_	
7862		(D)	The am	ibient v	vater cri	terion for PCBs in surface waters of the
7863	state is 0.001 ug/l.					
7864						
7865	(ii)	PCB m	anufactu	ırer.		
866						
867		(A)	Applica	ability.		
868		` /	11	•		
1869			(I)	These	standar	ds or prohibitions apply to:
7870			(1)	THOSE	Standar	as of promotions apply to.
7871				(1.)	A 11 di	ischarges of process wastes;
7872				(1.)	All u	ischarges of process wastes,
				(2)	A 11 .1:	is all annual from the meanufacturing on
7873	1 1		1 1	(2.)		ischarges from the manufacturing or
7874						areas, and other areas which are subject to
7875	•	PCBs a	s a resul	t of the	manuta	acturing process, including but not limited
7876	to:					
877						
7878					a.	Storm water and other runoff except as
7879	hereinafter provided in A	Appendi	x N (m)	(ii) (A	(II); aı	nd
7880						
7881					b.	Water used for routine cleanup or
882	cleanup of spills.					•
883						
884			(II)	These	standar	ds do not apply to storm water runoff or
885	other discharges from an	eas suhi	` '			olely by fallout from air emissions of
7886		-				the 10 year 24 hour rainfall event.
7887	1 CBs, or to storm water	Tulloff	mai exce	cus in	at mom	the 10 year 24 hour rannan event.
		(D)	A 14:	1 N / .	.41 1 A .	
7888		(B)	-			ecceptable. EPA method specified in 40
7889	CFR Part 136 except tha	t a 1 lite	er sampi	e size	ıs requir	red to increase analytical sensitivity.
7890						
7891		(C)	Effluen	it stand	ards.	
7892						
7893			(I)	Existi	ng sour	ces. PCBs are prohibited in any discharge
7894	from any PCB manufact	urer;				
7895	•					
1896			(II)	New s	sources.	PCBs are prohibited in any discharge
7897	from any PCB manufact	urer.	` /			, J 8-
7898	, - 					
7899	(iii)	Electric	cal capac	ritor m	anufacti	Iror
ひフフ	(111)	LICCUIC	ai capac	TIOI III	anuraell	IICI.

7900			
7901	(A)	Applic	cability.
7902		• •	•
7903		(I)	These standards or prohibitions apply to:
7904			• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
7905			(1.) All discharges of process wastes; and
7906			
7907			(2.) All discharges from the manufacturing or
7908	incineration areas, loading and	unloadir	ing areas, storage areas and other areas which are subject to
7909	direct contamination by PCBs	as a resu	ult of the manufacturing process, including but not limited
7910	to:		
7911			
7912			a. Storm water and other runoff except as
7913	hereinafter provided in Append	dix N (m	n) (iii) (A) (II); and
7914			
7915			b. Water used for routine cleanup or
7916	cleanup of spills.		•
7917			
7918		(II)	These standards do not apply to storm water runoff or
7919	other discharges from areas sul	bject to c	contamination solely by fallout from air emissions of PCBs
7920	_	•	hat from the 10 year 24 hour rainfall event.
7921			•
7922	(B)	Analyt	vtical method acceptable. EPA method specified in 40 CFR
7923	` '	-	ize is required to increase analytical sensitivity.
7924	r	Ι	
7925	(C)	Efflue	ent standards.
7926	(-)		
7927		(I)	Existing sources. PCBs are prohibited in any discharge
7928	from any electrical capacitor m		, ,
7929			
7930		(II)	New sources. PCBs are prohibited in any discharge
7931	from any electrical capacitor m	. ,	
7932	and the second compact of the	10110110100	
7933	(iv) Electri	ical trans	nsformer manufacturer.
7934	(iv) Election	iour truins	
7935	(A)	Annlic	cability.
7936	(11)	пррпс	cubinty.
7937		(I)	These standards or prohibitions apply to:
7938		(1)	These standards of promotions apply to.
7939			(1.) All discharges of process wastes; and
7940			(1.) I'm discharges of process wastes, and
7940 7941			(2.) All discharges from the manufacturing or
7941 7942	incinaration areas loading and	unloadia	ing areas, storage areas, and other areas which are subject
7942 7943	_		
	•	os as a re	result of the manufacturing process, including but not
7944	limited to:		
7945			

7946	a. Storm water and other runoff except as
7947	hereinafter provided in Appendix N (m) (iv) (A) (II); and
7948	
7949	b. Water used for routine cleanup or
7950	cleanup of spills.
7951	
7952	(II) These standards do not apply to storm water runoff or
7953	other discharges from areas subject to contamination solely by fallout from air emissions of PCBs
7954	or to storm water runoff that exceeds that from the 10 year 24 hour rainfall event.
7955	
7956	(B) Analytical method acceptable. EPA method specified in 40 CFR
7957	Part 136, except that a 1 liter sample size is required to increase analytical sensitivity.
7958	
7959	(C) Effluent standards.
7960	
7961	(I) Existing sources. PCBs are prohibited in any discharge
7962	from any electrical transformer manufacturer;
7963	
7964	(II) New sources. PCBs are prohibited in any discharge
7965	from any electrical transformer manufacturer.
7966	
7967	(v) Adjustment of effluent standard for presence of PCBs in intake water.
7968	Whenever a facility which is subject to these standards has PCBs in its effluent which result from
7969	the presence of PCBs in its intake waters, the owner may apply to the director, for a credit
7970	pursuant to Appendix N (f), where the source of the water supply is the same body of water into
7971	which the discharge is made. The requirement of Appendix N (f) (i), relating to the source of the
7972	water supply, shall be waived, and such facility shall be eligible to apply for a credit under
7973	Appendix N (f), upon a showing by the owner or operator of such facility to the director that the
7974	concentration of PCBs in the intake water supply of such facility does not exceed the
7975	concentration of PCBs in the receiving water body to which the plant discharges its effluent. [42
7976	FR 6555, Feb. 2, 1977]
7977	
7978	

(formerly Chapter 6) APPENDIX O: Additional Requirements Applicable to Color River Basin Salinity Control	
(formerly Chapter 6,Section 1.) At	thority. These regulations are promulgated
pursuant to W.S. 35-11-101 through W.S. 3	• • •
35-11-302.	
(formerly Chapter 6, Section 2.) (a)	Definitions. The following definitions
supplement those definitions contained in So	ection 35-11-103 of the Wyoming Environme
Quality Act.	
(formerly Chapter 6, Section	n 2(a)) (i) Colorado River Basin Salinity C
Forum - The organization composed of water quality and water resource representatives of	
*	vada, New Mexico, Utah and Wyoming, with
	rds and criteria for the waters of the Colorado
Basin.	
(formerly Chapter 6, Section 2(b), Total Dis	solved Solids (Total Filterable Residue). Tho
	ass through a standard 0.45um glass fiber filte
	nstant weight (+4%) at 180C. Total Dissolved
are reported as mg per liter.	
and all organic matter has been oxidized. It	is numerically smaller than total dissolved sol
and all organic matter has been oxidized. It is usually reported as grams per kilogram or	is numerically smaller than total dissolved soleparts per thousand (0/00).
and all organic matter has been oxidized. It is usually reported as grams per kilogram or (formerly Chapter 6, Section 3))(b)	is numerically smaller than total dissolved sole parts per thousand (0/00). Salinity Standards/Criteria. The State of
and all organic matter has been oxidized. It is usually reported as grams per kilogram or (formerly Chapter 6, Section 3))(b) Wyoming shall cooperate with the other state	is numerically smaller than total dissolved sole parts per thousand (0/00). Salinity Standards/Criteria. The State of the Colorado River Basin and the government.
and all organic matter has been oxidized. It is usually reported as grams per kilogram or (formerly Chapter 6, Section 3))(b) Wyoming shall cooperate with the other state	is numerically smaller than total dissolved sole parts per thousand (0/00). Salinity Standards/Criteria. The State of the Colorado River Basin and the gover
and all organic matter has been oxidized. It is usually reported as grams per kilogram or (formerly Chapter 6, Section 3))(b) Wyoming shall cooperate with the other state	is numerically smaller than total dissolved sole parts per thousand (0/00). Salinity Standards/Criteria. The State of the Colorado River Basin and the government.
and all organic matter has been oxidized. It is usually reported as grams per kilogram or (formerly Chapter 6, Section 3))(b) Wyoming shall cooperate with the other state of the United States to maintain salinity level.	Salinity Standards/Criteria. The State of the Colorado River Basin and the governels in the main stem of the Colorado River at of the Colorado Riv
is usually reported as grams per kilogram or (formerly Chapter 6, Section 3))(b) Wyoming shall cooperate with the other state of the United States to maintain salinity level the following: Location Below Hoover Dam	Salinity Standards/Criteria. The State of tes of the Colorado River Basin and the governels in the main stem of the Colorado River at of Salinity in mg/L of total dissolved so 723
(formerly Chapter 6, Section 3))(b) Wyoming shall cooperate with the other states of the United States to maintain salinity level the following: Location Below Hoover Dam Below Parker Dam	Salinity Standards/Criteria. The State of tes of the Colorado River Basin and the governels in the main stem of the Colorado River at constant in the colorado
is usually reported as grams per kilogram or (formerly Chapter 6, Section 3))(b) Wyoming shall cooperate with the other state of the United States to maintain salinity level the following: Location Below Hoover Dam	Salinity Standards/Criteria. The State of the Colorado River Basin and the gover els in the main stem of the Colorado River at of Salinity in mg/L of total dissolved so 723
(formerly Chapter 6, Section 3))(b) Wyoming shall cooperate with the other state of the United States to maintain salinity lever the following: Location Below Hoover Dam Below Parker Dam Imperial Dam	Salinity Standards/Criteria. The State of tes of the Colorado River Basin and the gover els in the main stem of the Colorado River at of Salinity in mg/L of total dissolved so 723 747 879
(formerly Chapter 6, Section 3))(b) Wyoming shall cooperate with the other states of the United States to maintain salinity level the following: Location Below Hoover Dam Below Parker Dam Imperial Dam The above are flow-weighted average	Salinity Standards/Criteria. The State of tes of the Colorado River Basin and the gover els in the main stem of the Colorado River at of Salinity in mg/L of total dissolved so 723 747 879 ge annual values and temporary increases abo
And all organic matter has been oxidized. It is usually reported as grams per kilogram or (formerly Chapter 6, Section 3))(b) Wyoming shall cooperate with the other state of the United States to maintain salinity level the following: Location Below Hoover Dam Below Parker Dam Imperial Dam The above are flow-weighted average values are allowed, provided that with comp	Salinity Standards/Criteria. The State of tes of the Colorado River Basin and the gover els in the main stem of the Colorado River at of Salinity in mg/L of total dissolved so 723 747 879 ge annual values and temporary increases aboutetion of salinity control projects, salinity
(formerly Chapter 6, Section 3))(b) Wyoming shall cooperate with the other state of the United States to maintain salinity lever the following: Location Below Hoover Dam Below Parker Dam Imperial Dam The above are flow-weighted average values are allowed, provided that with compressions are stated as a state of the United States to maintain salinity lever the following:	Salinity Standards/Criteria. The State of tes of the Colorado River Basin and the gover els in the main stem of the Colorado River at control projects, salinity salinity control projects, salinity eria level. These increases above the numeric
(formerly Chapter 6, Section 3))(b) Wyoming shall cooperate with the other state of the United States to maintain salinity lever the following: Location Below Hoover Dam Below Parker Dam Imperial Dam The above are flow-weighted average values are allowed, provided that with competencement and provided for in order to allow developments.	Salinity Standards/Criteria. The State of tes of the Colorado River Basin and the gover els in the main stem of the Colorado River at colo
(formerly Chapter 6, Section 3))(b) Wyoming shall cooperate with the other state of the United States to maintain salinity leverage the following: Location Below Hoover Dam Below Parker Dam Imperial Dam The above are flow-weighted average values are allowed, provided that with competence or concentrations would return to or below criteries provided for in order to allow for unfavorage or concentrations are brought on line, and to allow for unfavorage or concentrations would return to or unfavorage or concentrations would return to or unfavorage or concentrations would return to or unfavorage or	Salinity Standards/Criteria. The State of tes of the Colorado River Basin and the gover els in the main stem of the Colorado River at colo
(formerly Chapter 6, Section 3))(b) Wyoming shall cooperate with the other state of the United States to maintain salinity lever the following: Location Below Hoover Dam Below Parker Dam Imperial Dam The above are flow-weighted average values are allowed, provided that with competencement and provided for in order to allow developments.	Salinity Standards/Criteria. The State of tes of the Colorado River Basin and the gover els in the main stem of the Colorado River at colo
(formerly Chapter 6, Section 3))(b) Wyoming shall cooperate with the other state of the United States to maintain salinity leverate following: Location Below Hoover Dam Below Parker Dam Imperial Dam The above are flow-weighted average values are allowed, provided that with competencement are provided for in order to allow development are brought on line, and to allow for unfavorannual river flows.	Salinity Standards/Criteria. The State of tes of the Colorado River Basin and the gover less in the main stem of the Colorado River at of Salinity in mg/L of total dissolved so T23 T47 879 ge annual values and temporary increases aboutetion of salinity control projects, salinity eria level. These increases above the numeric ent projects to be completed before control metable reservoir conditions or periods of below
(formerly Chapter 6, Section 3))(b) Wyoming shall cooperate with the other state of the United States to maintain salinity leverage the following: Location Below Hoover Dam Below Parker Dam Imperial Dam The above are flow-weighted average values are allowed, provided that with compression concentrations would return to or below crite are provided for in order to allow development are brought on line, and to allow for unfavor annual river flows. (formerly Chapter 6, Section 4) (c)	Salinity Standards/Criteria. The State of tes of the Colorado River Basin and the governels in the main stem of the Colorado River at of Salinity in mg/L of total dissolved so 723 747 879 ge annual values and temporary increases aboraletion of salinity control projects, salinity eria level. These increases above the numerical ent projects to be completed before control metals.

8020	Standards through the NPDES Permit Program. In general, the policy shall be no discharge of salt		
8021	except where it is not economically or technologically practicable to prevent the discharge. the		
8022	following policies adopted by the Colorado River Basin Salinity Control Forum:		
8023			
8024	(i) "Policy for Implementation of the Colorado River Basin Salinity		
8025	Standards through the NPDES Permit Program, October 30, 2002";		
8026			
8027	(ii) "Policy for Implementation of the Colorado River Basin Salinity		
8028	Standards through the NPDES Permit Program for Intercepted Groundwater, October 20, 1980";		
8029	and		
8030			
8031	(iii) "Policy for Implementation of the Colorado River Basin Salinity		
8032	Standards through the NPDES Permit Program for Fish Hatcheries, October 28, 1988".		
8033			
8034	(formerly Chapter 6, Section 5) (d) Interstate Compacts, Court Decrees and Water		
8035	Rights. It is the policy of the Department that the adoption and enforcement of these regulations		
8036	is not intended to prevent the utilization of water apportioned to the State of Wyoming through		
8037	any interstate compact or court decree or to prevent the diversion of water under future or existin		
8038	water rights.		
0030	water rights.		

CHAPTER VI

RESERVED

CHAPTER VI SALINITY STANDARDS/CRITERIA FOR THE COLORADO RIVER BASIN

Section 1. Authority. These regu	ulations are promulgated pursuant to W.S. 35-11-101		
through W.S. 35-11-1104, specifically35-1			
Section 2. Definitions. The follow	ing definitions supplement those definitions contained		
in Section 35-11-103 of the Wyoming Env	vironmental Quality Act.		
	y Control Forum The organization composed of		
water quality and water resource representatives of the states of Arizona, California, Colorado,			
Nevada, New Mexico, Utah and Wyoming,	with the responsibility for developing salinity		
standards and criteria for the waters of the C	Colorado River Basin.		
	Filterable Residue). Those organic and inorganic		
constitutents which pass through a standard			
	0.45um glass fiber filter and are stable after evaporation and drying to constant weight (+4%) at 180C. Total Dissolved Solids are reported as mg per liter.		
Tool. Total Dissolved Bolids are reported by	is hig per her.		
c. Salinity the term used to report	the total solids in water after all carbonates have been		
converted to oxides, all bromide and iodide have been replaced by chloride and all organic matter			
has been oxidized. It is numerically smalle	r than total dissolved solids and is usually reported as		
grams per kilogram or parts per thousand (C	1/00).		
Section 3 Salinity Standards/Crite	eria. The State of Wyoming shall cooperate with the		
taran da antara da a	d the government of the United States to maintain		
salinity levels in the main stem of the Color			
summy levels in the main stem of the Color	ado rerver at or below the ronowing.		
	Salinity in mg/l of		
<u>Location</u>	total dissolved solids		
Below Hoover Dam	723		
Below Parker Dam	747		
Imperial Dam	879		
The above are flow weighted avera	ge annual values and temporary increases above these		
values are allowed provided that with comp			
•	teria level. These increases above the numeric criteria		
	ent projects to be completed before control measures		
	rable reservoir conditions or periods of below normal		
annual river flows.	•		
Section 4. Point Source Discharge	es to Surface Waters. Point source discharges to the surface		
-	ming shall be controlled as described in Policy For		
•	n Salinity Standards through the NPDESPermit Program. In		

general, the policy shall be no discharge of salt except where it is not economically or technologically practicable to prevent the discharge.

Section 5. <u>Interstate Compacts</u>, <u>Court Decrees and Water Rights</u>. It is the policy of the Department that the adoption and enforcement of these regulations is not intended to prevent the utilization of water apportioned to the State of Wyoming through any interstate compact or court decree or to prevent the diversion of water under future or existing water rights.

23057.DOC